
 
 

 
 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 17, 2023, 1:00 PM 
2nd FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, MOUNTAIN VILLAGE TOWN HALL 

455 MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD, MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO 
AGENDA REVISED 3 

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_JSx_NmWaTeutmX6HFAzIfA 
 Please note that times are approximate and subject to change. 

 Time Min Presenter Type  

1. 1:00    Call to Order 

2. 1:00 5   Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 

3. 1:05 30 
 

Bryan 
 

Legal 

Executive Session for the Purpose of: 
a. Conference with the Town Attorney for the Purpose of 

Receiving Legal Advice on Specific Legal Questions under CRS 
Section 24-6-402(4)(b), Specifically Regarding the Citizen-
Initiated Ordinance to Amend the Community Development 
Code 

4. 1:35 5 
Holmes 
Broady 

Informational 
Staff Introductions: 

a. Ashley Federici, Administrative Assistant to HR & 
Communications 

b. Hector Delgado, Community Service Officer  

5. 1:40 10 Johnston Action 
Consideration of Appointments: 

a. Two Mountain Village Resident Seats on the Grant Committee 
b. One Regular Seat on the Ethics Committee 

6. 1:50 10 Johnston 
Action 

Quasi-Judicial 

Liquor Licensing Authority: 
a. Consideration of a Special Event Liquor Application by 

Telluride Mountain Club Partnering with the Telluride Reserve 
for a Special Event on August 19, 2023 from 2:00 to 5:00 PM 

7. 2:00 5 
Wisor 
Squier 

Informational Update on Mountain Munchkins 

8. 2:05 5 Johnston Action 

Consent Agenda:  
All matters in the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the 
Town Council and will be enacted with a single vote. There will be no 
separate discussion of these items. If discussion is deemed necessary, 
that item should be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
separately: 

a. Consideration of Approval of the July 18, 2023 Special Town 
Council Meeting Minutes 

b. Consideration of Approval of the July 20, 2023 Regular Town 
Council Meeting Minutes 

9. 2:10 10 
Link 

Bryan 
Action Consideration of Approval of a Franchise Agreement with San Miguel 

Power Association, Inc 

10. 2:20 10 Bryan 
Ward 

Action 
First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote on an 
Ordinance Amending CDC Section 17.4.8 to Provide Temporary 
Authority for Additional Renewal of Expiring Land Use Approvals 

11. 2:30 15 Ward 
Action 

Quasi-Judicial 

First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote on an 
Ordinance Regarding a Vested Property Rights Extension for a Site-
Specific Development Plan for Lot 30, TBD Aspen Ridge Drive 
Pursuant to CDC 17.4.17 

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_JSx_NmWaTeutmX6HFAzIfA


TOWN COUNCIL MEETING             
AGENDA FOR AUGUST 17, 2023                                                      
 

                                                                                                               
Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting Town Hall at 970-369-6429 or email: 
mvclerk@mtnvillage.org.   A minimum notice of 48 hours is required so arrangements can be made to locate requested auxiliary aid(s) 
 

https://bit.ly/WatchMVMeetings 
 

 
 

 
 
 

12. 2:45 15 Ward 
Action 

Quasi-Judicial 

Consideration of a Resolution Approving a Variance to Allow for a 
Detached Accessory Dwelling Unit on a Lot of Less than .75 acres at 
Lot 360, TBD Rocky Rd Pursuant to CDC 17.3 and 17.4.16 

13. 3:00 60 Coleman 
Action 

Legislative 

Consideration of a Citizens’ Petition Requesting a First Reading, 
Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance 
Amending the Community Development Code by Adding a New 
Section 17.3.23 Providing Standards and Requirements to Grant 
Variances from the Maximum Building Height in the Village Center 
Zone Set Forth in Section 17.3.12 

14. 4:00 60 
Ward 

Haynes 
Action 

Quasi-Judicial 

Consideration of Action Regarding a Major Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) Amendment to the Formerly Named Mountain 
Village Hotel PUD, to Consider Amendments to the Existing PUD for 
Lot 109R for a Mixed-Use Hotel/Resort Development Including Plaza, 
Commercial, Hotel and Residential Use. This item was Continued from 
the June 15, 2023, Regular Town Council Meeting 

15. 5:00 15   Dinner 

16. 5:15 20 
Ward 

Haynes 
      Action 
Quasi-Judicial 

Consideration of Action for a Major Subdivision to Replat Portions of 
Property Between Lot 109R and OS-3-BR2 This Item was Continued 
from the June 15, 2023 Regular Town Council Meeting 

17. 5:35 60 
Ward 

Haynes 
Action 

Quasi-Judicial 

Consideration of Action Regarding a Rezone of Portions of Town Owned 
Village Center Active Open Space (OS-3- BR2) to 109R PUD, and 109R 
PUD to Village Center Active Open Space (OS-3- BR2) and a Portion of 
109R PUD to Active Open Space Right of Way (a Portion of the 
Mountain Village Blvd Bridge) Consistent with CDC Section 17.4.9 15. 
Related to the Concurrent Major Subdivision Application to Replat 
Portions of Property Between Lot 109R and OS-3-BR-2 This Item was 
Continued from the June 15, 2023 Regular Town Council Meeting 

18. 6:35 10 Chaffin Action Consideration of a Request for Emergency Funding for the Telluride 
Hospital District 

19. 6:45 10 
Kirn 
Held 

Gerona 
Action Consideration of a Resolution Adopting the Ouray and San Miguel 

County Regional Climate Action Plan 

20. 6:55 15 Walters Informational Forestry Update Regarding the Douglas Fir Beetle 

21. 7:10 5 
Wisor 
Bryan 

Action Consideration of a Resolution Setting the Initial Sales Price for Units at 
Lot 644 – Meadowlark at Mountain Village 

22. 7:15 5 Wisor Action Consideration of an Amendment to the Operating Agreement Between 
the Mountain Village Housing Authority and Meadowlark, LLC 

23. 7:20 5   Other Business 
24. 7:25    Adjourn 

https://bit.ly/WatchMVMeetings


TOWN COUNCIL MEETING             
AGENDA FOR AUGUST 17, 2023                                                      
 

 
Register in advance for this webinar: 

 
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_mf3zJXXWSyCQFHC9idugWw 

 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar. 

 
 
Zoom participation in public meetings is being offered as a courtesy, however technical difficulties can happen, and the Town 

bears no responsibility for issues that could prevent individuals from participating remotely. Physical presence in Council 
chambers is recommended for those wishing to make public comments or participate in public hearings. 

 
 

Public Comment Policy: 
• All public commenters must sign in on the public comment sign in sheet and indicate which item(s) they intend to give 

public comment on  
• Speakers shall wait to be recognized by the Mayor and shall give public comment at the public comment microphone 

when recognized by the Mayor   
• Speakers shall state their full name and affiliation with the Town of Mountain Village if any 
• Speakers shall be limited to two minutes with no aggregating of time through the representation of additional people   
• Speakers shall refrain from personal attacks and shall keep comments to that of a civil tone   
• No presentation of materials through the AV system shall be allowed for non-agendized speakers 
• Written materials must be submitted 48 hours prior to the meeting date to be included in the meeting packet and of 

record.  Written comment submitted within 48 hours will be accepted, but shall not be included in the packet or be 
deemed of record  

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_mf3zJXXWSyCQFHC9idugWw


Town of Mountain Village 
Date: 8/9/2023 
To: Town Council 
From:        Susan Johnston, Town Clerk   
RE: Community Grant Committee Appointments 

Scheduled for appointment at the August 17 Council meeting are two resident seats on the Community Grant 
Committee. The Committee shall be active as long as the Grant Program exists. The term of each Committee 
member shall initially be one year for one member of each category and 2 years for the other member of each 
category. Thereafter, each Committee member appointed by Town Council is for 2-year terms.  

Letters of interest were received from Kristin Farkas, Liz Caton (incumbent), Diana Farrell, Heather Knox 
(incumbent), and Mike Sanders. The letters of interest are attached.  

The current members of the Grant Committee: 

Marti Prohaska Town Council (Chair) Term Expires: July 2025 

Jack Gilbride Town Council Term Expires: July 2025 

Kathrine Warren Town Staff 

Susan Johnston Town Staff 

Liz Caton Mountain Village Resident Term Expires: July 2023 

Heather Knox Mountain Village Resident Term Expires: August 2023 

Suggested Motion: Motion to appoint ________ and ________ to the two resident seats on the Community 
Grants Committee for two-year terms each. 

Agenda Item 5a 



From: Farkas, Kristin
To: mvclerk
Subject: Mountain Village Grant Committee Application
Date: Monday, July 31, 2023 12:51:52 PM

Hello 
My name is Kristin Farkas and this email serves as a letter of intent/application, for a seat on the
Mountain Village Grant Committee.
 
I have lived in Mountain Village for 2 years and I am currently the Guest Services Manager for
Telluride Ski and Golf Resort. I am passionate about community engagement and creating a stronger
working relationship between Telski, Mountain Village and Telluride. This summer, along with my
amazing team, I have launched several new programs to enhance community engagement for locals
and visitors alike.
Our “Dog Days of Summer”  partnership with the Telluride Humane Society has brought so much joy
to our Wednesday market! The animals get to socialize, exercise and find forever families.
We also offer free daily guided hikes on the Ridge Trail. We teach visitors about the history of the
area, the abundant plant and wildlife, and share our favorite facts and tid-bits about what makes our
community so special.
Additionally, in an effort to bring more vitality to the Plaza, we partnered with Mountain Village and
added lawn games right in the heart of the core. They have been a smash hit!
 
Before moving to Mountain Village, I spent the majority of my adult life taking care of my parents
and my brother, while working as the Service Manager for the most booked Restaurant in America,
located in Washington DC, 4 blocks from the White House. The hustle and bustle of running such a
successful restaurant in the heart of DC taught me so much about leadership, time management,
and work-life balance. Taking care of my parents ,who were both in poor health, as well as my
brother was a full time job itself, and making time for both was an important skill for me to learn. My
brother has Down Syndrome and growing up with him gave me a passion for kindness, patience and
understanding. He inspired me to learn and be open minded to all walks of life. I speak Spanish quite
well and a fair bit of sign language as well as some Amharic (Ethiopian).
 
My childhood was spent in New Orleans where I learned about food, music, theatre and culture. I
love sports and competition!  I know that this life is short and I want to spend every day bringing joy
and success to my life and the lives of those around me.
 
I hope to have a seat on this committee because I love our community! I feel that I can bring a well-
rounded point of view. My life perspective is from so many vantage points because I take the time to
learn and understand people.  I celebrate not just our similarities, but our differences, not just our
successes but our failures too! If chosen, I promise to review every grant request with an open mind.
I promise to consider every perspective and provide thoughtful recommendations to our Town
Council.
Thank you all for your time and consideration.
 
Sincerely,
Kristin Farkas

mailto:kfarkas@tellurideskiresort.com
mailto:mvclerk@mtnvillage.org


 
 
Kristin Farkas
Guest Services Manager
Telluride Ski and Golf Resort
Kfarkas@telski.com
O: 970.728.7552
C: 703.608.1390
 

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use
by the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that
any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly
prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by
Mimecast, a leader in email security and cyber resilience. Mimecast integrates email defenses with brand
protection, security awareness training, web security, compliance and other essential capabilities. Mimecast
helps protect large and small organizations from malicious activity, human error and technology failure; and
to lead the movement toward building a more resilient world. To find out more, visit our website.

mailto:Kfarkas@telski.com


From: Elizabeth Caton
To: mvclerk
Subject: Grants Committee
Date: Monday, August 7, 2023 2:04:25 PM

ugu t 7, 20:13 

car u 11n: 

LIZABETH CATON 
2 :?6 ADAMS RANG~I OAD 

Mou TA.!N \111 . ..1.Aci;:CO 81435 
CEJ.J.: 9.:lSl-494-1303 

This no!e i • lu ·onfttm m · iotel'es'L ill uol]lillui11g as u In m her ,of the rants 
001nmitt e. 

A oopy ur inr res11me i a.tt:lehed. 

Many Lh1111ks, 

I ., 

Li~ aton 

mailto:liz.caton@gmail.com
mailto:mvclerk@mtnvillage.org


liz.caton@gmail.com
226 Adams Ranch Rd.
Mtn.  Village 81435
949-494-1303 Cell

We shall not cease from exploration 
And the end of all our exploring 
Will be to arrive where we started 
And know the place for the first time.

2.lll(H ~,;;IU.',,"CIL . 
:\J ITADI \'UJK,P. 8 35 

UL: ?'IGl•~'J'1•l303 
l U,t:ATI •Sr' 4_;,1, I I ,, •1 

T\l.ent~•~ •o,.;,r TI.>(:,ent.ell l o n,:,,I l'•l;Jll' 11a!'ln..r,il1i11 
c .. 11,r11;u.l,: in lnM01,1r lx,i~ ... ,r,:dali:nrn~ m Ki~hl:11 riJ l'l.!lh ,.fo~~II, 

Ei~li1-,e11 ~•-•r' ~ e),;~hL'flc :h l\"iail bu~'l!l' i'lll' ,1,i~n·~ 101111,ri, for r1,ajr1r i.lej,ar111:,,:n1 llll.J 
'1fll,,;i.1l1)' -.l1il1J r,.,ri' · i.,.-c:i;, l:tc,~n} r-0• c;,;p:rim. ~ lfooo~lll 111;.u ~r (1,1ri11t~ri11r lksi~n nd 
's"II<: 'I I elm r,rm.~. 

l;X!'I · Bl I· Nn 

l 'l72-197ll llull~k Ocparunctu co:rc .. Los An~es. Cs\ 

illJ P::B I\( II YI ICW,'i 

Vahm1c r lo , Tr!ll t,nd,: 1\ pli>'i:, ·p,.,ns l'r i;r.im d11rin~ ski ,,_ 
f.nabcr-s l1ipdu1.1r1mJ ""~ri:lm) (nr lclliuiJ .: W'1mt'l'!"s- 1','.,,,.. k. 

P.J 1 ,, lun1tcr fu S, 1 M i~•h;l R.e u;u,,-, cl'lLcr 
l'r ,.jtks,11 F:mi:ri111 IYf \\ ~ oflk11..-ti1_ :I 1I011-llr<lftt o.rgnni.wlitJ Jl rm,wiJin~ li11a1~· I lliL1 ,,, 

' '"' i, ,16 ot dn□K"-~"lk vlc,I • 
P11>1 rw:11J111: cb:m for W b of llelilt:li! 

. Li1.Nillun: 

-Ct!fl.lli~ ·~ lll!Cnll• I) ·~ 



Diana Farrell 
225 Touchdown Drive, Mountain Village, CO 81435 

dianamfarrell@gmail.com // 202-664-9193 
 
To the Mountain Village Clerk, 
 
By way of introduc�on, I am a resident of Mountain Village for three years now, and live here with my 
husband, Scot Pearson, who was recently elected as Councilmember and mayor pro tem of Mountain 
Village. I include a copy of my professional biography and direct you to my Linkedin profile for more 
details.  
 
I am wri�ng to express my strong interest in applying for a seat on both the Mountain Village Ethics 
Commitee and the Grant Commitee.  As a dedicated community member with a genuine commitment 
for fostering posi�ve change and upholding ethical standards, I am excited about the opportunity to 
contribute my skills and experience to these cri�cal roles.  
 
With my background as an ac�ve Board member of several organiza�ons, a senior leader in a private 
professional services firm and a major publicly held company, and experience in the public sector, I 
have had the privilege of developing a deep understanding of ethical considera�ons and the 
importance of responsible decision-making.  I believe that my ability to assess situa�ons from various 
perspec�ves and my commitment to fairness and integrity make me a suitable candidate for the Ethics 
Commitee.  I am confident in my capacity to ac�vely par�cipate in discussions, offer valuable insights, 
and contribute to the development and implementa�on of ethical guidelines that align with our town 
values. 
 
Furthermore, my experience leading major think tanks and policy ini�a�ves in mul�ple contexts has 
equipped me with a keen eye for iden�fying and shaping ini�a�ves and projects that hold the poten�al 
to enhance our community.  I understand the significance of responsible alloca�on of resources and 
believe that my analy�cal skills, combined with my genuine interest in suppor�ng community well-
being, can be put to excellent use on the Grant Commitee. If given the opportunity, I am commited to 
evalua�ng grant applica�ons me�culously and ensuring that the allocated funds are directed towards 
projects that will have a las�ng posi�ve impact. 
 
I strongly believe that an effec�ve Ethics Commitee and Grant Commitee can play pivotal roles in 
maintaining the integrity and progress of our community. With a sincere commitment to transparency, 
collabora�on, and the beterment of our town, I am eager to join forces with fellow commitee 
members to work towards an even brighter future. 
 
Thank you for considering my applica�on to both seats. I am eager to contribute my �me, energy and 
exper�se to serve our community through these significant roles.  I look forward to the possibility. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Diana Farrell 

mailto:dianamfarrell@gmail.com


   
 

Diana Farrell 
 
Diana Farrell is an independent director and trustee of various organizations, including the Urban 

Institute, the National Bureau of Economic Research, the National Academies of Sciences’ Committee on 

National Statistics, the Institute for Applied and Practical Mathematics, a National Sciences Foundation 

Center at the University of California Los Angeles, and until recently, eBay.  She was the founding 
President and Chief Executive Officer of the JPMorgan Chase Institute. Previously, Diana was a Senior 

Partner at McKinsey & Company, where she served on the Partner’s Evaluation committee, and was the 

founder and Global Head of the McKinsey Center for Government as well as the Global Head of the 

McKinsey Global Institute.  At various points in her McKinsey career, she was a leader in the Public 

Sector, the Financial Institutions Sector, and the Strategy practice.  Additionally, Diana served in the 

White House for over two years as Deputy Director of the National Economic Council and Deputy 

Assistant to the President on Economic Policy. In that capacity she led the interagency process on behalf 

of the President on a broad range of initiatives, including: financial reform, which resulted in the Dodd 
Frank Act; housing finance policy; innovation and competition policy. She was a member of the Auto 

Recovery Task Force overseeing the restructuring of the auto sector.  

 

Diana is a member of the Council on Foreign Relations, the Aspen World Economy Group, the Aspen 

Strategy Group, the Trilateral Commission, the Bretton Woods Committee, and the Advisory Committee of 

the Ford School of Public Policy at the University of Michigan. Diana holds a M.B.A. from Harvard 

Business School, and a B.A. from Wesleyan University, from where she was awarded a Distinguished 

Alumna award and is a Trustee Emeritus. 



Mountain Village Town Clerk 
455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
 
 
          August 10, 2023 

  

Greetings,  

Please consider my letter of interest to serve a second term on the Mountain Village Grants Committee.  
I am dedicated to thoughtfully and thoroughly reviewing all grant requests submitted to the Town of 
Mountain Village.  It takes a considerable amount of time to review and score the twenty+ grants 
submitted annually, but I love it.  I am familiar with the different organizations and services Mountain 
Village utilizes and values.  

Surprisingly, in 2006 I developed the Mountain Village Owners Association (now TMVOA) grant process 
using Return on Investment Reports to guide economic development grant awards.   In conjunction I 
developed the Town of Mountain Village community grant program to fund valuable regional services. 
Previously, organizations would haphazardly request funding from MVMD or MVOA. The new grant 
process created a comprehensive annual plan for funding economic development activities, and 
community services.     

For over 10 years I have written successful grants for different organizations including the Telluride School 
District Michael D. Palm Theatre, EcoAction Partners, the Town of Ophir, the Paradox Valley School, the 
Telluride Adaptive Sports Program, and Bruin Waste Management.  I understand the importance of grant 
funding for organizations to accomplish their goals and objectives in support of their missions. 

From 2017 – 2021, I served on the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment Pollution 
Prevention Advisory Board Assistance Committee (PPABAC).  This 13-member committee is responsible 
for making funding recommendations for the Recycling Resources Economic Opportunity grants. 
Committee members review and score approximately 40 grants (in two cycles) from organizations across 
Colorado.  We then meet as a group to discuss the projects with the highest scores, come to a consensus, 
and make final funding recommendations for the ~$4M annual budget. Our recommendations are then 
reviewed and approved by the State of Colorado Pollution Prevention Advisory Board.    

Thank you for considering me for another 2-year seat on the Mountain Village Grants Committee.  I enjoy 
this work and I bring a valuable professional perspective. 

Thank you,  

 

Heather Knox 
327 Adams Ranch Road #402 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 



HEATHER ALEXANDER KNOX   
327 ADAMS RANCH ROAD #402  MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, CO 81435  

 

CURRENT EMPLOYMENT  

Telluride School District, Teacher Assistant & Substitute    2020 – Current 
Classroom management and substitute teaching for a variety of grade levels, ability levels, and subjects 
 
Telluride Adaptive Sports Program Development Associate   2021 – Current  
 Grant writing, events, fundraising assistance  
 
Bruin Waste Management   2022 – Current  
RREO Infrastructure Grant writer and grant implementation 
 
Consulting, Grant Writing & Non-Profit Guidance       2013 – Current 

 

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE 

 
CDPHE: Pollution Prevention Advisory Board Assistance Committee       2017 – 2021 
The Recycling Resources Economic Opportunity (RREO) Program provides funding that promotes economic development through the 
management of materials that would otherwise be landfilled. Funds are available to support recycling, composting, anaerobic digestion, 
source reduction, and beneficial use/reuse. Grants and rebates are overseen by the Pollution Prevention Advisory Board and its 
corresponding Assistance Committee. Since its inception in 2007, the program has awarded over $30 million to businesses, local 
governments, nonprofit organizations, and schools and universities to help develop recycling infrastructure and promote sustainable 
behavior change in communities across Colorado. Committee consists of 13 individuals representing CDPHE, CO Energy Office, CO Economic 
Development Office, urban and rural municipalities, and non-profit organizations; committee meets monthly or bi-monthly.   
 
EcoAction Partners: Executive Director                       2014 – 2020 

Directs EcoAction Partners, the regional sustainability organization serving the towns of Telluride, Mountain Village, Ophir, Norwood, 
Ridgway and Ouray, and San Miguel and Ouray Counties 

Strategic Partnerships & Accomplishments: 
 Telluride Green Grant Program: 2018 – 2020 Created and developed Telluride Green Grants to measurably reduce greenhouse gas emissions through 

public and private energy reduction projects.  Telluride Green Grants is a rolling annual program for energy reduction projects utilizing $50K in Town 
of Telluride Energy Impact fees.  

 Composting for the Town of Ophir:  2018 Secured State of Colorado Resource Recovery, Recycling, Economic Opportunity Mini-Grant for equipment 
& implementation of neighborhood composting program for the Town of Ophir. The continued success of this program diverts & composts approx. 
9,000+ pounds of food waste annually.  Soil is used in the Ophir’s Community Garden.  

 Established Partnership with Energy Outreach Colorado and San Miguel Power Association: Implemented San Miguel Power Association’s Income 
Qualified Weatherization Program (SMPA IQ) 2016 - 2020.  SMPA IQ brings home weatherization services to low & mid-income families served by 
SMPA in San Miguel, Ouray, Montrose, Delores and San Juan counties.  Black Hills Energy joined the program in 2019.   

 Proposed & Implemented San Miguel County Green Projects Grant Program (GPGP) 2014 - 2015, utilizing a $100K energy impact fee for local energy 
reduction projects. Developed application, grant analysis/scoring, facilitated grant committee, awarded grants, and handled follow-up.   

 Developed & Accomplished the Green Lights LED Program: 2015 – 2019 with San Miguel Power Association and regional governments.  Greenlights 
has allowed residents and businesses to purchase LED bulbs at up to 75% off by leveraging the SMPA LED light bulb rebate of up to 50% along with a 
government match.    

 Expanded Truth or Dare School Program: 2014 - 2019 partnered with San Miguel Power Association and regional schools to reach seven regional 
school districts.  This weeklong school program reduces energy and waste and educates students on lasting sustainability habits.    

 

Telluride School District: Executive Director of the Michael D. Palm Theatre & Palm Arts             2007 – 2013 

Managed all aspects of the Michael D. Palm Theatre, a 30,000 square foot versatile performance facility with seating for 660, a 3,332 square 
foot stage, performance sound equipment, and wide screen cinema with dual 35 mm projectors and a large format digital projector.  

Highlights: 

 2008 – Navigated the Palm Theatre through the culmination of a five-year $100K annual funding commitment.  Created a trustee program to provide 
$30K in annual operating support.  Developed new revenue streams for long term sustainability. 

 2009 – Directed the creation of a new 501c3 organization, Palm Arts, Inc. to facilitate donations, and secure special event liquor sales increasing rental 
income and direct support of the Michael D. Palm Theatre.   

 2011 – Developed the business plan, pro forma, and implemented a dance education program offering a full array of dance classes for all.  
 2013 – Created a Summer Dance Series to bring professional dance performances to Telluride, engaging new sponsors and donors.  



HEATHER ALEXANDER KNOX PAGE 2 

Duties & Accomplishments: 
 Selected national and international talent for the Live at the Palm Series (6-8 performances per season).  Negotiated performance contracts and 

executed commitments; oversaw marketing, ticket sales and accounting, and event production.   
 Managed all event rentals for the 25+ groups who use the Palm theatre for 175 annual event days.  Increased rental and services income by 30%. 
 Coordinated all aspects of the special event liquor license permitting process. Managed the liquor application process (applications, fees, postings, 

product purchases) and event-day staff and revenue management.   
 Provided professional oversight of the Palm Arts Dance School to ensure success; managed an annual budget of $120K.  
 Launched a capital campaign and managed the construction and budget ($55K) for a dedicated dance studio. 
 Researched and wrote grants for Michael D. Palm Theatre & Palm Arts.  Increased grant funding by 70% from FY 2008 to FY 2013, despite an overall 

reduction in state, local and national grant funding available. 
 Developed and managed the Palm Theatre’s annual budget of $300K.  Created long and short-term capital replacement plans.  
 
 
Town of Mountain Village         1995 - 2007 

Director of Economic Development                                             2005 – 2007 
Directed all activities and operations of Economic Development in Mountain Village: developed and produced new and existing events, managed public 
relations and communications, coordinated destination marketing, directed guest services, provided economic analysis for strategic facility development and 
managed existing facilities.   

Duties & Accomplishments: 
 Managed the 50+ personnel in the departments that collectively comprised the Economic Development Department: Guest Services, the Telluride 

Conference Center, Mountain Village Events, Marketing and Communications. 
 Determined levels of staff, equipment and resources needed to effectively accomplish departmental services and programs.   
 Developed and implemented departmental operating and capital budgets of $2.4 million annually. 
 Developed a strategic grant process using Return on Investment Reports for Mountain Village Owners Association (now TMVOA) and the Town of 

Mountain Village; directed the grant process, which awarded $640K in grant funding to more than 35 organizations (2006).  
 Directed the development and production of 25+ Mountain Village signature events and more than 35 outside promoted events (2006).  
 Worked in conjunction with Telluride Ski and Golf Co. and the Telluride Tourism Board to implement customer service initiatives.   
 Managed communications and marketing to all Mountain Village stakeholders.    
 Implemented directives from Mountain Village Owners Association Board of Directors and Mountain Village Town Council  

 
Director of the Telluride Conference Center (Held concurrently with the Director of Economic Development position from 2005)        2002 - 2007 

Managed all aspects of the Telluride Conference Center, a 20,000+ square foot multi-use facility with on-site audiovisual, and food & beverage service.  

Duties & Accomplishments: 
 Reduced annual deficit by 82% from $946K in 2001 to $178K in 2006 through creative revenue generation and a reduction in overhead.   
 Implemented in-house food & beverage service (2002-2003). Created policies and procedures to ensure high quality catering service; created policies 

and procedures to ensure the security of the liquor license, inventory, and cash revenue.  F&B netted $244K annually (2006). 
 Managed all rental and event contracts for groups utilizing the facility. 
 Developed and managed revenue and expense budgets.   
 Hired and managed 30+ full time and part time staff. 
 Created long and short-term plans for facility upkeep, capital improvements, repair, replacement and maintenance.    
 Standardized a consistent, high-quality customer experience for event coordinators and guests utilizing the facility. 
 Worked closely with the Telluride Tourism Board on marketing, advertising and Familiarization (FAM) Trips.  
 Established a commission structure for lodging properties to incentivize group bookings. 
 
Telluride Conference Center Coordinator         1998 – 2002 
Seasonal work Mountain Village Metro District (prior to town of MV)      1995 – 1997  
 

OTHER 

Telluride Ski & Snowboard Club Alpine Ski Coach        2013 – 2020 
Placerville Volunteer Fire Department EMT & Firefighter       1999 – 2003  

 

EDUCATION 

El Pomar Non-Profit Executive Leadership Program                                                                        2013 
One of twenty Colorado executives selected by application for this certification 
 

The Colorado College  Colorado Springs, CO                                                                                 1990 – 1994     
Bachelor of Arts; Graduated with honors 

 



From: msanders0423@gmail.com
To: mvclerk
Subject: Grant Committee Application
Date: Thursday, August 10, 2023 4:56:38 PM
Attachments: Sanders Resume.docx

Please consider this email as my application to serve on the Grant Committee.  My wife and I are
permanent residents of Mountain Village although we reside part of the year in Portsmouth RI.  My
willingness to serve stems from my desire to give back to our wonderful community.  I have been
able to enjoy so many facets of Mountain Village life and would like to return some of the favor.  I
am attaching my general resume if needed.  Of course, it is not geared towards this role.
 
Regards,
Mike
 
J. Michael Sanders
msanders0423@gmail.com
781.760.2783
 

mailto:msanders0423@gmail.com
mailto:mvclerk@mtnvillage.org
mailto:msanders0423@gmail.com

J. Michael (Mike) Sanders

127 Snowfield Drive

Mountain Village, CO  81435

781.760.2783 | linkedin.com/in/mikesandersfinservices

msanders0423@gmail.com







CEO | INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR | ADVISOR

Extraordinarily experienced senior financial executive, who has helped build  several companies, in both the public and private sectors, with deep expertise in accelerating the accumulation of net worth. Blue Chip background includes Goldman Sachs, and several mid-size organizations, including Ned Davis Research, Potomac Research Group and Venturi Wealth Management. Functional expertise has covered responsibility for all aspects of Operations, and always with a keen eye for building the human capital element of the equation, where I use my organizational insights to enhance the people side to become a true strategic advantage for the company.

Have positioned several companies to realize successful Exits, with multiples on the high side of the equation for the sector. Have considerable Board experience after serving multiple companies. 

I have been involved in the Investment industry for over 25 years. Over the course of my career, I have run large organizations and offices for a large business (Goldman Sachs) and small to mid-size companies (Ned Davis Research, Potomac Research Group, Venturi Wealth Management). At all stops along the way I have been responsible for developing strategic direction and delivering performance in addition to overseeing entire operations.  

I have also had the pleasure of serving as a board member or advisory director for multiple companies.  I understand the needs of growing companies from a sales and marketing, financial strategy and corporate governance standpoint.

CAREER HIGHLIGHTS

Senior Managing Director

Venturi Private Wealth

 Oct 2016 - Present (7 yrs)



Executive Director

Potomac Research Group

Oct 2012 – Dec 2015 (3 yrs 3 mos)



Executive Director / CEO

Ned Davis Research / Davis Mendel & Regenstein

Mar 2009 – Oct 2011 (2 yrs 8 mos)



Partner / Managing Director – Co-Head of US Shares Institutional Sales, Hudson Street Research, Head of Boston Office

Goldman Sachs

2000 – 2008 (8 yrs)

Managing Director – Various Roles

Goldman Sachs

1985 – 2000 (17 yrs)

Prior to my time in Boston, I held many roles in different places with Goldman Sachs

· Managing Director, Chicago Research Sales (1992 - 1999) 

· Vice President, Houston Research Sales (1989 - 1992) 

· Associate, New York Sales Administration (1985 - 1989) 



Board and Advisory Credentials



· Multiple capital raises at above market multiples

· Wall Street On Demand - Design, development and hosting of custom tools for the financial services industry.  Successful exit at over 3.5x ROIC

· Ned Davis Research 30 year+ investment research institution.  Grew enterprise value dramatically over 2.5 years.  Successful exit at 14x EBITA

· Connotate- market leader in web content extraction and development of intelligent agents

· iSuppli- market intelligence for the OEM and electronic supplier communities.  Successful exit.  Now owned by IHS

· Epocrates- Provider of clinical care information and decision support tools to the healthcare industry.  Successful IPO

· Asset 4- Provider of integrated financial and extra-financial information to corporations and the investment industry.  Precursor to today’s ESG data.  Successful exit to the insurance industry

· Lusight Research- Independent investment research firm focused on Emerging Markets.  Still in existence today.



Education

The University of Texas at Austin - Red McCombs School of Business

BBA, Finance

1979 – 1981



The University of North Texas

Finance

1977 – 1979

______________________



J. Michael (Mike) Sanders 
127 Snowfield Drive 

Mountain Village, CO  81435 
781.760.2783 | linkedin.com/in/mikesandersfinservices 

msanders0423@gmail.com 
 
 

 

CEO | INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR | ADVISOR 

Extraordinarily experienced senior financial executive, who has helped build  several companies, 
in both the public and private sectors, with deep expertise in accelerating the accumulation of 
net worth. Blue Chip background includes Goldman Sachs, and several mid-size organizations, 
including Ned Davis Research, Potomac Research Group and Venturi Wealth Management. 
Functional expertise has covered responsibility for all aspects of Operations, and always with a 
keen eye for building the human capital element of the equation, where I use my organizational 
insights to enhance the people side to become a true strategic advantage for the company. 

Have positioned several companies to realize successful Exits, with multiples on the high side of 
the equation for the sector. Have considerable Board experience after serving multiple 
companies.  

I have been involved in the Investment industry for over 25 years. Over the course of my career, I 
have run large organizations and offices for a large business (Goldman Sachs) and small to mid-
size companies (Ned Davis Research, Potomac Research Group, Venturi Wealth Management). 
At all stops along the way I have been responsible for developing strategic direction and 
delivering performance in addition to overseeing entire operations.   

I have also had the pleasure of serving as a board member or advisory director for multiple 
companies.  I understand the needs of growing companies from a sales and marketing, financial 
strategy and corporate governance standpoint. 

CAREER HIGHLIGHTS 

Senior Managing Director 
Venturi Private Wealth 
 Oct 2016 - Present (7 yrs) 
 
Executive Director 
Potomac Research Group 
Oct 2012 – Dec 2015 (3 yrs 3 mos) 
 
Executive Director / CEO 
Ned Davis Research / Davis Mendel & Regenstein 

https://www.linkedin.com/in/mikesandersfinservices?lipi=urn%3Ali%3Apage%3Ad_flagship3_profile_view_base_contact_details%3B01KCAu%2FITBmWsT5IWO5JoQ%3D%3D
mailto:msanders0423@gmail.com


Mar 2009 – Oct 2011 (2 yrs 8 mos) 
 
Partner / Managing Director – Co-Head of US Shares Institutional Sales, Hudson 
Street Research, Head of Boston Office 
Goldman Sachs 
2000 – 2008 (8 yrs) 
Managing Director – Various Roles 

Goldman Sachs 
1985 – 2000 (17 yrs) 
Prior to my time in Boston, I held many roles in different places with Goldman Sachs 

• Managing Director, Chicago Research Sales (1992 - 1999)  
• Vice President, Houston Research Sales (1989 - 1992)  
• Associate, New York Sales Administration (1985 - 1989)  

 

Board and Advisory Credentials 

 
• Multiple capital raises at above market multiples 
• Wall Street On Demand - Design, development and hosting of custom tools for the financial 

services industry.  Successful exit at over 3.5x ROIC 
• Ned Davis Research 30 year+ investment research institution.  Grew enterprise value 

dramatically over 2.5 years.  Successful exit at 14x EBITA 
• Connotate- market leader in web content extraction and development of intelligent agents 
• iSuppli- market intelligence for the OEM and electronic supplier communities.  Successful exit.  

Now owned by IHS 
• Epocrates- Provider of clinical care information and decision support tools to the healthcare 

industry.  Successful IPO 
• Asset 4- Provider of integrated financial and extra-financial information to corporations and the 

investment industry.  Precursor to today’s ESG data.  Successful exit to the insurance industry 
• Lusight Research- Independent investment research firm focused on Emerging Markets.  Still in 

existence today. 
 

Education 
The University of Texas at Austin - Red McCombs School of Business 
BBA, Finance 
1979 – 1981 
 
The University of North Texas 
Finance 
1977 – 1979 

______________________ 



Town of Mountain Village 
Date: 
To: 
From:     
RE: 

8/11/2023 
Town Council 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk  
Ethics Commission Appointment 

Scheduled for appointment at the August 17 Council meeting is one regular seat on the Ethics Commission. 
The Ethics Commission is comprised of three (3) members and two (2) alternates. The first member shall be a 
Council Member appointed by the Town Council, the second shall be a qualified elector appointed by the 
Town Council, and the third member shall be a qualified elector, appointed by the Town Council. The first 
alternate shall be a Council Member appointed by the Town Council and the second alternate shall be a 
qualified elector appointed by the Town Council. Each member of the Ethics Commission shall serve for two 
(2) year terms.

Letters of interest were received from Mike Weist (currently holds the alternate seat), Valentina Estrella, 
Diana Farrell, and Heather Knox (incumbent). The letters of interest are attached. If Mike Weist is appointed to 
the regular seat, an alternate will need to be appointed. 

The current members of the Ethics Commission: 

Pete Duprey Regular Town Council Term Expires: July 2025 

Keith Brown Regular Qualified Elector Term Expires: October 2024 

Heather Knox Regular Qualified Elector Term Expires: July 2023 

Jack Gilbride Alternate Town Council Term Expires: July 2025 

Mike Weist Alternate Qualified Elector Term Expires: July 2025 

Suggested Motion: Motion to appoint _________ to the regular seat on the Ethics Commission for a two-year 
term and (if applicable) _______ to the alternate seat for a two-year term. 

Agenda Item 5b 

I I I I I l 



From: Mike Weist
To: mvclerk
Subject: Ethics Commission
Date: Wednesday, August 9, 2023 12:43:25 PM

Good day, 

I am writing you today to express my interest and intent to fill the open seat on the Town of
Mountain Village Ethics Commission Board.
Along with my partner, I own a home in Mountain Village and have lived in Telluride for 26
years. I'm currently a real estate broker with Telluride Properties and with the O'Neill Stetina
Group. 
 
My educational background:
I hold a Bachelor's degree in Philosophy from Fort Lewis College and a Master's Degree in
Political Science (emphasis in Colorado Water Law) from the University of Colorado. As a
member of the National Association of Realtors, I am required to take ongoing continuing
education classes in Professional Standards and Ethics. As such, I believe I can serve this
committee as a competent and professional member.

Thank you for your time, 

Mike Weist | Broker Associate
www.telluridemike.com
https://www.zillow.com/profile/mweist9

Telluride Properties, LLC
Cell (970) 708-0011

    

 

■ 

■ 

mailto:mweist@tellurideproperties.com
mailto:mvclerk@mtnvillage.org
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.telluridemike.com&c=E,1,6jMksjgIeGcxX5N4Iswka3W9MIErOykrHykbasBxZ_ozldao81tsgNkmhhIVFL3-ZmthgOS_bGpB9w2ySKiNJUCoDJVoEsoGqu15e_MqkAKv&typo=1
https://www.zillow.com/profile/mweist9
https://www.facebook.com/mikeweisttelluride
https://www.instagram.com/mikeweisttelluride/
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.tellurideproperties.com%2fagent%2fmike-weist%2f&c=E,1,BUi1ozlkTRZBywZ4KA59JiiimUE8-csapxtcYZ7Nfx1d1aTzp0cCl7HLYAeD4Yo9wxi8ZR3LBSRq4bHIVRS14YihQwQZ_aqUj9w6R-6Co4sGaZw,&typo=1


From: Valentina Estrella
To: mvclerk
Subject: Ethics Commisson
Date: Wednesday, August 9, 2023 1:32:12 PM

To Whom It May Concern:

Please consider this email as a letter of interest to apply for the Town of Mountain Village Ethics
Commission. 

Please advise next steps.

Thank you,

Valentina Estrella

mailto:roa_valentina@yahoo.com
mailto:mvclerk@mtnvillage.org


Diana Farrell 
225 Touchdown Drive, Mountain Village, CO 81435 

dianamfarrell@gmail.com // 202-664-9193 
 
To the Mountain Village Clerk, 
 
By way of introduc�on, I am a resident of Mountain Village for three years now, and live here with my 
husband, Scot Pearson, who was recently elected as Councilmember and mayor pro tem of Mountain 
Village. I include a copy of my professional biography and direct you to my Linkedin profile for more 
details.  
 
I am wri�ng to express my strong interest in applying for a seat on both the Mountain Village Ethics 
Commitee and the Grant Commitee.  As a dedicated community member with a genuine commitment 
for fostering posi�ve change and upholding ethical standards, I am excited about the opportunity to 
contribute my skills and experience to these cri�cal roles.  
 
With my background as an ac�ve Board member of several organiza�ons, a senior leader in a private 
professional services firm and a major publicly held company, and experience in the public sector, I 
have had the privilege of developing a deep understanding of ethical considera�ons and the 
importance of responsible decision-making.  I believe that my ability to assess situa�ons from various 
perspec�ves and my commitment to fairness and integrity make me a suitable candidate for the Ethics 
Commitee.  I am confident in my capacity to ac�vely par�cipate in discussions, offer valuable insights, 
and contribute to the development and implementa�on of ethical guidelines that align with our town 
values. 
 
Furthermore, my experience leading major think tanks and policy ini�a�ves in mul�ple contexts has 
equipped me with a keen eye for iden�fying and shaping ini�a�ves and projects that hold the poten�al 
to enhance our community.  I understand the significance of responsible alloca�on of resources and 
believe that my analy�cal skills, combined with my genuine interest in suppor�ng community well-
being, can be put to excellent use on the Grant Commitee. If given the opportunity, I am commited to 
evalua�ng grant applica�ons me�culously and ensuring that the allocated funds are directed towards 
projects that will have a las�ng posi�ve impact. 
 
I strongly believe that an effec�ve Ethics Commitee and Grant Commitee can play pivotal roles in 
maintaining the integrity and progress of our community. With a sincere commitment to transparency, 
collabora�on, and the beterment of our town, I am eager to join forces with fellow commitee 
members to work towards an even brighter future. 
 
Thank you for considering my applica�on to both seats. I am eager to contribute my �me, energy and 
exper�se to serve our community through these significant roles.  I look forward to the possibility. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Diana Farrell 

mailto:dianamfarrell@gmail.com


   
 

Diana Farrell 
 
Diana Farrell is an independent director and trustee of various organizations, including the Urban 

Institute, the National Bureau of Economic Research, the National Academies of Sciences’ Committee on 

National Statistics, the Institute for Applied and Practical Mathematics, a National Sciences Foundation 

Center at the University of California Los Angeles, and until recently, eBay.  She was the founding 
President and Chief Executive Officer of the JPMorgan Chase Institute. Previously, Diana was a Senior 

Partner at McKinsey & Company, where she served on the Partner’s Evaluation committee, and was the 

founder and Global Head of the McKinsey Center for Government as well as the Global Head of the 

McKinsey Global Institute.  At various points in her McKinsey career, she was a leader in the Public 

Sector, the Financial Institutions Sector, and the Strategy practice.  Additionally, Diana served in the 

White House for over two years as Deputy Director of the National Economic Council and Deputy 

Assistant to the President on Economic Policy. In that capacity she led the interagency process on behalf 

of the President on a broad range of initiatives, including: financial reform, which resulted in the Dodd 
Frank Act; housing finance policy; innovation and competition policy. She was a member of the Auto 

Recovery Task Force overseeing the restructuring of the auto sector.  

 

Diana is a member of the Council on Foreign Relations, the Aspen World Economy Group, the Aspen 

Strategy Group, the Trilateral Commission, the Bretton Woods Committee, and the Advisory Committee of 

the Ford School of Public Policy at the University of Michigan. Diana holds a M.B.A. from Harvard 

Business School, and a B.A. from Wesleyan University, from where she was awarded a Distinguished 

Alumna award and is a Trustee Emeritus. 



 
Mountain Village Town Clerk 
455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
 
 
           August 9, 2023 

   

 

Greetings,  

Please consider my letter of interest in serving on the Mountain Village Ethics Commission.  I have held a 
seat on the Ethics Commission for the last two years, and I want to continue for a second term.  During 
my term we handled a hearing for a complaint of a perceived Ethics Violation.  As it is defined, it was 
determined not to be an ethics violation and the case was dropped.  I understand the legal definition of 
an ethics violation, the purpose, and the hearing process. 

I am a resident, homeowner, parent, volunteer, employee, and neighbor.  I bring the perspective of 
twenty-eight consecutive years (1995-present) in the region, including eleven years in Mountain Village. 

Thank you for considering me for a second term on the Mountain Village Ethics Commission.   

Thank you,  

 

Heather Knox 
327 Adams Ranch Road #402 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 



HEATHER ALEXANDER KNOX   
327 ADAMS RANCH ROAD #402  MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, CO 81435  

 

CURRENT EMPLOYMENT  

Telluride School District, Teacher Assistant & Substitute    2020 – Current 
Classroom management and substitute teaching for a variety of grade levels, ability levels, and subjects 
 
Telluride Adaptive Sports Program Development Associate   2021 – Current  
 Grant writing, events, fundraising assistance  
 
Bruin Waste Management   2022 – Current  
RREO Infrastructure Grant writer and grant implementation 
 
Consulting, Grant Writing & Non-Profit Guidance       2013 – Current 

 

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE 

 
CDPHE: Pollution Prevention Advisory Board Assistance Committee       2017 – 2021 
The Recycling Resources Economic Opportunity (RREO) Program provides funding that promotes economic development through the 
management of materials that would otherwise be landfilled. Funds are available to support recycling, composting, anaerobic digestion, 
source reduction, and beneficial use/reuse. Grants and rebates are overseen by the Pollution Prevention Advisory Board and its 
corresponding Assistance Committee. Since its inception in 2007, the program has awarded over $30 million to businesses, local 
governments, nonprofit organizations, and schools and universities to help develop recycling infrastructure and promote sustainable 
behavior change in communities across Colorado. Committee consists of 13 individuals representing CDPHE, CO Energy Office, CO Economic 
Development Office, urban and rural municipalities, and non-profit organizations; committee meets monthly or bi-monthly.   
 
EcoAction Partners: Executive Director                       2014 – 2020 

Directs EcoAction Partners, the regional sustainability organization serving the towns of Telluride, Mountain Village, Ophir, Norwood, 
Ridgway and Ouray, and San Miguel and Ouray Counties 

Strategic Partnerships & Accomplishments: 
 Telluride Green Grant Program: 2018 – 2020 Created and developed Telluride Green Grants to measurably reduce greenhouse gas emissions through 

public and private energy reduction projects.  Telluride Green Grants is a rolling annual program for energy reduction projects utilizing $50K in Town 
of Telluride Energy Impact fees.  

 Composting for the Town of Ophir:  2018 Secured State of Colorado Resource Recovery, Recycling, Economic Opportunity Mini-Grant for equipment 
& implementation of neighborhood composting program for the Town of Ophir. The continued success of this program diverts & composts approx. 
9,000+ pounds of food waste annually.  Soil is used in the Ophir’s Community Garden.  

 Established Partnership with Energy Outreach Colorado and San Miguel Power Association: Implemented San Miguel Power Association’s Income 
Qualified Weatherization Program (SMPA IQ) 2016 - 2020.  SMPA IQ brings home weatherization services to low & mid-income families served by 
SMPA in San Miguel, Ouray, Montrose, Delores and San Juan counties.  Black Hills Energy joined the program in 2019.   

 Proposed & Implemented San Miguel County Green Projects Grant Program (GPGP) 2014 - 2015, utilizing a $100K energy impact fee for local energy 
reduction projects. Developed application, grant analysis/scoring, facilitated grant committee, awarded grants, and handled follow-up.   

 Developed & Accomplished the Green Lights LED Program: 2015 – 2019 with San Miguel Power Association and regional governments.  Greenlights 
has allowed residents and businesses to purchase LED bulbs at up to 75% off by leveraging the SMPA LED light bulb rebate of up to 50% along with a 
government match.    

 Expanded Truth or Dare School Program: 2014 - 2019 partnered with San Miguel Power Association and regional schools to reach seven regional 
school districts.  This weeklong school program reduces energy and waste and educates students on lasting sustainability habits.    

 

Telluride School District: Executive Director of the Michael D. Palm Theatre & Palm Arts             2007 – 2013 

Managed all aspects of the Michael D. Palm Theatre, a 30,000 square foot versatile performance facility with seating for 660, a 3,332 square 
foot stage, performance sound equipment, and wide screen cinema with dual 35 mm projectors and a large format digital projector.  

Highlights: 

 2008 – Navigated the Palm Theatre through the culmination of a five-year $100K annual funding commitment.  Created a trustee program to provide 
$30K in annual operating support.  Developed new revenue streams for long term sustainability. 

 2009 – Directed the creation of a new 501c3 organization, Palm Arts, Inc. to facilitate donations, and secure special event liquor sales increasing rental 
income and direct support of the Michael D. Palm Theatre.   

 2011 – Developed the business plan, pro forma, and implemented a dance education program offering a full array of dance classes for all.  
 2013 – Created a Summer Dance Series to bring professional dance performances to Telluride, engaging new sponsors and donors.  



HEATHER ALEXANDER KNOX PAGE 2 

Duties & Accomplishments: 
 Selected national and international talent for the Live at the Palm Series (6-8 performances per season).  Negotiated performance contracts and 

executed commitments; oversaw marketing, ticket sales and accounting, and event production.   
 Managed all event rentals for the 25+ groups who use the Palm theatre for 175 annual event days.  Increased rental and services income by 30%. 
 Coordinated all aspects of the special event liquor license permitting process. Managed the liquor application process (applications, fees, postings, 

product purchases) and event-day staff and revenue management.   
 Provided professional oversight of the Palm Arts Dance School to ensure success; managed an annual budget of $120K.  
 Launched a capital campaign and managed the construction and budget ($55K) for a dedicated dance studio. 
 Researched and wrote grants for Michael D. Palm Theatre & Palm Arts.  Increased grant funding by 70% from FY 2008 to FY 2013, despite an overall 

reduction in state, local and national grant funding available. 
 Developed and managed the Palm Theatre’s annual budget of $300K.  Created long and short-term capital replacement plans.  
 
 
Town of Mountain Village         1995 - 2007 

Director of Economic Development                                             2005 – 2007 
Directed all activities and operations of Economic Development in Mountain Village: developed and produced new and existing events, managed public 
relations and communications, coordinated destination marketing, directed guest services, provided economic analysis for strategic facility development and 
managed existing facilities.   

Duties & Accomplishments: 
 Managed the 50+ personnel in the departments that collectively comprised the Economic Development Department: Guest Services, the Telluride 

Conference Center, Mountain Village Events, Marketing and Communications. 
 Determined levels of staff, equipment and resources needed to effectively accomplish departmental services and programs.   
 Developed and implemented departmental operating and capital budgets of $2.4 million annually. 
 Developed a strategic grant process using Return on Investment Reports for Mountain Village Owners Association (now TMVOA) and the Town of 

Mountain Village; directed the grant process, which awarded $640K in grant funding to more than 35 organizations (2006).  
 Directed the development and production of 25+ Mountain Village signature events and more than 35 outside promoted events (2006).  
 Worked in conjunction with Telluride Ski and Golf Co. and the Telluride Tourism Board to implement customer service initiatives.   
 Managed communications and marketing to all Mountain Village stakeholders.    
 Implemented directives from Mountain Village Owners Association Board of Directors and Mountain Village Town Council  

 
Director of the Telluride Conference Center (Held concurrently with the Director of Economic Development position from 2005)        2002 - 2007 

Managed all aspects of the Telluride Conference Center, a 20,000+ square foot multi-use facility with on-site audiovisual, and food & beverage service.  

Duties & Accomplishments: 
 Reduced annual deficit by 82% from $946K in 2001 to $178K in 2006 through creative revenue generation and a reduction in overhead.   
 Implemented in-house food & beverage service (2002-2003). Created policies and procedures to ensure high quality catering service; created policies 

and procedures to ensure the security of the liquor license, inventory, and cash revenue.  F&B netted $244K annually (2006). 
 Managed all rental and event contracts for groups utilizing the facility. 
 Developed and managed revenue and expense budgets.   
 Hired and managed 30+ full time and part time staff. 
 Created long and short-term plans for facility upkeep, capital improvements, repair, replacement and maintenance.    
 Standardized a consistent, high-quality customer experience for event coordinators and guests utilizing the facility. 
 Worked closely with the Telluride Tourism Board on marketing, advertising and Familiarization (FAM) Trips.  
 Established a commission structure for lodging properties to incentivize group bookings. 
 
Telluride Conference Center Coordinator         1998 – 2002 
Seasonal work Mountain Village Metro District (prior to town of MV)      1995 – 1997  
 

OTHER 

Telluride Ski & Snowboard Club Alpine Ski Coach        2013 – 2020 
Placerville Volunteer Fire Department EMT & Firefighter       1999 – 2003  

 

EDUCATION 

El Pomar Non-Profit Executive Leadership Program                                                                        2013 
One of twenty Colorado executives selected by application for this certification 
 

The Colorado College  Colorado Springs, CO                                                                                 1990 – 1994     
Bachelor of Arts; Graduated with honors 

 



  Agenda Item #6 
 

  1 

 

Town of Mountain Village 

Date: 8/11/2023 
To: Town Council, Acting as the Liquor Licensing Authority (LLA) 
From: Susan Johnston, Town Clerk  
RE: Local Liquor Licensing Authority Matters for the August 17, 2023  Meeting 

Consideration of an Application for a Special Event Liquor Permit by Telluride Mountain Club Partnering 
with the Telluride Reserve for a Special Event on August 19 from 2:00 to 5:00 PM 
All required documentation and fees have been received. The modification of premise was approved by 
the State allowing for a special event on the common consumption area. The packet has been reviewed 
by the Clerks and Police Department with no adverse findings. The required notice was posted 10 days 
prior to the public hearing with no comments filed. 

 
Staff recommendation: Motion to approve the application by Telluride Mountain Club partnering with 
Telluride Reserve for an event on August 19 from 2:00 to 5:00 PM. 
 

 



1 | P a g e

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
SPECIAL EVENT LIQUOR PERMIT APPLICATION 

This application must be filed with Office of the Town Clerk, Town of Mountain Village, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., 
Mountain Village, Colorado 81435. Applicant must be a non-profit organization on file with the Colorado Secretary of State. 
In order to qualify for a Special Events Permit, you must be a nonprofit and one of the following: 

 Social  Municipality Owning Arts Facilities 

 Fraternal  Religious Institution 

 Patriotic  Philanthropic Institution 

 Political  Political Candidate  

 Athletic 
 Chartered Branch, Lodge or Chapter of a National 

Organization/Society  
Type of Special Event applicant is applying for: 

 Fermented Malt Beverage (3.2%) | $100/day   Beer, Wine & Liquor | $100/day 
1. Name of Applicant Organization or Political Candidate State Sales Tax Number (required) 

2. Mailing Address of Organization or Political Candidate 3. Address of Place Special Event to be held

4. President/Secretary of Organization or Political Candidate
Name Date of Birth Home Address Phone Number 

5. Event Manager Name Date of Birth Home Address Phone Number 

6. Has applicant organization or political candidate been issued a special event permit this calendar year?

 Yes  No How many days? 

7. Are premises now licensed under state liquor or beer code?

 Yes  No To whom? 

8. Does the applicant have possession or written permission for the use of the premises to be licensed?

 Yes  No 
List Below the Exact Date(s) for Which Application Is Being Made For Permit 

 Date(s) to Date(s) to 

 Hours to Hours to 

 Date(s) to Date(s) to 

 Hours to Hours to 

REPORT AND APPROVAL OF TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY 
The foregoing application has been examined and the premises, business conducted and character of the applicant are 
satisfactory, and we do report that such permit, if granted, will comply with the provisions of Title 12, Article 48, C.R.S., as 
amended.  THEREFORE, THIS APPLICATION IS APPROVED. 

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE 

Telluride Mountain Club

PO Box 1201, Telluride, CO 81435 Mountain Village Plaza

Heidi Lauterbach 7.19.1986 PO Box 1201, Telluride, CO 81435 970.708.2144

Nicole Jarman 9.29.80 640 Detroit St, Denver, CO 80206 303.242.1032

1

8.18.23 8.19.23

6a 11:59p

President

Heidi Lauterbach

Nicole Jarman

Nicole Jarman

Nicole Jarman

Nicole Jarman

Heidi Lauterbach
July 18, 2023

Nicole Jarman

Nicole Jarman
8.19.23



 

2 | P a g e  
 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE                             
SPECIAL EVENT LIQUOR PERMIT APPLICATION 
APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CHECKLIST 

 
 

 
THE FOLLOWING SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS APPLICATION FOR A PERMIT TO 
BE ISSUED: 
 Appropriate fee - CHECK PAYABLE TO THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

 Diagram of the area to be licensed (not larger than 8 ½” x 11" reflecting bars, walls, partitions, ingress, 
egress and dimensions 
Note: if the event is to be held outside, please submit evidence of intended control, i.e., fencing, 
ropes, barriers, etc. 

 Copy of deed, lease, or written permission of owner for use of the premises 
 Certificate of good corporate standing (NONPROFIT) issued by Secretary of State within last two years; 

or 
 If not incorporated, a NONPROFIT charter; or 
 If a political candidate, attach copies of reports and statements that were filed with the Secretary of 

State. 
 

 Application must be submitted to the Town of Mountain Village at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
event. 

 The premises to be licensed must be posted at least ten (10) days before a hearing can be held. (12-
48-106 C.R.S.) 

 
(12-48-102 C.R.S.) 
A Special Event Permit issued under this article may be issued to an organization, whether or not presently 
licensed under Articles 46 and 47 of this title, which has been incorporated under the laws of this state for the 
purpose of a social, fraternal, patriotic, political or athletic nature, and not for pecuniary gain or which is a 
regularly chartered branch, lodge or chapter of a national organization or society organized for such purposes 
and being nonprofit in nature, or which is a regularly established religious or philanthropic institution, and to 
any political candidate who has filed the necessary reports and statements with the secretary of state 
pursuant to Article 45 of Title 1, C.R.S. a Special Event Permit may be issued to any municipality owning arts 
facilities at which productions or performances of an artistic or cultural nature are presented for use at such 
facilities. 
 
If an event is cancelled, the application fees and the day(s) are forfeited. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
SPECIAL EVENT LIQUOR LICENSE PERMIT APPLICATION 
ADDENDUM  Please answer all of the following questions. 
   

Describe the event and the target market.  

 

 
 
How many people are you expecting per day?          

Will you be serving alcoholic beverages?          

Are alcoholic beverages included in the event price?         

Will alcohol be sold by the drink?           

What type of alcoholic beverages are you planning on selling/serving?   

 

 
 

Will you be selling/serving food items?           

What type of food items will be sold or served?  

 

 
 
Will you be cooking food and if cooking food, will you use propane?  

 

 

 
 

The event is to targeted to bring 2nd home owners and out of town guests on a quieter 
weekend to experience a culinary and wine weekend in Telluride with multiple events 
around culinary collaborations and tastings.

300

yes

yes

no

wine samples and spirits 

yes 

Mulitple chefs will be featuring highlighted menu items from their restaurants for 
sample.

yes 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
SPECIAL EVENT LIQUOR LICENSE PERMIT APPLICATION 
ADDENDUM Please answer all of the following questions. 

 

 
Will you have amplified sound or live music inside or outside?        

Will there be tents/awnings?            

 
Describe your security plans for this event.  

 

 
Describe the type of training security personnel will have prior to the event. 

 

 
How will you insure compliance with beer/liquor laws, such as: no service to minors or visibly 
intoxicated persons, no service outside of designated premises, no service before or after hours 
designated for the event, etc. 
 

 

 
Do you have an emergency plan for the event? If yes, please describe in detail.  

 

 

 

 

 

yes - from TMVOA

yes 

see attached 

see attached 

see attached 

see attached 



 

5 | P a g e  
 

 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
SPECIAL EVENT LIQUOR LICENSE PERMIT APPLICATION  
OATH OF APPLICANT  Please initial each of the following statements. 
 

_____ I understand that as the promoter of the event, that both the non-profit and the server can be charged 
criminally for alcohol violations under permit. I also understand that the non-profit can be held responsible for 
any tax liabilities generated by the alcohol permitted event. 

_____ I understand that I must allow open access to all town personnel (i.e., Police, Fire, Community 
Development, etc.) at this event, even if it is deemed a private function. Further, due to health and safety 
concerns, I understand that other town departments, as a result of circulation of this city application, may 
have additional requirements resulting in other costs for my special event. 

_____ I understand that if this permit is denied, the Town of Mountain Village assumes no liability for 
expenses incurred by the applicant. 

_____ I understand that if during the course of the event, the town determines there is a public safety hazard 
or if there is a violation of any permit condition, the event will be terminated immediately. The Town of 
Mountain Village is not responsible for any expenses incurred by the permit holder. Failure to meet the 
requirements of this permit may provide basis for denial of future permits for a given event, event manager or 
sponsor. 

_____ I understand that only non-profit entities that are properly formulated with the State of Colorado may 
apply for special event liquor permits, and they may only apply if the permit application and all attachments 
are filed at least 30 days before the event per state law. In addition, non-profits are required to have: i) state 
sales tax number from Colorado Department of Revenue, ii) Certificate of Good Standing for their non-profit 
from Colorado Secretary of State's office, and iii) Town of Mountain Village business license and sales tax 
number from Mountain Village Finance Department. 

_____ I declare under penalty of perjury in the second degree that this application and all attachments are 
true, correct and complete to the best of my knowledge. I also acknowledge that it is my responsibility and the 
responsibility of my agents and employees to comply with the provisions of the Colorado Liquor and Beer 
Code and Regulations and all Town of Mountain Village rules, regulations, ordinances and codes that affect my 
license. 

 
___________________________________   ______________________   
Authorized Signature       Date 
 
 
___________________________________   _____________________ _____  
Print Name       Title 

Executive Director 

17 July 2023

Nicole Jarman 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



Town of Mountain Village
Geographical Information Systems

455 Mountain Village Blvd. Unit A
Mountain Village, Colorado 81435

´
Mountain Village Special Events

Map Disclaimer

J°

J°

J°

J°

J°

FIRE LANE

/0 40 80 120 160 20020
Feet

This information is a product of the Town of Mountain Village Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Department and is intended for the display of
relative positions and locations only. Users of this information hereby recognize, acknowledge, and agree that it is not a guaranteed accurate legal
or surveyed representation of land. Users assume all risk and responsibility for any and all direct and indirect damages, including consequential
damages, that may flow from the use of this information. Users further recognize, acknowledge, and agree that the Town of Mountain Village GIS
Department has not made and representations, warranties, or guarantees of any kind that this information is survey accurate or fit to be used or
relied upon for any particular purpose.

Heritage Plaza

19A
-19

F
E

le
va

te
d
 B

a
r

Text

vendor 

check in 

6 vendors20x
20

 

 

23
22

21

39

34

30

18

1

10

29

28

38

33

36

JARMAN AND 

CO 

HQ AND 

WAREHOUSE 

ACCESS 

LANE FOR 

VEHCLES 

ACCESS 

LANE FOR 

VEHCLES 

Registration 

infrastructure 

premier rental 

24

Text

GLAMPING 
TENT

HENNESSY

20

Shake N
Dog

fra
n
z 

K
la

m
m

er 

breezew
a
y

<<
to

 

re
fl

ec
ti

on
 &

 

su
ns

et
 p

la
za

 

te
ll

ur
id

e 

co
ff

ee
 c

o

christy 
sports

madeline 
Black 

Iron Grill

Telluride
sports

Mining 
Sluice

Registration 
tomboy 

tavern 

patio 

Tracks 

37

31

32

Jarman and co tent

Music 
Stage

6 vendors
35

A-3
5F

27

26

25

17
16

15

14

13

12

11
9

8

7

6
5

3

2

4

20
x2
0

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 35F47447-4DAA-403C-BF51-68A52EFBE4EA



 
Describe your security plans for this event. 
 
The Grand Tas+ng will be held in an area that’s open to the public. We will have 2 staff dedicated 
to security and oversight of the Grand Tas+ng event.  We will have a registra+on process for each 
par+cipant to where they must show their ID to check in and must prove that they are over 21 
years old to aCend the event and to drink alcohol. Each par+cipant will receive a wristband.  All 
staff and vendors will all be aware of the need for a par+cipant to have a wristband in order to be 
served.  
 
All consump+on will happen at the booth, patrons will receive tastes that need to be consumed 
at the tents.  We will have signage represen+ng the tas+ng protocols. 
 
We will have staff roaming the area monitoring the process and looking for individuals without 
wristbands. The security staff will also be on the lookout for patrons ac+ng in a manner that is 
unsafe, aggressive, or outside of the lines of normal behavior. And ensuring proper consump+on. 
 
We will addi+onally have signage at the edges of the tent that say “no alcohol beyond this point” 
to communicate to patrons the need to keep alcohol consump+on to the modified consump+on 
area.  
 
Describe the type of training security personnel will have prior to the event.  
The dedicated security staff will be made aware of all concerns in regards to – 21 and over, watching for 
intoxicated patrons, maintaining the borders of the modified consumpAon area(not allowing alcohol to be 
taken out of tented areas), and that the hours of service are to be 2 pm to 5pm only.  AddiAonally, all 
Jarman and Co. staff will be made aware of these regulaAons and the need to adhere to the permit 
rules.  All Jarman and Co. staff will be wearing clothing that designates them as staff for the event.   
  
How will you ensure compliance with beer/liquor laws, such as: no service to minors or visibly intoxicated 
persons, no service outside of designated premises, no service before or aMer hours designated for the 
event, etc.  
All vendors will be made aware that the parAcipants of the event will all have wristbands.  They will be 
made aware that any parAcipant without the wristband is not served.  They will be told not to serve 
parAcipants that look or act intoxicated and further the hours of serving are from 2-5pm only.  The service 
of all alcohol will be within the boundaries of modified premise. No outside alcohol is allowed into the 
modified premises and no event alcohol is allowed out of the designated event areas as indicated in the 
modificaAon of premise. 
  
Our emergency plan is as follows – 
We will be staying current on weather forecasts and any lightning or other extreme weather situaAons. 
We will use handheld radios to communicate as a team. If a situaAon arises where we need to move folks 
inside, we will act as a team to do so swiMly and efficiently. If the weather is bad enough we would cancel 
the enAre event.   
We will be monitoring the crowd for any medical issues and will call Telluride EMS/911 if we have a 
situaAon. 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
455 Mountain Village Blvd.  Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
970-728-8000
970-728-4342 Fax
mvclerk@mtnvillage.org

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
MINUTES OF THE JULY 18, 2023 

SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 
DRAFT 

  Agenda Item 8a 

The meeting of the Town Council was called to order by Mayor Laila Benitez at 5:30 p.m. on Tuesday, July 
18, 2023. The meeting was held in-person with virtually access provided through Zoom. 

Attendance: 

The following Town Council members were present and acting: 
Laila Benitez, Mayor 
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro Tem  
Jack Gilbride 
Harvey Mogenson  
Pete Duprey  
Patrick Berry 
Marti Prohaska  

Also in attendance were: 
Paul Wisor, Town Manager  
Michelle Haynes, Assistant Town Manager 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
Kim Schooley, Deputy Town Clerk (via Zoom) 
David McConaughy, Town Attorney (via Zoom) 
Lizbeth Lemley, Finance Director  
Kathrine Warren, Public Information Officer 
Heather Knox 
Jonathan Greenspan 
Madeline Pena 
Tim Barber 
Yvette Rauff 
Joan May 

Executive Session for the Purpose of: (2) 
a. Conference with the Town Attorney for the Purpose of Receiving Legal Advice on Specific

Legal Questions, to Determine Positions Relative to Matters that may be Subject to
Negotiations, Developing Strategy for Negotiations and/or Instructing Negotiators, In
Connection With the Sale of Property Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(a), (b), and (e)
regarding Lot 644, Meadowlark at Mountain Village

On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted unanimously to move into 
Executive Session for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions, to determine 
positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations and/or 
instructing negotiators, in connection with the sale of property pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6- 402(4)(a), (b), and 
(e) regarding Lot 644, Meadowlark at Mountain Village at 5:30 p.m.

Council returned to open session at 6:49 p.m. 

mailto:mvclerk@mtnvillage.org


TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE  PAGE 2 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  July 18, 2023 

 
 

 
Town of Mountain Village Housing Authority: Consideration of a Resolution Establishing the 
Initial Sales Price for Lot 644, Meadowlark at Mountain Village, Consistent with Municipal Code 
Section 16.02.060 (3) 
Town Manager Paul Wisor stated that this item is to be moved to a later date to be determined and that the 
date will be properly noticed. 
 
There being no further business, on a MOTION by Jack Gilbride and seconded by Dan Caton, Council 
voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting at 6:51 p.m. 
 

 
Respectfully prepared and submitted,         
 
  
Susan Johnston  
Town Clerk  



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
455 Mountain Village Blvd.  Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
970-728-8000
970-728-4342 Fax
mvclerk@mtnvillage.org

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
MINUTES OF THE JULY 20, 2023 

REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 
DRAFT 

  Agenda Item 8b 

The meeting of the Town Council was called to order by Mayor Laila Benitez at 1:59 p.m. on Thursday, July 
20, 2023. The meeting was held in person and with virtual access provided through Zoom. 

Attendance: 

The following Town Council members were present and acting: 
Marti Prohaska, Mayor Elect 
Scott Pearson, Mayor Pro Tem Elect 
Harvey Mogenson 
Jack Gilbride 
Pete Duprey  
Patrick Berry 
Tucker Magid 
Scott Pearson 

Also in attendance were: 
Paul Wisor, Town Manager  Tim Barber 
Michelle Haynes, Assistant Town Manager Laila Benitez 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk Dan Caton 
Kim Schooley, Deputy Town Clerk Yvette Rauff 
David McConaughy, Town Attorney  Daniel Goltz 
Andrea Bryan, Assistant Town Attorney Mackenzie Goltz 
Lizbeth Lemley, Finance Director Julia Caulfield 
Chris Broady, Police Chief Douglas Tooley 
Amy Ward, Community Development Director Jonathan Greenspan 
Kathrine Warren, Public Information Officer Kiera Skinner 
Kate Burns, Controller Patrick Latcham 
Maegan Eckard, Administrative Assistant Adrienne Pearson 
Molly Norton, Community Engagement Coordinator Todd Pearson 
Marleina Fallenius, Housing Policy & Programs Manager Tom Richards 
Lindsay Niehaus, HR Coordinator Matthew Hintermeister 
Finn Kjome, Public Works Director Winston Kelly 
JD Wise, Economic Development & Sustainability Director Mich Hirschfeld 
Jim Loebe, Transit & Recreation Director Sherri Reeder 
Conor Intemann, Gondola Maintenance Manager Laurence Pearson 
Rob Johnson, Transit Operations Manager Anna Wilson 
Kate Burns, Controller Shirley Diaz 
Julie Vergari, Assistant Finance Director Cath Jett 
Lauren Kirn, Environmental Efficiencies & Grant Coordinator Steve Rosenblatt 
Claire Perez, Planner I Benson Worthington 
Len Rybicki Diana Farrell 
Anne Reissner Heather Knox 

mailto:mvclerk@mtnvillage.org


TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE  PAGE 2 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  July 20, 2023 

 
 

Kelli Duprey Cindy Magid 
David Bulson Tom Kennedy 
Rube Felicelli Banks Brown 
 
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items (2)  
Public Comment was received from Heather Knox and Douglas Tooley. 
 
Administration of Oath of Office to Newly Elected Council Members (3) 
Laila Benitez administered the oaths of office to newly elected Town Council members Marti Prohaska, 
Pete Duprey, Scott Pearson, Scott Pearson, and Tucker Magid. 
 
Election of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem (4) 
Patrick Berry opened a public hearing. Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Jack Gilbride and 
seconded by Patrick Berry Council members voted unanimously to elect Marti Prohaska to the position of 
Mayor.  Mayor Prohaska presided. On a MOTION by Marti Prohaska and seconded by Patrick Berry 
Council voted unanimously to elect Scott Pearson to the position of Mayor Pro Tem. 
 
Legal Presentation to the New Council Members (5) 
Town Attorney David McConaughy presented. Council discussion ensued. 
 
Consent Agenda: 
All matters in the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Town Council and will be 
enacted with a single vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is 
deemed necessary, that item should be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
separately: (6) 

a. Consideration of Approval of the June 12, 2023 Special Town Council Meeting Minutes 
b. Consideration of Approval of the June 15, 2023 Town Council Meeting Minutes 
c. Consideration of Approval of the July 13, 2023 Special Town Council Meeting Minutes 

Town Clerk Susan Johnston presented. Council discussion ensued. Scott Pearson and Tucker Magid 
abstained. On a MOTION by Pete Duprey and seconded by Harvey Mogenson, Council voted 
unanimously to approve the Consent Agenda with the correction to the June 15, 2023 Town Council 
Meeting minutes regarding how Town Council voted on agenda items 12, 13, and 14. 
 
Consideration of Council Boards and Commissions Appointments: (7) 
Paul Wisor presented. Council discussion ensued.  

1. Ethics Commission (One Regular, One Alternate) 
On a MOTION by Patrick Berry and seconded by Scott Pearson, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Pete Duprey to the regular seat and Jack Gilbride to the alternate seat to the Ethics Commission. 

2. Telluride Tourism Board (One Regular) 
On a MOTION by Jack Gilbride and seconded by Scott Pearson, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Patrick Berry to the Telluride Tourism Board. 

3. Colorado Flights Alliance (One Regular) 
On a MOTION by Pete Duprey and seconded by Tucker Magid, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Jack Gilbride to the Colorado Flights Alliance. 

4. Transportation & Parking (Two Regular) 
On a MOTION by Patrick Berry and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Harvey Mogenson and Pete Duprey to Transportation & Parking. 

5. Budget & Finance Committee (Three Regular) 
On a MOTION by Pete Duprey and seconded by Patrick Berry, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Pete Duprey, Harvey Mogenson, and Scott Pearson to the Budget & Finance Committee. 
 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE  PAGE 3 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  July 20, 2023 

 
 

6. Telluride Historical Museum (One Regular) 
On a MOTION by Harvey Mogenson and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted unanimously to 
appoint Marti Prohaska to the Telluride Historical Museum Board.  

7. San Miguel Watershed Coalition (One Regular) 
Environmental Efficiencies and Grant Coordinator Lauren Kirn will attend these meetings and report to 
Council with updates as needed. This committee will be removed from the monthly Council Boards and 
Commissions updates. 

8. Gondola Committee (Two Regular, One Alternate) 
On a MOTION by Harvey Mogenson and seconded by Scott Pearson, Council voted unanimously to 
appoint Patrick Berry and Harvey Mogenson to the regular seats and Scott Pearson to the alternate seat on 
the Gondola Committee. 

9. Mountain Village Community Grant Committee (Two Regular) 
On a MOTION by Pete Duprey and seconded by Scott Pearson, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Jack Gilbride and Marti Prohaska to the Grant Committee. 

10. Telluride Conference Center Work Group (Two Regular) 
On a MOTION by Harvey Mogenson and seconded by Patrick Berry, Council voted unanimously to 
appoint Pete Duprey and Tucker Magid to the Telluride Conference Center Work Group. 

11. San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation (SMART) (Two Regular) 
On a MOTION by Scott Pearson and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Patrick Berry and Tucker Magid to the regular seats and added Harvey Mogenson to an alternate seat on the 
San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation (SMART). 

12. Alliance for Inclusion (One Regular) 
On a MOTION by Pete Duprey and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Marti Prohaska to the Alliance for Inclusion board. 

13. Green Team Committee (Two Regular) 
On a MOTION by Tucker Magid and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Patrick Berry to the Green Team Committee. Council consensus was in favor of having only one Council 
member on the Green Team. 

14. Mountain Village Business Development Advisory Committee (BDAC) (Two Regular) 
On a MOTION by Pete Duprey and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Pete Duprey and Scott Pearson to the Business Development Advisory Committee. 

15. Wastewater Committee (Two Regular) 
On a MOTION by Jack Gilbride and seconded by Patrick Berry, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Pete Duprey and Tucker Magid to the Wastewater Committee. 

16. Public Arts Commission (One Regular) 
On a MOTION by Pete Duprey and seconded by Tucker Magid, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Harvey Mogenson to the Public Arts Commission. 

17. Mountain Village Condo Association (One Regular) 
Council consensus was in favor of not appointing a Council member to this committee. 

18. Colorado Communities for Climate Action (One Regular) 
On a MOTION by Tucker Magid and seconded by Pete Duprey, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Patrick Berry to the regular seat and added Scott Pearson as an alternate to Colorado Communities for 
Climate Action. 

19. Housing Committee (Two Regular) 
On a MOTION by Harvey Mogenson and seconded by Patrick Berry, Council voted unanimously to 
appoint Tucker Magid and Pete Duprey to the Housing Committee. 
 
Council consensus was in favor of appointing Council representation the following working groups: 

20. Ski Ranches Working Group (Two Regular) 
On a MOTION by Scott Pearson and seconded by Tucker Magid, Council voted unanimously to appoint 
Harvey Mogenson and Marti Prohaska to the Ski Ranches Working Group. 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE  PAGE 4 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  July 20, 2023 

 
 

21. Technology Working Group (2 Regular) 
On a MOTION by Tucker Magid and seconded by Harvey Mogenson, Council voted unanimously to 
appoint Scott Pearson and Patrick Berry to the Technology Working Group. 
 
Council directed staff to begin discussions regarding an Emergency Preparedness Working Group. 
 
Council directed staff to report quarterly on Telluride Medical Center/Hospital updates. Council also 
directed staff to report on the status of the area trails plan, how it’s being implemented and how it impacts 
the Town budget. 
 
Consideration of a Resolution Appointing One Regular Seat and One Alternate Seat on Telluride 
Regional Airport Authority (TRAA) (8) 
Susan Johnston presented. Public comment as received from Tom Richards. Council discussion ensued. On 
a MOTION by Patrick Berry and seconded by Tucker Magid, Council voted unanimously to appoint Tom 
Richards to the regular seat and Bob Patterson to the alternate seat on the Telluride Regional Airport 
Authority (TRAA).   
 
Council moved to agenda item 10.  
 
Introduction of Shirley Diaz, Housing Specialist with the Division of Housing (9) 
Environmental Efficiencies & Grant Coordinator Lauren Kirn introduced Housing Specialist Shirley Diaz. 
Council discussion ensued. 
 
Council moved to agenda item 12. 

 
Finance: (10) 
Finance Director Lizbeth Lemley and Julie Vergari presented. 

a. Presentation of the June 30, 2023 Business & Government Activity Report (BaGAR) 
b. Consideration of Approval of the June 30, 2023 Financials 

Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Pete Duprey and seconded by Harvey Mogenson, Council 
voted unanimously to approve the June 30, 2023 Financials as presented. 
 
Consideration of a Resolution Approving a Minor Subdivision, Lot Line Adjustment of Lots 388 
and 387R1, Pursuant to CDC 17.4.13 Quasi-Judicial (11) 
Community Development Director Amy Ward presented. Comments were heard from Attorney Tom 
Kennedy on behalf of the applicant Yellow Brick Road, LLC and Surveyor Dave Bolson. Mayor Prohaska 
opened the public hearing. There was no public comment. The Mayor closed the public hearing. Council 
discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Pete Duprey and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted 
unanimously to approve a Resolution regarding a minor subdivision, lot line adjustment of Lots 388 and 
387R1, pursuant to CDC section 17.4.13 with the findings as outlined in the staff report and subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. The Applicant will submit appropriate fees to staff for recordation with the San Miguel County 
Assessor's office within six months of approval. 

2. Staff will review the final proposed plat document to verify consistency with CDC Sections 
17.4.13.N. Plat Standards, and CDC Section 3. Plat Notes and Certifications and provide redline 
comments to the applicant prior to the execution of the final mylar. 

3. Staff has the authority to provide ministerial and conforming comments on the mylar prior to 
recordation. 
 

Council moved to agenda item 9. 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE  PAGE 5 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  July 20, 2023 

 
 

 
Second Reading, Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance Approving a Density Transfer 
and Rezone at Lot 648AR, Unit 2-3D, 313 Adams Ranch Road, Pursuant to CDC 17.4.9 Quasi-
Judicial (12) 
Patrick Berry recused himself. Amy Ward presented. Mayor Prohaska opened the public hearing. There was 
no public comment. The Mayor closed the public hearing. Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by 
Scott Pearson and seconded by Tucker Magid, Council voted 6-0 to approve on second reading an 
Ordinance approving a Density Transfer and Rezone Application to rezone Lot 648AR, Unit 2-3D from 
employee condominium to condominium pursuant to CDC sections 17.4.9 and 17.4.10 of the Community 
Development Code based on the evidence provided within the Staff Report of record dated July 20, 2023. 
 
Second Reading, Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance Approving the Lease of 
Certain Real Property, Commonly Known as the Headend, to Vero Networks for Continued 
Broadband and Cable System Operations Legislative (13) 
Town Manager Paul Wisor presented. Mayor Prohaska opened the public hearing. There was no public 
comment. The Mayor closed the public hearing. Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Harvey 
Mogenson and seconded by Tucker Magid, Council voted 7-0 to approve on second reading an Ordinance 
approving a license agreement with Vero Broadband, LLC for communications equipment space at 317 
Adams Ranch Road, Mountain Village, Colorado 81435 with the changes submitted by the Town Manager 
to the Town Clerk. 

 
Discussion Regarding the Meadowlark Project and Subsidizing Option (14) 
Paul Wisor presented. Mayor Prohaska opened a public hearing. Public comment was received from Banks 
Brown, Douglas Tooley, Rube Felicelli, Heather Knox, and Johnathan Greenspan. The Mayor closed the 
public hearing. Council discussion ensued. Council directed staff to further explore waiving the $50,000 fee 
for each additional unit purchased for essential organizations and encouraging other non-profit 
organizations to purchase. 

 
Other Business (15) 
Jonathan Greenspan asked Council look at infrastructure in the Meadows area and to have the Town 
Charter updated, specifically on elections, and relationships on boards. Douglas Tooley commented on the 
Meadowlark award structure. Mayor Prohaska shared that the federal legislature is voting on funding the 
Colorado Corporation for Public Broadcasting and to reach out to Representative Lauren Boebert with any 
concerns or comments. Mayor Prohaska encouraged everyone one to attend the San Miguel County Fair 
and Rodeo.  
 
Executive Session for the Purpose of: (17) 

a. Receiving Legal Advice on Specific Legal Questions, to Determine Positions Relative to 
Matters that may be Subject to Negotiations, Developing Strategy for Negotiations and/or 
Instructing Negotiators, In Connection With the Telluride Conference Center Pursuant to 
C.R.S. 24-6- 402(4)(b) and (e) 

b. Conference with the Chief of Police Regarding Specialized Details of Security Arrangements 
or Investigations, Including Defenses Against Terrorism, Both Domestic and Foreign, and 
Including Where Disclosure of the Matters Discussed Might Reveal Information That 
Could Be Used for the Purpose of Committing, or Avoiding Prosecution for, a Violation of 
the Law Pursuant to Section 24-6-402(4)(d), C.R.S. 

c. Receiving Legal Advice on Specific Legal Questions, to Determine Positions Relative to 
Matters that may be Subject to Negotiations, Developing Strategy for Negotiations and/or 
Instructing Negotiators, In Connection With the Future Ownership, Operations, and 
Maintenance of the Gondola System Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6- 402(4)(b) and (e) 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE  PAGE 6 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  July 20, 2023 

 
 

d. Receiving Legal Advice on Specific Legal Questions, to Determine Positions Relative to 
Matters that may be Subject to Negotiations, Developing Strategy for Negotiations and/or 
Instructing Negotiators, In Connection With the Proposed Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6- 402(4)(b) and (e) 

Patrick Berry recused himself for agenda item a. On a MOTION by Patrick Berry and seconded by Jack 
Gilbride, Council voted unanimously to move into Executive Session for the purpose of: 

a. Receiving legal advice on specific legal questions, to determine positions relative to matters that may 
be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations and/or instructing negotiators, in 
connection with the Telluride Conference Center pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6- 402(4)(b) and (e) 

b. Conference with the Chief of Police regarding specialized details of security arrangements or 
investigations, including defenses against terrorism, both domestic and foreign, and including where 
disclosure of the matters discussed might reveal information that could be used for the purpose of 
committing, or avoiding prosecution for, a violation of the law pursuant to section 24-6-402(4)(d), 
C.R.S. 

c. Receiving legal advice on specific legal questions, to determine positions relative to matters that may 
be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations and/or instructing negotiators, in 
connection with the future ownership, operations, and maintenance of the gondola system pursuant 
to C.R.S. 24-6- 402(4)(b) and (e) 

d. Receiving legal advice on specific legal questions, to determine positions relative to matters that may 
be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations and/or instructing negotiators, in 
connection with the proposed wastewater treatment plant pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6- 402(4)(b) and (e) 

at 5:49 p.m. 
 
Council returned to regular session at 7:18 p.m. 
 
There being no further business, on a MOTION by Patrick Berry and seconded by Jack Gilbride Council 
voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting at 7:19 p.m. 
 
Respectfully prepared,        Respectfully submitted, 
 
  
Kim Schooley         Susan Johnston  
Deputy Town Clerk        Town Clerk 



Page 1 
2851711.1 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO AND SAN MIGUEL POWER ASSOCIATION, INC.  

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated and made effective as of July 
18, 2023 (“Effective Date”), is entered into by and between TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
a Colorado home rule municipality (“Town”), and SAN MIGUEL POWER ASSOCIATION, 
INC., a local energy cooperative (“Company,” and together with the Town, the “Parties”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2008-06, the Town granted a franchise to the 
Company to operate an electric utility within the Town for 15 years (“2008 Franchise 
Agreement”); and 

WHERAS, the Company has submitted a request to renew the 2008 Franchise Agreement 
for another 15-year term, through July 18, 2038; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Ordinance No. 2023-__, the Parties desire to renew the 
franchise pursuant to the terms and conditions herein. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals and for good and valuable 
consideration of the mutual covenants set forth below, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:  

ARTICLE 1 
TITLE AND DEFINITIONS 

For purposes of this Agreement, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this Article:  
1.1 “Facilities” means all facilities reasonably necessary to provide electric service into, 

within, and through the Town, including but not limited to substations, transmission and 
distribution structures, lines, wires, electrical equipment, transformers, underground lines, 
meters, meter reading devices, control equipment, street lights, wires, cables, and poles. 

1.2 “Public Utilities Commission” or “PUC” means the Public Utilities Commission of the 
State of Colorado or other governmental body succeeding to the regulatory powers of the 
Public Utilities Commission. 

1.3 “Residents” means all persons, businesses, industry, governmental agencies, and any other 
entities whatsoever, presently located or to be located, in whole or in part, within the 
territorial boundaries of the Town. 

Agenda Item 9



 

 Page 2  
2851711.1 

1.4 “Revenues” means those gross revenues that the Company receives from sale of electricity 
to Residents. 

 
1.5 “Streets” means the rights of way of streets, alleys, viaducts, bridges, roads, lanes, public 

utility easements, and other public rights-of-way within the Town, excluding any such 
property that is not legally available for the use thereof by the Company. “Within the 
Streets” means upon, above, under, across, along, and within said Streets. 

 
1.9 “Franchise Fee” is defined in Section 4.1(B) of Article 4. 
 

ARTICLE 2 
GRANT OF FRANCHISE 

 
2.1 Grant of Franchise. 
 

(A) Subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, the Town hereby 
grants to the Company the non-exclusive right to:  
 
(1) furnish, sell, and distribute electricity to the Town and to all Residents of 

the Town;  
 

(2) acquire, construct, install, locate, maintain, operate, and extend into, within 
and through the Town all Facilities reasonably necessary to furnish, sell, 
and distribute electricity within and through the Town; and  
 

(3) make reasonable use of the Streets as may be necessary to carry out the 
terms herein subject to the Town’s prior right of usage for municipal 
purposes and subject to applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations 
(collectively, the “Franchise”).  

 
(B) The grant of this Franchise shall extend to all areas of the Town as it is now or 

hereafter constituted. The rights and obligations provided for by this Franchise 
encompass street lighting service to the Town, and the provisions of this Franchise 
apply with full and equal force to the street lighting service provided by the 
Company 
 

(C) The rights granted by this Franchise are not and shall not be deemed to be granted 
exclusively to the Company, and the Town reserves the right to make or grant a 
similar franchise to any other person, firm, or corporation as allowed by law. 

 
(D) The Town retains the right to use, control, and regulate, through the exercise of its 

police power, the use of the Streets, and the Town retains the right to impose such 
other regulations as may be determined by the Town to be necessary in the exercise 
of the police power to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the Town. 

 



 

 Page 3  
2851711.1 

(E) Neither the Town nor the Company waives any rights under the Constitution of the 
State of Colorado or of the United States except as otherwise specifically set forth 
herein. 

 
ARTICLE 3 

TERM OF FRANCHISE 
 
3.1 2008 Franchise Agreement.  The 2008 Franchise Agreement is hereby superseded and 

replaced in its entirety. 
 
3.2 Term of Franchise.  This Franchise shall take effect upon the Effective Date. Unless 

terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions contained herein, the term of this 
Franchise shall be for 15 years (“Term”). 

 
ARTICLE 4 

FRANCHISE FEE 
 
4.1 Franchise Fee.  
 

(A) In consideration for the Franchise rights granted herein, the Company shall collect 
and pay to the Town the sums provided in this Section (“Franchise Fee”). Payment 
of the Franchise Fee shall not exempt the Company from any other lawful taxes or 
fees; however, the Franchise Fee shall constitute the exclusive monetary payment 
by the Company to the Town for the Company’s use and occupancy of the Streets, 
except as specifically provided herein. 

 
(B) Notwithstanding the foregoing Section 4.1(A), initially the Company shall not 

collect and pay the Town the Franchise Fee.  However, at any time, the Town may, 
upon ninety (90) days written notice to the Company, elect to impose the Franchise 
Fee in an amount equal to a percentage of Revenues, as determined by the Town.  
In such case, the Company shall, upon the expiration of the ninety (90) day notice 
period, collect and pay to the Town, the Franchise Fee in accordance with the 
provisions of this Article 4.   

 
(C) A transaction or arrangement between the Company and any third party that has 

the effect of circumventing payment of the Franchise Fee or evasion of payment of 
Franchise Fee by non-collection, non-reporting, or any other means that evade the 
actual collection of Revenues by the Company is prohibited. 

 
(D) No acceptance of payment by the Town from the Company shall be construed as 

an agreement that the amount paid is the correct amount, nor shall acceptance be 
construed as a release of any claim that the Town may have for additional sums 
due and payable under this Franchise. 

 
(E) In the event that the Franchise Fee specified herein is declared illegal, 

unconstitutional, or void for any reason by any court or other proper authority, the 



 

 Page 4  
2851711.1 

Company shall be contractually bound to collect and pay monthly fees to the Town 
in an aggregate amount that would be, as nearly as practical, equivalent to the 
amount which would have been paid by the Company as the Franchise Fee as 
consideration for use of the Town’s Streets. 

 
4.2 Remittance Schedule.  The Company shall remit the Franchise Fee to the Town quarterly 

within 60 days of each calendar quarter. In the event that either the Town or the Company 
discovers that there has been an error in the calculation of the Franchise Fee, the error shall 
be corrected in the next quarterly payment, except that, in the event an error by the 
Company results in an overpayment of the Franchise Fee to the Town, and said 
overpayment is in excess of $5,000, credit for the overpayment shall be spread over the 
same period the error was undiscovered. If the overpayment is less than $5,000, credit 
shall be taken against the next payments. In no event shall the Town be required to refund 
any overpayment made as a result of a Company error that occurred more than three years 
prior to the discovery of the Company error. Underpayments shall be subject to 1.5% 
interest per month until paid in full. 

 
4.3 Franchise Fee Payment Not in Lieu of Other Fees. Payment of the Franchise Fee by the 

Company is accepted by the Town in lieu of any utility occupation tax or any rental fee, 
for the Company's use or occupation of Town Streets, or for the installation, operation, and 
maintenance of Company Facilities. Payment of the Franchise Fee does not exempt the 
Company from any other lawful tax or fee, including any fee for an excavation permit, 
street cut permit, or similar requirement, or sales and use taxes and general ad valorem 
property taxes.  

 
4.4 Surcharge Overview:  Town Surcharge and Regional Surcharge.  In order to partially fund 

the incremental additional costs of underground construction of approximately nine miles 
of a new 115kV Nucla-Telluride Transmission Line across portions of Specie and Wilson 
Mesas (the “Project”) proposed by Tri-State Generation & Transmission Association, Inc. 
(“Tri-State”), the Company is collecting an underground surcharge from all Residents (the 
“Town Surcharge”) and all of the Company’s customers within the Regional Surcharge 
Area, as hereinafter defined (the “Regional Surcharge”). The Town Surcharge is calculated 
as a percentage of revenue of each Resident’s total bill, which methodology is also being 
applied to the Company’s other customers who are subject to the Regional Surcharge. The 
“Regional Surcharge Area” is roughly defined as follows:  the Towns of Telluride, 
Mountain Village, Ophir, and Sawpit, as well as that portion of San Miguel County 
described as the eastern portion of unincorporated San Miguel County, from the top of 
Lizard Head Pass (the Dolores County line) through the Trout Lake/San Bernardo area, the 
Telluride region, and down valley through the Placerville area to the Specie Creek bridge, 
as well as the Ilium Valley, and Specie, Wilson, and Sunshine Mesas. The Company’s 
ratepayers located on Hastings Mesa are not served by the proposed Nucla-Telluride 
115kV transmission line and, therefore, are not subject to the proposed Regional 
Surcharge.    

 
4.5 Town Surcharge Exceeding the Duration of the Franchise Agreement.  It is anticipated that 

the Company may need to collect the Town Surcharge and the Regional Surcharge beyond 



 

 Page 5  
2851711.1 

the Term of the Franchise to fully satisfy the surcharge share of the Company’s 
contribution to the Project. Upon subsequent negotiations to renew this Agreement, the 
Town will consider, in good faith, a franchise agreement with the Company that would 
continue the collection of the Town Surcharge.   

 
ARTICLE 5 

AMENDMENTS TO FRANCHISE 
 

5.1 Regulatory Changes Requiring Amendment.  The Town and the Company 
recognize that the electric utility industry is the subject of numerous restructuring 
initiatives by legislative and regulatory authorities. Some of the initiatives and changes 
may have an effect upon the terms of this Agreement that would be adverse to Residents 
or other customers of the Company. In the event of such regulatory changes, the Town and 
the Company may need to amend various provisions of this Franchise and agree to 
negotiate in good faith in reaching such amendments. Any amendment to the computation 
of the Franchise Fee shall be in accordance with Section 16.2.  

5.2 Change of Franchise Fee.  Once during each calendar year of the Franchise term, the 
Town, upon giving 90 days’ notice to the Company of its intention to so do, may review 
and change the Franchise Fee the Town is entitled to receive as a part of the Franchise. 
The Company shall report to the Town within 60 days of the execution of a subsequent 
franchise or of any change of an existing franchise that increases the franchise fee in any 
other municipality to which the Company supplies electric service. If the Town decides the 
Franchise Fee shall be changed, it shall provide for such change by ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 6 

DISCLOSURE OF COMPANY RECORDS 
 
6.1 Town Information Rights. 
 

(A) The Town, or its designated representative or agent, shall have access to the books 
and records of the Company during normal business hours upon reasonable notice 
for the purpose of ascertaining compliance with the terms of this Agreement. The 
Town may use such information for the purposes of enforcing its laws, ordinances, 
and regulations. Nothing herein shall exempt the Company from any other 
requirements regarding the production of information as provided in the laws, 
ordinances, and regulations of the Town. 

 
(B) To the extent allowable by law, the Company shall supply the Town with all of the 

following information annually without cost to the Town: 
 

(1) Annual reports, including but not limited to, its annual report to its 
consumers; and 

 
(2) Annual financial summaries of the Revenues during the previous year; and  
 



 

 Page 6  
2851711.1 

(3) The Company shall prepare and submit to the Town a map showing the 
location of its system, showing location, size and depth of lines, incident to 
the distribution system, so far as such Facilities can reasonably be 
projected.  The map shall be updated annually and shall be delivered to the 
Town Clerk’s office within 10 days of written request by the Town. If the 
Company fails to keep such map current and provide the required 
information, the Town can cause such work to be done and charge all costs 
thereof to the Company.  The Company shall also submit the map on digital 
media.  Such map may not be used for facility engineering or design 
purposes, and shall not take the place of formal line locates which shall be 
provided by the Company upon request. 

 
(C) To the extent allowable by law, the Company shall supply the Town with all of the 

following information upon written request: 
 
(1)  Copies of the official minutes of Board of Directors meetings for the 

previous year; and 
 
(2) A summary of conversions and replacements within the Town which have 

been accomplished or are underway by the Company, if applicable; and 
 

(3)  The Company’s plans for additional conversions and replacements within 
the Town, if applicable; and 

 
(4)  Copies of tariffs including but not limited to all tariffs, rules, regulations, 

and policies relating to service by the Company to the Town and its 
Residents; and 

 
(5)  Copies of supporting documentation for the calculation of the Franchise 

Fee; and 
 
(6)  An inventory of the Company’s Facilities within the Town; and 
 
(7)  Annual and long-term reports for capital improvements planned within the 

Town. 
 

6.2 Enforcement of Town Ordinances.  The Town may use the meter information obtained 
from audits for the purposes of enforcing its laws, ordinances, and regulations. 

 
ARTICLE 7 

RATES CHARGED TO CUSTOMERS 
 
7.1 General Provisions.  Rates charged by the Company for service hereunder shall be fair and 

reasonable. The Company agrees that it shall be subject to all authority now or hereafter 
possessed by any regulatory body having jurisdiction to fix just, reasonable, and 
compensatory electric rates. The Company further agrees that the system shall be so 



 

 Page 7  
2851711.1 

designed, constructed, and sources of electricity utilized as to provide the most economic 
development and favorable rate structure possible, taking into account deliverability of 
electricity, economics, load profiles, and other pertinent conditions. 

 
7.2 Comparable Rates. For each rate category within the Company’s service area, rates 

charged to customers within the Town shall be no higher than the lowest rates charged to 
the Company’s customers in the same rate category, excluding franchise fees and other 
taxes, if applicable. 

 
7.3 Rates Applicable to Town Street Lighting and Town-Owned Facilities.  Rates charged to 

the Town by the Company for street lighting and Town-owned facilities shall be no higher 
than the lowest rates charged to the Company’s customers for the same rate category, 
excluding franchise fees and other taxes, if applicable. 

 
ARTICLE 8 

CONSTRUCTION AND DESIGN OF FACILITIES 
 
8.1 Reliability. 
 

(A) The Company shall at all times take all reasonable and necessary steps to assure the 
adequate distribution of electricity to the Town and its Residents at the lowest 
reasonable cost consistent with the terms of this Agreement. In addition, the 
Company shall operate its Facilities pursuant to the highest practicable level of 
service quality and reliability in providing electricity to the Town and its Residents. 
The Company recognizes that maintaining service reliability is a substantial 
obligation under this Agreement. Upon the Town’s request, the Company will 
provide the Town with copies of service reliability reports.  

 
(B) If the distribution of electricity to the Town or any resident of the Town is 

interrupted, the Company shall take all necessary and reasonable actions to restore 
such distribution in the shortest practicable time. If the distribution of electricity is 
to be interrupted due to a planned outage, except in cases of emergency outage 
repair, the Company shall take adequate reasonable efforts to notify its customers 
and the Town in advance. The Company shall keep on file in its local office copies 
of its Rate Schedules, Standards for Service, Rules and Regulations, and Service 
Connection and Extension Policies concurrently in effect or filed with the PUC or 
other competent authority having jurisdiction in the premises, which copies shall 
be made available to the Town and its Residents. 

 
(C) The Company shall provide to the Town, telephone numbers of the Company's 

dispatch center that will permit the Town to obtain status reports from the 
Company on a 24-hour basis concerning interruptions of the distribution of 
electricity in any portion of the Town. 

 



 

 Page 8  
2851711.1 

8.2 Obligations Regarding Company Facilities. 
 

(A) All work performed by or on behalf of the Company under the Franchise, including 
but not limited to the installation, renovation, and replacement of any Facilities in 
the Streets, shall be done in accordance with standards set by the Rural Utilities 
Service, United States Department of Agriculture, and is subject to inspection and 
approval by the Town for compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances, and 
regulations of the Town. The Company shall promptly perform remedial action 
required by the Town pursuant to any such inspection. It shall be a condition of the 
Town's approval that, for any Facility installed, renovated, or replaced after the 
Effective Date of this Agreement, the Company shall provide the Town with as-
built drawings of each such Facility in such formats and with such details as 
reasonably requested by the Town. Such drawings may not be used for facility 
engineering or design purposes and shall not take the place of formal line locates, 
which shall be provided by the Company upon request. 

 
(B) The installation, repair, or maintenance of Company Facilities shall not interfere 

with water facilities, sanitary or storm sewer facilities, communication facilities, or 
other uses of the Streets. Interference with landscaping and other natural features 
shall be minimized.  

 
(C) The Company shall promptly repair all damage to non-Company property caused 

by Company activities or Facilities. If such damage poses a threat to the health, 
safety, or welfare of the public, the Town may cause repairs to be made, and the 
Company shall promptly reimburse the Town for the cost of such repairs. 

 
 

(D) The Company and all of its contractors shall comply with all applicable Town 
laws, ordinances, and regulations. The Company shall require its contractors 
working in the Streets to hold the necessary licenses and permits required by the 
Town and other entities having jurisdiction. 

 
(E) The Company shall provide as-built drawings in such formats and with such details 

as reasonably requested by the Town, of each Company Facility. Such drawings 
may not be used for facility engineering or design purposes and shall not take the 
place of formal line locates, which shall be provided by the Company upon request. 

 
8.3 Excavation and Construction. The Company shall be responsible for obtaining all 

applicable permits, including any excavation, encroachment, or street cut permits, in the 
manner required by the laws, ordinances, and regulations of the Town. All public and 
private property whose use conforms to restrictions in public easements disturbed by 
Company construction or excavation activities shall be restored by the Company at its 
expense to substantially its former condition according to then-existing Town laws, 
ordinances, and regulations. 

 



 

 Page 9  
2851711.1 

8.4 Location and Relocation of Company Facilities. 
 

(A) Except as located as of the date of this Agreement, the location of the Company's 
Facilities shall be subject to the prior approval of the Town, and shall be located to 
maximize the potential use of the right of way, minimize interference with the 
Town’s use and facilities, and conform to requirements of Town standards and 
specifications. 

 
(B) If at any time the Town requests the Company to relocate its Facilities in order to 

allow the Town to make any use of Streets, or if at any time it shall become 
necessary or convenient because of a change in the grade, by reason of the 
improving, repairing, constructing, or maintaining of any Streets, by reason of 
traffic conditions, or public safety, or by reason of installation of any type of Town 
utility facilities, project, or other improvement, to move or change the Company's 
Facilities within or adjacent to Streets in any manner, either temporarily or 
permanently, the Town shall endeavor to notify the Company at least 90 days in 
advance, except when impractical or in the case of emergencies, of the Town’s 
intention to perform or have such work performed. The Company shall thereupon, 
at its cost, accomplish the necessary relocation, removal, or change within a 
reasonable time from the date of the notification, but in no event later than three 
working days prior to the date the Town has notified the Company that it intends to 
commence its work or immediately in the case of emergencies. Upon the 
Company's failure to accomplish such work, the Town may perform such work at 
the Company's expense and the Company shall reimburse the Town within 30 days 
after receipt of a written invoice therefor. Following relocation, all property 
negatively impacted by the activities of the Company shall be restored to, at a 
minimum, the condition that existed prior to construction by the Company at the 
Company's expense, with revised as-built plans submitted to the Town. 

 
(C) The Town may require the relocation of Facilities that are improperly installed in a 

location different from that approved by the Town following the procedures set out 
in (B) above.    

 
(D) When requested by the Town or the Company, representatives of the Town and the 

Company shall meet to share information regarding anticipated Town projects that 
will require relocation of Company Facilities. Such meetings shall be for the 
purpose of providing both parties the opportunity to, in good faith, evaluate 
reasonable alternatives and/or cost saving measures in an attempt to minimize the 
fiscal impact upon the Company from the proposed relocation, and to establish 
timetables with anticipated commencement and completion dates. 

 
(E) Following relocation, all property negatively impacted by the activities of the 

Company shall be restored to substantially its former condition by the Company at 
its expense, in accordance with then-existing Town laws, ordinances, and 
regulations. 

 



 

 Page 10  
2851711.1 

(F) Relocated Facilities shall be underground, unless exempted pursuant to Article 12.  
The Town will not require relocation solely to cause the undergrounding of 
Facilities. 

 
(G) The Company may recover costs it incurs for the relocation or undergrounding of 

Facilities when the work was ordered by the Town pursuant to Sections 8.4(B) or 
12.1(B)(3) through an increase in the Franchise Fee, which increase will be 
retained by the Company instead of being paid to the Town (“Recovery”). The 
Recovery shall be amortized over five years without interest, or a longer or shorter 
period as is appropriate to avoid increases in excess of 10% of customers’ electric 
bills. The Company shall consult with the Town concerning an appropriate 
Recovery schedule, but the final decision shall be the Company’s. When the 
remainder of the Term of the Franchise is insufficient to accommodate a 
reasonable amortization period, the Term shall be automatically extended to 
encompass the Recovery schedule. The Company shall provide the necessary 
financial records to the Town to allow it to monitor such Recovery. Upon receipt of 
an order from the Town to relocate or underground facilities, the Company shall 
provide a good faith estimate of the cost of such relocation or undergrounding 
(“Cost”). If the estimated Cost, plus the outstanding balance of any prior 
Recoveries, exceeds $150,000, (as adjusted annually at a rate equal to the increase 
in the Consumer Price Index for Denver, Colorado over the previous 12 months,  
or in the event the CPI is discontinued or otherwise not available, such comparable 
statistics on the purchasing power of the consumer dollar as is reasonably agreed 
upon between the Company and the Town), the Town agrees to pay the amount in 
excess of $150,000, as so adjusted. If the actual Cost causes the balance of total 
Recoveries to exceed $150,000, as so adjusted, the Town shall not be responsible 
for such excess, and the Recovery shall include such excess. 

 
(H) The Company shall report to the Town within 60 days of the execution of a 

subsequent franchise or of any change of an existing franchise that includes terms 
that are more favorable to the Town than this Section 8.4.  

 
8.5 Service to New Areas. If the boundaries of the Town are expanded during the Term of this 

Franchise, the Company shall extend service to Residents in the expanded area at the 
earliest practicable time and in accordance with the Company's extension policy. Service 
to the expanded area shall be in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, including 
payment of the Franchise Fee. 

 
8.6 Town Not Required to Advance Funds. Upon receipt of the Town's authorization for 

billing and construction, the Company shall extend its Facilities to provide electric service 
to the Town for municipal uses within the Town limits, or for any major municipal facility 
outside the Town limits, and within the Company certificated service area, without 
requiring the Town to advance funds prior to construction. Upon completion, the Town 
shall pay invoice within 30 days of receipt. 

 



 

 Page 11  
2851711.1 

8.7 Technological Improvements. 
 

(A) The Company shall generally introduce and install, as soon as practicable, 
technological advances in its equipment and service within the Town when such 
advances are technically and economically feasible and are safe and beneficial to 
the Town and its Residents.  

 
(B) While maintaining flexibility in the provision of services, the Company’s system 

shall, at all times, be no less advanced than any other system operated by the 
Company within the Company’s service area, taking into account deliverability of 
electricity, economics, load profiles, and other pertinent conditions; provided, 
however, should an upgrade of the utility services provided to customers within the 
Town be requested by the Town Council, the Company shall have the right to 
meet, confer, and negotiate with the Town concerning the economic practicality of 
such an upgrade, giving due consideration to the remainder of the Term of the 
Franchise and other reasonable incentives. The Company shall submit to the Town 
related information upon the Town Council’s request, including, but not limited to 
a plan for provision of such services, or a justification indicating the reason such 
services are not feasible for the Company’s customers within the Town. The 
Company retains the right to make the final decision as to the technological 
improvements or upgrades made by the Company. 

 
(C) Scope of Activities Authorized by Franchise. The provisions of this Agreement 

apply specifically to electric services. Nothing in this Agreement precludes the 
Company from engaging in any other lawful activities within the Town that are not 
subject to franchise ordinances. 

 
8.8 Renewable Power. The Company will continue with its efforts to promote power from 

renewable sources within the Town and will make power from renewable sources 
available for purchase to Town and its Residents, to the extent power from renewable 
sources is available to the Company. 

 
ARTICLE 9 

COMPLIANCE WITH TOWN REGULATIONS 
 
9.1 Town Regulation. The Town expressly reserves, and the Company expressly recognizes, 

the Town's right and duty to adopt, from time to time, in addition to the provisions herein 
contained, such laws, ordinances, and regulations deemed necessary by the Town in the 
exercise of its police power for the protection of the health, safety, and welfare of the 
public. The Company shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations of 
the Town, including but not limited to all Town building and zoning codes, and 
requirements regarding curb and pavement cuts, excavating, digging, and other 
construction activities. 

 
9.2 Town Review of Plans. Prior to construction of any significant Facilities such as 

transmission lines and substations within the Town, or of a building or other structure 



 

 Page 12  
2851711.1 

within the Town, the Company shall furnish to the Town the plans and a description of the 
proposed location of such Facilities, building, or structure. In addition, upon request by the 
Town, the Company shall assess and report on the impact of its proposed construction on 
the Town environment. Such plans and reports may be reviewed by the Town to ensure 
that all applicable laws, including building and zoning codes and air and water pollution 
requirements, are met, that aesthetic and good planning principles have been given due 
consideration, and that any adverse impact on the environment has been minimized. The 
Company shall comply with all regulatory requirements of the Town. 

 
9.3 Inspection. The Town shall have the right to inspect, at all reasonable times, any portion of 

the Company's electric system used to serve the Town and its Residents. The Company 
agrees to cooperate with the Town in conducting the inspection to correct any safety issues 
affecting the Town's interest in a prompt and efficient manner. Said inspection shall be 
performed only by qualified inspectors working under a professional engineer’s license. 

 
ARTICLE 10 

USE OF COMPANY FACILITIES 
 
10.1 Town Use. The Town shall be permitted to make all reasonable use of the Company's 

underground conduits for any Town purpose so long as such use complies with appropriate 
safety codes including the Company’s safety regulations. Said use shall be without cost to 
the Town so long as such use does not unreasonably interfere with the Company's use or 
future use of its Facilities or create a hazard. The Town shall be responsible for all costs, 
including maintenance costs, associated with any modifications to the Company's 
Facilities to accommodate the Town's use of such Facilities. 

 
10.2 Non-Competitor’s Use.   The Company shall allow telecommunications companies and/or 

cable companies that hold a franchise or encroachment permit from the Town to utilize the 
Company’s underground conduits for the placement of their facilities based upon the 
Company’s joint use agreements, so long as such terms and conditions are not inconsistent 
with the Company’s obligations under this Agreement. The Company shall not be required 
to assume any liability, nor to incur any additional expense in connection with any such 
use, nor be required to permit any such use for the distribution of electricity.  No such use 
shall be required if it would constitute a safety hazard or would unreasonably interfere 
with the Company’s use of the same. 

 
10.3 Competitor’s Use.  If the Company chooses, or is required by law, to transport electricity 

supplied by other entities over the Company’s Facilities to Town Residents, such 
transportation shall not be prohibited under this Agreement. The Company shall 
periodically report to the Town a list of all entities for which the Company is providing 
such transport services, and to the extent allowable by law the names and addresses of 
each such entity and each Town resident to whom electricity is transported, and the 
amount of electricity transported by the Company for each such entity. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall preclude the Town from collecting from such entities or Residents all 
applicable taxes and fees required by the Town’s laws, ordinances, and regulations. 

 



 

 Page 13  
2851711.1 

10.4 Trenches Available for Town Use. The Town and Company agree that it is in the best 
interest of the community to share and combine facilities in common trenches, ductways, 
or conduits. The Company and Town hereby agree to work together to see that facilities 
are combined to minimize impacts to the community. 

 
10.5 Underground Conduit.  If the Company installs new electric underground conduit or opens 

a trench or replaces such conduit, the Company shall provide adequate advance notice of 
such activity to permit additional installation of similar conduit and pull wire for the Town 
and other users at their cost. If the Town desires to have additional similar conduit and pull 
wire for its use, it will so notify the Company and provide similar conduit and pull wire to 
the Company at the Town's expense. The Company agrees to install such conduit and pull 
wire for the Town, and the Town shall pay the prorated amount of the Company's actual 
cost attributable to installing the Town's conduit and pull wire. "Actual cost" shall not 
include the Company's cost of opening and closing the trench.  The Company shall not be 
liable for any damage to this conduit and pull wire subsequent to successful installation. 

 
ARTICLE 11 

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 
 
11.1 Indemnification of the Town. 
 

(A) The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Town, its officers, 
employees, insurers, and self-insurance pool, from and against all liability, claims, 
and demands on account of injury, loss, or damage, including without limitation 
claims arising from bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, property loss or 
damage, or any other loss of any kind whatsoever, which arise out of or are in any 
manner connected with the Franchise, if such injury, loss, or damage is caused in 
whole or in part by, or is claimed to be caused in whole or in part by, the act, 
omission, error, professional error, mistake, negligence, or other fault of the 
Company, any subcontractor or the Company, or any officer, employee, 
representative of the Company, or which arise out of any worker’s compensation 
claim of any employee or the Company or of any employee of any subcontractor of 
the Company, except to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the 
Town, its employees, and/or its agents. The Company agrees to investigate, handle, 
respond to, and to provide defense for and defend against, any such liability, claims 
or demands at the sole expense of the Company, or at the option of the Town, 
agrees to pay the Town or reimburse the Town for the reasonable defense costs 
incurred by the Town in connection with any such liability claims or demands. The 
Company also agrees to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto, including 
court costs and attorney fees, whether or not any such liability claims or demands 
alleged are groundless, false, or fraudulent.  

 
(B) The indemnification shall include delay damages as that term is used in C.R.S. § 

24-91-103.5, as amended from time to time, or any successor law thereto, awarded 
against the Town in favor of contractors for damages incurred by contractors for 
delays experienced in the performance of public works contracts entered into with 



 

 Page 14  
2851711.1 

the Town; provided, however, that said indemnification shall extend only to those 
delays in performance of public works contracts for which the Company either 
agrees it is responsible or which were caused as the result, in whole or in part, of 
the acts or omissions of the Company in the performance of its obligations under 
this Agreement. Unless the Company otherwise agrees in writing, in no event shall 
the Company be required to indemnify the Town for any delay damages awarded 
against the Town unless and until a final determination has been made by a court of 
competent jurisdiction that the delay damages suffered by a contractor were the 
result of the acts or omissions of the Company acting on behalf of or within the 
Town's control. Nothing herein shall be construed as an acknowledgment by the 
parties that the Company, in exercising its rights and obligations under this 
Agreement, is an entity controlled by, subject to the control of or acting on behalf 
of the Town for the purposes of C.R.S. § 24-91-103.5, as amended. 

 
(C) The Company hereby waives any claim for damages to its Facilities against the 

Town, its officers, and its employees. 
11.2 Insurance Required.  The Company agrees to procure and maintain, at its own cost, a 

policy or policies of insurance sufficient to insure against all liability, claims, demands, 
and other obligations assumed by the Company pursuant to Section 11.1. Such insurance 
shall be in addition to any other insurance requirements imposed by this Agreement or by 
law. Evidence of qualified self-insurance status may be substituted for the insurance 
required by this paragraph. The Company shall not be relieved of any liability, claims, 
demands, or other obligations assumed pursuant to Section 11.1 by reason of its failure to 
procure or maintain insurance, or by reason of its failure to procure or maintain insurance 
in sufficient amounts, durations, or types. 
 
(A) The Company shall procure and maintain the minimum insurance coverages listed 

below. Such coverages shall be procured and maintained with forms and insurers 
acceptable to the Town. All coverages shall be continuously maintained during the 
Term of the Franchise. In the case of any claims-made policy, the necessary 
retroactive dates and extended reporting periods shall be procured to maintain such 
continuous coverage. 

 
(1) Worker’s Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by 

applicable laws for any employee engaged in the performance of work 
under this Agreement, and employers’ liability insurance with minimum 
limits of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) each accident, five 
hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) disease-policy limit, and five hundred 
thousand dollars ($500,000) disease-each employee. Evidence of qualified 
self-insured status may be substituted for the worker’s compensation 
requirements of this paragraph. 

 
(2) Commercial general liability insurance with coverage at least equal to the 

limitations on judgment provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity 
Act (“CGIA”), C.R.S. § 24-10-114, et seq., as amended every four years by 
the Colorado Secretary of State, which for 2023 are currently $424,000 for 



 

 Page 15  
2851711.1 

one person in a single occurrence or $1,191,000 for two or more persons in 
a single occurrence. The policy shall: be applicable to premises and 
operations; include coverage for bodily injury, broad form property damage 
(including completed operations), personal injury (including coverage for 
contractual and employee acts), blanket contractual, independent 
contractors, products, and completed operations; include coverage for 
explosion, collapse, and underground hazards; and contain a severability of 
interests provision. 

 
(3) Comprehensive automobile liability insurance with minimum combined 

single limits for bodily injury and property damage of not less than one 
million dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence and one million dollars 
($1,000,000) aggregate with respect to each of the Company’s owned, hired 
and non-owned vehicles assigned to or used in performance of the services.  
The policy shall contain a severability of interests provision. If the 
Company has no owned automobiles, the requirements of this paragraph (3) 
shall be met by each employee of the Company providing services to the 
Town under this Agreement. 

 
(B) The policy required by Paragraphs (D)(2) and (3) above shall be endorsed to 

include the Town and the Town’s officers and employees as additional insureds.  
Every policy required above shall be primary insurance and any insurance carried 
by the Town, its officers, or its employees, or carried by or provided through any 
insurance pool of the Town, shall be excess and not contributory insurance to that 
provided by the Company. No additional insured endorsement to any policy shall 
contain any exclusion for bodily injury or property damage arising from completed 
operations. The Company shall be solely responsible for any deductible losses 
under any policy required above. 

 
(C) The certificate of insurance provided to the Town shall be completed by the 

Company’s insurance agent as evidence that policies providing the required 
coverages, conditions, and minimum limits are in full force and effect, and shall be 
reviewed and approved by the Town upon execution of this Agreement. No other 
form of certificate shall be used. The certificate shall identify this Agreement and 
shall provide that the coverages afforded under the policies shall not be cancelled, 
terminated, or materially changed until at least 30 days’ prior written notice has 
been given to the Town. The completed certificate of insurance shall be sent to the 
Town. 

 
(D) Failure on the part of the Company to procure or maintain policies providing the 

required coverages, conditions, and minimum limits shall constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement after the Town has provided Company written notice of 
the failure, and 60 days thereafter to cure any failure to procure or maintain 
policies. Thereafter, if Company has failed to cure, the Town may terminate this 
Agreement and revoke the Franchise (subject to continuing collection of the 
Recovery under Section 8.4(G) above), or at its discretion, the Town may procure 



 

 Page 16  
2851711.1 

or renew any such policy or any extended reporting period thereto and may pay 
any and all premiums in connection therewith, and all monies so paid by the Town 
shall be repaid by the Company to the Town upon demand, or the Town may offset 
the cost of the premiums against any monies due to the Company from the Town. 

 
11.3 Financial Responsibility. At the time of approval of this Agreement by the Town, and 

from time to time at the Town's request, but not more frequently than annually, the 
Company shall submit to the Town, as a confidential document (which the Town will hold 
as confidential subject to the Town’s obligations under the Colorado Open Records Act, 
C.R.S. § 24-72-201, et seq.), proof of its ability to meet its obligations under this 
Agreement, including its ability to indemnify the Town. This proof may take the form of 
insurance coverage, adequate funding of self-insurance, or the provision of a bond. The 
Company shall supply the Town with a list of its insurance companies with the types of 
coverage, but not levels of insurance. Said list shall be kept current by annual revisions as 
of January 1 during the Term of the Franchise. The Town may require, from time to time, 
and the Company agrees to provide, additional reasonable funding of the Company's 
indemnification obligations as a self-insured, if the Company is acting as a self-insurer.  

 
ARTICLE 12 

UNDERGROUNDING OF FACILITIES 
 
12.1 Undergrounding of Facilities. All new Facilities involving the use of poles or above 

ground wires are hereby prohibited within the Town unless the Town agrees in advance to 
such use. All such Facilities shall be installed underground or e as the Town and the 
Company shall otherwise agree.   

 
ARTICLE 13 

TRANSFER OF FRANCHISE 
 
13.1 Consent of Town Required.  The Company shall not sell, re-sell, transfer, assign, or 

convey any rights under this Agreement, or the assets held by the Company for use under 
this Agreement that are in the public rights-of-way, to any third party, including any 
merger with such third party, nor undergo any corporate reorganization or other change 
that would result in any modification of the Company's obligations under this Agreement, 
without first obtaining written approval of the Town; provided, however, that this 
condition shall not be construed to restrict or prevent the issuance of bonds, debentures, or 
other evidence of indebtedness, or the issuance of additional stock, needed or useful for 
the purpose of financing the system or any portion thereof. Should the Company sell, 
assign, transfer, convey, or otherwise dispose of its rights or interests under this 
Agreement, including the Company’s system or capacity on its system, or attempt to do so, 
without the proper approval, the Town may terminate this Agreement and revoke the 
Franchise. Upon revocation, all rights and interests of the Company under this Agreement 
shall cease. In addition, any sale, re-sale, transfer, assignment, or conveyance in violation 
of this Section shall be null and void and unenforceable.   

 



 

 Page 17  
2851711.1 

ARTICLE 14 
MUNICIPALIZATION 

 
14.1 Town's Right to Purchase or Condemn. 
 

(A) The right of the Town to construct, purchase, or condemn any public utility works 
or ways, and the Facilities and rights of the Company in connection therewith, as 
provided by the Mountain Village Home Rule Charter, Colorado Constitution, and 
Colorado Revised Statutes, is hereby expressly reserved, and the Company 
understands and agrees that such right may be exercised by the Town at any time in 
accordance with such regulations.  

 
(B) In the event the Town exercises its option to purchase or condemn, the Company 

agrees that it will continue to maintain its Facilities and to supply any service it 
supplies under this Agreement, in whole or in part, at the Town's request, and at the 
Town’s cost, for up to a 24-month period after the Town has either purchased or 
condemned the Company's Facilities or alternative arrangements have been made. 
Both parties will exercise due diligence to wind up the Company’s affairs as soon 
as practical. 

 
(C) The Company shall cooperate with the Town by making available such records as 

will enable the Town to evaluate the feasibility of acquisition of Company 
Facilities. The Company shall not be required to conduct studies or accrue data 
without reimbursement by the Town but shall complete such studies if reimbursed 
its costs for the same. The Company shall take no action that could inhibit the 
Town’s ability to effectively or efficiently use the acquired Facilities. 

 
14.2 Negotiated Purchase Price or Condemnation Award.  If the Town desires to purchase 

Company Facilities, and if the Company desires to sell such Facilities, the parties shall 
negotiate in good faith to determine a mutually acceptable purchase price for up to 90 
days. Said purchase price shall exclude the value of the Franchise. If an agreement is not 
reached, the Town and the Company reserve all rights to assert their respective positions 
with respect to the steps the Town would need to take to condemn Company Facilities; 
however, no award shall be made for the value of the Franchise. 

 
14.3 Town-Produced Electricity.  The Company understands and agrees that the Town 

expressly reserves the right to obtain or produce electricity for its own purposes and 
wholesale transactions, and the Town may exercise that such right at any time. The 
Company shall not curtail wholesale purchases of Town-generated electricity. The Town 
expressly reserves the right to engage in the production of electricity. If the Town does so, 
the Company agrees to negotiate in good faith for the purchase thereof in accordance with 
its tariffs and applicable PUC rules and regulations, but only within the limits of its then-
existing contractual limitations. Alternatively, the Company agrees to transmit the Town-
generated power between the generation unit and designated end point to the extent that 
such transmission is feasible within the then-existing system of the Company. The 
Company may charge for such transmission a just and reasonable rate calculated on the 



 

 Page 18  
2851711.1 

basis of the Facilities actually used by it to provide this service. 
 
14.4 Town’s Right of First Offer to Purchase Real Property of Company.   
 

(A) If at any time during the Term of the Franchise, the Company desires to sell or 
dispose of any of its real property located in whole or in part in the Town, the 
Company shall first give the Town written notice of its intent to sell or dispose of 
said property. Within 30 days’ receipt of any such notice, the Town may submit to 
the Company a written offer to purchase the property. The Company shall have 10 
days from receipt thereof to accept or reject the Town’s offer, in writing.  
 

(B) If the Company either receives notice from the Town that it does not desire to 
purchase the property, or the Company fails to receive any notice from the Town 
within said 30-day period, then the Company shall have the right to proceed to sell 
the property to any third party. If the Company received and rejected a Town offer 
pursuant to subsection (A) above, the Company shall have the right to sell the 
property to any third party at a price equal to or greater than the Town’s stated 
offering price, or for an amount not less than 85% of such stated offering price. If 
such selling price is less than 85% of the Town’s stated offering price, the 
Company shall reopen the property to the Town for such lower price in the manner 
described in this Section, and the Town shall have the right to offer to purchase the 
property as set forth in this Section.  

 
(C) If the Company accepts the Town’s offer, then the parties shall cooperate and 

coordinate in good faith to arrange a closing at the earliest reasonably convenient 
closing date, but in no event more than 90 days from receipt of the Company’s 
written acceptance of the Town’s offer. Within five business days of the 
Company’s acceptance of the Town’s offer to purchase the property, the Town 
shall place into escrow earnest money in the amount of 5% of the purchase price, 
unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties. The Company shall convey the 
property to the Town by general warranty deed. 

 
14.5 Purchase or Condemnation of Street Lighting System.  The provisions of this Article apply 

with full and equal force to the purchase or condemnation by the Town of all or a portion 
of the street lighting service provided by the Company, including all or a portion of any 
Company owned street lighting facilities, equipment, system, and plant. The Company 
understands and agrees that the Town may choose to so purchase or condemn such street 
lighting service at any time. 

 
ARTICLE 15 

BREACH AND REMEDIES 
 
15.1 Breach. 
 

(A) If the Company fails to perform any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement 
and such failure is within the Company's control, the Town may require the 



 

 Page 19  
2851711.1 

Company to show cause, at a hearing before the Town Council, the reasons its 
rights and privileges under this Agreement should not be forfeited, or other 
penalties imposed as provided by this Agreement or by law.  No such hearing shall 
be held unless the Company has first been given notice of its failure and reasonable 
time, not to exceed 90 days, in which to remedy the failures. If the Company does 
not remedy the failures, the Town Council may determine, at such a hearing, 
whether such failure to perform and the Company's failure to remedy the same 
occurred, and if so, whether such failure to perform is substantial. The Town 
Council may impose one or more of the following remedies or penalties for a 
substantial failure to perform: 

 
(1) A civil penalty of $500 for each day or portion thereof that the failure was 

committed or continued. The Company understands and agrees that such 
liquidated damages are intended to compensate the Town for the additional 
efforts of the Town in administering and enforcing this Agreement, for 
inconvenience to Town operations and to the Residents, and loss of 
confidence in government and morale of the Town and its Residents when 
contractual obligations are not met.  Such damages are uncertain in amount 
and difficult to measure and prove accurately. By this Agreement, the 
Company agrees that the liquidated damages specified herein are 
reasonable in amount and are not disproportionate to actual anticipated 
damages; 

 
(2) Forfeiture of all rights under this Agreement including revocation of the 

Franchise; and/or 
 

(3) Any other remedies available to the Town by law. 
 

(B) The Town may take action to correct the failure, and the Company shall promptly 
reimburse the Town for the cost of such action. 

15.2 Costs and Fees.  In any action to enforce or construe the terms of this Agreement, the 
prevailing party shall recover for all costs related thereto, including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees, from the non-prevailing party. Regardless of the prevailing party in any such dispute, 
the Company shall reimburse the Town for any costs and fees incurred by the Town in 
relation to the review and approval of this Agreement, including but not limited to fees for 
legal, engineering, and surveying services by outside consultants. 

 
15.3 Other Legal Remedies.  Nothing herein shall limit or restrict any legal rights or remedies 

that the Town may possess arising from any alleged violation of this Agreement.   
 
15.4 Continued Obligations.  Upon revocation of the Franchise, the Company shall continue to 

provide service to the Town and its Residents until the Town makes alternative 
arrangements for such service. 

 



 

 Page 20  
2851711.1 

ARTICLE 16 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
17.1 No Waiver. Neither the Town nor the Company shall be excused from complying with any 

of the terms and conditions of this Agreement by any failure of the other, or any of its 
officers, employees, or agents, upon any one or more occasions, to insist upon or to seek 
compliance with any such terms and conditions. 

 
17.2 Successors and Assigns. The rights, privileges, and obligations, in whole or in part, 

granted and contained in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon 
the Company, its successors and assigns, to the extent that such successors or assigns have 
succeeded to or been assigned the rights of the Company, subject to Section 13.1. 

 
17.3  No Third Party Rights. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to provide 

rights or remedies to third parties. 
 
17.4 Representatives. The Company and the Town shall designate the persons to whom notices 

shall be sent regarding any action to be taken under this Agreement. All Notice shall be in 
writing and forwarded by mail or hand delivery to the persons and addresses as stated 
below, unless changed by written notice given to the other. Until change is made, notices 
shall be sent as follows: 

     
To the Town:     To the Company: 
Town of Mountain Village   San Miguel Power Association, Inc. 
Attn: Town Manager    Attn: CEO/General Manager 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., Ste. A  PO Box 817 
Mountain Village, CO 81435   Nucla, CO 81424 
pwisor@mtnvillage.org     
 
With a copy to:    With a copy to: 
Garfield & Hecht, P.C.   James E. Link II, PC 
Attn: David McConaughy   PO Box 567 
910 Grand Ave., Ste. 201   Ouray, CO 81427 
Glenwood Springs, CO 81601  jimlink@jimlinkpc.com 
dmcconaughy@garfieldhecht.com    

 
17.5 Severability. Should any one or more provisions of this Agreement be determined to be 

illegal or unenforceable, all other provisions nevertheless shall remain effective; provided, 
however, the parties shall enter into good faith negotiations and proceed with due 
diligence to draft a substitute term which will achieve the original intent of the parties. 

 
17.6 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with 

respect to the matters contained herein and supersedes any and all prior written or oral 
negotiations, correspondence, understandings, and communications with respect to this 
Agreement. 

 

mailto:pwisor@mtnvillage.org
mailto:dmcconaughy@garfieldhecht.com


Page 21 
2851711.1 

17.7 Construction and Enforcement. Colorado law shall apply to the construction and 
enforcement of this Agreement. The parties agree that venue for any litigation arising out 
of or related to this Agreement shall be in the District Court of San Miguel County, 
Colorado. 

17.8 Other Franchises.  In the event the Company becomes subject to franchise or ordinance 
terms of another municipality or regulations of a county significantly more advantageous 
to that municipality or county, the Town may enact similar provisions by ordinance. 

17.9 Appropriation.  Any payment obligation of the Town under this Agreement is subject to 
annual budgeting and appropriation. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed or 
interpreted: (a) to directly or indirectly obligate the Town to make any payment in any 
year in excess of amounts appropriated for such year; (b) as creating a debt or multiple 
fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever within the 
meaning of Article X, Section 16 or Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution or 
any other constitutional or statutory limitation or provision; or (c) as a donation or grant by 
the Town to or in aid of any person, company, or corporation within the meaning of 
Article XI, Section 2 of the Colorado Constitution. 

17.10 Immunity.  The Town and its officers and employees are relying on, and do not waive or 
intend to waive by any provision of this Agreement, the monetary limitations or any other 
rights, immunities, or protections provided by the CGIA. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date. 

Town:   
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE , COLORADO 

By: ______________________________ 
Martinique Prohaska, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 

Company: 
SAN MIGUEL POWER ASSOCIATION, INC. 

By: ______________________________ 
Name: Brad Zaporski 
Title: CEO/General Manager 



 

 Page 22  
2851711.1 

STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL ) 
 
Subscribed, sworn to, and acknowledged before me by Brad Zaporski, as CEO/General Manager 
of San Miguel Power Association, Inc. on this ___ day of ___________, 2023. 
 
Witness my hand and seal. 
 
My commission expires:   
 
 

______________________________         
Notary Public 

 



1 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

(970) 369-8250 

Agenda Item No. 10 

TO: Town Council 

FROM: Amy Ward 

FOR: Meeting of August 17, 2023 

DATE: August 10, 2023 

RE: Consideration of an Ordinance and Setting of a Public Hearing regarding a 
Community Development Code Amendment at CDC Section 17.4.8.E.1 
Renewals 

BACKGROUND 
Staff is bringing a CDC amendment before the Town Council for legislative consideration. 

ATTACHMENT 
• Proposed Ordinance

Renewals 
Currently, the CDC allows for (1) six month extension of a development application that has not 
yet lapsed. The previous few years have been a challenging time for the Planning and Building 
Department. The COVID crisis disrupted our building cycles in numerous ways. Supply chain 
issues, increased interest in and development in the region, staffing challenges and a deficit of 
needed contractors as well as an extended cold spring in 2023 have all extended timelines for 
existing building projects and made it more difficult for approved but unbuilt development 
applications to proceed in a timely manner. Staff is requesting an amendment to the CDC to allow 
for (2) six month extensions of an approved development application. Staff feels that this 
timeframe allows for some more flexibility for developers in the case of logistical difficulties while 
still encouraging approved designs to be built in a timeframe that is not overly extended from the 
date of original approval. The idea of (1) twelve month extension in lieu of (2) six month extensions 
was considered and rejected by staff. The nature of humans seems to be that given a deadline 
we often wait until it is approaching to take action. Staff feels that a six month extension expresses 
to applicants the urgency of moving forward, while the second extension provides a “relief valve” 
if difficulties arise. 

The recommended edits to the CDC are contained within the attached Ordinance 

PROPOSED MOTION 
“I move to approve the proposed Ordinance Amending Chapter 17.4 of the Mountain Village 
Municipal Code Concerning Extensions of Land Use Approvals as proposed in the staff memo of 



2  

record dated, August 10, 2023.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 

/aw 



 

2795586.1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-__ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO AMENDING CHAPTER 17.4 OF THE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE MUNICIPAL 

CODE CONCERNING EXTENSIONS OF LAND USE APPROVALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Mountain Village (“Town”) is a home rule municipality duly organized 
and existing under Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and the Town of Mountain Village Home Rule 
Charter of 1995, as amended (“Charter”); and 

WHEREAS, Section 17.4.8 of the Community Development Code, Title 17 of the Mountain 
Village Municipal Code (“CDC”) addresses renewals of approved development applications, and Section 
17.4.8(E) provides that only one (1) renewal of six (6) months shall be authorized, and if that period expires 
without meeting the required milestones to maintain the approval then the applicant must submit a new 
development application; and 

WHEREAS, due to the global pandemic associated with COVID-19 and the related economic 
impacts, construction and development within the Town was stalled after March 2020, any many approved 
projects were not commenced within the time periods required under the applicable development approvals; 
and 

 WHEREAS, development and development applications have increased significantly since 2022, 
and the Town Community Development Department and its Design Review Board have received a large 
number of pending applications, which has slowed the time required to process development applications; 
and 

 WHEREAS, by prohibiting more than one 6-month extension, Section 17.4.8(E) has resulted, and 
may result in the future, in additional applications being filed simply because renewals cannot be granted, 
including applications that may be substantially identical to already-approved applications; and 

WHEREAS, the Design Review Board Reviewed the proposed temporary change to the CDC on August 
3, 2023 and voted unanimously to recommend approval; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council finds and determines that the public interest would be served by 
not burdening Town staff, the DRB, and land use applicants with additional application requirements 
simply to extend deadlines for already-approved projects. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village: 

A. The foregoing recitals are incorporated as findings of the Town Council. 

B. CDC Section 17.4.8(E) is hereby amended as follows (deletions are shown as strikeout text and 
additions are shown as CAPITALIZED AND UNDERLINED): 

1. Number of Renewals. Only one (1), TWO (2) six (6) month renewals shall be permitted. Upon 
expiration of the LAST APPROVED renewal, the applicant must submit a new development application 
and follow the required development review process as provided for by this CDC.  

C.  This Ordinance shall expire, and the CDC shall revert to its current wording, on January 1, 
2025, unless Council passes a Resolution extending the effective date of this Ordinance or waiving the 
expiration date on or before January 1, 2025.   



 

2795586.1 

INTRODUCED, READ, AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of the Town 
of Mountain Village, Colorado on the 17th day of August, 2023. 

 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE: 

 
 
 
 

 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, 
A HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY 
 

 
By:  

Martinique Prohaska, Mayor
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
 
HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado this 
___ day of __________, 2023. 
 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE:  
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, 
A HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY 
 
 
By:   

Martinique Prohaska, Mayor
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 

 
David McConaughy, Town Attorney 



I, Susan Johnston, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado 
(“Town") do hereby certify that: 
 

1. The attached copy of Ordinance No. 2023-__ (“Ordinance") is a true, correct, and complete copy thereof. 
 

2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading and referred to public hearing by 
the Town Council the Town (“Council”) at a regular meeting held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village 
Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on __________, 2023, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the 
Town Council as follows: 
 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
3. After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public hearing, containing 

the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the subject matter of the proposed 
Ordinance was posted and published in the Telluride Daily Planet, a newspaper of general circulation in 
the Town, on ____________, 2023 in accordance with Section 5.2(d) of the Town of Mountain Village 
Home Rule Charter. 

 
4. A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the Town 

Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on ____________, 
2023. At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and approved without 
amendment by the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows: 
 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
5. The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me as Town Clerk, 

and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this  ___ day of 
__________, 2023. 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 



1 

 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DEPARTMENT 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

(970) 728-1392

Agenda Item #11 

TO: Mountain Village Town Council  

FROM: Amy Ward, Community Development Director 

FOR: August 17, 2023  

DATE: August 9, 2023 

RE: First reading of an Ordinance and setting of a Public Hearing regarding a Vested 
Property Rights Extension for Lot 30, TBD Aspen Ridge Drive 

PROJECT GEOGRAPHY 
Legal Description: LOT 30, 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF AMENDMENT, 
TO THE FINAL PLAT OF LOTS 11 AND 30, 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, FILING 1, 
RECORDED OCTOBER 16, 1996 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 2139, 
COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL, STATE OF COLORADO.
Address: TBD Aspen Ridge Dr. 
Applicant/Agent: Chris Chaffin, Jim Mahoney 
Owner:  MV Lot 30 LLC 
Zoning:   Multi Family 
Existing Use: (1) Deed restricted employee apartment, temporary surface parking
Proposed Use:  Condominiums and Employee Condominiums

(This area intentionally left blank) 



2 

Adjacent Land Uses: 
o North: Full Use Ski Resort Active Open Space 
o South: Multi Family and Full Use Ski Resort Active Open Space 
o East: Multi Family 
o West: Multi Family 

ATTACHMENTS 
Exhibit A: Applicant Narrative 
Exhibit B:  Proposed Ordinance

Full Application (including approved plan set) can be found at the following link 

Current entitlements 
Lot 30 was approved in October of 2021 for a development inclusive of 16 condominium 
units and a total of 4 employee condominium units. In January of 2022, staff approved a minor 
revision to the original DRB approval, that retained the original expiration date. The approval was 
valid for 18 months and the applicant requested, and was granted a one-time six month extension 
to expire on October 7, 2023. The applicant has submitted an application for a Vested 
Property Rights Extension for this property.  

The original approval was approved under different ownership. The property has since changed 
hands and the new owner is requesting a three year extension to the approvals to better prepare 
for building permit submittal. They also cite difficult lending conditions as a deterrent to being 
able to immediately construct.  

VESTED PROPERTY RIGHTS 

https://townofmountainvillage.com/site/assets/files/41688/vested_property_rights_for_lot_30-_98_aspen_ridge_dr.pdf


3 

A vested property rights extension allows for a developer to extend their existing 
approvals through a Class 4 development application process for a period longer than the 
initial 18 month period.  Town Council can elect to approve an extended s vested period, 
that is specific to their site specific development plan (approved design drawings) typically 
for an additional three year period.  This is the most logical way a developer can request 
additional time in order to construct their project because more time is needed and not 
lose their entitlements. 

Please note staff comments are in blue below. 

17.4.17 of the CDC sites the following criteria for decision to approve a vested property right: 

a. A vested property right is warranted in light of relevant circumstances, such as
the size and phasing of the development, economic cycles and market conditions;
The applicant states that “the existing financial and financing markets over the past year
and uncertainty into the future as well as the tight trade and labor markets may make
construction and construction financing difficult for the near term, warranting a three-year
vested rights in the above noted approvals.” It is staff’s understanding that the applicant
intends to construct, and would also accept a one year vesting period.
b. The site-specific development plan is consistent with public health, safety and
welfare;
The design review went through a lengthy process prior to approval, and staff feels the
final approval represents site specific development that meets this criteria.
c. The site-specific development plan provides for the construction and financing of
improvements and facilities needed to support the proposed development;
The design review went through a lengthy process prior to approval, and staff feels the
final approval represents site specific development that meets this criteria. Additionally
the applicant states, “The construction plans are near building permit plan set ready and
provide for the construction of the project. The Owner is confident that with its financing
relationships if granted the three-year vested rights financing of the construction will be
feasible.”
d. The site-specific development plan meets the criteria for decision for concurrent,
required development application(s); and
Staff finds this condition met
e. The proposed vested property right meets all applicable Town regulations and
standards.
Staff finds this condition met

Design Review Board Recommendation: The Design Review Board reviewed the application 
to extend the Vested Property Rights for Lot 30, TBD Aspen Ridge Drive at the August 3, 2023 
Design Review Board meeting and voted unanimously to recommend to Town Council approval 
of a Vested Property Rights Extension for Lot 30, TBD Aspen Ridge Drive for a period of 3 years. 

Staff Recommendation: Criteria A seems to be the most pertinent to the discussion, if Town 
Council finds that relevant circumstances such as size and phasing of development, economic 
cycles and market conditions pose a challenge currently, than a vested property right extension 
seems reasonable. Town Council should also discuss the length of vesting, whether they would 
approve the three year period requested by the applicant or something shorter than that. 



4 

Staff recommends that Town Council approves this application and if Town Council moves to 
approve suggests the following motion: 

Staff Note: It should be noted that reasons for approval or rejection should be stated in 
the findings of fact and motion.  

Proposed Motion: 
I move to approve, the first reading of an Ordinance regarding the extension of a vested property 
right at Lot 30, TBD Aspen Ridge Drive, from October 7, 2023, to _______ pursuant to CDC 
Section 17.4.17 based on the evidence provided within the Staff Report of record dated August 
9, 2023, and to ask the Town Clerk to set a public hearing for August 17, 2023. 

With the following findings: 

1) The proposal to extend the Lot 30 vested property rights meets all of the Criteria for
Decision listed in 17.4.17(D)(1).

And, with the following conditions: 

1) Prior to the recordation of the Ordinance approving the Extended Vested Property Rights
and site-specific development plan, the Owner shall revise all documents to include the
following statement: “ Approval of this site-specific development plan may create a vested
property right pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-68-101 et seq. and subject to the Town of Mountain
Village’s Community Development Code.”

2) The Town shall publish a notice in the newspaper of record within 14 days of approval a
notice describing that a vested property right has been created/extended consistent with
CDC Section 17.4.17(E)(4)

3) All previous conditions of approval from the original 2021 Design Review approval remain
applicable for any future development.

This motion is based on the evidence and testimony provided at a public hearing held on July 17, 
2023, with notice of such hearing as required by the Community Development Code. 

/aw 



www.telluriderlaw.com 
James Mahoney, Esq. 

PO Box 1902 970.708.5070 
Telluride, Colorado 81435 jmahoney@telluriderlaw.com 

LOT 30 VESTED PROPERTY RIGHTS APPLICATION NARRATIVE 

To: Chris Chaffin 

From: James Mahoney 

Date: April 26, 2023 

Re: Lot 30 Vested Property Rights Application Narrative 

On behalf of the owner of Lot 30, MV Lot 30, LLC, we have submitted an application to secure vested property 
rights for the current site-specific development approval Lot 30 which consist of the following: 

1. The Design Review Board (DRB) approved the Final Architectural Review on October 7, 2021 allowing
for the construction of a new multi-family building consisting of 16 Condominium Units, and one
Employee Condominium Unit as well as the conversion of the commercial space in the existing building
on Lot 30 to two employee housing units (these are in addition to the one employee condominium unit
already in the existing building). [16 Condominium Units + 4 Employee Condominium Units total]

2. Alternative Parking Plan Specific Approval for 1.2 spaces per unit.
3. Ordinance No. 2021-13 Approving a Density Transfer and Rezone at Lot 30 Increasing Density to 16

Condo Units and 4 Employee Condo Units.  While this Ordinance was recorded on March 14, 2022 at
reception number 475634 and is not subject to expiring due to the recording, this is a key piece to the
site specific development plan for Lot 30 in that the Final Architectural Review occurred simultaneously
with this rezoning ordinance.

4. January 20, 2022, Class 1 Minor Revision Approval to Final Architectural Review.
5. Class 1 Renewal Application for extension of Final Architectural Review for an additional six months to

October 7, 2023, granted by the Town on February 13, 2023.
6. February 25, 2022, Approval of Surface Parking on Lot 30 to serve the existing building until Lot 30 is

fully developed.
7. Development Agreement with the Town regarding parking on Lot 30 not being sold or otherwise

conveyed and remaining as common elements to Lot 30 (final agreement is pending with the Town and
is a condition of approval for the Alternative Parking Plan Specific Approval and Final Architectural
Review Approval and will be submitted when completed).

8. Development Agreement with the Town regarding the requirement that the existing commercial space
be converted to the two outstanding employee housing units within 5 years of the issuance of a
Certificate of Occupancy for the development at Lot 30 (final agreement is pending with the Town and
is a condition of approval for Ordinance No. 2021-13 and will be submitted when completed).

EXHIBIT A

~ 
James Mahoney P~C~ 



  
www.telluriderlaw.com 
James Mahoney, Esq. 

 

PO Box 1902                                                                                                                      970.708.5070 
Telluride, Colorado 81435                                                                                     jmahoney@telluriderlaw.com 
 
 
 
 

Pursuant to the Community Development Code (“CDC”) in order for the Town to approve a vested property rights 
application the Town must consider the following criteria: 

a. A vested property right is warranted in light of relevant circumstances such as the size and phasing of 
the development, economic cycles and market conditions:  

i. Applicant:  The development is of a significant size and is phased in that there is an 
existing building with one employee housing unit and one commercial unit and an 
approved new building that will consist of 16 condo units and one employee condo unit.  
Ordinance 2021-13 clearly contemplates the development pursuant to the Final 
Architecture Review Approval in that it references and requires a development agreement 
to guarantee the conversion of the existing commercial space to two employee condo 
units.  Further, the existing financial and financing markets over the past year and 
uncertainty into the future as well as the tight trade and labor markets may make 
construction and construction financing difficult for the near term, warranting a three-
year vested rights in the above noted approvals.   

b. The site-specific development plan is consistent with public health, safety, and welfare: 
i. Applicant:  Extension of the current approvals would not negatively impact public health, 

safety or welfare as they were discussed and approved with the same considerations and 
standards.  No changes have altered this analysis.   

c. The site-specific development plan provides for the construction and financing of improvements and 
facilities needed to support the proposed development: 

i. Applicant:  The construction plans are near building permit plan set ready and provide for 
the construction of the project.  The Owner is confident that with its financing 
relationships if granted the three-year vested rights financing of the construction will be 
feasible.   

d. The site-specific development plan meets the criteria for decision for a concurrent, required 
development application(s): 

i. Applicant:  There are no concurrent development applications as the site-specific 
development plans outlined above are already currently approved.   

e. The proposed vested property rights meets all applicable Town regulations and standards: 
i. Applicant:  At the time of their approvals the site-specific development plans outlined 

above were approved as meeting all applicable Town regulations and standards as does 
this application.   

The CDC also requires two general standards regarding document notation and duration of vested rights consideration.  
First the CDC states that each document that comprises a site-specific development plan shall contain the following 
language:   

~ 
James Mahoney P~C~ 



  
www.telluriderlaw.com 
James Mahoney, Esq. 

 

PO Box 1902                                                                                                                      970.708.5070 
Telluride, Colorado 81435                                                                                     jmahoney@telluriderlaw.com 
 
 
 
 

Approval of this site-specific development plan may create a vested property right pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-68-101 
et seq. and subject to the Town of Mountain Village’s Community Development Code.  

The Applicant and Owner request that upon approval of this application the resulting ordinance would have the 
above required language and that the applicant shall add to all approval letters and plans that consist of the site-
specific development plan the above required notation as is consistent with prior vested rights approvals of a 
similar nature.  As for duration, the typical vesting period is three years; however, the applicant would be willing 
to accept a reduced vesting period of one year from October 7, 2023 but in no case would consideration need to be 
given to vesting beyond three years.   

As you can see the above listed documents which constitute the site-specific development plan for lot 30 taken as 
a whole describe with great certainty the type and intensity of use for Lot 30.  They are coordinated to all work 
together and the applicant believes it would not only be in the applicants interest to get vested property rights for 
this project, but it would be in the Town’s and communities best interest as there exists an approved coordinated 
plan that is acceptable to the community, meet all standards of approval, was not controversial and would not 
require the town staff, boards and Council to process and review an entire new application should the approvals 
expire.  For these reasons the Applicant and Owner request that the Town grant the three-year vested rights 
requested herein.   

 

 Included Documents: 

i. 1996 Lot 30 and 11 Replat Rec#308008 
ii. 2021 Lot 30 Density Transfer and Rezone Ordinance (No. 2021-13) Rec # 475634 
iii. Notice of Action FAR and Density Transfer Notice of Action (includes parking specific 

approval) 
iv. DRB Approval Extension 2.13.23 (with full approved plans). 
v. O1.20.22 NOA Class 1 Minor Revision Lot 30 98 Aspen Ridge (with full approved plans) 
vi. BLDG98 Floor Plan Options (satisfying condition of approval with related emails) 
vii. Surface Parking Notice of Action by Town 
viii. ISP Lot 30 

~ 
James Mahoney P~C~ 



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-___ 

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO APPROVING A VESTED PROPERTY RIGHTS EXTENSION FOR LOT 30, TDB 

ASPEN RIDGE DRIVE 

RECITALS 

A. The Town of Mountain Village (the “Town”) is a legally created, established, organized and
existing Colorado municipal corporation under the provisions of Article XX of the Constitution of
the State of Colorado (the “Constitution”) and the Home Rule Charter of the Town (the
“Charter”); and,

B. Pursuant to the Constitution, the Charter, the Colorado Revised Statutes and the common law, the
Town has the authority to regulate the use and development of land and to adopt ordinances and
regulations in furtherance thereof; and,

C. MV Lot 30 LLC (“the Applicant”) is the owner of record of real property described as Lot 30,
Town of Mountain Village as further described on the plat recorded on December 2. 1991 in Plat
Book 1 at Page 1208 at Reception Number 274123 (the “Property”); and,

D. The Design Review Board approved an application in October 2021 for a development consisting
of  a total of Sixteen (16) Condominium Units and two (4) Employee Condominiums; and,

E. Town Staff acting as DRB approved an extension to the application on February 13, 2023 allowing
for renewal of existing class 3 DRB final approval for a period of six (6) months expiring on
October 7, 2023; and,

F. The Applicant submitted a Vested Property Right Extension development application on April 28,
2023 seeking a further extension of the Vested Property Right to October 7, 2026 (the “Vested
Property Rights Extension Application”); and,

G. The Vested Property Rights Extension Application has been processed and evaluated pursuant to
the Town of Mountain Village Community Development Code (the “CDC”); and,

H. The Design Review Board conducted a public hearing on the Vested Property Rights Extension
Application in accordance with the CDC on August 3, 2023 and with public notice of such
application as required by the public hearing noticing requirements of the CDC. The DRB
considered the Applications, testimony, and public comment and recommended to the Town
Council that the Vested Property Rights Extension Application be approved with conditions
pursuant to the requirement of the CDC; and,

I. At its regularly scheduled meeting held on August 17, 2023 the Town Council conducted a first
reading of an ordinance and set a public hearing, pursuant to the Town Charter.

J. The meeting held on August 17, 2023 was duly publicly noticed as required by the CDC Public
Hearing Noticing requirements, including but not limited to notification of all property owners
within 400 feet of the Property, posting of a sign and posting on the respective agendas.

K. The Town Council finds the proposed Vested Property Rights Extension Application meets the
Vested Property Rights criteria for decision contained in CDC Section 17.4.17 as follows:

EXHIBIT B



 
 

2 

1. A vested property right is warranted in light of relevant circumstances, such as the size and 
phasing of the development, economic cycles, and market conditions.  

2. The site-specific development plan is consistent with public health, safety, and welfare.  
3. The site-specific development plan provides for the construction and financing of 

improvements and facilities needed to support the proposed development. 
4. The site-specific development plan meets the criteria for decision for a concurrent, required 

development application(s); 
5. The proposed vested property right meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED THAT THE TOWN COUNCIL HEREBY 
APPROVES THE APPLICATION SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS. 
 

1. The Town shall publish a notice in the newspaper of record within 14 days of approval a notice 
describing that a vested property right has been created extended consistent with CDC Section 
17.4.17 (E)(4). 

2. All previous conditions of approval from the original 2021 Design Review approval remain 
applicable for any future development.  

Section 1.  Vested Property Right Extension 
 
A. The Vested Property Right is hereby extended for a period of three (3) additional years until October 

7, 2026.  

Section 2.  Ordinance Effect 
 
All ordinances, of the Town, or parts thereof, inconsistent or in conflict with this Ordinance, are hereby 
repealed, replaced and superseded to the extent only of such inconsistency or conflict. 
 
Section 3.  Severability 
 
The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the invalidity of any section, phrase, clause or portion 
of this Ordinance as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or 
effectiveness of the remainder of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective on September 21, 2023 following public hearing and approval by 
Council on second reading. 
 
Section 5.  Public Hearing 
 
A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the 17th day of August 2023 in the Town Council Chambers, 
Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd, Mountain Village, Colorado 81435. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of the Town 
of Mountain Village, Colorado on the 17th day of August 2023. 
 
 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 



 
 

3 

COLORADO, A HOME-RULE 
MUNICIPALITY 
 

By: ________________________________ 
Martinique Davis Prohaska, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
 
 
HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, 
Colorado this 21st day of September 2023 
 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE 
MUNICIPALITY 

 
By: ________________________________ 
Martinique Davis Prohaska, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
 
 
Approved as To Form: 
 
____________________________ 
David McConaughy, Town Attorney 
 
 
 
 
I, Susan Johnston, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado 
(“Town") do hereby certify that: 
 
1.  The attached copy of Ordinance No.__________ (“Ordinance") is a true, correct and complete copy 
thereof. 
 
2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading with minor amendments and 
referred to public hearing by the Town Council the Town (“Council") at a regular meeting held at Town 
Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on __________________, 2023, by the 
affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows: 
 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Martinique Davis Prohaska, Mayor     
Scott Pearson, Mayor Pro-Tem     
Tucker Magid     I I I I 



 
 

4 

Peter Duprey     
Patrick Berry     
Harvey Mogenson     
Jack Gilbride     

 
3.  After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public hearing, 
containing the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the subject matter of the 
proposed Ordinance was posted and published in the Telluride Daily Planet, a newspaper of general 
circulation in the Town, on _____________________, 2023 in accordance with Section 5.2b of the Town 
of Mountain Village Home Rule Charter.   
 
4.  A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the Town 
Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on 
_________________, 2023.  At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and 
approved without amendment by the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town 
Council as follows: 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Martinique Davis Prohaska, Mayor     
Scott Pearson, Mayor Pro-Tem     
Tucker Magid     
Peter Duprey     
Patrick Berry     
Harvey Mogenson     
Jack Gilbride     

 
5.  The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me as Town 
Clerk, and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this _____ day 
of ____________, 2023. 

 
____________________________ 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 

 
(SEAL)  

I I I I 



Page 1 of 5 

AGENDA ITEM 12 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICE 

PLANNING DIVISON 
455 Mountain Village Blvd. 

Mountain Village, CO 81435 
(970) 728-1392

TO: Mountain Village Town Council  

FROM: Amy Ward, Community Development Director 

FOR: Regular Town Council Meeting; August 17, 2023 

DATE: August 11, 2023 

RE: Consideration of a Resolution regarding a Variance request to allow for an 
ADU on a lot of less than .75 acres for Lot 360, 122 Rocky Road 

PROJECT GEOGRAPHY 
Legal Description:  LOT 360 
TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN 
VILLAGE FILING 26 ACC TO 
PLAT BK 1 PG 1229 AND 
1230.CONT 0.690 ACRES KNA 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
PLAT BK 1 PG 1918 
Address: 122 Rocky Road 
Applicant/Agent: Narcis Tudor, 
Narcis Tudor Architects 
Owner: Jena Karcazes 
Zoning: Single-Family 
Existing Use:  Vacant 
Proposed Use: Single-Family  
Lot Size: .69 acres 
Adjacent Land Uses: 

• North: Single-family
• South: Vacant
• East: Single-Family
• West: Single-Family

ATTACHMENTS 
Full Architectural Plan set can be found here. 
There were no public comments received prior to this written memo 

Case Summary: 

APPLICATION OVERVIEW: New Single-Family Home on Lot 360 

Figure 1: Vicinity Map 

PROJECT \ 

LOCATION \ 

https://townofmountainvillage.com/site/assets/files/41778/design_review_lot_360-_tbd_snowfield_dr.pdf


Page 2 of 5 
 

Narcis Tudor of Narcis Tudor Architects (Applicant), on the behalf of Jena Karcazes is 
requesting Design Review Board (DRB) approval of for a new single-family residence 
located at Lot 360, 112 Rocky Road. The applicant also has an additional concurrent 
application for a Variance to allow for a detached ADU on a lot of less than .75 acres.  
 
The lot is 30,056 square feet (.69 acres) and is zoned Single Family. The proposal includes 
a single-family development with an approximate 6,923 livable square feet, with a 988 
square foot garage. The structure is a two-story home. The proposed detached ADU is 
445 square feet. 
 
The ADU as proposed: 

 
Here’s a better overall view of the ADU as it relates to the main home (ADU circled 
in red): 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CARETAKER COTTAGE - NW VIEW CARETAKER COTTAGE - NE VIEW 
NTS NTS 



Page 3 of 5 
 

Site Plan (ADU circled in red): 
 

 
 
 
And the Floorplan: 

 
 
Staff Note: It should be noted that reasons for approval or rejection should be 
stated in the findings of fact and motion. 
 

BEDROOM I LOUNGE 

FOYER BATH 

□ 
CARETAKER COTTAGE - FLOOR PLAN 
NTS 



Page 4 of 5 
 

Variance discussion  
Detached ADU on a lot less than 0.75 acres. 
These criteria shall be met for the review authority to approve a variance for a detached 
ADU on a lot less than 0.75 acres: 
 
a. The strict development application of the CDC regulations would result in exceptional 
and undue hardship upon the property owner in the development of property lot because 
of special circumstances applicable to the lot such as size, shape, topography or other 
extraordinary or exceptional physical conditions; 
 
Staff: The proposed ADU is separated from the primary structure by exterior parking, 
sharing a retaining wall. The application materials provided by the applicant do not 
demonstrate the rationale for the ADU being a separate structure. There are other 
places within lot that could presumably accommodate the size of the structure, such as 
adjacent to the eastern or northern walls of the primary structure. At this time, it is 
assumed the detachment is due to preference.  
 
b. The variance can be granted without substantial detriment to the public health, safety 
and welfare; 
 
Staff: The detached nature of the structure does not pose a threat to public health, 
safety, or welfare. 
 
c. The variance can be granted without substantial impairment of the intent of the CDC; 
 
Staff: The CDC requires ADUs to be attached to the primary structure to minimize the 
development footprint and visual impact of the structure. The site plan presents a 
contiguous development footprint between the ADU, driveway, and primary structure, 
which is unlikely to be minimized if the ADU were to be attached to the structure. Due to 
the relatively small size of the ADU and lower height, staff does not believe the 
separation between the primary structure and ADU causes visual impact beyond what 
would occur if the structure were attached.  
 
Staff does not believe the granting of this variance represents a “substantial impairment 
of the intent of the CDC” as the proposed structure adheres to a majority of the design 
regulations if the CDC, as outlined throughout this memo.  
 
d. Granting the variance does not constitute a grant of special privilege in excess of that 
enjoyed by other property owners in the same zoning district, such as without limitation, 
allowing for a larger home size or building height than those found in the same zone 
district; 
 
Staff: Because the rationale behind the separation of the primary structure and ADU 
appears to be out of preference, the Council should discuss whether granting the 
variance constitutes special privilege in excess of that enjoyed by other property owners.   
 
e. Reasonable use of the property is not otherwise available without granting of a 
variance, and the variance being granted is the minimum necessary to allow for 
reasonable use; 
 
Staff: It is assumed that the site plan could be adjusted to accommodate a single-family 
home and attached ADU, which is the reasonable use of the property under the CDC. 
The DRB should discuss whether they believe the current proposal, a detached ADU, 



Page 5 of 5 
 

falls within the definition of reasonable use and whether a variance is necessary to 
achieve reasonable use. 
 
f. The lot for which the variance is being granted was not created in violation of Town 
regulations or Colorado State Statutes in effect at the time the lot was created; 
g. The variance is not solely based on economic hardship alone; and 
h. The proposed variance meets all applicable Town regulations and standards unless a 
variance is sought for such regulations or standards. 
 
Staff: Staff believes the criteria for f-h are all being met. 
 
DRB Recommendation: 
The Design Review Board voted unanimously to recommend approval of the Variance at 
the August 3, 2023 regular DRB meeting.  
 
Proposed motions: 
 
If Council chooses to approve the ADU variance, then staff suggests the following motion:  
 
I move to approve the Resolution that allows for a detached ADU on a Lot of less than .75 
acres for the project located on Lot 360, 112 Rocky Road based on the evidence provided 
in the staff memo of record dated July 24, 2023 and the findings of this meeting.  
 
If DRB choses to deny the ADU variance, then staff suggests the following motion: 
 
I move to deny the Resolution that allows for a detached ADU on a Lot of less than .75 
acres for the project located on Lot 360, 112 Rocky Road based on the evidence provided 
in the staff memo of record dated July 24, 2023 and the findings of this meeting, and direct 
staff to return on September 21, 2023 with a Resolution for Denial. 
 



 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO 
APPROVING A VARIANCE OF THE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE MUNICIPAL CODE TO ALLOW A 

DETACHED ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT ON LOT 360 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-______ 
 

WHEREAS, Jena O Karcazes Revocable Trust (the "Owner") is the owner of certain real property described as Lot 
360, Mountain Village, Colorado, Assessor Parcel No. 477909126360, and commonly known as 112 Rocky Rd. (the 
"Property"); and 

 
WHEREAS, Narcis Tudor of Narcis Tudor Architects, LLC (the "Applicant"), with the Owner's consent, has 

submitted a request to the Town of Mountain Village (the "Town") for a variance to allow for a detached Accessory 
Dwelling Unit on a parcel of less than .75 acres (the "Variance Request") found in the Town's Community Development 
Code ("CDC") for the purpose of developing a single-family home with a detached Accessory Dwelling Unit on the 
Property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Variance Request consists of the materials submitted to the Town, plus all statements, 

representations, and additional documents of the Applicant and its representatives made or submitted at the public hearings 
before the DRB and Town Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the DRB held a public hearing on August 3, 2023, to consider the Variance Request and testimony and 

comments from the Applicant, Town Staff, and members of the public, and voted 7-0 to issue a recommendation of approval 
to Town Council of the Variance Request; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council held a public hearing on August 17, 2023 to consider the Variance Request, the 

DRB's recommendations, and testimony and comments from the Applicant, Town Staff, and members of the public, and 
voted unanimously to approve this Resolution ("Variance Approval"); and 

 
WHEREAS, the public hearings and meetings to consider the Variance Request were duly noticed and held in 

accordance with the CDC; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has considered the criteria set forth in Section 17.4.16 of the CDC and finds that 
each of the following have been satisfied or will be satisfied upon compliance with the conditions of this Resolution set 
forth below: 

 
1. The strict development application of the CDC regulations would result in exceptional and undue hardship upon 
the property owner in the development of property lot because of special circumstances applicable to the lot such 
as size, shape, topography or other extraordinary or exceptional physical conditions; 

 
2. The variance can be granted without substantial detriment to the public health, safety and welfare; 

 
3. The variance can be granted without substantial impairment of the intent of the CDC; 

 
4. Granting the variance does not constitute a grant of special privilege in excess of that enjoyed by other property 
owners in the same zoning district, such as without limitation, allowing for a larger home size or building height 
than those found in the same zone district; 

 
5. Reasonable use of the property is not otherwise available without granting of a variance, and the variance being 
granted is the minimum necessary to allow for reasonable use; 

 
6. The lot for which the variance is being granted was not created in violation of Town regulations or Colorado 
State Statutes in effect at the time the lot was created; 

 
7. The variance is not solely based on economic hardship alone; and 

 
8. The proposed variance meets all applicable Town regulations and standards unless a variance is sought for such 
regulations or standards. 



 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council now desires to approve the Variance Request, subject to the terms and conditions 
set forth below. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado, that: 

 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are hereby incorporated as findings of the Town Council in support of the enactment 
of this Resolution. 

 

Section 2. Approval. The Town Council hereby approves a variance to allow for a detached Accessory Dwelling Unit on 
a Lot of less than .75 acres as outlined in the CDC to be constructed on the Property, as described in the Variance Request. 

 

Section 3. Conditions. The Variance Approval is subject to the following terms and conditions: 
 

3.1. The approved detached accessory dwelling unit is valid only with the design presented for Initial DRB review on 
August 3,2023 and is valid only for the 18 month period of that design approval. One 6-month extension of the original 
design review approval is allowable. 

 
 

Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and adoption. 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Town of Mountain Village Town Council at a regular public meeting held on 
June 15, 2023. 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 

David McConaughy, Town Attorney 

By:  
 Martinique Prohaska, Mayor 

ATTEST:  
 

    Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 



,.... j 

Summary of Proposed 
Ordinance 

A Proposed Ordinance to Amend the 
Community Development Code by Adding a 

New Section 17.3.23 Providing Standards 
and Requirements to Grant Variances from . 

the Maximum Building Height In the 
Village Center Zone Set Forth in Section 

17.3.12. 

Agenda Item 13



PREAMBLE to INITIATIVE-PETITION 

WHEREAS the Town of Mountain Village ("Town") is organized and existing under 
Article XX of the Home Rule Cities and Towns provisions of the Colorado Constitution and 
governed by the Town Charter and the Town's Municipal Code ("Code"); 

WHEREAS existing Code Section 17.3.12, Table 3-3, set a maximum building height of 
sixty (60) feet and average building height of forty-five ( 45) feet for the Village Center Zone 
District ("Village Center") to protect majestic views of mountain vistas, rather than allowing the 
Village Center to become another mountain community taken over by high-rise buildings and 
losing the Town's identity as a world class mountain resort; 

WHEREAS on multiple occasions, prior Town Councils have approved buildings in the 
Village Center which exceed the Code height limits, with each such approval being relied on to 
support another, often greater height, for a following building, regardless of opposition from 
neighboring property owners and the resulting negative impact on views; 

WHEREAS existing Code Section 17.3.12 does purport to limit building heights, in 
practice, that Code section is inadequate to prevent multiple approvals of Village Center buildings 
that exceed the current Code height limits; 

WHEREAS initiative-proposed Code Section 17 .3 .23 seeks to restore meaning to existing 
Code Section 17.3.12 by specifying conditions before additional waivers will be granted to 
allows buildings in the Village Center which exceed the existing Code Section 17.3.12 height 
limits; 

WHEREAS the initiative-proposed Code Section 17.3.23 does not prevent quality projects 
from being constructed in the Village Center even though the building may exceed Village Center 
height limits, provided the neighboring property owners are consulted and have a voice on whether 
the proposed building height should remain subject to the current Code Section 17.3.12 to preserve 
majestic mountain views; 

AND WHEREAS initiative-proposed Code Section 17 .3 .23 arose after years of non
enforcement of existing Code Section 17.3.12 building height limits, with the proposed petition
initiated Code section seeking to restore balance between the Town characteristics and views that 
brought residents and visitors to the Town, while providing for variances which will require 
consideration rights of adjacent property owners who purchased their property with the 
reasonable expectation that Code Section 17.3.12 would be enforced in accord with its height 
limits. 

Therefore, should the following citizens' INITIATIVE
PETITION ORDINANCE be adopted to affirm current 
Village Center building height limits and to set express 
conditions for obtaining a variance from the Code established 
height limits? 

YES or NO? 

N 
Q.) 

0.0 
C'1l 

0.. 



Proposed Initiative-Petition 

Be it ordained by an initiative-petition that the following Ordinance, Code 
Section 17.3.23, be enacted. 

Section 17.3.23. A. Notwithstanding Code Section 17.3.12, Town Council, in its discretion, may 
approve by variance building(s) in the Village Center Zone District ("Village Center") that have a 
maximum height up to sixty-six (66) feet and/or a maximum average height up to fifty (50) feet. 

B. Notwithstanding Code Section 17.3.12, Town Council, in its discretion, may approve, by 
variance(s), building(s) in the Village Center which have maximum height(s) or average building 
height(s) equal to or less than the maximum height(s) and average height(s) of existing building(s) 
located on the property that are to be reconstructed or remodeled provided: 

1. A Town approved, Colorado licensed architect, shall measure the proposed maximum 
and average heights of the new or remodeled building(s) and the maximum and average heights of 
the existing buildings that are to be remodeled or reconstructed and certified such heights to the 
Town; and 

2. The same architect shall provide the Town with a notarized statement certifying to the 
Town that the maximum height and average height of the proposed new or remodeled buildings 
will be equal to or less than the maximum height and average height of the existing building(s) on 
the property. 

C. Town Council, in its discretion, may approve by variance(s) building(s) in the Village Center 
which exceed the maximum and/or average heights established by Section 17.3.12 only upon 
compliance with the following conditions. 

1. Applicant must submit a written statement explaining why the requested height is 
necessary, making specific reference to the surrounding topography, adjacent buildings, and 
other factors which applicant believes make the property appropriate for building(s) with higher 
maximum height or higher average height than allowed by Code Section 17.3.12. 

2. Applicant must submit signed and notarized statements of support for the proposed 
maximum height and average height from each neighboring owner of real property which is 
adjacent to the proposed development property. 

a. "Adjacent to" shall be understood as including all separate, real property tax parcels 
which share a common boundary with or otherwise touch part of the proposed development 
property. 

b. Open space, public roads, rights of way, easements, other property owned by the 
applicant and Town-owned property, which properties are located (in whole or in part) 
between the property proposed for development and third-party neighboring property, shall 
not be considered nor prevent the applicant and a third-party neighboring property from 
being deemed 'adjacent to' the proposed development property for purposes of this Section 
l 7.3.23(C)(2) . 

. 3. Applicant must submit signed and notarized statements of support for the proposed 
maximum and average building heights from at least sixty percent ( 60%) of all owners of record 
of real properties located within four hundred ( 400) feet of a boundary of the proposed 
development property. 

a. Owners of individual condominiums shall be considered distinct and separate property 
owners and neither the condominium association nor owner of any common interest 
property shall vote or be considered for purposes of this Subsection 3. 

[ continued to next page] 

M 
(IJ 

tl.O 
C'3 

0.. 



b. The failure of any owner or part owner of a property to vote for or against the proposed 
development within thirty (30) days from delivery of a certified letter advising him of his 
right to vote (and including a copy of this Code Section 17.3.23) shall result in the non
voter's property not being considered in calculation the "sixty percent (60%)" approval 
required in this Subsection 3. 

(4) Applicant shall obtain the names and addresses of owners of record of real property 
which is adjacent to or within four hundred ( 400) feet of a boundary of the proposed development 
property from the office of the San Miguel County Assessor. 

D. After an approximately two (2) year process, the 2011 Town of Mountain Village Comprehensive 
Plan was updated, amended, and approved by Town Council in December 2022. The current Comp 
Plan now better reflects current community values than the prior comp plan. 

1. To respect community values expressed in the 2011 Comp Plan (which was reviewed 
for two (2) years and re-affirmed with minor amendments in 2022) all pre-2011 Comp Plan 
applications for approval of PUD, SPUD or other buildings or projects in the Village Center for 
which no building permit has been acquired as of the effective date of Code Section 17.3.23, shall 
be required to file a new application and be governed by Code Section 17.3.23 and the current 
Comp Plan. 

a. Pre- 201 lapplications, even if favorably reviewed by the Planning Department, 
approved by the ORB, approved by Town Council, approved by Town Ordinance and 
extended by Town Councils shall be and hereby are declared expired and null and void 
as of June 1, 2023, unless prior to that date on-site construction has commenced pursuant 
to a valid Town Building Department building permit issued in accord with all applicable 
standards and conditions of the Town Building Department, 

b. All pre-2011 applications, which are declared null and void pursuant to the prior 
subsection 'a', may file a new PUD, SPUD or other application which shall be evaluated 
in light of the current provisions of the CDC (including this Code Section 17.3.23) and the 
2022 amendments to the Comp Plan. 

c. Nothing in the above subsections a, b or c, shall apply to pending PUD, SPUD or other 
applications for approval of a building or project where the application was filed and 
therefor evaluated by Planning Staff, ORB and Town Council in light of Comp Plan 
provisions 

2. Code Section 17.3.23.is to protect the health and welfare of the Town, its residents, its 
property owners and its visitors; all of whom are vital to the continuing success and vitality of the 
Town. 

a. Absent proper regulation of building heights and enforcement of Code Section 17 .3 .12 
by limiting variances as set forth in Code Section 17.3.23, one of the Town's most valuable 
resources, views of mountain vista, is protected, rather than being replaced by views of 
high-rise buildings, 

b. Code Section 17.3 .23 is for the benefit of the Town, its residents, property owners and 
visitors. 

END OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE 

~ 
OJ 
0.0 
Ci:l 

0.. 



From: John DeGenova
To: mvclerk
Subject: Proposed Ordinance 17.3.23
Date: Thursday, July 27, 2023 2:09:48 PM

Dear Mountain Village,
We have owned our home in Mountain Village for a few years now, and absolutely love the views,
and everything else about Mountain Village.
Our home is currently listed in our family trust, which I believe prevents us from being able to vote
on the proposed ordinance 17.3.23.
We are however, in full support of this ordinance passing.  Please let us know how we can help get
this ordinance passed and keep Mountain Village beautiful.
Thank you,
John and Alison DeGenova
210 Sunny Ridge Place
Unit 20
Moutain Village, CO  81435
 

mailto:JohnDeGenova@outlook.com
mailto:mvclerk@mtnvillage.org


Daniel Jansen 
107 Lupine Lane, Mountain Village, CO 81435 

 jansendan@me.com 
 
 
 
 
Re: Public comment for August 17th meeting of the Mountain Village Town Council 
 
Dear Mayor and Town Council members, 
 
I am a long-term full-time resident of Mountain Village, a former elected official, and an active 
supporter of our environment and our sustainable tourism economy (serving on both the 
Telluride Tourism Board and Colorado Flights Alliance Board). I mention these experiences to 
inform my opinions being shared with you as a private citizen, in writing in advance of the 
meeting, as I will be traveling during this meeting. Two items on your agenda attracted my 
attention. 
 
The citizens’ initiative to limit building heights in the Village Center to 60 feet seems well 
intended in that we all agree on preserving our beautiful environment.  That said, there are 
several concerns it raises in my mind. First, it seems to risk an abdication of some of your land 
use authority.  We elected you to be fully informed and make sound decisions on behalf of our 
community in these complex matters.  This initiative proposes significant restrictions that 
would be met in only the rarest of situations (e.g., 100% approval from contiguous neighbors 
for any height variance, 60% approval from residents within 400 ft, which I think is ~16 acres in 
the dense village core).  Like many of our community members, I trust you to make good 
decisions on our behalf and would not want your authority to be constrained in any way. 
Secondly, this is effectively a de-facto ban on any potential high-end hotels in our region.  As an 
economy that is driven 80% by tourism, we have less hotel rooms than other similar 
destinations, have no five-star branded properties, and have not in fact built any new hotels in 
almost 15 years across the entire region.  We have become very reliant on short term rentals 
(STR’s) to support our economy, which are also being regulated and reduced in number (see 
Telluride’s STR cap). Having met with representatives of leading hotel operators when I was 
Mayor, they said that a certain design and density is needed for the hotel to be viable and to 
earn a five-star branded rating.  A 60-foot height limit would effectively preclude any high-end 
branded hotels, especially since I can only see two viable sites in the region, both in the 
Mountain Village core (109R and 161CR). Finally, the nullification of pre 2011 approved PUDs as 
outlined in this initiative seems to apply to only one project that I know of. This looks like ‘spot 



zoning’ to me.  In summary, I would encourage you to listen carefully to the entire community, 
including those neighbors near any proposed project, maintain your full land use authority, 
support both the environment and our economy, and do not adopt this citizen ordinance. 
 
Which leads to my second commentary on another agenda item involving your review of the 
proposed hotel project on lot 109R, that is intended to have Six Senses as its operator.  This lot 
and project have had a long history with many ups and downs. I have no business dealings with 
the developer or operator, but simply want to see a high-end branded hotel in our community 
to support our sustainable tourism economy (as noted above). Hotels with top operators are 
hard to realize in our community, and we are short on potential locations and options. While 
there is another potential project on 161CR, we are in a period of high interest rates and high 
inflation that will challenge any project’s economics.  Very few hotel projects get built, even 
those that have been “approved” (reference Silverline, Rosewood, Ajax, Hunt Family, etc.) My 
sense is that if this latest attempt to build a high-end hotel fails, we will see another 
development of high end private (often dark) condos.  This would significantly reduce the 
amenities, public benefits, workforce housing and vibrancy of the North end of the Village 
Center. I appreciate that some of the neighbors who bought properties near this long-identified 
hotel development lot have concerns.  I would encourage you to balance those concerns with 
the needs of the broader community and economy.  I would encourage you to support this 
hotel project. 
 
Thank you for your service and kind regards, 
 
Dan Jansen 
 



Agenda Item 14 

1 

2877133.2

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
PLANNING DIVISION 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

(970) 728-1392

TO: Mountain Village Town Council 

FROM: Amy Ward, Community Development Director & Michelle Haynes, Assistant 
Town Manager 

FOR: August 17, 2023 

DATE: August 1, 2023 

RE: Consider Action on a fourth major Planned Unit Development Amendment to the 
Lot 109R Planned Unit Development, commonly called the Mountain Village 
Hotel, by Tiara Telluride, LLC  

____________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

Legal Description:  Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village according to the Plat recorded on  
March 18, 2011 in Plat Book 1 at Page 4455, Reception No. 416994, County of San Miguel, 
State of Colorado,  
And portions of Lot OS-3BR-2, a tract of land lying in the se quarter of section 34 t43n r9w 
nmpm san miguel county colorado described as follows tract os 3br2 town of mountain village pl 
bk 1 pg 4455 recpt 416994 march 18 2011 cont 1.969 acres mol 
Address:  TBD 

[intentionally left blank] 

The applicant requests a Major PUD Amendment to the 109R Planned Unit Development 
(PUD), formerly known as the Mountain Village Hotel PUD first approved in 2010, but 
subsequently received three PUD amendments to extend the approval to September of 
2023.   A letter of intent has been provided by a luxury hotel brand called Six Senses. The 
project will also include public plaza improvements, a public bathroom, a market, two retail 
spaces, fine dining, a bar and a conference/wedding space on the 6th floor. The application 
also contemplates a major subdivision to adjust boundaries around the property with the 
Town of Mountain Village, Village Center open space property, to be reviewed by separate 
agenda item. The use elements consist of 50 guaranteed hot beds, 31 lodge units, 20 
condominiums, 18 employee dormitories and two employee apartments, hotel amenity 
spaces and public commercial areas as identified above. Improvements to village center 
plazas are otherwise a requirement of Village Center development. A discussion of 
variations and public benefits will be the focus of Town Council review. 



2 

2877133.2

Owner/Applicant:  Tiara Telluride, LLC 
Agent:  Ankur Patel & Matt Shear 
Zoning:  Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
Proposed Zoning: Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) 
Existing Use:  Vacant, used for temporary 
surface parking 
Approved Use Pursuant to PUD 
Development Agreement:  66 efficiency 
lodge units; 38 lodge units, 20 condominium 
units, one employee apartment and 20,164 
sq. ft. of commercial space. 
Proposed Use: 50 efficiency lodge units, 18 
lodge units, 20 condominium units, 31 lodge 
units, 18 dormitory units, 2 employee 
apartments and approximately 22,609 square 
feet of commercial space.   
Site Area:  .825 acres proposed to change to .833 via a major subdivision application 
Adjacent Land Uses:  

• North:  See Forever, Village Center 
• South:  Village Center, mixed use 
• East: Multi-Family and Single Family, vacant 
• West:  Peaks, Village Center 

RECORD DOCUMENTS 
• Town of Mountain Village Community Development Code (as amended)
• 2011 Comprehensive Plan
• Town of Mountain Village Home Rule Charter (as amended)

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Ordinance

a. Development Agreement
i. Final PUD Plans -

1. Revised architectural design plan set dated 7.19.23
a. Design Documents
b. Construction Mitigation

2. Hotel Covenant
3. Easement Agreement (Pedestrian and Maintenance Access) –

See Forever
4. Easement Amendment (Plaza Usage)
5. Easement Amendment (Permanent Structures)
6. Easement Amendment (Vehicular Access)
7. Easement Agreement (Utilities)
8. License Amendment/Partial Termination (Utilities)
9. Termination of Easement (Mountain Village Boulevard Work)
10. Amendment to Pedestrian Access Easement Reserved in Deed to

Tract 89-A
ii. Exhibit B-1, Schedule of Improvements
iii. Exhibit B-2 Westermere Breezeway Improvements
iv. Exhibit C. Area of Plaza Improvements – insert at second reading

Shirana
Westermere

109R109R 

Shirana

Westermere
 



3 

2877133.2

v. Exhibit D-Employee Housing Restriction – to be attached as an exhibit to the
Development Agreement at second reading. The required elements of the
deed restriction are described in the Development Agreement.

2. Legal Tiara Narrative dated 8.8.23
3. Design Tiara Narrative dated 7.19.2023
4. Design Variation Tiara Narrative dated 7.19.2023
5. Link to Full Tiara Design Submittal includes the following subcategories

a. Replat and Rezone Materials
b. Final DRB cloud revisions
c. Exhibits
d. Will serve letters
e. 3D View
f. Geotechnical Engineering Studies

6. Denial Resolution
7. Comprehensive Comparison 2010 to 2023 PUD Dev agreement rev. 8.10.23
8. Referral Comments

a. Kirn_7.31.23
b. Kjome_7.31.23
c. SGM – Traffic Impact Study
d. Vault _TIS Responses
e. Johnson_7.25.23
f. SGM referral comments 5.26.23 (from June Hearing)

9. Public Comments (received prior to 5:00 pm on August 10th, 2023)
a. Nictakis 8.2.23
b. Raiffe 8.4.23
c. Witherspoon 8.8.23
d. Koitz 8.7.23
e. Lalani 8.8.23
f. Wolf 8.8.23
g. Thorpe 8.9.23
h. Infantino 8.10.23
i. Butler 8.10.23
j. Jansen 8.10.23
k. Ward 8.10.23

10. Original PUD Agreement and associated documents found at the following link
11. Six Senses Letter of intent dated 4.12.22 on file with the planning department

109R MOUNTAIN VILLAGE HOTEL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT HISTORY 
• Lot 109R PUD was approved in 2010 by Resolution 2010-12088-31 which included a

replat inclusive of Village Center open space.
• 1st amended PUD agreement via a Major PUD amendment process extended the

approval to expire on December 8, 2015, approved by ordinance.
• 2nd amended PUD agreement via a Major PUD amendment process extended the

approval to expire on December 8, 2022, approved by ordinance.
• 3rd amended PUD agreement via a Major PUD amendment processes extended the

approved to expire on September 8, 2023 – pending litigation.  (Note these extensions
apply to the 2010 PUD.  If Council approves the current application, the extension to
September 8, 2023, will be moot because the current amendment application was filed
while the vested rights remained in effect and would supersede the 2010 approval.)

https://mtnvillage.hosted-by-files.com/SHARED%20FOLDER%20TOWN%20COUNCIL%20PACKET/Lot%20109R%208.17.23%20TC%20Hearing/2023.07.19%20Lot%20109R2%20Town%20Council%20First%20Reading%20Submittal.pdf
https://mtnvillage.exavault.com/p/Lot%20109R%20Approved%20PUD%20Dev%20Agmt%20and%20Design%20Docs%20(2010%20with%20extensions%20approved)


4 

2877133.2

MEETING HISTORY 
There have been two work sessions regarding the proposed major PUD amendment held on 
the following dates: 

• September 16, 2021 Town Council
• December 16, 2021 Town Council and Design Review Board Joint Meeting

The following additional meetings have occurred: 
• May 5, 2022, Design Review Board Recommendation to the Town Council regarding the

Major PUD Amendment inclusive of the initial design review. – Continued to May 31, 2022
• May 31, 2022, Design Review Board Recommendation to the Town Council regarding the

Major PUD Amendment inclusive of the initial design review – APPROVED 3-1, Bennett
dissenting.

• June 16, 2022, Town Council consideration on first reading of an ordinance – Council to
provide direction regarding the public benefits, development overall and variations
requested. Council to provide guidance as to the major subdivision request. This was
continued to August 18, 2022.

• August 18, 2022 Continued first reading of an ordinance and ratification of consent to a
major subdivision application by the Town Council that includes Village Center active open
space – consent provided. First reading continued to the November 17, 2022 Town Council
meeting in order to provide time for the application to submit the major subdivision, rezone
and final design review materials.

• November 17, 2022 Continued First Reading of an ordinance continued to the January 19,
2022 regular Town Council meeting in order to provide the necessary time for the DRB to
provide recommendations on the major subdivision, rezone and provide the final DRB
design review.

• December 1, 2022 DRB meeting to provide recommendations to Town Council on the major
subdivision, rezone and final design review. The Final design review was approved with
conditions. The DRB provided a positive recommendation regarding the subdivision and
rezone to the Town Council.

• January 19, 2023 First reading of an ordinance regarding the major PUD amendment
integrating the subdivision, rezone and final design review. Council voted 6-1 to direct staff
to prepare a Resolution to deny the Ordinance to be evaluated at the March 16, 2023
regular Town Council meeting and directing staff to work with the applicant to present the
changes that have been made to the PUD prior to a vote to deny.

• March 16, 2023 Town Council hearing, Consideration of a Denial Resolution Regarding a
Major PUD Amendment. Council voted unanimously to continue this item to June 15, 2023.

• June 15, 2023 – The motion for denial was withdrawn. Council voted 6-1 to continue the
item to the August 17, 2023 regular Town Council Meeting.

• August 17, 2023 CURRENT Town Council will again review the PUD amendment. If the
PUD is approved on first reading, the major subdivision and density transfer and rezone will
also be considered. Staff will ask that Council continue the subdivision application so that
this approval could be heard with the 2nd reading of both the PUD Amendment and the
Density Transfer and Rezone. If the denial Resolution is approved, the Council should pass
motions to deny the subdivision and density transfer and rezone applications as moot.

Anticipated Additional Meeting Schedule 
• Town Council 2nd reading of an ordinance (if approved on 1st reading) for Town Council

to evaluate the Major PUD amendment – all draft legal documents, subdivision plat as
applicable, development agreement, easements, agreements in draft form for review.
Date TBD



5 

2877133.2

• Consideration of a Resolution regarding a major subdivision (continued from August 17,
2023), Date TBD

• Consideration of a second reading of an ordinance (if approved on 1st reading)
regarding the rezone application associated with the major subdivision

Staff comments will be in blue. 

REVISED APPLICATION OVERVIEW – AUGUST 17, 2023 
There have been no substantive design changes since June 15, 2023 Town Council Hearing. 

• Updates to this design set focus on further revisions to the proposed construction
mitigation plan and the provision of an enhanced traffic study to further understand
circulation and potential traffic impacts in and around the proposed development.
Otherwise, substantial edits have been made to the development agreement and a
revised hotel covenant has been provided.

CONSTRUCTION MITIGATION 

• The biggest change in this is that the applicant is no longer requesting a permanent
tower crane that would necessarily swing over the Shirana building. Instead, they
propose the use of smaller temporary cranes that have the capability of avoiding Shirana
airspace entirely.

• They are proposing circulation through the construction site for larger vehicles such as
linen service by having two gates for circulation through the site. More details as to how
this would work can be finalized prior to building permit. As it relates to bus turn around,
the Town plans to have bus service terminate at Blue Mesa instead of continuing to
north village center for the duration of construction.

• Pedestrian access stair on SE corner will need be installed and functional prior to
blocking any access from See Forever (pedestrian path shown below in orange)

' 

~ 
'<, 

' \ 
~1::-



6 

2877133.2

A temporary lift near the Shirana stair and a small delivery vehicle being made available by the 
applicant are proposed solutions to help with merchant deliveries in the North Village center as 
deemed necessary. However, neither of the delivery zones indicated in blue below are on Town 
or applicant owned property. The applicant would need to ensure the allowable use of these 
zones with the landowner. 

TRAFFIC STUDY 
• The applicant worked with the Town and Town consultants (SGM) to develop a scope of

work that was agreed upon by all parties. The applicant collected data in late June and
early July of 2023. The data included manual turning movement counts and machine
traffic counts at three intersections and two sections of Mountain Village Blvd. as shown
below:

• Based on this study the applicant, on recommendation from their traffic consultant, is
proposing a 4-way stop at the Sunny Ridge/MV Blvd/Porte Cochere area. Town staff

= 7-Day 24- u~ roadway coun 



7 

2877133.2

agrees that this will increase safety at this intersection and is very similar to the existing 
condition at the Madeline Hotel. 

• SGM concluded that “the proposed uses at Lot 109R can be accommodated by the
existing roadway system with appropriate mitigation measures.”

HEIGHT AND SQUARE FOOT CALCULATIONS 
At the June 15, 2023 hearing, there were questions raised in public comments regarding heights 
and square footage calculations. 

• The height calculations as presented meet the requirements as currently described in
the CDC. As it relates to maximum height, the applicant has clearly demonstrated that
no part of the building exceeds the maximum requested height of 88’ 9” through a 3-D
planar model that projects this height from both proposed and existing grades (no
portion of the roof breaks the plane). Additionally, during construction the applicant will
be required to demonstrate with a survey that they are not exceeding the requested
maximum height.

• Average height for this building was calculated using the following from 17.3.11.C.2 “On
complex buildings with multiple heights and/or buildings with multiple heights on sloping
sites, the average building height calculation shall be determined by taking
the average of heights at equal intervals around the perimeter of a building. Those
intervals shall be no more than twenty (20) feet. When multiple roofs occur within any
interval, the height for that interval shall be measured from the finished grade or natural
grade (whichever is most restrictive) to the highest point on the rooftop, roof ridge,
parapet or topmost portion of the structure. For purposes of determining the
maximum average height on complex buildings, a roof shall have a horizontal projection
of at least ten (10) feet. This definition does not intend to allow strategies to circumvent
the intention of the maximum average height limitation through such relationships as
high-rise structures surrounded by low secondary roofs.” Staff feels that the calculations
provided demonstrate an accurate average height per the requirements of the CDC as
per above.

• Standard regional practices for calculating commercial square footage for the purposes
of determining parking requirements are being followed.  Staff calculates the commercial
square footage of areas open to the public such as and not limited to restaurants and
bars.  Storage and back of house are not calculated for the purpose of determining
parking within these areas, as there are no public utilizing those areas.  Common
commercial areas or commercial areas that are considered support for the overall
function of the hotel are also not attributed a calculation for the purposes of assigning

2 SE PEFIS?ECTII/E 



8 

2877133.2

additional parking requirements, such as hallways or support areas.  High intensity use 
is defined as the services areas in restaurants and bars for example and calculated at 1 
parking space per 500 square feet.  Low intensity use is defined as spaces such as retail 
or offices and calculated at 1 per 1000 square feet.  

• Calculations of square footage for the employee dorms include the dorm rooms
themselves, the shared common areas such as kitchen facilities, gym, game room,
library, cinema and laundry. They also include the necessary egress such as hallway,
stairs and elevator. The measurements are taken to the outside face of wall which is
common practice in representing square footages in commercial leases, for instance.
This development will have a requirement of the number of units as proposed with this
application (18 dorms and 2 employee apartments). They are also held to the square
footage as proposed with an allowable small variation as described in the development
agreement. Staff is comfortable with the demonstration of square footage for employee
housing as proposed.

Ownership and Ongoing Maintenance – Many of the questions within the earlier drafts of the 
development agreement centered around ownership and ongoing maintenance of various 
improvements. These questions have been answered and are codified within the development 
agreement as such. 

o Snowmelt boilers – to be installed, owned and maintained by the applicant, now
sited on 109R property

o Public restrooms – to be constructed, owned and maintained by applicant.
Permanent easement for public use

o Public Parking – to be constructed, owned and maintained by applicant. Public
parking fees go to the applicant to cover maintenance and repair costs for the
public parking so that this will not be the responsibility of the Town. Permanent
easement for public use. Fees not to exceed 20% greater than Heritage Parking.

o Stormwater and water utilities as they run through building. To be owned and
maintained by applicant. Permanent easement for emergency access if
necessary benefitting the town.

o Public use of the restaurant, bar, pool and spa is better addressed in the
development agreement.

MAJOR SUBDIVISION CONCURRENT APPLICATION 
This application to amend the 2010 PUD includes a request to acquire certain land owned by 
the Town and presently zoned as Village Center Open Space for portions of Lot 109R owned by 
the applicant and to give back portions of 109R in roughly equal proportion. See Table 14 
below. This is further described in the large-scale subdivision application which is addressed in 
a separate staff report. The land to be deeded to the applicant would become part of the land to 
be developed subject to the Amended PUD, and the land to be deeded to the Town would 
become Active Open Space, Village Center. A small portion of land currently shown as 109R is 
part of the active open space right of way, and would be adjusted to reflect this. The Town 
Council has the discretion to approve or deny the large-scale subdivision, specifically the 
consideration of town owned land, and has no legal obligation to deed any land to the applicant. 
Therefore, as a preliminary matter, the Town Council should decide whether it is willing to deed 
Town-owned land to the applicant to facilitate this development. 

If the Town Council does not agree with use of town land to facilitate this PUD amendment, then 
the application should be denied.  



9 

2877133.2

MAJOR PUD AMENDMENTS PROPOSED BY CATEGORY - OVERVIEW 
1. Density and Use
2. Parking
3. Public Benefits Comparison and List
4. Variations & Specific Approvals
5. Subdivision
6. Public Improvements
7. Criteria For Review
8. Other Considerations
9. Analysis
10. Proposed Motion

DENSITY AND USE 

Table 1. Approved Density pursuant to the 2010 PUD 
Type of Zoning 
Designation 
Unit 

Total Zoning 
Designation 
Units 

Person 
Equivalent per 
Unit Type 

Total Person Equivalents 

Efficiency 
Lodge 

66 .5  33 

Lodge 38 .75  28.5 
Condominiums 20  3  60 
Employee 
Apartments 

1  3  3 

Commercial 20,164 sq ft 0 0 
TOTAL 124.5 

The Town will utilize 4 employee condominium zoning designations with density certificate #27 
with a person equivalent of 12 person equivalents and rezone the density to employee 
apartment and employee dormitory 

Table 2. Density Certificate #27 – owned by the Town of Mountain Village 
Zoning Designation Total Number of 

Units 
Person Equivalent Total Person 

Equivalent 
Employee 
Condominium 

13 3 36 

Table 3. Use of Density Certificate #27 
Zoning 
Designation 

Total Number 
of Units 

Person 
Equivalent 

Total Person 
Equivalent 

Total Person 
Equivalent 

Employee 
Condominium 

13 3 39 

Utilized for 
161CR 

-9 3 -27

Utilized for 
109R 

-4 3 -12

TOTAL 0 0 0 
Note: Density Certificate #27 will be voided once all the density is used. 



10 

2877133.2

Table 4. 109R employee apartment and dormitory density existing and proposed 
Zoning 
Designation 

Total Number 
of Units 

Person 
Equivalent 

Total Person 
Equivalent 
Existing 

Total Person 
Equivalent 
Needed 

Employee 
Apartment – 
platted and 
unbuilt 

1 3 3 

Employee 
Apartment- 
through the 
rezone and 
density transfer 
process 

1 3 3 

Employee 
Dormitory 
through the 
rezone and 
density transfer 
process 

18 1 18 

Notes: 
1. 12 person equivalents of employee condominium will be rezoned to 1 employee apartment

and nine employee dormitories with a total person equivalent of 12.
2. Town Council will create the remaining employee dormitory bonus density zoning

designations of nine employee dormitories with a person equivalent of nine.
3. Density certificate #27 and bonus density creates the employee zoning designations needed

for this project.
4. A density certificate will be issued with the remaining density as shown in table 5.below

issued to the owner of the property.  The owner owns the density in the density bank and it
is unassigned to any specific lot.

Table 5. Density to be transferred into the density bank 
Zoning 
Designation 

Number of Units Person 
Equivalent 

Total Person Equivalent 

Efficiency 
Lodge 

16 .5 8 

Lodge 7 .75 5.25 

Table 6. 109R Original Zoning Designations and Density 
Type of Zoning 
Designation 
Unit 

Total Zoning 
Designation 
Units 

Person 
Equivalent per 
Unit Type 

Total Person Equivalents 

Efficiency 
Lodge 

66 .5 33 

Lodge 38 .75 28.5 
Condominiums 20 3 60 
Employee 
Apartments 

1 3 3 

Commercial 26,468 sq ft 0 



11 

2877133.2

TOTAL  124.5 

Table 7. Proposed Zoning designations and density 
Type of Zoning 
Designation 
Unit 

Total Zoning 
Designation 
Units 

Person 
Equivalent per 
Unit Type 

Total Person Equivalents 

Efficiency 
Lodge 

50 .5 25 

Lodge 31 .75 23.25 
Condominiums 20 3 60 
Employee 
Apartments 

2 3 6 

Employee 
Dormitory 

18 1 18 

Commercial 22,609 0 
TOTAL  132.25 

Density Summary 
The applicant has demonstrated that they have adequate density for the rezone and density 
transfer request.  Adequate density is demonstrated so long as the Town is willing to create 
bonus density and use existing employee density in the density bank owned by the town, or a 
combination thereof. 

PARKING 
Table 8. Parking Table 

Parking Requirement 
per type 

Number of 
Units 

Required Provided 

Commercial 
Space 

low and high 
intensity 1 per 
1,000 and 1 per 
500 sq ft  

22,608 sq 
ft 

29 29 

Condo 1 per unit 20 20 20 
Efficiency 
Lodge 

.5 per unit 50 25 25 

Lodge .5 per unit 31 15.5 16 
Public Parking  (48 prior PUD) 48 48 48 
Employee 
Dormitory 

1 per unit 18 18* 18 

Employee 
Apartment 

1 per unit 2 2 2 

HOA 
Maintenance 
Vehicles 

1-5 spaces 1 1-5 1 

Total 158.5 159 
Note: See parking table in applicant’s narrative. 
*The DRB established dormitory parking at 1 space per dormitory unit at their May 31, 2022
meeting.

The applicants meet the parking requirements and are providing the 48 public parking spaces 
pursuant to the original PUD agreement. Under variations and pursuant to the PUD agreement, 



12 

2877133.2

the applicant requests an ability to remove up to five parking spaces of commercial parking in 
exchange for a one-time payment of $100,000 per parking space as a payment in lieu for each 
space fewer than 29 provided. 

The applicants are providing commercial parking pursuant to the CDC at 1 space per 500 
square feet for high intensity use of commercial space and 1 space per 1000 square feet of low 
intensity use of commercial space. 

The applicant and town agreed that the developer will own and maintain the parking area.  
Public parking requirements  are found in Section 6.1 of the development agreement. Public 
parking as part of this development was a critical public benefit because of the need for public 
parking in the Village Center and the displaced parking that has occurred over time with infill 
development in this area. 

PUBLIC BENEFITS   
The table below illustrates the difference between the original PUD development agreement 
public benefits, variations and specific approvals and those requests through the Major PUD 
amendment identified with the application and revised between the June 2022 meeting and the 
June 2023 Town Council meeting. CDC Section 17.4.12(E)(6) requires that the Council make a 
finding that the “PUD provides adequate community benefits.” Adequacy may be determined in 
the Council’s reasonable discretion and does not necessarily correspond to a dollar amount. 
Some of the benefits listed below aren’t easily quantified into money. 

New Public Benefits provided as part of this PUD amendment are highlighted in yellow. 

Table 10. Public Benefits Complete List 
Item Value Notes 
Onsite deed restricted housing 
an additional 1 employee 
apartment and 18 dormitory 
units that sleep up to 3 
employees 

$9,950,250 2010 PUD provided for 
one employee apartment 
was to be provided 
pursuant to the 2010 
PUD. 

Mitigation Payment $996,288 Note requirements for 
additional payment per 
employee after the 
second anniversary of 
Certificate of Occupancy 

48 Public Parking Spaces $4,800,000 
50 dedicated hotel rooms 2010 PUD provided for 

40 dedicated 
hotel rooms. 

5 star luxury hotel operator 
assured  

See Hotel Covenant 

 Hotel Covenant See Hotel Covenant 
Furniture Package See Hotel Covenant 

Hotel Operator and amenity 
space requirements 

See Hotel Covenant 

-



13 

2877133.2

Westermere Façade 
Improvements 

$75,000 

Shuttle service to the Montrose 
airport for hotel guests 
Village Pond Improvements 
Payment 

$250,000 

Public Restroom $154,781 
Conference Room Space - use 
for the public at market rates 

n/a 2010 PUD provided for 
conference room space. 
Change is to provide for 
market rates. 

Public Access from Port 
Cochere to See Forever Plaza 
through the building (easement) 

$75,000 Access direct from Porte 
Cochere into 
See Forever Plaza 

Valet parking n/a 
Various easements (like the 
See Forever and town access 
to See Forever) 

n/a 

Additional 38 Lodge 
Units 

n/a Note: Can be individually 
owned. Due to securities 
law requirements, the 
lodge units cannot be 
required to be in the 
rental management 
program, and there 
cannot be a legal 
restriction prohibiting use 
as a primary residence. 
However, Tiara will 
encourage participation in 
the rental management 
program, and expects 
that a significant portion 
of these units will be 
available for rental 
through the rental 
management program or 
otherwise. Details of the 
incentives for owners to 
participate appear in the 
Hotel Covenant. 

SUBTOTAL $16,051,319 

Table 11. Public Improvements that are considered public benefits pursuant to the 2010 
PUD agreement 
Item Notes 
Plaza Improvements (See 
Forever walkway and Shirana 
area) 

 $1,109,561 

I 
I I 

I 

L_ __J 

~ 

I J 

~ 

( 
I 



14 

2877133.2

 Trash Enclosure on OS-3-BR-2 $840,625 2010 PUD provides for 
use of $250,000 of 
housing mitigation 
payment for the trash 
enclosure. 

 Snowmelt and improving the 
fire lane 

$189,871 

 SUBTOTAL $2,140,057 

Table 12. Public improvements also considered a public benefit in 2023 
Item 
Stairway from the 89 lots to OS-3BR-2  $150,000 
 Village Pond Improvement Payment $250,000 
 Sidewalk from Shirana to MV Blvd $81,146 
 SUBTOTAL $589,871 

TOTAL PUBLIC BENEFITS  $18,781,247* 
*This value is given to provide general context of public benefit and is not a precise value.

D. LIST OF ALL VARIATIONS AND SPECIFIC APPROVALS PURSUANT TO THE PUD
AMENDMENT 

New variations pursuant to the PUD Amendment are highlighted in yellow. 

Table 13. Variations and Specific Approvals 
Number Variation Requests 
1 Variation/waiver to LUO Section 4-308-9 to allow an increase in maximum height to 88’ – 

9”and maximum average height of 65’ – 2.9”. 
2 A request for Town Council to create bonus density or MV density in the density bank to be 

transferred to the property for employee apartment or employee dormitory use 
3 A variation to CDC Section CDC Section 17.4.12(O)(2 ) to not require 67% of all owners to 

consent to a PUD amendment application. See development agreement for details. 
4 A request for easements for retail awning overhangs, subgrade improvements, access and 

utilities on Town open space 
5 Conference Center to be offered to the public at market rate rather than comparable to the 

Conference Center.  
6 Garage Drive Aisle reduced from 22 feet to 18 feet approved by the fire marshal per CDC 

17.5.8.C.3 in discrete locations 
7 Design Variations – subject to change with final architectural design review 

• Roof Form per CDC 17.5.6.C. 
• Wall material (no stucco proposed) per CDC 17.5.6.E.
• Glazing – uninterrupted areas of glass that exceed 16 square feet per CDC

17.5.6.G.5 
• Decks and Balconies – long continuous bands per CDC 17.5.6.I. 
• Commercial, Ground Level and Plaza Area Design Regulations – Storefront

Design, Color Selection per CDC 17.5.15 
• Commercial, Ground Level and Plaza Area Design Regulations To allow for

a ski locker private unit on a Primary Pedestrian Plaza 
• Exterior Lighting, some variations subject to staff and one DRB approval 
• Driveway grade 

Specific Approvals – subject to change with final architectural design review 

1111 

I 

~ 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I I 
I I 

~ I 
I I 

~ I 

~ I 
I I 
I I 

I 



15 

2877133.2

1 • Materials- TPO membrane roof, metal fascia and soffit
2 • Solar roof tiles in the Village Center
3 • Road and Driveway Standards – 2 curb cuts
4 • Tandem Parking

E. MAJOR SUBDIVISION REQUEST AND ASSOCIATED REZONE
See major subdivision and rezone item under separate agenda item. 

Under separate consideration Town Council will review the proposed major subdivision. 

Table 14. Approximate Before and After Lot Areas 
Proposed Lot/Tract Name Proposed Zoning Proposed Size 

(sq.ft.) 
Net  Change 
(sq.ft.) 

Lot 109R2 PUD 36319 339 INCREASE 
Tract OS-3BR-2R-1R AOS Village Center 82584 420 DECREASE 
ROW Tract AOS Right of Way 81 81 INCREASE 

The applicants agreed to purchase a portion of town land approximately 551 square feet which 
consisted of an area otherwise previously depicted to be used by easement as a garage venting 
area.  The applicants have agreed to purchase this land at approximately $194 a square foot for 
a total of $106,894 for the additional acquisition of this portion of town owned land replat into 
109R-2. The cost per square foot is based upon the cost per square foot when Tiara Telluride, 
LLC purchased the overall property/site specific development plan. This monetary amount is 
required to be paid to the town prior to issuance of a building permit.  The draft approval 
ordinance will include specific authorization for this conveyance of town-owned property.  As 
with the land swap mentioned above, the Town Council is not legally obligated to agree to sell 
this land to the applicant. 

Easements 
Requested use of town property have been re-evaluated and reduced.  
A summary of the resulting land area is described above.  The applicant also intends to use 
portions of OS-3BR-2R-1 near the town trash shed and Shirana for the following uses: 

1. vehicular and pedestrian access (valet and back of house uses)
2. relocation of the Shirana SMPA transformer out of the proposed fire lane (see drawings)

The applicants also request placement of SMPA transformers on OS 3J, owned by the Town of 
Mountain Village, adjacent to See Forever. 

Additionally, the applicant is proposing to extend areas of the garage sub-grade below town 
owned portions of OS-3BR-2R-1 to allow for: 

1. Sub-grade parking
2. additional back of house/mechanical room

These uses are allowed, with Town Council approval and associated easement and use 
agreements.   

Finally, there are additional existing easements that will be modified consistent with the PUD 
amendment application, see list in subdivision application materials and attachments listed 
above.  

I I 



16 

2877133.2

F. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
There is a combination of public improvements that constitute required public improvements,
public benefits, and public improvements consistent with the original PUD agreement as part of
this Major PUD amendment application.

Table 15. Public Improvements pursuant to the major subdivision application 
MV Blvd snowmelted sidewalk and lighting 
Sidewalk, lighting and a snowmelted 
sidewalk Along Mountain Village Blvd 

$612,030 

Utility relocations/installation as approved by 
Town Council* 

$2,500,000 

Repaving Mountain Village Blvd Replacing a 
top course of asphalt over 2,309 square 
yards of asphalt  

$79,213 

TOTAL $3,191,243 
*This includes utility relocates that benefit the development as well as some services that also
serve the North Village Center area.

Table 16. Other public improvements required 
Snowmelting OS-3BR-2 (access area 
near trash enclosure; south of the trash 
enclosure) 

$382,575 

Repaving OS-3BR-2(access area 
near trash enclosure; south of the trash 
enclosure) 

$276,129 

Village Center improvements that extend 
beyond the original boundary identified in the 
2010 PUd 

$829,219 

TOTAL $1,487,923 

TOTAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $4,679,166* 
* The applicant’s engineer will need to certify the estimated construction costs, including a contingency, to
determine the appropriate security to be posted by the developer prior to building permit. The number
here may change.

Table 17. Provided Amenities of Note but do not constitute public benefits 
Sustainabilty Fund committed to be spent 
locally (A Six Senses requirement) 

$350,000 

Silver LEED Certified $2,460,000 
TOTAL $2,801,000 

Table 18. Other considerations as part of the PUD agreement 
Adding additional approx.: 551 sf of land 
to the subdivision 

Paid for at same rate as the original PUD 
$194 a square foot 

TOTAL $106,894 

Note. Installation of a 4-way stop at the porte cochere area could be considered additional 
public improvements and costs, although expected to be fairly minor, would be borne by the 



17 

2877133.2

applicant. This is captured by a condition of approval and would be added to the public 
improvement list. 

REVIEW STANDARDS 
With this revised submittal, staff feels that this application provides more clarity of what exactly 
is being proposed in terms of the design of the project, proposed benefits and improvements, 
and variation requests pursuant to the PUD process, and legal obligations of both the Town and 
the applicant. Given clarity on the details of the proposal, Council can better evaluate whether 
this application meets the following criteria for review. 

PUD CRITERIA FOR REVIEW 

Criteria for Decision.  

1. The proposed PUD is in general conformity with the policies, principles and standards set
forth in the Comprehensive Plan;

At the time the Comprehensive Plan was adopted, those properties, like 109R, were not
included in the Village Center Development Table with site specific polices and actions
because it had an existing PUD entitlement for a hotel mixed use development. The vision
therefore is based upon the original development agreement, subject to PUD amendments
pursuant to the CDC, which is a public process with DRB and Council review.

The application needs to however demonstrate general conformance more broadly with
relevant sections of the Comprehensive Plan. The application is generally consistent with
the Comprehensive Plan Village Center Subarea Goals which are as listed:

Village Center [Comprehensive Plan] Subarea Goals
• Develop additional spa and restaurant spaces designed to fit the needs of each hotbed

project – this is being met
• Prioritize pedestrian circulation to and within Mountain Village Center - this is being met
• Integrate deed restricted dorm units into future hotbed projects – this is being met
• Provide a coordinated, combined development plan between multiple property owners

on Parcel D Pond Lots, Parcel E Le Chamonix, Parcel F Lot 161-CR and Parcel G
Gondola Station to maximize the number of hotbed units, attract a significant flagship
hotel operator and provide enhanced retail, restaurant, open space and recreational
amenities n/a

• Provide direct, year-round, at-grade pedestrian connection for all hotbed projects in
Mountain Village Center by sidewalks and appropriate dark-sky lighting – this is being
met

• Develop an improved wayfinding program specifically to direct visitors to key activity
centers such as Mountain Village Center – coordinate wayfinding with the Town as a
condition of approval.

The additional standards to determine the projects general conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan are the Comprehensive Plan Project Standards as listed at CDC Section 
17.4.12 H. and outlined as follows. It’s very clear that these standards apply to new PUD 
application specifically the MPUD and SPUD is noted; it’s less clear in the CDC whether these 
standards apply to a PUD amendment as these standards were adopted after the original 2010 
PUD.  For context, staff is including the standards here.  



18 

2877133.2

1. Visual impacts shall be minimized and mitigated to the extent practical, while also providing
the targeted density identified in each subarea plan development table. It is understood that
visual impacts will occur with development.

2. Appropriate scale and mass that fits the site(s) under review shall be provided.

3. Environmental and geotechnical impacts shall be avoided, minimized and mitigated, to the
extent practical, consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, while also providing the target density
identified in each subarea plan development table.

4. Site-specific issues such as, but not limited to the location of trash facilities, grease trap
cleanouts, restaurant vents and access points shall be addressed to the satisfaction of the
Town.

5. The skier experience shall not be adversely affected, and any ski run width reductions or
grade changes shall be within industry standards.
This development is not slope slide.

2. The proposed PUD is consistent with the underlying zone district and zoning designations
on the site or to be applied to the site unless the PUD is proposing a variation to such
standards;

This application proposed variations to the PUD agreement and underlying zoning as
described above and contained within the Ordinance.

3. The development proposed for the PUD represents a creative approach to the development,
use of land and related facilities to produce a better development than would otherwise be
possible and will provide amenities for residents of the PUD and the public in general;

Public Comment and some past Council comments have questioned whether the proposed
development is creating a better development than would otherwise be possible.  With the
revised application, this is to be further discussed by Town Council.

4. The proposed PUD is consistent with and furthers the PUD purposes and intent;

The PUD Purpose and Intent is found at 17.4.12.A.1-6.
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) Regulations is to:
1. Permit variations from the strict application of certain standards of the CDC in order to

allow for flexibility, creativity and innovation in land use planning and project design;
2. Allow for a creative planning approach to the development and use of land and related

physical facilities to produce a better development;
3. Provide for community benefits;
4. Promote and implement the Comprehensive Plan;
5. Promote more efficient use of land, public facilities and governmental services; and
6. Encourage integrated planning in order to achieve the above purposes.

The applicants have increased their public benefits and overall reduced the number of 
variations requested since the January hearing.   



19 

2877133.2

The purposes and intent listed in numbers 2 and 3 are more subjective and should be 
discussed by Council to determine whether they are being met. Does this approach to 
creative planning make for a better development than would otherwise be possible, and 
does the proposal provide adequate community benefits? 

5. The PUD meets the PUD general standards;

PUD General Standards are found at 17.4.12.I. which includes and is not limited to the
following requirements:

Sub 5. Rezone. The development must rezone to the PUD Zone District which is a rezoning
process, that does not require a separate application but does require the PUD Major PUD
amendment to be approved by Ordinance. Staff note: The development will maintain its
current zoning as site specific Planned Unit Development.

Because this is a PUD amendment, the town has taken the position that an amended PUD
amends the site-specific PUD and does not rezone the property to the PUD Zone District.

Sub.7. Density. Recognizes that a density transfer does not require a separate application.

Sub 8. Landscaping and Buffering. The project shall provide buffering of uses from one
another to minimize adverse impacts and shall create attractive public spaces consistent
with the character of the surrounding environment, neighborhood and area.

Plaza areas and Mountain Village Boulevard create buffers while the applicant has provided
an integrated landscape plan that works with the rest of the Village Center plaza areas.
Further revisions from the DRB approved landscape plans were a condition of approval,
This will be for staff review prior to building permit.

Sub 9. Infrastructure. The development proposed for the PUD shall include sufficient
infrastructure, including but not limited to vehicular and pedestrian access, mass transit
connections, parking, traffic circulation, fire access, water, sewer and other utilities.

Vehicular access maintains the circulation at OS3-BR2 for a bus turn around. (48) public
parking spaces are provided inside the garage, an improvement on the surface parking
spaces available today. The Town engineer addressed a number of concerns related to
utilities, slopes and grades, and circulation.  A condition of approval is that the applicant
address all engineering review concerns by the town engineer prior to issuance of a building
permit.

6. The PUD provides adequate community benefits;

The applicants have enhanced their list of public benefits for this public meeting. Council will
need to determine if the total package is “adequate.” The draft ordinance includes a finding
that this has been met and includes a list of proposed public benefits. The Council should
determine whether any public benefits should be added to or deleted from the list included in
the ordinance.

7. Adequate public facilities and services are or will be available to serve the intended land
uses;



20 

2877133.2

Location, maintenance and access to existing, relocated and abandoned utilities need to be 
better understood including stormwater management. This comment was provided 
previously and remains the same. 

8. The proposed PUD shall not create vehicular or pedestrian circulation hazards or cause
parking, trash or service delivery congestion; and

A formal traffic and circulation study was conducted by the applicant and the Town
engineer’s comments indicate that the proposed uses can be accommodated by the existing
roadway system with appropriate mitigation measures.

9. The proposed PUD meets all applicable Town regulations and standards unless a PUD is
proposing a variation to such standards.

This is being met, subject to conditions of approval and requested variations allowed by the
PUD amendment process.

The application is generally consistent with CDC Section 17.  Required Improvements for 
Adjacent Plaza Areas are listed below: 

7. Required Improvements for Adjacent Public Areas
a. All new development on lots within the Village Center shall be required to construct

improvements that enhance and improve the adjacent open space, town plaza areas
and common area, as applicable.

b. The required improvements shall extend thirty (30) feet from the building
dripline and/or encompass the area of disturbance, whichever is greater.

c. Open space areas shall be enhanced as determined by the review authority by
additional landscape plantings, appropriate revegetation and/or the creation of
new town plaza areas and/or trails and other improvements as envisioned in the
Comprehensive Plan.

d. Town plaza areas shall be improved with new or repaired paver systems and
landscaping as determined by the Town, having as a goal the enhancement and
improvement of town plaza areas consistent with the Design Regulations.

e. Unless otherwise determined by the Town to be unnecessary or unwanted,
snowmelt systems shall be required to be installed by the developer and operated
and maintained by the subsequent lot owner(s) for all new or improved town
plaza areas unless such areas are landscaped with planting beds or other
landscaping that does not necessitate snow melting.

f. Design and construction specifications shall be reviewed and approved by
applicable Town departments consistent with this CDC and applicable industry
construction standards.

g. Adjacent plaza area improvements shall be maintained by the development’s
owners’ association. Any such maintenance responsibilities shall be specifically
set forth in the development agreement as well as the governing documents of the
owners’ association.

h. The developer shall obtain adjacent property owner permission when the adjacent
areas to be improved and maintained are owned by a third party, non-Town
entity.

Staff finds these requirements are being met.



21 

2877133.2

STAFF ANALYSIS 

Staff is satisfied that a majority of PUD materials are now provided so that Town Council can 
evaluate the application.  Below is the same summary of issue provided at the June hearing but 
with additional comments per their revised application. 

Parking Variation 
The applicants are currently meeting the parking requirements, however are requesting that if 
necessary they be allowed to remove up to (5) five commercial spaces and will provide a 
payment in lieu fee of $100,000 per space.  

Density and Use.   
Staff supports the proposed density and uses broadly and applaud the breadth of retail, 
restaurant and bar, conference, plaza and spa amenities.  

1. Staff support Town Council creating bonus density or utilizing our remaining employee
density in the density bank, or a combination of both related to the employee housing onsite
being constructed.

2. The applicants have otherwise demonstrated they have the necessary density for the
rezone and density transfer portion of the PUD amendment.

3. Staff recommends the applicant cannot reduce either the square footage committed or
number of deed restricted units part of the PUD agreement and public benefit. Within the
development agreement the project is allowed a variation in the square footage of employee
housing of no more than 2% and no allowable change to number and type of unit.

4. Lodge units can be independently owned and used as a primary residence, however the
applicant has incentives for owners to use onsite management for short term rentals when
lodge units are not owner occupied as part of the hotel covenant.

Trash Building.  The trash building as proposed meets the needs of the Town and with the 
reduction in square footage and also serves to provide some much-needed short-term surface 
parking. There is also a small space provided for Plaza Services equipment or other Town use. 
Tiara removed the boilers from the town trash shed and relocated them within their property. 
Town staff  requested that a clause be added into the development agreement, noting that if the 
Town were to find an alternative solution to the existing Town trash facility that occurred offsite, 
that the applicant need simply make a one time payment to the Town of the amount indicated in 
Exhibit B1. This modification is reflected in Section 7.1.15 of the draft Development Agreement. 

Public Improvements.  The applicants have agreed to construct, pay for, own and maintain all 
snowmelt boilers, the public parking and the stormwater and sewer lines at its sole cost and 
expense. 

Encroachments. Tiara has significantly reduced its request for encroachments from prior 
submissions. The below grade uses appear to already be covered by an easement agreement 
that would need to be revised to reflect new boundaries if approved. Town Council can discuss 
the other areas requested to be encumbered with uses or structures that benefit the hotel 
building. 

As a review the encroachments being requested include: 
Temporary: 

• soil nails under mountain village boulevard for shoring
• construction staging and crane swing



22 

2877133.2

Permanent: 
• plaza awnings – above grade
• sub surface improvements – below grade
• vehicular access – across OS-3BR2 for garage access and loading dock access
• utilities on OS-3A

Parking.  Tiara has accommodated the original 48 public parking spaces within the garage 
area.   

Public Benefits.  Tiara has increased the public benefits package primarily by compensating 
the town for 551 square feet of land, and constructing all necessary new sidewalk along 
Mountain Village Boulevard, snow melting the sidewalk which will be continuous around the 
curve of Mountain Village Boulevard. Tiara has also agreed to pay for the snowmelt of town 
properties (sidewalks and plazas) and adjusted their landscape design in the village center 
areas to accommodate the town’s uses and pedestrian and maintenance uses. Finally the 
original PUD only provided one employee apartment and Tiara has increased this to a total of 2 
employee apartments and 18 employee dormitories. 

Circulation and Construction Mitigation. The multitude of uses in such a small area is 
complicated. Through the traffic circulation study provided, the applicant seems to have 
demonstrated that all of these uses can happen concurrently. A formal traffic study was 
conducted and is provided for your review. Town engineers have reviewed the study and 
indicate that the plan as proposed for circulation can be accommodated with existing road 
infrastructure. As it relates to construction mitigation, the plans have been further refined and 
staff would continue to work with the applicant to ensure necessary concerns of the Town and 
neighboring properties are met. They have removed the permanent tower crane from their 
proposal.  Refining the utility transition plan for uninterrupted utilities that serve the north village 
center area, will also be a critical piece of this project.  

Engineering Comments. The revised utility plans are acceptable to Town staff as proposed. 
Prior to building permit, final engineered plans of all utility connections, plan and profile of 
access and sidewalks as well as engineered drawings of snowmelt systems will need to be 
reviewed and approved by staff and the town engineers. Access to snowmelt boilers needs to 
be better understood. 

Pedestrian Paths. The town recognizes that significant plaza improvements are provided and 
considered public benefits as part of the original and amended PUD.  Development of 109R is 
critical to filling in the North Village Center, establishing a primary pedestrian route from See 
Forever thru Westermere to the Village Pond Plaza and connecting to the Village Center.  The 
stair access on the SE side of the project also helps circulate pedestrians through the North 
Village Center.   

Lodge Units Lodge units have traditionally functioned as short term one-bedroom rental units in 
mixed use development in the Village Center.   Due to securities law issues, requiring lodge 
units to operate as such is problematic, but the Hotel Covenant includes incentives for all 
owners to participate voluntarily. 

The applicants agree that the lodge units will be incentivized to be in the rental pool by the 
provisions outlined in the development agreement and hotel covenant however it should be 
understood that the lodge units could be a person’s primary residence.   



23 

2877133.2

Subdivision.  If Town Council is not supportive of the modification of town owned land 
boundaries as part of the major subdivision application and proposed design, this should be 
discussed as part of the PUD review. 

STAFF RECOMMENDED MOTION 
After hearing testimony, review of the application and evaluating the criteria for review, Town 
Council can move to approve, deny, or continue the application. A motion for approval would be 
a motion to approve the ordinance on first reading, with the findings and conditions in the 
ordinance. A motion for denial would be a motion to approve the denial resolution. A motion to 
continue should continue the hearing to a date certain. If Council moves to approve either the 
ordinance or the resolution, Council has the option to add or delete conditions or findings or make 
other edits as part of the motion. Alternatively, during the discussion for any motion, Council may 
direct staff to add, delete, or revise certain findings, conditions, or contractual terms with updated 
language to be presented and considered at second reading but pass the ordinance “as is” on 
first reading in the meantime. 

If Council moves to approve a first reading of an ordinance, staff requests the following additional 
findings and conditions to be incorporated between first and second readings. 

Findings: 

1. Village Center Open Space if rezoned, does not require replacement open space
pursuant to CDC Section 17.3.10

2. Town Council incorporate the DRB’s recommended conditions of approval as part of this
motion. To the extent there are duplicate conditions, duplications need not be repeated
in the approvals.

3. Town Council incorporate the major subdivision approval and associated rezoning with
conditions as part of this motion. To the extent there are duplicate conditions,
duplications need not be repeated in the approvals.

4. The applicants have affirmed this is not a phased development.

Conditions: 

1. Revise the public improvements exhibit to include the Installation of a 4-way stop at the
porte cochere and associated cost.

2. The Design Plans provided to Town Council replace the DRB final design plans, as they
have addressed conditions of approval and revised the plans.

3. All conditions of the DRB approvals are conditions of this PUD amendment.
4. In accordance with the Design Regulations, this approval does not allow any violation of

the CDC or design regulations or imply any approval of any errors that may be contained
in this application that violate the CDC and/or the Design Regulations.

5. The 50 hotel rooms and employee housing need to be constructed concurrent with the
residential development pursuant to CDC Section.

6. Payment of public benefits fees must be paid at building permit issuance.
7. Address all town engineer concerns as stated in the referral comment letter from SGM

dated May 26, 2023  and included in this packet and record.



24 

2877133.2

a. Construction Mitigation conditions are included in the Ordinance  additionally
Construction mitigation plan review is required to begin six months prior to an
anticipated building permit submittal.

8. All Public Improvements to be accepted to the Town shall be constructed by the
Developer at its expense pursuant to plans and specifications approved by the Town
Engineer, and the Developer shall provide financial guarantee to secure the construction
and completion of such improvements based on engineering cost estimates to be
approved by the Town Engineer. The procedures for providing and releasing security,
inspection and acceptance of public dedications, and construction warranties shall be
addressed in the Development Agreement and/or a supplement thereto to be executed
prior to issuance of a building permit when final plans and specifications and cost
estimates are complete. The town will accept improvements but will require the
developer to construct, operate and maintain such improvements as outlined in the
development agreement.

9. All representations of the Applicant, whether within the submittal or at the DRB or Town
Council hearing or meetings from the December 1, 2022 DRB meeting, are conditions of
this approval.

10. Any retaining walls necessary for proposed utilities on Lot OS-3J will have stone
cladding to match existing See Forever hardscaping.

11. Prior to the recordation of the Ordinance approving the Extended Vested Property Rights
and site-specific development plan, the Owner shall revise all documents to include the
following statement: " Approval of this site-specific development plan may create a
vested property right pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-68-101et seq. and subject to the Town of
Mountain Village's Community Development Code."

12. [Additional conditions to be added based on DRB and Staff Recommendations as further
refined by the Town Council.]

SAMPLE APPROVAL MOTION 

I move to approve an ordinance on first reading to approve a Fourth Major PUD amendment for 
Lot 109R and portions of OS-3BR-2, and approve a vested property right for a site-specific 
development plan, with the findings and conditions stated in the ordinance.  I also direct staff to 
include the additional findings and conditions stated in the staff memo prior to the second reading. 
I also move to ask the town clerk to set a public hearing for September 20, 2023, for second 
reading. 

ALTERNATIVE DENIAL MOTION 

A denial resolution is found in the material.  If Town Council chooses to deny the application 
findings that had been provided previously are stated in the denial resolution. Town Council can 
add or subtract findings as appropriate. 

Denial.  I move to deny the application for a Fourth Major PUD amendment and to adopt the 
Resolution of denial with the findings and reasons stated in the resolution. 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 

2665937.11

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-__ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A MAJOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

AMENDMENT FOR LOT 109R AND PORTIONS OF VILLAGE CENTER OPEN SPACE TO 
BE CONVEYED TO THE DEVELOPER 

WHEREAS, Tiara Telluride, LLC (“Developer”) is the owner of certain real property described as 
Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village, Colorado, according to the plat recorded as Reception No. 416994 
(“Lot 109R”) and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Mountain Village (“Town”) is the owner of certain real property adjacent 
to Lot 109R described as open space parcel OS-3BR-2, according to the plat recorded as Reception No. 
416994 (the “Town Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has submitted an application to replat Lot 109R and the Town Property 
(the “Major Subdivision Application”) for the purpose of a land exchange where the Town would convey 
portions of the Town Property described in Exhibit A to become part of Lot 109R (the “Contributed Town 
Property”) and the Developer would convey portions of the current Lot 109R also described in Exhibit A 
to become part of the Town Property (the “Replacement Town Property”) (Lot 109R and the Contributed 
Town Property as combined may be referred to herein as the “Property,” and the Town Property and the 
Replacement Town Property combined may be referred to herein as the “Town Open Space Parcel”); and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Ordinance is to act on the Developer’s application for a Major 
Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) Plan for the Property, and the Town Council will simultaneously be 
considering a separate ordinance concerning the required rezoning of the Replacement Town Property to 
bring the Replacement Town Property into the same zoning designation as the Town Property (the 
“Rezoning Ordinance”); and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council will consider acting on the Major Subdivision Application by 
resolution to coincide with second reading of this Ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, the Town previously approved a PUD Plan for Lot 109R by Resolution 2010-1208-
31 (the “2010 PUD”) and, in connection therewith, the Town and Developer’s predecessor-owner of Lot 
109R entered into a Development Agreement dated March 18, 2011, which was recorded as Reception No. 
416997 (the “2011 Development Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2015-07, the Town approved a First Amendment to the 2011 
Development Agreement extending vested rights relating to the 2010 PUD until December 8, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2020-16, the Town approved a Second Amendment to the 2011 
Development Agreement extending vested rights relating to the 2010 PUD until December 8, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2022-10, the Town approved a Third Amendment to the 2011 
Development Agreement extending vested rights relating to the 2010 PUD until September 8, 20231; and 

1 Ordinance 2022-10 has been challenged in pending litigation. See Scythian Ltd, et al. v. Town of Mountain Village, 
et al., Case No. 2022 CV 30045, San Miguel County District Court. If Ordinance 2022-10 is found by the court to be 
invalid, such a finding will not invalidate or otherwise affect the approval of this Ordinance. This Ordinance and the 
Amended and Restated Development Agreement will supersede the Third Amendment to the 2010 PUD and related 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

WHEREAS, the Developer has applied to the Town for approval of a Major Amendment to the 
2010 PUD to include the Town Contributed Property and to make adjustments to design and other matters 
for the development of a mixed-use project consisting of hotel rooms, employee housing, public amenities 
including restaurants and a spa, along with commercial and retail space, underground parking garage, 
outdoor landscaped areas, plazas, and related improvements to be operated by a five-star luxury brand hotel 
operator (the “Project”) as more particularly described in the application, which consists of the materials 
submitted to the Town and itemized on Exhibit B, plus all statements, representations, and additional 
documents of the Developer and its representatives (the “Major PUD Amendment Application”) at the 
public hearings before the Design Review Board (“DRB”) and Town Council, which are incorporated 
herein by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the DRB held public hearings regarding the Major PUD Amendment Application on 
May 5, 2022 and May 31, 2022, and voted 3-1 to issue a recommendation of approval to the Town Council 
concerning the Application, subject to further consideration by the DRB for final design review and for its 
recommendation regarding the related Major Subdivision Application; and    

WHEREAS, the Town Council considered this Ordinance on first reading at its regular meetings 
on June 16, 2022 and August 18, 2022, and consented to including the Contributed Town Property in the 
Developer’s Major PUD Amendment Application and Major Subdivision Application, but voted to 
continue the matter to November 17, 2022 so as to allow the Developer time to submit the Major 
Subdivision Application and final design review materials; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council again considered this Ordinance on first reading at its regular 
meeting on November 17, 2022, but voted to continue the matter to January 19, 2023 so as to allow the 
DRB to conduct a further public meeting regarding final design review and the Major Subdivision 
Application before the Town Council would make a decision as to the Major PUD Amendment Application; 
and 

WHEREAS, following a DRB meeting held on December 1, 2022, the DRB recommended to the 
Town Council approval of the Major PUD Amendment Application and the Major Subdivision Application, 
subject to conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the design plans provided to Town Council replace plans considered by the DRB at 
its December 1, 2022 meeting with the intent to address the DRB final design plans, so long as it is also 
understood that all of the DRB conditions from December 1, 2022, still apply.  Further, DBR review and 
approval may be required prior to building permit to the extent required by the CDC.  The final DRB review 
has been provided as evidenced by the December, 1, 2022 meeting, and a re-review is not necessary; and 

WHEREAS, at its January 19, 2023, regular meeting, the Town Council again considered this 
Ordinance on first reading, but voted 6-1 to direct Town staff to prepare a resolution denying the Major 
PUD Amendment Application to be considered at the March 16, 2023, regular meeting; and 

WHEREAS, at its March 16, 2023, regular meeting, the Town Council voted to continue the matter 
to June 15, 2023 so as to allow the Developer to address outstanding issues with the Major PUD 
Amendment Application; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council has considered the Major PUD Amendment Application, the 
DRB’s recommendations, and testimony and comments from the Developer, Town staff, and members of 

 
Third Amendment to the 2011 Development Agreement, thus rendering the approval of the third extension of vested 
rights moot. 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

the public at a public meeting on June 15, 2023, and voted to continue the matter for further consideration 
at its meeting regular meeting on August 17, 2023, at which time the Council further considered this matter 
including evidence presented at such meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has considered the criteria set forth in Section 17.4.12 of the 
Town’s Community Development Code (“CDC”) and finds that each of the following has been satisfied or 
will be satisfied upon compliance with the conditions of this Ordinance set forth below and in the Amended 
and Restated Development Agreement: 

1.  The proposed PUD is in general conformity with the policies, principles and standards set forth 
in the Comprehensive Plan. (Because the Major PUD Amendment Application was submitted 
before November 1, 2022, the 2011 version of the Comprehensive Plan applies); 

2. The proposed PUD is consistent with the underlying zone district and zoning designations on 
the site or to be applied to the site unless the PUD is proposing a variation to such standards; 

3. The development proposed for the PUD represents a creative approach to the development, use 
of land and related facilities to produce a better development than would otherwise be possible and 
will provide amenities for residents of the PUD and the public in general; 

4. The proposed PUD is consistent with and furthers the PUD purposes and intent; 

5. The PUD meets the PUD general standards; 

6. The PUD provides adequate community benefits; 

7. Adequate public facilities and services are or will be available to serve the intended land uses; 

8. The proposed PUD shall not create vehicular or pedestrian circulation hazards or cause parking, 
trash or service delivery congestion; and 

9. The proposed PUD meets all applicable Town regulations and standards unless a PUD is 
proposing a variation to such standards. 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has considered the criteria set forth in CDC Section 17.4.17.D and 
finds that the submittal material and the proposed development substantially comply with the following 
vested property right review criteria:  

1.  A vested property right is warranted in light of relevant circumstances, such as the size and 
phasing of the development, economic cycles and market conditions; 

2. The site-specific development plan is consistent with public health, safety and welfare; 

3. The site-specific development plan provides for the construction and financing of improvements 
and facilities needed to support the proposed development; 

4. The site-specific development plan meets the criteria for decision for concurrent, required 
development application(s); and 

5. The proposed vested property right meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

WHEREAS, the Town Council now desires to approve the Major PUD Amendment Application, 
with vested property rights, subject to the terms and conditions set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals.  The above recitals are hereby incorporated as findings of the Town Council in support 
of the enactment of this Ordinance.   
 
Section 2. Approvals.  The Town Council hereby approves the Major PUD Amendment Application, 
subject to the conditions set forth below (“Final PUD Approval”). The Town Council also approves the 
Amended and Restated Development Agreement, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C (the “Amended 
and Restated Development Agreement”), which the Mayor and Town Clerk are authorized to sign on behalf 
of the Town. All exhibits to this Ordinance are available for inspection at the Town Clerk’s Office. Further, 
subject to Condition #1 below and Developer’s execution of the Amended and Restated Development 
Agreement, the Town Council authorizes conveyance of the Contributed Town Property to the Developer 
and agrees to accept the conveyance of the Replacement Town Property from the Developer. These 
approvals include the following variations from the presumptive standards in the CDC or from the 2010 
PUD: 
 
 2.1. Zoning and Density.  The Town Council approves the rezoning of and density for the 
Property as follows: 

Table 1. Current Zoning and Density Under the 2010 PUD.   
Type of Zoning 
Designation Unit 

Total Zoning 
Designation Units 

Person 
Equivalent per 
Unit Type 

Total Person Equivalents 

Efficiency Lodge 66 .5  33 
Lodge 38 .75  28.5 
Condominiums 20 3  60 
Employee 
Apartments 

1  3  3 

Commercial 20,164 sq ft 0 0 
Total   124.5 

 
Table 2. Approved Zoning and Density for the Property. 

Type of Zoning 
Designation Unit 

Total Zoning 
Designation Units 

Person 
Equivalent per 
Unit Type 

Total Person Equivalents 

Efficiency Lodge 50 .5 25 
Lodge 31 .75 23.25 
Condominiums 20 3 60 
Employee 
Apartments 

2 3 6 

Employee 
Dormitory 

18 1 18 

Commercial 22,609 sq ft*   0 
Total    132.25 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

* Commercial space will be memorialized in square footage on the final condominium map to be approved 
and recorded following construction as addressed in the separate resolution for the Major Subdivision 
Application. 
  

a. Rezone and Density Transfers.  To create the zoning and density in Table 2 above, the 
Developer will place the following density into the Town’s Density Bank: 

 
Table 3. Approved Density Bank Transfers. 

Zoning Designations Person Equivalents Total Number of 
Zoning Designation 
Type of Units to be 
Placed into Density 
Bank 

Total Person 
Equivalents 

Efficiency Lodge .5 16 8 
Lodge .75 7 5.25 
Total Units and 
Person Equivalents 

N/A 23 13.25 

 
b. Employee Housing Density.  At the request of the Developer, the Town will create the 

employee housing density needed for the Developer to provide an additional Employee 
Apartment and 18 Employee Dormitories. The Town will utilize the remainder of Town 
Density Certificate #27, a portion of which is already committed to the 161C-R Four 
Seasons project, with a small amount of density to be created by the Town called “Bonus 
Density,” which will not count against the Town’s density limitations. 

Table 4. Approved Additional Employee Density. 
Zoning Designations Person Equivalents Total Number of 

Zoning Designation 
Types to be Created 

Total Person 
Equivalents 

Employee Apartment 3 1 3 
Employee Dormitory 1 18 18 
Total Person 
Equivalents 

  21 

 
Table 5. Approved Changes to Density Certificate #27. 

Zoning Designation Person Equivalent Number of Unit Types Total Person 
Equivalents 

Employee 
Condominium 

3 13 36 

Employee 
Condominium Rezoned 
to Employee Apartment 
for 161C-RR Four 
Seasons 

3 -9 -27 

Employee 
Condominum Rezoned 
to Employee Dormitory 
for 109R 

3 -4 -12 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

Total (Density 
Certificate #27 would 
be retired and voided) 

0 0 0 

 
Table 6. Approved Bonus Density. 

Zoning Designation Person Equivalent Number of Unit Types Total Person 
Equivalents 

Employee Dormitory 1 6 6 
Employee Apartment 3 1 3 
Total N/A 7 9 

 
c. Limited Modification of Employee Units or Hotel Covenant.  Notwithstanding the 

provisions of CDC Section 17.4.12(O)(2), the type, mix, or configuration of individual 
Employee Apartments and Employee Dormitories, only to the extent that such changes 
result in increases in density used at the Project or in changes to use designations, may be 
initiated by the owner of fee title to the Employee Housing Unit (defined in section 3.9(b) 
below), without any requirement that such change be initiated or joined by owners of fee 
title to at least 67% of the real property within the PUD or an individual or entity having 
the written permission of owners of fee title to at least 67% of the real property within the 
PUD, provided the Employee Housing Unit continues to be used for Employee Apartment, 
Employee Dormitory, and Employee Amenities (an “Employee Housing Unit PUD 
Amendment”). An Employee Housing Unit PUD Amendment cannot otherwise reduce the 
number of allocated parking spaces for deed restricted housing, as outlined below, and all 
other regulations still apply. An Employee Housing Unit PUD Amendment will be 
reviewed by the Town’s planning division as a Class 1 Application, consistent with CDC 
Section 17.4.3(K)(1). Any proposed decrease in the number of employee units or changes 
in square footage will be reviewed as a Class 4 Application, consistent with CDC Section 
17.4.3(K)(3). Similarly, any proposed amendment to the Hotel Covenant shall not require 
initiation or joinder by at least 67% of the owners as a prerequisite for submittal, but 
otherwise the type of application and procedures for such application to amend the Hotel 
Covenant shall be determined in accordance with the CDC. 

   
 2.2. Parking.  The Town Council approves the parking requirements for the Property as 
follows: 
 
Table 7. Approved Parking for the Property. 

Parking Requirement 
per Type 

Number of 
Units 

Required Provided 

Commercial 
Space 

1 per 500 sq ft of 
high intensity 
use; 1 per 1,000 
sq ft of low 
intensity use*  

22,608 sq ft 29 29 

Condo 1 per unit 20 20 20 
Efficiency 
Lodge 

.5 per unit 50 25 25 

Lodge .5 per unit 31 15.5 16 
Public Parking (48 per 2010 

PUD) 
48 48 48 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

Employee 
Dormitory 

1 per unit 18 18** 18 

Employee 
Apartment 

1 per unit 2 2 2 

HOA 
Maintenance 
Vehicles 

1-5 spaces 1 1-5 1 

Total   158.5 159 
*The 2010 PUD only required one (1) parking space per 1,000 square feet of commercial space and did not 
calculate commercial parking per intensity of use, which, pursuant to the CDC, is one (1) parking space per 
500 square feet of high intensity commercial use (e.g., restaurant versus an office). The Developer shall 
provide commercial parking pursuant to the CDC. 
**The DRB established dormitory parking at one (1) space per Employee Dormitory at its May 31, 2022 
meeting. 
 

a. Reduction in Total Parking Spaces.  In exchange for a payment of $100,000 for each space, 
the Developer may remove up to five (5) parking spaces at the Property from the total in 
Table 7 above; provided, however, that the spaces allocated for Public Parking, Employee 
Dormitory, and Employee Apartment are not affected. Any such payment-in-lieu must be 
made to the Town prior to issuance of building permit. 

 
 2.3. Design Variations.  The Town Council approves variations to the CDC’s Design 
Regulations for the Property as follows: 
 

a. Roof form per CDC Section 17.5.6.C 
b. Wall material – not meeting the required 25% stucco per CDC Section 17.5.6.E 
c. Glazing – uninterrupted areas of glass that exceed 16 sq. ft. per CDC Section 17.5.6.G.5 
d. Decks and balconies – long continuous bands per CDC Section 17.5.6.I 
e. Commercial, ground level, and plaza areas – storefront design and color selection per CDC 

Section 17.5.15 
f. Commercial, ground level, and plaza areas – ski locker private use on a Primary Pedestrian 

Route 
g. Road and driveway – driveway grade 
 
DRB Specific Approvals: 
h. Materials – TPO membrane roof; metal fascia and soffit 
i. Solar roof tiles in the Village Center 
j. Road and driveway – two curb cuts 
k. Tandem parking 

 
 2.4 CDC Variations.  The Town Council approves variations to the CDC’s general 
requirements as follows: 
 

a. Height.  The maximum height shall be 88 feet, 9 inches, and the maximum average height 
shall be 63.61 feet. 

b. Bonus Density.  The Town shall create Bonus Density pursuant to Table 6 above. 
c. PUD Amendments.  Notwithstanding CDC Section 17.4.12(O)(2), further amendments to 

the PUD Plan approved by this Ordinance, the impacts of which would apply to a specific 
unit or units or common elements allocated thereto (by way of example and not limitation, 
the Hotel Facilities Unit, Employee Housing Unit, a Commercial Unit or a Residential 
Condominium Unit, as such terms are defined in the Amended and Restated Development 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

Agreement) may be initiated by the owner or owners of the impacted unit or units without 
the prior written consent of 67% of all owners of units within the project (including 
condominium owners or the association); provided, however, all such owners within the 
project shall be provided written notice of any proposed amendments and the right to 
provide public comments, and no approvals are guaranteed. 

d. Encroachments.  The Town shall grant to the Developer easements for certain building 
overhangs and encroachments as provided in the Amended and Restated Development 
Agreement. Upon submittal of a building permit application, Town staff will evaluate any 
new encroachments and will have the ability to elevate such encroachments to the Town 
Council for a one-step review as a PUD amendment with a public notice requirement via a 
Class 5 Application. 

e. Conference Center.  The Developer agrees that the conference center proposed as part of 
the Project will be offered to the public at market rate. 

f. Garage Drive Aisle.  The garage drive aisle is reduced from 22 feet to 18 feet, subject to 
approval by the fire marshal per Code section 17.5.8(C)(3). 

g. Use of Active Open Space.  Permitted uses (parking, pedestrian paths, access, etc., as shown 
in the Final PUD Plans) in Active Open Space as shown on the Final PUD Plans are 
approved pursuant to the PUD and not the Conditional Use Process. 

h. Employee Housing Requirements.  The Employee Housing Covenant shall control over 
any conflicting provisions of the CDC. 

i. Condominium Hotel Regulations.. The Hotel Covenant is approved. Section 17.6.3 of the 
CDC does not apply, but some of its current provisions have been expressly incorporated 
into the Hotel Covenant as contractual terms. Without limiting the foregoing, unit-owners’ 
participation in the hotel management and marketing program shall be strongly encouraged 
but not mandated, and the use of lodge and efficiency lodge units as the primary residence 
of the owner shall not be prohibited.   

 
Section 3. Conditions.  The approval of the Major PUD Amendment Application is subject to the following 
terms and conditions: 
 

3.1.   The Town Council must separately approve the related Major Subdivision Application and 
Rezoning Ordinance, which respectively concern the re-subdivision of Lot 109R and replat of the Town 
Property to create the Contributed Town Property and the Replacement Town Property (“Property Replat”). 
If the amended subdivision plats are not approved within 90 days after second reading of this Ordinance, 
this Ordinance shall become null and void. 

 
3.2. All conditions of approval of the Major Subdivision Application as set forth in Resolution 

2023-__ (“Subdivision Approval”) and as set forth on the Property Replat and in the DRB’s final design 
review on December 1, 2022, are incorporated as conditions of this Final PUD Approval. 

 
3.3. The land swap involving the Contributed Town Property and the Replacement Town 

Property must be completed as provided by the Amended and Restated Development Agreement.  
 
3.3. The Town and Developer shall enter into the Amended and Restated Development 

Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit C.  
 
3.4. Public Benefits.  The Developer agrees to provide the following as “Public Benefits,” as 

that term is defined by the CDC: 
 
 
 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

Table 8. Public Benefits. 

Item Value 
Onsite deed restricted housing an 
additional 1 employee apartment 
and 18 dormitory units that sleep 
up to 3 employees 

$9,950,250 

Mitigation Payment $996,288 
  
48 Public Parking Spaces $4,800,000 
  
50 dedicated hotel rooms  
5 star luxury hotel operator assured 
via the hotel covenant 

 

Furniture Package  
Hotel Operator and amenity space 
requirements 

 

Westermere Façade Improvements $75,000 
Shuttle service to the Montrose 
airport for hotel guests and 
employees 

 

Village Pond Improvements 
Payment 

$250,000 

Public Restroom $154,781 
Conference Room Space - use for 
the public at market rates 

n/a 

Public Access from Port Cochere 
to See Forever Plaza through the 
building (easement) 

$75,000 

Valet parking n/a 
Various easements (like the See 
Forever and town access to See 
Forever) 

n/a 

Additional 38 Lodge 
Units 

n/a 

SUBTOTAL $16,051,319 
 
In addition to the items listed above in Table 8, certain public improvements required to be constructed and 
dedicated to the Town under the 2010 PUD were considered to qualify as public benefits, which are noted 
as “2010 Public Benefit” in Table 10, below.  Further, the Council finds certain additional public 
improvements listed under Table 10 may be considered as public benefits, and these items are noted as 
“2023 Public Benefit” in Table 10.  Taken together, Council finds that these public benefits are adequate 
for purposes of CDC Section 17.4.12.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

3.5. Public Amenities.  The Developer agrees to provide the following public amenities: 
 
Table 9. Approved Public Amenities. 

Public Amenity Value 
Sustainability Fund committed to be spent locally 
(a Hotel Operator requirement) 

.5% of gross profits (estimated at $350,000) 

Silver LEED Certified (a Hotel Operator 
requirement) 

$2,460,000 

 
3.6. Public Improvements.  The Developer agrees to provide the following “Public 

Improvements,” as that term is defined by the CDC: 

Table 10. Approved Public Improvements. 
Item  Value Items Also Considered Public Benefits 
Plaza Improvements   $1,109,561 2010 Public Benefit 
Relocated Trash Facility $840,625 2010 Public Benefit 
Fire Lane Improvements $189,871 2010 Public Benefit 
Village Pond Improvements 
Payment 

$250,000 2023 Public Benefit 

Snowmelting OS-3BR-2 for 
access and use 

$382,575  

Repaving OS-3BR-2 $276,129  
“Village Center 
Improvements” that extend 
beyond the original 
boundary identified in the 
2010 PUD 

$829,219  

Stairway to OS-3BR-2 $150,000 2023 Public Benefit 
Sidewalk from Shirana to 
Mountain Village Blvd. 

$81,146 2023 Public Benefit 

 
3.7. All Public Improvements to be conveyed or dedicated to the Town shall be constructed by 

the Developer at its expense pursuant to plans and specifications approved by the Town Engineer, and the 
Developer shall provide a letter of credit or other security, in a form subject to approval by the Town 
Attorney, to secure the construction and completion of such improvements based on engineering cost 
estimates to be approved by the Town Engineer. The procedures for providing and releasing security, 
inspection and acceptance of conveyance or public dedications, and construction warranties for the Public 
Improvements shall be addressed in the Amended and Restated Development Agreement and/or a 
supplement thereto to be executed prior to issuance of a building permit. 

 
3.8. The 1997 Employee Housing Restriction outlined in Chapter 16.01 of the Code shall apply 

to the Employee Housing Unit with the following modifications as reflected in the form of deed restriction 
attached as an exhibit to the Amended and Restated Development Agreement:  

 
a. The deed restriction cannot be lost in foreclosure (lender subordination may be required). 
b. The 2 Employee Apartments and 18 Employee Dormitories shall be condominiumized as 

a single condominium unit (the “Employee Housing Unit”) and cannot be rezoned or 
further diminished at without approval by the Town Council. 

c. The deed restriction will not sunset in 50 years. 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

d. There will be no reduction in the number of dwelling units or committed floor area of 
14,445 square feet, except that the floor area may vary between final design and building 
permit by 2%.   

 
3.9. A deed restriction in substantially the same form as an exhibit to the Amended and Restated 

Development Agreement shall be recorded in the San Miguel County Clerk and Recorder 
contemporaneously with the recordation of the condominium map and prior to the issuance of any 
certificate of occupancy for the Project, and any prior lienholder must agree to subordinate to this deed 
restriction. In the event of any conflict between the Amended and Restated Development Agreement’s 
exhibit and the recorded deed restrictions, the recorded version shall control. 

 
3.10. The Employee Housing Unit must be constructed concurrently with the free-market 

portions of the Property.  
 
3.11. The 50 Efficiency Lodge Units constructed as hotel rooms on the Property shall be 

condominiumized as a single condominium unit (the “Hotel Rooms Unit”) and cannot be further 
condominiumized. 

 
3.12. The Employee Housing Unit shall be owned by either the Owner (as defined in the 

Development Agreement), or an affiliate of the Owner, of the Hotel Facilities Unit, or the Hotel Operator 
(or both). 

 
3.13. The Developer shall provide the Town with written confirmation of the five-star operator’s 

commitment to operate and manage the hotel prior to building permit. 
 
3.14. In the event that a five-star operator does not continue to operate and manage the hotel 

constructed on the Property, the Developer shall be required to process a Class 4 Application to amend this 
Final PUD Approval to allow for an operator with less than five stars. 

 
3.15 The condominium regulations of CDC Section 17.6.3 do not strictly apply to the Project. 

Nevertheless, the Developer shall provide incentives for including Lodge Units in the rental pool per the 
Amended and Restated Development Agreement. 

 
3.16. Construction Mitigation.  The requirements of this Section 3.16 are in addition to all 

requirements of CDC Section 17.7.20. The Developer shall demonstrate it has consent from all nearby 
property owners or their representatives or associates for any direct impacts during construction, including 
any properties that will be used for construction access, staging, or storage or which will be underneath the 
overhead load area of any construction crane, if applicable, which may include the Town, Shirana, and 
Westermere. The Developer shall indemnify all such parties against any damage to such property and shall 
provide proof of adequate insurance coverage paid for by the Developer to protect such owners. A 
construction mitigation and communications plan shall be submitted to Town staff for approval in order to 
mitigate construction impacts in the Project area. The construction mitigation plan shall include such 
elements reasonably determined necessary by Town Staff to protect persons and property and the continued 
use and operation of other nearby businesses and residences that may be impacted as determined by staff. 
The plan shall address, without limitation, (a) details concerning the management and maintenance of the 
construction area including Town property and the See Forever walkway, (b) provisions to avoid any 
interruption of waste services to the Village Center, including continuous access to existing trash buildings; 
(c) a traffic control plan under which at least one (1) lane of traffic on Mountain Village Blvd. shall remain 
open at all times, (d) support to neighboring properties including a complimentary vehicle and driver to 
assist residents and business owners during times when the entrances to their parking structures are being 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

replaced and parking access is temporarily unavailable, (e) facilitating deliveries to merchants, and (f) such 
other requirements as Town Staff reasonably determines.   

 
3.17. Shirana or Westermere shall have the right and ability to remove landscaping installed or 

maintained by the Developer or its successors on the Property or on the Town Open Space Parcel (if 
applicable) to the extent that such landscaping interferes with access from the plaza for maintenance to their 
buildings. 

 
3.18. Upon submittal of a building permit application, Town staff will evaluate any new 

encroachments and will have the ability to elevate such encroachments to the Town Council for a one-step 
review as a PUD amendment with a public notice requirement via a Class 5 Application.  

 
3.19.  Conditions of Building Permit.  Prior to issuance of any building permit, the Developer 

shall:  
a. Provide and obtain staff approval of the construction mitigation plan required by Section 

3.16, above. 
b. Comply with all conditions of building permit established by the DRB.  
c. Relocation of EV installed, EV ready and EV capable parking spaces as close to garage 

entry as reasonably possible given engineering limitations relating to the provision of 
power to charging stations and also pursuant to the Fire Marshall’s request. 

d. Other conditions as set forth in the Amended and Restated Development Agreement. 
e. Other conditions pursuant to the applicable building codes.  
 

 3.20. Conditions of Certificate of Occupancy.  Prior to issuance of any certificate of 
occupancy, the Developer shall: 
 

a. Repave the surface of Mountain Village Blvd. adjacent to the Project to the satisfaction of 
the Town. 

b. Complete the required Westermere Façade Improvements consistent with the Amended 
and Restated Development Agreement and to the satisfaction of the Town. 

c. Coordinate a civic wayfinding program with Town staff. 
d. Enter into any necessary easement or encroachment agreements with the Town, as 

determined by the Town Attorney. 
e. Receive Town approval of a Class 3 Application, Sign Plan. 
f. Completion and acceptance by the Town of all Public Improvements in accordance with 

the Amended and Restated Development Agreement. 
g. Other conditions as required by the DRB or as stated in the Amended and Restated 

Development Agreement. 
 

 3.21. As soon as practicable and prior to the recordation of the condominium documents, Town 
staff will designate a new Primary Pedestrian Route through this project and update the relevant Appendix 
3-1, along with the Appendix 8-1 Village Center Emergency Access Routes in the CDC accordingly. 
 
 3.22. Consistent with Town building codes, unenclosed accessory structures attached to 
buildings with habitable spaces and projections, such as decks, shall be constructed as either non-
combustible, heavy timber, or exterior grade ignition resistant materials such as those listed as WUIC 
(Wildland Urban Interface Code) approved products. 
 
 3.23. A monumented land survey of the footers will be provided prior to pouring concrete to 
determine there are no additional encroachments into the setbacks or across Property lines. 
 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

 3.24. A monumented land survey shall be prepared by a Colorado public land surveyor to 
establish the maximum building height and the maximum average building height. 
 
 3.25. Prior to the Town’s building division conducting the required framing inspection, a four-
foot (4’) by eight-foot (8’) materials board will be erected on site consistent with this Final PUD Approval 
to show: 
 

a. The stone, setting pattern, and any grouting with the minimum size of four feet (4’) by four 
feet (4’). 

b. Wood that is stained in the approved color(s). 
c. Any approved metal exterior material. 
d. Roofing material(s) and any other approved exterior materials. 
 

 3.26. It is incumbent upon the Developer to understand whether above-grade utilities and Town 
infrastructure (e.g., fire hydrants and electric utility boxes), whether placed in the right of way or general 
easement, are placed in an area that may encumber access to the Property. Any relocation of such above-
grade infrastructure appurtenances will occur at the Developer’s sole expense and in coordination with the 
appropriate entity (e.g., fire department, SMPA, and/or the Town) so that the relocated position is 
satisfactory and in compliance with applicable regulations. 
 

3.27. The Replat, which is subject to ministerial edits by Town Staff prior to recordation, shall 
depict the See Forever easement. 
 
 3.28. All representations of the Developer, whether within the Major PUD Amendment 
Application submittal materials or at the DRB or Town Council public hearings from and after the 
December 1, 2022, DRB meeting are conditions of this Final PUD Approval. 
 
 3.29. Conditions of the DRB’s final approval from December 1, 2022, that are not explicitly 
stated herein. 
 
  3.30. [Additional conditions based on staff recommendations as further refined by Town 
Council.] 

Section 4. Severability.  If any portion of this Ordinance is found to be void or ineffective, it shall be 
deemed severed from this Ordinance and the remaining provisions shall remain valid and in full force and 
effect. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective on ____________, 2023 (“Effective 
Date”) and shall be recorded in the official records of the Town kept for that purpose and shall be 
authenticated by the signatures of the Mayor and the Town Clerk.  

Section 6. Public Hearing.  A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the 26th day of June, 2023 in 
the Town Council Chambers, Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado 81435.  

Section 7. Vested Rights.  This Final PUD Approval constitutes a vested property right and site-specific 
development plan pursuant to Code Section 17.4.17.E.5. Additional details concerning the scope and 
duration of the vested rights granted by this Ordinance are set forth in the Amended and Restated 
Development Agreement.  Pursuant to CDC Section 17.4.17.E.5, Town Council finds a longer vesting 
period is appropriate based on the scale of the development application.  Pursuant to CDC Section 
17.4.17.E.4, at the Developer’s expense, the Town Clerk or Deputy Town Clerk shall publish notice of the 
vested property rights.  



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

Section 8. Recordation.  This Ordinance shall be recorded with the San Miguel County Clerk and Recorder 
contemporaneously with the recordation of the Property Replat and the Amended and Restated 
Development Agreement. 

Section 9. Publication. The Town Clerk or Deputy Town Clerk shall post and publish notice of this 
Ordinance as required by Article V, Section 5.9 of the Charter. 

INTRODUCED, READ, AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of the Town 
of Mountain Village, Colorado this 17th day of August, 2023. 
 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE: 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, 
A HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY 
 
 
By:   
 Martinique Prohaska, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
 
  



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, 
Colorado this _______________, 2023. 
 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE: 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, 
A HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY 
 
 
By:   
 Martinique Prohaska, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 

 
David McConaughy, Town Attorney 
 
  



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

I, Susan Johnston, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado 
(“Town") do hereby certify that: 
 

1. The attached copy of Ordinance No. 2023-__ (“Ordinance") is a true, correct, and complete copy thereof. 
 

2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading and referred to public hearing by 
the Town Council the Town (“Council”) at a regular meeting held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village 
Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on August 17, 2023, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town 
Council as follows: 
 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
3. After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public hearing, containing 

the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the subject matter of the proposed 
Ordinance was posted and published in the Telluride Daily Planet, a newspaper of general circulation in 
the Town, on ____________, 202__ in accordance with Section 5.2(d) of the Town of Mountain Village 
Home Rule Charter. 

 
4. A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the Town 

Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on June 26, 2023. 
At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and approved without amendment by 
the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows: 
 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
5. The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me as Town Clerk, 

and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this  ___ day of 
________________, 2023. 
 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
(SEAL) 



Attachment 1. Ordinance 
 
 

 
2665937.11 

 
Exhibit A 

 
[Legal Descriptions of Town Contributed Property and Replacement Town Property] 

 
Exhibit B 

 
[List of Major PUD Amendment Application Materials] 

 
Exhibit C 

 
[Amended and Restated Development Agreement] 



S&H 8.7.2023 Attachment 1.a. Development Agreement 

 
 
2740224.14 
 
 

AMENDED AND RESTATED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Lot 109R2, Town of Mountain Village, Planned Unit Development 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), 
dated and made effective as of ____________, 2023 (“Effective Date”), is entered into by and 
between the Town of Mountain Village, a Colorado home rule municipality (“Town”), and Tiara 
Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Developer”). Town and Developer are 
sometimes each individually referred to as a “Party” and sometimes collectively as the “Parties.” 

DEFINITIONS 

Unless otherwise provided for herein, all capitalized but undefined terms used in this 
Agreement shall have the meanings set forth in the CDC (defined below). In addition, the 
following terms shall have the meanings for them set forth below (“Definitions”).  Each of the 
Definitions: (a) form a portion of the basis of this Agreement; and (b) are incorporated in this 
Agreement. 

A. “Act” or “CCIOA” shall mean the Colorado Common Interest Ownership Act, 
Colorado Revised Statutes 38-33.3-101 through 38-33.3-402, as amended and supplemented from 
time to time, or any successor legislation to these statutes. 

B. “Affiliate” means with respect to any specified Person, any other Person 
controlling, controlled by or under common control with such Person.  For the purposes of this 
definition, “control” means the power to direct the management and policies of a Person, directly 
or indirectly, whether through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise; and the 
terms “controlling” and “controlled” have meanings correlative to the foregoing. 

C. “Application” shall collectively mean the various land use applications including 
the Major PUD Amendment Application and the Major Subdivision Application, as those terms 
are defined in the Town Council Approval Ordinance, as well as plans, drawings, specifications, 
narratives, reports, studies and other materials prepared by Developer and submitted to the Town, 
plus all statements and representations of Developer and its representatives at the public hearings 
before the DRB and Town Council, but only including such hearings occurring after the DRB 
meeting of December 1, 2022, concerning the development of the Project on the Property. 

D. “Business Day” means any day except any Saturday, any Sunday, any day which 
is a federal legal holiday in the United States or any day on which banking institutions in the State 
of Colorado are authorized or required by law or other governmental action to close. 

E. “CDC” or “Community Development Code” shall mean the Mountain Village 
Municipal Code Title 17 Community Development Code, adopted by the Town of Mountain 
Village. 

F. “Charter” means the Town of Mountain Village Home Rule Charter, as amended. 



2 
2740224.14 

G. “CCIOA Condominium Unit” shall mean a Unit Owner’s fee simple interest in 
and to an Individual Airspace Unit, together with an undivided interest in the Common Elements 
appurtenant to the Individual Airspace Unit,  together with an undivided interest in the Common 
Elements appurtenant to the Individual Airspace Unit and shall include the Hotel Facilities Unit, 
Residential Condominium Units, Employee Housing Unit, and Commercial Condominium Units  

H. “Code” shall mean the Mountain Village Municipal Code, inclusive of the CDC, 
as amended. 

I. “Commercial Condominium Units” shall mean each of those particular CCIOA 
Condominium Units specifically designed for commercial uses by the Project Condominium 
Documents and the Town Approvals. 

J. “Common Elements” shall mean the common elements, including any limited 
common elements formed in the Project Condominium and designated as such pursuant to the 
Project Condominium Documents. 

K. “Contributed Town Property” shall have the meaning for such term set forth in 
Section 4.1 and shall mean and refer to the property which the Town agreed to allow Developer to 
include in the Replat and incorporate into the Property and the Project.   

L. “Design Regulations” shall mean the Mountain Village Design Regulations 
adopted by the Town, as amended through the Effective Date, set forth in Section 17.5 of the CDC, 
as amended through the Effective Date. 

M. “Developer” shall mean Tiara Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability 
company and its successors and assigns.   

N. “DRB” or “Design Review Board” shall mean the Town of Mountain Village 
Design Review Board. 

O. “Efficiency Lodge Units” shall mean each of those Hotel Rooms included in the 
Project that are zoned and designated as an Efficiency Lodge Unit (as defined in the CDC) in the 
Town Approvals.  Each of the Efficiency Lodge Units in the Project will be Hotel Rooms and all 
will be included in the Hotel Facilities Unit. 

P. “Employee Apartment” shall mean each of those two (2) Employee Apartments 
included in the Project that are zoned and designated as an Employee Apartment (as defined in  
the CDC) in the Town Approvals.   The Employee Apartments are not Residential Condominium 
Units.    

Q. “Employee Dorm” shall mean each of those eighteen (18) Employee Dorms 
included in the Project that are zoned and designated as Employee Dormitory (as defined in the 
CDC) in the Town Approvals.  Each Employee Dorm may contain up to three (3) individual beds.  
The Employee Dorms are not Residential Condominium Units.   

R. “Employee Housing Restriction” shall mean that certain Employee Housing 
Restriction attached to this Agreement as Exhibit “D,” which shall be recorded in the Official 



3 
2740224.14 

Records as an encumbrance on the Employee Housing Unit concurrently with the Project 
Condominium Declaration and Condominium Map.    

S. “Employee Housing Unit” means the Employee Apartments, the Employee Dorms 
and associated Employee Amenities that are necessary for operation of the employee housing in 
the Project.  The Employee Housing Unit will be condominiumized pursuant to the Project 
Condominium Documents as one CCIOA Condominium Unit and encumbered by the Employee 
Housing Restriction. 

T. “Final Approval” shall have the meaning for such term set forth in Section 10.5. 

U. “Final PUD Plans” shall mean the final plans, drawings and specifications for the 
Property and Project that have been approved by the DRB and the Town Council, as reflected in 
the Town Council Approval Ordinance, which plans, drawings and specifications consist of each 
of the documents are listed and described on attached Exhibit “A”.     

V. “Furniture Package” shall mean those certain standard furnishing packages 
specified by Developer (and upon creation of the Condominium Project, by the Owner of the Hotel 
Facilities Unit) and the Hotel Operator pursuant to the Hotel Covenant for the Hotel Rooms and 
other Residential Condominium Units (exclusive of the Unrestricted Condominium Units). 

W. “Hotel Covenant” shall mean that certain Amended and Restated Declaration of 
Covenants and Restrictions (Hotel Operator and Hotel Amenities, Facilities and Services 
Covenant) recorded concurrently with this Agreement in the Official Records.  

X. “Hotel Facilities Unit” means the Hotel Rooms, lobby area, front desk and 
associated office, and similar areas of the Project that are necessary for the operation of the hotel. 
The Hotel Facilities Unit will be condominiumized pursuant to the Project Condominium 
Documents as one CCIOA Condominium Unit which may be owned by one entity that may change 
from time-to-time. 

Y. “Hotel Guests” shall mean those persons who are staying in any of the Hotel 
Rooms or any of the other Residential Condominium Units for short-term accommodation (less 
than 30 consecutive days) usage purposes as part of the Rental Management Program. 

Z. “Hotel Operator” means the company initially retained by the Developer and 
approved by the Town in the manner provided for in this Agreement to operate and manage the 
Hotel Facilities Unit. 

AA. “Hotel Rooms” means each and all of those fifty (50) Efficiency Lodge Units 
located in the Project.  Each and all of the Efficiency Lodge Units in the Project will be owned, 
operated, designated and dedicated only for use and occupancy for short-term accommodation 
(less than 30 consecutive days) by Hotel Guests in the Rental Management Program.  The 
Efficiency Lodge Units will be part of the Hotel Facilities Unit and will be held in the common 
ownership with the other portions of the Project denoted as the Hotel Facilities Unit. 



4 
2740224.14 

BB. “Individual Airspace Unit” means that portion of a CCIOA Condominium Unit 
designated for separate ownership by a Unit Owner as depicted on the Condominium Map included 
within the Project Condominium Documents.   

CC. “Lodge Units” shall mean each of those Residential Condominium Units included 
in the Project that are zoned and designated as a Lodge Unit (as defined in the CDC) in the Town 
Approvals. 

DD. “Official Records” shall mean the Official Records of the Clerk and Recorder for 
San Miguel County, Colorado. 

EE. “Owner” shall mean the owner of the Property.  Upon recordation of the Project 
Condominium Documents “Owner” shall mean and refer to each of the Unit Owners of the 
Condominium Units created thereby.  

FF.  “Person” shall mean any individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability 
company, limited liability partnership, joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust, 
unincorporated organization or government or any agency or political subdivision thereof. 

GG. “Project” shall mean the development of a certain mixed-use hotel, residential 
condominium and commercial project on the Property in accordance with the Town Approvals. 
The Project shall consist of: a minimum of the fifty (50) Hotel Rooms zoned Efficiency Lodge 
Units to be operated as part of the hotel and included as part of the Hotel Facilities Unit as required 
by this Agreement and as shown on the Final PUD Plans; thirty-one (31) Lodge Units; twenty (20) 
Unrestricted Condominium Units; approximately 22,609 sq. ft. of commercial space; and two (2) 
Employee Apartments and eighteen (18) Employee Dorms to be owned and operated as part of the 
Employee Housing Unit and subjected to the Employee Housing Restriction, each as shown on 
the Final PUD Plans. 

HH. “Project Association” shall mean the non-profit corporation formed to manage the 
Project Condominium as contemplated by the Project Condominium Documents. 

II. “Project Condominium” shall mean the condominium regime to be established on 
the Property in accordance with the Act and the Project Condominium Documents. The Project 
Condominium consists of certain Individual Airspace Units and Common Elements as established 
and designated by Project Condominium Documents. 

JJ. “Project Condominium Documents” shall mean the documents prepared in 
connection with the formation and operation of the Project Condominium, which are anticipated 
to consist of the following instruments: (1) Condominium Declaration; (2) Condominium Map; 
(3) the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws for the Project Association; (4) any Rules and 
Regulations for the Project Condominium; and (5) any and all such other pertinent documents, as 
the same may be amended and/or supplemented from time to time. 

KK. “Project Operational Standards” means the standards for operating the Project 
as determined by the Hotel Operator, in consultation with the Developer (and upon creation of the 
Condominium Project, by the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit) and Project Association, 
consistent with the terms and conditions of the Town Approvals and the operating standards 



5 
2740224.14 

customarily followed by the Hotel Operator for similar projects managed by Hotel Operator 
located in mountain resort locations from time to time which are intended to promote a high 
standard of quality. The Project Operational Standards are intended to be followed for purposes of 
promoting the use and operation of the Project as a full-service hotel within the Hotel Facilities 
Unit and those Residential Condominium Units participating in the Rental Management Program. 
When developing, updating and implementing the Operational Standards, the Hotel Operator shall 
exercise its good faith, commercially reasonable judgment and adhere to industry standards for 
similar projects located in mountain resort locations as well as the actual operational needs of the 
hotel and/or Hotel Guest. It is recognized and agreed that the Project Operational Standards may 
vary from seasonally given due consideration to winter periods, summer periods and shoulder 
seasons between winter and summer periods. 

LL. “Property” shall mean Lot 109R2, Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, 
Colorado according to the Replat. 

MM. “Rental Management Program” means the rental management and 
accommodations styled program operated in the Project by the Hotel Operator consisting of the 
Hotel Rooms and those Residential Condominium Units the Unit Owners of which have elected 
to participate in the Rental Management Program.   

NN. “Replacement Town Property” shall have the meaning for such term set forth in 
Section 4.1 and shall mean and refer to the property to be transferred and conveyed to the Town 
by the Developer pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

OO. “Replat” shall mean that certain Replat entitled  “Replat of Lot 109R and Tract 
____________” recorded [concurrently with this Agreement] [or] [on ________, 2022 in Plat 
Book ____, Page ___________, Reception No. __________ in the Official Records], establishing 
the boundaries of the Property. 

PP. “Residential Condominium Units” shall mean those particular CCIOA 
Condominium Units that are zoned as Lodge Units and the Unrestricted Condominium Units, 
specified for residential uses by the Project Condominium Documents and the Town Approvals.   

QQ. “Rezone” shall mean the rezoning of the Property to PUD pursuant to the Town 
Council Approval Ordinance. 

RR. “Town” shall mean the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado. 

SS. “Town Approvals” shall mean those certain land use entitlement approvals 
concerning the Property and the Project that have been granted by the Town, including, without 
limitation, approvals for a major PUD amendment, variations/waivers, Replat, Rezone, the transfer 
of density to the Town density bank and creation of bonus density for workforce housing and any 
other plans or permits granted by the Town for the Property and the Project. The Town Approvals 
are further reflected in the Town Council Approval Ordinance, the Hotel Covenant, the Replat, 
and this Agreement. 

TT. “Town Council” shall mean the Town of Mountain Village Town Council. 



6 
2740224.14 

UU. “Town Council Approval Ordinance” shall mean Ordinance No. __________ 
adopted by the Town Council, approving the Major PUD Amendment and Conveyance of Portions 
of Village Center for the Project, which was recorded on ________________, 2023 at Reception 
No. _____________ in the Official Records. 

VV. “Town Enforceable Restriction” shall mean those provisions established in the 
this Agreement and incorporated by reference into the Hotel Covenant and the Project 
Condominium Documents that run to the benefit of the Town and may be specifically enforced by 
the Town and may not be modified without the prior written consent of the Town. 

WW. “Town Engineer” shall mean an outside consultant hired by the Town or such other 
member of Town Staff designated by the Town Manager to perform such function. 

XX. “Town/Developer Land Exchange” means the transfer and conveyance of the 
Contributed Town Property by the Town to Developer in exchange for the transfer and conveyance 
of the Replacement Town Property and the payment of the Venting Parcel Purchase Price by the 
Developer to the Town in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

YY. “Town Open Space Parcel” means Tract OS-3BR__of the Replat. 

ZZ. “Unit Owners” shall mean the respective owners, whether one or more persons, of 
fee simple title to each of the CCIOA Condominium Units.  

AAA. “Unrestricted Condominium Units” shall mean each of those Residential 
Condominium Units included in the Project that are zoned and designated as a “Condominium” 
(within the meaning of CDC Section 17.8.1, which refers to a “zoning designation that means 
multifamily dwellings located in condominium community”) in the Town Approvals. 

RECITALS 

The Parties acknowledge and agree to the following recitals (“Recitals”) and further agree 
that each of the Recitals: (a) form a portion of the basis of this Agreement; and (b) are incorporated 
in this Agreement. 

A. Developer is the current, fee simple owner of Lot 109R (“Lot 109R”), Town of 
Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado according to the “2011 Replat” recorded on 
March 18, 2011, in Plat Book 1, Page 4455 at Reception No. 416994 in the Official Records.  Tract 
OS-3BR-2, owned by the Town, was also platted on the 2011 Replat (“Tract OS-3BR-2”).  
[NOTE TO DRAFT – REVISE IF NECESSARY BASED ON ORDER OF RECORDING 
PLATS WITH 161 CR] 

B. In 2010 the Town Council approved a PUD development for a project on Lot 109R 
(the “2010 Lot 109R PUD”) by Resolution of the Town of Mountain Village, Mountain Village, 
Colorado, Approval of Final Planned Unit Development Application, Mountain Village Hotel 
Planned Unit Development, Resolution No. 2010-1208-31, recorded in the Official Records on 
December 10, 2010 under Reception No. 415339 (the “2010 PUD Approval”).  In connection 
with the 2010 PUD Approval, the then owner of Lot 109R, MV Colorado Development Partners, 
LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“Original Developer”) entered into a Development 



7 
2740224.14 

Agreement for Lot 109R, which was recorded in the Official Records on March 18, 2011 under 
Reception No. 415339 (as amended, the “2011 Development Agreement”).  As required by the 
2010 PUD Approval and 2011 Development Agreement, the Original Developer also made and 
entered into that certain Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions (Hotel Operator and Hotel 
Amenities, Facilities and Services Covenant) recorded March 18, 2011 at Reception No. 416998 
in the Official Records (the “2011 Hotel Covenant”). 

C. The vested property right created by the 2010 Lot 109R PUD was subsequently 
extended for a period of five (5) years, expiring December 8, 2020, pursuant to Ordinance No. 
2015-07 recorded in the Official Records on August 5, 2015 under Reception No. 438753 and First 
Vesting Period Extension Ordinance by First Amendment to Development Agreement recorded in 
the Clerk’s Office August 5, 2015 under Reception No. 438754.  Such vested property right was 
further extended for an additional period of two (2) years, expiring December 8, 2022, pursuant to 
Ordinance No. 2020-16 recorded in the Official Records on December 21, 2020 under Reception 
No. 467309 and Second Amendment to Development Agreement recorded in the Official Records 
December 21, 2020 under Reception No. 467310.  The vested property right was further extended 
for an additional period of nine (9) months, expiring September 8, 2023, pursuant to Ordinance 
No. 2022-10 recorded in the Official Records on October 25, 2022 under Reception No. 478297 
and Third Amendment to Development Agreement recorded in the Clerk’s Office on October 25, 
2022 under Reception No. 478928. 

D. Developer submitted the Application to the Town, which was reviewed and 
considered by the Town in accordance with applicable law, including but not limited to, the CDC 
and Design Regulations. 

E. The Town authorized Developer to include the Contributed Town Property in the 
Application and to pursue the contemplated development of the Project on the Property, including 
portions affecting the Contributed Town Property, provided that Developer has transferred and 
conveyed the Replacement Town Property in the manner and timeframe required by this 
Agreement. 

F. Consistent with CDC Section 17.3.10, Platted Open Space Requirements,  
replacement open space is not necessary as it relates to replatting portions of town owned village 
center open space for the purposes of this Application. 

G. Nothing contained herein is intended to establish any joint venture between 
Developer and Town with respect to the ownership, operation, management and development of 
the Project. 

H. At a duly noticed and conducted public hearing on December 1, 2022, the DRB 
recommended to the Town Council that the Application be approved with conditions. 

I. At a duly noticed and conducted public hearing on June 16, 2022, the Town Council 
considered the Application and continued the matter to August 18, 2022, November 17, 2022, 
January 19, 2023, March 16, 2023, June 15, 2023 and August 17, 2023, at which the Town Council 
passed an ordinance on first reading conditionally approving the Application and set a hearing for 
second reading. 



8 
2740224.14 

J. At a duly noticed and conducted public hearing on ___________, 2023, the Town 
Council held the second reading with respect to the Town Approvals and conditionally approved 
the Application and this Agreement. 

K. The public hearings referred to above were proceeded by public notice of such 
hearing as required by CDC Section 17.4.4(I)(2)(c). 

L. The Town Council has adopted the Town Council Approval Ordinance, the terms 
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference. 

M. Subject to Developer’s compliance with the conditions of the Town Approvals 
including but not limited to this Agreement, Developer has now met all requirements for: (1) 
approval of the Application; and (2) final approval for the components of the Application relating 
to the Replat, the transfer of density to the Town density bank and creation of bonus density for 
workforce housing, and variations/waivers. 

N. The Town and Developer intend that this Agreement shall amend and restate and 
supersede and replace in its entirety the 2011 Development Agreement. 

AGREEMENTS AND CONSIDERATION 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals and Definitions, which are 
incorporated into this Agreement and the mutual agreements, obligations and promises set forth 
below and in further consideration of the Town Approvals upon all terms and conditions contained 
herein, the obligations and expenditures of development undertaken by Developer and the mutual 
obligations and promises set forth below, the receipt and sufficiency of which consideration is 
hereby acknowledged, the Town and Developer covenant and agree as follows: 

1. General. The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth terms and conditions 
to be met by Developer in connection with developing the Property in accordance with the Town 
Approvals. All terms and conditions contained herein are in addition to all terms and conditions in 
the Town Approvals, the Code, and applicable state and federal statutes. This Agreement amends 
and restates and supersedes and replaces in its entirety the 2011 Development Agreement. Where 
this Agreement does not address a specific development standard or requirement of the Town, the 
provisions of the Code or Charter shall apply. Where this Agreement addresses a specific 
development standard or requirement, the provisions of this Agreement shall supersede the 
provisions of the Code. In all cases, the provisions of the Charter shall supersede the provisions of 
the Agreement.   

2. Representations. Developer shall comply with all representations made by 
Developer or its agents or representatives at the public meetings and hearings before the DRB and 
Town Council regarding the Application since the December 1, 2022, DRB meeting. 

3. Recordation. The Replat, Hotel Covenant, this Agreement and the Employee 
Housing Restriction shall be recorded, at Developer’s expense, in the Official Records and shall 
run with the Property. The Replat shall be recorded simultaneous with, but immediately prior to, 
this Agreement. This Agreement shall be incorporated by reference on the Replat. The Employee 
Housing Restriction shall be recorded concurrently with the Condominium Declaration and 



9 
2740224.14 

Condominium Map.  The Final PUD Plans shall be filed of record with the Town of Mountain 
Village Community Development Department.  The order of recordation of all documents 
necessary to effectuate the Town Approvals and this Agreement shall be reaffirmed with any 
necessary adjustments to be approved on a staff level pursuant to Section 14, below. 

4. Town/Developer Land Exchange. 

4.1. Pursuant to the Town Approvals, Developer shall convey certain portions 
of Lot 109R to the Town and the Town shall convey certain portions of Tract OS-3BR-____ to 
Developer, the resulting parcels being the Property and the Town Open Space Parcel.  The property 
to be conveyed by Developer to the Town is referred to in this Agreement as the “Replacement 
Town Property.”  The Replacement Town Property includes both (a) those portions of Lot 109R 
immediately adjacent to Tract OS-3BR-__being incorporated by the Replat into and made a part 
of the Town Open Space Parcel, and (b) that portion of Lot 109R being approximately 81 square 
feet in size and identified on the Replat as “ROW Tract” (the “ROW Tract”).The property to be 
conveyed by the Town to Developer is referred to in this Agreement as the “Contributed Town 
Property.” The Contributed Town Property includes the Venting Parcel (defined below).  The 
parties acknowledge and agree that the Replat describes and depicts (a) the Property (being Lot 
109R as supplemented by the Contributed Town Property and exclusive of the Replacement Town 
Property); (b) the Town Open Space Parcel (being Tract OS-3BR-2 as supplemented by the 
Replacement Town Property (exclusive of the ROW Tract) and exclusive of the Contributed Town 
Property; and (c) the ROW Tract.   

4.2. Town/Developer Land Exchange. 

4.2.1 For and in consideration of a one-time payment in the amount of 
$106,894.00 (the “Venting Parcel Purchase Price”), pursuant to the Town Approvals, the Town 
shall sell and convey to Developer, and Developer shall purchase from the Town, that portion of 
the Contributed Town Property being approximately 551 square feet in size located on the west 
end of Lot 109R and referred to in this Agreement as the “Venting Parcel.” The cost per square 
foot of land equates to $194 per square foot for purposes of this transaction. 

4.2.2 The exchange of the Contributed Town Property and the 
Replacement Town Property shall occur simultaneously with the recordation of the Replat. 

4.2.3 At the closing of the exchange of the Contributed Town Property 
and the Replacement Town Property (“Town/Developer Land Exchange Closing”), the Parties 
shall proceed as follows: 

A. The Town/Developer Land Exchange Closing shall be 
conducted by a title company mutually agreeable to the Parties (“Title Company”). 

B. In order to effectuate the conveyances of the Replacement 
Town Property and Contributed Town Property, at the closing of the land exchange: 

i. Developer will convey to the Town by bargain and 
sale deed all its right, title and interest in and to Tract OS-3BR-__and the ROW Tract, which 
conveyance shall be made free and clear of all monetary liens and encumbrances other than taxes 



10 
2740224.14 

for the year 2023, a lien not yet due and payable, and subject only to those exceptions accepted by 
the Town in a current commitment for title insurance to be obtained from the Title Company at 
Developer’s sole cost and expense.  Such commitment shall be for (x) the whole of the Town Open 
Space Parcel, and (y) the ROW Tract. 

ii. The Town will convey to Developer by bargain and 
sale deed all its right, title and interest in and to the Property, which conveyance shall be made free 
and clear of all monetary liens and encumbrances and subject only to those exceptions accepted 
by the Developer in a current commitment for title insurance to be obtained from the Title 
Company at Developer’s sole cost and expense.  The Town will cooperate and assist Developer in 
seeking to modify, amend or delete a title exception for which Developer reasonably objects.  Such 
commitment shall be for the whole of the Property. 

C. Developer shall pay to the Town the Venting Parcel 
Purchase Price in immediately available funds. 

D. Developer shall pay all recording costs, closing fees and 
costs due to the Title Company. 

E. To the extent applicable and required, Developer shall pay 
any Real Estate Transfer Assessments (RETA), if any, that may arise in connection with the 
Town/Developer Land Exchange.  

F. Charges for any real estate property taxes and/or homeowner 
associations’ dues and assessments for the property being exchanged hereunder shall be prorated 
through the date of Closing. 

G. The Parties acknowledge and agree that no real estate 
brokerage commissions shall become due and payable as a result of the completion of the 
Town/Developer Land Exchange. 

4.2.4 The Parties acknowledge and agree that, other than the Venting 
Parcel Purchase Price, no consideration is due and owing for the completion of the 
Town/Developer Land Exchange. 

5. Public Benefits. Pursuant to the Town Approvals, Developer shall provide the 
following “Public Benefits”: 

5.1. Hot Beds. In order to achieve the community purpose relating to the creation 
of “hot beds” in the Project, Developer agrees as follows: 

A. Provision of Dedicated Hotel Rooms. In accordance with the 
Hotel Covenant, Developer shall provide fifty (50) Hotel Rooms, consisting of certain Efficiency 
Lodge Units denoted on the Final PUD Plans, which will be owned, operated and dedicated for 
use only as hotel rooms as part of the operation of the hotel and not as condo-hotel units owned by 
third parties.  The Hotel Rooms are part of the Hotel Facilities Unit and may be condominiumized 
to enable common ownership with other components of the Hotel Facilities Unit, provided that all 



11 
2740224.14 

of the Hotel Facilities Unit will be under one common ownership, which may change from time to 
time.  

B. Retention of a Hotel Operator. Developer expressly agrees 
that the continued operation of the Project by a five-star luxury brand hotel operator (“Hotel 
Operator”) for the life of the Project is an essential requirement of the Town Approvals and this 
Agreement. The Hotel Operator shall be capable of operating the Project in a manner consistent 
with the Project Operational Standards. The Hotel Operator should have a high level of name, 
brand awareness and marketing breadth with the general public and offer customers incentives 
such as a customer loyalty program. Examples of internationally or nationally recognized full 
service hotel operators and brands include (but are not limited to) the following: Six Senses, 
Westin, Marriott (all full service brands), Hyatt (all full service brands), Hilton (all full service 
brands, including Waldorf Astoria), Fairmont, Intercontinental (all full service brands), Morgans 
Hotel Group, Wyndham, Le Meridien, Luxury Collection (Starwood), and similarly styled 
operators, as recognized by accepted industry standards and brands from time to time. Prior to, 
and as a condition of the issuance of a building permit, Developer shall provide the Town with 
written confirmation from Six Senses (or an equivalent Hotel Operator, subject to Town approval) 
of its commitment to operate the Project.   Should Six Senses, or an equivalent Hotel Operator as 
approved by the Town, discontinue operation of the Project at any time thereafter, Developer or, 
if the Project Condominium Documents have been recorded, the Owner of the Hotel Facilities 
Unit, shall immediately find a similar five-star luxury brand Hotel Operator, subject to approval 
by the Town. In the event Developer or the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit, as applicable, is 
unable to contract with a five-star luxury brand Hotel Operator consistent with this Agreement, 
such party must apply to the Town for an amendment to the Final PUD Plans via a Class 4 
Application under the CDC for approval of an operator with fewer than five stars.  

The Town agrees and acknowledges that the Condominium-Hotel Regulations set forth in 
Section 17.6.3 of the CDC do not apply to the Project because the subject property is not designated 
as a flag hotel site as described in CDC Section 17.6.3(B). Nevertheless, any application to change 
the Hotel Operator shall be reviewed by the Town under the standards set forth in CDC Section 
17.6.3(D)(2). To the extent, if any, that such standards expressly conflict with the terms of the 
Town Approvals (including this Agreement), the latter shall control.  

C. Hotel Operator and Hotel Amenities, Facilities and Services 
Covenant. The Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit shall provide certain full service amenities, 
facilities and services within the Project, consistent with the Final PUD Plans and the Project 
Operational Standards which are intended to help promote “hot beds” for the Hotel Rooms and 
Residential Condominium Units participating in the Rental Management Program in accordance 
with the Hotel Covenant. 

D. Rental Management Program. The Hotel Operator will 
manage and operate the Rental Management Program in accordance with the Hotel Covenant.  All 
of the Hotel Rooms must be included in the Rental Management Program. Developer shall provide 
incentives to Owners of Lodge Units to include the Lodge Units in the Rental Management 
Program as set forth in the Hotel Covenant.  Nothing herein is intended to require or obligate Unit 
Owners to place their Residential Condominium Units in the Rental Management Program 
provided that the Project Condominium Documents and the Hotel Management Agreement as well 



12 
2740224.14 

as the Hotel Operator, Declarant and Project Association must allow each of the Unit Owners of 
Residential Condominium Units to do so subject to continuing compliance with the Unit Rental 
Agreement. Developer and Hotel Operator shall provide the Unit Rental Agreement and final 
Hotel Covenant and any modifications or amendments, in each with proprietary and business terms 
redacted, to the Town for review and approval of compliance with the terms of this Agreement. In 
the event the Town determines there is non-compliance the Town shall provide written notice of 
such non-compliance and specify the modifications that must be made in order to achieve 
compliance, which notice shall be provided within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Rental 
Management Program documents and any modifications or amendments and if no notice is timely 
received, such documents shall be deemed acceptable. 

E. Standard Furnishing Package for All Lodge and Efficiency 
Lodge Units. Pursuant to the Hotel Covenant, Developer (and after the Project Condominium 
Documents are recorded the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit), in consultation with the Hotel 
Operator, will establish uniform Furniture Packages that will be provided for each of the Hotel 
Rooms and Residential Condominium Units (exclusive of the Unrestricted Condominium Units) 
and will abide by the applicable terms and provisions of the Hotel Covenant. 

5.1.2 Cash Payment. In accordance with the Town Approvals, Developer 
shall make a one-time payment to the Town in the total amount of $996,288.00 (“Mitigation 
Payment”), which shall be payable simultaneously with the issuance of the initial building permit.  

5.1.3 Employee Mitigation. Developer agrees and acknowledges that the 
Property is subject to Chapter 16.01 of the Code, the Town of Mountain Village Employee 
Housing Restriction Chapter 16.01(“Chapter 16.01”).  Notwithstanding the provisions of Chapter 
16.02 of the Code, regarding the 2006 Affordable Housing Restriction, that Chapter shall not apply 
to the Property.   To the extent of any conflict between Chapter 16.01 and this Agreement 
(including the form of Employee Housing Restriction attached as Exhibit D), this Agreement shall 
control. On the second anniversary of the initial Certificate of Occupancy for the Project: (a) the 
Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit will (or will cause the Hotel Operator to) provide a certified 
statement indicating the actual number of full-time equivalent employees for the operation of the 
Hotel Facilities Unit and the Rental Management Program; and (b) the Project Association will 
provide a certified statement indicating the actual number of full-time equivalent employees for 
the operation of the Project Condominium; provided, however, that there shall be no double 
counting of employees involved in both the operation of the Hotel Facilities Unit and the Rental 
Management Program and those involved in the Project Condominium. As an alternative to two 
separate statements, a consolidated statement may be provided by a Person authorized to provide 
such statement on behalf of both Persons.  The certified statement shall confirm to the Town the 
number of full-time equivalent employees based upon time cards, income tax reporting and such 
other and similar employment records. Each of the (x) Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit (or the 
Hotel Operator) and (y) the Project Association will elect, in its sole discretion, to either: (a) pay 
the Town a one-time payment in the total amount equal to the sum of $4,018.52 (“One Time 
Payment”) per full time equivalent employee averaged over the two (2) year period from the initial 
Certificate of Occupancy for the Project which is in excess of the ninety (90) full-time equivalent 
employees estimated by the Developer; or (b) build employee housing, for its usage to further 
offset employee housing needs generated by the Project, for each full time equivalent employee 
averaged over the two (2) year period from the initial Certificate of Occupancy for the Project 



13 
2740224.14 

which is in excess of the ninety (90) full-time equivalent employees estimated by the Owner.  For 
purposes of the foregoing, the ninety (90) full-time equivalent employees will be prorated between 
the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit (or the Hotel Operator) and the Project Association based 
on the total number of fulltime equivalent employees employed by each divided by the total 
number of full-time equivalent employees employed by both collectively.  The One Time Payment 
shall be due on the date that is the thirty (30) month anniversary of the initial Certificate of 
Occupancy for the Project. Subject to the requirements of this Section 5.1.3 above and the 
provisions of Section 5.1.4 below regarding the Employee Housing Unit, neither the Developer, 
the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit (or the Hotel Operator) nor the Project Association will be 
responsible for paying any further or additional One Time Payment or Mitigation Payment to offset 
a portion of the housing, parking and transit needs of employees working at the Project. The 
obligations under this Section to make the One Time Payment or build additional employee 
housing shall be in addition to the obligation of Developer to make the Cash Payment pursuant to 
Section 5.1.2 above.  In the event that the certified statement or statements indicate that the Project 
is employing less than the anticipated ninety (90) full-time equivalent employees, the Town shall 
not be required to refund any portion of the One Time Payment or Mitigation Payment to either 
payor. 

5.1.4 Employee Housing Unit.  

A. The Project will include an Employee Housing Unit, no less 
than 14,455 square feet in size, consisting of two (2) Employee Apartments, 18 Employee Dorms 
each consisting of no more than three (3) beds, and employee amenities for the use of employee 
residents of the Project, such as shared kitchen and recreational facilities and a laundry 
(“Employee Amenities”), and generally consistent with the location and area designated in the 
Final PUD Plans.  The Employee Housing Unit will be subject to the Employee Housing 
Restriction limiting the use of such Individual Airspace Unit as described in the immediately 
preceding sentence and including other requirements, restrictions and rights as more specifically 
set forth in the CDC and the Employee Housing Restriction.  The approximate total square footage 
can vary within a 2% range between final approval and the building permit submittal to account 
for design to construction design anomalies so long as there are no changes to the number of 
employee units provided. 

B. The Employee Housing Unit shall be owned by either the 
Owner, or an Affiliate of the Owner, of the Hotel Facilities Unit or the Hotel Operator (or both).  

5.1.5 Public Restrooms. Developer shall construct and make available, 
and, upon creation of the Condominium Project the Project Association will make available, to the 
general public, for at least sixteen (16) hours per day, three hundred sixty-five (365) days per year, 
restrooms in the Project reflected in the Final PUD Plans as public restrooms that are accessible 
from the plaza, without cost to the Town. During peak seasons, the restroom will be open not later 
than 7 AM. The Project Association will install directional signage for the bathroom, which 
signage shall be consistent with Village Center civic wayfinding signage to be purchased by the 
owner and approved by the Town. Ongoing operation and maintenance, as well as future capital 
improvements including repairs and remodels, of the public restroom will be undertaken by the 
Project Association, at the cost and expense of the Project Association.  Developer shall cause 
easements to be established in the Project Condominium Documents enabling access to the public 



14 
2740224.14 

restrooms through the Project to the extent necessary consistent with the terms of this Section. The 
requirements of this Section will be incorporated by reference into the Project Condominium 
Documents and identified therein as a “Town Enforceable Restriction” encumbering the 
Common Elements. 

5.1.6 Plaza Improvements.  

A. Developer shall construct certain “Plaza Improvements” 
and sidewalk improvements along the south side of Mountain Village Boulevard (the “Sidewalk 
Improvements”), each as reflected in the Town Approvals, without cost and expense to the Town. 
The Plaza Improvements as shown on the Final PUD Plans are generally located in the area 
depicted on attached Exhibit “C”. As detailed on the Final PUD Plans, the Plaza Improvements 
and Sidewalk Improvements shall also include a snow melt system and drainage system.  The 
design of the snow melt and drainage systems shall be reviewed and approved by the Town prior 
to the issuance of any building permits for the Project. The snowmelt system will be operated and 
maintained by the Project Association at the Project Association’s cost and expense in accordance 
with the Easement Agreement for Plaza Usage (defined in Section 6.3 below).   

B. The requirements of this Section will be incorporated by 
reference into the Project Condominium Documents. and identified therein as a “Town 
Enforceable Restriction.”  Failure to operate the snow melt system and maintain the Plaza 
Improvements and Sidewalk Improvements pursuant to this Agreement shall entitle the Town to 
enter into the Project for the purpose of operating such snow melt system and maintaining the 
Plaza Improvements and Sidewalk Improvements.  If the Plaza Improvements and Sidewalk 
Improvements are not properly operated or maintained by the Project Association, the Town may 
deliver notice of same to the Project Association and if operation is not resumed or maintenance 
performed within thirty (30) days thereafter, the Town is authorized, but not required, to resume 
operations or perform the required maintenance.  If the Town resumes operations or performs such 
maintenance, all costs incurred by the Town shall be reimbursed by the Project Association within 
thirty (30) days of a receipt of an invoice for such costs. Failure to reimburse the Town for such 
costs shall entitle the Town to pursue all remedies at law or equity, including but not limited to 
placing a mechanic’s lien on the Common Elements for collection of such costs, as well as 
attorneys’ fees and costs. The Project Association shall defend and hold the Town harmless from 
and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, actions, costs, damages, and attorney’s fees 
that may arise out of or result directly or indirectly from the Project Association’s actions or 
omissions in connection with the ongoing maintenance and snowmelt operations required of as set 
forth herein, including but not limited to the Project Association’s improper maintenance and 
operation of the Plaza Improvements, Sidewalk Improvements and snowmelt system.  

C. [Intentionally deleted.] 

D. In addition, simultaneously with the issuance of the initial 
building permit, Developer shall pay the Town $250,000.  

5.1.7 Town Parking Spaces. Developer shall construct forty-eight (48) 
covered, garage parking spaces within the Project to be allocated for public parking pursuant to 
Section 6.1 below (“Town Parking Spaces”). 



15 
2740224.14 

5.1.8 Westermere Breezeway Improvements. Developer shall improve 
the Westermere Breezeway and the associated path through such breezeway in substantial 
accordance with the depiction attached to this Agreement as Exhibit “B-2” (the “Westermere 
Breezeway Improvements”), provided that the Westermere HOA has provided its written 
authorization and consent to such work on commercially reasonable terms and conditions. 
Developer shall submit the authorization and consent to the Town at the time of applying for the 
building permit. If the Westermere HOA fails to provide the written authorization and consent, the 
Developer shall instead pay to Westermere HOA the cost of completing said improvements as set 
forth in Exhibit “B-1”. If the Town, Developer, and Westermere HOA all mutually agree in writing 
to a different approach, this Section 5.1.8 may be amended without triggering a requirement for a 
PUD Amendment. 

6. Provisions to be Addressed in the Project Condominium Documents. The 
requirements of this Section will be incorporated by reference into the Project Condominium 
Documents and identified therein as a “Town Enforceable Restriction” binding on the CCIOA 
Condominium Units and the Project Association as forth below.  The Town shall have the right to 
review and approve the Project Condominium Documents, which approval will not be 
unreasonably delayed, withheld or conditioned.  

6.1. Town Parking Spaces. 

6.1.1 Developer shall construct the forty-eight (48) Town Parking Spaces 
at the location indicated in the Final PUD Plans. None of the Town Parking Spaces will be tandem 
parking spaces and all will be self-parked.  Of the forty-eight (48) Town Parking Spaces, five (5) 
will be served by installed electric vehicle charging stations, seven (7) will be electric vehicle-
ready, and twenty-four (24) will be electric vehicle capable.  Developer shall be responsible for all 
capital construction costs associated with the design and construction of the Town Parking Spaces 
parking area including striping, interior parking area signage and exterior parking area signage 
(including Village Center civic wayfinding signage on the Project building and at Mountain 
Village Boulevard), lighting, required handicap parking spaces and required aisles.  The Town 
shall review and approve the final designs of the Town Parking Spaces and all construction, design 
and signage related to such spaces prior to issuing a building permit which approval will not be 
unreasonably delayed, withheld or conditioned. The Town Parking Spaces will be established in 
the Project Condominium as Common Elements.   

6.1.2 Developer shall construct and make available, and, upon creation of 
the Condominium Project, the Project Association will make available, to the general public, 24 
hours per day, 365 days per year, the Town Parking Spaces without cost to the Town.  The Project 
Association will maintain directional signage for the Town Parking Spaces, which shall be 
consistent with Village Center civic wayfinding signage and be approved by the Town. Ongoing 
operation and maintenance of the Town Parking Spaces will be undertaken by the Project 
Association, at the cost and expense of the Project Association.  The Project Association may 
collect from users of the Town Parking Spaces all parking fees and other charges such as fines and 
towing fees (but not including alternative rates for special events, unless the same are charged for 
the use of the Heritage Parking Garage, and not including resort fees) for use of the Town Parking 
Facility, which may be offered for market rent to the public at hourly, daily and overnight rates 
comparable to those charged for garaged facilities of a comparable quality and located in the 



16 
2740224.14 

Village Core, as reasonably determined by the Project Association, but, in any event, not more 
20% in excess of than those rates charged for the Heritage Parking Garage located at 568 Mountain 
Village Boulevard. If parking fees and charges are insufficient to cover the costs of operation and 
maintenance, Developer or the Project Association, as applicable, may apply to the Town via a 
Class 5 Application to renegotiate parking fees and charges, approval of which is not guaranteed 
and shall be at the sole discretion of the Town Council. 

6.1.3  Developer shall cause easements to be established in the Project 
Condominium Documents enabling access to the Town Parking Spaces through the Project to the 
extent necessary consistent with the terms of this Section. The Town shall have the right to review 
and approve the Project Condominium Documents for purposes contemplated in this Section, 
which approval will not be unreasonably delayed, withheld ·or conditioned.  The requirements of 
Section 6.1.2 and 6.1.3 will be incorporated by reference into the Project Condominium 
Documents and identified therein as a “Town Enforceable Restriction” encumbering the 
Common Elements. 

6.2. Conference Rooms. Developer shall construct a conference room in the 
Project in general accordance with the Final PUD Plans, which shall be available for use by owners 
and guests in the Project and non-owner guests. The conference room will be designed, constructed 
and operated in a manner that will enable it to be broken up into at least two smaller rooms by 
sound-proof, industry standard dividers. The conference room shall be offered for market rent to 
the public at rates comparable to those charged for facilities of a comparable quality and in similar 
caliber resort communities such as Aspen, Breckenridge, Crested Butte, Steamboat, Telluride or 
Vail (“Market Rates”). Developer, and upon creation of the Condominium Project, the Owner of 
the CCIOA Condominium Unit in which the conference room is located (or Project Association if 
the conference room comprises a Common Element), will be responsible to maintain and repair 
the conference room and keep it in good repair and order and shall arrange for an entity to book 
and manage the conference room (the “Management Company”) in accordance with the Town 
Approvals and industry standards. The conference room shall be available for rental in concert 
with other conferences or special events occurring in the Town when not booked for other 
functions, provided that Developer, and upon creation of the Condominium Project, the Owner of 
the CCIOA Condominium Unit in which the conference room is located (or Project Association if 
the conference room comprises a Common Element) and Management Company may establish 
commercially reasonable rules, regulations and other restrictions that will govern the use of the 
conference room in a uniform manner.  The Conference Center shall be available under such 
circumstances for rental at Market Rates. 

6.2.1 Valet Parking. Valet parking shall be provided by the Owner of the 
Hotel Facilities Unit (or Hotel Operator) or the Project Association for all of the tandem parking 
spaces and level G3 parking spaces, accessible via two (2) proposed vehicle elevators, as shown 
on the Final PUD Plans.  

6.3. Easements from Town Benefiting the Property. In connection with the 2010 
Lot 109R PUD, the Town granted and conveyed certain easements to Developer (“Lot 109R 
Project Easements”) to enable the development, construction, operation, use, repair and 
maintenance of the Project in accordance with the Town Approvals. As of the Effective Date, 



17 
2740224.14 

Developer has recorded the following termination and/or modification of the Lot 109R Project 
Easements as follows: 

Lot 109R Project Easement Reception No. Timing for 
Grant/Termination 

First Amendment to Easement Agreement (Plaza 
Usage) recorded as Reception No. 417000 

 Replat 

First Amendment to Easement Agreement 
(Permanent Structures) recorded as Reception No. 
417001 

 Replat 

First Amendment to Easement Agreement 
(Vehicular Access) recorded as Reception No. 
417002 

 Replat 

Termination of Easement Agreement (Mountain 
Village Boulevard Work) recorded as Reception No. 
417003 

 Replat 

First Amendment to Easement Agreement (Utilities) 
recorded as Reception No. 417004 

 Replat 

Shoring, Grading, Excavation, Staging, Crane 
Swing  

 Building Permit 

Road Right of Way Agreement  *Encroachments 
into Mountain 
Village Blvd such 
as soil nails and 
to construct the 
Sidewalk 
Improvements 

 

 
6.4. Easements etc. Benefiting Town and Encumbering the Property.  In 

connection with the 2010 Lot 109R PUD, a license encumbering Lot 109R was granted and 
conveyed to the Town for certain utilities as provided below.  Lot 109R is also encumbered by a 
pedestrian access easement granted prior to the approval of the 2010 Lot 109R PUD.  The Town 
and Developer will amend such license to reflect the reconfiguration of the Town Open Space, 
Property and Project per the Town Council Approval Ordinance and amend such easement as 
provided below.  In addition, Developer agrees to grant and convey to the Town certain necessary 
and suitable easements, licenses or leases for the benefit of the Town and general public as listed 
below (“Developer Granted Public Easements”). The Developer Granted Public Easements 
shall be in a form and content acceptable to the Town and Developer. Some of the Developer 
Granted Public Easements will be established in the Project Condominium Documents. The use 
of the Developer Granted Public Easements shall be in a reasonable location designated by 
Developer and Town and shall be subject to reasonable rules and regulations of Developer and 
Town. The Developer Granted Public Easements shall, at a minimum, provide for the following: 

 
Owner Granted 
Public Easements Authorized Uses 

Timing for 
Grant/Termination 



18 
2740224.14 

In connection with 
the 2010 Lot 109R 
PUD, the Town was 
granted an Interim 
Utility License 
pursuant to License 
Agreement 
(Utilities) recorded 
3.18.2011 Rec. 
416999* 
 

Existing Authorized Uses: 
*operate, repair and maintain existing 
utilities located on the Property 
 
Amendments to Authorized Uses: 
●None 
 
Other Changes: 
Will be amended to reflect the 
reconfiguration of the Town Open Space, 
Property and Project per the Town 
Council Approval Ordinance 
 

Replat 

Amendment of 
pedestrian access 
easement reserved in 
deed from The 
Telluride Company 
dated March 2, 1987 
and recorded March 
2, 1987 in Book 
434, Pages 475-478 
for the benefit of all 
with an ownership 
interest in the 
Mountain Village 
Unit (sic.) Planned 
Development 

Town will consent to and join in an 
Amendment executed by TSG Ski & 
Golf, LLC, as successor in interest to The 
Telluride Company that would provide for 
the easement’s automatic termination 
upon construction of the metal staircase 
on the Town Open Space Parcel at the 
southwest corner of the Property as shown 
on the Final PUD Plans and the opening 
of such staircase to the public 

Replat 

Easement for 
Pedestrian Access 
and Access by Small 
Maintenance 
Vehicles  

*See Forever walkway Replat with provisions for 
final location of easement 
area to be determined at 
Recordation of Project 
Condominium Documents 

Termination of 
Surface Parking 
Lease Agreement 

*lease of town Parking Lot on Property Prior to issuance of 
building permit for 
Project  

Permanent Utilities *operate, repair and maintain existing 
utilities located on the Property 

Recordation of Project 
Condominium Documents 

Conference Room 
Access 

*public access and use of Conference 
Room 

Recordation of Project 
Condominium Documents 



19 
2740224.14 

Public Rest Room 
Access 

*public access and use of Public Rest 
Room 

Recordation of Project 
Condominium Documents 

Access to and use of 
Town Parking 
Spaces 

*public access to and use of Town 
Parking Spaces 

Recordation of Project 
Condominium Documents 

Additional 
Pedestrian Access as 
shown on Final 
PUD Plans 

*public access as shown on Final PUD 
Plans (including, for example and without 
limitation, from the Port Cochere to See 
Forever Plaza through the Hotel Facilities 
Unit)  

Recordation of Project 
Condominium Documents 

 

6.5. Pedestrian Access Easement Benefiting Parcels to East Across Mountain 
Village Boulevard.  The Town and Developer acknowledge and agree that the owners of the 
parcels benefited by that certain Pedestrian Access Easement Agreement dated October 1, 2007 
and recorded October 12, 2007 under Reception No. 397446 in the Official Records (the “2007 
Pedestrian Access Easement Agreement”) have delivered a fully executed Termination and 
Release of Easement Agreement for recording in the Official Records. 

7. Further Requirements by Developer. 

7.1.1 Provision of Improvement Location Certificate. Prior to pouring 
concrete into the building’s footers, the Developer shall cause a Colorado Professional Land 
Surveyor (“Surveyor”) to prepare and submit an Improvement Location Certificate (“ILC”) for 
the location of all footers to ensure that such are located within the platted boundaries of the 
Property as established by the Replat, except for those structures, facilities and other components 
that have been authorized by the Final PUD Plans to be placed outside of the Property in easements. 
Prior to the issuance of the initial Certificate of Occupancy for the Project, Developer will cause a 
Surveyor to prepare and submit to the Town an ILC demonstrating that all structures, facilities and 
other components of the buildings associated with the Project have been constructed such that they 
are located within the platted boundaries of the Property as established by the Replat, except for 
those structures, facilities and other components that have been authorized to be placed outside of 
the Property within the boundaries of easements granted to Developer in connection with the 
Project. The ILC shall be certified to the Town by the surveyor. Any encroachment outside the 
Property not authorized by the Final PUD Plans shall require Developer to submit for 
encroachment approvals by legal instrument acceptable to the Town which will require Town 
Council authorization of an encroachment agreement, with Town Staff determining the appropriate 
process to remedy any unauthorized encroachment. 

7.1.2 Drainage System and Maintenance. The Project Condominium shall 
be responsible for the maintenance and repair of all drainage improvements on the Property and 
connecting to the Town’s existing drainage system as indicated on the Final PUD Plan, or as may 
be modified and approved by the Town in connection with final construction documents. The 



20 
2740224.14 

requirements of this Section will be incorporated by reference into the Project Condominium 
Documents and identified therein as a “Town Enforceable Restriction” encumbering the 
Common Elements.   

7.1.3 Drainage Plan Details. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, 
Developer shall submit a drainage plan to address temporary dewatering during construction, the 
provision of sand and oil traps, drainage of the patios, drainage of the garage vents, drainage of 
the gutter system, waterproofing of the foundation and other necessary drainage, with such plan 
submitted for review and approval by the Director of Public Works and Town Engineer concurrent 
with the required building permit review. Permanent dewatering is prohibited. 

7.1.4 Utility Provider Review and Approval of Utility Plans. Prior to the 
issuance of any building permits, the applicable utility provider to the Project shall review and 
approve the final utility plan. 

7.1.5 Composite Utility Plans. Prior to the issuance of any building 
permits, Developer shall submit a composite utility plan for Town review and approval that shows, 
both for permanent utility facilities and for temporary utility facilities during construction: (1) the 
proposed utility meter and utility pedestal locations with appropriate screening for the permanent 
facilities, (2) plans that conform to Town and utility company requirement for each applicable 
utility, and (3) utility provider approved utility and meter locations. 

7.1.6 Venting Plans. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, 
Developer shall submit detailed venting plans for Staff-DRB Chair review and approval as 
construction documents are developed for review and approval by Staff and the DRB Chair. 

7.1.7 Window Design. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, 
Developer shall submit details on window design consistent with the Design Regulations. 

7.1.8 Revised Geotechnical Reports and Design. Prior to the issuance of 
any building permits, Developer shall submit revised geotechnical reports prepared by a Colorado 
Registered Professional Engineer that are based on the proposed building permit building design. 
Developer shall incorporate revised geotechnical report recommendations into the building’s 
design prior to submitting for a building permit for the project. 

7.1.9 Construction Mitigation Plan. Prior to the issuance of any building 
permits, Developer shall submit a revised detailed construction mitigation plan for Staff review 
and approval. Key considerations of the construction mitigation plan shall include, but are not 
limited to: (1) the location of the crane(s) and avoiding movements of construction materials or 
equipment over neighboring properties; (2) construction parking; (3) truck ingress and egress from 
the job site; (4) ensuring minimal to no power or other utility interruptions; (5) protection of air 
and water quality; (6) maintaining traffic and pedestrian flows around the project in a safe manner 
and (7) an engineered plan for construction shoring and/or soil nailing that ensures adjoining 
properties will be protected. 

7.1.10 Grease Trap Plumbing Design. Prior to the issuance of any building 
permits, Developer shall submit engineering drawings for the plumbing system that includes 
grease traps prior to the issuance of a building permit per Sections 8.02.030.G and                                                            



21 
2740224.14 

13.04.030.A.4.a(i) through (vi) of the CDC. The grease trap access will be located in the parking 
garage loading dock area. 

7.1.11 Westermere Courtesy Notice. Prior to the issuance of any building 
permits, Developer shall notify the Westermere HOA or its property management company when 
building permit plans are submitted to the Town as a courtesy, provided that the foregoing is not 
intended to establish any requirement for Westermere to approve such plan as a condition to the 
issuance of a building permit by the Town. 

7.1.12 Colors and Materials. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, 
Developer will submit to Staff and DRB Chair a mock-up of all materials and colors. The Town 
will verify that the colors and materials presented with the building permit are substantially the 
same as shown on the model presented as a part of the Final PUD Plan public hearings, and if they 
are not then the Town may require Developer to resubmit the mock-up and revise the materials 
and colors to conform with prior representations.  

7.1.13 Final Exterior Door Designs. Prior to the issuance of any building 
permits, Developer shall provide final exterior door design details based on the Design 
Regulations, with such plans submitted concurrent with the building permit application. 

7.1.14 Acknowledgment of Trash Facility.  The Developer shall cause the 
Project Condominium Documents to reflect the existence of the Replacement Trash Facility in 
proximity to the Project to ensure that future property owners are put on notice of this facility and 
its potential impacts (noise, smell, aesthetics, etc.). These provisions will be designated as a “Town 
Enforceable Restriction” in the Project Condominium Documents.  

7.1.15 Replacement of Existing Town Trash Facility.  

A. On the Town Open Space Parcel, adjacent to the east of Lot 
109R, there is located an existing trash facility housing dumpsters which serves all of the Village 
Center core. Developer will replace the existing Trash Facility with an enhanced facility in 
accordance with the Final PUD Plans (the “Replacement Trash Facility”).  In order to 
accommodate the replacement of the Existing Trash Facility with the Replacement Trash Facility, 
prior to the issuance of any building permits, Developer will submit for review and approval by 
the Town and Bruin Waste Management a plan for the disposal, separation, storage, movement 
and collection of all waste streams handled at the Existing Trash Facility over the course of 
construction pending commissioning of the Replacement Trash Facility so as to provide ongoing 
service during construction. 

B. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this 
Section above, in the event the Town is able to provide an alternative location for the Replacement 
Trash Facility, then related amendments to the Town Approvals and this Agreement may be made 
and entered into with the approval of the Town without the requirement for a Major PUD 
amendment.  In such case, Developer shall pay to the Town the cost of constructing the 
Replacement Trash Facility as represented in Exhibit “B-1”. 

C.  The Town shall grant easements or licenses to the Owner 
for the construction of the Replacement Trash Facility as reasonably necessary.   



22 
2740224.14 

7.1.16 Landscape Plan. Developer shall maintain the required landscape 
planting as shown in the Town Approvals, including but not limited to replacing dead trees, 
pruning, irrigation and mowing, in perpetuity. 

8. Public Improvements. 

8.1. The “Public Improvements” required by this Agreement for development 
of the Project are listed on attached Exhibit “B-1,” and the estimated costs for construction of such 
improvements are set forth therein.  

8.2. Developer’s Construction Obligation and Standards. Developer shall timely 
construct and complete all required Public Improvements in accordance with the Final PUD Plans, 
the provisions of this Agreement and in compliance with all laws, regulations, standards, 
specifications and requirements of the United States, the State of Colorado, the Town of Mountain 
Village, and all their pertinent agencies (together, the “Plans and Specifications”). 

8.3. Construction Observation and Inspection.  

8.3.1 Pre-Construction Meeting. Developer shall hold a pre-construction 
meeting with the Community Development Director, Public Works Director, Town Engineer and 
Developer and Developer’s engineer and contractor(s) for the purpose of discussing all 
construction issues related to the Project. 

8.3.2 Construction Inspection by the Developer.  Developer shall be 
responsible for ensuring that its  engineer provides construction inspection services as necessary 
to allow, when Public Improvements are submitted to the Town for acceptance, a stamped 
certification that the Public Improvements have been constructed in accordance with the Plans and 
Specifications approved by the Town. 

8.3.3 Construction Observation by the Town.  The Town shall have the 
right to make engineering inspections at reasonable intervals, at Developer’s expense, during 
construction of the Public Improvements. Observation, acquiescence in, or approval by any 
engineering inspector of the construction of any physical facilities, at any particular time, shall not 
constitute Town acceptance of any Public Improvements. Town approvals shall be made only after 
completion of construction and in the manner hereinafter set forth. To assist the Town in 
monitoring the installation of the Public Improvements, a supervisor employed by Developer shall 
inspect the Public Improvements on at least a weekly basis and shall provide the Town Engineer 
with the supervisor’s field and inspection notes relating to the installation of the Public 
Improvements. The supervisor shall regularly apprise the Town Engineer of the status of the work 
on the Public Improvements. Further, Developer, at its own expense, shall have an approved 
geotechnical engineer monitor the methods of construction and backfill to ensure such work is 
being completed in conformance with the approved Plans and Specifications, and accepted 
standards for such work. The geotechnical engineer shall conduct inspections and testing as 
reasonably directed by the Town Engineer. The Town agrees to respond to requests for interim 
inspections in a timely manner and to respond not later than ten (10) Business Days after a request 
for a final inspection. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to constitute an acceptance by 



23 
2740224.14 

the Town of the Public Improvements, which approval and acceptance shall only occur pursuant 
to Section 8.5 below. 

8.4. Completion of Public Improvements. Developer shall complete 
construction of, and obtain the Town’s approval and acceptance of, all Public Improvements within 
five (5) years of commencement of construction of the Project (the “Completion Date”). 

8.5. Approval and Acceptance by Town. 

8.5.1 Request for Final Inspection.  Upon Developer’s construction of the 
Public Improvements, Developer or its engineer shall certify in writing to the Town Manager that 
the Public Improvements have been completed in conformance with the Plans and Specifications 
and request inspection of said improvements by the Town. Within ten (10) Business Days of 
Developer’s request for final inspection, the Town Engineer shall inspect the Public Improvements 
and notify the Parties, in writing and with specificity, of their conformity or lack thereof to the 
Plans and Specifications including any corrective measures to be taken by Developer. Developer, 
at its expense, shall make all corrections necessary to bring the Public Improvements into 
conformity with the Plans and Specifications. Developer shall thereafter request re-inspection of 
the Public Improvements. The Town Engineer shall not be required to make inspections during 
any period when weather conditions make thorough inspections impractical. 

8.5.2 Engineering Acceptance.  Developer, at its expense, shall have “as-
built” drawings of the Public Improvements prepared by a professional engineer and a registered 
land surveyor, which drawings shall include all legal descriptions the Town may require. 
Developer shall also prepare a summary of the actual construction costs of all Public 
Improvements to be dedicated to the Town for review and approval. Once the as-built drawings 
and costs summary are approved, and any and all corrections are completed, the Town Engineer 
shall promptly notify the Parties in writing that all Public Improvements are in conformity with 
the Plans and Specifications, and the date of such notification shall be known as the “Engineering 
Acceptance Date.” The Town shall be under no obligation to provide water and/or sewer service 
to the Project until any water/sewer Public Improvements are brought into conformance with the 
Plans and Specifications as determined by the Town Engineer. 

8.5.3 Final Acceptance and Conveyance.  Within thirty (30) days of the 
Engineering Acceptance Date, Developer shall execute a bill of sale conveying the Public 
Improvements to the Town, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances. As a condition precedent 
to the Town’s acceptance of the Public Improvements, the Developer shall provide the Town with 
a policy of title insurance for at least $25,000.00 to insure any real property, if any, dedicated to 
the Town with the Public Improvements. The effective date of the bill of sale shall be known as 
the “Final Acceptance Date.”  

8.6. Warranty. Developer shall warrant any and all Public Improvements 
conveyed to the Town pursuant to this Agreement for a period of two (2) years from the Final 
Acceptance Date. Specifically, but not by way of limitation, Developer shall warrant: 

a. Any and all improvements conveyed shall be free from any security interest 
or other lien or encumbrance; 



24 
2740224.14 

 
b. Any and all improvements conveyed shall be free of any defects in materials 

or workmanship for a period of two (2) years as stated above; and 
 

c. The title conveyed shall be good and its transfer rightful. 
 

8.7. Damage to Existing Facilities. Developer, at its expense, agrees to repair 
any existing improvements or facilities in the Town damaged during construction of the Public 
Improvements and such other items as the Town deems appropriate. 

8.8. Performance Guarantee. In accordance with Section 17.4.13(L) of the Code, 
the total amount of required security for the Public Improvements shall be one hundred twenty-
five percent (125%) of the cost estimates set forth in Exhibit “B-1” (the “Performance 
Guarantee”).  

8.8.1 Form of Security. To secure the construction and installation of the 
Public Improvements for which Developer is responsible, Developer shall, prior to issuance of 
building permit, provide the Town with an irrevocable letter of credit, or multiple irrevocable 
letters of credit (corresponding to each of the Public Improvements), issued or confirmed by a 
commercial banking institution whereby the Town shall have the unconditional and irrevocable 
right upon default by Developer to withdraw or acquire funds upon demand to partially or fully 
complete and/or pay for any of the Public Improvements. Said letters of credit shall be valid for at 
least two (2) months longer than the Completion Date for the Public Improvements, as defined in 
Section 8.4. If the time of completion of the Public Improvements is extended, the letter of credit 
shall be similarly extended. Under the terms of the letter of credit, the Town shall be allowed to 
present drafts and accompanying documents to the issuing institution by overnight courier. The 
Town shall have the right to review and approve all terms and conditions of the letter of credit 
prior to accepting it. 

8.8.2 Developer Responsible for Actual Costs.  The Parties agree that the 
Performance Guarantee does not necessarily reflect the Town Engineer’s estimate of what the 
actual costs to the Town would be if the Town were required to fund construction of the Public 
Improvements. In the event that the actual costs of the Public Improvements exceed the amount of 
the Performance Guarantee, Developer shall be responsible for the actual costs. The purpose of 
Exhibit “B-1” is solely to determine the amount of security and shall be revised as necessary to 
reflect the actual costs, and the Performance Guarantee required by this Agreement shall be 
adjusted accordingly. No representations are made as to the accuracy of these estimates, and 
Developer agrees to pay the actual costs of all Public Improvements. 

8.8.3 Default. The Parties expressly agree that Developer’s preparation 
and submission to the Town of as-built drawings and a summary of actual construction costs for 
the Public Improvements to be dedicated to the Town are essential requirements of this Agreement. 
In the event that Developer fails to provide the as-built drawings and costs summary to the Town 
fifteen (15) Business Days prior to the expiration of the Performance Guarantee or any extension 
thereof, such failure shall constitute a default of this Agreement with regard to the completion of 
the Public Improvements, damages for which are impossible to ascertain, entitling the Town to 



25 
2740224.14 

liquidated damages in the amount of $15,000.00, which the Town may collect pursuant to Section 
14.1 of this Agreement. 

8.8.4 Use of Performance Guarantee. If the Town Manager determines 
that reasonable grounds exist to believe that Developer is failing or will fail to construct or install 
the Public Improvements as required by this Agreement, the Town may draw on the Performance 
Guarantee as necessary to construct the Public Improvements. In such event, the Town shall be 
entitled to recover such costs as are reasonable to administer the construction of the Public 
Improvements. In no event shall Developer take any action which shall impair the ability of the 
Town to draw on the Performance Guarantee during the term of this Agreement. 

8.9. Release of Performance Guarantee. Upon acceptance of all Public 
Improvements by the Town, but no earlier than the Final Acceptance Date, the Town shall release 
the Performance Guarantee and shall assume normal maintenance responsibilities for the Public 
Improvements. A portion of the Performance Guarantee may be released as specific improvements 
are completed in accordance with Section 17.4.13(L)(5) of the CDC; provided, however, that no 
such partial or final release shall be granted until the Public Improvements guaranteed have been 
inspected and accepted by the Town, as evidenced by a written correspondence confirming 
completion. 

8.10. Reduction in Security Not Approval of Public Improvements. Neither 
approval of any reduction to the approved form of security nor any other reduction in security shall 
be construed as the approval or acceptance of any of the Public Improvements, which approval 
and acceptance shall only occur pursuant to Section 8.5 above. 

9. Grading and Excavation.  No grading or excavation shall occur until the Replat 
has been recorded, the Performance Guarantee has been provided for all Public Improvements, 
and the building permit for the entire Project has been issued. 

10. Vested Rights. 

10.1. Intent. Development of the Property in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement will provide for orderly and well planned growth, promote economic 
development and stability within the Town, ensure reasonable certainty, stability and fairness in 
the land use planning process, secure the reasonable investment-backed expectations of Developer, 
foster cooperation between the public and private sectors in the area of land use planning, and 
otherwise achieve the goals and purposes of the “Vested Rights Statute,” C.R.S.§ 24-68-101, et. 
seq., and the CDC. In exchange for these benefits and the other benefits to the Town contemplated 
by this Agreement, together with the Public Benefits served by the orderly and well planned 
development of the Property, Developer desires to receive the assurance that development of the 
Property may proceed pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

10.2. Site Specific Development Plan. The Town Approvals, Replat, Final PUD 
Plans and this Agreement constitute a “Site Specific Development Plan” pursuant the Vested 
Rights Statute and CDC Section 17.4.12.D.1.g. 

10.3. Vested Real Property Right. Accordingly, this final approval has created for 
Developer’s benefit a “vested real property right” as defined by C.R.S. § 24-68-101, et seq., and 



26 
2740224.14 

this Agreement shall be considered a “Development Agreement” as that term is used in C.R.S. § 
24-68-104; provided, however, Developer acknowledges that the Town does not represent, warrant 
or guarantee that the duration of this Site Specific Development Plan will be extended beyond 
three (3) years by the Town, subject to Section 10.5 below. 

10.4. Required Plan Notation. Pursuant to CDC Section 17.4.17, the Parties set 
forth the following required plan notation: 

Approval of this site-specific development plan may create a vested property right pursuant 
to C.R.S. § 24-68-101-106 and subject to the Town of Mountain Village’s Community 
Development Code. 

10.5. Duration. For purposes of this Agreement, the above-referenced vested real 
property right shall remain vested until the date that is three (3) years after the date on which Final 
Approval occurs.  For purposes of this Agreement: (i) “Final Approval” will occur with respect to 
each of the Town Approvals: (A) if no Legal Challenge is filed prior to such date, on the thirty-
fifth (35th) day after the date the ordinances approved as part of the Town Approvals are published 
(the “Publication Date”); or (B) if a Legal Challenge is filed against one or more of the Town 
Approvals prior to the thirty-fifth (35th) day after the Publication Date, and unless the Parties agree 
otherwise, all such Legal Challenges are resolved in a manner that is final, not subject to appeal, 
and upholds the validity of the Town Approvals that were subject to the Legal Challenge; and (ii) 
“Legal Challenge” means: (A) any third party’s commencement of a legal proceeding, pursuant to 
C.R.C.P. Rule 106 or otherwise, that directly or indirectly challenges, or seeks to reverse or nullify, 
any of the Town Approvals; or (B) the submission of a valid petition under the Charter for a 
referendum seeking to reverse or nullify any of the Town Approvals.  The foregoing is intended 
to extend the vesting period in the event that a Legal Challenge remains pending, because the 
Parties recognize that the pendency of a Legal Challenge could interfere with Developer’s ability 
to complete the Project. 

10.6. Publication. A notation of such vested real property right has been made on 
the Final PUD Plans. The Town shall promptly cause to be published, at Developer’s expense, a 
notice of such vested rights in the Telluride Daily Planet. 

10.7. Reliance. Developer has relied upon the creation of such vested real 
property right in entering into this Agreement.  

10.8. Future Legislation. Except as the Vested Rights Statute expressly provides 
otherwise, no initiated or referred zoning, subdivision, land use or other legal or administrative 
action that would directly or indirectly have the effect of adversely altering, impairing, preventing, 
diminishing, imposing a moratorium on development, delaying or otherwise adversely affecting 
any of Developer’s rights set forth in this Agreement shall apply to or be effective against the 
Property. Thus, during the period in which the vested real property right shall remain vested, the 
Town shall not impose by legislation or otherwise cause or permit any initiate or referred zoning, 
land use requirement or obligations, or Town charter amendment upon Developer or their 
successors or assigns which would alter, impair, prevent, diminish, impose a moratorium on 
development, or otherwise adversely affect any of Developer’s rights to development or use of the 
Property as set forth in the Final PUD Plans, except: 



27 
2740224.14 

10.8.1 With the consent of Developer; or 

10.8.2 Upon the discovery of natural or man-made hazards on or in the 
immediate vicinity of the Property, which could not reasonably have been discovered at the time 
of vested rights approval, and which, if not corrected, would pose a serious threat to the public 
health, safety and welfare; or 

10.8.3 To the extent that compensation is paid, as provided in Title 24, 
Article 68, CRS. 

The establishment of such vested real property right shall not preclude the application of 
Town ordinances or regulations which are general in nature and applicable to all property subject 
to land use regulation by the Town, including, but not limited to, fee assessments and building, 
fire, plumbing, electrical, mechanical, water and sewer codes and ordinances. 

11. Conditions of Building Permit. In addition to all requirements of the Code, 
the Town’s Building Regulations, and any requirements imposed by operation of state, federal or 
local law, no building permit shall be issued for the Property until:  

• The Replat and this Agreement have been approved by Town Staff and the Town 
Manager, signed by all required Parties, and recorded in the Official Records. 

• Exhibit “B-1” outlining the Performance Guarantee amounts has been completed 
and approved by the Town after Final PUD Plans and cost estimates are complete. 

• The Performance Guarantee has been provided to the Town. 
• Developer has provided written confirmation from Six Senses (or an equivalent 

Hotel Operator) of its commitment to operate the Project per Section 5.1(B). 
• Such portions of the Mitigation Payment to the Town per Section 5.1.2 as the 

Town may elect in its sole discretion to apply to housing mitigation, together with 
the One-Time Payment to the Town per Section 5.1.2 and the inclusion in the 
Project of the Employee Apartments and Employee Dorms and encumbrance of 
the Employee Housing Unit of which they will be a part with the Employee 
Housing Restriction attached to this Agreement as Exhibit “D,”  shall, 
collectively, satisfy all housing mitigation requirements including, but not limited 
to, Code Sections, 7.3.9 and 17.9.7. 

• The Town has approved design of snow melt and drainage systems per Section 
5.1.6(A). 

• Payment to the Town of $250,000 for certain improvements to the Village Center. 
• Developer has provided either authorization and consent of Westermere HOA for 

improvements to Breezeway or the payment-in-lieu per Section 5.1.8. 
• The Town has approved final designs of Town Parking Spaces per Section 6.1.1. 
• Termination of Surface Parking Lease Agreement per Section 6.4. 
• The Town has approved drainage plan per Section 7.1.3. 
• Utility provider(s) has approved final utility plan per Section 7.1.4. 
• The Town has approved composite utility plan per Section 7.1.5. 
• The Town has approved venting plans per Section 7.1.6. 
• Developer has provided details on window design per Section 7.1.7. 



28 
2740224.14 

• Developer has provided revised geotechnical reports per Section 7.1.8. 
• Developer has provided revised construction mitigation plan per Section 7.1.9. 
• Developer has provided drawings for grease trap plumbing design per Section 

7.1.10. 
• Developer has provided proof of courtesy notice to Westermere HOA per Section 

7.1.11. 
• Developer has provided mock-up of colors and materials per Section 7.1.12. 
• Developer has provided final exterior door design details per Section 7.1.13. 
• The Town and Bruin Waste Management have approved the Replacement Trash 

Facility or Developer has provided the payment-in-lieu per Section 7.1.15. 
• Developer has paid all required tap fees for the Project. 
• All conditions of the Town Council Approval Ordinance have been addressed 

and resolved, as applicable, to the satisfaction of Town Staff. 
• All conditions of the resolution approving the Major Subdivision Application 

have been addressed and resolved, as applicable, to the satisfaction of Town Staff. 
• All DRB conditions of final approval have been addressed to the satisfaction of 

Town Staff. 
• Developer has paid all then-outstanding invoices from the Town. 

 
12. Conditions of Certificate of Occupancy. In addition to all requirements of 

the Code, the Town’s Building Regulations, and any requirements imposed by operation of 
state, federal or local law, no Certificate of Occupancy shall be issued for the Property until: 

• Developer has provided the ILC for the location of all footers and demonstrating 
that all structures, facilities and other components of the Project have been 
constructed within the platted boundaries of the Property except for those 
authorized to be placed outside of the Property within the boundaries of 
easements, per Section 7.1.1. 

• If applicable, execution and recordation of any remaining easement agreements 
contemplated herein. 

• Execution of Exhibit D. 
• Installation of civic wayfinding signage for public access areas. 
• The Town has approved the Project Association governing documents. 
• Developer has submitted to the Town a Class 3 Application for its sign plan. 
• The Town has approved Developer’s Class 3 Application for its sign plan. 
• The Town has accepted all Public Improvements. 
• All conditions of the Town Council Approval Ordinance have been addressed 

and resolved, as applicable, to the satisfaction of Town Staff. 
• All conditions of the resolution approving the Major Subdivision Application 

have been addressed and resolved, as applicable, to the satisfaction of Town Staff. 
• All DRB conditions of final approval have been addressed to the satisfaction of 

Town Staff. 
• Developer has paid all then-outstanding invoices from the Town. 

 



29 
2740224.14 

13. Order of Recordation and Closing Instructions. The Town and Developer 
shall cooperate in good faith to prepare a joint closing instruction letter to a title company retained 
by Developer providing for the conditions, prerequisites, and the order of recording in the Official 
Records of all documents relevant to the Town Approvals, the Replat, and this Agreement, 
payments and disbursements among the parties, and such other matters as necessary to effectuate 
the terms of the Town Approvals and this Agreement. 

14. Miscellaneous. 

14.1. Remedies For Breach or Default. In the event of any default by Developer 
of any term, condition, covenant or obligation under this Agreement, the Town Council shall be 
immediately notified. The Town may take such action as it deems necessary to protect the public 
health, safety and welfare and to protect the citizens of the Town from hardship against Developer, 
or its successors and assigns, which remedies are cumulative and non-exclusive. The Town’s 
remedies include any one or more of the following: 

14.1.1 Refusing to issue to Developer any Building Permit or Certificate of 
Occupancy; provided, however, that this remedy shall not be available to the Town until after the 
affidavit described below has been recorded; 

14.1.2 Recording in the Official Records of an affidavit, approved in 
writing by the Town Attorney and signed by the Town Manager or designee, stating that the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement have been breached by the Developer. At the next regularly 
scheduled Town Council meeting, the Town Council shall either ratify the recordation of said 
affidavit or direct the Town Manager to record an affidavit stating that the default has been cured. 
Upon the recording of such an affidavit, no further development may occur on the Property until 
the default has been cured. An affidavit signed by the Town Manager or designee and approved 
by the Town Council stating that the default has been cured shall remove the restriction on further 
development; 

14.1.3 A demand that the Performance Guarantee be paid or honored; 

14.1.4 The refusal to consider further development plans on the Property; 
and/or 

14.1.5 Any other remedy available at law or under the CDC. 

Unless necessary to protect the immediate health, safety and welfare of the Town or its 
citizens, the Town shall provide Developer with twenty-one (21) days’ written notice of its intent 
to take any action under this Section during which period Developer may cure the default described 
in said notice and prevent any further action by the Town. Furthermore, unless an affidavit as 
described above has been recorded in the Official Records, any person or entity dealing with 
Developer shall be entitled to assume that no default by Developer has occurred hereunder unless 
a notice of default has been served upon Developer as described above, in which event Developer 
shall be expressly responsible for informing any such third party of the claimed default by the 
Town. 



30 
2740224.14 

14.2. Governing Law, Costs and Expenses. This Agreement shall be construed 
under and governed by the laws of Colorado, with jurisdiction and venue restricted to a court of 
competent jurisdiction in San Miguel County, Colorado. In any action to enforce or construe the 
terms of this Agreement, the substantially prevailing Party shall recover all legal and related court 
costs, including all reasonable attorneys’ fees and expert witness fees, costs and expenses. 
Regardless of the prevailing party in any such dispute, Developer shall reimburse the Town for 
any fees and costs incurred by the Town in relation to the review and approval of the Final PUD 
Plans, including but not limited to fees and costs for legal, engineering and surveying services by 
outside consultants.  

14.3. Indemnity. Except as otherwise set forth herein, Developer shall defend and 
hold the Town harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, actions, costs, 
damages, and attorney’s fees that may arise out of or result directly or indirectly from the 
development of the Property and all the Town Approvals, including but not limited to any claims 
regarding insufficient notice of any public meeting or hearing concerning the Applications, 
Developer or Owner’s failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
Developer or Owner’s improper design or construction of the Public Improvements required 
thereunder, or Developer or Owner’s failure to construct or complete the same; provided, however, 
such indemnification shall not apply to loss, damage or claims attributable to the negligent acts or 
omissions of the Town or its agents, employees or contractors. This provision shall survive 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

14.4. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the Town and 
its successors and assigns and shall be binding upon Developer, its successors and assigns 
including, upon creation of the Condominium Project, the applicable Owners.  This Agreement 
shall constitute an agreement running with the Property until modification or release by mutual 
agreement of the Town and Developer. This Agreement may be amended or supplemented by the 
Town and Developer without any requirement for Developer to obtain the approval of any Unit 
Owners (other than the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit) or the Association, except that notice 
of any amendment shall be duly noticed in accordance with the CDC and each Unit Owner and 
the Association shall be entitled to attend any hearing and comment on any proposed amendment 
to this Agreement. 

14.5. Voluntary Agreement. Notwithstanding any provision of the Code, this 
Agreement is the voluntary and contractual agreement of Developer and the Town. Developer 
agrees that the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including specifically the payment of all 
fees, and the completion and satisfaction of all terms and conditions of the Town Approvals are 
agreed to and constitute the voluntary actions of Developer. 

14.6. Parties Representations. In entering into this Agreement, the Parties 
acknowledge and agree and represent and warrant to each other as follows: (a) that they will 
perform their duties and obligations in a commercially reasonable and good faith manner and that 
this commitment is being relied upon by each other Party; (b) that parties will promptly provide a 
response to a notice when required, the response will be provided within the timeframe established 
and if no timeframe is stated, it shall be deemed to be thirty (30) days and the failure to timely 
provide a response shall be deemed to be an approval; (c) that the Party is a duly qualified and 
existing entity, capable of doing business in the State of Colorado; and (d) that the Party has actual 



31 
2740224.14 

and express authority to execute this Agreement, has taken all actions necessary to obtain such 
authorization, the Agreement constitutes a binding obligation of the Party and the person signing 
below is duly authorized and empowered to execute this Agreement. 

14.7. Severability and Further Assurances. If any term or provision or Article of 
this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be 
invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement or the applications or such term or 
provision or Article to persons or circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid or 
unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each remaining term and provision of this 
Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. Each Party shall 
execute and deliver such documents or instruments and take such action as may be reasonably 
requested by the other Party to confirm or clarify the intent of the provisions hereof and to 
effectuate the agreements herein contained and the intent hereof. 

14.8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and 
understanding of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other representations, 
promises, agreements or understandings or obligations with respect to the payment of 
consideration or agreements to undertake other actions regarding the subject matter hereof shall 
be of any force or effect unless in writing, executed by all Parties hereto and dated after the date 
hereof. 

14.9. Modifications and Waiver. No amendment, modification or termination of 
this Agreement or any portion thereof shall be valid or binding unless it is in writing, dated 
subsequent to the date hereof and signed by each of the Parties hereto. No waiver of any breach, 
term or condition of this Agreement by any party shall constitute a subsequent waiver of the same 
or any other breach, term or condition. 

14.10. Counterparts and Electronic Copies. This Agreement may be executed in 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same document. Electronic copies of any Party’s signature hereon shall be deemed an 
original for all purposes of this Agreement. 

14.11. Notice. Any notice to be given hereunder shall be in writing, addressed to 
the Town or the appropriate Party, and shall be delivered in person; by overnight delivery or 
courier service; or by the United States Postal Service (or any official successor thereto), certified 
mail, return receipt requested, with adequate postage prepaid. Such notice shall be deemed 
delivered at the time of personal delivery, or, if mailed, on the date postmarked, but if mailed the 
time period for any required response shall run from the date of receipt by the addressee, as 
evidenced by the return receipt. Rejection or other failure by the addressee to accept the notice, or 
the inability to deliver the notice because of a change of address of which no notice was given, 
shall be deemed receipt of the notice on the third day following the date postmarked. The addresses 
of the Town and Developer to which notice is to be sent shall be those set forth below.  The 
addresses of all other Unit Owners to which notice is to be sent shall be the address on file with 
the San Miguel County Assessor with respect to such Unit Owner’s CCIOA Condominium Unit. 

Such addresses may be changed by the Town or Developer by written notice to the 
other delivered in accordance with this Section. 



32 
2740224.14 

Town: 

Town of Mountain Village 
Attn: Town Manager 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A  
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

With copy to: 

Garfield & Hecht, P.C. 
Attn: David H. McConaughy 
910 Grand Ave., Suite 201 
Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 
 
Developer: 

Tiara Telluride, LLC  
Attn: Avani Patel 
450 S. Old Dixie Hwy 
Jupiter, FL 33458 

With copy to: 

Sherman & Howard, L.L.C. 
Attn: Cynthia M. Stovall 
675 15th St. #2300 
Denver, CO 80202 
 
14.12. Exhibits and Attachments. All exhibits and attachments to this Agreement 

shall be incorporated herein and deemed a part of this Agreement. 

14.13. Rights of Lenders. The Town is aware that financing for acquisition, 
development and/or construction, reconstruction or remodeling of the Project or portions thereof 
(“Developer Loan”) may be provided in whole or in part, from time to time, by one or more 
lenders (each, a “Lender”) and consents to the collateral assignment of this Agreement to any such 
Lender. In the event of an event of default by the Developer under this Agreement, the Town shall 
provide notice of such event of default, at the same time notice is provided to Developer, to any 
Lender to Developer previously identified in writing to the Town (“Registered Lender”) pursuant 
to this Section at the address provided in such writing (which may be updated by delivery of written 
notice to the Town pursuant to this Section). A Successor by Foreclosure (defined below), in 
connection with a Foreclosure Event (defined below), shall be entitled to assume all of the rights 
and obligations of Developer under this Agreement and the Town shall recognize and otherwise 
permit such Successor by Foreclosure to assume all of the rights and obligations of Developer 
under this Agreement,  provided that nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any duty, 
obligation or other requirement on the part of a Successor by Foreclosure to assume any of the 
duties and obligations of Developer under this Agreement unless the Successor by Foreclosure 
takes fee simple title to the Project through a Foreclosure Event, in which case the Successor by 



33 
2740224.14 

Foreclosure shall be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. A “Foreclosure Event” 
means: (a) foreclosure under a Developer Loan, whether by judicial action or pursuant to 
nonjudicial proceedings; (b) any other exercise by a Lender of rights and remedies (whether under 
the deed of trust securing the Developer Loan or under applicable law, including bankruptcy law) 
as holder of the Developer Loan and/or as beneficiary under the deed of trust, as a result of which 
any Successor by Foreclosure (as hereinafter defined) becomes owner of the Property; or (c) 
delivery by Developer to such Lender (or its designee or nominee) of a deed or other conveyance 
of Developer’s interest in Property in lieu of any of the foregoing. A “Successor by Foreclosure” 
means any party that becomes owner of the Property as the result of a Foreclosure Event.  
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Section, in no event shall the Successor 
by Foreclosure have any liability for sums due and payable under this Agreement prior to its 
acquisition of title to the Property.  At the time of recording this Agreement, Developer shall 
provide proof satisfactory to the Town Attorney that the Property is free and clear of any liens, 
which may be in the form of the title commitment obtained by Developer for the property in 
connection with the Town/Developer Land Exchange Closing pursuant to Section 4.2.3.B.ii, or if 
it is not free and clear then any existing lienholders as of that time shall be required to subordinate 
their interests. 

14.14. No Further Rights; No Third Party Rights. It is expressly understood and 
agreed that enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action 
relating to such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the Town, and nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall give or allow any such claim or right of action by any other or third person, 
including but not limited to other Owners or the Project Association.  It is the express intention of 
the Town and Developer that any person other than the Town receiving services or benefits under 
this Agreement shall be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary only. 

14.15. Term of Agreement. This Agreement and the Town Approvals as they relate 
to the Applications, except for the Replat, shall expire as of the date that is three (3) years after the 
date on which Final Approval occurs unless Developer has either: (a) obtained a building permit 
and commenced construction of the Project; or (b) applied for and obtained an approval to extend 
this Agreement and the Town Approvals. If construction has not timely commenced or an 
extension not obtained prior to the date that is three (3) years after the date on which Final Approval 
occurs, the Town Approvals shall expire, except that the Replat and the density assigned to the 
Property shall remain in place, but prior to any use and development of the Property, the developer 
of the Property must reapply for and obtain necessary approvals of applications for rezoning, PUD, 
variations/waivers and design review approval for any project contemplated for the Property, 
which will be reviewed in accordance with CDC and Design Regulations in place at the time of 
the submission of any such application. 

14.16. Conflicts Between Hotel Covenant and Development Agreement. Any 
conflicts between the terms of this Agreement and the Hotel Covenant shall be resolved in favor 
of the most restrictive applicable term in either document. 

14.17. Industry Standards and Norms. Customary industry practices, standards and 
norms shall be relied upon if and when necessary for purposes of interpreting, applying and 
enforcing the terms and conditions established in this Agreement. 



34 
2740224.14 

14.18. Assignment. [TBD by Town Staff and Town Manager between first and 
second reading].     

14.19. Appropriation. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed or 
interpreted: i) to directly or indirectly obligate the Town to make any payment in any year in excess 
of amounts appropriated for such year; ii) as creating a debt or multiple fiscal year direct or indirect 
debt or other financial obligation whatsoever within the meaning of Article X, Section 16 or Article 
X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution or any other constitutional or statutory limitation or 
provision; or iii) as a donation or grant by the Town to or in aid of any person, company or 
corporation within the meaning of the Colorado Constitution. 

14.20. Immunity. Nothing herein nor in any related documents relating to the 
Approvals shall be construed as a waiver, or partial waiver, by the Town of any portion of the 
Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. §§ 24-10-101, et seq. 

[Signature pages to follow]  



35 
2740224.14 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

TOWN: 

Town of Mountain Village, a Colorado 
home rule municipality  
 
By:  Date:   

Martinique Prohaska, Mayor 

Attest:   

By:   Date:   
Paul Wisor, Town Manager 

STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     ) ss.   
COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL ) 

Acknowledged, subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of _________, 20___ by 
Martinique Prohaska as the Mayor of Town of Mountain Village. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

  My commission expires:   
Notary Public 

STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     ) ss.   
COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL ) 

Acknowledged, subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of _________, 20___ by Paul 
Wisor as the Town Manager of Town of Mountain Village. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

  My commission expires:   
Notary Public 

  



36 
2740224.14 

DEVELOPER: 

Tiara Telluride, LLC,  
a Colorado limited liability company  
 
By:   Date:   
Printed Name:   
Title:   

STATE OF  ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF  ) 

Acknowledged, subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of _________, 20___ by 
______________ as _________ of Tiara Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

  My commission expires:   
Notary Public 

 



 

A-1 
 
Error! Unknown document property name. 
2740224.14 

Exhibit “A”  
Final PUD Plans 



WINDOW TAG

DOOR TAG

NORTH ARROW
REVISION CLOUD AND TAG

GRID LINE

VERTICAL ELEVATION 
REFERENCE

TR
UE

 
NO

RT
H

EXTERIOR ELEVATION 
REFERENCE

INTERIOR ELEVATION 
REFERENCE

CENTERLINE

1

INTERIOR PARTITION TYPE 

X###

1 Ref

1

Re
f

1

Re
f

1 Ref

Name
Elevation

X#x

230

##

X-#### #
#

#

#/X

#/X

#
X-###

#
X-###

#
X-###

#

X-###

WALL SECTION 
REFERENCE

BUILDING SECTION 
REFERENCE

DETAIL CALLOUT

DETAIL SECTION 
REFERENCE

23 VIEW NAME
1/8" = 1'-0"

VIEW NUMBER

VIEW NAME

VIEW SCALE

X-###
#

XX#

XX#

XX#

XXX#

?X# KEYNOTE REFERENCE

FLOOR FINISH TAG

WALL FINISH TAG

SPECIALTY EQUIPMENT TAG

CASEWORK TAG

ARCHITECT

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD,
STE 132
LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

CIVIL ENGINEER

UPCOMPAHGRE 
ENGINEERING, LLC
P.O.BOX 3945
TELLURIDE, CO 81435

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT

MARPA LANDSCAPE 
ARCHITECTURE
1539 PEARL ST
BOULDER, CO 80302

OWNER

TIARA TELLURIDE
450 S OLD DIXIE HWY 
JUPITER, FL 33458

PROJECT TEAM

STRUCTURAL
ENGINEER

ANCHOR ENGINEERING
2535 17TH ST
DENVER, CO 80211

MECHANICAL/PLUMBING 
ENGINEER

MCGRATH INCORPORATED
5353 W DARTHMOUTH AVE
SUITE 506
DENVER, CO 80227

LIGHTING DESIGNER

G2J DESIGN NEW 
YORK
2287 JOHNSON AVE 
SUTE #15 H
RIVERDALE, NY 
10463

ELECTRICAL ENGINEER

AE DESIGN
1900 WAZEE ST, #205
DENVER, CO 80202

INTERIORS

ROSE INK WORKSHOP
5 WHITE ST, 4B
NEW YORK, NY 10013

DRAWING SYMBOLS

VICINITY MAP

SCOPE OF WORK

THE PROPOSED CONCEPT DESIGN IS COMPRISED OF HOTEL WITH EMPLOYEE 
HOUSING, APARTMENTS, AND CONDOS. THE COMMERCIAL SPACE INCLUDES 
RETAIL SPACES, RESTAURANTS, BAR, SPA, WEDDING VENUE, MEETING SPACE, 
AND POOL DECK.

SHEET INDEX

PROJECT INFORMATION

Mountain Village Blvd

Moun
tain

 Villa
ge 

Blvd

Co
un

try
 C

lub
 D

r

PROJECT LOCATION

PROJECT LOCATION

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, CO

ZONING AND DESIGNATION:

ZONE DISTRICT - VILLAGE CENTER

LOT 109R2 - MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT

LOT 109R2 TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE ACCORDING TO 
THE REPLAT OF LOTS 73-76R, 109, 110, TRACT 89-A AND 
TRACT OS-3BR-1 RECORDED MARCH 18, 2011 IN PLAT BOOK 1 
AT PAGE 4455, COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL, STATE OF 
COLORADO

PROPOSED PUD AREA:

0.833 ACRES - 36,319 SQ. FT.

17.8.1 LOT COVERAGE:
(INCLUSIVE OF COVERED WALKWAYS, PATIOS & DECKS)

34,489 SF /36,319 SF x 100 = 95%

(17.8.1 FLOOR AREA, GROSS) BUILDING AREA:

179,091 SF TOTAL CONDITIONED

84,011 SF PARKING & MECHANICAL - TEMPERED

263,102 SF COMBINED CONDITIONED + TEMPERED

BUILDING HEIGHTS:

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 88' - 9"
AVERAGE BUILDING HEIGHT: 63.61'

*ADDITIONAL HEIGHT INFORMATION CAN BE FOUND ON
SHEETS A-1.11, A-1.12. A-2.02, A-2.03, A-2.04, & A-2.05

PER MOUNTAIN VILLAGE CDC SECTION 1601:

GRND SNOW LOAD: 130 lbs. MIN (standard plus elevation per 
SEAC Guide)
WIND SPEED: 90 MPH (3 sec wind gust)
WIND EXPOSURE: C
CLIMATE ZONE: 6B
SEIMSMIC DESIGN: CLASS C
FROST LINE DEPT: 48”
TERMITES: SLIGHT TO MODERATE

BUILDING ENVELOPE

ARCHITECTURAL CONSULTING 
& FORENSICS, PLLC
4739 N LUNE AVE
CHICAGO, IL 60630

LEED & ENERGY 
MODELER

INTERTEK
1795 DOGWOOD ST., 
SUITE 200
LOUISVILLE, CO 80027

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

7/1
0/2

02
3 5

:15
:30

 P
M

G-000

COVER SHEET

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

SHEET
NUMBER

SHEET NAME
DRB SUBMITTAL

#1 04.24.22

SPECIAL HEARING
SUBMITTAL

05.19.22

TOWN COUNCIL
SUBMITTAL #1

06.07.22

TOWN COUNCIL
SUBMITTAL

08.08.22

FINAL DRB
SUBMITTAL

10.21.22

TOWN COUNCIL
SUBMITTAL

12.16.22/01.09.23

TOWN COUNCIL FIRST RD'G
FIRST SUBMITTAL 05.02.23 (X)
STAFF REQUESTED REVISED

SHEETS REDATED 06.01.23 (X1)

TOWN COUNCIL
FIRST RD'G

07.19.23
01 GENERAL

G-000 COVER SHEET X X X X X X X1 X
G-001 FLOOR AREA GROSS X X
G-002 NET FLOOR AREA X X
G-003 PLAN DIAGRAMS X X X

02-CIVIL

C2.1 SITE GRADING WITH GARAGE ACCESS
PROFILE

X X X X X X X1 X

C2.2 SITE GRADING WITH PORTE COCHERE
LEVEL

X1 X

C2.3 PROFILES X1 X
C2.4 SNOWMELT DIAGRAM X X X
C3 UTILITY PLAN X X X X

C3.1 UTILITY & STORM DRAIN PLAN X X X1 X
C4 CONSTRUCTION MITIGATION PLAN X X X X
C5 CONSTRUCTION MITIGATION PLAN X X X X

C6 AREA OF POTENTIAL WORK IN TOWN
RIGHT-OF-WAY

X X X

03-LANDSCAPE
L0.02 EXISTING TREE PLAN & REPORT X X X X
L1.01 PLAZA LANDSCAPE PLAN X X X X
L1.02 PLAZA LANDSCAPE MATERIALS X X X X
L1.03 LANDSCAPE FLOORS 2-5 X X X X
L1.04 LANDSCAPE FLOORS 6-7 X X X X
L2.01 PLAZA LANDSCAPE BOULDER PLAN X X X X
L2.02 SNOWMELT DIAGRAM X X X1 X
L2.03 PLAZA IRRIGATION PLAN X X X X
L2.04 PLAZA OUTDOOR LIGHTING DIAGRAM X

L2.05 OUTDOOR LIGHTING DIAGRAM FLOORS
6-7

X

L4.01 PLAZA PLANTING PLAN X X X X
05-ARCHITECTURAL

A-0.00 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN X X X X X X X1 X
A-0.P1 PERSPECTIVE RENDERINGS X X X X X X X X
A-0.P2 PERSPECTIVE RENDERINGS X X X X X
A-0.P3 PERSPECTIVE RENDERINGS X X X X X
A-0.P4 PERSPECTIVE RENDERINGS X X X X
A-0.P5 PERSPECTIVE RENDERINGS X X X X

SHEET
NUMBER

SHEET NAME
DRB SUBMITTAL

#1 04.24.22

SPECIAL HEARING
SUBMITTAL

05.19.22

TOWN COUNCIL
SUBMITTAL #1

06.07.22

TOWN COUNCIL
SUBMITTAL

08.08.22

FINAL DRB
SUBMITTAL

10.21.22

TOWN COUNCIL
SUBMITTAL

12.16.22/01.09.23

TOWN COUNCIL FIRST RD'G
FIRST SUBMITTAL 05.02.23 (X)
STAFF REQUESTED REVISED

SHEETS REDATED 06.01.23 (X1)

TOWN COUNCIL
FIRST RD'G

07.19.23
A-1.00 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL G3 OVERALL X X
A-1.01 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL G2 - OVERALL X X X X X X X1 X
A-1.02 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL G1 PLAZA - OVERALL X X X X X X X X

A-1.03 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1/G1A PARKING -
OVERALL

X X X X X X X1 X

A-1.04 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE -
OVERALL

X X X X X X X X

A-1.05 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 2 - OVERALL X X X X X X X1 X
A-1.06 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 3 - OVERALL X X X X X X X1 X
A-1.07 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 4 - OVERALL X X X X X X X X
A-1.08 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 5 - OVERALL X X X X X X X X
A-1.09 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 6 - OVERALL X X X X X X X X
A-1.10 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 7 - OVERALL X X X X X X X X
A-1.11 OVERALL ROOF & MAX HEIGHT PLAN X X X X X X X X
A-1.12 AVERAGE HEIGHT PLAN X X X X X X X X
A-2.00 EXTERIOR MATERIAL ELEVATIONS X X X1 X
A-2.01 EXTERIOR MATERIAL ELEVATIONS X X X1 X
A-2.02 NORTH & EAST ELEVATIONS X X X X X X X1 X
A-2.03 SOUTHEAST & WEST ELEVATIONS X X X X X X X X
A-2.04 3D MAX HEIGHT WITH EXISTING TOPO X X X X X X X X
A-2.05 3D MAX HEIGHT WITH PROPOSED TOPO X X X X X X X X
A-2.10 GARAGE UTILITY DIAGRAM X X X X X
A-2.21 EXTERIOR ELEVATION·SNOW MELT STUDY X X X X X X X X
A-2.22 EXTERIOR ELEVATION·SNOW MELT STUDY X X X X X X X X

A-2.23 TYPICAL DETAILS, WINDOW LEGEND AND
DOOR SCHEDULE

X X X X X X X X

A-2.24 TYPICAL DETAILS X X X
A-3.00 BUILDING SECTION X X X X X X X

A-111 OS-3BR2-1R TRASH HOLDING PLANS &
ELEVATIONS

X X X X X

08-ELECTRICAL
E.100 LIGHTING SITE PLAN X X X X
E.101 PHOTOMETRIC SITE PLAN X X X X
E.102 POOL DECK & BALCONY PHOTOMETRIC X X X X
E.200 PHOTOMETRIC SCHEDULES X X X X
E.201 PHOTOMETRIC CUTSHEETS X X X X

Attachment 1.a.i.1.a. Design Documents

◊ 

-
EB 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN IL 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 
l'l00 Wo>c<151.•..,t~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0 ),4 
•~_,..,_,,_ PnoJ"'' • 

of C 



17.8.1 FLOOR AREA, GROSS

1. FLOOR AREA, GROSS. THE SUM OF ALL AREA(S) WITHIN 
THE EXTERIOR WALLS OF A BUILDING OR PORTION THEREOF, 
MEASURED FROM THE EXTERIOR FACES OF THE EXTERIOR 
WALLS, EXCLUDING THE AREA WITHIN ATTACHED OR 
DETACHED GARAGES AND ATTICS OR CRAWL SPACES 
PROVIDED THAT SUCH AREAS MEET THE FOLLOWING FLOOR 
AREA EXCLUSIONS:

1. ATTIC AREAS. ATTIC AREAS SHALL HAVE WITH A CEILING 
HEIGHT OF FIVE FEET (5') OR LESS AS MEASURED FROM THE 
TOPSIDE OF THE STRUCTURAL MEMEBERS OF THE FLOOR TO 
THE UNDERIDE OF THE STRUCTURAL MEMBERS OF THE 
ROOF DIRECTLY ABOVE. 

2. ATTIC AREAS WITH TRUSSES. ATTIC AREAS CREATED BYU 
CONSTRUCITON OF A ROOF WITH STRUCTURAL TRUSS TYPE 
MEMBERS PROVIDED THE TRUSSES ARE SPACED NO 
GREATER THAN THIRTY INCHES (30") APART.

3. ATTIC AREAS WITH NONTRUSS SYSTEM. ATTIC AREAS 
CREATED BY CONSTRUCTION OF A ROOF STRUCTURE 
UTILIZING A NONTRUSS SYSTEM WITH SPACES GREATER 
THAN FIVE FEET (5') IN HEIGHT IF ALL OF THE FOLLOWING 
CRITERIA ARE MET:

I. THE AREA CANNOT BE ACCESSED DIRECTLY FROM A 
HABITABLE AREA WITHIN THE SAME BUILDING LEVEL; AND
II. THE AREA SHALL HAVE ONLY THE MINIMUM ACCESS 
REQUIRED BY THE BUILDING CODES FROM THE LEVEL 
BELOW; AND 
III. THE ATTIC SPACE SHALL NOT HAVE A STRUCTURAL FLOOR 
CAPABLE OF SUPPORTING A "LIVE LOAD" GREATER THAN 40 
POUNDS PER SQUARE FOOT, AND THE "FLOOR" OF THE ATTIC 
SPACE SHALL NOT BE IMPROVED WITH DECKING. 

5. STAIRWAYS. STAIRS WITHIN A DWELLING UNIT SHALL ONLY 
BE COUNTED ON EVERY OTHER LEVEL.

9664 SF

COMMERCIAL

2940 SF

COMMERCIAL

9206 SF

PARKING

1135 SF

COMMON
911 SF

COMMON

3212 SF

COMMERCIAL

538 SF

COMMON

503 SF

COMMON

799 SF

COMMON

629 SF

COMMON

452 SF

COMMON

1184 SF

COMMERCIAL

9497 SF

COMMON

12877 SF

PARKING

1320 SF

COMMON

477 SF

COMMON

310 SF

COMMON

1128 SF

COMMERCIAL

488 SF

COMMERCIAL

629 SF

COMMON

3118 SF

PARKING

22087 SF

RESIDENTIAL

5192 SF

COMMON

5293 SF

COMMON

21608 SF

RESIDENTIAL

4387 SF

COMMON

21459 SF

RESIDENTIAL

4738 SF

COMMON

18753 SF

RESIDENTIAL

5874 SF

COMMON

4552 SF

RESIDENTIAL

4029 SF

RESIDENTIAL

5161 SF

RESIDENTIAL

3323 SF

RESIDENTIAL

937 SF

COMMERCIAL

3056 SF

COMMERCIAL

5993 SF

COMMON

8023 SF

RESIDENTIAL

2696 SF

COMMON

Building Area Legend

COMMERCIAL

COMMON AREA

PARKING

RESIDENTIAL

15164 SF

PARKING889 SF

COMMON

336 SF

COMMON

696 SF

COMMON

657 SF

COMMON

449 SF

COMMON

26575 SF

PARKING

6421 SF

COMMON

1022 SF

COMMON

336 SF

COMMON

836 SF

COMMON

453 SF

COMMON367 SF

COMMON

629 SF

COMMON

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

7/1
4/2

02
3 4

:03
:23

 P
M

G-001

FLOOR AREA GROSS

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

128'64'32'0
1/64" = 1'

TRUE
NORTH

1/64" = 1'-0"3 LEVEL G1 PLAZA - GROSS AREA

1/64" = 1'-0"4 LEVEL 1/G1A- GROSS AREA

1/64" = 1'-0"6 LEVEL 2 - GROSS AREA

1/64" = 1'-0"7 LEVEL 3 - GROSS AREA

1/64" = 1'-0"8 LEVEL 4 - GROSS AREA

1/64" = 1'-0"9 LEVEL 5 - GROSS AREA
1/64" = 1'-0"5 LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE - GROSS AREA

1/64" = 1'-0"10 LEVEL 6 - GROSS AREA

1/64" = 1'-0"11 LEVEL 7 - GROSS AREA

1/64" = 1'-0"1 LEVEL G3 PARKING (9500')

1/64" = 1'-0"2 LEVEL G2 PARKING - GROSS AREA

GROSS COMMON AREA SCHEDULE

LEVEL NAME AREA
LEVEL G3 PARKING (9500') COMMON 889 SF
LEVEL G3 PARKING (9500') COMMON 336 SF
LEVEL G3 PARKING (9500') COMMON 696 SF
LEVEL G3 PARKING (9500') COMMON 657 SF
LEVEL G3 PARKING (9500') COMMON 449 SF
LEVEL G3 PARKING (9500') PARKING 15164 SF
LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510') COMMON 6421 SF
LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510') COMMON 1022 SF
LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510') COMMON 336 SF
LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510') COMMON 836 SF
LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510') COMMON 453 SF
LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510') COMMON 367 SF
LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510') COMMON 629 SF
LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510') PARKING 26575 SF
LEVEL G1 PLAZA MAIN LEVEL (9520') COMMON 1135 SF
LEVEL G1 PLAZA MAIN LEVEL (9520') COMMON 911 SF
LEVEL G1 PLAZA MAIN LEVEL (9520') COMMON 538 SF
LEVEL G1 PLAZA MAIN LEVEL (9520') COMMON 503 SF
LEVEL G1 PLAZA MAIN LEVEL (9520') COMMON 799 SF
LEVEL G1 PLAZA MAIN LEVEL (9520') COMMON 629 SF
LEVEL G1 PLAZA MAIN LEVEL (9520') COMMON 452 SF
LEVEL G1 PLAZA MAIN LEVEL (9520') PARKING 9206 SF
LEVEL 1 (9535') COMMON 9497 SF
LEVEL 1 (9535') COMMON 1320 SF
LEVEL 1 (9535') COMMON 477 SF
LEVEL 1 (9535') COMMON 310 SF
LEVEL 1 (9535') COMMON 629 SF
LEVEL 1 (9535') PARKING 12877 SF
LEVEL 1 (9535') PARKING 3118 SF
LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540') COMMON 5874 SF
LEVEL 2 (9550') COMMON 5192 SF
LEVEL 3 (9560.5') COMMON 5293 SF
LEVEL 4 (9571') COMMON 4387 SF
LEVEL 5 (9581.5') COMMON 4738 SF
LEVEL 6 (9592') COMMON 5993 SF
LEVEL 7 (9603.5') COMMON 2696 SF
Grand total: 36 131404 SF

GROSS COMMERCIAL AREA SCHEDULE

LEVEL NAME AREA
LEVEL G1 PLAZA MAIN LEVEL (9520') COMMERCIAL 9664 SF
LEVEL G1 PLAZA MAIN LEVEL (9520') COMMERCIAL 2940 SF
LEVEL G1 PLAZA MAIN LEVEL (9520') COMMERCIAL 3212 SF
LEVEL G1 PLAZA MAIN LEVEL (9520') COMMERCIAL 1184 SF
LEVEL 1 (9535') COMMERCIAL 1128 SF
LEVEL 1 (9535') COMMERCIAL 488 SF
LEVEL 6 (9592') COMMERCIAL 937 SF
LEVEL 6 (9592') COMMERCIAL 3056 SF
Grand total: 8 22609 SF

GROSS RESIDENTIAL AREA SCHEDULE

LEVEL NAME AREA
LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540') RESIDENTIAL 4552 SF
LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540') RESIDENTIAL 4029 SF
LEVEL 2 (9550') RESIDENTIAL 22087 SF
LEVEL 3 (9560.5') RESIDENTIAL 21608 SF
LEVEL 4 (9571') RESIDENTIAL 21459 SF
LEVEL 5 (9581.5') RESIDENTIAL 18753 SF
LEVEL 6 (9592') RESIDENTIAL 5161 SF
LEVEL 6 (9592') RESIDENTIAL 3323 SF
LEVEL 7 (9603.5') RESIDENTIAL 8023 SF
Grand total: 9 108995 SF

--" 

"""' ,_.-

□ 
□ 
□ n 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN IL 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 
l'l00 Wo>c<151.•..,t~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0 ),4 
•~_,..,_,,_ PnoJ"'' • 

of co 



17.8.1 NET FLOOR AREA

7. NET FLOOR AREA. THE FLOOR AREA AS MEASURED FROM THE EXTERIOR WALL 
ASSEMBLY AND EXCLUDES COMMERCIAL SPACE, SPAS, DORM ROOMS AND COMMON 
AREAS.

17063 SF

NET AREA

G3

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

34789 SF

NET AREA

G2

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

10622 SF

NET AREA

PLAZA

COMMERCIAL

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMERCIAL

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMERCIAL

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

17248 SF

NET AREA

LEVEL 1

2221 SF

NET AREA

LEVEL 1

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMERCIAL

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMERCIAL

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

DORMS

AREA

EXCLUDED

DORMS

AREA

EXCLUDED

22318 SF

NET AREA

LEVEL 2

374 SF

NET AREA

LEVEL 2

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

21955 SF

NET AREA

LEVEL 3

363 SF

NET AREA

LEVEL 3

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

21709 SF

NET AREA

LEVEL 4

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

19513 SF

NET AREA

LEVEL 5

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

5161 SF

NET AREA

LEVEL 6

3421 SF

NET AREA

LEVEL 6

785 SF

NET AREA

LEVEL 6

COMMERCIAL

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

COMMERCIAL

AREA

EXCLUDED

9523 SF

NET AREA

LEVEL 7

COMMON

AREA

EXCLUDED

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

7/1
4/2

02
3 4

:08
:19

 P
M

G-002

NET FLOOR AREA

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

64'32'16'0
1/32" = 1'

TRUE
NORTH

1/64" = 1'-0"1 LEVEL G3 PARKING (9500')

1/64" = 1'-0"2 LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510')

1/64" = 1'-0"3 LEVEL G1 PLAZA (9522')

1/64" = 1'-0"4 LEVEL 1 (9535')

1/64" = 1'-0"5 LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540')

1/64" = 1'-0"6 LEVEL 2 (9550')

1/64" = 1'-0"7 LEVEL 3 (9560.5')

1/64" = 1'-0"8 LEVEL 4 (9571')

1/64" = 1'-0"9 LEVEL 5 (9581.5')

1/64" = 1'-0"10 LEVEL 6 (9592')

1/64" = 1'-0"11 LEVEL 7 (9603.5')

NET FLOOR AREA

LEVEL NAME AREA
LEVEL G3 PARKING (9500') NET AREA G3 17063 SF
LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510') NET AREA G2 34789 SF
LEVEL G1 PLAZA (9522') NET AREA PLAZA 10622 SF
LEVEL 1 (9535') NET AREA LEVEL 1 17248 SF
LEVEL 1 (9535') NET AREA LEVEL 1 2221 SF
LEVEL 2 (9550') NET AREA LEVEL 2 22318 SF
LEVEL 2 (9550') NET AREA LEVEL 2 374 SF
LEVEL 3 (9560.5') NET AREA LEVEL 3 21955 SF
LEVEL 3 (9560.5') NET AREA LEVEL 3 363 SF
LEVEL 4 (9571') NET AREA LEVEL 4 21709 SF
LEVEL 5 (9581.5') NET AREA LEVEL 5 19513 SF
LEVEL 6 (9592') NET AREA LEVEL 6 5161 SF
LEVEL 6 (9592') NET AREA LEVEL 6 3421 SF
LEVEL 6 (9592') NET AREA LEVEL 6 785 SF
LEVEL 7 (9603.5') NET AREA LEVEL 7 9523 SF
Grand total: 15 187065 SF

~ · 

~ 

' 

\, 
\ ----

\,,'\\\_ '• 

\_✓,., 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

AE DESIGN IL 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 
l'l00 Wo>c<151.•..,t~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0 ),4 
•~_,..,_,,_ PnoJ"'' • 

of C 



4/2
9/2

02
3 1

2:4
3:5

3 P
M

G-003

PLAN DIAGRAMS

KI
TC

HE
NE

TT
E

CL
O

BATH

EFFICIENCY LODGE
DIAGRAMMATIC ONLY 
DESIGN TBD

LODGE DIAGRAMMATIC ONLY 
DESIGN TBD

EMPLOYEE DORM
DIAGRAMMATIC 
ONLY
DESIGN TBD

EMPLOYEE APT.
DIAGRAMMATIC ONLY 
DESIGN TBD

BATH KITCHEN

BATH

TW
IN

 B
UN

K 
BE

D

SINGLE LOFT BED
     W/ DESK BELOW

BEDROOM LIVING/DINING

MOVEABLE 
DIVIDER

NOTE:
DIAGRAMATIC INTERIOR DESIGN IS PROVIDED PER
STAFF REQUEST. 

PER 17.8.1 DEFINITIONS
Efficiency Lodge. A zoning designation that means a habitable,
one (1) room space with separate bath and limited kitchen
facilities used for Short-Term Accommodations. Limited kitchen
facilities may include a sink, microwave, two-element burner,
and six (6) cubic foot (maximum) refrigerator trash compactor
and garbage disposal. These units may be in a condominium
community.
Employee Apartment. A zoning designation that means
employee apartment multifamily dwelling units that cannot be
separately subdivided or conveyed as individual condominium
units the occupancy of which is limited to employees and are
encumbered by the workforce housing restriction.
Employee Dorm. A zoning designation that means employee
dorm units that are within a building with individual sleeping
rooms that provide sleeping and living accommodations with
shared kitchen and recreational facilities and that cannot be
separately subdivided or conveyed as individual units, the
occupancy of which is limited to employees that are
encumbered by the workforce housing restriction.
Lodge. A zoning designation that means a two (2) room space
plus a mezzanine with up to two separate baths and a full
kitchen. These units may be in a condominium community.

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

-
==-r VAULT 0£SlGN GROUP 

Uncompahg E . re 
ngmeering, LLC 

r 

1-,\ \ I 

11 •·• J. C ,1 



06-01-23

CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND COMPARE ALL
CHAPTERS AND INTERDISCIPLINARY DRAWINGS
AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY FIELD WORK BEING
DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AIA DOCUMENT A201

Uncompahgre
Engineering, LLC

C2.1

P.O. Box 3945
Telluride, CO 81435

970-729-0683

Lot 109R
Mtn. Village, CO

Site Grading

with

G2 Level

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

D 

TRACT 0S-3A 

Al·gnment . I Ingress I Commerc10 1+00) 
{Starts at STA v-Pan 

Conform~ 

A/" ment MV Blvd to Gar~9;+o;Jn 
{Starts at STA 

I 
I / 

✓ 

----
I 
) 

Sidewalk 
I 

Curb & Gutter 
I 

v-Pan 

E,nd of Woll Remove 

/ 

I \ ;t~ 
/ I \._ 'tJ' 

,/ '\ ~:; \ _____ _, ) j - '--- --c---

1 ---- j / ; -, 
L -·-·- J I: (..__, 

/ .... ,.,,,., 1/ /~ ,f \ / / ,- , 3 

Conform 

I 

1/,.. \ l®- - 'f; 

~1 ~ =-··-r··-··r-··-·7· - -r ~ 'L - - ' @ .. - ,.. - / 

Existing Edge 
of Pan 

: 11+07.30 

Conform 

-~ " •'• 

------
\ 

\ i 
J 

PC: 10+51.12 

-

LOT 108 

\_/ 
of,'1-0 

-
.s>,,-,,,. 

9':,00 

-

LOT 68R 

/ 
::-----._ 

* ::-----._ ::-----._ 
® 

I 

I 

I 

LOT 69R1 

I 

I 

i 
I 

I 

I 

i 

i 
I 

I 

I 

I 

i 
I 

I 

I 

I 

PC: 1+85.55 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

' 

Conform 

\ 

\ 

\ 
\ ·, 

\ \ 
\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ \ 

\ 

\ 

SUBMISSIONS: 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Town Council 

Submittal 

own Council . 
T 1st Reading 

wn Council 
To 1st Reading 

2022-03-04 

2022-04-15 

2022-05-19 

2022-06-07 

2022-08-08 

2022-09-23 

2022-10-21 

2022-12-16 

2023-04-30 

2023-06-01 

2023-07-19 



TRUE
NORTH

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

06-01-23

Uncompahgre
Engineering, LLC

C2.2

P.O. Box 3945
Telluride, CO 81435

970-729-0683

Lot 109R
Mtn. Village, CO

Site Grading

with

Porte Cochere
Level

CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND COMPARE ALL
CHAPTERS AND INTERDISCIPLINARY DRAWINGS
AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY FIELD WORK BEING
DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AIA DOCUMENT A201

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

D 

TRACT OS-3A 

Al . men/ ·al Ingress ign Commerc, ,1 
{Starts at STA 1+001 

TRACT OS-3J 

V-Pan 

PT: 6+65. 37 I \ ' 

Conform~ 

I 
I / 

✓ 

A/' ent MV Blvd to Garage ignm 
{Starts at STA 10+00) 

Conform~---

'· 
',"'--._ Need Existing 

.......,_____Ped Walkway Topo ' 

PT: 3+62.71 

-- ) 

I \ 
\ 
\ 

Sidewalk 
I 

Curb & Gutter 
I 

V-Pan 

Remove End of Wall \ 

Existing Edge 
of Pan 

\ \ 

i 
J 

PC: 10+51.12 

Conform 

-

Conform 

✓ fjJ 
\ 

::--.___ 

* ::--.___ 
::--.___ 

® :.:---. 

LOT 108 

\_/ 
of,'1-0 

LOT 68R 

i 
I 

I 

i 

PC: 1 +85.55 

" \ " "' 
" " "" " 

') ~ "" " l\ ~ \ \ \ \ 
\~ \\ ~ \ \ \\\ 

\ \ \\~ \ \ \\ 
'%~ · \ ~ ~ \ \ 

0

~:~\\~ ~ \ \ t-OT 89-2A 

\ \ \\ \LBT\_89-2B 

:'-. "- \ \ Curb & Gutter 

Sidewalk 

'-..-. 

'-..-. 
\\ \ .""' 
\ \\ ~ '\ 

\ \'--- \ 
' 

\ 

LOT 69R1 

Conform 

\ 

\ 

\ 

' 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ \ 
\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

SUBMISSIONS: 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Town Council 

Submittal 

Town Council . 
1st Reading 

Town Council . 
1st Reading 

2022-03-04 

2022-04-15 

2022-05-19 

2022-06-07 

2022-08-08 

2022-09-23 

2022-10-21 

2022-12-16 

2023-04-30 

2023-06-01 

2023-07-19 



TRUE
NORTH

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

E5

TV19

TV18

TV17

TV13

TV12

TV16

TV11

TV14

TV20

TV15

V1

V4

V3

V5

V6

V7

V8

E1

E2

E3

E4

TV10

TV9

TV2

TV1

V2

TV4

TV3

TV7

TV5

TV6

06-01-23

Uncompahgre
Engineering, LLC

C2.3

P.O. Box 3945
Telluride, CO 81435

970-729-0683

Lot 109R
Mtn. Village, CO

Profiles

CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND COMPARE ALL
CHAPTERS AND INTERDISCIPLINARY DRAWINGS
AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY FIELD WORK BEING
DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AIA DOCUMENT A201

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

TRACT OS-3A 

Commercial Ingress Alignment 
(Starts at STA 1+00) 

MV Blvd to Garage Alignment 
(Starts at STA 10+00) 

GRADE BREAK STA = 1+05.22 
ELEV = 9516.048 

I Commercial 

GRADE BREAK STA = 1+00.00 
ELEV = 9516.209 

[Tl 

CD 
< 
0 
r+ 

0 
::J 

951 

950 

O'.J 
O'.J 
+ 
0 

-3.08% 

+ -

0 Ii) 
0 N 
+ + - -

1+00 1+25 

I 
\ 

/ 
/ 

Ingress 

Station 

+ -

0 
Ii) 

+ -

1+50 

) ) \ ( 
,-, _) ~ ') 

. \ I -
'--'--.. '--.. '--..' 

'--.. '--.. '--.. 
'--.. 

_/ J'-.... ~~ 
/ _ _.,, 

PC: 10+51.12 

I 
I 

PT: 11+43.70 

PC: 11+35.85 

Profile I GRADE BREAK STA = 10+00.00 
ELEV = 9509.500 

Ii) 
r--
+ -

1+75 

GRADE BREAK STA = 1+63.07 
ELEV = 9512.000 

510 

505 

O'.J 
O'.J 
+ -

[Tl 952 

(1) 

< 
0 951 
r+ 

0 
::J 950 

949 

I 
I 

O'.J 
O'.J 
+ a, 

\ 
\ 

LOT 108 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ -~- .J 

--

/ "-,_ - -......__ 
(X ......__ 

......__ 
"' ® ......__ 
\ ~ ......__ 

\ ~----:~ 

\ 
✓. 

LOT 68R 

LOT 69R1 

Blvd to Garage Profile I 

0 
0 
+ 
0 -

10+00 

GRADE BREAK STA= 10+77.54 
ELEV = 9513.100 

4.64% 

Ii) 0 
N IO 
+ + 
0 0 - -

10+25 10+50 

Ii) 
r--
+ 
0 -

10+75 

Station 
GRADE BREAK STA = 11+57.54 

ELEV = 9511.500 

0 Ii) 
0 N 
+ + - -- -

0 
Ii) 

+ --
11+00 11+25 11+50 

-I' --
2.09% 

Ii) 
r--
+ --

11+ 75 

0 
0 
+ 
N -

12+00 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

GRADE BREAK STA = 11 +91.00 
ELEV = 9512.200 

\ 

\ 

GRADE BREAK STA = 12+07.36 
ELEV = 9510.600 

510 

-
----9500 

-
495 

Ii) O'.J 
N "' + + 
N N - -

12+25 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ \ 
\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

SUBMISSIONS: 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Town Council 

Submittal 

Town Council 
1st Reading 

Town Council 
1st Reading 

2022-03-04 

2022-04-15 

2022-05-19 

2022-06-07 

2022-08-08 

2022-09-23 

2022-10-21 

2022-12-16 

2023-04-30 

2023-06-01 

2023-07-19 



06-01-23

Uncompahgre
Engineering, LLC

C3.1

P.O. Box 3945
Telluride, CO 81435

970-729-0683

Lot 109R
Mtn. Village, CO

Utility

and

Storm
Drain

CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND COMPARE ALL
CHAPTERS AND INTERDISCIPLINARY DRAWINGS
AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY FIELD WORK BEING
DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AIA DOCUMENT A201

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

IM 
IN 
IN 

I 
.§ 

I 
.§ 

I 
.§ 

I 
.§ 

I 
,§ 

I 
.§ 

I 
.§ 

I 
.§ 

I 
,§ 

I 
.§ 

I 
.§ 

I 
.§ 

I 
.§ 

I 
,ff 

I 
.§ 

(E) STORM DRAIN 

.;
_,./ 

'·, '-._ New Junction Box. Roor shall be ---,---, ' 
·, .• _ 118" Lower than Invert for Debris \ ,/' 

............ ' \ 
12;-St from See Forever \ L----·-·-·----· ·-··-·-·.; Gr!!! -,,--~ 

-.. ! 
-....... '-·---~----··-·-··-.. -·•-·-~-·...i 

.,,..-.......... , 
/'•, ,/ ··-.. Existing 

/ ' / '· / V ' 
/ ·, 

,/ \ 
/ \ , ) Install Drop Manhole to Lower 

/// / See Forever Village Sewer ,I' 

</ TRACT OS-3J \. / 
, •. Install Drop Inlet t o<i'-~-
\,\ ', (E JsroRM DRAIN Lower the StormA5rain 

.'-, IM/fRT 12" PVC IN 9511.32' --~~ ,f" 
f"_..-.. .:. ,<)~ 12• PVC OUT 9511.26' / 

'" . 

Re-Locate Switch GeJ '';-i4z -~, /.,/ 
\ Sunnyside Ridge lnters~{ tion '·,., ,,./// 

t \ '\\,, _.,,./''-.,, \ 
\. \ ,_,,/ '.._,,/ 

'-t \. v; 
\_ \ 

' 
' I 

1-21·\ 2-18" Storm Drains a\ d an 8" 
Sanitary SQ wer from See Forever \ will be --, 
Routed thr01,J.ah the Garage \ ,,, ',, 

"" \ I ' ~ . I fl ! 
'¾,~ \ / ...... / ,$, 

" \ I/ ,-.._.-, 
Lot 109R Transformers-~= -.----\-+--" ' · 

(E) STORM DRAIN 
INV. 2.5' CONC. IN 9508.46' 
INV. 2.5' CONC. OUT 9508.36' ----.. 

To Disconnects ---.. 
in Meter Room 

. I 1, 
'-....._ \ \ I/ 

0.. \ ' 
~....... i ', , ....... . ' // 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

/NV. 24• COHC. JN 9506.89 -------....._ 
fNV. 12• PVC IN 9506.84 
/NV. 24• CONC. OUT 9506. 74 

(El SEWER MANHOLE rw gs1s.BB' 
INVERT a• PVC IN 9506.90' 
INVERT a• PVC OUT 9506.68' 

J. 

(E) STORM DRAIN , 
INVERT 2.5 CONCc:· ~IN~ 9~509, .• J;/,il,, ~ 
INVERT 2.5 CONC~ OUT 

I 
_.-sd'_.- I 

-- ';IS' ! ~ ! 
TRACT OS-3A 

.§ SANITARY MANHOLE' RIM __.., SO" ! 
£LEV. = 9500.J' INVERT IN -- i 

I 
,§ 

\ 
t 

(SE) = 9489.62' INVERT IN ---- SP' i E OJ. 5 
(N£} 0~ 9!89.6.2~ . .;rn7 t;,/1,'_.- srl-' ,. __ s-_j sol--11-:,_:_ san~,.g..,1- • 

<?#'_..- san- ~" 
~ - SOIi- San-~ ,..--

:::---- ""' \_ 
Y-- ... Pour New MH Invert 

( on Existing Main. IE=02.5 --l-l----l 
\ Exact Location TBD 

based on Final 
Foundation Plans. 

Remo 

--............... 
( --
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
I , 
I --
1 --\ _ .................... 

\ --\ -\.--

I 
\ 
\ 
I 
I 
\ 
\ 
I 
I 
) --

\<; 

\ 
\<; 

\ 
\<; 

\ 
\<; 

I 

I Q; 
h.-· 

.;:}✓' 

I '~ 

I •rr-...:.Ce;;'"~- _j~ 

I 

I 

am--+----- Re-Located Switch Gear. 

_:" "'~,'<"•~- ~·;_.:.__,._,.~----Angled 18" Drop Inlet. Break-Over at 24" of Head. 
_, -, · ..._. Floor = 18" below Invert for Debris. 

"" ~"" 
:t .... ~ 

..... " 

\ 

"' ... ..... .. ...... ... 

' ' \ 

" . ~ '·. 
".., "" '-.., ~ 

" "' ... 

' 

"" ' ·" .. \_ ' 
.. "" 
~ 

i 
i 

i 
i 

I 

i 

i 
I 

i 
i 

I 

i 

I 

i 

I 

i 

i 

/El MANHOLE 
~ll 9537.57' 

i 

i 
I 

i 
I 

I 

I 

IWVERT a• PVC JN 95.3.2.07' 
IWERT a• PVC OUT 9531.97' 

I 

~----------- New Drop Inlet at Existing 
Culvert Location. New 
Culvert runs South. 

Gas Regulator Station w/ Retaining Wall 

Gas Valves 

{E) High Pressure Gas 

~-- New Drop Inlet 

TRACT 
OS-3BR-2 

TRACT 
OS-3Y \ 

LOT 108 
Re-Routed Water---' 

From JB on Main Line 

The Peaks Sign I 
I 

MV Blvd to Garage Alignment 
{Starts at STA 10+00) 

LEGEND 

--•-• -• -- Existing Waterline 

- Existing Waterline 

--•-• -• -- Proposed Waterline 

-So,-S...-So,- Existing Sanitary 

- sun II s Existing Sanitary to be Removed 

-s...-s...-s.,- Proposed Sanitary 

s ,_ Existing Storm Drain 

Existing Storm Drain to be Removed 

so-so Proposed Storm Drain 

w rop Inlet 
here rode 

Allows 

\ 

-- -

' 

0 --------Existing Storm Drain Inlet 

@ Proposed Storm Drain Drop Inlet 

® Existing Sanitary Manhole 

® Proposed Sanitary Manhole 

.... .... .... .... .... 

' 

Located Shirana 
former 

LOT 68R 

LOT 69R1 

Note: 

Low Pressure Gas Tee to 
be capped for Future 
Service to Loi 161 

Power Re-Locates are being coordinated with SMPA. It is 
assumed that CA TV and Phone will follow the Power. 

No gas lines were localed within the Building Envelope. 

\ 

' ' \ 

' 

\ 

\ 

' 

\ 

' \ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

SUBMISSIONS: 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Submittal 

Town Council 

Submittal 

Town Council 
1st Reading 

Town Council 
1st Reading 

2022-03-04 

2022-05-19 

2022-06-07 

2022-08-08 

2022-09-23 

2022-10-21 

2023-01-09 

2023-04-30 

2023-06-01 

2023-07-19 



SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

'NOTE; 

~~ 
PROP SEDN 
OS-38 N 
TRASH OLDING & 
MAINT NCE 
BUILDIN 

\ OS-3BR2: PARKING 
~ STRIPING PER TOWN 

NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
S.UBMITTAL, PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS TO BE 
FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCY'S WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE AND 
LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION OF 
DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

ij 

1 
EXISTING TREE PLAN 

1116' = 1' - ---- -----
0 8' 1S 3l 

TREE PROTECTION BARRIER NOTES 

1) Treie protection fencins shall be a minimum of 4 ' high oran9e polyethylene lam inar sa fety nettin91 or equivalent. 

TRUE 

NORTH 

2) Tree protection barrier posts sha ll be made of durable metal (11 t-posts11
), or equivalent, and shall be installed at d minimum depth of- 2' below grade . 

4) Existing trees with root zones in close proxirnity to fle'N construction shall be protected to the rnaximum poss.ible extent to ayofd soil compaction1 given the pro11;imjty of co11struction .. 

5) Tree protection barrier to be approved by Landscape Architect prior ta constrL1ctior, . 

6) Trees marked to be removed are to be approved by Landsca~ Architect prior to removal , 

7) No roots 2~ or larger in diameter shal l be cut. 

8) Lower branches on evergreens selected For preservation/transplanting need to be lift pruned or 1'limbed -up" to reduce fuel load-and ''fire ladder11 potenti al. 

~ 

EXISTING TREE PROTECTION REPORT 
ID COMMON NAME BOTANICAL NAME AVERAGE HEIGHT HEIGHT FIRST DBH ACTION DATE ASSESSED NOTES SPREAD BRANCH 

Eo 1 Colorado Spruce: Pice:a pungens 10'0 " 15'0" 3'6" 

E02 Color11do Spru~ Picea pungens 10'0 " 15'0" 3 '6" 

E03 Ouaking Aspen Populus tremuloid~ S'O" 15'0" to~ 

E04 Ouaking Aspen Populus tremuloides 5'0" 15 10" 7'0" 

E0S Ou11 kin!I Aspen Populus tri:muloidn- S'O" 15'0" 7'0" 

E0-6 O u.aking As~n Popu[ui; tte:muloide:§ s·o~ 15'0" 710,1 

0 E,,,tia9 Tee, lo be Remo,ed 0 E,istia9 T,., ro b, P,mrved-Not ,, limit, of Wm! 

Ptotediori Ba11ie1, see 2/L0 .02 

4" 

4" 

4" 

4" 

4;1 

4" 

TREE FENCING SHALL 
BE. A MIN-l~UM OF 

Preserve witl, Tree: 
Protection 

Preserve with Tree: 

Protec:tion 

Preserve with T fl:!'.e 

Protection 

Preserve with Tree 

Protection 

Preserl/e with Tree 

Protection 

Preserve w ith Trr.:e 

Ptoltttion 

4' HIGH ORANGE 

POLYETHYLENE J 
LAMINAR SAFETY I 
NE.TTING 

FOSlS SETTING TO 
2' IN GROUND MADE 
OF DURABLE METAL I 
"T" OR EOUlVALENT 

r CANOPY DRIP UNE 

PROlECTIV[ FENCING 
DURING CONSTRUGT] ON 

AERATION BEFORE. 
DURING A.ND AntR 
CONS1RUCTION 

....J::- PROTECTED ROO ZONE WITHIN THE --,IL... 
, I CANOPY ORIP UN[ -ACTUAL FEEOCR ROOTS I 

EXTEND \'10..L 13EYOND DRIP l.JNE 

SECTION 

SEE SEC TI ON 

PLAN 

TREE PROTECTION BARRIER 

N.T.S 

FENCE LOCA 110N AT 
QRjP LINE OR 15· 
FROM TRUNK, 
IM-liCHEYER ts GREA TE.R 
AND SHALL ENCLOSE 
TREE 

==-r VAULT DES.IGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN 1L 
ll\l"'W5[•d Ltih ttn1 nnd El•ct r1u\ Solution, 
•<JCCwo,.,,.5ti-nto-MIS O.:o-...,co ao:rni J031'll'i}OJ,j _,,,,_,.,,_,,_ ...... ,.., .. 

Existing Tree Plan 
·& Report 

L0.02 



SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

ARTFU L FLAGSTONE WALf'mAY 
garden to int1?gr11te into existing landscape: 

LEGEND 

□ HARDSCAPE 1 * ~ EXISTING TREES 

□ HARDSCAPE 2 

ICI FIRE PIT 

1 

\L-__ / 

\ 
\ \ 

\h EXISTING MOUNTAI~ 
VILLAGE 5LW \ 
PEDESTRIAN \ 

{Jj 
' NOTE: NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR 
LIGHTING IN THIS SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, 
LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF 
REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING INCONSISTENCIES WILL 
BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE ANO LIGHTING 
DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL DRAWINGS WILL 
THEN BE COORDINATED ACCORDINGLY. 

I ACCESSWA'f AND r 
\ BRIDGE CONNECTI '"O;N ;;~\, ~~~~~=======:::::::::--\OVE ~\ .yo• •_. ., 

i 0S-3BR2 i'A,RKING i STRJPIHG PEA., 

LANDSCAPE PLAN 1/16" = 1' 

' . . . 
~ . . 

- --- -----
0 •• 16' 32' 

. . 

TRUE 
NORTH 

iii HARDSCAPE 3 

PROPERTY LI NE 

0 ROCK SLAB O FLAGSTONE (cl) BOULDER 0°0 STEPPING STONE 

□ CRUSHED ROCK D PLANTER --- • CARVED STONE BENCH 

BOULDERS- LIT FROM BENEATH 

~ ~ -----''0,~--------------------~~---,'~-;+/,;.':-~ ,..__~<;""0c-------OPEN PLAZA FOR FLEXIBLE SPACE AND MOVEABLE FURNITURE 

NOTE 
PUBLIC PROPERTY PLAZA TO RETAIN 13'-8" MIN DRIVEABLE CIRCULATION 
PRIVATE PROPERTY PLAZA TO RE:fAIN 1 O' MIN DR[VEABL~ CIRCULATION 

□ PLANTING BED/MULCH □ NATIVE SEED 

~ ~ ~:--:;;,1'~-'\\"<::----- EVERGREEN TREE FROM APPROVED CDC LIST 

~~'l._,~~----TERRACED PATIOS ON HILL, WITH BOULDER RETAINING AND SEATING 

,l!,Mc--------~EXISTING TREES, TYR 

~ PROPOSED DECIDUOUS TREE © PROPOSED EVERGREEN TREE 

==-r VAULT DES.IGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN 1L 
ll\l"'W5[•d Lf1hltn1 nnd El•ctr1u\ Solution, 
•<JCCwo,,,,.5ti-nto-MIS O.:o-...,coao:rni J031'll'i}OJ,j _,,,,_,.,,_,,_ ...... ,... .. 

Plaza Landscape 
Pl an 

L 1.01 



SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

1 
LANDSCAPE MATERIALS 
Scalec 1" = 20'.Q" 

LEGEND 

□ HARDSCAPE 1 * ~ EXISTING TREES 

1116' = 1" - --

P.Af!lf;ING 

M-\INJWANCE a e 
PROP ~ 

OS-38 N a 
TRASH Ql:O; L 
MAINT lltye 
BUILDIN ~ _ 

0 8' 16' 32' • 

□ HARDSCAPE 2 

FIRf PIT 

■ HARDSCAPE 3 

PROPERTY LI NE 

TRUE 
NORTH 

0 ROCK SLAB O FLAGSTONE (Q) BOULDER 

D PLANTER ...... CARVED STONE BENCH 

0°O .STEPPING STONE □ PLANTING BED/MULCH 

□ GRAVEL/CRUSHED ROCK 

OJ 

□ NATIVE SEED 

LIGHTING IN THIS SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL ORB CONDITIONS, 
LANDSCAPE AND PHOTDMETRICS TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF 
REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING INCONSISTENCIES WILL 
BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING 
DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL DRAWINGS WILL 
THEN BE COORDINATED ACCORDINGLY. 

HARDSCAPE PAYERS *fimd PfW' tvo< and dimmsions to be drtroumed 

HARDSCAPE 1, TBD, HARDSCAPE 2, TB D, HARDSCAPE 3, TBD, 
Dimension.,lly C ut Rectangular Dimensionally Cut P11vers with Rough Face. 

Stone. Runn ing Bond Stan~. Random Random Bond 

Running Bond 

BOULDER FlRETABLEW/SEATING BOULDERS 

V 
BOULDER FIRE TABLE W/ LID BECOMES TABLE 

\ 

==-r VAULT DES.IGN GRO UP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineerin g, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN 1L 
ll\l"'W5[•d Lf1hltn1 nnd El•ctr1u\ Solution, 
1'JCCWor<'f5ti-nto-MIS O.:o-..., C0800D1 J031'll'i}OJ,j _,,,,_,.,,_,,_ ..... ,... .. 

Plaza landscape 
Materials 

L 1.02 



SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

3 
Floor 4 
Scale: 1" = 30'-0" 

~ 
Floor 3 
Scale: 111 = 301-011 

1 
Floor 2 
Scal<c 1" = 30'-0" 

• 

/ 

r··- · 
----------------1 

• 

~ 
\ I 

\ \ 
/ 

\ffi 
'j ------~------"\ 
~---------- \ ~ - . . ' 

~ 

" 
~ 

OOll'TH11EEL 
- 1.tl.!IEl.<:MTY~. 

' "'"'· 

~~r~ ~ ,,••~ 

"'""""""~""._...,.._...,.. ... m 
""'"'-"""""''"'"61-

"' .,,,_,...,,, ,.,. w, .. c,.., 

\ 

4 

/ 

Floor 5 
Scale:: 111 = 301-0'1 

'NOTE: 
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS TO BE 
FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCY'S WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE AND 
LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION OF 
DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

D PAYERS WITH SNOW MELT 

□ SPA WITH STONE VENEER 

PLANTER WITH STONE VENEER- TO HAVE DRIP IRRIGATION 
ta bir plantitd with annuals. or with pannials cho5'!:n from d,e approved Mountain Vill119e: plant list 

- --- -----
0 15' 30' 60' 

• 

TRUE 
NORTH 

eo111[!141EEI. 
l'ORW.!IELQWm' 

==-r VAULT DES.IGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN 1L 
ll\l"'W5[•d Lf1hltn1 nnd El•ctr1u\ Solution, 
1'JCCWor<'f5ti-nto-MIS O.:o-....C0800D1 J031'll'i}OJ,j _,,,,_,.,,_,,_ ..... ,... .. 

Landscape Floors 
2- 5 

L1 .03 



SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

1 

l 

i 

7th Floor Garden 
Scale: 1/8" = 1 '-0" 

D CRUSHED ROCK 

LJ POOUSPA W/ STONE 

I 

.... 

IM 

*NOTE: 
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL ORB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS TO BE 
FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCY'S WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE AND 
LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION OF 
DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

~- ~ -+-----------_.,-----------1.------------- PORTABLE VEGETABLE PLANTER BOXES, ABOUT 38" TALL 

.,_! __ , CHEF'S PLANTER BOXES- TO HAVE DRIP IRRIGATION 

-----------------------1.-------------------- CARVED SLAB BENCH, TYP + 1 5-20" TALL PAVERS WITH SNOW MELT 

'•. 
··, ··, 

·, .. , .. , .. , 

CARVED SLAB BENCE 

MOUNTED/REMOVABLE PARASOL 
W/ SUITABLE WIND RATING 

FIRE PIT 

eolf 
.-----------,F';-:~-------¼ ---~.------------PAVERS ON SNOW MELT 

106 

CRUSHED ROCK 

------------- BOULDERS, TYP 

CARVED STONE BENCH TO -----+-+---++
LOOK AT VIEW, + 1 8" 

SHADE PARASOL OR -----+-+----++
NON-PERMANENT CABANA 

WITH LOUNGE CHAIRS 

FIRE PIT, 15" TALL -----+-+---+-llf-

CRUSHED ROCK BEDS AT GRADE -----+-+---+-II-

13 1-611 

0 
' 

"' "' 

~ 
0 
w 
C 
...I 

WATER SPOUT OUT OF 
BOULDER, FOR SPA 

/r\-\--t-------t,----,.,.._-t-r---j--t--4t!-------- PANELS OVER AUTOCOVER TRACK 

- - ----- SHADE PARASOL OR NON-PERMANENT 
CABANA W/ LOUNGE CHAIRS AND TABLES 

14----\.J---+-\-::_-::_;;;:_-::_-:,_7:--::_+--l--l++,lf-----l!I--¼---+-="'------ PATIO OVERHANGE (POOL AND POOL 
Q COVER EXTEND BELOW) 
D.. 

VARIOUS SEATING AND TABLES ----=--------t~~=~i---i~t-"-~~~! ~7r9.,.Yli&~ ~ (oj 

j - '---:.__ __ n----.J2 .. _ _ L .. !.. __ '._:, 1 . -

-------- BOULDER RETANING AGAINST STAIRS 

D PLANTER WITH STEEL VENEER- TO HAVE DRIP IRRIGATION 
to be planted with annuals or with perennials chosen from the approved Mountain Village plant list 

l -------- --

/ 
'.J 

2 
6th Floor Pool Deck 
Scale: 1/8 '' = 1 '-0" 

1/8" = 1' 

-i -, 

·-----------------------------

- --
0 4' 8' 16' 

ADA RAMP UP 

-------- PLANTERS (30" TALL) 

-------- CARVED STONE BENCHES 

1--------- CRUSHED ROCK 

TRUE 
NORTH 

==-r VAULT DES.IGN GRO UP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN 1L 
ll\l"'W5[•d Lf1hltn1 nnd El•ctr1u\ Solution, 
1'JCCWor<'f5ti-nto-MIS O.:o-..., C0800D1 J031'll'i}OJ,j _,,,,_,.,,_,,_ ..... ,... .. 

Landscape Floors 
6-7 

L 1.04 



SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

MAIIIITFNANCF 

DEDlCf.,TEO 
MAINTENANCE 
PARKING 

os-JeR2 PARKING 
STRIPING PER TOWN 

1 

IL EXISTING MOUNTAIN 
VILLAGE BL'm 
PEOESTRW>J 
N'£.ESSWAY MID 

PLAZA LANDSCAPE BOULDERS PLAN 
Scale: 1 IJ = 201-0 11 

~ 

.i ' J) 

~-

0 20 40 60 FT 

~~ 

--~--
"' 

/ "' -"" 

~ 

2 

0 

'NOTE: 

// 

/ 

,,..-------,... _____ .. 

-~ ;2\ 

~/ 

.I',··· 

•✓.: 
. .,. .. 

:--f,~ /P,~'!)· 

HILL & STAIRCASE BOULDER PLAN 
Scale: 1 11 = 1 0 1 -0 11 

10 20 30 FT 

--J-TT;~ ~ ~~GRATE \ \ P10 

D, 

\ 

NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS TO BE 
FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY·DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCY'S WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE AND 
LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED .. FINAL COORDINATION OF 
DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

_,, 

,/ 
/ 

.,{·· 

/ -{ .,.,.'>'"" -~ 
~ .,, --
. .,. 

LEGEND 

+ 000 

+000 

oulders under stil irs + 12"-20" 

PROPOSED BERM HEIGHT (ABOVE GRADE) 

PROPOSED BOULDER HEIGHT (ABOVE GRADE) 

A 

==-r VAULT DES.IGN GRO UP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN 1L 
ll\l"'W5[•d Lf1hltn1 nnd El•ctr1u\ Solution, 
1'JCCWor<'f5ti-nto-MIS O.:o-..., C0800D1 J031'll'i}OJ,j _,,,,_,.,,_,,_ ..... ,... .. 

Plaza Landscape 
Boulder Plan 

L2.01 



SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

1 

1" = 50' 

LEGEND 

~ ------ , _, 

SNOWMELT PLAN AT PLAZA 
Scale: , ,1 = so•-011 

-----
0 25' 50' 

PUBLIC SNOWMELT: 
approximately 30,941 sf 

PRIVATE SNOWMELT: 
appmximately 29,721 s1 

100' 

I 

I 
) 

SNOWMELT 30.941 SF 

4 

.....-::;;; · ·· .-· c_::·c~. • 

~ . 

~ -~~--- \ -=-v'~ ·-
,,/ 1/. 

/4 
/ /,/4 

··" / P,· 
,/f 

/, 
' , 

• 

-\\~1\-= 
Floor 4 
Scale: 1" = 30'-0" 

Floor 3 

SNOWMELT: 4,237 SF 

3 
Scale: 1" = 30'-0" 

SNOWMELT: 4,159 SF 

" ' ei 

-., 
~ 

-~------

.--.::---=~-------~=-:=~==----

2 

1"=30' 

.. --~ ~ 

Floor 2 
Scale: 1 " = 3 0 '-011 

SNOWMELT: 3,437 SF 

---------
0 15' 30' 60' 

TRUE 
NORTH 

\\ 

7 
Floor 7 
Scale: 1" = 30'-0" 

\ 

6 
Floor 6 

·•v·..-

5 
Floor 5 
Scale: 111 = 30'-0" 

......-:::; 
_--::;;; 

-~ 
-✓-

-=-

, ~~- ~~~ 

-· -le] 

SNOWMELT: 6,980 SF 

SNOWMELT: 6,918 SF 

==-r VAULT DES.IGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

1b 
AE DESIGN L. 

Snowmelt 
Diagram 

L2.02 



SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

1/ 

Ii 

/; 

\ 

. 1/ 
/ 

;( 
/! 

;I 

--i \ 

-::TENN<CE O '~ 
PROP •~ E 
OS-3B N ~, 
TRASH tDING &,_,_. 
MAIN ·.t,ICE;, < } 
BUILDIN L--3 \\..--

\\ OS,31!R2. PARKING 
\ STRIPI NG PERT 

CARSON BROOKS VALVE BOXES WITH STAINLESS 
.------ STEEL BOLT-DOWN TOP WI MATCHING LOCKING 

COVER B~AND COVBt IN 1" MIN. LETTERS Fi' 
~~w===7r~~--- - FINISH GRADE PRIOR TO MULCH 

THREADED PVC END CAP & MALE -----
ADAPTER 
4" LAYER OF DRAIN GRAVEL ABOVE & -----
BELOW VALVE BOX EXTENSIONS 

. _____ GEQTEXTILE WRAP 

'--------DRIP PIPE END 

NOTES, 
l. TAPE FABRIC ro SIDE OF VALVE BOX & PIPE W/ DUCT TAPE 

2 
DR IP FLUSH VALVE 
N.T.S 

\ 
. 
\ 

\L EXISTING MOUNTAIN \ 
\ VI L.LAGE 6LVO \ 

PEDESTRIAN 
, lif:.Cf.S5WAV /I.ND 0 
\ SRIDGE CONNECTION \ \ 

'i\tl tJVE 

PEPE§JRIAU 
ACCESSWAY 

\ 
I 

\ 

1 
IRRIGATION PLAN 1/16' • 1' 

Scale: 1 11 = 201-011 

/ 
/ 

y 

- ---- ------
0 8' 18' 37 

fi 
TRUE 

NORTH 

LEGEND 

/( 

7 
POINT-SOURCE DRIP 
for xerk perennial plant areas 

and trees 

*NOTE: 
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 

SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL ORB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS TO E!E 
FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCY'S WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE AND 
LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION OF 
DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR,O PERMIT. 

IRRIGATION NOTES 

1) Irrigation system is de-.igned to operate off of pumure of BO psi (may vary) at e<1ch point 

of connt:clion before back flow p r~enh,:r. Conlr<1ctor t.o verify pressure: prior to inslall.ilion 

dnd notify ownl!'r of any diffen::nci::s . Assumes 111 line minimum . Design pressure al heads to be 

as noted In lege11d. 

2) No irrigation work to begin untl! fin.:il grnde: hi:!s been approved. 

3) Locate all heads 6" min. Away from any wall, walk, or curb, and 12~ min. from any curb 

adjacent to parking 5talls . 

4) Bury ~11 main/foe~ 2 4" l!nderground to top o( pipe. Bu,y :a I( lateral~ 12 " u(lderground to 

top of pipe. Drip line to l!!y on surf11ce under mulch . 

5) All pipe under pavement to be sleeved in 4" minimum (unless otherwin: noted) PVC 

class 200 extend 12" beyond each edge of p,lVement, 5loped to drain. Insta ll prior to 

paving. Sleeve: wires separa tely in 4" min . pipe. 

6) All valve wire is lo direct burial 14" gauge wire Install 5 spare wires lo each end of 

m;iinline . 

7) Heads will be dia91s1mm<1ti~ Co[ltrad:or to sdect and Install corrotct arcs a5 need (or part 

circle heads. Adjust radii end arc !I~ necessary for no ovmpray/b.,ckwash onto adj<Krmt 

buildings, W<Jlls, or knees. 

8) For lnline Drip Tubing, snake pipe through planti ng area and tree void5 in one run to allow 
For easy maintenance. Space rows 1 2" ,1part. When runnin,g throush s/ee11es, transition (mm 

1/2" drip line: to 3/4 H polydhylene: 100 PSI. Do not run inline: d,fp tubing [l sleeving , 

Routing is diagrammtic, contractor to adjust layout to achieve 12" line sp.,,cing. 

Q) Plo1r. ho1s bttn pri"fhlled IJ~ing limited on sdl4!': ob~ervo1tion . Pl;i,n is- dl.-,,gr;,.mmatic and doe!: 

rmt refl,,.ct ;il l equipment , etc., that could be 2ncountl!':red durfng construction. All t ie 

locdlior;s, mainline- focalions 1 and late,.1! bc;,tioM are appro~imate and shsli require e>(dCl 

location by Contractor, 

·,a) loc,1te a!I v,1lve boxe~ ,1 min\m'Jm of 3' f1om cooa-it-e or ~-s.pi:111\~ p,,.vin9 whe.l'\ 'iMlr.\iw.:: 

runs parallel to adjacent .elements , Final loei:ltlons to be approved by Landscape A rdiitect. 

11 ) All ei1isting trees and notable p la nt material to rece i11e new irrigation. 

l 2) Soil rnoistur,t ~<tMing. dot11ic:11: to be; ins.to1lld ;r; turf atotM. 

13) lnstdll drip emitters dS described below: 
1 Gallon Material 

5 Gallon Material 
Deciduous Trees ( 1.5" · 2.5" Cal.) 

Deciduous Trees (3 '' - 4" c.,,L) 
EYi"rsJeen Trees (6 ' - 10 ') 

Evergreen TreES (11' - 14 ') 

w.w. h""" H>) II I, kr u ... ll>e w,rn 
,.,.,w-~;,..,,.....,...,,, .. ,.,,._,,,....., 

Rain 8irdSW-10(1GPH) 1 ea. 
R,,, B,,d SW-10 (1GPH) 2 " · 
R,;, B;,d SW.20 (2GPH) 3 "· 
Rain Bird SW-20 (2GPH) 4 ea_ 
R,io Bi,d SW-20 (2GPH) 3 eo , 

Ram B;,d SW.20 (£GPH) 4 ea. 

' ::--,::-,:::::::: .. ::-,;:::-,:y, WR2 Serles Wlreless Rai n and Rai n/ Freeze Sensors 
-...,, ~ ,,- •u,~ , 

OlhPJ"'1.'1J l!,cl,nologyproductslrom l!,Jn BJni; 

1 2" POP UP SPRAY 
for native seed area 

........ ..,.,._ ,.,. ......... 

::.::==--~ 
- "~""· -~--- ~,,.,. .., ____ ,._ 
... 

.____J 

nw--., ....... 

__ , .... _. 
.,.,..,,...,_,_, ,.. __ .., .. ,,. 
-..µ,,., . .,,, ,.. ..., ,.,...,, ------ --

... ............. . 

~~--.... - <A~~, 
:':'.':';~~" 

Controller system tc heve: r11lf\l'lree:ze: ~nsor and moisture ~emor, 
Contractor to specify RainBird WR2 or approved alternate. 

NOTE 
LoClolion of /mgdtion controller, backflow p,eventer, and tap and p,essu,e reduction valve- per mechanical .zt19ineer 

DIAGRAMATIC HEADS: see note 7 on Irrigation Notes 

NOTES, 

1i:.- ----ARMOR VALVE BOX WITH 
LOCKING COVER 

lf.ol - -1e----~ 6" PVC CL 200 PIPE 
(LENGTH AS REQUIRED) 

14---- BRICK (1 OF 2) 

!,U~ -~mli/cccffi'rrr,;;rr);r'"'--- RESILIENT WEDGE GATE VALVE WITH 2" 
SQUARE OPERATING NUI LI NE SIZE. 

~ ---- PVC MAIN LINE PIPE 

------------- FITTING 

i , NOMINAL SIZE OF GATf VALVf 10 MATCH NO MINl\l MAINLINE S!ZE.. 
2 INSTALL A 4' THICK CONCli'ETE PAD BELOW VALVE: WITH NO, .J li'E!lMi' 

WHEN USING PUSH ON 1.YPE VAlVES. 

ISOLATION GATE VALVE 
N.T.S 

MAJNLINE AND 
WIRING IN THE 
SNAE TRENCH 

o. 

SFCildN VlfW 

PI AN YIEW \ 

• 

NOTES 

'\, 

MAINLINE 
PIPE 

D 
\ 

' 

LATERAL 
PIPE 

WIRING IN 
CONDUIT 

I ' 

II 

WIRE. W/0 CONDUIT 

TIE A 2 ◄ .fNCH LOOP IN ALL WIRING AT 
CHANGES OF DIRECTIOl-.1 OF .309 01<! 

- GREAlEJi!.. UNTIE AFTER ALL 
CONNECTIONS HAVEBEEN MADE. 

ALL SOLVENT WEW PLASTIC PIPING T.O 
~----- BE SNAKED IN TRENCH AS SHOWN, 

11.UN WIRING BENEATH AND BF.S!DE 
~ ------------- MAl~LINl TA~EAND BUNDl EAT 

10-FCX)l lNTEWALS. 

1) SLEEVE BELOW ALL HARDSCAPE ELEMENTS WITH CLASS 200 PVC T')(IICE 
THE DIAMETER OF THE PIPE OR WIRE BUNDLE WITHIN 
2) FOR PIPE AND WIRE BURIAL DEPTHS SEE SPECIFICATIONS, 

PIPE AND WIRE TRENCHING 
4 N.T.S 

-111 

• 

• ·~ 

' 

12" Rotor Pop·Ups (Adjustable Spray Heads) 

1---------ARMQR, S'!i'\NDARD VALVE BOX, WITH "QC' BRANDED ON TOP 

.---------QUICK COUPLING VALVE WITH LOCKING COVER, KEY & SWIVEL 

I ii 
I I I HOSE ELL 

QUICK COUPLER 

~I I 

r--

------------
~ 

FINISH GRADE PRIOR TO SOD I SEEDING 

1 CU. FT. GRAVEL.SUMP 

2-1" REBAR STAKE SECURED TO QUICK COUPLER WITH STAINLESS 
STEEL GEAR CLAMPS, OR OTHER APPROVED SUPPORT SYSTEM 

PVC NIPPLE 

PVC ELL & 90° STREET ELL 

12" MIN. NIPPLE 

SIDtVIEW CLASS 200 PVC MAIN, BURY 24 " MIN. 

& I 
., 

<>,;:i,=====ICF:...---- TEE OR ELL AND 90" STREET ELL 

TOP VIEW 

NOTES, 
L COMPACT BACKFILL TO DENSrrY OF UNDISJURBED SOIL 

QU ICK COUPLER 
N.T.S 

., 

SCH 80 NIPPLE (2-INCH LENGTH, HIDDEN) 
~ AND 2 SCH 40 ELL, THREADED Ir-- PVC SCH 80 NIPPLE (TYPICAL, LENGTH AS REQUIRED) 

• r----- 30,INCH LINEAR LENGTH OF WIRE, COi.LED 

. , 1---- DBR 

/;/ 11--- JUMBOVALVEBOX 

,- --GOVER IN 1' MIN LITTERS SV • STATION # 

TOP OF MULCH 

~ FINISH GRADE 

PVC LATERAL 

.ii :>.<· , "---PVC SCH 40 MALE ADAPTER 

"'--- PVC SCH 80 NIPPLE, CLOSE (1 OF 3) 

-- PVC SCH 80 UNION fOR SERVICING ASS EMBLY 

~----- PVC MAINLINE 

~ ----- 3•INCH MINIMUM DEPTH OF 
3/4-INCH WASHED GRAVEL 

~------ BRICK (1 OF 4) 

PVC SCH 80 NIPPLE (2-INCH LENGTH, HIDDEN) 
AND PVC SCH 40 ELL 

~ ------ SERVICE-TEE 

DRIP VALVE DETAIL 
N.T.S 

==-r VAULT DES.IGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN 1L 
II\I.-W5!•d Lf1hltn1 nnd El•ctr1u\ Solution, 
1'JCC Wor<'f5ti-nto-MIS O.:o-....C0800D1 J031'll'i}OJ,j _,,,....,.,,_,,_ ..... ,... .. 

Pl a za Irrig a tion 
Plan 

L2.03 



SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

, .. 1/" 

~GATED (_~:\--+.-cL+---- ~~--=~ =Afl_CE__--\-+- -----\--\-- ---+t--~r:___ _ _ _ _ _ ___ \ '\'i, l 
SMALL RAIN GARDEN V ~ ' PARONG \ 

RAIN GARDEN , 
''A rain garden is a landscaped area designed to capture runoff and reduce polluted runoff 

using natural filtration processes. Establishe:d with a variety of native and perennial plarm, 
gtasses and flower5 ; rain gardens can add color to the landscape and provide habitat for 

various types of wildlife." 
From, "Building a Raingarden in Colorado'' Colorado Stormwater Cente, at CSU, page 3. 

ii 

2 
Rain Garden 
Scale: 1/ 2 11 = 11-0 11 

adaptable plantings 

cobble 

amended .oil 

nrnoH enteis garden and is slowed down and sprtad out through the "pond" 

M•NTENANCE a 8 
,\\J 

PROP SEO NE 
OS-3 B N .----1 
TRASH · tDltlp ~ 
MAINT , .~C"71 ~ 
BUILDIN ~ 

I 

1 

PLANT SCHEDULE 
QTY COMMON NAME 

Groundcover 

Ornamental Grasses 

Perennials 

Shrubs 

Trees 
9 Ouakins As,,en 
1 White Ar 

Vines 

\\~ 
\\ 

\ ..-7 ,,--::::::--,;p:~ 
\_,,...--

PLANTING AND TREE PLAN 1116""' 1' 

Scale: 1" = 20'-0" 

BOTANICAL NAME 

Populus trem1.1lo!des 

Abie:s conailor 

NOTES 

SCHEDULED SIZE 

3' B&B 
12' B&B 

- --- -0 B' 

HEIGHT 

20 - so ft 
40 . 60 f, 

16' 

SPREAD 

20 , 30 /t 

20 . 30 ft 

32' 

I 

r-------, 
I 

0 
IRUE 

NORTH 

SPACING 

1) PLANTING IS SUBJECT TO WEATHER AND PLANT AVAILABILITY. 
2) PLANTING WINDOW FOR PERENNIALS, GRASSES, & EVERGREENS IS 
GENERALLY BETWEEN MAY 15 AND OCTOBER i 5, WEATHER PENDING, 
3) SEE PLANTING DETAILS ON L7 01 

-
LEGEND 

□ 
n 

WATER RANGE 

~,-
~ "-... 

~...____, I 

'NOTE: 
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS TO BE 
FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCY'S WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE AND 
LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION OF 
DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

1-White Fir 

9-0uaking Aspen 

-~ ~ -\ 

MINI PINE BARK MULCH PLANTING BED 
to be planted with perennials chosen from the approved Mountain Village plant list 
mulch type: lo be based on availability- ~nal specification to be approved by landscape architect 

NATIVE SEED 
local native seed, per Native Seed Mix specified on page 12 of the M01Jntain Village landscape regulations, 

to be broadcast on hill For restoration 

Native Grass Seed Mix (General Revegetation) 

Western Yarrow 5% 
COMMENTS 

Tall Fescue 10% 

Arizona Fescue 5% 

Hard Fescue 5% 

Creeping Red Fescue 10% 

Mix of single: stem and clump form Alpine Bluegrass 15% 

Canada Bluegrass 10% 

Perennia l Ryegrass 15% 

Slender Wheatgrass 10% 

Mountain Brome 15% 

==-r VAULT DES.IGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN 1L 
ll\l"'W5[•d Lf1hltn1 nnd El•ctr1u\ Solution, 
1'JCCWor<'f5ti-nto-MIS O.:o-...,C0800D1 J031'll'i}OJ,j _,,,,_,.,,_,,_ ...... ,... .. 

Plaza Plan ti ng 
Pfan 

L4.01 



M
O
U
N
TA
IN
 
V
ILLA

G
E

B
LV
D
.

MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
IL
LA
GE

BL
VD
.

S
u
n
n
y
 
R
id
g
e
 
P
la
c
e

9
5
1
0

9
5
1
0

951
5

9520

95
20

9
5
3
0

9
5
3
5

9
5
3
5

9515

9
5
1
5

9525

9
5
3
0

9
5
13

9
5
1
3

9514

9
5
3
9

9
5
2
4

9523

5
'

5
'

5
'

TRUE
NORTH

CLOSEST POINT TO ADJACENT BUILDING

13' - 0"

NEW SIDEWALK WITH 
SNOW MELT
RE: CIVIL

PORTE COCHERE DROP OFF/PICK 
UP ONE WAY TRAFFIC 
RE: CIVIL AND A-1.03

LOT 108
TRACT OS-3BR-2

LOT 69R1

TRACT OS-3BR-2

PROPOSED NEW 
OS-3BR2 TOWN 
TRASH HOLDING & 
MAINTENANCE
BUILDING

GARAGE ENTRY/ENTRANCE

REMOVABLE 
BOLLARD, RE: 
CIVIL

LINE OF PROPOSED
UNDERGROUND PARKING AND BOH 
EASEMENT
RE: CIVIL AND SURVEY

FIRE/EMERGENCY 

LANE

RE: C
IVIL

NEW SIDEWALK 
WITH SNOW MELT
RE: CIVIL

NEW SIDEWALK 
WITH SNOW MELT
RE: CIVIL

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

STEEL GRATE 
LANDSCAPE STAIR, 
RE: LANDSCAPE

LINE OF PEDESTRIAN 
ACCESSWAY

INGRESS/EGRESS 
EASEMENT AT 
GARAGE ENTRY

AWNING OVER PORTE 
COCHERE

XISTING BRIDGE

MAINTENANCE 
PARKING 

RELOCATED SWITCHGEAR 
RE:CIVIL

PL                   
                   

             PL

PL        
        

        
        

       P
L        

        
        

        
 PL

PL                                       PL                                 PL                                                                                  PL                                                          PL PL        
        

        
        

    PL

PL   
     

     
     

     
     

     
   P

L

PL                                       PL                                 PL                                                                                  PL                                                          PL

PL   
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

 PL   
 

PL     
     

     
     

     
     

     
    P

L    

PL                                       PL    

PL                                       PL    

PL                                       PL    

PL         
         

  PL         
         

         
       P

L

PL
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  P

L

KNOX BOX

DIAGRAM DELINEATES AN 
AMBULANCE CAN PARK AT  
PLAZA PER FIRE MARSHAL 
REQUIREMENT

17' - 7 3/8"

RETAINING WALL 
PER CIVIL AND 
LANDSCAPE

WB50 DELIVERY 
INGRESS/EGRESS

SMALLER BOX TRUCK 
(SPRINTER VAN) 
LOADING/UNLOADING ZONE

RECYCLING

TRASH

MAINTENANCE

T

T

T

EXISTING
UTILITIES

BELOW GRADE 
CONCRETE VAULT 
FOR SNOWMELT 
BOILERS W/ LIFT 
OFF LID

UNDERGROUND 
CONCRETE "DUCT"

GAS REGULATOR STATION 
W/ RETAINING WALL
RE:CIVIL

GAS VALVES
RE:CIVIL

PROJECT LOCATION

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, CO

ZONING AND DESIGNATION:

ZONE DISTRICT - VILLAGE CENTER

LOT 109R - MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT

LOT 109R TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE ACCORDING TO THE 
REPLAT OF LOTS 73-76R, 109, 110, TRACT 89-A AND TRACT 
OS-3BR-1 RECORDED MARCH 18, 2011 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 
4455, COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL, STATE OF COLORADO

17.8.1 LOT COVERAGE:

34,489 SF /36,319 SF x 100 = 95%

(17.8.1 FLOOR AREA, GROSS) BUILDING AREA:

179,091 SF TOTAL CONDITIONED

84,011 SF PARKING & MECHANICAL - TEMPERED

263,102 SF COMBINED CONDITIONED + TEMPERED

BUILDING HEIGHTS:

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 88' - 9"
AVERAGE BUILDING HEIGHT: 63.61'

*ADDITIONAL HEIGHT INFORMATION CAN BE FOUND ON SHEETS 
A-1.11, A-1.12. A-2.02, A-2.03, A-2.04, & A-2.05

NOTE:
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

6/1
/20

23
 2:

07
:02

 P
M

A-0.00

ARCHITECTURAL SITE
PLAN

1/16" = 1'-0"1 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

GE

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

' 
,' ' I ! ' 

' ' ' 
' ' 
' 

' ' ' 

' ' ' 

' ' 
' ' ' ' ' 
' ' ' ' ' 

' 
' ' ' 

I 
l 

V 

\ \ 
\\ 
\ \ 
\ \ 

\ 

,' 
I 
I 

I 

------ --

_! 

~\~,3 ~ _~ 
------r-'--'--c 

~,- . 

' ' ' ' -c-----~ ---~~ ~~ \ ,-~-

I 
' ' ! 

j 

i 
' ' ,I 

" ,, 

' j 
' 

I 
' j 
' ' 

I •' 
' 

L. _____ _ 
.................. 

I 
' ' I... .. 

----·-.. ........... '. 

-.~ ...... 
' ........................ .. 

• 
I' . 

I . 

/ 
I 

I • 
J 

................ 
..... 

.............. 
...... ........ 

...... _ 
..... ·-..... --..... ··, ·-, 

---------- ··,_ ·, ··, . 

"'"''. ; ,- -ii.,-.\ <::, 

--.\\ 

._:;\ 
,_,·--.., 

' 
\\, 

' ' 

,, 

. 
' . 

\·' 
·,!;' ,<·'- ' 

. . 
" ' 

. 
:\ 

·-

. 
' . . ' • ' . . ' • '· ·, . . 

' -. ' . . ' • . ' .. \ 

• 

LOT 109R2 PARKING GARAGE L , . EGEND 

G3 G2 G1(PLAZA) 

STANDARD PUBLIC 
COM PACT PUBLIC 

SUB-TOTAL 

• 
STANDARD 

SUB-TOTAL 

HOAMAINTEN 
EMPLOYEE STAN:i~ 

STANDARD 
COMPACT 

TANDEM STANDARD 
TANDEM COMPACT 

SUB-TOTAL 
TOTAL PARKING 

STANDARD ACCESSIBLE 

TOTAL ACCES/AN ACCESSIBLE 
IBLE REQUIRED 

12 
23 
4 

39 
39 

44 
4 

48 

12 

12 

61 

3 
1 

4 

3 
23 

26 
26 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahg En . re 
gmeering, LLC 

TOTAL 
G1A PROVIDED 

44 
4 

" 
12 

12 

5 20 
7 53 
1 ' 16 16 
4 

33 
33 "' 
2 5 

2 ' 



4/2
1/2

02
3 5

:16
:20

 P
M

A-0.P1

PERSPECTIVE
RENDERINGS

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

,,,t\i\\h, 
. .. . . . . 

~:• 

---:...-----~ 
- . ---- ~ 
~-~ __ -;--" __ 
~-~ ..-1 __ .--jl 
~~ - ----:-. 

~ --~.--- ... 
- ~ -

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

AE DESIGN IL 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 

!":.:-:..:.=i ~s D,,,,=, co~ Jill l'lli.JO),j 
PnoJ"'' • 



4/2
1/2

02
3 5

:16
:21

 P
M

A-0.P2

PERSPECTIVE
RENDERINGS

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 



4/2
1/2

02
3 5

:16
:21

 P
M

A-0.P3

PERSPECTIVE
RENDERINGS

 

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

(P =-4-. --. , _ .. , . . --. • -" . 
~ ' 

I • • 

-----0 • 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

AE DESIGN •L 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 
1'!00 Wo>c<t51.•..,t~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0 ),4 
•~_,..,_,,_ PnoJ"'' • 



4/2
1/2

02
3 5

:16
:22

 P
M

A-0.P4

PERSPECTIVE
RENDERINGS

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

~.::,~ --tr:.·_,.,.-~(~ :i; 

- ~,,,.-

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

AE DESIGN •L 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 
1'!00 Wo>c<t51.•..,t~5 IJ,:,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0),4 
•~_,..,_,,_ PnoJ"'' • 



4/2
1/2

02
3 5

:16
:22

 P
M

A-0.P5

PERSPECTIVE
RENDERINGS

 

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

AE DESIGN IL 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 

!'!00 Wo~5t,..,t~5 IJ,:,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0 ),4 
~- ..,_,,_ PnoJ"'' • 

of C 



1

A-3.00

1

A-3.00

A-2.00

4

A-2.01

4

A-2.00

3

A-2.01

3
A-2.01

1

A-2.01

2

24' - 
0"

G
3
 -

P
A
R

K
IN

G

STAIR 2

G3S2

ELEV S1

G3E1

ELEV P1

G3E2

ELEV P2

G3E3
BOH

G302

BOH

G301

LINE OF WALL 
ABOVE

PL                   
                   

             PL

PL        
        

        
        

       P
L        

        
        

        
 PL

PL                                       PL                                 PL                                                                                  PL                                                          PL PL        
        

        
        

    PL

PL   
     

     
     

     
     

     
   P

L

PL                                       PL                                 PL                                                                                  PL                                                          PL

PL   
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

 PL   
 

PL     
     

     
     

     
     

     
    P

L   
 

PL                                       PL    

PL                                       PL    

PL                                       PL    

PL         
         

  PL         
         

         
       P

L

PL
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  P

L

PROPOSED NEW TOWN TRASH 
BUILDING

MAINTENANCE 
PARKING 

C
C

C

1' 
- 0

"2' - 0"

1' - 8
"

VALET

ONLY

VEHICLE

ELEV 2

G3V2
VALET

ONLY

VEHICLE

ELEV 1

G3V1

1' -
 0"

1' 
- 5

"

G3

PARKING

G300
V17

V18

V19

V20

V21

V22

V23

V24

V25

E12

E11

E10

E9

E8

E7

E6

E5

E4

E3

E2

E1

V6 V7 V8

V9

V10

V11

V12

EXISTING BRIDGE ABOVE

32' - 4 1/2"

22' - 
11 1/8"

BOH

G303

C

V16

V15

V2

V3

V4

V5

V13

V14

BOH

G304

24' - 0"

V27

V26

V1

4/3
0/2

02
3 9

:15
:59

 A
M

A-1.00

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL G3
OVERALL

1/16" = 1'-0"1 LEVEL G3 PARKING (9500')

PUBLIC PARKING SPACES NON-VALET G3 G2 G1(PLAZA) G1A

TOTAL 

PROVIDED

STANDARD PUBLIC 44 44
COMPACT PUBLIC 4 4

SUB-TOTAL 48 48

HOTEL PARKING SPACES NON-VALET

STANDARD 12 12
SUB-TOTAL 12 12

HOTEL PARKING SPACES VALET

HOA MAINTENANCE 1 1

EMPLOYEE STANDARD 12 3 5 20

STANDARD 23 23 7 53

COMPACT 4 1 5

TANDEM STANDARD 16 16

TANDEM COMPACT 4
SUB-TOTAL 39 1 26 33

TOTAL PARKING 39 61 26 33 159

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES

STANDARD ACCESSIBLE 3 2 5
VAN ACCESSIBLE 1 1

TOTAL ACCESSIBLE REQUIRED 4 2 6

LOT 109R2 PARKING GARAGE LEGEND

PARKING 

SPACES

EV 

INSTALLED EV READY

EV 

CAPABLE

TOTAL 

REQ'D

PERCENTAGE REQ'D 159 10% 15% 50% 75%

TOTAL EV PARKING 16 23.85 79.5 119.35

COMMERCIAL SPACES 29 3 4.35 14.5 22
PUBLIC SPACES 48 5 7.2 24 36

EMPLOYEE SPACES 20 2 3 10 15
CONDO 20 2 3 10 15
HOTEL 41.5 4 6.23 20.75 31

TOTAL PROVIDED 16 24 79 120

LOT 109R2 EV PARKING LEGEND

NOTE:
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

COMMERCIAL
SQUARE 

FOOTAGE

AMOUNT 

PER

TOTAL 

REQ'D

TOTAL 

PROVIDED

COMMERCIAL LOW USEAGE (RETAIL, SPA, 
MARKET) 17,000 1/1000 17 17

COMMERCIAL HIGH USEAGE (RESTAURANT, 
LOUNGE, WEDDING VENUE, OFFICE) 5,609 1/500 11.218 12

29

SUB-

TOTAL 29

PER 2011 DOCS
QUANTITY

AMOUNT 

PER

TOTAL 

REQ'D

TOTAL  

PROVIDED

PUBLIC 48 48 48

DEDICATED HOA MAINTENANCE 1 1 1

49

SUB-

TOTAL 49

EMPLOYEE

DEDICATED EMPLOYEE DORM SPACES 18 1 18 18

DEDICATED EMPLOYEE APARTMENT SPACES 2 1 2 2

20

SUB-

TOTAL 20

HOTEL

1 SPACE PER CONDO TOTAL CONDOS 20 1 20 20

LODGE 31 0.5 15.5 16

EFFICIENCY 50 0.5 25 25

60.5
SUB-

TOTAL 
61

159 159

ACCESSIBLE REQ'D
1106.5 VAN 

SPACES

TOTAL 

REQ'D

TOTAL  

PROVIDED

IBC TABLE 1106.1 
151 to 200 6 6 6

1106.5 For every six or fraction of six accessible 
parking spaces, at least one shall be a van accessible 
parking space.

1/6 1 1

1 6

COMPACT ALLOWED TOTAL
TOTAL 

ALLOWED

TOTAL 

PROVIDED

10% 159 15.9 1317.5.8 Parking Regulations c. Up to ten percent (10%) of the 
required parking may be provided in designated compact 
motor vehicle spaces that measure nine feet in width (9') and 
sixteen feet in length (16'). Compact motor vehicle spaces 
shall be designated as a general common element and be 
signed as compact parking spaces.

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED

LOT 109R2 PARKING CALCULATIONS

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED

TOTAL LOT 109R2 PARKING REQUIRED / PROVIDED

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED

TOTAL LOT 109R ACCESSIBLE PARKING

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

,•, 
/ ·-,,.. ,• '· 

,• '· ,,/ ·, 
/ •/ ·. 

'· ·, . 
') ,,. 

_,,.· 
'·. 

'· ·, . 
' 

,,--✓-· 

,•, __ ,,. 
/ . ,/ v·· ·, ,,· · . ..,,.• 

I 
' • 
I 
• 
i . 
• 
I 
• • 
I 
• 
' I 
' ' 

\ 
• 
' \ 
' 
\ 
' ' \ 
' ' \ 
• ' \ 

' ' \ 
• 
' \ 
' ' \ • 
' \ 
' ' \ 
' 

_,,· 

\ 
' • 
\ 
• 
' \ 

_,,.· 

. 
,> 

. 
' 

' \ 

. . 
' • ' . ·, 

\ . 
'· . 

'· \ 
\ . . 

'· . 
' 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 



M
O
U
N
TA
IN
 
V
ILLA

G
E

B
LV
D
.

MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
IL
LA
GE

BL
VD
.

S
u
n
n
y
 
R
id
g
e
 
P
la
c
e

5
'

5
'

5
'

BOH,

LAUNDRY,

MECH.

G208

MECH/ELEC

G204

C

TRUE
NORTH

ROOM LEGEND

BOH/CIRCULATION

ENTRANCE
EXIT

BACK

UP

GENERATOR

G201

1

A-3.00

1

A-3.00

ADA VAN
PARKING

FIRE/ 

EMERGENCY 

LANE ABOVE, 

RE: CIVIL

LINE OF 

PEDESTRIAN 

ACCESSWAY 

ABOVE

RETAINING WALL, RE: 
CIVIL/LANDSCAPE

REMOVABLE 
BOLLARDS, RE: 
CIVIL

KNOX BOX

A-2.00

4

A-2.00

1

A-2.01

4

STAIR 2

G2S2

MECH/ELEC

G203

STAIR 1

G2S1

ELEV P2

G2E3

TRASH

G210

STAIR 3

S103

ELEV S2

G2E6

ELEV P3

G2E4

ELEV P4

G2E5 ELEV S1

G2E1

ELEV P1

G2E2

DELIVERY

&

TRASH

COLLECTION

G206

TRASH

HOLDING

G205

A-2.00

3

A-2.01

3

A-2.01

2

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

1

2

4

TRASH COMPACTOR
2-YD-FL 
6'-0" x 3'-6" x 9'-6"

LINE OF WALL ABOVE

24
' - 

0 1
/2"

C C
C

G2 - PARKING

USGS 

9511'

USGS 

9510'

BOH

419E

MAINTENANCE 
PARKING 

G2 - PARKING

DRIVE AISLE IS 18'-0")

20' - 0" +/- (AASHTO COMPLIANT

GATE
GATE

USGS 

9510'

27
' - 

0"

24' - 0
"

24' - 0"

24
' - 

0"

24' - 0"

OVERHEAD 
CLEARANCE OF 
8'-2" 
MAINTAINED AT 
DRIVE AISLE

OVERHEAD 
CLEARANCE OF 8'-2" 
MAINTAINED AT DRIVE 
AISLE AND VAN 
ACCESSIBLE PARKING

VENTILATION

DUCT

OS-3BR

BOILER

VAULT

OS-3BR 
PARKING

OS-3BR 
PARKING

OS-3BR 
PARKING

OS-3BR 
PARKING

BOX TRUCK LOADING/UNLOADING 
ZONE
RE: CIVIL

1' - 4
 3/4"

8 3/4"

1' - 0"

2' - 0"

1' - 11 3/4"

1' - 4"

2' - 5"

8"

6"

1' 
- 5

"

1' 
- 0

"

1' - 0
"

1' - 8
"

1' - 4"

PARKING

G200

PROPOSED NEW 
OS-3BR2 TOWN 
TRASH HOLDING & 
MAINTENANCE
BUILDING

RECYCLING

TRASH

MAINTENANCE

1

P48

P47

P46

P45

P44

3

P21

12

P11

P7

P8

P9

P22

P13

P20

P6

P5

P4

P12

P10

P14

P15
P16

P17

P24

P23

P18

P1

P2

P3

P25

5

4

P26

P27

6

7

8

9

10

11

P43

P33

P32

P31

P37

P30

P29

P28

HOA

P19

P42

6"
VALET

ONLY

VEHICLE

ELEV 2

SHAFT

232 VALET

ONLY

VEHICLE

ELEV 1

SHAFT

239

24' - 0
"

BOH

240

2

P40

P39

P38

P34

P35

P36

P41

LINE OF 
SIDEWALK ABOVE

NOTE:
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

5/3
1/2

02
3 1

0:1
5:4

2 A
M

A-1.01

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL G2 -
OVERALL

1/16" = 1'-0"1 LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510')

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

' ' I , 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I 

I 

I I 
I I 

I I 
I I 

I 

1\ 

I I\ 
I 11 

11 
I 1, 

\I 
11 ,, 
" " ,, 
" ,, ,, 
" " 

' ' ' \ 
' ' ' ' ' ' \ \ 
' ' ' ' ' ' \ \ 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 
' I 
I 

I I 

I I 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' \ \ 

' ' ' ' ' ' \ \ 
' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 

\ 
' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' \ \ 
' ' ' ' ' ' \ \ 

◊ 
\ ' 

\ ~ / 

' I'~ ,, ,, ~ . ', \ 

' \ 

' ,, 
"'··,, 

'•., 

\ \ 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I 

\ I 

I 
I 

----.... 

n 
• 

LOT 109R2 PARKING GARAGE LEGEND 

• 
STANDARD PUBLIC 
COMPACT PUBLIC 

SUB-TOTAL 

• 
STANDARD 

SUB-TOTAL 

HOA MAINTENANCE 
EMPLOYEE STANDARD 

STANDARD 
COMPACT 

TANDEM STANDARD 
TANDEM COMPACT 

SUB-TOTAL 

G3 

12 
23 
4 

39 

G2 

44 
4 

48 

12 

12 

G1(PLAZA) 

3 
23 

26 
TOT AL PARKING 39 61 26 

STANDARD ACCESSIBLE 3 
VAN ACCESSIBLE 

TOTAL ACCESSIBLE REQUIRED 4 

LOT 109R2 PARKING CALCULATIONS 

• SQUARE AMOUNT TOTAL 
FOOTAGE PER REQ'D 

COMMERCIAL LOW USEAGE (RETAIL, SPA, 
MARK ET) 17,000 1/1000 17 

COMM ERCIAL HIGH USEAGE (RESTAURANT, 
LOUNGE, WEDDING VENUE, OFFICE) 5,609 11500 11.218 

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED 29 

. . 
' PER REQ'D QUANTITY 

PUBLIC 46 48 
DEDICATED HOA MAINTENANCE 

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED 49 

• • 
DEDICATED EMPLOYEE DORM SPACES 1B 1B 

DEDICAlED EMPLOYEE APARTM ENT SPACES 2 2 

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED 20 

1 SPACE PER CONDO TOTAL CONDOS 20 20 

LODGE 31 0,5 15.5 

EFFICIENCY 50 0,5 15 

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED 60.5 

TOTAL LOT 109R2 PARKING REQUIRED I PROVIDED 158.5 

REQ'D 
1106.5 VAN TOTAL 

SPACES REQ'D 

IBCTABLE 1106.1 

151 lo 200 6 6 

1106-.5 For every six or fraction of six accessible 
parting spaces, al least one shall be a van accessible 116 
parting space. 

TOTAL LOT 109R ACCESSIBLE PARKING 

ALLOWED TOTAL 

17.5.8 Parking Regulationsc Up to ten percent (10%) of the 10% 158.5 
required pa rking may be provided in designated compact 
motor vehicle space~ th .it measure nine feet in width (9'f and 
sixteen feet in length (16'). Compact motor vehicle spaces 
shall be dC'Signilted as a general common clement a11d be 
signed as compact parking ~paces. 

LOT 109R2 EV PARKING LEGEND 
PARKING 
SPACES ... 159 

TOTAL EV PARKING 
COMMERCIAL SPACES 29 

PUBLIC SPACES 48 5 
EMPLOYEE SPACES 2() 2 

CONDO 2() 2 
HOTEL 41.5 4 

TOTAL PROVIDED 16 " 

TOTAL 
G1A PROVIDED 

5 
7 
1 
16 
4 

33 
33 

2 

2 

SUB-
TOTAL 

SUB-
TOTAL 

SUB-
TOTAL 

SUB-
TOTAL 

TOTAL 
AU.OWED 

15.85 

EV 
CAPABLE 

79.5 
14.5 
24 
10 
10 

20,75 

79 

44 
4 .. 
12 

12 

20 
5J 

' 16 

159 

5 
1 

' 
TOTAL 
PROVIDED 

17 

12 

29 

PROVIDED 

48 

49 

18 

2 

20 

20 
15,5 

25 

60.5 

159 

TOTAL 
PROVIDED 

6 

6 

TOTAL 
PROVIDED 

13 

TOTAL 
REQ'D 

7~% 
119.35 

22 
36 
15 
15 
31 

120 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

~ 
Uncompahgre 

Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN IL 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 
l'l00 Wo>c<051.•..,t~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0 ),4 
•~·•""-,,_ PnoJ"''. 

of C 



M
O
U
N
TA
IN
 
V
ILLA

G
E

B
LV
D
.

MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
IL
LA
GE

BL
VD
.

S
u
n
n
y
 
R
id
g
e
 
P
la
c
e

5
'

5
'

5
'

U
S
G

S
 =

 9
52

0
'

RETAIL

P100

LOUNGE

AND SKI

SHOP

P102

G
1
 -

P
A
R

K
IN

G

1

A-3.00

1

A-3.00

STANDARD 

PARKING SPACE

9' X 19', TYP

METAL GRATE 
STAIRS UP TO 
MOUNTAIN 
VILLAGE BLVD.

OPEN TO 
LEVEL 1 
ABOVE

F.O. BUILDING TO PL
11' - 5"

FACE OF BLDG TO FACE OF BLDG

17' - 6"

PEDESTRIAN 
BRIDGE ABOVE

EXISTING MOUNTAIN 
VILLAGE BLVD 
PEDESTRIAN 
ACCESSWAY AND 
BRIDGE CONNECTION 
ABOVE

OPEN TO 
LEVEL 1 
ABOVE

LINE OF AWNING 
ABOVE, TYP

PEDESTRIAN 

ACCESSWAY 

FIRE/
EMERGENCY LANE

SLOPE, RE: CIVIL

RAISED FLOOR AT 
LOADING DOCK 
BELOW

REMOVABLE 
BOLLARD PER CIVIL

KNOX BOX

A-2.00

4

A-2.00

1

A-2.00

2

A-2.01

4

FIRE

PUMP/SPRINKLER

ROOM

G102

ELEV P1

P1E2

ELEV S1

P1E1

ELEV P2

P1E3

MENS

P107

WOMENS

P106

SPA AT

RAISED

FLOOR

P105

SPA

P104

TRUE
NORTH

A-2.00

3

A-2.01

3
A-2.01

1

A-2.01

2

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

ELECT

P113

RETAIL

P101

MARKET

P103

STAIR 2

G1S2

STAIR 1

G1S1

3

3

3

3

5

7

ELEV S2

P1E6

ELEV P4

P1E4

ELEV P3

P1E5

PL                   
                   

             PL

PL        
        

        
        

       P
L        

        
        

        
 PL

PL                                       PL                                 PL                                                                                  PL                                                          PL PL        
        

        
        

    PL

PL   
     

     
     

     
     

     
   P

L

PL                                       PL                                 PL                                                                                  PL                                                          PL

PL   
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

 PL   
 

PL     
     

     
     

     
     

     
    P

L    

PL                                       PL    

PL                                       PL    

PL                                       PL    

PL         
         

  PL         
         

         
       P

L

PL
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  P

L

24' - 0
"

MECH/PLUMB

G101

STAIR 3

S103

VALET

ONLY

VEHICLE

ELEV 2

419W
VALET

ONLY

VEHICLE

ELEV 1

419X

PROPOSED NEW 

OS-3BR2 TOWN 

TRASH HOLDING & 

MAINTENANCE

BUILDING BELOW

V6

CV10

E1

CV8

CV7

CV6

V7

V8

V9

V10

CV13

CV9

V3

V4

V5

V1

V2

CV5

CV4

CV3

CV2

CV1

CV12

CV11

E3

E2

BELOW GRADE 
CONCRETE VAULT 
FOR SNOWMELT 
BOILERS W/ LIFT 
OFF LID

LOBBY

P112

BOH

P116

STORAGE

P117

NOTE:

NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

6/1
/20

23
 2:

28
:52

 P
M

A-1.02

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL G1
PLAZA - OVERALL

1/16" = 1'-0"1 LEVEL G1 PLAZA

ROOM LEGEND

BOH/CIRCULATION

COMMERCIAL

HOTEL AMENITY

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

, 
' ' ' ' ' ' I 

I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I 

I i ,, 
I I 
I I 

I I 
I 

I 
I I 
I I 

I I 

I I 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' \ I , 
' ' ' ' ' \ 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' \ \ 
' ' ' ' ' ' \ \ 

' ' I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 

\ \ 
\ \ 

\,\ -----•:\ 
\ ) :--- \\ 

\\ 
--- .\· 

\\ 

\\ . " -----1"""--.. 

~ I , 
' 

------.. ---......... ·---------._{ ---.......... / ·--'-. .......... / 
'"7-...... .... , .... 

. 

' 
' 

' 

r .\ 
' '·< / 

• ____ / <, 
,' 
·\ 

, 
' 

/ 
// 

/1, I/ 
~ ✓/,,/" ,,, _,,,:r 
✓ ✓ 

·, ,./ ~ 

// /-
/' \ ./ 
~ #/!/ .Q 

J"' .-- ----. ' 
,<JY / ' 

/" 1,, ) -"' "' ·. ___ _ / 

~/✓?.•' // 
✓ / '1 / ,, ' ,. , __ - -

\8 
~-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

r 

• • 
\ 
• 
\ • • 

\ . 
• 

. ·,. ·, 

\ 
• • 
\ • • 

\ 
• • 

\* \ • 
i 
• 

i 
_/ ./ 

" ·, . ' -,~ 
\, 

• 
\: 
\, 

LOT 109R2 PARKING GARAGE LEGEND 
TOTAL 

• G3 G2 G1(PLAZA) G1A PROVIDED 

STANDARD PUBLIC 
COMPACT PUBLIC 

SUB-TOTAL 

• 
STANDARD 

SUB-TOTAL 

• 
HOA MAINTENANCE 

EMPLOYEE STANDARD 
STANDARD 
COMPACT 

TANDEM STANDARD 
TANDEM COMPACT 

SUB-TOTAL 

TOT AL PARKING 

STANDARD ACCESSIBLE 

VAN ACCESSIBLE 

TOTAL ACCESSIBLE REQUIRED 

12 
23 
4 

39 
39 

44 
4 

48 

12 

12 

61 

3 

4 

3 
23 

26 
26 

LOT 109R2 PARKING CALCULATIONS 

• SQUARE AMOUNT TOTAL 
FOOTAGE PER REQ'D 

COMMERCIAL LOW USEAGE (RETAIL, SPA, 
MARK ET) 17,000 1/1000 17 

COMM ERCIAL HIGH USEAGE (RESTAURANT, 
LOUNGE, WEDDING VENUE, OFFICE) 5,609 11500 11,218 

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED 29 

. . 
' PER REQ'D QUANTITY 

PUBLIC 46 48 

DEDICATED HOA MAINTENANCE 

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED 49 

• • 
DEDICATED EMPLOYEE DORM SPACES 1B 18 

DEDICAlED EMPLOYEE APARTM ENT SPACES 2 2 

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED 20 

1 SPACE PER CONDO TOTAL CONDOS 20 20 

LODGE 31 0,5 15,5 

EFFICIENCY 50 0,5 15 

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED 60,5 

TOTAL LOT 109R2 PARKING REQU IRED I PROVIDED 158,5 

REQ'D 
1106.5 VAN TOTAL 

SPACES REQ'D 

IBCTABLE 1106.1 

151 lo 200 6 6 

1106.5 For every six or fraction of six accessible 
parting spaces, al least one shall be a van accessible 116 
parting space. 

TOTAL LOT 109R ACCESSIBLE PARKING 

ALLOWED TOTAL 

17-5.8 Parking Regulationsc Up to ten percent (10%) of the 10% 158.5 
required pa rking may be provided in designated compact 

motor vehicle space~ th .it measure nine feet in width (9'f and 
sixteen feet in length (16'). Compact motor vehicle spaces 
shall be dC'Signilted as a general common clement a11d be 
signed as compact parking ~paces. 

LOT 109R2 EV PARKING LEGEND 
PARKING 
SPACES ... 159 

TOTAL EV PARKING 
COMMERCIAL SPACES 29 

PUBLIC SPACES 48 5 
EMPLOYEE SPACES 2() 2 

CONDO 2() 2 
HOTEL 41,5 4 

TOTAL PROVIDED 16 " 

5 
7 
I 
16 
4 

33 
33 

2 

2 

SUB-
TOTAL 

SUB-
TOTAL 

SUB-
TOTAL 

SUB-
TOTAL 

TOTAL 
AU.OWED 

15.85 

EV 
CAPABLE 

79.5 
14.5 
24 
10 
10 

20,75 

79 

44 
4 .. 
12 

12 

20 
SJ 

' 16 

159 

' I 
' 

TOTAL 
PROVIDED 

17 

12 

29 

PROVIDED 

48 

49 

18 

2 

20 

20 
15,5 

25 

60.5 

159 

TOTAL 
PROVIDED 

6 

6 

TOTAL 
PROVIDED 

13 

TOTAL 
REQ'D 

7~% 
119.35 

22 
36 
15 
15 
31 

120 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

~ 
Uncompahgre 

Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN IL 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 
l'l00 Wo>c<051.•..,t~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0 ),4 
•~-•""-,,_ PnoJ"'' • 

of C 



MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
IL
LA
GE

BL
VD
.

S
u
n
n
y
 
R
id
g
e
 
P
la
c
e

5
'

5
'

5
'

OFFICE

108

KITCHEN

113BAR

114

LOBBY

LOUNGE

110

RAMP DOWN
CHECK-IN

ELEV. LOBBY

DOWN

OPEN TO

PEDESTRIAN 

ACCESS

BELOW

OPEN TO

PEDESTRIAN 

ACCESS

BELOW

PEDESTRIAN 

BRIDGE

ENTRY

RESIDENTIAL

LOBBY

101

FIRE

DPMT/ANNUNCIATIOR

103

VALET

102

WALK

G
1
A
 -

P
A
R

K
IN

G

PLAZA BELOW

FLOOR ABOVE

RR 1

111

FIRE PLACE

EXIT

ENTER

6.67% SLOPE

1

A-3.00

1

A-3.00

SNOW MELTED SIDEWALK PER CIVIL

DROP OFF 
AREA

ONE WAY VEHICULAR 
TRAFFIC

A-2.00

4

A-2.00

1

A-2.00

2

A-2.01

4

ELEV P3

EP103

ELEV P4

EP104
ELEV S2

ES102

5% SLOPE

ELEV P1

EP101

ELEV P2

EP102

ELEV S1

ES101

8

GYM

109

TRUE
NORTH

A-2.00

3

A-2.01

3
A-2.01

1

A-2.01

2

SNOW MELTED SIDEWALK
 PER CIVIL

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

LINE OF AWNING

LINE OF HEADER

STAIR 2

PS02

STAIR 1

G1AS1

STAIR 4

MS4

SLOPE

PARALLEL

C

STAIR 3

S103

MECH/ELEC

G1A1

24' - 0
"

VALET

ONLY

VEHICLE

ELEV 2

VALET

ONLY

VEHICLE

ELEV 1

PARKING

G1A0

E5

TV19

TV18

TV17

TV13

TV12

TV16

TV11

TV14

TV20

TV15

V1

V4

V3

V5

V6

V7

V8

E1

E2

E3

E4

TV10

TV9

TV2

TV1

V2

RR 2

112

TV4

TV3

YV8

TV7

TV5

TV6

C

C

C

C

25' - 4"

0'-0" / USGS = 9536.5

VE
HIC

LE
 CI

RC
UL

AT
ION R

AM
P

18
' - 

0"

NOTE:
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

 

5/3
0/2

02
3 5

:28
:33

 P
M

A-1.03

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1/G1A
PARKING - OVERALL

1/16" = 1'-0"1 LEVEL 1 (9535')

ROOM LEGEND

BOH/CIRCULATION

HOTEL AMENITY

OFFICE

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

\ 
> 

I 
• • 
\ 
• • 
\ 
• • 

--..1 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I 

./ .. 
,.I 

I • 
I 

,' 

;. ,.// 
•• I 

11,lf 
/ ! 

/ ,• 
?' 

;/ 

\\ 

---- \\__ \ _____ -
/ .. ---·/ ,, - , 

/ \ ... • ::;;~:---c,;,-:."+-=c.,--.-·-=~1~:!::-_-c.-0,,:_ \ \ ' 

:.-~~,;~ 
_;;,.•· .1/ . 1/ 

. • ....- I . "' ·-- .;/ 
.:-------\\ \1 \ .. . .. . . . <,':~,"""~-".. ..... : __ - •_. 

\> " 

. .<::: ... 
.~~~<· 

/ /"' V 

/ 
/. 

.. /·· 

/-· 
. . 

,;//'_,/\ . ,J:c: /. "'· ' ';,·'. 

,,, .. 
_/ ,,,-

D 

__ /.· 

/1/.-✓--
/-· ,,,.. 

--~--- --••-• I I 1 \ , 
----: .. -•" I \ I 1 \ \ r • I \ \ ...... ---:_ ,.. IW<S'Y 

/ /! 1f --·-··-·•- , \ . I ',\ ~ --• ,;r, 
' ' -•"' __ ••-• O I \ \ _ ... --~5 ~ :;23~~ 
: /: t ••-:;; c""~~ --=--:_< ·-•• .\ \\ \. \. \ - .. : ~ .,;>~--""'· r--- ,..:> 

i I i• .. ':7 . >, •·· \ \\ \, \ •:i:i:~ Q _,.._;'.,:::'.'.,:::'.'.,:::'.'. / 

! ! ', . \ \ \,,-- o!!l .~,<<"<<'<<'. 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I I 

I 

. \\ \ .. . . .. .. .. 
', \ . . 

\ _,.._'.'.,:;:'.-,:;'.'.-:>· 

\ 

l 

• 
• . . . . 

. . 
• 
• 
I 
I 

I I 
I I 

I I 

; I 
; I 
; I . . . 

•. ---'<" 

• 
\ 
\\ 

\ ..,.,,-· 

. 

\ / •, 7 
\ . ~ 

. 

'.,\/;/ 

<3> \.,, 

/✓ 
/7 

/;/ .-, 

' ,,./" ( :::1 /:/' 

f -;/-

' sf i ·\ 

/ '· ... •• 

·•. # ' '/ 

-✓// 
v// • 

. 

0 
+-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

n 
□ 
LJ 

• • 
\ • • 

\ • • 
\ • • 
\ • • 
\ • • 

\ • • 
\,lf? 

\ 
I 

I • • 
I • 

/ 

LOT 109R2 PARKING GARAGE LEGEND 

• 
STANDARD PUBLIC 
COMPACT PUBLIC 

SUB-TOTAL 

• 
STANDARD 

SUB-TOTAL 

• 
HOA MAINTENANCE 

EMPLOYEE STANDARD 
STANDARD 
COMPACT 

TANDEM STANDARD 
TANDEM COMPACT 

SUB-TOTAL 

TOT AL PARKING 

STANDARD ACCESSIBLE 
VAN ACCESSIBLE 

TOTAL ACCESSIBLE REQUIRED 

G3 

12 
23 
4 

39 
39 

G2 

44 
4 

48 

12 

12 

61 

3 

4 

G1(PLAZA) 

3 
23 

26 
26 

LOT 109R2 PARKING CALCULATIONS 

• SQUARE AMOUNT TOTAL 
FOOTAGE PER REQ'D 

COMMERCIAL LOW USEAGE (RETAIL, SPA, 
MARKET) 17,000 1/1000 17 

COMMERCIAL HIGH USEAGE (RESTAURANT, 
LOUNGE, WEDDING VENUE, OFFICE) 5,609 11500 11,218 

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED 29 

. . 
' PER REQ'D QUANTITY 

PUBLIC 46 48 
DEDICATED HOA MAINTENANCE 

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED 49 

• • 
DEDICATED EMPLOYEE DORM SPACES 1B 1B 

DEDICAlED EMPLOYEE APARTMENT SPACES 2 2 

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED 20 

1 SPACE PER CONDO TOTAL CONDOS 20 20 

LODGE 31 0.5 15,5 

EFFICIENCY 50 0.5 15 

SUB-TOTAL REQUIRED 60,5 

TOTAL LOT 109R2 PARKING REQU IRED I PROVIDED 158.5 

REQ'D 
1106.5 VAN TOTAL 

SPACES REQ'D 

IBCTABLE 1106.1 

151 lo 200 6 6 

1106.5 For every six or fraction of six accessible 
parting spaces, al least one shall be a van accessible 116 
parting space. 

TOTAL LOT 109R ACCESSIBLE PARKING 

ALLOWED TOTAL 

17.5.8 Parking Regulationsc Up to ten percent (10%) of the 10% 158.5 
required pa rking may be provided in designated compact 

motor vehicle space~ th .it measure nine feet in width (9'f and 
sixteen feet in length (16'). Compact motor vehicle spaces 
shilll be dC'Signiltcd as .:i general common clement a11d be 
signed as compact parking ~paces. 

LOT 109R2 EV PARKING LEGEND 
PARKING 
SPACES ... 159 

TOTAL EV PARKING 
COMMERCIAL SPACES 29 

PUBLIC SPACES 48 5 
EMPLOYEE SPACES 2() 2 

CONDO 2() 2 
HOTEL 41.5 4 

TOTAL PROVIDED 16 ,. 

TOTAL 
G1A PROVIDED 

5 
7 
1 

16 
4 

33 
33 

2 

2 

SUB-
TOTAL 

SUB-
TOTAL 

SUB-
TOTAL 

SUB-
TOTAL 

TOTAL 
AU.OWED 

15.85 

EV 
CAPABLE 

79.5 
14.5 
24 
10 
10 

20.75 

79 

44 
4 .. 
12 

12 

20 
SJ 

' 16 

"' 
' I 
' 

TOTAL 
PROVIDED 

17 

12 

29 

PROVIDED 

48 

49 

18 

2 

20 

20 
15,5 

25 

60.5 

159 

TOTAL 
PROVIDED 

6 

6 

TOTAL 
PROVIDED 

13 

TOTAL 
REQ'D 

7~% 
119.35 

22 
36 
15 
15 
31 

110 

I 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

~ 
Uncompahgre 

Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN IL 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 
l'l00 Wo>c<151.•..,t~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0),4 
•~·•'"'-,,_ PnoJ"'' • 

of C 



M
O
U
N
TA
IN
 
V
ILLA

G
E

B
LV
D
.

MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
IL
LA
GE

BL
VD
.

S
u
n
n
y
 
R
id
g
e
 
P
la
c
e

5
'

5
'

5
'

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M114

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M113

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M112

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M111

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M110

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M109

LIBRARY

AND

SELF

LEARNING

M130

EMPLOYEE

APARTMENT

M120

EMPLOYEE

APARTMENT

M119

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M107

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M106

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M105

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M104

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M103

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M102

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M101

HOST

LOUNGE

AND

SELF

COOKING

M129

HOST

GAME

ROOM

M126

HOST

CINEMA

M125

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M115

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M117

STAIR 1

SM01

STAIR 2

MS2

25' - 6
" +/-12' - 4" +/-

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M108

HOST

GYM

M127

HOST

LAUNDRY

M128

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M116

EMPLOYEE

DORM

M118

1

A-3.00

1

A-3.00

OPEN TO LEVEL BELOW

OPEN TO LEVEL BELOW

A-2.00

4

A-2.00

1

A-2.00

2

A-2.01

4

OPEN TO PEDESTRIAN 
BRIDGE BELOW

ELEV S1

G205ZZ

HALLWAY

M124

TRUE
NORTH

A-2.00

3

A-2.01

3
A-2.01

1

A-2.01

2

ELECT

M123

STAIR 4

MS4
ELEV P3

EP103

ELEV P4

EP104
ELEV S2

ES102

ELEV P1

EP101

ELEV P2

EP102

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

STEEL GRATE 
LANDSCAPE STAIR 
DOWN TO PLAZA LEVEL
RE: LANDSCAPE

BOH

M121
STAIR 3

S103

NOTE:

NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

7/1
4/2

02
3 3

:56
:17

 P
M

A-1.04

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1
MEZZANINE - OVERALL

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

1/16" = 1'-0"1 LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE

ROOM LEGEND

BOH/CIRCULATION

EMPLOYEE AMENITY

EMPLOYEE HOUSING

) 

I ,.. : 
·, I .. 

'~ : 
'··, I . ' ~ .......... ..._ _______________ . 

;.✓ 

""' ) 

/;,~·;/ 
/ /? 1/JI 
/." / 

~,- _, 

/; :;.·, . 
.· // 
.... j ./ 

/,:i~-/ 
/,>i~,- / 

:::,::·<;,;>"',/· 
,... 

/ ,( · 
~,J / /7 

/ // 
/:i' 

// 
/? 

/-i"' /;( 
/ )) 

1 /)0 
//// 

/ ///./ 
// //> 

\ 

/ \\ 

/ \ 

I a \.-- ... · - \ ·. 
l------ ' 
• • 
I 
• • 
I 
• • 
I 
• • 
I 
• 

I 
I 

~-=-· 
' ' 

\ ./ \ _________________ _ 

II 

_,,':>t 
,.,,;:·;·::;:=:::

v-:..:::-..>t; .-\, 
Y.,.,.-,...- / , 

t;<-<-.: st\ 'C-.,.-,,.-/ _.--I i . /'" .- ,,..--,,- \ 
\:'.'• ·\ \ >::;:\'( \. --- ,--- ,,,.,, \ 

-'°'.:\ ' 
~{::::-::.>\ \:,...-- -----\ \ ~:::,..,.---

N 
\I-' 

~. 

(_! 

\ ,~ 
' 

·---- -· 

r 

fi 

_J 

□ 
□ 

• I 

EFFICIENCY LODGE 
LODGE 

CONDO 
EMPLOYEE APARTMENT 
EMPLOYEE DORM 

UNIT SUMMARY 
TOTALS PERSONS OF CENSITY PER UNrT 

50 
31 

20 

2 
18 

121 

0.5 
0.75 

3 

3 

DENSITY 
25 

23.25 
60 

6 

18 

132.25 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

of co 



M
O
U
N
TA
IN
 
V
ILLA

G
E

B
LV
D
.

MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
IL
LA
GE

BL
VD
.

S
u
n
n
y
 
R
id
g
e
 
P
la
c
e

5
'

5
'

5
'

LODGE

UNIT

216

HOTEL

MOD

214

HOTEL

MOD

212

HOTEL

MOD

210

HOTEL

MOD

208

HOTEL

MOD

206

LODGE

UNIT

202

LODGE

UNIT

201

HOTEL

MOD

203

HOTEL

MOD

205

HOTEL

MOD

207

HOTEL

MOD

209

HOTEL

MOD

211

HOTEL

MOD

213

HOTEL

MOD

215

HOTEL

MOD

217

HOTEL

MOD

219

HOTEL

MOD

221

HOTEL

MOD

223
HOTEL

MOD

225
HOTEL

MOD

225
HOTEL

MOD

227

HOTEL

MOD

229

HOTEL

MOD

231

HOTEL

MOD

226

HOTEL

MOD

224

HOTEL

MOD

222

LODGE

UNIT

220

LODGE

UNIT

218

LODGE

UNIT

230

LODGE

UNIT

228

HOUSE

KEEPING

236

HT

BUILT IN PLANTER SEALED AND 
WATERPROOFED WITH HYDROTECH OR 
SIMILAR SYSTEM. CONSERVATIVE 
IRRIGATION AND LOW WATER PLANTS TO 
BE INCORPORATED PER LANDSCAPE

BUILT IN HOT TUB WITH STONE VENEER 
FINISH

BALCONIES WITH SNOW MELT STONE 
PAVERS

BOH

233

HT

4' -
 0

"

1

A-3.00

1

A-3.00

HT

HT

A-2.00

4

A-2.00

1

A-2.00

2

A-2.01

4

HT

HT

HT

ELEV P1

EP201

CORRIDOR

200

ELEV S1

ES201

STAIR 2

S202

ELEV P2

EP202

TRASH

237

ELEV P3

G222

ELEV P4

G223

STAIR 3

S203

HOTEL

MOD

204

TRUE
NORTH

A-2.00

3

A-2.01

3
A-2.01

1

A-2.01

2

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

HT

STAIR 1

S201

ELEC

234

ELEV S2

ES202

S2

LOBBY

237 ELEC

238

6' - 0"

6' - 0"

10' - 0
"

6' - 0
"

6' - 0"

17' - 2" +/-

34' - 7" +/-

40' - 0
" +/-

18' - 5" +/-

NOTE:

NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

5/3
1/2

02
3 8

:56
:57

 A
M

A-1.05

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 2 -
OVERALL

1/16" = 1'-0"1 LEVEL 2

ROOM LEGEND

BOH/CIRCULATION

HOTEL MOD

LODGE

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

'· ........... 

'· ·, ·, . 
'> 

_,,,·· 
,,,· .. 
'· ·, ·, . 

'· 
_/_./ 

'··, •• , _,,,.-✓--✓--✓-
·,. /··"'·. /' ·v·· , .. ·. _/ 

V 

. 
I. \ ~:~'":===~=.c:===~.c:~ --r-----

\ 

,- ~-
' .. ' . . .. 
. .. 
' .. ' .. \ t, ---"""~,,_~c:""~,,_-c 
\""~-c,-cc:""--

' \,""~,,_-
' ' ' ' 
' ' ' "~~"""" 

\ 

t-----------

LJ 

~~;;Ji:;.(i/ 
'~ - "if- ; ,--, 

-<'. 

\ • 
\ 

\ 
\ 

-~ .. ~ .. .,,,,,,,.-~ 

\ 

./ . 
/ 

\'' '·\ ' , 

'< ', ,, ·, . . 
i:::>:;···,/>:·· ' 

\ '· '· '·. \ 

. . 
,,.11/ ~ 
~ ',, 

□ 
□ 

EFFICIENCY LODGE 
LODGE 

CONDO 
EMPLOYEE APARTMENT 
EMPLOYEE DORM 

UNIT SUMMARY 
TOTALS 

50 
31 

20 

2 
18 

121 

PERSONS OF CENSITY PER UNrT 
0.5 
0.75 

3 

3 

DENSITY 
25 

23.25 
60 

6 

18 

132.25 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 



M
O
U
N
TA
IN
 
V
ILLA

G
E

B
LV
D
.

MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
IL
LA
GE

BL
VD
.

S
u
n
n
y
 
R
id
g
e
 
P
la
c
e

5
'

5
'

5
'

LODGE

UNIT

322

HOTEL

MOD

324
HOTEL

MOD

326HOTEL

MOD

328

LODGE

UNIT

332

HOTEL

MOD

331

HOTEL

MOD

329

HOTEL

MOD

327

HOTEL

MOD

325

HOTEL

MOD

323

HOTEL

MOD

321

HOTEL

MOD

319 HOTEL

MOD

318

HOTEL

MOD

317

HOTEL

MOD

315

HOTEL

MOD

313

HOTEL

MOD

311

HOTEL

MOD

309

HOTEL

MOD

307

HOTEL

MOD

305

HOTEL

MOD

303

LODGE

UNIT

301

LODGE

UNIT

302

HOTEL

MOD

306

HOTEL

MOD

308

HOTEL

MOD

310

HOTEL

MOD

312

HOTEL

MOD

314

LODGE

UNIT

316

HOUSE

KEEPING

335

38' - 7
" +/-

BOH

337

BUILT IN HOT TUB WITH STONE VENEER 
FINISH

BALCONIES WITH SNOW MELT STONE 
PAVERS

HT

HT

PRIVATE BALCONY, TYP

1

A-3.00

1

A-3.00

BUILT IN PLANTER SEALED AND 
WATERPROOFED WITH HYDROTECH OR 
SIMILAR SYSTEM. CONSERVATIVE 
IRRIGATION AND LOW WATER PLANTS TO 
BE INCORPORATED PER LANDSCAPE

HT

CORTEN STEEL 
PORTAL BELOW TYP.

CORTEN STEEL 
PORTAL BELOW TYP.

A-2.00

4

A-2.00

1

A-2.00

2

A-2.01

4

HT

HT

HT

HT

STAIR 3

S303

ELEV S2

ES302

ELEV P4

EP304

ELEV P3

EP303

CORRIDOR

333
TRASH

336

ELEV P2

EP302

ELEV P1

EP301

ELEV S1

ES301
STAIR 2

S302

HOTEL

MOD

304

TRUE
NORTH

LODGE

UNIT

320

A-2.00

3

A-2.01

3
A-2.01

1

A-2.01

2

LODGE

UNIT

330

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

HT

8' - 6"

ELEC

336

S2

LOBBY

340 ELEC

338

STAIR 1

S301

6' - 0"

6' - 0"

10' - 0
"

6' - 0
"

17' - 2" +/-

34' - 9" +/-

18' - 5" +/-

NOTE:

NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

5/3
1/2

02
3 8

:55
:11

 A
M

A-1.06

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 3 -
OVERALL

1/16" = 1'-0"1 LEVEL 3

ROOM LEGEND

BOH/CIRCULATION

HOTEL MOD

LODGE

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

' . '·. 
'·· ' _./·· 

'/ 

'·· , .. 
'· ', .. 

. > 

\ _/.,/ .. /· 
·,. ' _/.,/· 

·, /.·, /. 

··v·· ··, .. .,,, .. /·· 

/ 
/ 

I 

' " ' . 
' " . " ' " ' " ' " ' . 

\~c:c•~o"-""'~"'o-c. 

' ' ' o-c.-"'"')-c.~"°" __ _ 

" 

/ 

··, I ........... _______________ _. 

/()>' 

// A . 

/ . 
/\, 

/./,/ 

/ <.•' 

// / 
A .,,,\ . . 

"'· . . ,,. . 

I I 

□ 
□ 

·, .. 
\~,. 

·\~' 
• ·,., ·, 

\~ 
\._ 

EFFICIENCY LODGE 
LODGE 

CONDO 
EMPLOYEE APARTMENT 
EMPLOYEE DORM 

UNIT SUMMARY 
TOTALS PERSONS OF CENSITY PER UNrT 

50 0.5 
31 0.75 

20 3 

2 3 
18 

121 

DE NSITY 
25 

23.25 
60 

6 
18 

132 25 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

AE DESIGN IL 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 

!":.:':..:.=i~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.JO )a 
PnoJ"'' • 

of C 



M
O
U
N
TA
IN
 
V
ILLA

G
E

B
LV
D
.

MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
IL
LA
GE

BL
VD
.

S
u
n
n
y
 
R
id
g
e
 
P
la
c
e

5
'

5
'

5
'

LODGE

UNIT

408

LODGE

UNIT

401

LODGE

UNIT

403

LODGE

UNIT

405

LODGE

UNIT

407

LODGE

UNIT

409

LODGE

UNIT

411

LODGE

UNIT

413

LODGE

UNIT

414

LODGE

UNIT

416

LODGE

UNIT

417

LODGE

UNIT

412

LODGE

UNIT

410

CONDO

418

HOUSE

KEEPING

440

33' - 8" +/-

BUILT IN HOT TUB WITH STONE 
VENEER FINISH

BALCONIES WITH SNOW MELT STONE 
PAVERS

CHIMNEY

HT

1

A-3.00

1

A-3.00

BUILT IN PLANTER SEALED AND 
WATERPROOFED WITH HYDROTECH OR 
SIMILAR SYSTEM. CONSERVATIVE 
IRRIGATION AND LOW WATER PLANTS TO 
BE INCORPORATED PER LANDSCAPE

HT

HT

CORTEN STEEL 
PORTAL BELOW TYP.

CORTEN STEEL 
PORTAL BELOW TYP.

HT

A-2.00

4

A-2.00

1

A-2.00

2

A-2.01

4

HT

HT

TRASH

424

ELEV P2

EP402

ELEV P1

EP401

ELEV S1

ES401

CORRIDOR

400

STAIR 2

S402

ELEV P3

EP403

ELEV P4

EP404
ELEV S2

ES402

STAIR 3

S403

CONDO

CORRIDOR

421

TRUE
NORTH

LODGE

UNIT

406

LODGE

UNIT

404

LODGE

UNIT

402

A-2.00

3

A-2.01

3
A-2.01

1

A-2.01

2

LEVEL 6 ABOVE

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

HT

CONDO

419

LODGE

UNIT

415

ELEC

435
ELEC

436

S2

LOBBY

441

33' - 1
" +/-

NOTE:

NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

 

 

6/1
/20

23
 2:

29
:25

 P
M

A-1.07

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 4 -
OVERALL

1/16" = 1'-0"1 LEVEL 4

ROOM LEGEND

BOH/CIRCULATION

CONDO

LODGE

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

··"' ,, 

\ 
• • 
j 

__ ,,,.-"'·· 

/ ,,,.. ,,,. 
,,,-· , .. ,,,.· 

I 
I 

I 
• 

I . 
I 
I 

l-
• • 
I 
• 
i 
• • 
! • 
I 

i 
I 
I 

'·· I ........... : 

/ 
/ 

/ 

, ...... , .. ________________ I 

, 

~} 0;;~~~1~£?- - - r 
- o:· --

-- - - -- - -- - :,..- ,,, 

-~. 

- - ., :,.. 
I ', < .<" ,., 

! ;:;;lb -
~)~ 

UNIT SUMMARY 
TOTALS PERSONS OF CENSITY PER UNrT 

EFFICIENCY LODGE 50 0.5 

LODGE 31 0.75 

L .. -------- CONDO 20 3 

EMPLOYEE APARTMENT 2 3 
EMPLOYEE DORM 18 

121 

,... 

r 

DENSITY 
25 

23.25 
60 

6 

18 

132.25 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN IL 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 
l'l00 Wo>c<151.•..,t~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0 ),4 
•~_,..,_,,_ PnoJ"'' • 

of co 



M
O
U
N
TA
IN
 
V
ILLA

G
E

B
LV
D
.

MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
IL
LA
GE

BL
VD
.

S
u
n
n
y
 
R
id
g
e
 
P
la
c
e

5
'

5
'

5
'

CONDO

505

CONDO

503

CONDO

501

CONDO

502

CONDO

504

CONDO

506

CONDO

508

CONDO

511

CONDO

509

CONDO

507

HOUSE

KEEPING

513

BOH

537

29' - 2
"

25
' - 

3"
BUILT IN HOT TUB WITH STONE VENEER 
FINISH

HT

1

A-3.00

1

A-3.00

HT

A-2.00

4

A-2.00

1

A-2.00

2

A-2.01

4

TRASH

512

ELEV P2

EP502

ELEV P1

EP501

ELEV S1

ES501
STAIR 2

S502

ELEV P3

EP503

ELEV P4

EP504
ELEV S2

ES502

TRUE
NORTH

BALCONIES WITH SNOW MELT STONE 
PAVERS

BUILT IN PLANTER SEALED AND 
WATERPROOFED WITH HYDROTECH OR 
SIMILAR SYSTEM. CONSERVATIVE 
IRRIGATION AND LOW WATER PLANTS TO 
BE INCORPORATED PER LANDSCAPE

CORTEN STEEL 
PORTAL BELOW TYP.

CORTEN STEEL 
PORTAL BELOW TYP.

A-2.00

3

A-2.01

3
A-2.01

1

A-2.01

2

LEVEL 6 ABOVE

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

STAIR 1

S501

CONDO

510

LOWER LEVEL TO CONDO 601

STAIR 3

S103

ELEC

535

ELEC

536

S2

LOBBY

520

NOTE:

NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

6/1
/20

23
 2:

29
:43

 P
M

A-1.08

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 5 -
OVERALL

1/16" = 1'-0"1 LEVEL 5

ROOM LEGEND

BOH/CIRCULATION

CONDO

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

\ 
• • 
\ • • 
\ 
• • ___ i 

'··, I .......... _______________ .., 

( 

EFFICIENCY LODGE 
LODGE 

7 CONDO 
EMPLOYEE APARTMENT 
EMPLOYEE DORM 

--- ~ s:-:"tt:rJf,-:_c- --- - -_ ---:-, ~~~ -
>~,_,.,.-- ' --,- -<_ 

-> -·:-~ \'- -. 

r 

UNIT SUMMARY 
TOTALS PERSONS OF CENSITY PER UNrT 

50 0.5 

31 0.75 

20 3 

2 3 
18 

121 

DENSITY 
25 

23.25 
60 

6 

18 

132.25 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

AE DESIGN IL 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 
l'l00 Wo>c<151.•..,t~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0 ),4 
•~_,..,_,,_ PnoJ"'' • 

of C 



M
O
U
N
TA
IN
 
V
ILLA

G
E

B
LV
D
.

MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
IL
LA
GE

BL
VD
.

S
u
n
n
y
 
R
id
g
e
 
P
la
c
e

5
'

5
'

5
'

WEDDING/

CONFERENCE

610

SIGNATURE

DINING

606

CONDO

605

CONDO

603

CONDO

602
CONDO

601

CONDO

604WOMENS

608

MENS

607

OMAKASE

RESTAURANT

& POOL

BAR

611

KITCHEN

609

MOVEABLE PARTITION

OPEN 
CONCEPT 
KITCHEN

29' - 6
"

POOL
13.5 FT X 35 FT

P
O

O
L

 D
E

C
K

HOT TUB 
10 X 10 FT

ADA RAMP UP

GLASS SPA EDGE

+48"

-48"

BUILT IN HOT TUB WITH STONE VENEER 
FINISH

BALCONIES WITH SNOW MELT STONE 
PAVERS

1

A-3.00

1

A-3.00

BUILT IN PLANTER SEALED AND 
WATERPROOFED WITH HYDROTECH OR 
SIMILAR SYSTEM. CONSERVATIVE 
IRRIGATION AND LOW WATER PLANTS 
TO BE INCORPORATED PER LANDSCAPE

HT

HT

CORTEN STEEL 
PORTAL BELOW TYP.

CORTEN STEEL 
PORTAL BELOW TYP.

A-2.00

4

A-2.00

1

A-2.00

2

A-2.01

4

ROOF LINE ABOVE

ROOF LINE ABOVE

STAIR 2

S602

TRASH

617

ELEV P2

EP602

ELEV P1

EP601

ELEV S1

ES601
ELEV P3

EP603

ELEV P4

EP604

BALCONY BELOW

TRUE
NORTH

A-2.00

3

A-2.01

3
A-2.01

1

A-2.01

2

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

STAIR 1

S601

LOBBY

613

UPPER LEVEL TO CONDO 500

BALCONY BELOW

S2

LOBBY

612

ELEV S2

ES602

ELEC

614

STAIR 3

S603

CORRIDOR

600

NOTE:

NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

6/1
/20

23
 2:

30
:02

 P
M

A-1.09

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 6 -
OVERALL

1/16" = 1'-0"1 LEVEL 6

ROOM LEGEND

BOH/CIRCULATION

COMMERCIAL

CONDO

HOTEL AMENITY

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

\ . 
\ 
• 
' \ 
' ' \ • 

' \ 
' • 
\ 
' ' \ 

I 
' • 
\ 
• ' -..I 

• 
' \ 
' ' \ • 

' I 
' ' I 
• • 
I 
' i 
' • 

' 

.............................. \ 
..... ' .... , .. ________________ j 

\ / 'l ______ , 
-----------

-=-----\~~--------

' 

' _ cccc-~-cc"--

I 
' ' I 
' ' I 

' ' I 
' ' I 

' ' I 
' ' 
l .. -------........... ...... 

' ............ ....... 
........... _ 

·, ··, 
.... , .... , 

-.. , .... , .. 
·, ··, 

·,. ·,. ·,. ·,. 
' •, ' . . 

r 

_J 

□ 

'\ 

' "\ . . 
\, 

• 
.. ,~., 
' '\, 

UNIT SUMMARY 
TOTALS PERSONS OF CENSITY PER UNrT 

EFFICIENCY LODGE 50 0.5 
LODGE 31 0.75 

CONDO 20 3 

EMPLOYEE APARTMENT 2 3 
EMPLOYEE DORM 18 

121 

DEN SITY 
25 

23.25 
60 

6 
18 

132 .25 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

AE DESIGN IL 

of C 



M
O
U
N
TA
IN
 
V
ILLA

G
E

B
LV
D
.

MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
IL
LA
GE

BL
VD
.

S
u
n
n
y
 
R
id
g
e
 
P
la
c
e

5
'

5
'

5
'

PENTHOUSE

CONDO

703

PENTHOUSE

CONDO

702

PENTHOUSE

CONDO

701

ROOF STAIR 1

HT

BUILT IN HOT TUB WITH STONE 
VENEER FINISH

BALCONIES WITH SNOW MELT STONE 
PAVERS

TRUE
NORTH

1

A-3.00

1

A-3.00

POOL DECK BELOW

CORTEN STEEL 
PORTAL BELOW TYP.

A-2.00

4

A-2.00

1

A-2.00

2

A-2.01

4

ROOF LINE ABOVE

ROOF LINE ABOVE

ELEV P2

EP702

ELEV P1

EP701

ELEV S1

ES701

STAIR 2

S702

TRASH

705

BOH

706

BALCONY BELOW

BALCONY BELOW

ROOF OF UNIT BELOW

LEVEL 6 BALCONY 

BELOW

POOL DECK ROOF BELOW

A-2.00

3

A-2.01

3
A-2.01

1

A-2.01

2

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

ROOF

GARDEN

P10

BALCONY

BALCONY

AMENITY

SPACE

704

NOTE:

NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

6/1
/20

23
 2:

30
:21

 P
M

A-1.10

FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 7 -
OVERALL

1/16" = 1'-0"1 LEVEL 7

OPEN BELOW

ROOM LEGEND

BOH/CIRCULATION

COMMERCIAL

CONDO

HOTEL AMENITY

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

" ··, .. 
'· ·, 

..... , _/ 
/. ·-✓-

/ .. 
,,-· 

/ .. 
_/.· 

·, .. 
'· ·,. ·,. 

> / .. .. 
_/ 

' /. ·., .. , / .. 

_/· 

_/· 

. / . -· ·v·· ' _/ 

. 
• 
I 
• . 
I 
• • 
I 
• • 
I • 
i 
I 

I 

'•/· 

'·· I ........ ____ ... .. , __________ _ 

"> 

<r~" .. [~, 
, d 

¾ 
' \' .- ' 
I ' S • • • •, 

L 
□ 

~,#' ,' ··,. 

\ \~ . 
• 

\ \ \ \ \ \ \ ·,~ 
\\\\\ .. \ \;_;, ..... \ . 

. - .-~'!" \ ·,. 

\ •;~. 
\ ' 
\ • ' \ 

' \ 
' ' \ ,t: 

\ 
I 

······ ............................. ·· ....... // /i 
I • 

UNIT SUMMARY 
TOTALS PERSONS OF CENSITY PER UNrT 

EFFICIENCY LODGE 50 0.5 

LODGE 31 0.75 

CONDO 20 3 

EMPLOYEE APARTMENT 2 3 
EMPLOYEE DORM 18 

121 

DENSITY 
25 

23.25 
60 

6 

18 

132.25 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

AE DESIGN •L 



TRUE
NORTH

SLOPE

OPEN TO 
POOL 
DECK 

BELOW
GREASE 
EXHAUST 
DUCT

1/4"  / 
12"

SLOPE

1/4"  / 12"

SLOPE

1/4"  / 12"

ANTI-GLARE SOLAR 
PANELS ON LOW 
PROFILE MOUNT OVER 
FULLY ADHERED 
SYNTHETIC ROOF 
MEMBRANE

MAX HEIGHT S

MAX HEIGHT SE

MAX HEIGHT NE

MAX HEIGHT NW

1/2" / 12"

SLOPE

SLOPE

1" / 1
2"

SLOPE

1/2" / 12"

MAX HEIGHT SW

SLOPE

OPEN TO LEVEL 5 
BALCONY BELOW

OPEN TO LEVEL 6 
BALCONY BELOW

OPEN TO LEVEL 6 
DECK BELOW

POOL

OPEN TO 
LEVEL 4 
BELOW

OPEN TO 
LEVEL 5 

BALCONY

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

MB.1

MA.1

BALCONY 
BELOW

OPEN TO 
LEVEL 7 
BALCONY 
BELOW

MG.1

3/4
" / 

12
"

1/2" / 12"

SLOPE

SLOPE

1/4"  / 
12"

LOWER 
ROOF 

BELOW

MD.1

MC.1

MAX HEIGHT N

MAX HEIGHT W

ME.1

MF.1

4/2
8/2

02
3 1

2:0
6:3

2 P
M

A-1.11

OVERALL ROOF & MAX
HEIGHT PLAN

 1/16" = 1'-0"1 ROOF PLAN / MAX HEIGHT PLAN

NOTES

SPOT 

ELEV 

LABEL

DESCRIPTION
HEIGHT TO 

HIGHEST 

POINT

PROPOSED 

GRADE

HEIGHT 

FROM 

PROPOSED 

GRADE

EXISTING 

GRADE

HEIGHT 

FROM 

EXISTING 

GRADE

SOUTHEAST MA.1 T.O. RIDGE AT ROOF EXTENSION 9614.5 9525.8 88.7 9528.0 86.5

NORTHEAST MB.1 T.O. POP UP ROOF 9620.0 9535.0 85.0 9533.8 86.2

NORTH MC.1 T.O. POP UP ROOF 9615.5 9528.5 87.0 9528.5 87.0

NORTHWEST MD.1 T.O. POOL DECK ROOF 9607.5 9521.5 86.0 9524.8 82.7

WEST ME.1 T.O. POOL DECK ROOF 9607.5 9521.5 86.0 9524.8 82.7

*SOUTH MF.1 T.O. MAIN ROOF 9614.5 9525.9 88.6 9525.9 88.6

SOUTHWEST MG.1 T.O. ROOF AT LEVEL 6 9611.0 9522.5 88.5 9522.5 88.5

88'-9"MAX HEIGHT

* PEDESTRIAN ACCESSWAY 

ROOF AND BALCONY DRAINAGE TO BE ROUTED INTERNALLY 
WITH HEAT TRACE AND CONNECTED TO EXISTING STORM .

 

 

 

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

/ 

\ 

' 
I 

, 

/ 

I 

/ 

I 
I 

/ 

> 
/ 

/ 

"-

\~~1 , 
~~ ~~ . 
~ 

I ~~=--~ -l -~-- ~~I --

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
\ 

I 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

--' 

-

I ' 

\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 
I 
\ 

\ 

• • 

-

\ 

\ 

I 

J l 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

'v-

\ 

-

I 

\ 

__-1 

l 

I 
I 

I 
I 

--

"' 

--- .......___ ---

' 

- -------.... 

------

I 

~· ~;,,,?' 

,I 

I 

' 

I 

I 

I 

I 

, 
I 

\ 
\ 

' 

\ 
\ 

I 

\ 
) 

' 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 



MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
IL
LA
GE

BL
VD
.

S
u
n
n
y
 
R
id
g
e
 
P
la
c
e

51
0

9520

9520

95
20

9525

952
5

9
5
3
0

9
5
3
5

9515

9525

9525

9530

9530

9521

9523

9
5
2
3

9522

5'

5'

9512

SOLID LINE DELINEATES PROPOSED 
GRADE (RE:CIVIL)

PROPERTY LINE

9512

CHIMNEY 

EXTENDS LESS 

THAN 5'-0" ABOVE 

LOW
ER ROOF

T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL

I                        H                       G                       F                       E                       D                        C                      B 

                                                                                                                                                              

AAA                  BBB      

S 

V

W

X

Y

CC 

EE 

JJ
KK

OO       
       

       
 PP       

       
      Q

Q

RR 

MM 

GGG     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
   

M 

N 

O 

P 

QR 

OPEN TO 
LEVEL 6 
RAISED  POOL 
DECK 

NN        
        

        
     

POOL AT 
LEVEL 6 

LEVEL 6 
LOWER 
DECK

3' - 3
"

15' - 0
"

15' - 0
"

15' - 0
"

15' - 0
"

15' - 0
"

15' - 0
"

15' - 0
"

15' - 0
"

15' - 0
"

17' - 5
"

DASHED LINE DELINEATES EXISTING 
GRADE (RE:CIVIL)

15' - 0"
15' - 0"

18' - 9"

SSDD 

HH

3' - 8 1/4"

15' - 0"

15' - 0" FF 

BB

GG

8' - 3 1/4"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

16' - 4 3/8"

T.O. LEVEL 5

GUARDRAIL

T.O. LEVEL 6

GUARDRAIL

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

14' - 10 1/8"

14' - 0 3/8" 15' - 0 1/8"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

9' - 4 3/4"

15' - 0
"

15' - 0
"

14' - 11 3/4"

14' - 11 1/2"

14' - 11 3/4"
15' - 0" 15' - 0" 15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

T.O. LEVEL 6 

GUARDRAIL

T.O. LEVEL 6 

GUARDRAIL

LL

J

K

L

T 

U 

Z

AA

T.O. LEVEL 5
GUARDRAIL

T.O. LEVEL 6
GUARDRAIL

T.O. LEVEL 5

GUARDRAIL

T.O. LEVEL 5

GUARDRAIL

15' - 0"
14' - 11 3/4"

15' - 0 1/2"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

15' - 0"

TT

DDD     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

  

EEE     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

  

FFF     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

  

T.O. STAIR ROOF

T.O. LEVEL 6

GUARDRAIL

EXISTING 
PEDESTRIAN 
ACCESSWAY 
AND TUNNEL 
BELOW

EXISTING PEDESTRIAN 
ACCESSWAY BELOW

HHH     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
   

T.O. LEVEL 5

GUARDRAIL

T.O. LEVEL 5

GUARDRAIL

7' - 9"

10' - 4"

LEVEL 6 
DECK

T.O. POOL ROOF

10
' - 

4"

17' - 10"

15' - 6"

10' - 1"

W
W

                     XX                    YY                     ZZ     

UU

VV

OPEN TO LEVEL 6 
DECK BELOW

OPEN TO LEVEL 7 

DECK BELOW

OPEN TO LEVEL 5 

DECK BELOW

OPEN TO LEVEL 6 

DECK BELOW

OPEN TO LEVEL 6 

DECK BELOW

T.O. LEVEL 5

GUARDRAIL

T.O. LEVEL 7

GUARDRAILT.O. LEVEL 4

GUARDRAIL

T.O. LEVEL 5

GUARDRAIL

T.O. LEVEL 5 
GUARDRAIL

OPEN TO LEVEL 5 
DECK BELOW

OPEN TO LEVEL 4 
DECK BELOW

TRUE
NORTH

32'16'8'0
1/16" = 1'

OPEN TO 
LEVEL 4 
DECK 
BELOW

4/2
5/2

02
3 8

:42
:20

 P
M

A-1.12

AVERAGE HEIGHT PLAN

 1/16" = 1'-0"1 AVERAGE HEIGHT PLAN REVISED

NOTES

SPOT 

ELEV 

LABEL DESCRIPTION

HEIGHT TO 

HIGHEST 

POINT

PROPOSED 

GRADE

HEIGHT 

FROM 

PROPOSED 

GRADE

EXISTING 

GRADE

HEIGHT 

FROM 

EXISTING 

GRADE

Northeast B T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9539.2 56.3 9537.0 58.5

Northeast C T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.9 56.6 9536.8 58.7

Northeast D T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.8 56.7 9536.8 58.7

Northeast E T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.5 57.0 9536.5 59.0

Northeast F T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.3 57.2 9536.3 59.2

Northeast G T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.0 57.5 9536.0 59.5

Northeast H T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.7 57.8 9536.0 59.5

Northeast I T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.4 58.1 9538.5 57.0

Northeast J T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.1 58.4 9536.0 59.5

Northeast K T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9536.4 59.1 9535.7 59.8

North L T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9535.6 59.9 9535.1 60.4

North M T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9534.7 60.8 9534.0 61.5

North N T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.1 58.4 9536.0 59.5

North O T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9536.4 59.1 9535.7 59.8

North P T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9535.6 59.9 9535.1 60.4

North Q T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9534.7 60.8 9534.0 61.5

North R T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9531.5 64.0

North S T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9531.5 64.0

*Pedestrian accessway (North) *T T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9533.5 62.0

*Pedestrian accessway (North) *U T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9533.5 62.0

Northwest V T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9530.7 64.8 9530.7 64.8

Northwest W T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9530.1 65.4 9530.1 65.4

Northwest X T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9528.7 56.3 9528.1 56.9

Northwest Y T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9526.8 58.2 9527.8 57.2

Northwest Z T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9526.2 58.8 9525.8 59.2

Northwest AA T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9607.5 9526.0 81.5 9523.8 83.7

Northwest BB T.O. POOL DECK ROOF 9607.5 9524.6 82.9 9521.0 86.5

Northwest CC T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9523.2 72.3 9520.5 75.0

Northwest DD T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9521.4 74.1 9520.0 75.5

West EE T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9520.1 75.4 9520.1 75.4

West *FF T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9518.0 77.5 9517.8 77.7

West *GG T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9517.0 78.5 9517.0 78.5

West
*HH T.O. LEVEL 4 GUARDRAIL 9574.5 9516.0 58.5 9516.0 58.5

South **JJ T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9510.0 85.5 9515.0 80.5

South KK T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9510.0 85.5 9515.0 80.5

South LL T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9510.0 85.5 9515.0 80.5

South
**MM T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9519.3 65.7 9519.3 65.7

South **NN T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9519.8 65.2 9519.8 65.2

South **OO T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9520.4 64.6 9520.4 64.6

South **PP T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.8 62.2 9522.5 62.5

South **QQ T.O. LEVEL 4 GUARDRAIL 9574.5 9522.5 52.0 9522.5 52.0

South
*RR T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9525.6 81.4 9525.6 81.4

South
*SS T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9525.6 81.4 9525.6 81.4

Southwest TT T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9523.0 84.0 9522.0 85.0

Southwest UU T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9522.8 84.2 9522.8 84.2

Southwest VV T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9523.0 84.0 9523.0 84.0

Southwest WW T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.8 62.2 9522.1 62.9

Southwest XX T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.0 63.0

Southwest YY T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.1 62.9

Southwest ZZ T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.5 62.5

Southwest AAA T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.8 62.2 9522.5 62.5

Southwest BBB T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.5 62.5

Southeast DDD T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.0 63.0 9522.0 63.0

Southeast EEE T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9523.0 62.0 9523.0 62.0

Southeast FFF T.O. STAIR ROOF 9610.0 9526.0 84.0 9526.0 84.0

Southeast GGG T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9530.0 65.5 9530.0 65.5

Southeast HHH T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9535.0 60.5 9533.0 62.5

63.61AVERAGE HEIGHT

* PEDESTRIAN ACCESSWAY 

** EMERGENCY LANE

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

/ . 

·•. I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

1 
.~ 

l 

· \··~, . . / y _/ ./ . 
. ! i 

·z·. · .. ···. > } .. r:< · .. ·· .. ·· ; / (/ ,,c·· 

, -><!; ·· ✓~"-
·,. · .. ; . 

/·;\\\ .... •··········· 
-\-" , ,\ \\ 

',\ . \ . •\\'.: 'r ;; 
~ c:. ' / 

\ } i 
/ 

\ 

. ~\ :~'-·-
\ I 

\ I \, 

i~f' / \ .. / 
///\ v / " • '\ / I' ' 

\ \\ ·\: 
• ·. \ \ _; 1\ ',, :t::~: ·, ... \ 1\ ·· ·"" 

, 
\ V / ------~~::_ ------ -

11--·' 

' . ~,-;:,'<.: 

l ~ -

I • • 
I 
• • 
I 
: 
I 
• • 
I 
• 

I 
• • 
I 
: 
I • ' I 

• 

i i 
• • 

' i 
• • 
! 
• l ·--

l .. 
....... .... , ....... 

........................ 

' ----......... 
.................... 

··, .. , .. , 
·-, 

1%) 
·-----jf*-1; __ 

:A· \. ___ . ·---. 

..... . 

' 

·-..... .... , .... 
..... ·-, 

I 

·-, ·-, ·-, ·-, 

. /" I'.'.'-
/ /,JY 1 _____ -- ••• 

' ·--
~~ 

', /) " • 

·-, 

·-' ·-, ·-

' 

; ,,.'i(, 
'\i

"'' ,\'it: 
>-; '":\;;\ .,_, 

I '< 

•· 
,//'' 

• 

. 

··, 

' ·-

·-, 
'• 

' . ' 

'· ·, 

. . 
' . 

•, 

' ' 

' ' . ' . • " . 

. . .,. 
\ , I -~!4• 

<~ / / 
\__ .,.</' '-.., 

' \ . 
' 
' 

·, .. ,.. /./' 
' , '•( 

•, 

' . • ' • • ' . ·, . • 
' . • ' . . ' • • ' . . ' • . ' ·-' • . ' •, ' •, ' ·-' .. ' • . ' • • ' ·-' ·-

. "' . ' ' > '""' . 1//; .• y, ' 

'·"'"'4$'. : /,J#/ ✓ / '' ., ~ A/'< ... ~- .,, ' ,,q,O , . ' ' 

' • • ' . ·, 
• • 

v-"'''·" 1/ '\ , . . , ' '. 'Ji\1~-- . --'JC">_,. · : · • , • .'. • %)>,\ 
" ""~~-.-:+",.:;;<%~ ' i%i ' . ' 
/ ', \,~\':t.\~,:;-}·;·;'.r!b~# - .: ·, ., ~;-.. " , --· · C • . _+_ ... , ' _ ,, .... )tll"'•'' 

\ , . _,,., • / ·. ·. . ' . .· .. ... --- · ' .. I • ..- ., I 

I .,.,;,,,,-"'"rfi... I /// '\ 

,...,-"'":,-' •• I ,/ ----- : .• ' 
.... / _:. .. -··-... >------·· r . 
_,.... '. .. .. _ .... ,..~- •. 

____ _,,,.. .... 

-·· 
I 

' . ·, 
•• 

'· ·, . • 
' • • '· • 

' . . '· ·, 

==-i- VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncom h E. pagre 
ngineering1 LLC 

Of C 



VERTICAL METAL LOUVERS IN CORTEN STEEL
FINISH

A

C

D

B

E D

G
H

B

F

D

A

D

D

B

F

G

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

~ T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620') 
84'- 105/8" 

~ 
T.O. MA!!!_ROOF (961 4.5') 
79' - 6" 

~ 
LEVEL 7JQ603.5') 
68' - 6" 

~ LEVEL 6JQ592' 
57'- o· 

~C,.,.,__L~E~V~EL 5J25810.5~') __ 
U 46' -6" 

l,C,.l"\-,clEa'V',EL 3JQ560~.5~' --, 
U 25'-6" 

1,,.-a./"'r-, L~ESVa'EL 1_MEZZANINE (9540'L 
U 5' - 0" EMPLOYEE HOUSING LEVEL - - - - - - - - - --

CD ~1?~.!.HEAST-MATERIAL ELEVATION 

- --T~O-UPPER ROOF (9620')_. \ 
84 • - 1 o s,s·~ • 

T.O. MAIN ROOF (9614.5') I) 
79'-6" 'CJ' 

LEVEL 7 (9603.5') ~ 
68' -6" 

___1EVEL 6 (9592') Jr\ 
57'-0" \J 

LEVEL 5 (9581.5') ~ 
46' - 6" 

___1 EV!;:l.1._(i~zrL • \ ~-~· 
LEVEL 3 (9560.5') ~ 

25' - 6" 

___1 EVEL 2 (9550') I"\ 
1s· -o· c• 

LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540') ~ 
s· . o· 

LEVEL G1A PARKING (9530') ~ 
-5' - o· 

- _ ~L~EV~EL Gt PLAZA (9522') L\ 
-13'-0" \J 

[QI 

STONE VENEER - HONED 

STONE VENEER, FIELD - ROUGH 

IE] 

WALNUT FINISH WOOD DOOR 

BRONZE TINTED GLASS 

18] 

QJ 

WOOD LOOK METAL SOFFIT 

DARK BRONZE STOREFRONT AND FASCIA 

CORTEN STEEL DECORATIVE METAL STRIP AT GUARDRAIL 

CORTEN STEEL FINISH GARAGE DOOR 

NORTH ELEVATION AND MAIN ENTRY 

OPEN TO 
PEDESTRIAN 

EXISTING 
PEDESTRIAN 
UNDERPASS 

_ _,~CccONNECTIO " """''---

ELEVATION 

IISQFT 

SCREENS 

'"'" STONE 

METAL 

GLASS GUARDRAIL 

wooo 
MATERIAL TOTAL 

NORTHWEST 

WEST ELEVATION ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION 

(03/A-2.01) (03/A-2.00) (02/A-2.00) 

1043.63 1974.86 771.46 

1305.3 2864.5 675.2 1 

3320.1 4732.59 614.14 

62 1.85 1030.22 279 .46 

266 .51 1495.1 442.43 

6557.39 12097.27 2782.7 

CD ~1?~!.H-MATERIAL ELEVATION AT PORTE CHOCHERE CD ~1?~!.HWEST-MATERIAL ELEVATION 

NORTHEAST 

ELEVATION 

(Ol/A-2.00) 

52 19.55 

534 1.02 

4866.47 

2167. 14 

3400.9 

20995.08 

SOUTHEAST SOUTHWEST 

EAST ELEVATION ELEVATION ELEVATION 

(04/A-2.00) (02/A-2.01) (04/A-2.01) 

1118.64 3 187,9 2464.61 

1554.8 3739 38 3809.38 

3583.63 7493 96 6750.68 

667.29 2116.1 4 1806.6 

490.29 26221 539.72 

22.69 22 .7S 25.8 

7437.34 16822.34 15370.99 

~ 

~c 

' ~ 

~ 

-

PEDESTRIAN WAY 

WEST ELEVATION 

(Ol/A-2.01) TOTAL 

15780.65 

3218 1961 1.39 

272745 34089.02 

41.12 8729.82 

6897.16 

87 .12 158.36 

3177.49 85266.4 

T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620') 
84' - 10 518" 

T.O. MA!t!_ROOF (9614.5') 
79' -6" 

T.O POOL DECK ROOF(9607.5') 

' 72' -6" 

LEVEL 7 (9603.5') 
68' -6" 

LEVEL 6 RAISED POOL DECK 9596' 
61' -0" 

__!..EVEL 6 (9592') 
57'-0" 

LEVEL 5 (9581 .5') 
46' -6" 

_!.EVEL 4 (9571') 
36' -0" 

LEVEL 3 (9560.5') 
25' -6" 

_!.EVEL 2 (9550') 
15' -0" 

LEVEL 1 (9535') 
- 0'-0" 

PERCENT 

'"' '" '°" H>% 

8% 

0.2% ,.,. 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

EVEL _Qj PLAZA (9522') 1/1', 
-13'-0" \J 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

-MARPA 

AE DESIGN
1L 

lntqrated Ll11ht1n11 and Electf1co l Solution, 

,..._,w.,« ,t,..,, "1.lll "'""°'• COJ!010, JOJ.l%.)<I.)< 
•-•on->n<,a>m PrnJe<l ,, 

EXTERIOR MATERIAL 
ELEVATIONS 

A-2.00 



A

E J

D

E

G

B

A

C B

G

E

D

B

AD

D

B

C

A

B

B

D

H

G

D E

JCE

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

T.O. LOWER ROOF (9611.5') 
77' - g• 

T.O POOL DECK ROOF(9607.5') 
72' -6" 
LEVEL 7 (9603fil _ 
68' - 6" 

LEVEL 6 RAIS~POOL DECK (9596' 
61' -o· 
LEVEL 6 ~92L 
57'- o· 

LEVEL5(9581fil 
46' - 6" 

LEVEL 4 (9571 L 
35· -o· 

LEVEL 3 (9560fil 
25' -6" 

LEVEL 2 (9550'L 
15' -0" 

LEVEL 1 (9535L 
O' - O" 

~ LEVEL Gt PLAZA (95=22~') __ 
0 -13'-0" -

LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510') 
-2s· -o· 

G) ~6~a~! MATERIAL ELEVATION 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620') 
84' - 10 5/8" 

T.O. LOWER ROOF (9611 .5'} 
77'- g• 

LEVEL7@@3.~ 
68' - 6" 

LEVEL 6 ~92') __ 
57'- o· 

LEVEL5~1.[L_ 
46' - 6" 

,0 1"\-,cLEVcSE'iol 4 (!£7 1') __ 
U 36'-0" 

CONDOS BEYOND 

RESTAURANT, BAR, & BANQUET 
BEYOND 

C - ' 

11111 
' ,_ll,==--"=~==--
OS-38R BOILER I G2 GARAGE WB 40150 DELIVERY 
VAULT BEYOND I BEYOND 

PEDESTRIANACCESSWAY 
0 PLAZIVSEE FOREVER 

VILLAGE ___ 
77 

SPA ACCESS 

CD ~B~a~! MATERIAL ELEVATION AT PEDESTRIAN WALKWAY 

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD 

EXISTING 
PEDESTRIAN 
TUNNEL 

LEVEL 6 RAISED POOL DECK (959§1_ 
61'- o· 

11 11111eu1111m_ 

- - - - - - - _ __ _ - -~ 
11 

A-2.24 

CI) ~
1
?,~~-HWEST MATERIAL ELEVATION 

JJ 

I I I r' 

w -
w 

J 
J 

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD 

~ LE 
O' -O" 

EXISTING 
PEDESTRIAN 
TUNNEL .. 

ENTRY 

(D ~
1
?,~~.HEAST MATERIAL ELEVATION 

_, 

JUl 

~ 

-

" ' 

- -~T.O~. UPPER ROOF (9620') 
- 84' - 10 518" 

T.O. LOWER ROOF (9611 .5') 
77' -g• 

T.O POOL DECK ROOF(9607.5') 
Tl- 6" 

- _~LEVEL 7 (9603.5') 
68' - 5• 

_ LEVEL 6 (9592') 
5T-O" 

__l_EVEL 5 (9581 .5') 
46' - 6" 

~ 

~ 

_ LEVEL4 (957 1') ~ 
36" - o· 

__l_EVEL 3 (9560.5") _IC\ 
25'-6"~ 

_ LEVEL 2 (9550') ~ 
15• - o· 

LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540") 
5' -o· 

=-====-=LEVEL 1 (9535') 
O' -o• 

LEVEL G1A PARKING (~5~0~~ 

-~L=EVEL G1 PLAZA (9522') 
- .13•.o· 

LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510') ~ 
-25' -0" 

T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620') 
- 84' - 10 5/8· 

T.O. MAIN ROOF (9614.5") 
TTJ'-6" 

- -- LEVEL 7 (9603.5") 
68" -6" 

___ LEVEL 5 (9581 .5") 
46' -6" 

LEVEL4 (9571') 
- 36'-0" 

- -- LEVEL 3 (9560.5"}_Jj£\ 
25'-6~ 

LEVEL 2 (9550') ~ 
15'-0" \J 

LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540") ~ 
5' -0" 

LEVEL G1A PARKING (9530') ~ 
-5' - O" 

- ~ L=EV~E.L G.1_PLAZA (9522') IC\ 
-13'-0" \JI 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

-MARPA 

AE DESIGN
1L 

lntqrated Ll11ht1n11 and Electf1co l Solution, 

,..._,w.,« ,t,..,, "1.lll "'""°'• COJ!010, JOJ.l%.)O.)< 

EXTERIOR MATERIAL 
ELEVATIONS 

A-2.01 



LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540')
5' - 0"

LEVEL 3 (9560.5')
25' - 6"

LEVEL 4 (9571')
36' - 0"

LEVEL 5 (9581.5')
46' - 6"

LEVEL 6 (9592')
57' - 0"

LEVEL 7 (9603.5')
68' - 6"

T.O. MAIN ROOF (9614.5')
79' - 6"

B C D E F G H I J K

EMPLOYEE HOUSING  BEYOND

T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620')
84' - 10 5/8"

15
' - 

0"
10

' - 
6"

10
' - 

6"
10

' - 
6"

10
' - 

6"
11

' - 
6"

11
' - 

0"
5' 

- 4
 5/

8" MB.1

TA
KE

N 
TO

 M
OS

T R
ES

TR
IC

TI
VE

 T
OP

O 
DI

RE
CT

LY
 B

EL
OW

MA
X 

HE
IG

HT
 N

OR
TH

EA
ST

 86
.2

OPEN TO PORTE COCHERE

NORTH ELEVATION AND MAIN ENTRY

L M N O P Q R

MC.1

TA
KE

N 
FR

OM
 M

OS
T 

RE
ST

RI
CT

IV
E 

TO
PO

 D
IR

EC
TL

Y 
BE

LO
W

MA
X 

HE
IG

HT
 N

OR
TH

 87
'

LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL 3 (9560.5')
25' - 6"

LEVEL 4 (9571')
36' - 0"

LEVEL 5 (9581.5')
46' - 6"

LEVEL 6 (9592')
57' - 0"

LEVEL 7 (9603.5')
68' - 6"

LEVEL G1 PLAZA (9522')
-13' - 0"

T.O. MAIN ROOF (9614.5')
79' - 6"

EXISTING 
PEDESTRIAN 
UNDERPASS 
CONNECTION

OPEN TO 
PEDESTRIAN 
CONNECTION

ARCHITECTURAL ROOF FEATURE 
EXTENSION PROVIDES PARTIAL COVER AT 
POOL DECK AND IS OPEN TO SKY. REFER 
TO ROOF PLANS

ARCHITECTURAL FIREPLACE FEATURE 
PROVIDES WARMTH AND SHELTER AT POOL

OPEN TO POOL 
DECK

RADIUS
REFER TO A1.12 FOR AVERAGE HEIGHT PLAN AND DISTANCES 

BETWEEN POINTS

CHIMNEY INCLUDED, EXTENDS ABOVE 
IMAGINARY PLANE 

11
' - 

0"
11

' - 
6"

10
' - 

6"
10

' - 
6"

10
' - 

6"
10

' - 
6"

15
' - 

0"

FLAT ROOF STRUCTURE; SPOT ELEVATIONS "B" THROUGH "H" AT SAME ELEVATION

USGS 9550'

S
LEVEL 6 RAISED POOL DECK (9596')

61' - 0"T U V W

X Y Z AA

BB

CC

T.O POOL DECK ROOF(9607.5')
72' - 6"

T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620')
84' - 10 5/8"

MD.1

TA
KE

N  
TO

 M
OS

T R
E S

TR
IC

TI
VE

 T
O P

O 
DI

RE
CT

LY
 B

EL
OW

MA
X 

HE
IG

HT
 N

OR
TH

W
ES

T 
86

'

DD

LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL G1A PARKING (9530')
-5' - 0"

LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540')
5' - 0"

LEVEL 3 (9560.5')
25' - 6"

LEVEL 4 (9571')
36' - 0"

LEVEL 5 (9581.5')
46' - 6"

LEVEL 6 (9592')
57' - 0"

LEVEL 7 (9603.5')
68' - 6"

LEVEL G1 PLAZA (9522')
-13' - 0"

T.O. MAIN ROOF (9614.5')
79' - 6"

EMPLOYEE HOUSING  BEYOND
TOWN STAIR FROM MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
BLVD TO PEDESTRIAN PLAZA ON LOT 
OS-3BR2

BRONZE TINTED BIRD RESISTANT GLASS 
GUARDRAIL

CORTEN STEEL FASCIA

HONED STONE VENEER

CORTEN STEEL SCREENS

ROOFS BEYOND

EXISTING TOPO

HHHGGG

FFF

EEEDDD

T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620')
84' - 10 5/8"

11
' - 

6"
10

' - 
6"

10
' - 

6"
10

' - 
6"

10
' - 

6"
15

' - 
0"

GAS METER, TBD RE: 
CIVIL

MA.1

TA
KE

N 
TO

 M
OS

T 
RE

ST
RI

CT
IV

E 
TO

PO
 D

IR
EC

TL
Y 

 B
EL

OW

MA
X 

HE
IG

HT
 A

T 
SO

UT
HE

AS
T    8

8.7

4/2
1/2

02
3 5

:19
:45

 P
M

A-2.02

NORTH & EAST
ELEVATIONS

1/16" = 1'-0"1 NORTH ELEVATION  FROM MOUNTAIN BLVD FLATTENED LOOKING SOUTH

1/16" = 1'-0"2 SOUTHEAST ELEVATION

NOTES

SPOT 

ELEV 

LABEL DESCRIPTION

HEIGHT TO 

HIGHEST 

POINT

PROPOSED 

GRADE

HEIGHT 

FROM 

PROPOSED 

GRADE

EXISTING 

GRADE

HEIGHT 

FROM 

EXISTING 

GRADE

Northeast B T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9539.2 56.3 9537.0 58.5

Northeast C T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.9 56.6 9536.8 58.7

Northeast D T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.8 56.7 9536.8 58.7

Northeast E T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.5 57.0 9536.5 59.0

Northeast F T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.3 57.2 9536.3 59.2

Northeast G T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.0 57.5 9536.0 59.5

Northeast H T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.7 57.8 9536.0 59.5

Northeast I T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.4 58.1 9538.5 57.0

Northeast J T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.1 58.4 9536.0 59.5

Northeast K T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9536.4 59.1 9535.7 59.8

North L T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9535.6 59.9 9535.1 60.4

North M T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9534.7 60.8 9534.0 61.5

North N T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.1 58.4 9536.0 59.5

North O T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9536.4 59.1 9535.7 59.8

North P T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9535.6 59.9 9535.1 60.4

North Q T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9534.7 60.8 9534.0 61.5

North R T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9531.5 64.0

North S T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9531.5 64.0

*Pedestrian accessway (North) *T T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9533.5 62.0

*Pedestrian accessway (North) *U T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9533.5 62.0

Northwest V T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9530.7 64.8 9530.7 64.8

Northwest W T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9530.1 65.4 9530.1 65.4

Northwest X T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9528.7 56.3 9528.1 56.9

Northwest Y T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9526.8 58.2 9527.8 57.2

Northwest Z T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9526.2 58.8 9525.8 59.2

Northwest AA T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9607.5 9526.0 81.5 9523.8 83.7

Northwest BB T.O. POOL DECK ROOF 9607.5 9524.6 82.9 9521.0 86.5

Northwest CC T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9523.2 72.3 9520.5 75.0

Northwest DD T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9521.4 74.1 9520.0 75.5

West EE T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9520.1 75.4 9520.1 75.4

West *FF T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9518.0 77.5 9517.8 77.7

West *GG T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9517.0 78.5 9517.0 78.5

West
*HH T.O. LEVEL 4 GUARDRAIL 9574.5 9516.0 58.5 9516.0 58.5

South **JJ T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9510.0 85.5 9515.0 80.5

South KK T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9510.0 85.5 9515.0 80.5

South LL T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9510.0 85.5 9515.0 80.5

South
**MM T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9519.3 65.7 9519.3 65.7

South **NN T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9519.8 65.2 9519.8 65.2

South **OO T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9520.4 64.6 9520.4 64.6

South **PP T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.8 62.2 9522.5 62.5

South **QQ T.O. LEVEL 4 GUARDRAIL 9574.5 9522.5 52.0 9522.5 52.0

South
*RR T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9525.6 81.4 9525.6 81.4

South
*SS T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9525.6 81.4 9525.6 81.4

Southwest TT T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9523.0 84.0 9522.0 85.0

Southwest UU T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9522.8 84.2 9522.8 84.2

Southwest VV T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9523.0 84.0 9523.0 84.0

Southwest WW T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.8 62.2 9522.1 62.9

Southwest XX T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.0 63.0

Southwest YY T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.1 62.9

Southwest ZZ T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.5 62.5

Southwest AAA T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.8 62.2 9522.5 62.5

Southwest BBB T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.5 62.5

Southeast DDD T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.0 63.0 9522.0 63.0

Southeast EEE T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9523.0 62.0 9523.0 62.0

Southeast FFF T.O. STAIR ROOF 9610.0 9526.0 84.0 9526.0 84.0

Southeast GGG T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9530.0 65.5 9530.0 65.5

Southeast HHH T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9535.0 60.5 9533.0 62.5

63.61AVERAGE HEIGHT

* PEDESTRIAN ACCESSWAY 

** EMERGENCY LANE

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

--. 
Iii_; -~ 

(,/: 

----

l[IUIL ill 1 
I 

-

l I 
II 

:r v 
'_J 

l II 
~ 

I " -

I/ I/' 
=-

~ ' ~ 

-

-
-

t- I - I 

l 
' 

l 

-- r-,--i---=---i 
. I 

I 

h 

r 
II 

I 

-- I ~ 

-. 
11 11 1 

i' 
' 

J 
. ' ' ' 
I " ' ' 

- -

-

-

--- ---

l I ' I I dj ~ 
-

u:=-r: - 11 Ii I 
--

II 

J " 
I 

-

~-~ -------
i' -----,. lTITI II 

" __ ,,, 
,,,,,, 

I L/_/ 
- -

i 
' -

r 

~ 

I - - -

w 

-7f 
- -

_j_ 

/ 

II 
I '• /_/ _______ 

;-

-
~ 

'"" 
-
- --

-- -

--- --

- • • ~ 
- ----::::i _ l lil 

I Ill 
I 

I 

I ~ 

-- - - - --;;;-~;:==;~~n=,--

~ ~~~~~--'"--,-------,----,--,------,---~tt----r"~'----ri---,- IJ 

IIIII H--t-lr' ~T 

11111 1 

' -

n I 

---- --

I 

:::1 

II., ' 
II :::_a, 

11· ' :, 
, 

II 

.. ::, 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN IL 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 
l'l00Wo>c<151.•..,t~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0),4 
•~_,..,_,,_ ""'I"'• 

of co 



LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540')
5' - 0"

LEVEL 3 (9560.5')
25' - 6"

LEVEL 4 (9571')
36' - 0"

LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510')
-25' - 0"

LEVEL 5 (9581.5')
46' - 6"

LEVEL 6 (9592')
57' - 0"

LEVEL 7 (9603.5')
68' - 6"

LEVEL G1 PLAZA (9522')
-13' - 0"

CONDOS BEYOND

RESTAURANT, BAR, & BANQUET 
BEYOND

WB 40/50 DELIVERY

EMERGENCY
ACCESS LANE 
BEYOND

G2 GARAGE 
BEYOND

RAISED POOL BEYOND

LEVEL 6 RAISED POOL DECK (9596')
61' - 0"

T.O. LOWER ROOF (9611.5')
77' - 9"

EE FF GG

HH

T.O POOL DECK ROOF(9607.5')
72' - 6"

TA
KE

N 
TO

 M
OS

T R
ES

TR
IC

TI
VE

 T
OP

O 
DI

RE
CT

LY
 B

EL
OW

MA
X 

HE
IG

HT
 A

T 
W

ES
T 

86
'

ME.1

LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL G1A PARKING (9530')
-5' - 0"

LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540')
5' - 0"

LEVEL 3 (9560.5')
25' - 6"

LEVEL 4 (9571')
36' - 0"

LEVEL 5 (9581.5')
46' - 6"

LEVEL 6 (9592')
57' - 0"

LEVEL 7 (9603.5')
68' - 6"

LEVEL G1 PLAZA (9522')
-13' - 0"

T.O. MAIN ROOF (9614.5')
79' - 6"

11
' - 

0"
11

' - 
6"

10
' - 

6"
10

' - 
6"

10
' - 

6"
10

' - 
6"

15
' - 

0"OPEN TO 
PORTE 
COCHERE 
BEYOND

STAIR 2 
BEYOND

RETAIL RETAIL RETAIL LOUNGE/SKI 
SHOP

MARKET
ENTRY

EMPLOYEE HOUSING BEYOND

CURVED WALL

STONE GUARDRAIL

DECORATIVE METAL GUARDRAIL AT TOP 
OF STONE WALL

WEATHERED STEEL METAL DRIP EDGE

WEATHERED STEEL VERTICAL 
LOUVERED SCREEN

STONE VENEER REVEALS

WEATHERED STEEL 
AWNING, TYP

BBBAAA

MG.1

YYXXWW

UUTT

T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620')
84' - 10 5/8"

ROOFS BEYOND

EXISTING 
PEDESTRIAN 
TUNNEL

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD

VV

zz

TA
KE

N 
TO

 M
OS

T R
ES

TR
IC

TI
VE

 T
OP

O 
DI

RE
CT

LY
 B

EL
OW

MA
X 

HE
IG

HT
 S

OU
TH

W
ES

T 
88

.5'

LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL G1A PARKING (9530')
-5' - 0"

LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540')
5' - 0"

LEVEL 3 (9560.5')
25' - 6"

LEVEL 4 (9571')
36' - 0"

LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510')
-25' - 0"

LEVEL 5 (9581.5')
46' - 6"

LEVEL 6 (9592')
57' - 0"

LEVEL 7 (9603.5')
68' - 6"

LEVEL G1 PLAZA (9522')
-13' - 0"

T.O. MAIN ROOF (9614.5')
79' - 6"

RESTAURANT & BAR BEYOND

OPEN TO PEDESTRIAN 
ACCESSWAY

GARAGE ENTRY
BEYOND

OPEN TO PEDESTRIAN 
BRIDGE CONNECTION

BLACK AND DARK BRONZE ROOF FASCIA 
BEYOND

USGS 9522'

STONE VENEER 
RETAINING WALL 
RE: CIVIL

BRONZE GLASS GUARDRAIL

WEATHERED STEEL 
METAL DRIP EDGE

STONE VENEER CHIMNEY

FIREPLACE BEYOND

WEATHERED STEEL VERTICAL 
LOUVERED SCREEN

STONE VENEER REVEALS

STONE VENEER

WEATHERED STEEL HORIZONTAL 
LOUVER "PORTAL"

JJ KK LL

MM NN OO PP

QQ

RR SS

T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620')
84' - 10 5/8"

12
' - 

0"

TA
KE

N 
AT

 P
ED

ES
TR

IA
N 

AC
CE

SS
W

AY
 M

ID
PO

IN
T

MA
X 

HE
IG

HT
 A

T 
SO

UT
H 

88
.6'

MF.1

LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL 3 (9560.5')
25' - 6"

LEVEL 4 (9571')
36' - 0"

LEVEL 5 (9581.5')
46' - 6"

LEVEL 6 (9592')
57' - 0"

LEVEL 7 (9603.5')
68' - 6"

LEVEL G1 PLAZA (9522')
-13' - 0"

T.O. LOWER ROOF (9611.5')
77' - 9"

T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620')
84' - 10 5/8"

SPA ACCESS SPA ACCESS

PEDESTRIAN ACCESSWAY 
TO PLAZA/SEE FOREVER 
VILLAGE

EXISTING 
PEDESTRIAN 
TUNNEL

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVDLOBBY/LOUNGE ACCESS

4/2
1/2

02
3 5

:19
:53

 P
M

A-2.03

SOUTHEAST & WEST
ELEVATIONS

1/16" = 1'-0"3 WEST ELEVATION

1/16" = 1'-0"2 SOUTHWEST ELEVATION

1/16" = 1'-0"4 SOUTH ELEVATION

1/16" = 1'-0"1 WEST ELEVATION - PEDESTRIAN WALKWAY

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

··:11 
~ 

-

-

,It, 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 

~ 

-

" V 

-

" " 

r 

/ 

( 
I 

/ 

.-1 u_ 

/ 

1 
-

-

-

-

-
-

-
- -

\. '- II 111111 11111 111 ' 
-

I II TTlj ' ' ~ , I 
' 

- I - -
- ~ • I 

I . l .J - I -
•· I 

I 1 11 I I I'-• ., I I I f~' II 11111 1 I' 
- -u - I I I 

_I I , 
I - ,~~ 

11 1111 11111111 I Jilli I ~ I 
- - "F 

111111111 I ]I 
~ -

l I I 
I I 

I 
- - -

-
I I 

I 

I I jiiii iiiillllilliiii ilii!IIII I i II 

-

I 

- - - -

- -

- - - -

- - - -

rn 
I I I I 

-
- D 711 ~ 

- -

-

- -

-

1m11 "' ' ·~ 

11111 11 
-

n. 

II 
-

II 

n 

-

-
-

~ 

L-] 1 

-1 

I 
-

' T 

ll4l 

-

\ 
- J 

j 

I 

- ' 

- -- ·---. ·--. 
-- ·--. -- -- - ···r, --, 

--- --
·---. ·--,-., 

-
···---::.:..::::-... 

- - - -
·----. ·---. ·---. 

·- ·-.,.;::--~ ;:;= V r J 

· r,~ '$ K I 
• I I ._ 1'1, ; 11 ·r1 I I 

-

-' ..... 
' .. 

?I -.. _ 

I l .. II 'I 11g 
-

?<7I D ' 

.. 
.. _ 

- - -

- - - - - - -I 
' 
' ~ f---
' ' ' 

D 

' I \ 
', -

_J ll ~[HII lllJiO ' - - - -
~ - - - - - -- - - -

I I 

-

~ 
L ; - .• I 1 1 1 w I . 1 ' 

c,: 

I I I 
- - - -

11 I 
-

11r 
- - - -

I - - - -

' 

' ~ 
I =,. ' = = 

r 
l,t 

~ ,..._ -
- -

n C 

"-- ~-r -

L ' l ' ' ' " 1 ! I I I ' ~- , 
' ~ i 1111, ~,. 11r . II !11 11 j~ ,, Ill/ -

l====/1 llllllll!Hllill~ I 
. .,. 

I I I -'f -
- - - -

T lllilll I I 1i 1111 11111111 111 II I II 
m -----,( 

I 'll'llll'''il -
I ◄ - - -

m -\.~ 
I 1r 1 

11, 11111 
= 

I 
' 

I ( 
- I - - - -

~ 
~] ( ( 

- - - -

' 
= 

I I 
' 

( 
' ,_ 

- I,~ 
- - - - - - - - - -

' -I 

-
I 
I _/' 

- - - -

/\\\ 
I • I - ' 

C cc " I 
- - - - -----

- - - - - - - - -

' -, ' ' • ~ 
--, - ,.._ .... .. ..,.. -- • ' ' / 

' ii 11,1 II II~ J jl Li I r 
II I' ITT I , I lfTJT { , / , 

I I i' 
II 

I 

~· / J , I 1r 11 

■ ! ' ) 

'" I . / 
- -

~ 1• I I • 

s=illll llll~ n I 
·t 

- -
Q I I 

11- 11 I: 
;~ 

\ 
I I 1111111 I! II I 

C 

' " 1\-- -

1111111 10i11111 1111 1 ··· - :I II 
u I I 

~ c 

I I -· 
II I II - - I I I I - - I - -- II I 

= -

I 
-- E "" --

· · 1111111 11 r cil1 - ----- ~ 

-Ill lill!llllll D-r ·-= llll llll lllll DD-~ D D D - - - ~ 

~ C, r r - ,_ -

;:_J ... 

r - l ,, -,, 
- ,..._. 

!JI 

~ -
,a.=., 

linn 
- ,-, 

~ 
- -

- -

' - -

.. ·-I I 

I ' 

11 111 111 

I I 

I 11 ll][]ffil 

' 

~ - ,_ 
' 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN IL 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IK t<i~•I So lution• 
l'l00Wo>c<151.•..,t~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0),4 
•~-•'"'-,,_ ""'I"'• 

of C 



88
'-9

" M
AX

 B
UI

LD
IN

G 
HE

IG
HT

NOTES

SPOT 

ELEV 

LABEL DESCRIPTION

HEIGHT TO 

HIGHEST 

POINT

PROPOSED 

GRADE

HEIGHT 

FROM 

PROPOSED 

GRADE

EXISTING 

GRADE

HEIGHT 

FROM 

EXISTING 

GRADE

Northeast B T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9539.2 56.3 9537.0 58.5

Northeast C T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.9 56.6 9536.8 58.7

Northeast D T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.8 56.7 9536.8 58.7

Northeast E T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.5 57.0 9536.5 59.0

Northeast F T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.3 57.2 9536.3 59.2

Northeast G T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.0 57.5 9536.0 59.5

Northeast H T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.7 57.8 9536.0 59.5

Northeast I T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.4 58.1 9538.5 57.0

Northeast J T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.1 58.4 9536.0 59.5

Northeast K T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9536.4 59.1 9535.7 59.8

North L T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9535.6 59.9 9535.1 60.4

North M T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9534.7 60.8 9534.0 61.5

North N T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.1 58.4 9536.0 59.5

North O T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9536.4 59.1 9535.7 59.8

North P T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9535.6 59.9 9535.1 60.4

North Q T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9534.7 60.8 9534.0 61.5

North R T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9531.5 64.0

North S T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9531.5 64.0

*Pedestrian accessway (North) *T T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9533.5 62.0

*Pedestrian accessway (North) *U T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9533.5 62.0

Northwest V T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9530.7 64.8 9530.7 64.8

Northwest W T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9530.1 65.4 9530.1 65.4

Northwest X T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9528.7 56.3 9528.1 56.9

Northwest Y T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9526.8 58.2 9527.8 57.2

Northwest Z T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9526.2 58.8 9525.8 59.2

Northwest AA T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9607.5 9526.0 81.5 9523.8 83.7

Northwest BB T.O. POOL DECK ROOF 9607.5 9524.6 82.9 9521.0 86.5

Northwest CC T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9523.2 72.3 9520.5 75.0

Northwest DD T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9521.4 74.1 9520.0 75.5

West EE T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9520.1 75.4 9520.1 75.4

West *FF T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9518.0 77.5 9517.8 77.7

West *GG T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9517.0 78.5 9517.0 78.5

West
*HH T.O. LEVEL 4 GUARDRAIL 9574.5 9516.0 58.5 9516.0 58.5

South **JJ T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9510.0 85.5 9515.0 80.5

South KK T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9510.0 85.5 9515.0 80.5

South LL T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9510.0 85.5 9515.0 80.5

South
**MM T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9519.3 65.7 9519.3 65.7

South **NN T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9519.8 65.2 9519.8 65.2

South **OO T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9520.4 64.6 9520.4 64.6

South **PP T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.8 62.2 9522.5 62.5

South **QQ T.O. LEVEL 4 GUARDRAIL 9574.5 9522.5 52.0 9522.5 52.0

South
*RR T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9525.6 81.4 9525.6 81.4

South
*SS T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9525.6 81.4 9525.6 81.4

Southwest TT T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9523.0 84.0 9522.0 85.0

Southwest UU T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9522.8 84.2 9522.8 84.2

Southwest VV T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9523.0 84.0 9523.0 84.0

Southwest WW T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.8 62.2 9522.1 62.9

Southwest XX T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.0 63.0

Southwest YY T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.1 62.9

Southwest ZZ T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.5 62.5

Southwest AAA T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.8 62.2 9522.5 62.5

Southwest BBB T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.5 62.5

Southeast DDD T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.0 63.0 9522.0 63.0

Southeast EEE T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9523.0 62.0 9523.0 62.0

Southeast FFF T.O. STAIR ROOF 9610.0 9526.0 84.0 9526.0 84.0

Southeast GGG T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9530.0 65.5 9530.0 65.5

Southeast HHH T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9535.0 60.5 9533.0 62.5

63.61AVERAGE HEIGHT

* PEDESTRIAN ACCESSWAY 

** EMERGENCY LANE

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

® NW PERSPECTIVE G) NW ELEVATION 

CD SW PERSPECTIVE - EXISTING TOPO (D SE PERSPECTIVE 

CD EXISTING TOPO 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

MARPA 

AE DESIGN
1L 

lntqrated Ll11ht1n11 and Electfico l Solution, 
,....,w., .. s,,..,,,n:o, 11;,=,COl!lllO> JOJ.l%.m• 
•-•!1"-ln<,a>m PrnJe<l ,, 

3D MAX HEIGHT WITH 
EXISTING TOPO 

A-2.04 



NOTES

SPOT 

ELEV 

LABEL DESCRIPTION

HEIGHT TO 

HIGHEST 

POINT

PROPOSED 

GRADE

HEIGHT 

FROM 

PROPOSED 

GRADE

EXISTING 

GRADE

HEIGHT 

FROM 

EXISTING 

GRADE

Northeast B T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9539.2 56.3 9537.0 58.5

Northeast C T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.9 56.6 9536.8 58.7

Northeast D T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.8 56.7 9536.8 58.7

Northeast E T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.5 57.0 9536.5 59.0

Northeast F T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.3 57.2 9536.3 59.2

Northeast G T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9538.0 57.5 9536.0 59.5

Northeast H T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.7 57.8 9536.0 59.5

Northeast I T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.4 58.1 9538.5 57.0

Northeast J T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.1 58.4 9536.0 59.5

Northeast K T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9536.4 59.1 9535.7 59.8

North L T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9535.6 59.9 9535.1 60.4

North M T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9534.7 60.8 9534.0 61.5

North N T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9537.1 58.4 9536.0 59.5

North O T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9536.4 59.1 9535.7 59.8

North P T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9535.6 59.9 9535.1 60.4

North Q T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9534.7 60.8 9534.0 61.5

North R T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9531.5 64.0

North S T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9531.5 64.0

*Pedestrian accessway (North) *T T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9533.5 62.0

*Pedestrian accessway (North) *U T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9533.6 61.9 9533.5 62.0

Northwest V T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9530.7 64.8 9530.7 64.8

Northwest W T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9530.1 65.4 9530.1 65.4

Northwest X T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9528.7 56.3 9528.1 56.9

Northwest Y T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9526.8 58.2 9527.8 57.2

Northwest Z T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9526.2 58.8 9525.8 59.2

Northwest AA T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9607.5 9526.0 81.5 9523.8 83.7

Northwest BB T.O. POOL DECK ROOF 9607.5 9524.6 82.9 9521.0 86.5

Northwest CC T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9523.2 72.3 9520.5 75.0

Northwest DD T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9521.4 74.1 9520.0 75.5

West EE T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9520.1 75.4 9520.1 75.4

West *FF T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9518.0 77.5 9517.8 77.7

West *GG T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9517.0 78.5 9517.0 78.5

West
*HH T.O. LEVEL 4 GUARDRAIL 9574.5 9516.0 58.5 9516.0 58.5

South **JJ T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9510.0 85.5 9515.0 80.5

South KK T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9510.0 85.5 9515.0 80.5

South LL T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9510.0 85.5 9515.0 80.5

South
**MM T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9519.3 65.7 9519.3 65.7

South **NN T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9519.8 65.2 9519.8 65.2

South **OO T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9520.4 64.6 9520.4 64.6

South **PP T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.8 62.2 9522.5 62.5

South **QQ T.O. LEVEL 4 GUARDRAIL 9574.5 9522.5 52.0 9522.5 52.0

South
*RR T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9525.6 81.4 9525.6 81.4

South
*SS T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9525.6 81.4 9525.6 81.4

Southwest TT T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9523.0 84.0 9522.0 85.0

Southwest UU T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9522.8 84.2 9522.8 84.2

Southwest VV T.O. LEVEL 7 GUARDRAIL 9607.0 9523.0 84.0 9523.0 84.0

Southwest WW T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.8 62.2 9522.1 62.9

Southwest XX T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.0 63.0

Southwest YY T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.1 62.9

Southwest ZZ T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.5 62.5

Southwest AAA T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.8 62.2 9522.5 62.5

Southwest BBB T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.5 62.5 9522.5 62.5

Southeast DDD T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9522.0 63.0 9522.0 63.0

Southeast EEE T.O. LEVEL 5 GUARDRAIL 9585.0 9523.0 62.0 9523.0 62.0

Southeast FFF T.O. STAIR ROOF 9610.0 9526.0 84.0 9526.0 84.0

Southeast GGG T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9530.0 65.5 9530.0 65.5

Southeast HHH T.O. LEVEL 6 GUARDRAIL 9595.5 9535.0 60.5 9533.0 62.5

63.61AVERAGE HEIGHT

* PEDESTRIAN ACCESSWAY 

** EMERGENCY LANE

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

/ 

-

w=""' 
- ~ 

. 
~ .. . ~ 

® NW PERSPECTIVE 

I 

0 SW PERSPECTIVE - PROPOSED TOPO 

C_ 
'C 

(D NW ELEVATION 

Q) SE PERSPECTIVE 

~ ~ ~====~ 

CD ~3~~-~OSED TOPO OVER ROOF 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

MARPA 

AE DESIGN
1L 

lntqrated Ll11ht1n11 and Electf1co l Solution, 

,..._,w.,« ,t,..,, "1.lll "'""°'• COJ!010, JOJ.l%.)O.)< 
•-•on->n<,a>m PrnJe<l ,, 

3D MAX HEIGHT WITH 
PROPOSED TOPO 

A-2.05 



HEAT TRACED INTERNAL ROOF DRAIN HARD 
PIPED TO STORM DRAIN 

LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL 3 (9560.5')
25' - 6"

LEVEL 4 (9571')
36' - 0"

LEVEL 5 (9581.5')
46' - 6"

LEVEL 6 (9592')
57' - 0"

LEVEL 7 (9603.5')
68' - 6"

LEVEL G1 PLAZA (9522')
-13' - 0"

T.O. MAIN ROOF (9614.5')
79' - 6"

LEVEL 6 RAISED POOL DECK (9596')
61' - 0"

HEAT TRACED INTERNAL ROOF DRAIN HARD 
PIPED TO STORM DRAIN 

HEAT TRACED INTERNAL ROOF DRAIN HARD 
PIPED TO STORM DRAIN 

T.O POOL DECK ROOF(9607.5')
72' - 6"

T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620')
84' - 10 5/8"

LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL G1A PARKING (9530')
-5' - 0"

LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540')
5' - 0"

LEVEL 3 (9560.5')
25' - 6"

LEVEL 4 (9571')
36' - 0"

LEVEL 5 (9581.5')
46' - 6"

LEVEL 6 (9592')
57' - 0"

LEVEL 7 (9603.5')
68' - 6"

LEVEL G1 PLAZA (9522')
-13' - 0"

T.O. MAIN ROOF (9614.5')
79' - 6"

HEAT TRACED INTERNAL ROOF DRAIN HARD 
PIPED TO STORM DRAIN 

T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620')
84' - 10 5/8"

LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540')
5' - 0"

LEVEL 3 (9560.5')
25' - 6"

LEVEL 4 (9571')
36' - 0"

LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510')
-25' - 0"

LEVEL 5 (9581.5')
46' - 6"

LEVEL 6 (9592')
57' - 0"

LEVEL 7 (9603.5')
68' - 6"

LEVEL G1 PLAZA (9522')
-13' - 0"

HEAT TRACED BALCONY DRAINAGE ROUTED 
TO INTERNAL ROOF DRAIN, TYP AT ALL

HEAT TRACED INTERNAL ROOF DRAIN HARD 
PIPED TO STORM DRAIN 

HEAT TRACED BALCONY DRAINAGE ROUTED TO 
INTERNAL ROOF DRAIN, TYP AT ALL

BALCONY DRAINAGE ROUTED TO INTERNAL 
ROOF DRAIN, TYP AT ALL

LEVEL 6 RAISED POOL DECK (9596')
61' - 0"

T.O. LOWER ROOF (9611.5')
77' - 9"

T.O POOL DECK ROOF(9607.5')
72' - 6"

SNOW MELT KEY

SPLASH BLOCKS IN TERRACE

DIRECTION OF WATER FLOW

INTERNAL ROOF DRAIN

GUTTER

ROOF DRAIN

SB

RD

G

 

4/2
8/2

02
3 1

2:0
9:3

1 P
M

A-2.21

EXTERIOR
ELEVATION·SNOW MELT

STUDY
 1/16" = 1'-0"1 EXTERIOR ELEVATION·SNOW MELT STUDY NORTHEAST

 1/16" = 1'-0"2 EXTERIOR ELEVATION·SNOW MELT STUDY- NORTHWEST

 1/16" = 1'-0"3 EXTERIOR ELEVATION·SNOW MELT STUDY EAST
 1/16" = 1'-0"4 EXTERIOR ELEVATION·SNOW MELT STUDY- WEST

SB

G

DS

DS

.

 1/4" = 1'-0"
SNOW MELT KEY

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

--- \J 

~ 
~ 

---- I - I i \\ --------- ~ 
_ _ _ _ _ ___ _ I --~. \. \ _ l _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~ 

l [ I 111 Ill[ 1 111 i \r1 ,Jl I I\\ I 1111 ITT[] 1 
- , - - r 1 1 l _ - j II 111 l1n l \\\l\fll r Jlllllimll _ llllll I - - - : 

- - I - I I ~ -r 11 Ill llllil l'1l1 1~ 11lwt~0i1' Ii[ II - ITT~ m,r - - a, 

. . - - _•,,.,,,,,.----- ./ - - - - .. , - - - - 1- . / ' - - - - - al 

_ _ _ _ _ I ·m1 IT ~l J ITL m ~m _ _ t _ _ _ ~ 

- - - - L - - ~ ; -1- - - l, - - - t - - - ~ 
i ~ 
I 

I lt; 
----------4----,a}g!l_i_J 1]l1 I 1111 0 

I L -___________ ,___________ ~~ 

--------------------~-------------------------------+----------------- ~~ 

--=-= =r =- l 111=- tl i= ( . i[fl[ - [i!~~1!1tf il:ilf1Eil1if-=-- -1 ~,ffif -JJ~--- i I -=- rnm~J@fT_~--=-=-=-=-=-= ~ 
= :--0-------c: _ 11~111111[: ~1rn 111111111ml : _: 11rnIDrn1_ : y~11m : illlllllll 

1 

: Uli r __ Jr~ 11m~~1[ , 11~11 == == == 1111m1 r /I~ b l _,.. -_ -= =-= _ __ ;, 
ij -~_ .111 11111 ITT 1 rn llllllmll!llllIT _ _ 1111~111111 _ ~1rilllll I 1m II Ill ll 1 ID I'~ 1~ illlUmllillll llillll.1111[ illl _ _ lllllllll ~ r~1W1t 1 . mi _ Jiji I _ _ 1[ 1_ _ .-\ 

- - --+--'--
1 

J 111111 - 1111·111 u1 ]:llll .llL ~1- -;1~1rnj 1111m1m1rn111 11 lrm111m _ _ _ . 111m1111111111 111111 im iru1 ~~ I[ ll -1 1~hl~~ j 1 11 7 . 11 1 - - - : 
_ _ _ _11111111[111 __ ~III, _ _ _ ----ff ~ _ _ ---~- _ _ _ _ _ _ -----cfo ~ ---t----"- _ _ _II 

I ITf I I Ill I I~ II~ I - - 11 1 

_l __ i __ t ~_I --------- 1 _ 1 __ l} _ b____ --~ -~ 1 1 
I 1 I 

I 
- - - - - -- ---=-~=-~---=-=--=--=--=1-J-J_=-=---=,i==:._::::c_::= - ~ 

r It 
- -

I 

t n 

1 
l 

- - t -

-----

==-r VAULT DE:SIGN G~OUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN 1L 
IMeiirated Lll,h!ln11 and El"<'.ltlc~I '><>lu\lcln, 

1'111,lw., ... ~u..,,o:sis- o..a-,t0!1;llW JOJ . Nl..»l ◄ 

•-'f!>-'0<.CM> ~- ,, 



LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL 3 (9560.5')
25' - 6"

LEVEL 4 (9571')
36' - 0"

LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510')
-25' - 0"

LEVEL 5 (9581.5')
46' - 6"

LEVEL 6 (9592')
57' - 0"

LEVEL 7 (9603.5')
68' - 6"

LEVEL G1 PLAZA (9522')
-13' - 0"

T.O. MAIN ROOF (9614.5')
79' - 6"

HEAT TRACED INTERNAL ROOF DRAIN HARD 
PIPED TO STORM DRAIN 

HEAT TRACED BALCONY DRAINAGE ROUTED 
TO INTERNAL ROOF DRAIN, TYP AT ALL

LEVEL 6 RAISED POOL DECK (9596')
61' - 0"

T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620')
84' - 10 5/8"

LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL G1A PARKING (9530')
-5' - 0"

LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540')
5' - 0"

LEVEL 3 (9560.5')
25' - 6"

LEVEL 4 (9571')
36' - 0"

LEVEL 5 (9581.5')
46' - 6"

LEVEL 6 (9592')
57' - 0"

LEVEL 7 (9603.5')
68' - 6"

LEVEL G1 PLAZA (9522')
-13' - 0"

T.O. MAIN ROOF (9614.5')
79' - 6"

HEAT TRACED BALCONY DRAINAGE ROUTED 
TO INTERNAL ROOF DRAIN, TYP AT ALL

HEAT TRACED INTERNAL ROOF DRAIN HARD 
PIPED TO STORM DRAIN 

T.O. UPPER ROOF (9620')
84' - 10 5/8"

SNOW MELT KEY

SPLASH BLOCKS IN TERRACE

DIRECTION OF WATER FLOW

INTERNAL ROOF DRAIN

GUTTER

ROOF DRAIN

SB

RD

G

 

4/2
8/2

02
3 1

2:0
9:5

3 P
M

A-2.22

EXTERIOR
ELEVATION·SNOW MELT

STUDY

 1/16" = 1'-0"1 EXTERIOR ELEVATION·SNOW MELT STUDY - SOUTHWEST
 1/16" = 1'-0"2 EXTERIOR ELEVATION·SNOW MELT STUDY- SOUTHEAST

 1/4" = 1'-0"
SNOW MELT KEY

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

• ,; 

(/') 

(/') 

----

/I; 

_l [ 

------

==-r VAULT DE:SIGN G~OUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• 
AE DESIGN 1L 
IMeiir~led Lil,h!ln11 and El"<'.ltlc~I '><>lu\lcln, 

1'111,lw., ... ~u..,,o:sis- o..a-,t0!1;llW JOJ . Nl..»l ◄ 

•-'f!>-'0<.CM> ~- ,, 



4/2
1/2

02
3 5

:20
:29

 P
M

A-2.23

TYPICAL DETAILS, WINDOW
LEGEND AND DOOR

SCHEDULE

 TYPE MARK  HEIGHT WIDTH REMARKS   TYPE COMMENTS
1 8' - 0" 22' - 0" CORTEN STEEL SECTIONAL OVERHEAD GARAGE -
2 15' - 10"  15' - 0" CORTEN STEEL SECTIONAL OVERHEAD GARAGE -
3 7' - 0" 6' - 0" DARK BRONZE ALUMINIUM STOREFRONT-BRONZE TINTED GLASS PANEL DOUBLE STOREFRONT -
4 8' - 0" 3' - 0" STEEL CORE CLAD WITH WOOD SINGLE FLUSH DARK BRONZE FRAME TO MATCH
5 7' - 0" 6' - 0" STEEL CORE CLAD WITH WOOD DOUBLE FLUSH DARK BRONZE FRAME TO MATCH
 6 7' - 0" 3' - 0" STEEL CORE CLAD WITH WOOD SINGLE FLUSH DARK BRONZE FRAME TO MATCH

7 7' - 6" 6' - 0" DARK BRONZE ALUMINIUM STOREFRONT-BRONZE TINTED GLASS PANEL DOUBLE STOREFRONT -
8 10' - 0" 8' - 0" CUSTOM WOOD WALNUT FINISH DOUBLE FLUSH -
 9 8' - 10" 4' - 9" DARK BRONZE ALUMINIUM STOREFRONT-BRONZE TINTED GLASS PANEL SINGLE SLIDER BALCONY DOOR LEVELS 2-7

     EXTERIOR DOOR SCHEDULE

*DOOR LOCATIONS PROVIDED IN PLAN*

3
"

1
' 
- 

1
"

2
"

PAINTED METAL FLASHING 
PER SMACNA, CHARCOAL

METAL FASCIA, CORTEN 
STEEL FINISH

METAL WOOD LOOK FASCIA, 
WRAPS TO SOFFIT

FULLY ADHERED 60 MIL TPO 
MEMBRANE CLASS "A" ROOF 
ASSEMBLY, CHARCOAL

1 1/2" = 1'-0"
6

SCHEMATIC SECTION AT ROOF FASCIA

INTERIOREXTERIOR

WALL ASSEMBLY INCLUDING STUD TYPE, 

INSULATION REQUIREMENTS ETC TBD WITH 

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER AND ENERGY & 

ENVELOPE CONSULTANT AT DESIGN 

DEVELOPMENT

DARK BRONZE BRAKE METAL SLOPED TO 

DRAIN TO MATCH STOREFRONT COLOR

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT IN DARK BRONZE 

FINISH

WEATHERED STEEL LOUVER BEYOND IN 

CORTEN STEEL FINISH

FIELD STONE VENEER - ROUGH

5" MIN

INTERIOR

EXTERIOR

5
" 

M
IN

WALL ASSEMBLY INCLUDING STUD TYPE, 

INSULATION REQUIREMENTS ETC TBD WITH 

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER AND ENERGY & 

ENVELOPE CONSULTANT AT DESIGN 

DEVELOPMENT

DARK BRONZE BRAKE METAL SILL FLASHING 

SLOPED TO DRAIN. COLOR TO MATCH 

STOREFRONT COLOR

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT IN DARK BRONZE 

FINISH

WEATHERED STEEL LOUVER IN CORTEN STEEL 

FINISH

FIELD STONE VENEER - ROUGH

3" = 1'-0"
2

SILL AT STONE

3" = 1'-0"
4

JAMB AT STONE

INTERIOR

EXTERIOR

WALL ASSEMBLY INCLUDING STUD TYPE, 

INSULATION REQUIREMENTS ETC TBD WITH 

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER AND ENERGY & 

ENVELOPE CONSULTANT AT DESIGN 

DEVELOPMENT

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT IN DARK BRONZE 

FINISH

WEATHERED STEEL HORIZONTAL LOUVER  IN 

CORTEN STEEL FINISH

WEATHERED STEEL LOUVER IN CORTEN STEEL 

FINISH

FIELD STONE VENEER - ROUGH

3" = 1'-0"
5

HEAD AT STONE

WALL ASSEMBLY INCLUDING STUD TYPE, 

INSULATION REQUIREMENTS ETC TBD WITH 

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER AND ENERGY & 

ENVELOPE CONSULTANT AT DESIGN 

DEVELOPMENT

WEATHERED METAL PANEL CORTEN FINISH

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT IN DARK BRONZE 

FINISH

INTERIOREXTERIOR

DARK BRONZE BRAKE METAL FLASHING TO 

MATCH STOREFRONT COLOR

HEADER TBD PER STRUCTURAL

EXTERIOR

INTERIOR

FILL JAMBS AND HEADS WITH 

INSULATION TO PREVENT THERMAL 

BREAK, TYP

WALL ASSEMBLY INCLUDING STUD TYPE, 

INSULATION REQUIREMENTS ETC TBD WITH 

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER AND ENERGY & 

ENVELOPE CONSULTANT AT DESIGN 

DEVELOPMENT

WEATHERED STEEL LOOK METAL PANEL WITH 

CORTEN FINISH

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT IN DARK BRONZE 

FINISH

DARK BRONZE BRAKE METAL FLASHING TO 

MATCH STOREFRONT COLOR

JAMB TBD PER STRUCTURAL

3" = 1'-0"
1

HEAD AT METAL PANEL

3" = 1'-0"
3

JAMB AT METAL PANEL

12
' - 

4"

12' - 4" 18' - 4"

12
' - 

4"

6' 
- 4

"

20' - 4"

6' 
- 4

"

3' - 4"

2' 
- 1

1"

A B

C

D

F G

VARIES

9' 
- 0

"

FINISHED FLOOR

EQ EQ EQ

CEILING

J

VARIES

10
' - 

6"

FINISHED FLOOR

EQ EQ EQ

CEILING

E

SAFETY 
GLAZING, 
TYP.

SAFETY 
GLAZING, 
TYP.

3' - 10" 5' - 0"

4' - 3" 5' - 0"

SAFETY 
GLAZING, 
TYP.

M

4' - 5"5' - 0"5' - 0"3' - 8"

4' - 11"5' - 0"5' - 0"3' - 8"

SAFETY 
GLAZING, 

TYP.

5' 
- 5

"
9' 

- 0
"

2' 
- 0

"

2' 
- 0

"
9' 

- 0
"

4' 
- 0

"

K

18' - 7"

18' - 1" 8' - 10"

9' - 3"

SAFETY 
GLAZING, 
TYP.

SAFETY 
GLAZING, 
TYP.

SAFETY 
GLAZING, 
TYP.

SAFETY 
GLAZING, 
TYP.

SAFETY 
GLAZING, 
TYP.

SAFETY 
GLAZING, 
TYP.

2' 
- 0

"
5' 

- 1
1"

2' 
- 1

"

18' - 0"

H

SAFETY 
GLAZING, 
TYP.

3' 
- 0

"
6' 

- 0
"

8"

22' - 1"

4' - 11" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 5' - 0" 2' - 2" CEILING

4' - 6" 4' - 6" 4' - 6" 4' - 6"

8' 
- 1

0"

4' - 9"

FINISHED FLOOR

CEILING

FINISHED FLOOR

CEILING

FINISHED FLOOR

CEILING

FINISHED FLOOR

9

11
' - 

0"

FINISHED FLOOR

CEILING

VARIES

EQ EQ EQ

L

SAFETY 
GLAZING, 
TYP.

1/4" = 1'-0"
WINDOW LEGEND

LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

PILASTER WITH 
ROUGH STONE 
FINISH

PLANTER BOX WITH 
ROUGH STONE 
FINISH

OPEN TO ROAD 
BEYOND

RAMP TO G1A

 1/4" = 1'-0"7 SECTION AT PORTE COCHERE

ANGLED CEILING 
AND AWNING
WITHIN PROPERTY LINE

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

' 

n 
-----~-----------------------------

, f f ----

' 

~-------------------------------------

1 

' 

.~ ---=--+ - -

c=i 

I <c-

- - _...,_ - -

I I 

'~=====iF======n======·======'==n 

.~ l1========11=======cil=======Jlc=======il===ci 

□ 

' ' 
. 

I 

·1 

I I 

n 

Lill 1111 

I I 

, , 
' ' 

_J 

t ------=======,;======ii======,i-
, , 

----·-----. __ 

· .... ·········••-.~ 

\ 

.. .,. IJI 
-+--~~- JrL--------1 

,--

I I 

t t 
' 

----
' t _______ : _________ j_~ ----

I 

' -----\ ______ ----- ---~ - - -

' I 
I 

I 

----- ----'.1 
I 

I 

I 

I 

' 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN •L 
lntt11rat•d Ll1htln1 and l:IKt<i~•I So lution• 
1'!00 Wo>c<t51.•..,t~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.J0 ),4 
•~_,..,_,,_ ""'I"'• 



STONE PILASTER

TYPE D FIXTURE
3' LONG FULLY 
CONCEALED

TY
P.

 3'
 - 

0"

FLOOR

FLOOR

WALL

TYPE G
FIXTURE FULLY 
CONCEALED

SL
AB

0' 
- 8

"

VARIES

FROSTED 
LENS

1'
 - 

0"

STEEL RAILING

TYPE J FIXTURE
CONCEALED IN 

HORIZONTAL SLAT 
CHANNEL   

METAL GRATE STAIR

ø 0' - 6"

CABLE RAILING   

RAILING

TYPE J FIXTURE 
CONCEALED IN 
HORIZONTAL SLAT 
CHANNEL

0' - 5"

EXTERIOR WALL

TYPE M FIXTURE 
FULLY 
CONCEALED

GARAGE 
DOOR

STEEL COLUMN

7" TALL VALANCE 

TYPE A FIXTURE 
FULLY 
CONCEALED

PLAN VIEW

0'
 - 

4"

TYPE A FIXTURE FULLY 
CONCEALED

CEILING

METAL SCREEN & 
CURTAIN

PLANTER

TYPE J FULLY 
CONCEALED

TYPE J FULLY 
CONCEALED

INDOOROUTDOOR

TYPE L CONCEALED @ 
RETAIL AWNING

WALL

POOL
FLOOR

TYPE Q FULLY 
CONCEALED

DRAIN

FINISHED 
CEILING

8" SQUARE 
OPENING

0' - 8"

TYPE R FIXTURE 
FULLY CONCEALED

9-
9.5

" +
 / -

ALL SURFACES PAINTED IN 
MATTE BLACK FINISH

TYPE J FIXTURE FULLY 
CONCEALED

STAIR STEP

4" +/-

CORTEN STEEL VERTICAL LOUVER

GLAZING

WINDOW FRAME IN DARK BRONZE FINISH

SILL

INTERIOR

EXTERIOR

M

NOTE:
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

4/2
6/2

02
3 5

:16
:02

 P
M

A-2.24

TYPICAL DETAILS

 3" = 1'-0"2 TYPE D FIXTURE TYP
 1 1/2" = 1'-0"4 TYPE G FIXTURE TYP.

 1 1/2" = 1'-0"5 TYP. RAILING DETAIL TYPE J
 6" = 1'-0"6 TYP. RAILING DETAIL SECTION TYPE J

 1 1/2" = 1'-0"10 TYPE M DETAIL TYP.

 3" = 1'-0"1 TYPE A DETAIL TYP.
 3" = 1'-0"3 TYP. CEILING DETAIL TYP. F

 1 1/2" = 1'-0"7 TYP. PLANTER DETAIL @ POOL DECK TYPE J

 1" = 1'-0"9 TYPE L DETAIL TYP. @ CANOPY
 3" = 1'-0"12 TYPE Q DETAIL TYP.

 3" = 1'-0"13 TYPE R DETAIL TYP.

 1 1/2" = 1'-0"8 TYP. STEP DETAIL @ POOL DECK TYPE J

 3" = 1'-0"14 LOUVER DETAIL

 1/8" = 1'-0"11 TYPE M ELEVATION DETAIL TYP.

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

------------ ~---------------'~ 

'-- ~'-·· I • 

' I ' / 

II II 
II II 
II II ,,11 

II 
II II 
II II 
II 

I 
II 

I 
- - H - - - - - - - - - -

II 
II II 
II II 
II II 
II II 
II II 
II II 

- ·, _________ _ 

I 111 
I 111 
I 111 
I 111 
I 111 
I 111 
I 111 

I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 

I I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 

"t; I I 
II I I 
II I I 
II I I 

" 

==-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN =L 
lnt~•!ed LllhtIDI and Eleclrl<:•1 Solution, 
1'100W ..... St-.tillS o.,,,_,,o,mo1 Jlll.ill' . .l(IH 
_.., . .,c . .-, ""'J""' f; 



LEVEL 1 (9535')
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2 (9550')
15' - 0"

LEVEL G1A PARKING (9530')
-5' - 0"

LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE (9540')
5' - 0"

LEVEL 3 (9560.5')
25' - 6"

LEVEL 4 (9571')
36' - 0"

LEVEL G1 PLAZA MAIN LEVEL (9520')
-15' - 0"

LEVEL G2 PARKING (9510')
-25' - 0"

LEVEL 5 (9581.5')
46' - 6"

LEVEL 6 (9592')
57' - 0"

LEVEL 7 (9603.5')
68' - 6"

T.O. MAIN ROOF (9614.5')
79' - 6"

UPPER ROOF (9617.5')
82' - 6"

3' 
- 0

"
11

' - 
0"

11
' - 

6"
10

' - 
6"

10
' - 

6"
10

' - 
6"

10
' - 

6"
10

' - 
0"

10
' - 

0"
10

' - 
0"

10
' - 

0"
10

' - 
0"

PARKING

PARKING

PARKING

RETAIL SPACE

EMPLOYEE DORM
HOST 
GAME 
ROOM

HOST LAUNDRY

HOTEL MODHOTEL MOD

HOTEL MODHOTEL MOD

1 BEDROOM LODGE UNIT2 BEDROOM LODGE UNIT

CONDOCONDO

CONDOCONDO

PENTHOUSE CONDOPENTHOUSE CONDO

GARAGE RAMP BEYOND

LEVEL 1 AND PORTE COCHERE BEYOND

GARAGE RAMP
BEHIND

PEDESTRIAN ACCESSWAY SEE 
FOREVER VILLAGE BEYOND

G2  PARKING GARAGE BEYOND

DELIVERY ACCESS BEYOND

FIRE/EMERGENCY ACCESS LANE

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD

LEVEL 6 RAISED POOL DECK (9596')
61' - 0"

T.O POOL DECK ROOF(9607.5')
72' - 6"

LEVEL G3 PARKING (9500')
-35' - 0"

PARKING

RETAINING WALL

4/2
9/2

02
3 9

:12
:39

 A
M

A-3.00

BUILDING SECTION

 3/32" = 1'-0"1 N-S SECTION LOOKING NE

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

-

'II 
,(7J.... l l'!'.'.---rsll'" 

I ' 

;,/'; ' -
-----------+--------

I 
I 

_J 

' == 
I -------- +------ ---+------+-t-- - - ----+ t-----~-------~,..------....... 1i--------- -

i'" m f I! ( _!:~ 
r--.J....L__...JL..__JllUilUJ.ll.U.Wl-----'--'-----;c"'.::':=========1 lt=:====~=1::::=::'.===:=:1 llt::"::::':=f-"-~~- '."""'=====::::i;::'.:::I;===::::"===:'.'.~~====:'.::::::::'.::::J 

- - - - - - ---+- - - - - - --+-----+-+----------+ t------+--+---------

~~~Wll •~· =::'::':.':':':~ f-'L-L----",----"-'--'~ _J'----"--1 1)---~I _I lll[l]]_llllll ~_II□~----==-----===-/~~_/-----'---_ ~ 

' 

' 

' 

' 

' 

' 

==-r- VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN= L 
l11tegrarnd Lljhllflll ~nd El.,.,tr1cal So lution, 
l'IO;lWa, .... s., ... 1 l7llS o.,,,..,, (0 IIO:IOl Jill l'III. !OJ.O .-,.,,_,.,._,,_ ~I..,_" 



MOU
NTA

IN 
VILL

AGE

BLV
D.

5'

5'

5'

A B

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BOULEVARD

1

2

5
A111

2
A111

4
A111

3
A111

TOWN
UTILITY

CAR
STORAGE

TRASH/
TMV

MAINTENANCE

3 YD 
DUMP.

FD

FD

UTILITY CART

UTILITY CART

3 YD 
DUMP.

3 YD 
DUMP.

3 YD 
DUMP.

3 YD 
DUMP.

3 YD 
DUMP.

2
2

2

3 YD 
DUMP.

3 YD 
DUMP.

RECYCLE/TMV
MAINTENANCE

35'-0"

FD

12

DARK BRONZE WITH WINDOW  OVERHEAD 
GARAGE DOOR
DRYSTACK STONE

8'-
0"

TIMBER BEAM

EXPOSED TIMBER JOISTS

METAL ROOFING

2 2

RETAINING WALL
RE: CIVIL

VERTICAL WEATHERING STEEL PANELS

MAINTENANCE PARKINGTRASHRECYCLING

OPEN OPEN

LEVEL 1 TRASH (USGS 9512')
100' - 0"

ROOF OVER TRASH
114' - 0"

ROOF OVER MAINTENANCE
110' - 6"

AB

DRYSTACK STONE WAINSCOT

METAL ROOFING

DRYSTACK STONE WAINSCOT

VERTICAL WEATHERING STEEL 
PANELS

2

PARKING SPOT BEYOND

RETAINING WALL 
RE: CIVIL

LEVEL 1 MAINTENANCE (USGS
9514.5')
102' - 6"

8'-
6"

3'-
6"

8'-
0"

DARK BRONZE WITH WINDOW  
OVERHEAD GARAGE DOOR

LEVEL 1 TRASH (USGS 9512')
100' - 0"

ROOF OVER TRASH
114' - 0"

ROOF OVER MAINTENANCE
110' - 6"

A B

METAL ROOFING

DRYSTACK STONE WAINSCOT

VERTICAL WEATHERING 
STEEL PANELS

14
'-0

"

11
'-2

 7/
8"

ROOF OVER MAINTENANCE
110' - 6"

1 2

DRYSTACK STONE WAINSCOT

METAL ROOFING

VERTICAL WEATHERING STEEL 
PANELS

RETAINING WALL
RE: CIVIL

LEVEL 1 MAINTENANCE (USGS
9514.5')

102' - 6"

T.
O.

 P
EA

K 
11

' - 
8"

 

 

 

5/2
/20

23
 3:

45
:24

 P
M

A111

OS-3BR2-1R TRASH
HOLDING PLANS &

ELEVATIONS
PROJECT 

NORTH

 1/8" = 1'-0"1
FLOOR PLAN - TRASH & SNOWMELT BOILER
SYSTEM ENCLOSURE

 1/8" = 1'-0"5 EAST ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"2 NORTH ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"3 SOUTH ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"4 WEST ELEVATION

DRYSTACK STONE

DARK BRONZE METAL ROOFING

CEDAR WOOD TIMBER

DARK BRONZE METAL GARAGE DOOR

VERTICAL WEATHERING STEEL PANELS

GLASS WINDOW

31.31%

18.67%

1.13%

9.46%

38.03%

1.41%

ROOF OVER MAINTENANCE
110' - 6"

LEVEL 1 TRASH (USGS 9512')
100' - 0"

 TYPE MARK  HEIGHT WIDTH REMARKS   TYPE
2 7' - 0" 8' - 0" DARK BRONZE WITH WINDOW SECTIONAL OVERHEAD GARAGE

     EXTERIOR DOOR SCHEDULE

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

I I I I I I 
I 

• 1 
I 

T 
__, 

I 

1~ 

-== - ~--'~ 
c~ - cc_, ;c,:f ~- . . . -~---- - - - - ---~- -

- ' . ~ :':~o " -~32J ~9c =,.~*~::-~===--====~----------

------;,- I 

I- -

I 

I 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

' 

1-n-
1 [I 
I I 

r 

- ------,- I 
•, 

I 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 

I 

~ VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
· g LLC Engineenn ' 



MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
ILL
AG
E

BL
VD
.

5

'

5

'

5

'

FIRE/
EMERGENCY LANE

PROPOSED NEW
OS-3BR2 TOWN
TRASH HOLDING &
MAINTENANCE
BUILDING

12
/13

/20
22

 11
:36

:51
 A

M

FOR EXPORT

E.100
LIGHTING SITE PLAN

SCALE:

LIGHTING SITE PLAN1
E.100 1/16" = 1'-0"

AEDESIGN
Integrated Lighting and Electrical Solutions
1900 Wazee Street #205 Denver, CO 80202 303.296.3034
aedesign-inc.com Project #:5843.00

NORTH

 

 

NOTE:
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

' 

' 
' ' 
' I I 

I 

' I 

I I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I I ' 

-= 
I I 

I I 

\ • 
' 

I E 
' ' 
,\ 
\\ 

I 
I 
I 

' I 
•,\ 

I 
I 

'.\\ 

ii 

-
\ 

' ' ' ' 

' 
' I 
C 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I 

' 

\ 
\ 

' \ 
\ 

\', ,. 
ii 

I 

JI 
1/ 

' 
~ 

T 

'· 

,. 

I 
I 

I 

ARS 

AHJ 

LTS 

UON 

V 

YI 

<3> 

DFI 
+33 1-2 11 

AF<S 

A 
+Bct'-10 11 

A 
AF<S +3'1 O" 

AF<S 

♦ El 

ABBREVIATIONS AND SYMBOLS 
ABOVE FINISHED SRADE 

Al/THORITf HAVIN6 .J!RISDICTION 

LlelfflNe 

UNLESS 0Tl-£RHISE N01cD 

VOLT/S/ 

YIATT(S) OR YIIRE 

DETAIL NOTE 

Q = 

LIGHTING FIXTIJRE5 

WMINAIRE TYPE, REFERENCING LUMINAIRE 
SCHEDULE, TYPICAL ALL FIXT1JRE5. 
5U65GRIPT, IF 5HOJ,,11, REFERENCES WALL 
!:>WITCH OR RELAY/ZONE GONTROL. 

WALL MOUNTED LUMINAIRE 

5URFACE OR PENDANT MOUNTED 
WMINAIRE 

j ..........._ j REGE55ED LUMINAIRE 

Q O DOY'INLISHT LUMINAIRE 

CJ 5URFAGE CEILING WMINAIRE 

V FIXED MONOPOINT PATHLISHT 

----------- LED TAPE WMINAIRE 

I .......,_ I 6> 

'Ei' 

0 --& 
m 

HATCH INDICATES EMEReENGY WMINAIRE 

STEP LISHT TYPE WMINAIRE 

EB 
@[] 

IN-eRADE UPLISHT 

ElOLLARD 

PEDESTRIAN POLE OR POST TOP 
WMINAIRE 

EXTERIOR AREA LISHT 

EB 

ELECTRIC.AL GENERAL NOTES 

A. THE PHOTOMETRIC. C.ALC.ULATION AND LOC.ATIONS 
HAYE BEEN PROVIDED BASED UPON THE AVAILABLE 
ARGHITEC.TURAL, LANDSC.APE, AND Ll<SHTIN<S PLANS 
AND CURRENT SPECIFICATIONS. IT IS ANTICIPATED 
THAT THE PROVIDED INFORMATION 15 PRELIMINARY 
AND SHALL BEC.OME FURTHER DEVELOPED WITH THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE C.ONSTRUC.TION DOC.UMENTS 
FOR THE FACILITY. FURTHER DEVELOPMENT MAY AND 
FIXTURE AVAILABILITY MAY RESULT IN MINOR 
AMENDMENTS, HOWEVER IT IS ANTICIPATED THAT THE 
VARIANC.ES, FIXTURE AESTHETIC.5, OVERALL 
STANDARDS OF Ll<SHT LEVELS AND LOC.ATIONS ARE 
TO BE REFINED BASED ON THIS PRELIMINARY INTENT. 

B. ALL EXTERIOR LIOOTIN<S SHALL BE SUBDUED, 
UNDERSTATED, AND INDIRECT TO MINIMIZE THE 
NE<SATIVE IMPAGTS TO SURROUNDIN<S LOTS AND 
PUBLIC. RIOOTS-OF-WAY, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 

C.. ALL EXTERIOR LIOOTIN<S SHALL BE EIOOTY-FIVE 
DE<SREES FULL C.UT-OFF FIXTURES THAT DIREC.T 
LIOOT DOWNWARD WITHOUT ANY OFF-SITE <SLARE 
WITH THE EXC.EPTION OF RESIDENTIAL OUTDOOR 
PATHWAY LIOOTIN<S, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 

D. ALL FIXTURES USED FOR EXTERIOR LIOOTIN<S SHALL 
BE LED, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 

E. ANY FIXTURE WITH AO TO 5 WATT LAMP SHALL HAVE 
A MINIMUM WMINOUS EFFICAGY OF 30 WHENS/WATT 
AND ANY FIXTURE WITH A 6 TO 15 WATT LAMP SHALL 
HAVE A MINIMUM LUMINOUS EFFICAGY OF 45 
LUMENS/WATT, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 

F. THE MAXIMUM C.ORRELATED C.OLOR TEMPERATURE 
FOR ALL PROPOSED Ll<SHTIN<S TYPES SHALL BE A 
MINIMUM OF 2400K AND SHALL NOT EXC.EED 3000K, 
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 

6. NO SURFAGE PARKIN<S LOTS AS PART OF SC.OPE. 

H. PARKIN<S LOTS, DRIVEWAYS, AND TRASH 
ENCLOSURES/AREAS SHALL BE ILLUMINATED WITH A 
MAXIMUM AVERA<SE NOT TO EXC.EED FOUR (4 FC.) 
FOOT -CANDLES OF Ll<SHT. 

I. PEDESTRIAN WALKWAYS AND STAIRGASES SHALL BE 
ILWMINATED WITH A MAXIMUM AVERA<SE NOT TO 
EXC.EED TWO (2 FC.) FOOT -CANDLES OF LIOOT OR AS 
OTHERWISE REGUIRED BY BUILDIN<S GODE. SEE 
VARIANC.E REGUEST NOTES ON SHEET E200. 

J. EXTERIOR DOORS SHALL BE ILLUMINATED WITH A 
MINIMUM MAINTAINED ONE (I Fe.) FOOT-CANDLE OF 
LIOOT, MEASURED WITHIN A FIVE (5' O") FOOT RADIUS 
ON EAC.H SIDE OF THE DOOR AT <SROUND LEVEL OR 
AS OTHERWISE REGUIRED BY BUILDIN<S GODE. SEE 
VARIANGE REGUEST NOTES ON SHEET E200 

K. IN ORDER TO MINIMIZE LIOOT TRESPASS ON ABUTTIN<S 
RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY, ILWMINATION MEASURED AT 
THE NEAREST RESIDENTIAL STRUC.TURE OR REAR 
YARD SETBAGK LINE SHALL NOT EXGEED ONE-TENTH 
(0.1 FC.) FOOT-C.ANDLE. SEE VARIANC,E REGUEST 
NOTES ON SHEET E.200. 

L. THE USE OF EXTERIOR LIOOTIN<S SHALL BE DESl<SNED 
SO THAT IT DOES NOT SPILL OVER OR ONTO 
IMPORTANT WILDLIFE HABITAT OR DELINEATED 
WETLANDS. 

M. TREE-MOUNTED 6060 PROJEC.TORS AND LANDSC.APE 
BOLLARDS ARE INTENDED TO PROVIDE MINIMUM 
ILWMINANCE ALON<S THE WALKIN<S PATH FOR SAFETY 
AND E<SREE PURPOSES. FOR THIS REASON, AE DESl<SN 
15 REGUESTIN<S A VARIANC,E FOR THE PROHIBITED 
LANDsc.APE Ll<SHTIN<S. 

N. UP-LIOOTIN<S Ac.GENT Ll<SHTIN<S WITHIN THE ENTRYWAY 
C.ANOPY WILL NOT CONTRIBUTE TO ANY FORM OF 
LIOOT POLLUTION, AS THE C.ANOPY ABOVE IT WILL 
STOP THE Ll<SHT FROM REAC.HIN<S THE SKY. FOR THIS 
REASON, AE DESl<SN 15 REGUESTIN<S A VARIANC,E FOR 
THE PROHIBITED UP-LIOOTIN<S. 

0. SEE ARGHITEc.TURAL SHEET A-2.24 TYPIC.AL DETAILS 
FOR INFORMATION ON EXAGT LIOOTIN<S MOUNTIN<S 
INTENT FOR ALL LIOOT FIXTURE TYPES. 

KEY 
VALUE 

<> 

KEYNOTE LE6END 

I. TYPE 'A' FIXTURES TYP. AT C.OLUMN 
LOC.ATIONS ALON<S PLAN 
NORTH/NORTHEAST SIDE OF BUILDIN<S. 
FIXTURES MOUNTED ON LEVELS 3, 4, 5, AND 
1. REFER TO ARGHITECTURAL SHEETS FOR 
EXAGT LOC.ATIONS OF ALL 'A' TYPE 
FIXTURES. 

2. BALC.ONIES ARE <SENERALL Y CONSISTENT 
SC.ALE AND APPROAH. A TYPIC.AL HAS 
BEEN PROVIDED. REFER TO #2/El.02. 
BALC.ONIES OC.C.UR AT LOC.ATIONS AROUND 
THE BUILDIN<S ON LEVELS 2, 3, 4, 5, AND 6. 
REFER TO ARGHITEC.TURAL SHEETS FOR 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON BALC.ONY 
LOC.ATIONS. 

3. 6060 PROJEC.TOR SPEC.IFIC. FOR 
SC.ULPTURE, RECESSED IN CEILIN<S DETAIL. 

4. LINEAR TYPE 'F' INTENDED TO BE 
C.ONGEALED WITHIN C.EILIN<S SLOT TO 
Hl<SHLIOOT METAL SC.REENIN<S. 

5. TYPE '6' INTENDED MOUNTIN<S BELOW FLOOR 
LEVEL FOR UPLIOOT <SLOW AT C.OLUMNS 
ALON<S DROP OFF AREAS. 

6. MOUNTED WITHIN DOORFRAME. 

1. TYPE 'N' THIS AREA MOUNTED BENEATH 
BRID<SE. OTHER C.EILIN<S MOUNTED FIXTURES 
ARE WITHIN LEVEL ABOVE. 

e,_ TYPE 'L' FIXTURES C.ONGEALED IN C.ANOPY 
ABOVE. 

==-r VAULT DESIG ~ GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, 1,1,c 

AE DESIGN 1L 
lnt.-gral .-.:1 Ltvhtl"II and EIKCl1ut So lut lon• 
1'1QOW•1 .. Wt<'t "'111'; O.,,~. CQ«:1101 JD) ?'11,.,0,IA 

•-·"''·°""' ""'I"''"-



MO
UN
TA
IN
 V
ILL
AG
E

BL
VD
.

5

'

5

'

5

'

FIRE/
EMERGENCY LANE

PROPOSED NEW
OS-3BR2 TOWN
TRASH HOLDING &
MAINTENANCE
BUILDING

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.0

2.8

0.0

29.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.0

0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.1

1.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.7

3.0

0.2

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.9

3.4

5.8

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.2

0.8

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.1

2.0

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

0.6

2.1

1.0

0.7

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.5

2.2

1.0

1.3

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.9

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

1.3

0.8

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

2.7

4.3

0.8

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.9

4.4

5.5

0.8

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

1.9

3.5

8.5

7.4

4.8

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.6

6.0

6.1

11.6

15.8

6.5

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

0.3

7.2

9.6

9.9

7.8

7.9

7.6

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.6

2.6

1.5

3.0

9.5

3.9

1.2

0.6

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

3.4

5.3

1.8

1.9

0.6

0.6

0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.9

0.8

3.4

0.5

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.5

1.8

0.6

0.4

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

2.0

0.3

0.5

3.0

1.4

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.8

0.4

0.9

5.3

2.9

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.6

0.0

0.0

0.6

0.1

0.2

0.4

1.0

5.2

0.4

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.0

0.1

2.5

0.2

0.2

0.4

2.0

5.4

0.4

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

7.1

2.9

0.6

2.7

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.7

9.4

2.3

1.1

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

0.8

3.7

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.5

3.1

6.7

0.8

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.0

2.2

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.9

2.1

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

1.0

0.9

1.0

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

1.6

3.8

1.0

0.3

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

1.0

4.0

1.3

1.0

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

1.0

5.4

2.3

0.1

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.4

1.0

0.1

0.4

0.3

0.9

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

2.3

3.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.5

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

4.8

7.9

6.0

6.6

9.3

8.9

8.7

8.0

2.2

4.8

2.9

7.5

4.2

3.0

8.7

3.5

1.8

7.3

6.4

1.6

6.3

3.0

7.2

1.5

5.7

8.0

3.6

3.8

1.1

3.2

12
/13

/20
22

 11
:36

:51
 A

M

FOR EXPORT

E.101
PHOTOMETRIC SITE PLAN

SCALE:

PHOTOMETRIC SITE PLAN1
E.101 1/16" = 1'-0"

AEDESIGN
Integrated Lighting and Electrical Solutions
1900 Wazee Street #205 Denver, CO 80202 303.296.3034
aedesign-inc.com Project #:5843.00

NORTH

 

 

NOTE:
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

+ + + 

+ + + + 

+ + + + 

+ + + + 

+ + + + 

+ + + + 

+ + + + 

+ + + + 

+ + + + 

+ + + + 

+ + + + 

+ + + 

+ + + 

+ + 

+ + )I( " 

+ )I( 

+ )I( 

+ )I( 

+ 

+ )I( 

+ " + 

+ + 

+ )I( " 

+ )I( 

+ )I( 

+ 

+ + )I( " 

+ + )I( 

+ + 

+ )I( 

)I( 

+ + )I( 

+ + + + 

+ + + + 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

X 

X • E 

X 

X 8E 

X 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

"' 

+ 

+ 

+ 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 
l -

X 

■E 

X 

X 

X 

"' 

+ + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + 

+ + + + )I( 

+ + + 

+ + 

+ 

" 

+ + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + t 

X + + + + + + 

X X X + + + + 

X l + + + + 

X + + + + 

X X X + + t + 

\ 
X ... X X + + + 

X X X X + t + 

X X X + + + 

X + + + + 

X + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + 

" + + + + + 

" + + + + + + 

" + + + + + + 

" + + + + + 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

" 

" 

+ 

+ 

-r 
> 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

MY, ~ 
+ ~- +\-

+ + 

+ + 

+ + 

+ + 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ + + + 

□ □ 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + 

" + + 

" 

□ □ □ 

+ + □ 

+ □ □ 

□ □ 

+ □ □ □ 

+ □ □ □ □ □ 

+ + □ □ □ □ □ 

+ + + + + □ □ 

+ + + + + □ □ + 
I 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ 

+ 

+ 

DFI 

□ 

A 
+3'1 1-10 11 

AFe A 
+3<1 
AF6 

□ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

" 

" 

□ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ + + 

+ + + 

+ + + 

+ + + 

+ + 

+ 

" 

□ □ □ 

+ + + 

+ + + 

+ + + 

+ + + 

+ + + 

+ + + 

+ + + 

+ + + 

+ + + 

+ + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

" + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + + 

+ + + + 

" + + + 

+ + 

+ 

+ + 

□ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ + + + + + + + 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

)I( 

)I( 

)I( 

□ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

EB 

ELECTRICAL cSENERAL NOTES 

A. THE PHOTOMETRIC, C,ALC,ULATION AND LOC-ATIONS 
HAVE BEEN PROVIDED BASED UPON THE AVAILABLE 
ARc-HITEC-TVRAL, LANDSc-APE, AND Ll6HTING PLANS 
AND C-URRENT SPEC-IFIC-ATIONS. IT 15 ANTIC-IPATED 
THAT THE PROVIDED INFORMATION 15 PRELIMINARY 
AND SHALL BEC-OME FURTHER DEVELOPED WITH THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE C,ONSTRUC,TION DOC-UMENTS 
FOR THE FAC-ILITY. FURTHER DEVELOPMENT MAY AND 
FIXTURE AVAILABILITY MAY RESULT IN MINOR 
AMENDMENTS, HOWEVER IT 15 ANTIC-IPATED THAT THE 
VARIANC-ES, FIX11JRE AESTHETIC-5, OVERALL 
STANDARDS OF Ll6HT LEVELS AND LOC-ATIONS ARE 
TO BE REFINED BASED ON THIS PRELIMINARY INTENT. 

B. ALL EXTERIOR Ll<SHTING SHALL BE SUBDUED, 
UNDERSTATED, AND INDIREC,T TO MINIMIZE THE 
NE6ATIVE IMPAC-TS TO 5URROUNDIN6 LOTS AND 
PUBLIC, Rl6HT5-0F-WAY, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 

C,. ALL EXTERIOR Ll6HTING SHALL BE El6HTY-FIVE 
DEGREES FULL C,UT-OFF FIXTURES THAT DIREC,T 
Ll<SHT DOWNWARD WITHOUT ANY OFF-SITE 6LARE 
WITH THE EXc-EPTION OF RESIDENTIAL OUTDOOR 
PATHWAY Ll6HTIN6, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 

D. ALL FIXTURES USED FOR EXTERIOR Ll6HTING SHALL 
BE LED, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 

E. ANY FIXTURE WITH AO TO 5 WATT LAMP SHALL HAVE 
A MINIMUM LUMINOUS EFFIC,AC,'f OF 30 LUMENS/WATT 
AND ANY FIXTURE WITH A 6 TO 15 WATT LAMP SHALL 
HAVE A MINIMUM LUMINOUS EFFIC,AC,Y OF 45 
LUMENS/WATT, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 

F. THE MAXIMUM C-ORRELA TED C,OLOR TEMPERA l1JRE 
FOR ALL PROPOSED Ll<SHTING TYPES SHALL BE A 
MINIMUM OF 2400K AND SHALL NOT EXC-EED 3000K, 
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 

6. NO SURFAC,E PARKINS LOTS AS PART OF SC-OPE. 

H. PARKINS LOTS, DRIVEWAYS, AND TRASH 
ENC-LOSURES/AREAS SHALL BE ILLUMINATED WITH A 
MAXIMUM AVERA6E NOT TO EXC-EED FOUR (4 Fe,) 
FOOT-C,ANDLES OF Ll<SHT. 

I. PEDESTRIAN WALKWAYS AND STAIRc-ASES SHALL BE 
ILLUMINATED WITH A MAXIMUM AVERA6E NOT TO 
EXC-EED TWO (2 FC,) FOOT-C,ANDLES OF LIGHT OR AS 
OTHERWISE REG1UIRED BY BUILDIN6 C,ODE. SEE 
VARIANC-E REG1UEST NOTES ON SHEET E.200 . 

.J. EXTERIOR DOORS SHALL BE ILLUMINATED WITH A 
MINIMUM MAINTAINED ONE (I Fe,) FOOT-C-ANDLE OF 
Ll6HT, MEASURED WITHIN A FIVE (5' O") FOOT RADIUS 
ON EAc-H SIDE OF THE DOOR AT 6ROUND LEVEL OR 
AS OTHERWISE REQUIRED BY BUILDING C,ODE. SEE 
VARIANC-E REG1UEST NOTES ON SHEET E.200 

K. IN ORDER TO MINIMIZE Ll6HT TRESPASS ON ABUTTING 
RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY, ILLUMINATION MEASURED AT 
THE NEAREST RESIDENTIAL STRUC,l1JRE OR REAR 
YARD SETBAC-K LINE SHALL NOT EXC-EED ONE-TENTH 
(0.1 FC,) FOOT-C,ANDLE. SEE VARIANC,E REQUEST 
NOTES ON SHEET E.200. 

L. THE USE OF EXTERIOR Ll6HTING SHALL BE DESIGNED 
50 THAT IT DOES NOT SPILL OVER OR ONTO 
IMPORTANT WILDLIFE HABITAT OR DELINEATED 
WETLANDS. 

M. TREE-MOUNTED GOBO PRO.JEC,TORS AND LANDSC-APE 
BOLLARDS ARE INTENDED TO PROVIDE MINIMUM 
ILLUMINANC-E ALONG THE WALKING PATH FOR SAFETY 
AND EGREE PURPOSES. FOR THIS REASON, AE DESIGN 
15 REGUESTIN6 A VARIANCE FOR THE PROHIBITED 
LANDSC-APE Ll<SHTING. 

N. UP-Ll6HTING AC,C,ENT Ll<SHTING WITHIN THE ENTRYWAY 
C-ANOPY WILL NOT C,ONTRIBUTE TO ANY FORM OF 
Ll6HT POLLUTION, AS THE C-ANOPY ABOVE IT WILL 
STOP THE LIGHT FROM REAC-HIN6 THE SKY. FOR THIS 
REASON, AE DESIGN 15 REQUESTING A VARIANCE FOR 
THE PROHIBITED UP-LIGHTING. 

0. SEE ARc-HITEC,lVRAL SHEET A-2.24 TYPIC-AL DETAILS 
FOR INFORMATION ON EXAc-T Ll6HTING MOUNTIN6 
INTENT FOR ALL Ll6HT FIXTURE TYPES. 

KEY 
VALUE 

KEYNOTE LEcSEND 

I. TYPE 'A' FIXTURES TYP. AT C,OLUMN 
LOC,ATIONS ALONG PLAN 
NORTH/NORTHEAST SIDE OF BUILDING. 
FIXTURES MOUNTED ON LEVELS 3, 4, 5, AND 
1. REFER TO ARc-HITEC-TURAL SHEETS FOR 
EXACT LOC,ATIONS OF ALL 'A' TYPE 
FIXTURES. 

2. BALC-ONIES ARE GENERALLY C-ONSISTENT 
SC-ALE AND APPROAH. A TYPIC-AL HAS 
BEEN PROVIDED. REFER TO #2/El.02. 
BALC-ONIES OC,C,UR AT LOC-ATIONS AROUND 
THE BUILDING ON LEVELS 2, 3, 4, 5, AND 6. 
REFER TO ARc-HITEC,lVRAL SHEETS FOR 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON BALC,ONY 
LOC-ATIONS. 

3. GOBO PRO.JEC,TOR SPEC,IFIC, FOR 
SC-ULP11JRE, REC-ESSED IN C-EILING DETAIL. 

4. LINEAR TYPE 'F' INTENDED TO BE 
C,ONC,EALED HITHIN C,EILING SLOT TO 
Hl<SHLIGHT METAL SC-REENING. 

5. TYPE 'G' INTENDED MOUNTING BELOW FLOOR 
LEVEL FOR UPLl6HT GLOH AT C,OLUMNS 
ALONG DROP OFF AREAS. 

6. MOUNTED HITHIN DOORFRAME. 

1. TYPE 'N' THIS AREA MOUNTED BENEATH 
BRIDGE. OTHER C,EILING MOUNTED FIXTURES 
ARE HITHIN LEVEL ABOVE. 

8. TYPE 'L' FIXTURES C,ONC,EALED IN C,ANOPY 
ABOVE. 

==-r VAULT OESIG r-.J GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

AE DESIGN 1L 
lnt'"9"at...i l\whtl1t11 and El..::tr1u1 !k:, iutlon• 
1'111,l wo.,, .. ~11 ... 1 "111', ~-. W-.UOZ ,IO) 191,.JO..W 
.-., .... ,.<Off' ""'J"'' "-



0.0

0.0

7.1

0.1

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.4

0.4

3.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.3

19.6

7.5

0.4

1.1

1.5

0.1

0.2

42.0

0.1

3.9

0.1

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.8

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

4.6

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.2

3.5

14.8

0.4

28.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.6

16.2

10.1

0.2

3.0

0.2

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.2

7.1

10.1

0.1

1.8

1.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

3.5

0.7

0.2

0.2

6.0

13.3

8.7

0.1

3.0

2.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.4

1.0

0.3

0.4

1.3

6.6

8.5

12.5

11.1

0.6

3.7

0.8

0.5

1.3

0.6

0.5

7.1

8.1

2.9

9.8

10.5

10.3

8.3

0.9

4.6

1.9

30.7

1.9

0.7

4.9

1.8

1.9

7.8

11.9

8.9

4.4

3.4

0.7

1.0

11.9

11.0

7.9

0.3

0.9

14.2

8.1

9.6

1.9

12.4

6.1

10.1

8.1

8.8

5.3

5.5

5.3

5.3

6.5

4.6

0.0

0.0

6.4

9.8

10.1

0.0

0.0

5.4

9.7

10.8

0.0

0.0

7.6

9.1

10.5

0.0

0.0

5.4

7.8

7.5

0.0

0.0

5.2

4.8

3.9

0.0

0.0

5.3

4.2

6.9

0.0

0.0

5.8

9.3

10.1

0.0

0.0

7.5

9.0

10.9

0.0

0.0

3.9

3.7

8.8

0.0

0.0

5.3

5.8

8.0

3.2

6.8

5.4

6.4

7.8

8.0

6.5

2.9

5.6

7.1

0.5

1.6

3.5

0.7

0.2

0.9

0.4

0.2

4.3

2.2

0.9

7.5

7.5

6.2

6.6

7.9

7.9

6.8

8' - 0
"

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

15.3

0.8

1.3

1.2

0.4

3.0

0.9

0.3

4.2

0.6

0.7

0.2

0.6

3.0

0.6

5.7

2.4

0.6

6.9

0.7

0.3

0.6

0.0

0.3

0.3

0.3

2.7

2.3

4.6

6.5 2.3

12
/13

/20
22

 11
:36

:51
 A

M

FOR EXPORT

E.102
POOL DECK & BALCONY
PHOTOMETRIC

SCALE:

POOL DECK PHOTOMETRIC1
E.102 1/16" = 1'-0"

AEDESIGN
Integrated Lighting and Electrical Solutions
1900 Wazee Street #205 Denver, CO 80202 303.296.3034
aedesign-inc.com Project #:5843.00

NORTHSCALE:

BALCONY PHOTOMETRIC2
E.102 1/16" = 1'-0"

NORTHSCALE:

ROOFTOP GARDEN PHOTOMETRIC3
E.102 1/16" = 1'-0"NORTH

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE:
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

'' ' 

E9 E9 

• 
\ / 

\ y 
\ 
' ' 

"' \ \ '>"" \ \ 

/ 

A. 

\ 
B. 

G,_ 

D. 

E. 

F. 

6. 

H. 

I. 

J. 

K . 

L. 

E9 M. 

N. 

0. 

KEY 
VALUE 

<> 
I. 

2. 

ELEGTRIGAL GENERAL NOTES 

THE PHOTOMETRIC CALCULATION AND LOCATIONS 
HAVE BEEN PROVIDED BASED UPON THE AVAILABLE 
ARC.HITEGTIJRAL, LANDSCAPE, AND Ll6HTIN6 PLANS 
AND CURRENT SPECIFICATIONS. IT IS ANTICIPATED 
THAT THE PROVIDED INFORMATION IS PRELIMINARY 
AND SHALL BEWME FURTHER DEVELOPED HITH THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 
FOR THE FACILITY. FURTHER DEVELOPMENT MAY AND 
FIXTURE AVAILABILITY MAY RESULT IN MINOR 
AMENDMENTS, HOHEVER IT IS ANTICIPATED THAT THE 
VARIANCES, FIXTURE AESTHETICS, OVERALL 
STANDARDS OF Ll6HT LEVELS AND LOCATIONS ARE 
TO BE REFINED BASED ON THIS PRELIMINARY INTENT. 

ALL EXTERIOR Ll6HTIN6 SHALL BE SUBDUED, 
UNDERSTATED, AND INDIRECT TO MINIMIZE THE 
NE6ATIVE IMPACTS TO SURROUNDIN6 LOTS AND 
PUBLIC Rl6HTS---OF-J,,IAY, UNLESS OTHERHISE NOTED. 

ALL EXTERIOR Ll6HTIN6 SHALL BE El6HTY-FIVE 
DE6REES FULL GUT-OFF FIXTIJRES THAT DIRECT 
Ll6HT DOJ,,INJ,,IARD HITHOUT ANY OFF-SITE 6LARE 
HITH THE EXCEPTION OF RESIDENTIAL OUTDOOR 
PATHHAY Ll6HTIN6, UNLESS OTHERHISE NOTED. 

ALL FIXTURES USED FOR EXTERIOR Ll6HTIN6 SHALL 
BE LED, UNLESS OTHERHISE NOTED. 

ANY FIXTURE HITH AO TO 5 J,,IATT LAMP SHALL HAVE 
A MINIMUM LUMINOUS EFFICACY OF :30 LUMENSMATT 
AND ANY FIXTURE HITH A b TO 15 HATT LAMP SHALL 
HAVE A MINIMUM LUMINOUS EFFICACY OF 45 
WMENSMATT, UNLESS OTHERJ,,IISE NOTED. 

THE MAXIMUM CORRELATED COLOR TEMPERATURE 
FOR ALL PROPOSED Ll6HTIN6 TYPES SHALL BE A 
MINIMUM OF 2400K AND SHALL NOT EXCEED 3000K, 
UNLESS OTHERHISE NOTED. 

NO SURFACE PARKIN6 LOTS AS PART OF SGOPE. 

PARKIN6 LOTS, DRIVEHAYS, AND TRASH 
ENCLOSURES/AREAS SHALL BE ILLUMINATED HITH A 
MAXIMUM AVERA6E NOT TO EXCEED FOUR (4 FG) 
FOOT-C.ANDLES OF Ll6HT. 

PEDESTRIAN J,,IALKJ,,IAYS AND STAIRCASES SHALL BE 
ILLUMINATED HITH A MAXIMUM AVERA6E NOT TO 
EXCEED TJ,,IO (2 FG) FOOT-CANDLES OF Ll6HT OR AS 
OTHERHISE REQUIRED BY BUILDIN6 GODE. SEE 
VARIANCE REQUEST NOTES ON SHEET E.200. 

EXTERIOR DOORS SHALL BE ILLUMINATED HITH A 
MINIMUM MAINTAINED ONE (I FG) FOOT-CANDLE OF 
Ll6HT, MEASURED HITHIN A FIVE (5' O") FOOT RADIUS 
ON EACH SIDE OF THE DOOR AT 6ROUND LEVEL OR 
AS OTHERHISE REQUIRED BY BUILDIN6 GODE. SEE 
VARIANCE REQUEST NOTES ON SHEET E.200 

IN ORDER TO MINIMIZE Ll6HT TRESPASS ON ABUTTIN6 
RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY, ILLUMINATION MEASURED AT 
THE NEAREST RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE OR REAR 
YARD SETBACK LINE SHALL NOT EXCEED ONE-TENTH 
(O.I FG) FOOT-CANDLE. SEE VARIANCE REQUEST 
NOTES ON SHEET E.200. 

THE USE OF EXTERIOR Ll6HTIN6 SHALL BE DESl6NED 
SO THAT IT DOES NOT SPILL OVER OR ONTO 
IMPORTANT HILDLIFE HABITAT OR DELINEATED 
HETLANDS. 

TREE-MOUNTED 6060 PROJECTORS AND LANDSGAPE 
BOLLARDS ARE INTENDED TO PROVIDE MINIMUM 
ILLUMINANGE ALON6 THE J,,IALKIN6 PATH FOR SAFETY 
AND E6REE PURPOSES. FOR THIS REASON, AE DESl6N 
IS REQUESTIN6 A VARIANCE FOR THE PROHIBITED 
LANDSGAPE Ll6HTIN6. 

UP-Ll6HTIN6 AGGENT Ll6HTIN6 HITHIN THE ENTRYHAY 
CANOPY HILL NOT CONTRIBUTE TO ANY FORM OF 
Ll6HT POLLUTION, AS THE CANOPY ABOVE IT HILL 
STOP THE Ll6HT FROM REACHIN6 THE SKY. FOR THIS 
REASON, AE DESl6N IS REQUESTIN6 A VARIANCE FOR 
THE PROHIBITED UP-Ll6HTIN6. 

SEE ARC.HITEGTURAL SHEET A-2.24 TYPICAL DETAILS 
FOR INFORMATION ON EXACT Ll6HTIN6 MOIJNTIN6 
INTENT FOR ALL Ll6HT FIXTURE TYPES. 

KEYNOTE LEGEND 

HOT TUB AND POOL Ll6HTIN6 BY 
CONSULTANT. 

LINEAR POOL NICHE Ll6HT IS ANTICIPATED 
TO BE INSTALLED IN POCKET BELOH LED6E, 
NON-GONTRIBUTIN6 ON POOL DECK Ll6HT 
LEVEL. 

==-r VAULT OESIG r-.J GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, 1,1,C 

AE DESIGN 1L 
lnt'"9"at...i l\whtl1t11 and El..::tr1u1 !k:, iutlon• 
1'111,lwo.,, .. ~11 ... 1 r1ll'; ~-. W-.UOZ ,IOl 191,.JO..W 
.-., .... ,.<Off' ""'J"'' "-



Statistics
Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min
DRIVEWAY 0.1 fc 1.3 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A
MEZZ. DRIVEWAY 4.4 fc 8.7 fc 1.1 fc 7.9:1 4.0:1
OVERALL 0.3 fc 29.7 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A
PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE 7.5 fc 9.3 fc 4.8 fc 1.9:1 1.6:1
TRASH AREA 0.8 fc 29.7 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A
WALKWAY 2.0 fc 15.8 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A
WALKWAY NEAR STREET 1.2 fc 6.7 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min

BALCONY - LARGE 7.5 fc 9.2 fc 4.7 fc 2.0:1 1.6:1
BALCONY - SMALL 4.6 fc 8.0 fc 1.1 fc 7.3:1 4.2:1
LOWER STAIRS 5.4 fc 6.5 fc 4.6 fc 1.4:1 1.2:1
POOL DECK 3.8 fc 42.0 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A
ROOFTOP GARDEN 2.4 fc 26.8 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A
UPPER STAIRS 4.4 fc 10.9 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A

12
/13

/20
22

 11
:36

:51
 A

M

FOR EXPORT

E.200

PHOTOMETRIC
SCHEDULES

AEDESIGN
Integrated Lighting and Electrical Solutions
1900 Wazee Street #205 Denver, CO 80202 303.296.3034
aedesign-inc.com Project #:5843.00

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE:
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

0 

<a> 

<a> 

GENERAL NOTES 

A. PROPERTY LINE IS DIRECTLY 
ADJACENT TO BUILDIN6, Ll6HT LEVELS 
HAVE BEEN LIMITED TO EXTENT 
POSSIBLE, BUT IN SELECT AREAS 
EXCEED MAXIMUM. 

VARIANCE REQUEST KEYNOTES 

KEY 
VALUE 

<> 
I. REQUESTED LPH VARIANCE FOR 

SPECIFIC APFLICA TION OF FIXTURE. 
SPECIFIC FIXTURES INDICATED WHERE 
LPH EFFICACY IS JUST BELOW 
INDICATED REQUIREMENTS, BUT ARE 
ON-BOARD LED (NOT-SGREH BASE 
FIXTURES). 

2. PEDESTRIAN WALKWAYS AND STAIRS 
ARE VIA PRIMARY Ll6HTIN6 SOURCE 
THESE AREAS EXCEED 2 FC MAXIMUM. 

)K 

+ 
+ 
+ 
X 
□ 
□ 

+ 
+ 
+ 
+ 
+ 
+ 

LIGHTING FIXTURE SCHEDULE 
TYPE DESGRIPTION MANUFACTURER CA TAL06 NUMBER SOURCE MAX WMEN DIMMIN6 FIXTURE MOUNTIN6 

QTY WATT TYPE CCT/CRI WATTS OUTRJT FINISH LOCATION 
DF-I DECORATIVE LED WALL-MOUNTED SGONCE, WMENS R33<1Gf25 I IIH LED 2100K I <IO+ II VA OOOLM 0-IOV COSTAL SURFACE 

FULL CUTOFF, DIRECT ONLY BLACK WALL 
SORAA SAl<f-ll-OMNl-<121-0I 

A 3-INCH DIAMETER SURFACE-MOUNTED LED B-Ll6HT OKKIO 80 CL- 65252-U-D- 6H LED 2400K I <10+ 6VA 110LM 0-IOV BLACK SURFACE 
CYLINDER HITH CUSTOM 4-DE6REE BEAM [MODIFY WITH 4-DESREE]-2- CEILIN6 
AN6LE, DIMMIN6 C--6<:fO<fl 

B 2.5-INCH DIAMETER TREE-STRAP-MOUNTED LED FIXED BEACHSIDE Ll6HTIN6 L-OII-P-8H-FL-21-I20V 8 H LED 2400K I <10+ 8VA 3<10 LM 0-IOV BRASS SURFACE 
DARK-SKY COMPLIANT 6060 PROJECTOR -TMJBX <l> TREE 
AND 25-DE6REE BEAM AN6LE, DIMMIN6 SORAA l/2CTO SNAP LENS - 2400K STRAP 

C 3-INCH DIAMETER RECESSED DOHNLl6HT HITH B-Ll6HT ATRIA XS R--660<16-U-[CUST 2400 r--l I IOH LED 2400K I <10+ IOVA 160 LM 0-IOV BLACK RECESSED 
30-DESREE BEAM AN6LE AND HONEYCOMB -4-2-C-6<1818 CEILIN6 
LOUVER, DIMMIN6 

D 551 MM LON6 SURFACE-MOUNTED LINEAR LED B-Ll6HT LINEAR TUBE SLIM 614-62-R- q H LED 2400K I <10+ Gf VA 2<10 LM 0-IOV SREY SURFACE 
CONCEALED STEP Ll6HT, DIMMIN6 [CUST 2400KJ-1-B ANODIZED 

E 10" TALL LED PATH Ll6HT, DIFFUSED B-Ll6HT TONDO 80 - 245LM 5H LED 2400K I <10+ 5 VA 245 LM 0-IOV POWDER SURFACE 
DIMMIN6 <l> COATED PLANTER 

El 10" TALL LED PATH Ll6HT, DIFFUSED B-Ll6HT TONDO 80 - 245LM 5H LED 2400K I <IO+ 5 VA 245 LM 0-IOV POWDER SURFACE 
DIMMIN6 COATED PLANTER 

F 1/2-INCH HIDE SURFACE-MOUNTED LED Q-TRAN ANYBEND-SH-HSG-WET-24- IH LED 2400K I <10+ I VA 4<:f LM 0-IOV WHITE SURFACE 
CONCEALED CURVABLE LINEAR, STANDARD so CEILIN6 
OUTFUT, DIMMIN6 

6 I/2-INCH HIDE SURFACE-MOUNTED LED Q-TRAN ANYBEND-SH-HSG-WET-24- 4H LED 2400K I <10+ 4VA 253 LM 0-IOV WHITE SURFACE 
CONCEALED CURVABLE LINEAR, VERY Hl6H VHO CEILIN6 
OUTFUT, DIMMIN6 

H 4-INCH DIAMETER ROUND LED RECESSED STEP B-Ll6HT ATRIA FH-66I2<:f-R-[C.UST 5H LED 2400K I <10+ 5 VA 360 LM 0-IOV SREY RECESSED 
Ll6HT, DIMMIN6 2400K]-H-I WALL 

J 1/2-INCH HIDE SURFACE-MOUNTED LED Q-TRAN ANYBEND-SH-HSG-WET-24- IH LED 2400K I <10+ I VA 4'1 LM 0-IOV WHITE SURFACE 
CONCEALED CURVABLE LINEAR, STANDARD SO-PPS-<16 <l> CEILIN6 
OUTFUT, DIMMIN6 

L 2 1/4-INCH APERTURE SQUARE LED SURFACE- B-Ll6HT KUBO 54-664I5-U-[CUST 5H LED 2400K I <10+ 5 VA 210LM 0-IOV BLACK SURFACE 
MOUNTED CYLINDER, DIMMIN6 2400K]-4-Q WALL 

M I I/3-INCH HIDE LINEAR LED SURFACE-MOUNTED VANILLA LED MODULE -LINE - [LEN6TH] - Gf 5H LED 2400K I <10+ 5 VA <fl LM 0-IOV BLACK SURFACE 
HALL BRAZER, DIMMIN6 - [C.UST 2400K] - ML 

N 2.5-INCH DIAMETER RECESSED DOHNLl6HT B-Ll6HT ATRIA 60 P-660Gf8-U-[ClJST 2400 !(] I 6H LED 2400K I <IO+ 6 VA 550LM 0-IOV BLACK RECESSED 
HITH 50-DESREE BEAM AN6LE AND -5-2-C-6<:fO<fO CEILIN6 
HONEYCOMB LOWER, DIMMIN6 

Q 3/4-INCH HIDE SURFACE-MOUNTED UNDERWATER Q-TRAN FLS-SH-PS-P-21-HB-Gf0-3b- 3b H LED 2100K I <10+ 3bVA 85 LM 0-IOV WHITE SURFACE 
POOL I SPA LINEAR LED, DIMMIN6 DIM-FC-[LEN6TH]-DIM-FC- PERLF PERLF PERLF POOL 

[LEN6TH] W MOUNTIN6 TRACK 
R I23MM HIDE SURFACE-MOUNTED 6000 PROJECTOR ROSCO IMA6E SPOT 2'16 0001 0030 + 45 H LED 3000K I <fO, 45VA 2400 LM DMX BLACK SURFACE 

HITH COLOR FILTER FOR 2200K COLOR TEMPERATURE 6000 

ABBREVIATIONS, OOF - BOTTOM OF FIXTURE, RFD - RECESSED FIXTURE DEPTH, OFH - OVERALL FIXTURE HEl6HT, AFF(AF6) - ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR (BRADE), HFD - WALL FIXTURE DEPTH 
6ENERAL NOTES, 

A. ALL REFLECTOR LAMPS SHALL BE PROVIDED AS HIDE FLOOD DISTRIBUTION, UON. 
B. LUMENS LISTED ARE DELIVERED LUMENS, NOT INITIAL. 
C. FOR ALL SPECIFIED LUMINAIRES, THE ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDIN6 ALL MOUNTIN6 HARDWARE, ACCESSORIES, COMPONENTS, LEADER/JUMPER CABLES, HIRE FEED, 

CONNECTORS, END CAPS, REMOTE POWER SUPFLIES, AND ANY OTHER NECESSARY COMPONENT AS REQUIRED FOR INSTALLIN6 A SECURE AND FULLY FUNCTIONAL SYSTEM. 
D. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE CEILIN6 TYPE BEFORE ORDERIN6 Ll6HT FIXTURES TO ENSURE COMPATIBILITY HITH SPECIFIED FIXTURES. NOTIFY SPECIFI~ ANY DISGREPANCIES. 
E. ALL FINISH SELECTIONS SHALL BE VERIFIED BY ARCHITECT/INTERIOR DESl6NER/OHNER AS PART OF THE SUBMITTAL PROCESS. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, EC ~L ASSUME STANDARD LUMINAIRE 

FINISH OPTION FOR PRICIN6. 
F. EC SHALL VERIFY ALL FIXTURE MOUNTIN6 HEl6HTS HITH ARCHITECTURAL ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO ANY ROU6H-IN. 
6. REMOTE DRIVER(S)/TRANSFORMER(S) SHALL BE LOCATED IN A CONCEALED, ACCESSIBLE, AND VENTILATED LOCATION AS PROPOSED BY THE EC AND APFROVED BY THE ARCHITECT. 

REFER TO THE MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS FOR MINIMUM REQUIRED CLEARANCES FROM ADJACENT MATERIALS, AND HIRIN6 REQUIREMENTS TO PREVENT VOLTA6E DROP. 
DO NOT EXCEED MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS RE6ARDIN6 HIRE 6A6E AND MAXIMUM HIRE RUN LEN6THS. 

H. FOR LUMINAIRES SPECIFIED HITH 0-IOV DIMMIN6, 0-IOV DIMMIN6 DRIVER(S) REQUIRE ADDITIONAL LOH VOLTA6E CONTROL HIRES IN ADDITION TO STANDARD HIRIN6 FOR POWER. 
I. EXTERIOR LUMINAIRES SHALL BE COLD HEATHER RATED FOR O DE6. F / -18 DE6. C., AND RATED FOR OUTDOOR USE. 

SPECIFIC NOTES, 
I. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE FIXTURE MOUNTIN6 TYPE HITH SPECIFIED CEILIN6 SYSTEM PRIOR TO PROCUREMENT. 

2. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE FIXTURE LEN6THS FOR CONTINUOUS ILLUMINATION (USIN6 3' AND 4' FIXTURE LEN6THS ONLY). 
3. FIXTURE SUITABLE FOR AIR PLENUM RETURN. 
4. FIXTURE UL LISTED FOR DAMP LOCATION. 
5. FIXTURE UL LISTED FOR WET LOCATION. 
6. NO SUBSTITUTIONS TO Ll6HTIN6 DESl6NER'S SPECIFICATIONS UNLESS APFROVED BY Ll6HTIN6 DESl6NER. 
1. CUSTOM COLOR TO MATCH SAMPLE SUBMITTED BY ARCHITECT. 
8. FOR ALL SPECIFIED LUMINAIRES, THE ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDIN6 ALL MOUNTIN6 HARDWARE, ACCESSORIES, COMPONENTS, LEADER/JUMPER CABLES, HIRE FEED, 

CONNECTORS, END CAPS, REMOTE POWER SUPFLIES, AND ANY OTHER NECESSARY COMPONENT AS REQUIRED FOR INSTALLIN6 A SECURE AND FULLY FUNCTIONAL SYSTEM. 
Gf. FURNISH IN LEN6THS AS INDICATED ON ARCHITECTURAL DRAHIN6S. 

10. FIXTURE TO BE MODIFIED FOR HHITE PAINTED LOUVERS. 
II. FIXTRES TO BE MOUNTED HITH LAMPS ORIENTED AS INDICATED ON DRAHIN6S. 

12. SEE ARCHITECTURAL DRAHIN6S FOR Ll6HT FIXTURE MOUNTIN6 DETAILS. 
13. REMOTE DRIVER(S)/TRANSFORMER(S) SHALL BE LOCATED IN A CONCEALED, ACCESSIBLE, AND VENTILATED LOCATION AS PROPOSED BY THE EC AND APFROVED BY THE ARCHITECT. 
14. MUST MEET APFLICABLE TELLURIDE, COLORADO ELECTRICAL CODES. 
15. 6G SUPFL Y HITH CAPABLE DIMMABLE DRIVER OR REMOTE TRANSFORMER AS REQUIRED FOR THE FIXTURES INDICATED AS DIMMABLE. 

==-r VAULT OESIG r-.J GROUP 

INFORMATION NOTES 
BOF/RFD/OFH 

OFH 11 4 11 5, 6, 
13, 14 

OFH 0'-5 1/4" 5, 6, 

~ 13, 14 

AF6 12'-0" 5, 6, 
13, 14 Uncompahgre 

Engineering, 1,1,C 

RFD 0'-4 3/4" 5, 6, 
14 

• BOF 3 1-0 11 5, b, 
13, 14 

tv1ARPA 
OFH 0'-4 1/8" 5, b, "'~""-'~''"""'" 

13, 14 

OFH 1'-1 5/8" 5, 6, AE DESIGN 1L 
13, 14 lnt'"9"at...i l\whtl1t11 and El..::tr1u1 !k:, iutlon• 

1'111,l w o.,, .. ~11 ... 1 r1ll'; ~-. W-.UOZ ,IOl 191,.JO..W 
.-., .... ,.<Off' ""'J"''"-

OFH 0'-0 1/3" 5, b, 
13, 14 

OFH 0'-0 1/3" 5, 6, 
13, 14 

BOF 2 1-0 11 5, b, 
RFD 0'-4" 14 

OFH 0'-0 1/3" 5, b, 
13, 14 

OFH 0'-2 1/4" 5,6 
14 

OFH 0'-0 3/4" 5,6 
BOF ct'-0 11 14 

RFD 0'-2 3/4" 5,6 
14 

OFH 0'-3/4" 5,6 
14 

OFH 0'-4 1/4" 5,6 
14 



12
/13

/20
22

 11
:36

:51
 A

M

FOR EXPORT

E.201

PHOTOMETRIC
CUTSHEETS

AEDESIGN
Integrated Lighting and Electrical Solutions
1900 Wazee Street #205 Denver, CO 80202 303.296.3034
aedesign-inc.com Project #:5843.00

SCALE:

TYPE A2
E.201 N.T.S. SCALE:

TYPE B3
E.201 N.T.S. SCALE:

TYPE C4
E.201 N.T.S.

SCALE:

TYPE D5
E.201 N.T.S. SCALE:

TYPE E, E16
E.201 N.T.S. SCALE:

TYPE F, G, J7
E.201 N.T.S. SCALE:

TYPE H8
E.201 N.T.S.

SCALE:

TYPE L9
E.201 N.T.S. SCALE:

TYPE M10
E.201 N.T.S. SCALE:

TYPE N11
E.201 N.T.S.

SCALE:

TYPE DF-11
E.201 N.T.S.

SCALE:

TYPE R11
E.201 N.T.S. SCALE:

TYPE Q11
E.201 N.T.S.

NOTE:
NO UPDATES ARE INCORPORATED FOR LANDSCAPE OR LIGHTING IN THIS 
SUBMITTAL. PER FINAL DRB CONDITIONS, LANDSCAPE AND PHOTOMETRICS 
TO BE FINALIZED WITH STAFF REVIEW PRIOR TO PERMIT. ANY DRAWING 
INCONSISTENCIES WILL BE ADDRESSED WITH FINAL APPROVED LANDSCAPE 
AND LIGHTING DESIGN WHEN APPROVAL IS OBTAINED. FINAL COORDINATION 
OF DRAWINGS TO OCCUR PRIOR TO PERMIT. 

SEAL

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
2770 ARAPAHOE RD, STE 132, 

LAFAYETTE, CO 80026

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING

06.01.2023

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 12.16.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL FIRST READING 07.19.2023

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
, 
C

O

S
IX

 S
E

N
S
E

S
 H

O
T

E
L

Hood Outdoor Tall Dark Sky Wall Sconce 
By Hubbardton Forge 

Hood Outdoor Tall Dork Skv Wall Scooico 
B, Hubbanllnn F'u,ye 

Product Options 

Canopy/ Socket I Stem Finish, Coastru Black 

Detail, 

Commcrelol/Res1dcntlal USC 

Hom;l,;r.;J'te,;l 

Oesigne<linlDll 
Mirlenal: ,llumloum 
Sh.ode Motorio1/ilinuinum 
Dil:ll01ol,lowlloll woll "itll ~ Slonllor<l Dimmor INol lllolulloilJ 
!Jt!IIIilllltion Typo, J[arowlrod 
L!l.l.b\todWot 

Dim~ns:ions 

Backplate: Width 10", He:ight 32" 
Fixture , Width 15", Height .~2 ", Dept.h 32" 

lighting 

Lamp TJIPe 

Tol.alLume.n, 

Bulh1)J,e 

~olts 

C',olnrTlllllp 

Average 
l.ifsapan 

~quivalanl 
Halogen, CFL ar 
LED Bu.lb Can 
Be Used 

Addil.ional Details 

1490,0 

1 (Not Included) 

72WA1~E25 

l<O 

2900 (Roft White) 

'"" 

Proctucl URL, 
https:/IWWW.l\llllellS.CO!D/hood-outdoor-tall-ctEII'k·slcy-wa 

ll-sconce-by-hubbardton-forge-R33992.5.html 

Ratln![, UL Llrted Wet 

ITEM#, RJ39925 

SIX SENSES TELLURIDE 
TYPE"D" 
Page 1 of 3 

SIX SENSES TELLURIDE 
TYPE"L' 
Page1 of2 

LWMENS 

Prepared 
by, 

P,cyi,rc<.fo~ 
!>:,,Jecta 
Rem• 

SIX SENSES TELLURIDE 
TYPE "DF-1" 
Page 1 of 1 

Supply with LED 
A19 or Par 20. 
TBD by AE team. 
11 watt, 2700k 

12400K 

12400K 

""w.b llghtc 

SIX SENSES TELLURIDE 
TYPEftA" 
Page 1 of2 

LIN EAR TUBE SLIM 
SPECIAGATIONS 

basem,~ ?74 

l\lD0I·"1'1 Co111)cct, inc,r SJmlcc urn·neirc ·Mtl1 sy·nr-clricol light di.stIibulion 

roou -,r~ Via spricg r:li~s (cnde Mfl13) oraia '-"Cu(ly h=ke.s (rnde 69f01) 
to "",eoo -~· orcerec as cccessorles 

lanalh Av:llable ·n t.w,"e lengths. IMr- 30110 3051 m- /from ~.8S"to 12:i.r;:· 

J",rncL, 24 nm /C.94" 

<:<:n>LI .cUon b:truded alum·num l'xture. ~nd caps In :cmlng ar.::t milling a um·num 
o· stai·less -el A ISI ]161. m mr- ete v,;1h silic.one gaske1s 
Dmuserln rrcsced PMMA Blclcsure ·n1ran,paren1 pol)'C'lrMn,te 

~g·es, o·oteclon IP67. Built-In prot<aclJoo frarr wat-,r ·n1Itra~on and moisture 

lamp lyX' . i11ellr Lei) ar·ay or, orinko<J :.irrnil lx>arcJ. K~ L 2c,O rr11ll 19.84' 
PCB Increment 250 rim/ ~.84" - 3000 r,rr i ~8.11" TO>:. 
O.ornrr dlmerslcns c, request Remo:,, pr,wer sur,ply net lncVad 

LED µ.ch 4,t. mm /0.18' ,:224 LcLJ, :,.,r ,ieler) 

lamp,,,.tto<;~ Fr<:T 4,5W:o 54\'/ "14811 DC. North Amcricc 24V DC 

lamp lumen< PCB L2'iQ: 2700K l:Rl93 -400m, 3QOOK Oil'l:l 4()()I,n, 400CK CR l~:l 4:lalm 

:ell·,~red lurr,ens 

lunon ,ialnl<lnan<>'I 

«elvin 

K-< • 7°";: ~\IOl-r (:J<Kl()K C~I9".J) 

50.000h L90 
Diffu.,.d 

:070JK CRl93,3CK)l)K CRl93 a·d 40COK CRl93/3 step MacAd,m elllose 

~,me pclartty p,otect loo - "'No wires dlm11·ny 

Dltfu'«' and mmI1leacelv hornoge·c.s lght r1Istrlbu1on acmss the entire s1Jrfa<:<a 

P .. ,·1 bllllor,, µol~rilicrri~ler, 1-10V, DALI, DMX, KNX 
Di11m ng options oeoend or power supply and aclditional control units 

to ""'seaa·,rtety orcerec as accessories 
'10100""' Cle. UL 1038.CSACZI.;> 

OIIEJ 
REFER TO ARCH SHEET 
A-2.24 FOR TYPED DETAIL 

KUBO 54 W / KUBO 54 WZ 
SPECIFICATIONS 

""'""""~ G&-115/XX KU30 5~ I'/ - 66-116 KU30 6-1 W2 
:ypo ogy Vtal l •rcurileoJ ur11 i•"' re ,,;U, I :ril en:iss iuri on or·e side ,:KUBO 54 v.: m Lwu 

side, dlroc: I1[,tlt """ l1d lr<'cl l lght,)(UBO 51 W2'; 

w1'1th 54 -rr / 2.13" 

depth KUil[) 'i4 W: 54mni .1:e .1:, • 

KUBO 54 W2: fj2 mm 12.44" 

h8'oht KUB051W:5~mmi:e.13• 

ccns<,uc1'•>n I ixtur>e: turri'r,g and milling" uminum. L.ens: H.1MA. 

lmc lumens 

d, '. iv,,r,,c IUlll@<l> 

lum•n rra'rl• ranc• 

k~Mn 

soccral features 

dinuning Dl'ri.Tos 

Protective glass 1, PMMA comple.e wtlh sIIIcon~ gasket 

lr67 N,,·.II1 Ame,,.,,""" k·_,,ai,·.,. Buila ol r,orAcUon lrtlm "'''"' in! I,.w,n ~--,ct cic;sL,_,.,, 

LW array on pn-tee circur. i>Nlrj_ ~emo-.e r>C"'N ,uopty not Included 

KUBO ,4W 5Wcrt3.&:JmA 

KUBO 5l W2:1W/ ~I direct ligl;·t ,rnl 5W iedi•e<.tligl;rt) at 350 mA 

KUBO 54 W: 420Irr - KUBO 54 W2: 840Im 

KURO 5l W-. ?70Im POOOK (R1~J. 36j - KURO y1 l'/?c 5-10Irn f3000K f.JllH 361 

,;oooon L90 
15", 36".45" 

2400K CRl93 I 3 :;tq: Moo>.dam cllii;~c 

Unpclertzed electrorlc system 124VOC: ...,.,,rse pclcrr,r prote..Wnl -sorewIMog 
'-8VOC. ]AN cc Tl,em ,al Seroar - T V/0 ·..;,e:; dimming· Wat a- S:00 led11101o;w 

Push button. potemfcrret~r. U-IUV,DJ\U, C·MX. KNX 
Din,ining0plkoisde;e11d on pc,w~· suppt, arid aJciior,a l wnllol uri ils 10 00 

NOTE, DOWNLIGl--ff lis110gs 

'"f"''ate,ty orrt~re,r1 as acc,,s,;,,,l~s 

CE , ETL l&eci tu• wet k;u,tian 

KLOO S,W 

REFER TD ARCH SHEET 
A-2.24 FOR TYPE L DETAIL 

2 6 3 

-OKKJO 80 CL / OKKJO 80 AD ~ LUS 

$:_""$ 
SPECIFICAllONS 

boso ro:ie ~~2.52 OKKl080CL Gr,302 OKKIOSO AC 

t'PO 0£\' (; ere lree e<eil ing rnuu11Ling lur·1i11ai•e. Adi.slallle I;gI ,I_ dislribujon IUr ~<-OO ~O AIJ 

,cuntJog To c,alllng us'ns mocntlng pla:@ 

rli,,,,_ 80mm/S.'5' 

I·dg1t 130nm,/5.12' 

c:onstructJon F'>cturc,: turni ns and rrill i•g ~lunin,m 

·iaishe, Frnvrlar ma"'d 
iri:ires, prlte<.;Liun OKKIO RO r.l : IP.'lO, IP!~ CK Ipr,r, 

OKKIO 80AO: IP3C 
,np type COB. Remole µo....,r supply noL induded 

mpwaru_,. 1CWel~UOn""-Vf11.WDC. 
C,,,•ro mlc whtte: Mo>:"mum wot.age ION {Cf-11 + C --12 max ·w1,-one chon·el max 10\IVJ 

1•111' IIJ'M"S 980 I~ 

dc·"'CW 1,,,.,-, 8451m [30") · 93alm (EO")-<J?Oln("ID') 

lumen r-a'1len,nce 50,000C L91'.l 

b•,, 30', SC', 7CI'. OKKIO SOAD 355' roialio7 and 90' tiC" 
~ W>tatlan va base andtool~ss MJ Listm~1t1nathC•d CIOSIOOn with prenron 

~ l<et1 in :,:,or.K C.RHl. :>7-:J·JK mm, :mr.oK r.R9:l.4000K C.Rl8.'l/3.sl~pMacMa-, ellf>Se 

cr Dynamic "'11ite ~SOOK - 4000K) CRl93 
speci,IINtures Safowiriny - T,,c,v,;•es dim, i11(;. 

O<all'-"rsg lare fre& harr,:,geneau::a ll<;ht UGli<10 13Gi, L.JG"'19 :soi. UGR<25 170•1 
d•mr- ·n~ Optkl"5 ~u,n ou:to·, pot<cntlom*r. ~ lUV, ~JlJJ, l-'WX, KNX. 

O mr•ing options der,a,1d Dn i>''''''" supply and addt;arnl centre-I units :o b~ 
sc,arotcly orca-c,; " •=sscrlcs 

nindorc, CE, U. approval pendlr>g 

OKKIC·BOCL 

REFER TD ARCH SHEET 
A-2.24 FOR TYPE A DETAIL 20J 

SIX SENSES TELLURIDE 

ONLY USING 
TONDOBO 

SIX SENSES TELLURIDE 
TYPE "M" 
Page 1 Df 2 

LINE LED GFIAZER/WALLWASHER 

LIGHT SOURCE AND PERFORMANCE 

I YAN PRDflLE 

,., 

~hting ·-

........... _.,-...,....,, 
i,..;;n /<po;,< ''""'' """°" 

,u,, "' "" ., ..... .,,_ ' ' '-'""' .. ...... 

•• 

STE IHf r-.on, ,. co,o~~a,p ... l~R.,,<i 

" "~ • • " -' M-<O -~ " -' " ·" " -• •• 

"""""-·-~-•c,r,,.,;.,,,,,~-----

,_ """ L>l~"OG~" •-~ ~ON) ............... ..,,.,,.,_,..,.,, ... .,. 

111evon11,w~••-•li<..,-l, ~l'-9f'~lio-l.ECl fl•~"" 
,,;11,,...,00-oloobeal- ,,,ou,e1o~uld0ao-lP'!l,7 

~--• ... --W1 r11aji.ou1<"""' 1"'i,,~.., 
o,wf<i008witl,"""llll-lll0•01 ... ,,._"lll'Ulg .,, 
- - .,..,..., .,..-,i;n115 W-"'1 II<; On<1 IO...,; lnolql!3••"l 
""""'"''I ... ~ _, pr""1<1• ■ ""'"""' lq'l<~II •- •mit i<'I' 
~'"'""'""'!'il,,;onstu,t~n<o1""'-Tt,o,1 " ~"'°""""wrtr 
"""'nr'l"'_""_lo_~"-illon.~IJCh..lo 
.... ......, ... ,,..,,.,,or,••'""'l\ll"ro-,...,1 

,_-,,.,u..,foo"'- ■n ...il,v,:l,rd alu.n\1u"' '10d'J """'"-~ 
,.,._,,,,;On h,i~ ,.,,,,_ m~_,,'"l'.-..,, .... ,,..,..,. -· 

DIMENSIONS 

H 
"= ,~--~~--~H 

H 

"= ~·· ~~-
,._ 

" ,. . • '" " FIXED "' r.■cROLOUVER 

" ~ n =·~· .. AD.JUST ABLE cr OONNECTIONKIT 

w .. "' ..UMITON "°" (a WAV] - .,. w "00 

" 16<ao" - =•· 

, ... ,.,., ... -~ .. ... ,....,~ .. """"'""--,.., .... ,,.,,,-h1'Jb1'0-"'""'"°''""""'""" ,_ .. , ,~,•••~•-~-,Amo-m,,_<nnm,,,, .• m 
-k~lll"'""•'""""-'""~h .. ,_,_ -.,..c0~"'''"'~""""'~u,_,,., .. _.,_~ 

REFER TO ARCH SHEET 
A-2.24 FOR TYPE M DETAIL 

E 

L-011-30-BGS-SA ~------------ ----------- --. 
1"" L-011-:Jll•BGS-S,," """· ""'""""'"'""'""Ll OIM<:flonal 1IX1ln ""''""'" r, Lxllli IOW vort2g• """ , .. _ 
sollaR• con!!J,Jratlori•. It ~ lmltod to a m...tmum 00' angle Imm vortloal and 5Ul)llilod v.ttt, an ar111lod gla,., -

~~dS~h:.=~~~:,=~-m~:~~~;\~•:~~ :u:::~~~~~=1•:~:;•~~;: 
LED ,no h,.og.., lomp• """ • v,;,,i~ty of•=•""•""' t,:, f")d u"" tho oo,i,ect e""M 

Conatructlon All Ora,'°""°"""" • 0. t4C' ~6mm]tt. lct: Ina hou.,g 

~rwdcI, .. ,_oo.,prov-,~l11gof,_onlono 

12\/oltsACJDC • <:lU6.3 MR16 LED • RemoteTransfonnerRe<JJired 
Amber (1500K). warm Whitt, (2700Kf.lOOOK) • Moat lompo dim to i. .. than 20% 
Sao limp monula<llJrer's tranefoonorldlmmor compatlblltl ctiart 

5\1\alt Crernli ilBOI !i8A.NFL AMBER (13JDK) 

'"'""'"" '"''' 
1.-(111-UW 

1.-(111-llW 

s11,m .. c111poo1 

Oplical 
Acca110r111 

Mo"nHng 
Acc,r .. orlr!o 

---M-tlFl.-lT ~, -~ _,ur 

--·---~ -,~ 
_,_ 
_.,,.FL<IO _,_ '"'"'"' ,.._,.,,,. 

41)"nood 
oo•nood 
10D°widaflood 

""""'"" 
10•,,ot 
:.s• ....,.. , ood 
.o•noo• 

OUID i.nteLEO • llrnl>e•(WJDK), Wlrml'mlle(2700KIJDOOK) 

J2Dlm 
l2Dlm 

""'"' 1,01m 
l201m 

,ou1m 
6101m 
O,Dlm 

120Vo1> 

2:lo)Vota 
Mo~ lomp, om to 111o,;,., 20%. s .. 1amp """'ufElllr<,.. lnlr,,rnmor/d~mor 

""-'"'""" ..._..NFL-1>0V -511U!Fl.-2T-120V 
-,_.;n.,aov . ...,...,,,._,_ 
IMFl -17-l ill' 
---.,7.1 DV .-,wu, .... 

·-c •o •m.w 
CT0-112-2 ... 
CTO-'il'l--2°' 

" "" "" " ., 
" 

AMBER(1"AlOK) 

.SW-.'fi-30 12W 

...,,n-ao-1,ov 
SW<!~1ZIIY 
1Wlfl ;,p-1 wr 
3W-l'W0.1'DV _.,,.,l.<I0,1""" 

25•....,..,ood 
,o•nooo 
1""spoL 
"i' we nooa 
,o•nood 

""'-" 1J«O """'• 46' ou""'(STmDAADJ j 
atJ • p., mOBO @qa Ila 4 
"'''" lemparat,ra o....,, ftla• 1F< 
,,,,,.n,mporoturc Or<TQ0 ftl<r "4 
..,,_, ,_ '"' ' [3mmJth i<I< 
"'""""'"" ''"""• t/S" IammI .. ,,, 
"'"""""" '°'""'• ,,.. i,;mml .. le< p;..,,t~.,,_ ,.,.., iia-[:lmm] th"" 
RA<rllln ... ..,_, .. .,., 1IO" f'.lmml"''"" 
Bolm (Bolthl<u.)I,'"', 1,'11"[:lmm]Nok 

"'m 

3901m 
3901m 
OODlm 
l'R lrn 
S Olm 

Mn·,m ~· 1/S"ll·iol;""""'"' ~ ntu• I1I CTOFi .. 

'" m" mm_ 
TDIUSS-_ 
mm 
mM -· 

su,.l\im 1,0<Q; -~n ""''''""'11~-DARD) 
•a,.., ...itlocl; ,,,,,m "1h ... Inie., .... 1 '°'"""' 
•Bru> troo mounl"11h r,,1on m, (48. n. ••!Ill") 
""'"'" - mounl"11h,..,....,.,.. , .,,., 141, n. """") 
•Brau '°""'""''""'"""'" moua• ...... ,_,..,, .... ma,a,tw,, '""'" ....... 
Brare """"'""'""00 i,noUon bo,., ,,uo ,.,~,. """""" ot,jnl660 ,,,,I'"'" 
ff",7',o,88") 

l>O"l',nloht """" b, w,ma1ml.l Dori<Si,' 
A••m"""ion whoo moun••• on 1/ERTICAL 
""rloco ,no almod downw,rd 

I Th,fixlu_,i,nDmteaoo """i'-"'...-. 1 

L-011-P 
Tho L-011-F is a brass projocuon fi><turo !Or lan<lScapo applications. 

Com,truction All bras,; oornp,,nenls. 0.140" [3.6rrml thick bra" hau~rw, 

Len,. 

L--011-P 

l!craa~,et 

12¼1s • GUS.JMFt16 • Rormtatransfotmureql-ir«I 

8 WBtl LEO (27(1flll) 2~' narrowfl<>OO 
6 W8tl LEO (:JOarJII) 25" narrowfl<>OO 

L--011-P-120V 1-230V 12M'30 \/oils • GU10MR16 

So~• i:lipool _ BW-SP·27-120V B watt LEO (27(1rJII) 10" epot 
_8W-$P-3Q-121lV 6W!lt1 LED (:JOallK) 10' spot 

L--011-P-MH-12DV I -2aov 12D/2Jr:I Vdls • GX10 M>.16 • Remote balla,l required 

Wl20Pfi11SP 2'l Wal:mo1al haldo 12" 'f'l'I 
Wilrm\\' 'ilo (l:1:011) wt-iSP :JllW,rl:me1alhaldo 12"""11 

Optical 
Accessories 

ll6Sil Bmas gl- snlald, 45" CUIOTT 

Molal gobos.,.. Bmilstanloss ,'8el, 51.5mm diamoter,wth high 1.......is 
of nickel end ch ram Um lo pml'ide 1009 life and excellent imB,Je quolily . 
Any gobo ps118m, Including cuotomd .. lgn,, cen beordored OMlh up to• 
35mm dil■Mler patlom ..,.., lhcugh 29mm i! recommended 

:;0;:,,P~1 ... Final gobo 
~Id Palm• attern TBD 
Oonoult oal•• rsp for art opodll"""°"' 

Younllng 112" male lhread,. Mwntlr irrtu eni slondalO j-bcx or 
Accr.,.rmriBa 1352 ~utygruund•~ 

GS2aC ~utygrnund •;iur w!h c,r,t l>n,,scao 
,:;54 "50lndord !J1lUnd •,ike w~h <:eol bras,, oap 
.Ja Cast!Jra"Junotim-
SA su..,.o.;m locking mt,,t ion ,.,.,, .. o,y 
1DM1 "Draa, troe/doct; mount wilh otaill"66-l ""rews 

_ 1DM2-_ •e,,,.stn,o mount wnnny1on s1mp(411, r;,i, orli6'') 
_ TDM>~s-_ •e,a•• tra• mom'1 wnr, ..,_.,,.,,,, "'""' ''""P ("", n, 

orN'') 
lDMl "Bn,55 low--proflle docl<lwall .-.,unt 

/SA """"stro<J' recarm,reoo'ed) 
1DM4 •e,,,., low--pl<lnle 1, .. mount w11h no1ch 1or wlr<, /SA 

occ,osso,y~cd) 
ir.,Ja-_ Bmotree-mo1JnledJuncilon l>o:<, slngloflxture 

mount, SW'llo,s ,,.,r1 ,trap (411, 72, ,.- 96") 
ir.,JEl.2-_ B•asstrco-rnountcdJuncilon box, dolDlo__,, 

™'~ :i~'i:-=;: l~::?:".~ ,;::::,.1 
1MJEl.2X Brass t"'9-IOOUnt9dJuncllon box, dolDle fb<lu<a 

mount, >lllli'rle'5 ,tee! '""'""' 

•n,i, """"'"r:<"r 12 VOi 11<1<R on~. 

WITJ\111.EFQR 

'"""°"""" 

with 45 degree 
snoot 

L-011-Pwllh 

•= 

Cuotom~ 

■ """" """"'"'""'""iuncWn """· ,,uo r,rnra """"' ,L.inl""' '""'' ,cnwa 
•rt-=-m,•hi>-...Coc>, 

a . SUITABLE FDFt INDDOFt U• USEUPTD15WLED 
Amorpllo"• Ml<IPalmg Egyptian Palmo 

Flnloh: UnOo, i"""' ~ """'•O<J; "' '"""m""•i"" """"i•""- -,,,. '"'"'"will.,...~" Lo,"''""''"""'· Th, .,,.,, """""' 
i• natural with b"""' and coppe•. F<ala "'""'i"' a-.J ""'"'"'' co~• i, daoenO oITT -" d;r&a ,.., _m.,"' ""°""'" 
n,.,, ""'"''~' .,_ ""'""""""" ,ny..,...,, ,,_,,no, 

■-- .Ci - - ■ IJi -- ■-e ... 
- GSALI3Lod. m,~100080 
- in '"'"fi>1Lnn,.mmfy 

J ,of .,..niycn ~R·&LEDO,r,, 

Finish: unr.nitlhOd io Olan,lard; no op•cinceLion requin>CI . The f,xL,n will wooLher LO• 
nobJrel or,lna. The oetire 0""""" i, nature I ,.ill, bn,,. and ooooer. ~ ol palin•~nd 
•""'"'•I oolor i, dependent Up<O'l "lnl•te ond pro,;iml), to lhe uoean. Thi,, Beocl..dedo"" 
nolguo,on""' any opo,:;no •-"""'"' 

,,. 
;~i;:~~=i~~~ l•ml" 

Weight (12 Voll~ 2.B lb,. [1.:1 kll] 
(12l!Vo"IIIIH~J41ba [1.S kll] ••• .. ■--- - --·-· · · 

s SIX SENSES TELLURIDE S IX SENSES 
TELLURIDE TYPE "B" 
Page 1 of6 

t,ase opecify (exsmple: L-D11.;J(]-120Y-ll'IV-NFL-lT-1211V-BG5-{;10-1/2.,2.a,-HL 1--611) 
TYPE "B" 12GV-8W-BP..27-120Y- EP-TIIIJ8-72) 

BGS ~==~ ~==~ ~==~- SA Aooes,aory IICt>assory 
-

Page2of6 eooo 

I TONDO 80 11 TONDO 160 
!IPECIFICATlON!I 

t;poicg1 W>larrl wim r,;IT,.s~rl igM cJ;Sl , ihul;nn 

moun:lng Or ground with tousl;S bo~ or spike to be ;eparstely or:lerec as acc~ssones 

""'"'1cng1, :so-soomri/9.84"-19.69" 

dia" "°'' ONIJO 80: 80 m,i.'3.1~"- IONIJO 160: 16C- mn I 630" 

co,.hc.ic·, Fo:turc: olu-r,lnlum. Dllfue<or 'n polycort,,;1<rtc conpl:t w!lh o'llcorc ~,skct 
StHinles, ,tee M- t,:il:s 

fi ' is,es Pc,wd~• cc,c,[~,J 

lr,p,,. p'OtK:lc, IP65 

lamp1J,po LEDerrey on p,in:<od ci'cuit bC><rd. 'l<,motc r,owc:rsuppl1,not i.-.cludcd 

"'"'PWO(i,ge - ONDO 80: 4,5W a: 24V DC · TO\JOO 160: BW at 24V DC 

l•mo lumen, - TONDO 160: 10351'"1 

cell.-e·e:l lumen, - ONDO 80: 245Im TOI\D0'60: 780Im 

lunar I,oin<;e,once 

DiffJsc:I 

k.> ·~, 2700K CRl93, 3000K CRl~3 ord 4000K CRl93.I 3 step MacAdam ellipse 

o mTlng optJons Pusl1 bunon. potentlom~:er D-10V, [!,'\[_I 

I Dimming pp1ior,:; depenc on power SJPP y end acd I onal coTol .nits to be 
8'lpsrotel;- ordor~d ~• acce, sori~• 

,torcJ<ru, CE 

TON>OBO 

ie mcE 

SIX SENSES TELLURIDE 
TYPE "F/G/J" 

ANYBEND-SW Page 1 of 2 
exI e Ix ures - ERIES ~ 

ANYBEN[HM' is a fully encapsulalecl llexible linear LED b.lure scilable for use in a 
varie:)'otapplications. llecacse of ira dr, and w.-1 rati"II, it is perfect for net ooly incloc· 
use but aso as out:loor accent llghUrg W'lE!re the ttxlure ·• olslb e. ANYJCNJ-SW 
encapsulates oor 24-volt state wt lte LED strlas In po~urethare. Oflered In three d lflerem 
01Jt rn.rr-s: stancard rnnrut(7 .0W,'ft), high rn.tr. 1r(?.3W1'ft), and ""'l' ,ighotJtpt.• (HJIN,l'ft) 
ANYBEND-SW hai; a u,iqua up/dowr and side OOodwith a9" ba'\ding radios and it is 
co'!lpatlblo with 1hroo dlflororl mo.Jr11ng hardwaro options to ensure our prodLK! 111s. wy 
design need, JJlize deer ardcapa fo 0 continuous rum with no light loaa 

F & J = STANDARD OUTPUT 
G=VHO 

""'"''"' t """""'n" 
YHo•i.,, -00' C>.lpat< w,n 

.. I 

Q,J ,x,Koa .. ,.,.,,,,.,,,,,,,,..,,., Mrl19~1 

[11tioll JI±~ 1111 ■■n 0 '""'K 51 M CB IS, o, .,., >S '"" " >17 " 

u '"'" " 5' " ,,, " 1:>J ,. "' " '"'' ., 

Part Mlllm' Blildll' 

-••• -PP .. FT 

"""'"'"' -PP9-LP.FT 

,o ·>C<O< 
as - S5COK 
.. -1:<0K 

l""'7 
(<.Cl'II 

REFER TO ARCH SHEET A-2.24 
FOR TYPE F, G & J DETAIL 

- BW o,mes In slo.n<larc 2<"- request cus:om en~Ir (\lo< 1:i:,•1 O'; 'l,'rlln~ ~ In lncres ra>:I \O 'BW' In ire or<le' code bo>< (e>: BV/48) 
- Connecla/Wn In ., Out riut noedec tu specify ~roducl. Stenc•rd oor figur..-icr , tipe S1, Ganre<tor,',Vire In: BW ~ Ga1nec:ur/.Vire Out: N,IA with 

whi l• omlcaps [11,11) 

■ Reid modlflcc~on, a-c notcow,rcd under Q Tran warr3nly 

• ~ y•ar warranl)' 

• Up/Da¥m. SIOO Bend 

• Do.h sJblc<:tto change, al da:o. ,a.s +/ ~% tolcrnncc 

• PPS-FT arrl PPS-LP-FT is to b• c,rt al Q-Tr,,, to •~~"a,<t"rl 
l5nglh 

~-
Accessory 

SIX SENSES TELLURIDE 
TYPE "H" 

SIX SENSES TELLURIDE 
TYPE "C" 
Page 1 of 3 

Image Spot® 
SIX SENSES TELLURIDE 
TYPE "R" 

SIX SENSES TELLURIDE 
TYPE "N" 
Page1 of3 

.. 

12400K 

,,,,w.> ligCl.il 

ATRIA 60 r • P LUS 

SPECIFICATIONS 

t,poioe",· Compact gla-e f•at downllght •1.1th 'lat trim ard symmemcal or asyrrn:etrcol 

(W<Sl"·"'sher a ·-c ,:Jc..,.nlig·t) ligl·t distribution 

.,."" ' " "• In pla<terboa ·d using spdng, f ncluded) 
clamete,- W r,rr / 23(a 

he ght 56 ,r,.-, .' 2.20" 

n:aqulr"" deptr 73 mm 12.76" if mou11~ns in pl"s:erboe,J 
11s ,-,m .14.53" ~ mountl·1g ·n concrete 

celll ,~ u out Plastorboarc: 50mm 11.97" 

COOSl'Uc;or rix1m~ •nd t.~7~1. n,ni--G ,nc ·iii ing • l.•mi,um 
Ri:,' e-:tor. POlvcart:,ono~. Protee~ ~ :,; in PMMA O' .of.«iillQ Q aiss compl~ 

witll sl lcone gasket 

fn,es /\no:1·zed orpcwder coated when pa·nied. I le,,tslnkor,odlzed 

rgresspracedor IPGG 

lorrpt'Po COB. Rerrde eower su,ply nal included 

lar~ W<lLlilQe 6W at J!\O mA. Vl17.BV DC 

D;namic woite: Ma,:''T1Jt'1 Wattage 6W :CHI + 012 max 6W, cne Cllan,,el mex61'1 
lamOlur-""' 6SOl1; 

dcl'.<orcd lur·oI10 !\Um I.soi - =I,11(/0~, - ~1~Irn Iasyri""''"""') 

IL ma, malntanaeca 50.000h LSC 

1,,.., 50", 70' or a.ymmenical reflec:or f.15' and wallwaah~~ 

kelvir ?700K C~9:J, 770CK QaflJ, JOOOK CR193, 4000K (]ll~J.1 3 st,:,p MacA<tam ellipse 

cr Dy1a11ic i,;hib::~&XIK 4'XXIK! C'll93 
soec'al features s.:.re .,.irini; - - ,,,c w·,es dimming 

o,,.1c;ne~ "''h cymme:rl",el ar~ scymrre1tlcsl r,,1~r:lors, ::lelM'-,; ~l•re f'a, 

hmnc9eneocs light UGRs,t_l i5~i, JGR<25 flO"I. 
I he ~')'11rne!·lcal -etlector offi;-,; lcng·11ao·· ol OJt-:;,lf'er,d dell..,-,; horro~e,ecvs ll~hl 

frmr, lhe LJppar edge dU,e-"",II.u U,e I'"'" 'NiU• r-,viaiale dmk,or,e; 
d ,m;n~ cpt-ons Push bur.on 00\<!ntome-;er, 0-10V, :>AU, DMX KNX 

Dim ming option~dcp~"ld on powcrs,pplyar.:I ,~dTonal co·trol units to be 

SYMML:TR.:CA!. 
RFR FC:cl< 

513 

Page 1 of4 

Brilliant Imaging. 

C·vsta c lear optics a llow \/CU to projec vi vie images 

~nrl m~ss.,gin g 1.p to 40 ft.I12 m ) ~w~y! lJ;ir g a 

me re ~SW cf PQW~r. tl1<c' Ina~<' Spd L[ D µru:ectr.x 

pa~ks an amazing amounl cf l ig1l oulpJL from a 
vcr<;ati lc nrnl rnm:in,± dc,si511 

I he :ool wh ite or v,arT white U : LJs en5ure bright 

im aging i, v :rtJa lly 2ny environrrenl. /\r avai ab le 

filter ki t a lows the lma~e Spot to be L<;ed to ·IIJm·nat'i._ 

s11hjr:ct., in mu,~II"110, t.h~mrd rnr~rt~:nmrnt ~n~ 

hJ5~ilillily venues. 

Superior Unlfoimfty Across 
Eotire Field 

E9 
WI W"'i 
1'J)'!! 00% SG% ai,,; 

WWW.ROSCO.COM 

KEY FEATURES 

• 48'.'V LH) arrcyv..ith 1 9', 2~0 or '.>::l' ~earn ~plies 

provide sup<rb im.ige unif~rrr,ili' ond frin~~-free sh.itlows 

• IP40 ra~ng br indoo' USC o r IP65 "'~ '~ fo' cutdoor USC 
I IT variJr t "o· l' i,:h a-bien: t s mperat Jre -,nv· r Jn,erts 

• Ac~fpls Ro,c~ I mag€ 5pol Golx>s an(I F'Er "iawlur 

Dichr~ ic GLlss Ca or Filtfrs 

• A>,ailaCle OPTI-FLECS filcer ascks for c>ea m ciffusicr 

• Ar.c.e p1'; 1J l' iVl' 0 .sal line vnlt~ge inr.Jt s l lO"Nir g c~eraror 
Jnywr:era a·ound tre globe 

• 01 bca 0c d immint cc,nlml 

• DMX512 rnrmatil:ility pruviclc,; fidcr-f rcc d immirR 
tt rnuw1uut tt,~ ranv,e: 10C% ~ 0'% 

• Sianckd Color Op lion>: Black. Whi~ and Silve

CONCEALED FIXTURE PER 
DETAIL. THIS FIXTURE WILL 
PROJECT DOWN ONTO PORTE 
COCHERE FLOOR. 
REFER TO ARCH SHEET A-2.24 
FOR TYPER DETAI L 

ATRIA XS R• ~ LUS 

SPECIFICATIONS 

:aac ccd.. 65096 

_,,.'""'""'' Glar@rr@@drr.-.nllgh:vith ,~,.,.,.dtrl'T1 ord sym-,.trlcal or BS)'ITm@t·lca 
(w,11,,-asl ier m.J Jawnligl1~ li~htdiscrilJu: ~-, 

dlome1>:I 7l3mr,i3.0T 
101,;ir - )owrlig•t: 1% rrm; 4.13". teym11"1rical d:,,,mlisht 78 mrr i 3.~7" 

r .. quIrec d•P11> JOWI· lig"t 120 rrm i 472•·_ As;mmet·ical downr gl1l 100 mm i 3,g3• 

ce· lf"l\lcutoc: 65mmi2.56" 

'l<>leclor: oolycart:ionate. Protectt,,<, glass Ir PMMA or sofle·lng glass ,;omp le1e 

with silicone soc,kct 
f nlelles "<:,,vcie• ccaled. Heal sink a,w.Ji,ec 

ieQr~s,; orotect:;,, P6S 

,,.,..-, •,,~ CCB. Remote po-MerC.JFfllY ··c,t incl.Jcc>d 

l•mp -•~~ 10W ;at SOOmO.. Vf'fl/N IX:; 
..lynom·:;•,•ttte : 14,J<Jrr -■n ·~..:te,e 1()1,\1 (<.:--n + CH~ rrax 1()1,\1, one ~rannel m~ f.JN/ 

lc i,p lur,ens 900I-

dal\l<l"'d lurrgns 76C m (30"1 - 810I-n (5:J') - 870Im (70, - 710Im (asymrne11Cal) 

uffc"'n mo;,·<c,·ancc 50.0001, L90 

beam 30", GO". 70" cre,ymmetical •9fl~cto• 1.25" '"1d""' m,ra~ 
24QQK, 93 kelvn 2200~ CRISO, 2,00K CRl93, 2700KC'iJ~.3000KCR 95. 3500KCRl93,4COOK 
CRI rnIg3,'3 s:,,p ,iac./l.<1ar, •lnos~mDynamlc·;,C llf! (IBOOK • 40IJOKI 

:ie,1g11ed wth symrne:c1ccl ~,-,;1 asymmetllcal rellecttm;, cl<IM>IS gla'e f'w 
·orragooeous llgtr_ UGR<IO (3C~. UGR<19 (50/. LJGR<:25 170/. 
The a,·~Timetr·r.,1 rellectcr offers longil,Jdiria ctr -aF and <i<:ir,ers t""10fl""""-'-' light 

t,:,m the upper e.:lge cfthe wall~ the floo' ;,It, novs·ble Mtk zo·es 

c;;,m,inq ctJl.'u,., 'ush IJ.tl·on. poteollometer. 0-10¥, DAL,DMX. n« 
:lim·ning t>ptior,s cl•p•rid ,m "'"''"r ,iq:ly encl t>:l<litima l ""'"" uniL, tn t>e 
sep.,rate~ ordered a, acce;so'ies 

.st,s""a:h CE, L'L opprov,I pcndln\; 

ATRIAFW P LUS 

8PECIF ICATION!I 

hnss coda 66129 

<ypc"'JI' Recessed wall nou11tl11g glaref-eefiC10rwosller wi, rau·I111 

icuntmg Ir conm,te LNrig I10,sing b'"' fcQde: G93S7 or 69398)-to :,e separately ortle·ec

as ,cx:esso1y 
Ole mater 103mm; 4.C6' 

l•cig· lL fl'lrr,rr,/327" 

'"' Pi •~""""'' Depeoclng a· housl·g bo:< 
ft,st f1 ·equlCEme,t 'tea, SC!l"ratc l1ouslng 00,,: oc-dc 69397 or code: 6939B (adjustaolc hclgl1:) 

surfcocaJtcJt 100rwn.'3.94' 

=•·•OucLim r·,:1u~ end t an.i~; turning ard m·11In~ aluTlnum, Loen~ f'c y,carbonate 
Prc,_ectr,.., gless or PMMAcarn,l~-"wiJ1 si licCJ11egc,;keL Hc,usi11y bo,:,: PVC 

·1nishes Asioclzed cr pO'Wder mated 

in;i,eo, prole<Uun IP65 

mo type LED array or, printoc circuit boo rd. Romotc powcrs,pplji rat indudoc 

,...., lu·ne.s HW T2Ulm 

5W: 450Irn 

5V'/:360!m 

lurren r-a·, teneooe ~o.ooor L90 ,-=-~ bo.,rr A.ymncirical rcflcctcr: 5' . 7.5' tcwards the floor I 2400K I kel,n 2700K CRl93 enc 300CK CRl93 I 3 step MacAdam ellipse 
~---,,<P"""• "'""'"' ~8V DC; unpclari,cd c lcctroric ,;y,;tcm. 24V DC; r:,vc-,., polarity prott-ction 

B UGHT Thamol s.-,,,,.. -Safe v.111ng - Two w!r"" dm11l1g 

Ocslgncd with an ,s,mrrCUlcal rcffccto' offc-,; longttu:ll'ol cJlofl and colk-crs 

s ar" in.e homo;,eneou, lgh: from the 10½@' e:lg• ol'lh@ "•II v.1t, no vlsibl• dHrk 

.;;mr n~ n['tio.s Push bu:te1, ~o-.emlomel~r. 0-10'c D,ll.l, DMX. KNX 

f"imrrlng opclons depend en P(')Wer SUPll\i and addl-Jonal ccrnel 11ntts :o IJe 
seoorotely orce-ec es accessories 

s:andards CE,U. 1598.CSAC22.2 

om ---- ______R__ 

•= 
--"'-

@I'~ - -

; _ 

----""----

547 

SIX SENSES TELLURIDE 
TYPE "Q• 

FLEX-SQUARE FLEX Li 
Page 1 of2 

The IL[)( series is idaal for spaoos where the light will be ir directviaw. AB the narna irrplias, 
t-.eoo LED lights are i le, ble aod car be easily molded Into different curvatures. The l"ouslrg ard 
t-.e lens al lawfi1r a perfectmonxhromatic light sou·ce with no tot spcts. All rfO-- rar's FLEX 
series filltures are macewil h h gll-qusJity SMrl I F,J chip s, are UV ar>d ' lame resis:ar1 and are 
•xt·emaly enrargy-effic' a,-: 

, .... """ II I 
'2C,K 1711"K ro'.O< 3"J!K 40COK 

-

HINlsilll C■IIP 

c::::J 

Plrl at■ib• ai1111ar 

S?COK 

I 

T he FLEX Square S:,it ic White Pool &Spa is available in a variety rf di'ferert oolm larrparatures 
snd ls submersible rslecl ( lrt:.l). 

(6, 
..,., ..... '1ill 10; 

,, .. , .......... " """' ,,, .. ,, ~, 
"'"' 

D,nd Coon"°"" Ccncroc ln Gcr""""ln °'"""" eoo,.,,,,-OutConnocce<O.t 111.-.r...a 

'""-"' """ cc, L' l~cton CHI ...1!s!!!tt.., ~ ~ ~ ~ -r~•""cnHw,cu-,m,H"Y"l'"'1 
~ ~ - ,.. r1 DIM t7 r- t""I o•w 

He>,O,"'m 
.... ,\It~ " _,,.,,, "'"' 
"'" ""' :1""1 ~ :;~;1>0,::.,,, 1 
\~l~c,:< ,,_,...,~ •• 

- P,Wucclanc,L, = 111, n<,otad anc,Le + "'''"'"" "'""" 
- Fm •ac.-.., """~hi"' ,,,,noto' hf«,-,;lm, ... r"ll•; 
-ro, c,,ioatiblo """'"'OPI~,. , .. """ , 
-Fo•M••~'"' 'f'"°"'· =rogo?[W"""""~1 

• 2 y,ier w,;,rrar,ty on ~\IC 

• I1'6B l'oo & Spa raLed 

• Amb'ent temoeralur9; 32'Fto 113"F 

• UV & llama resistam constrcc-rion 

• NC> dlooe lrr.::.glng 

• ~a,, run is 2/l' 

• PV:::: constrcofon 

""'" ...... .,, •-•D' 

REFER TO ARCH SHEET 
A.-2.24 FOR TYPE Q DETAIL 

• Pool installations r8q uirs end cao/nc daisy c,ain 

CE 

523 

~ VAULTOESIG~GROUP 

Uncompah gre 
Engineering, LLC 

AE DESIGN 1L 
lnt'"'ll'al..il L\wht l1t11 and El..::tr1u1 !k:, iutlons 
1'111,lW.,o+ ~IJ ... I IQD'; n,,,,~. Wl(QOZ ,IO) 791,.)1)..W 

.-.,.,..._co,,, ""'I"'•-



1 

VAULT MANAGEMENT 

TIARA TELLURIDE LLC 

July 19, 2023 

We are pleased to present the following construction mitigation narrative and plan for your review. Safety, 

water quality, and minimizing impacts to adjacent property is of the utmost importance to our team. Please 

refer to the mitigation plan design Exhibit C and note the plan boundary for fencing overlaps the adjacent 

town parcel. We are requesting the use of town property for some of the construction operations.  

We anticipate pursuing LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) certification 

which will aid the construction process to reduce construction material waste and increase 

recycling. The project construction site will be kept clean throughout construction. 

SITE PROTECTION 

Fencing is noted on the plan and will be installed around the perimeter with controlled access via 

the points of entry and exit as shown. A jersey barrier concrete perimeter or similar will be placed 

on the side road of mountain village while excavation and shoring and lagging activities occur 

within our property until permanent building and curb and sidewalk structures are in place. Fencing 

will be installed behind the jersey barricades to protect the site's perimeter. To protect the large 

evergreen tree adjacent to the Shirana building, we will incorporate staked orange construction 

fencing around the perimeter of the drip line. Adjacent buildings will be protected with erosion 

control installed per industry best practices and construction fencing.  

A comprehensive pedestrian walkway plan will be executed to allow residents from the See 

Forever village and crystal residences while the tunnel walkway access is inactive. There will also 

be ample signage for pedestrians and temporary fencing for walkways or egress that may be needed 

or suitable as the site progresses. We do not anticipate public access through the site during 

construction. 

PROJECT EXECUTION 

The team will provide active traffic flagging, site dust control, mud, snow, and soil erosion control, 

as well as water quality protection measures during the duration of construction utilizing best 

management practices consistent with the grading and drainage design regulations.  

The project will require several and/or significant utility relocations prior to starting vertical 

construction. We plan to work with the Town and utility providers to minimize disruption to 

service as we relocate and improve the utility infrastructure. 

Attachment 1.a.i.1.b. 
Construction Mitigation



2 

SITE & MATERIAL STAGING 

 

The site plan attached provides the construction fence boundaries, a crane location with anticipated 

swing, potential shoring and lagging limits, and associated construction facilities. Temporary 

construction dewatering will be required, as volumes and mitigation approach are determined, and 

this plan will be developed with the geotechnical engineer’s support. This plan will be presented 

to the Town as it becomes more fully realized.  

Much of the site is anticipated to encompass a large footprint which is planned to house most of 

the material staging, storage, and material waste recycling. The LEED certification requires 

recycling of building waste materials and for them to be kept separated. As the building progresses, 

we will capture more on-site storage for materials where feasible, within the garage and open core 

and shell space.  

Off-site material and labor staging will be provided by mass transport as needed. We plan to utilize 

Heritage Parking structure for parking in offseason or summers as permitted by the Town of 

Mountain Village.  

Construction phasing on lot OS-3BR-2 will be done by utilizing the area north of the new trash 

enclosure for staging and access to our construction site. A temporary trash enclosure is planned 

to be set just south of the existing trash enclosure to allow the current structure to be torn down 

and replaced.  Access to the trash enclosure construction area will occur from the north while the 

regular trash truck picks up twice daily.  Once the new trash enclosure is built, we will utilize our 

north jobsite entrance to act as access to the new enclosure while the old temporary trash enclosure 

is removed, and the south side drive is demoed and replaced.   

We have provided turning movements to verify that the trash truck can enter and maneuver into 

the current plaza space between the Shirana and the existing trash enclosure. Our goal is to 

maintain a space southwest of the temporary trash enclosure where service vehicles can stage and 

maintain five temporary vehicle spaces for daily business. The current trash truck can maneuver 

in the plaza while keeping these 5 spaces in use as it does today.   

The current mitigation plan also shows two gates that will allow truck traffic to pass through as 

we improve our staging areas and roads leading from the front door of Shirana out through the 

project site and onto Mountain Village Boulevard. This is a backup scenario for traffic flow of 

larger vehicles such as the Linen Truck or Bus as coordinated with the Town of Mountain Village. 

In addition to the noted items above, we have attached our Construction Mitigation Plan which 

includes an overview of the site and pedestrian access pathways, areas where soil nails may need 

to be installed along with construction entrances, fencing, gates, vehicle pathways and staging 

items like dumpsters.  



3 

As well, we have developed preliminary mitigation plans with feedback from the neighbors and 

are committed to the following: 

1. A plan to ensure access throughout construction and a commitment to provide a contact for 

a site supervisor at all hours. 

2. Owner Controlled Insurance Program for the project to provide adequate protections for 

adjacent properties.  

3. Continuous access to the trash buildings for trash removal and ongoing support to the 

neighbors when we are replacing the entrances to their parking structures.  

4. Adherence to Town standards for construction and construction hours.   

 

EXCAVATION 

 

During early site mobilization, excavated materials will be hauled off site to a location to be 

provided by an awarded earthwork contractor. There are minimal trees on the lot which will allow 

for early removal of those impacted and executed per town requirements. As the site is excavated 

for foundations and underground parking, excavated soil and rock will be hauled off site with a 

portion of the soil to be brought back on site to be used as backfill.  

A shoring and lagging system is anticipated at the property line, along proposed foundation walls 

along Mountain Village Road, dying off in board of the site. A comprehensive shoring plan will 

be provided for review and approval once the final scope of the project has been determined. 

Excavation volume and frequency will vary throughout the distinct phases of the excavation 

process, with 10-20 trucks per day on average anticipated. Consistent road sweeping of dirt and 

debris, and dust control removal will be ongoing during construction. We expect to coordinate 

truck counts and routes with the Town after we have developed a more concise plan with the 

excavator.  

SAFETY AND CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS 

 

Safety is of paramount concern for the project. The general contractor with subcontractor 

participation will have weekly site meetings with Ownership to assess the site and ensure safe 

conditions.  Contractors and vendors will require safety training upon mobilization to the site, with 

continuing safety education as the project progresses. 

We anticipate large cranes within our project site and are currently negotiating mitigation plans 

with our neighbors to ensure that they understand what to expect. Picked loads will not be flown 

over existing buildings and mitigation plans will be coordinated and reviewed with the Town and 

neighbors. The General Contractor will provide active supervision of construction logistics 

throughout the project, with an on-site point of contact available. 



4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: Certain elements of the construction mitigation plan may need to change, depending on 

issues determined during the building permit process.  The final construction mitigation plan will 

be subject to review and approval by the Town in connection with issuance of a building permit. 



The construction of Lot 109 presents multiple challenges to existing logistics of the surrounding properties.   

This mitigation plan highlights the separation of the construction site from the Shirana/Westemere properties and anticipates multiple
efforts that we will undertake to ensure access to current operations as noted.  The strategies noted below are under continual review
with neighboring properties and the Town of Mountain Village. Contractor coordination of access will be closely coordinated with the
Building and Fire Department.   All areas under construction will be protected by construction fence.  Traffic patterns impacted by
construction will be developed and reviewed by Mountain Village Public Works and construction flagging will be provided to manage the
entrance.  Contractor will continually monitor and manage the construction entrance.

The access to the Trash Enclosure and parking area will be addressed in multiple phases: 
1.  Utilities installation - multiple crossings impact parking.  Work to be phased in short time frames and prior to rebuild of trash enclosure.
Temporary trash removal can be arranged with bear proof containers on an as needed and coordinated basis with Bruin or the waste
removal vendor.  

2.  Regrade of north entrance - The area in yellow will be reworked to new grades to accommodate staging for the rebuild of the trash
enclosure. A temporary road for egress will be maintained throughout construction with controlled access to the north through the gates. 

 
3. Construction of the Trash Enclosure - A temporary enclosure will be developed to shift current trash collection with the intent of
maintaining current operations utilizing the established preconstruction trash truck movement.  Trash traffic will be shifted accordingly
when the north drive is established to allow access from the north. 

4. Reconstruction of the Drive - construction of the drive will likely start on the north and phase to the south.  The area in front of the trash
enclosure will be phased to allow for trash removal from the north while the south drive is being demoed and repaved.  Once the trash
removal is relocated to the north, the south drive will be divided again for phasing to maintain access for Shirana/Westemere.  We are in
agreement to provide parking passes at Heritage for the HOA unit owners during this time when the entrances to each parking structures
is under reconstruction.  We expect that 15-20 parking passes will be purchased on a daily or as needed basis while entrances are
replaced at the Shirana/Westemere parking structures.   This is a preliminary estimate of Shirana/Westemere Owners that will require
replacement of their individual parking spaces while their entrance is shut down.  Our goal will be to limit these shutdowns to days once
we have a refined plan for placement of the new concrete drive. 

5. This applicant is prepared to support the delivery of product to merchants via the loading zones at the west and east side of the core
as noted on the diagram below.  This plan is based on review and acceptance with Public Works and the permitting authority to achieve
delivery permits and with Telski to gain access to the 'Pond Lot" to allow for deliveries.  We are also prepared to provide a lift on the west
side of Shirana to provide access for 'Linen and Supply delivery' up to their elevated deck (see green box on west side of Shirana).



10-09-22

CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND COMPARE ALL
CHAPTERS AND INTERDISCIPLINARY DRAWINGS
AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY FIELD WORK BEING
DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AIA DOCUMENT A201

Uncompahgre
Engineering, LLC

C2.1

P.O. Box 3945
Telluride, CO 81435

970-729-0683

Lot 109R
Mtn. Village, CO

Site Grading

with

Garage Access
Profile

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

Line of
Garage Below

OVERALL CONSTRUCITON MITIGATION PLAN

CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND COMPARE ALL
CHAPTERS AND INTERDISCIPLINARY DRAWINGS
AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY FIELD WORK BEING
DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AIA DOCUMENT A201

Uncompahgre
Engineering, LLC

P.O. Box 3945
Telluride, CO 81435

970-729-0683

Lot 109R
Mtn. Village, CO

Site Grading

with

G2 Level

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

PERIMETER FENCE WITH GREEN SCREEN

JERSY BARRICADES

SEE FOREVER VILLAGE TEMP PED PATHWAY

PERIMETER FENCE WITH GREEN SCREEN

CONTRACTOR ACCESS TO SITE / GATE CONTROL

1. CONTRACTOR WILL SUBMIT AND MANAGE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN PER STATE REQUIREMENTS
2. PHASING AT SHIRANA PLAZA IS PRELIMINARY - CONTRACTOR WILL ACCOMODATE RELOCATION OF FENCING/JERSEY BARRIERS TO DIRECT TRAFFIC INTO PARKING STRUCTURES WHILE PROVING ACCESS FOR
TOWN TRASH REMOVAL - CONTRACTOR TO WORK WITH MOUNTAIN VILLAGE AND HOTELS TO ACCOMODATE MODIFIED ACCESS AND STAGING
3.  CONTRACTOR WILL PRESENT AND COORDINATE UTILITY PHASING PLAN TO MOUNTAIN VILLAGE - FINAL UTILITY PHASING CONTINGENCT UPON UTILITY PROVIDERS FINAL ACCEPTED UTILITY CONSTRUCTION PLAN 
4.  PARKING WILL OCCUR ONSITE UNTIL WORKFORCRE SIZE REQUIRES PARKING AND STAGING AT AIRPORT LOT OR THIRD PARTY OFFSITE LOT
5.  SHORING EQUIPMENT TO BE STAGED BEHIND CONSTRUCTION FENCE.  PROPERTY LINE (AT SHORING) WILL INCLUDE JERSY BARRIER AND SCREENED FENCING.
6.  TOWN TRASH ENCLOSURE/SNOWMELT BOILER BUILDING WILL BE PHASED TO ALLOW RELOCATION OF TRASH SERVICE WHILE EXISTING BUILDING IS DEMOLISHED.

C-1 PROTECTED PEDESTRIAN
ACCESS & LOT 109R2
CONSTRUCTION
FENCING/BARRICADES AND
ACCESS

CONSTRUCTION
ACCESS AND
STAGING AREA
CONTROLLED BY
GENERAL
CONTRACTOR

CONSTRUCTION
ACCESS TO THE SITE

Pedestrian
Pathway to
Shirana
from Pond

Pedestrians
to access
See 4 Ever
at Lodge

TRACT 0S-3A 

'I'""!: 
,,tttlffl 

V-Pan 

Conform~ 

I 
I 
I 

--

Conform 

.__ -

-} 

I 

Sidewalk 
I 

Curb & Gutter 
I 

-------\-+\f~ ~ ~ --{4_,,, / 

_,,-- Existing Edge 
of Pon 

---conform 

PT: 11 +43. 70 

PC: 11+35.85 

i 
J 

Conform 

PC: 10+51.12 

LOT 108 

LOT 68R 

i 
I 

I 

i 
i 

i 
I 

i 

i 
i 

I 

i 
I 

I 

i PC: 1+85.55 
i 

I 

\ '· ,. ......... ~ 
\ _I .......... 

. . '---- 'f.. '-...__ .......... .......... 

~ ::;~ .................... "-......... 
--~ . -----:r~\\ "- "- '\ 

\I: ' ,,@, "-)\1"- '\ '\ '\ 
'<'® l~\\~,~ \ \ \ 

' ,, \\\\\'~ \ \ \ 
.......... ' \\\\\\,\ \ \ \ 

.......... ' ~~- \ ~ "- ', "i'o;:~\\ \'~ \ \ \ 

~ ',,~~\~~~~~'()~- ~~~~-A- -
', \\~'\~ ~ L'0~89-2B 

' <} ~\ '\ \ \ \ __.- Curb & Gutter 

\ "'-"" \ \ \ . ~ ------- Sidewalk 

\\ \ \.__ 
~~~~ '-
. \\\'\ '--
', \\~ 0 

"- ',,\\'- \ 
"- ,\, 

' 

\ } "' '"./-;7 

ft-. \. &\. ~! . " 

Conform 

BP: 'i:l-+00.00 \ 

' 
' 

\_"'fr'\ \~~ (/"):;- "-. 

s-3~'*"~ '::-
1 I ~ \~~ \. v_.. 

' 
' 

/ \~ ~~\ 
( 9s.,,,_ I 

<P.:') l 
~ ,,. 

' ' ' ' 
' ' ' 

\ 

' ' ' 

\ 

' ' ' 

\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ \ 
\ 

' \ 
' \ 

' \ 
\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 



10-09-22

CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND COMPARE ALL
CHAPTERS AND INTERDISCIPLINARY DRAWINGS
AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY FIELD WORK BEING
DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AIA DOCUMENT A201

Uncompahgre
Engineering, LLC

C2.1

P.O. Box 3945
Telluride, CO 81435

970-729-0683

Lot 109R
Mtn. Village, CO

Site Grading

with

Garage Access
Profile

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

OVERALL CONSTRUCITON MITIGATION PLAN

CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND COMPARE ALL
CHAPTERS AND INTERDISCIPLINARY DRAWINGS
AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY FIELD WORK BEING
DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AIA DOCUMENT A201

Uncompahgre
Engineering, LLC

P.O. Box 3945
Telluride, CO 81435

970-729-0683

Lot 109R
Mtn. Village, CO

Site Grading

with

G2 Level

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

PERIMETER FENCE WITH GREEN SCREEN

CENTER OF CRANE

CRANE SWING RADIUS

CRANE WEATHERVANE ZONE/NO OVERHEAD
LOADS

1. CONTRACTOR WILL SUBMIT AND MANAGE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN PER STATE REQUIREMENTS
2. PHASING AT SHIRANA PLAZA IS PRELIMINARY - CONTRACTOR WILL ACCOMODATE RELOCATION OF FENCING/JERSEY BARRIERS TO DIRECT TRAFFIC INTO PARKING STRUCTURES WHILE PROVING ACCESS FOR
TOWN TRASH REMOVAL - CONTRACTOR TO WORK WITH MOUNTAIN VILLAGE AND HOTELS TO ACCOMODATE MODIFIED ACCESS AND STAGING
3.  CONTRACTOR WILL PRESENT AND COORDINATE UTILITY PHASING PLAN TO MOUNTAIN VILLAGE - FINAL UTILITY PHASING CONTINGENCT UPON UTILITY PROVIDERS FINAL ACCEPTED UTILITY CONSTRUCTION PLAN 
4.  PARKING WILL OCCUR ONSITE UNTIL WORKFORCRE SIZE REQUIRES PARKING AND STAGING AT AIRPORT LOT OR THIRD PARTY OFFSITE LOT
5.  SHORING EQUIPMENT TO BE STAGED BEHIND CONSTRUCTION FENCE.  PROPERTY LINE (AT SHORING) WILL INCLUDE JERSY BARRIER AND SCREENED FENCING.
6.  TOWN TRASH ENCLOSURE/SNOWMELT BOILER BUILDING WILL BE PHASED TO ALLOW RELOCATION OF TRASH SERVICE WHILE EXISTING BUILDING IS DEMOLISHED.

C-2B  - HOISTING OPTION 2 -
TEMPORARY CRANE
SWING/STAGING AND OS-3BR2
PHASING

NORTH/SOUTH
PHASING OF
OS-3BR2 TO
MAINTAIN
TRASH
REMOVAL AND
BUSINESS
ACCESS

181'-11 1/4"

Cranes will
pick and back
out of the site
as building is
constructed. 
Cranes will
boom down at
the end of the
day.

I I ) 

D 

I I 

V-Pan 

Conform~ 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

Conform 

..._ ---
--..c'""'"-' 

-- --"-"-"- -ce-"-"--

• 

\ \ ____ _ 

\ 
\ i 
\ 

Sidewalk 
I 

Curb & Gutter 
I 

~ Existing Edge 
of Pan 

----,conform 

: 11+07.30 

Conform 

PC: 10+51.12 

LOT 108 

l 
--.. 

. --.. 

I 

I 

--- . 

✓ 
r 

I 

LOT 68R 

LOT 69R1 

i 
i 

·' i 

I 

i 

i 
i 

I 

i 
I 

PC: 1+85.55 

·, 
·\@ 

\ 

' 
'· " 
' ;, 

\' \ 
',\ ·, 

\, 

Conform 

"' ·,··:0."' 
BP: 'o.+oo.oo \. 

\.'\ \. \.~ c.:" ~ 
A~~\.~~\~'q~ ·-.~ 

S-38\~~ ~~~ \{_ 
) ~ \_\.~~ \. v 

/ I '\ , 1 , ~\ 
I"-. .--..... ) \ ' I l 

' 9'%.s-. l 
~ 
~ 

\ 

\ \ 
' \ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ \ 
\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

' \ 
' ' ' 



10-09-22

CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND COMPARE ALL
CHAPTERS AND INTERDISCIPLINARY DRAWINGS
AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY FIELD WORK BEING
DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AIA DOCUMENT A201

Uncompahgre
Engineering, LLC

C2.1

P.O. Box 3945
Telluride, CO 81435

970-729-0683

Lot 109R
Mtn. Village, CO

Site Grading

with

Garage Access
Profile

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

Line of
Garage Below

OVERALL CONSTRUCITON MITIGATION PLAN

CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND COMPARE ALL
CHAPTERS AND INTERDISCIPLINARY DRAWINGS
AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY FIELD WORK BEING
DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AIA DOCUMENT A201

Uncompahgre
Engineering, LLC

P.O. Box 3945
Telluride, CO 81435

970-729-0683

Lot 109R
Mtn. Village, CO

Site Grading

with

G2 Level

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

25'-1
/2"

25
'-5

 1
/2

"

25
'-3

/4
"

24'-10"

PERIMETER FENCE WITH GREEN SCREEN

JERSY BARRICADES

1. CONTRACTOR WILL SUBMIT AND MANAGE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN PER STATE REQUIREMENTS
2. PHASING AT SHIRANA PLAZA IS PRELIMINARY - CONTRACTOR WILL ACCOMODATE RELOCATION OF FENCING/JERSEY BARRIERS TO DIRECT TRAFFIC INTO PARKING STRUCTURES WHILE PROVING ACCESS FOR
TOWN TRASH REMOVAL - CONTRACTOR TO WORK WITH MOUNTAIN VILLAGE AND HOTELS TO ACCOMODATE MODIFIED ACCESS AND STAGING
3.  CONTRACTOR WILL PRESENT AND COORDINATE UTILITY PHASING PLAN TO MOUNTAIN VILLAGE - FINAL UTILITY PHASING CONTINGENCT UPON UTILITY PROVIDERS FINAL ACCEPTED UTILITY CONSTRUCTION PLAN 
4.  PARKING WILL OCCUR ONSITE UNTIL WORKFORCRE SIZE REQUIRES PARKING AND STAGING AT AIRPORT LOT OR THIRD PARTY OFFSITE LOT
5.  SHORING EQUIPMENT TO BE STAGED BEHIND CONSTRUCTION FENCE.  PROPERTY LINE (AT SHORING) WILL INCLUDE JERSY BARRIER AND SCREENED FENCING.
6.  TOWN TRASH ENCLOSURE/SNOWMELT BOILER BUILDING WILL BE PHASED TO ALLOW RELOCATION OF TRASH SERVICE WHILE EXISTING BUILDING IS DEMOLISHED.

C-3 SHORING

POTENTIAL LIMIT OF SOIL NAILS

I I 

D 

TRACT OS-3A 

@ 

:l;HHI-IJ: 
~fttft+ 

1- -----------: 

: I 
' . 
' ' ' ' 
I - - J 1 ______ _ 

-V-Pan 

PT: 6+65.37 I \ , 

-
Conform~ 

I 

✓ 

'-.._ 

-

Sidewalk 
_L 

Curb & Gutter 

Existing Edge 
of Pan 

\ 
PT: 11+07.30 

I 

Conform 

. " 

.,/ 
\ \ 

\ i 
J 

PC: 10+51.12 

LOT 108 

-\._/ 
t."<-0 

'll 

-- LOT 68R 

g<::,00 

·.,. 
·, 

............... ''· 

LOT 69R1 

I 

I 

I 

i 

I 

i 

I 

I 

I 

i 
I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

PC: 1+85.55 

\ Conform 

\ 

\ 

\ 

' ' 

\ 

\ 

\ 
' \ 

\ \ 

' \ 

\ ' ' \ 

\ \ 

\ 

' \ 
\ 

\ 

\ 



Property Line

C-4 TEMPORARY SHORING SECTIONS
Construction Mitigation

Section Cut - Refer to Exhibit C-5
\ 

\ 
\ 

I 

I 
J 

I 

I 

I 

I 

\ 

\ • 
I 

I 
I 

I 
• 
\ 

I 

I 

) 

/ 

/ 

/ 

. 
/ 

/ 

/ 

.. 

\ -

\1 
I 

\ 
I 

\ ' 
\ 
I \ 

\ 

/ 
/ 

/ . 
/ -,,,, 

-~) \) ,, . ' 
\ , .... 

'.., ', 

' '. ' . 

. . . . " 

/ 
✓ .,,. 

~ 

~ 

.-,,· ,, 
,_ 

' 

- ' . 

2. 

--
~ 

. 
" . 

.. 

--

SHIRANA 
LOT 108 \ 

I 
I 
L -

--

I 
I 

.... 

' 

J 
/, -~ \ -~ 

\ 

;~ 

I 

<,_ 

/ 
I 

I 
V •, 
I \ 

I 
I 

I ' 

\ 

I , 

/ 
I 

.. 

I 

i 

I 

' 

, 
/ 

I 

I 

i 

\ 

t + 

-~-- ------ ---

' ' \ 

' 
' ' " ' 

\ . 
' ·, \ 

\ 

\ ' ~ 

' ' ' • 

\ 

. ' 
' " ' ;, 

" ' -· ' 

I 

\ 



SOIL NAILS  SOIL NAILS SOIL NAILS 

1. 2. 3. 

C-5 TEMPORARY SHORING NAILS
Construction Mitigation

w 
z 
::::i 
>-
~ 
w 
ll.. 

~ 
n... 

6" 311 

it it v 
1 1 " 

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD 

w 
z 
::::i 
>-
~ w 
ll.. 
0 
rx: 
n... 

D' - 6" 2' - 0" MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD 
I/' L.- !( 

z 
~ 

co 

D' - 6" 4' - D" 

I 
I 

w• 
Z I 
::::i I 
>- I 
I- I 
rx: I ~. 
01 
rx: I 
ll.. I 

I 
I 
I 

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD 

11 11 1==1 I 1==1 I 1==1 I 1==1 I 1==1 I 1==1 I l~ITT~ I I 1==1 I 1==1 11 UTILITY ZONE (IF ANY) 11 111 111111! 
11~ M~ 11sts1~ 11t=rM~ 11ats1~ 11t=r ~ · · · ~ '--- ~ ~ 
.. ,~~ZZ'~:1~~N01~1~, i' l~I Ii' 111Ii' 1111 1 111 Ii' 111 Ii' 111 Ii' 111 ~I I 1:~R ~:1 11~~1 I 1:~:1 I1;~111 

11 _111 _ _ ELowGRA~;~iA~NsfRud) 1., 11 _11 1 _11 1 _111 _11 1 _111 _111 _111 _111 ill: 

---------~ 



10-09-22

CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND COMPARE ALL
CHAPTERS AND INTERDISCIPLINARY DRAWINGS
AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY FIELD WORK BEING
DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AIA DOCUMENT A201

Uncompahgre
Engineering, LLC

C2.1

P.O. Box 3945
Telluride, CO 81435

970-729-0683

Lot 109R
Mtn. Village, CO

Site Grading

with

Garage Access
Profile

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

OVERALL CONSTRUCITON MITIGATION PLAN

CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW AND COMPARE ALL
CHAPTERS AND INTERDISCIPLINARY DRAWINGS
AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY FIELD WORK BEING
DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AIA DOCUMENT A201

Uncompahgre
Engineering, LLC

P.O. Box 3945
Telluride, CO 81435

970-729-0683

Lot 109R
Mtn. Village, CO

Site Grading

with

G2 Level

Scale: 1" = 20'

0 10 20 40

25'-1
/2"

25
'-5

 1
/2

"

25
'-3

/4
"

24'-10"

PERIMETER FENCE WITH GREEN SCREEN

LAYDOWN/STORAGE AREAS (behind construction fence)

PARKING AREAS

RECYCLING DUMPSTERS/TRASH DUMPSTERS

JERSY BARRICADES

BEAR PROOF DUMPSTERS

PORTABLE TOILETS

1. CONTRACTOR WILL SUBMIT AND MANAGE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN PER STATE REQUIREMENTS
2. PHASING AT SHIRANA PLAZA IS PRELIMINARY - CONTRACTOR WILL ACCOMODATE RELOCATION OF FENCING/JERSEY BARRIERS TO DIRECT TRAFFIC INTO PARKING STRUCTURES WHILE PROVING ACCESS FOR
TOWN TRASH REMOVAL - CONTRACTOR TO WORK WITH MOUNTAIN VILLAGE AND HOTELS TO ACCOMODATE MODIFIED ACCESS AND STAGING
3.  CONTRACTOR WILL PRESENT AND COORDINATE UTILITY PHASING PLAN TO MOUNTAIN VILLAGE - FINAL UTILITY PHASING CONTINGENCT UPON UTILITY PROVIDERS FINAL ACCEPTED UTILITY CONSTRUCTION PLAN 
4.  PARKING WILL OCCUR ONSITE UNTIL WORKFORCRE SIZE REQUIRES PARKING AND STAGING AT AIRPORT LOT OR THIRD PARTY OFFSITE LOT
5.  SHORING EQUIPMENT TO BE STAGED BEHIND CONSTRUCTION FENCE.  PROPERTY LINE (AT SHORING) WILL INCLUDE JERSY BARRIER AND SCREENED FENCING.
6.  TOWN TRASH ENCLOSURE/SNOWMELT BOILER BUILDING WILL BE PHASED TO ALLOW RELOCATION OF TRASH SERVICE WHILE EXISTING BUILDING IS DEMOLISHED.

C6 - PARKING / DUMPSTERS /
RECYCLING, PORTABLE TOILETS

PORT-O-LETS RECYCLING &
TRASH
DUMPSTERS

BEAR PROOF
DUMPSTERS

CONTRACTOR
PARKING ONSITE

STAGING AND
LAYDOWN

I I / 

D 

TRACT OS-3A 

V-Pan 

Conform~ 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

J 0 

✓ 

Conform 

"'"-"~""..c""'"-"-"-"-"..c~ 

;\\ 
\ 
\ --- -

PT: 3+62. 71~ 

Sidewalk 
I 

Curb & Gutter 

Existing Edge 
of Pan 

: 11 +07.30 

~ ~ \~, ~ T~~\ Conform 
•.. , 

PC: 10+51.12 

\ i \ 
J 

l ...__ 
...__. 

LOT 108 

LOT 68R 

. ...__ 

LOT 69R1 

I 

i 

i 
i 

i 

I 

I 

I 

I 

i 

I 

i 

I 

i 

i 

PC: 1+85.55 

' 
'\ 

\@ 
'· ·, 

·,.. '\ 

'· ;'\ 
', \ 

',\ 
\., 

Conform 

'\ 

'\ 

BP: '0.,1-00.00 '\ ·, 
' ' \ 

' \ 

' 

'\ 

'\ 

'\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 
' ' \ 

\ 

\ 
·. 
\ 

·. 
\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 



EXISTING CONDITIONS
IMPROVEMENTS SURVEY

Lot 109R
Town of Mountain Village

Tiara Telluride LLC
450 South Old Dixie Highway

Suite 8, Jupiter, FL 33458

January 6, 2023

PROJECT NUMBER
21062

Feet
0 16 32

SCALE 1" = 16'

18'-0"

9'-1 1/2"

Pull out for
Delivery Vans

Business Parking
will be maintained
as much as possible
in this area.

Relocate trash to temp
enclosure while existing
enclosure is demoed

Delivery path through
village core to Wine
Merchant and additional
merchants; applicant can
provide small delivery
vehicle that can support
deliveries through the core.

This fence will allow for
pedestrian traffic to the
existing businesses from
the Wagner Plaza

Pedestrian
Pathway

Temporary Lift to
support deliveries to
Silver Star and
Shirana as desired

C-7 CONSTRUCTION MITIGATION WITHIN
EXISTING TOWN PROPERTY WEST OF
SHIRANA

Adjustable Construction Fence

Constrution Access to be fenced
and maintained by Applicant

CONSTRUCTION SITE

Gates to allow construction
traffic through gated construction
entrance.  Prior to permit
issuance and throughout
construction as needed, the
mitigation plan for this area will
be developed, per the
Development Agreement, by the
General Contractor.  

  

 

Construction Vehicle Routing

Trash truck and delivery vehicle
route to service Shirana

Additional gates as needed to
accommodate special traffic
routing 

GARBAG 
FACILITY 

PARKING 

LOT 

GAS METER 
CORRAL 

PHOTO POINT #6 
EI.EVATION- 9521.9;, 

TEL£PHONE 9,. <;; 

' IILMYRA ""~ 
6 8 R ONDOMINIUM •~ .. 

BUILDING ~. 

0.825 ACRES 

SHIRANA 
CONDOMINIUM 

BUILDING 

SHIRANA 
CONDOMINIUM 

BUILDING 

------\ 
---

\ 
\ 

\ 

,u-rnv11,. ffF11c.n-
LINE LOCATION 
FROM G.I.S. 

' ' 
p ' ' 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 
:{ s 

~ ' ' ' ' ' ' ·, ' ' ' '~ ' ' 

\ 

--

STORM DRAIN I 
IN 9511.B6' INYE 
OUT 9511.B2' 

'!!. 

\ 
'!!. 

12" PVC 
12'" PVC 

\ ASPHALT COVERED 
ARF:A 29 OEUNF:ATED 
PARKING SPACES 

TRACT 
OS-3B R-2:N 

CONCRETE 
PAYERS 

,-

........... 

PALMYRA~ .... 
CONDOMINIUM 

BUILDING 

LOT 68R 

J 

LOT 
89-IBCDR 

RAC 
OS-3BR 

WESTERMERE 
CONDOMINIUM 

BUILDING 

89-2A 

This Existing Conditions/Improvement Survey of the Lot 109R Town 
of Mountain Village was compiled using a 2018 UAS drone survey 
which was supplemented by conventional survey means during 
December of 2022. It was produced under the direct responsibility, 
supervision and checking of David R. Bulson of Bulson Surveying 
being a Colorado Ucensed Surveyor. This Existing Conditions Survey 
is not a Land or Improvement Survey Plat as defined by Colorado 
state statute. 
This survey is not to be relied for specific location of buried utilities. 
It is meant as a general source of information and all locations 
must be field verified prior to construction. 

P.L.S. NO. 37662 Date 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: 

LOT 109R TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE ACCORDING TO THE REPLAT 
OF LOTS 7.J-76R, 109, 110, TRACT 89-A AND TRACT OS-.JBR-1 
RECORDED MARCH 18, 2011 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 4455, COUNTY 
OF SAN MIGUEL, STATE OF COLORADO 

NOTES: 

1. Easement research by Adelity Title Company Title Report Order 
Number 150-F17796-22 dated October 5, 2022 at 8:00 A.M 

2. According to FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map 0811.JC0287-D, 
Panel Number 0287D dated September .JO, 1988, Lot 109R is 
within Zone X; Areas determined to be outside 500-year flood 
plain. 

.J. Uneal units represented hereon are shown in U.S. Survey Feet or 
a decimal portion thereof. 

4. This survey is valid only if a print or electronic copy has a seal 
and signature of the surveyor noted within the statement above. 

5. The word certify as used hereon means an expression of 
professional opinion regarding the facts of this survey and does 

·---•-nOI 1'r!l'r1ltitute a warranty or guarantee, expressed or implied. 

6. This survey is prepared for the exclusive use of the party or 
parties indicated within the surveyor's statement. Said statement 
does not extend to any unnamed person or parties without an 
express statement by the surveyor naming said entities. 

CE: According to Colorado law, you must commence any legal 
tion based upon any defect in this survey within three years after 

first discover such defect. In no event may any action based 
any defect in this survey be commenced more than ten years 
~ date of the certification shown hereon. 

"' ~~ 
~ ~ 

"''Z "'~ "'\, 
' ... 

TRACT 

• 



2750897.1 
57363145.1 

2023.08.08 Lot 109R 
    Legal Documents 

Legal Table of Contents 

• Amended and Restated Development Agreement - removed see
Development Agreement as an exhibit to the ordinance.

• Amended and Restated Hotel Covenant

• Easement and License Documents

• Easement Agreement (Pedestrian and Maintenance Access) – See
Forever

• Easement Amendment (Plaza Usage)

• Easement Amendment (Permanent Structures)

• Easement Amendment (Vehicular Access)

• Easement Agreement (Utilities)

• License Amendment/Partial Termination (Utilities)

• Termination of Easement (Mountain Village Boulevard Work)

• Amendment to Pedestrian Access Easement Reserved in Deed to
Tract 89-A

edited by staff only to remove 
the development agreement.

Attachment 1.a.i.2-10

-

i-- 1.'.\Ulr DES G'.'.' GROL 1r-



S&H 8.7.2023 

2828209.4 
 
 
57321787.2 

AMENDED AND RESTATED  
DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS 

(Hotel Operator and Hotel Amenities, Facilities and Services Covenant) 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND 
RESTRICTIONS (“Declaration”) is made as of _________________, 2023 (“Effective Date”) 
by Tiara Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Declarant”). 

DEFINITIONS 

Unless otherwise provided for herein, all capitalized but undefined terms used in this 
Declaration shall have the meanings set forth in the CDC (defined below). In addition, the 
following terms shall have the meanings for them set forth below (“Definitions”). Each of the 
Definitions: (a) form a portion of the basis of this Declaration; and (b) are incorporated in this 
Declaration. 

A. “Act” or “CCIOA” shall mean the Colorado Common Interest Ownership Act, 
Colorado Revised Statutes 38-33.3-101 through 38-33.3-402, as amended and supplemented from 
time to time, or any successor legislation to these statutes. 

B. “Affiliate” means with respect to any specified Person, any other Person 
controlling, controlled by or under common control with such Person.  For the purposes of this 
definition, “control” means the power to direct the management and policies of a Person, directly 
or indirectly, whether through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise; and the 
terms “controlling” and “controlled” have meanings correlative to the foregoing.  

C. “Application” shall collectively mean the various land use applications including 
the Major PUD Amendment Application and the Major Subdivision Application, as those terms 
are defined in the Town Council Approval Ordinance, as well as plans, drawings, specifications, 
narratives, reports, studies and other materials prepared by Declarant and submitted to the Town, 
plus all statements and representations of Developer and its representatives at the public hearings 
before the DRB and Town Council, but only including such hearings occurring after the DRB 
meeting of December 1, 2022, concerning the development of the Project on the Property. 

D. “Building Regulations” shall mean the Mountain Village Building Regulations 
adopted by the Town set forth in Section 17.7 of the CDC, as amended through the Effective Date. 

E. “Business Day” means any day except any Saturday, any Sunday, any day which 
is a federal legal holiday in the United States or any day on which banking institutions in the State 
of Colorado are authorized or required by law or other governmental action to close. 

F. “CCIOA Condominium Unit” shall mean a Unit Owner’s fee simple interest in 
and to an Individual Airspace Unit, together with an undivided interest in the Common Elements 
appurtenant to the Individual Airspace Unit and shall include the Hotel Facilities Unit, Residential 
Condominium Units, Employee Housing Unit and Commercial Condominium Units. 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

G. “CDC” or “Community Development Code” shall mean the Mountain Village 
Municipal Code Title 17 Community Development Code 

H. “Commercial Condominium Units” shall mean each of those particular CCIOA 
Condominium Units specifically designed for commercial uses by the Project Condominium 
Documents and the Town Approvals. 

I. “Common Elements” shall mean the common elements, including any limited 
common elements, formed in the Project Condominium and designated as such pursuant to the 
Project Condominium Documents. 

J. “Declarant” shall mean Tiara Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company 
and its successors and assigns. 

K. “Design Regulations” shall mean the Mountain Village Design Regulations 
adopted by the Town set forth in the CDC. 

L. “DRB” or “Design Review Board” shall mean the Town of Mountain Village 
Design Review Board. 

M. “Efficiency Lodge Units” shall mean each of those Hotel Rooms included in the 
Project that are zoned and designated as an Efficiency Lodge Unit (within the meaning of the 
CDC) in the Town Approvals. Each of the fifty (50) Efficiency Lodge Units in the Project will be 
Hotel Rooms and all will be included in the Hotel Facilities Unit. 

N. “Employee Apartment” shall mean each of those two (2) Employee Apartments 
included in the Project that are zoned and designated as an Employee Apartment (as defined in 
CDC) in the Town Approvals.   The Employee Apartments are not Residential Condominium 
Units.  

O. “Employee Dorm” shall mean each of those eighteen (18) Employee Dorms 
included in the Project that are zoned and designated as Employee Dormitory (as defined in the 
CDC) in the Town Approvals.  Each Employee Dorm may contain up to three (3) individual beds.  
The Employee Dorms are not Residential Condominium Units. 

P. “Employee Housing Unit” means the Employee Apartments, the Employee Dorms 
and associated shared kitchen, recreational facilities and laundry facilities and similar areas of the 
Project that are necessary for operation of the employee housing in the Project.  The Employee 
Housing Unit will be condominiumized pursuant to the Project Condominium Documents as one 
CCIOA Condominium Unit and encumbered by the Employee Housing Restriction (as defined in 
the Project Development Agreement).   

Q. “Final PUD Plans” shall mean the final plans, drawings and specifications for the 
Property and Project that have been approved by the DRB and the Town Council, as reflected in 
the Town Council Approval Ordinance. 

R. “Furniture Package” shall mean those certain standard furnishing packages 
specified by Declarant (and upon creation of the Condominium Project, by the Owner of the Hotel 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

Facilities Unit) and the Hotel Operator for the Hotel Rooms and other Residential Condominium 
Units (exclusive of the Unrestricted Condominium Units).  

S. “Hotel Facilities Unit” means the Hotel Rooms, Lobby/Reception Area, Front 
Desk and associated office, and similar areas of the Project that are necessary for the operation of 
the hotel. The Hotel Facilities Unit will be condominiumized pursuant to the Project Condominium 
Documents as one CCIOA Condominium Unit which may be owned by one entity that may change 
from time-to-time. 

T. “Hotel Guests” shall mean those persons who are staying in any of the Hotel 
Rooms or any of the Residential Condominium Units for short-term accommodation (30 days or 
less) usage purposes as part of the Rental Management Program. 

U. “Hotel Operator” means the company initially retained by the Declarant (and upon 
creation of the Condominium Project, by the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit) and approved by 
the Town in the manner provided for in the Project Development Agreement to operate and 
manage the Hotel Facilities Unit and the Rental Management Program in the Project 
Condominium. 

V. “Hotel Rooms” means each and all of those fifty (50) Efficiency Lodge Units 
located in the Project. Each and all of the Efficiency Lodge Units in the Project will be owned, 
operated, designated and dedicated only for use and occupancy for short-term accommodation 
(less than 30 consecutive days) by Hotel Guests in the Rental Management Program. The 
Efficiency Lodge Units will be part of the Hotel Facilities Unit and will be held in the common 
ownership with the other portions of the Project denoted as the Hotel Facilities Unit.  

W. “Individual Airspace Unit” means that portion of a CCIOA Condominium Unit 
designated for separate ownership by a Unit Owner as depicted on the Condominium Map included 
within the Project Condominium Documents. 

X. “Lodge Units” shall mean each of those Residential Condominium Units included 
in the Project that are zoned and designated as a Lodge Unit (as defined in the CDC) in the Town 
Approvals.   

Y. “Official Records” shall mean the Official Records of the Clerk and Recorder for 
San Miguel County, Colorado. 

Z. “Owner” shall mean the owner of the Property. Upon recordation of the Project 
Condominium Documents “Owner” shall mean and refer to each of the Unit Owners of the CCIOA 
Condominium Units created thereby.  

AA. “Person” shall mean any individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability 
company, limited liability partnership, joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust, 
unincorporated organization or government or any agency or political subdivision thereof. 

BB. “Project” shall mean the development of a certain mixed-use hotel, residential 
condominium and commercial project on the Property in accordance with the Town Approvals. 
The Project shall consist of: a minimum of the fifty (50) Hotel Rooms zoned Efficiency Lodge 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

Units to be operated as part of the hotel and included as part of the Hotel Facilities Unit as required 
by the Project Development Agreement and as shown on the Final PUD Plans; thirty-one (31) 
Lodge Units; twenty (20) Unrestricted Condominium Units; approximately 22,609 sq. ft. of 
commercial space; and two (2) Employee Apartments and eighteen (18) Employee Dorms to be 
owned and operated as part of the Employee Housing Unit and subjected to the Employee Housing 
Restriction (as defined in and required by the Project Development Agreement), each as shown on 
the Final PUD Plans. 

CC. “Project Association” shall mean the non-profit corporation formed to manage the 
Project Condominium as contemplated by the Project Condominium Documents. 

DD. “Project Condominium” shall mean the condominium regime to be established on 
the Property in accordance with the Act and the Project Condominium Documents. The Project 
Condominium consists of certain Individual Airspace Units and Common Elements as established 
and designated by Project Condominium Documents. 

EE. “Project Condominium Documents” shall mean the documents prepared in 
connection with the formation and operation of the Project Condominium, which are anticipated 
to consist of the following instruments: (1) Condominium Declaration; (2) Condominium Map; 
(3) the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws for the Project Association; (4) any Rules and 
Regulations for the Project Condominium; and (5) any and all such other pertinent documents, as 
the same may be amended and/or supplemented from time to time. 

FF. “Project Development Agreement” shall mean that certain Amended and 
Restated Development Agreement executed by and between Declarant and the Town recorded at 
Reception No. ___________ in the Official Records concerning the development of the Project. 

GG. “Project Operational Standards” means the standards for operating the Project 
as determined by the Hotel Operator, in consultation with the Declarant (and upon creation of the 
Condominium Project, by the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit) and Project Association, 
consistent with the terms and conditions of the Town Approvals and the operating standards 
customarily followed by the Hotel Operator for similar projects managed by Hotel Operator 
located in mountain resort locations from time to time which are intended to promote a high 
standard of quality. The Project Operational Standards are intended to be followed for purposes of 
promoting the use and operation of the Project as a full-service hotel within the Hotel Facilities 
Unit and those Residential Condominium Units participating in the Rental Management Program. 
When developing, updating and implementing the Operational Standards, the Hotel Operator shall 
exercise its good faith, commercially reasonable judgment and adhere to industry standards for 
similar projects located in mountain resort locations as well as the actual operational needs of the 
hotel and/or Hotel Guest. It is recognized and agreed that the Project Operational Standards may 
vary seasonally given due consideration to winter periods, summer periods and shoulder seasons 
between winter and summer periods. 

HH. “Property” shall mean Lot 109R2, Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, 
Colorado according to the Replat. 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

II. “Rental Management Program” means the rental management and 
accommodations styled program operated in the Project by the Hotel Operator consisting of the 
Hotel Rooms and those Residential Condominium Units the Unit Owners of which have elected 
to participate in the Rental Management Program.   

JJ. “Replat” shall mean that certain Replat entitled  “Replat of Lot 109R and Tract 
____________” recorded [concurrently with this Agreement] [or] [on ________, 2022 in Plat 
Book ____, Page ___________, Reception No. __________ in the Official Records], establishing 
the boundaries of the Property. 

KK. “Residential Condominium Units” shall mean those particular CCIOA 
Condominium Units that are zoned as Lodge Units and the Unrestricted Condominium Units, 
specified for residential uses by the Project Condominium Documents and the Town Approvals.   

LL. “Town” shall mean the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado. 

MM. “Town Approvals” shall mean those certain land use entitlement approvals 
concerning the Property and the Project that have been granted by the Town, including, without 
limitation, approvals for a major PUD amendment, variations/waivers, Replat, Rezone and the 
transfer of density to the Town density bank and creation of bonus density for workforce housing 
and any other plans or permits granted by the Town for the Property and the Project. The Town 
Approvals are further reflected in the Town Council Approval Ordinance, the Project Development 
Agreement, the Replat, and this Declaration. 

NN. “Town Council” shall mean the Town of Mountain Village Town Council. 

OO. “Town Council Approval Ordinance” shall mean Ordinance No. _____________ 
adopted by the Town Council, approving the Major PUD Amendment and Conveyance of Portions 
of Village Center for the Project, which was recorded on ______________ _____, 2023 at 
Reception No. __________ in the Official Records.   

PP.  “Town Enforceable Restriction” shall mean those provisions established in the 
Project Development Agreement and incorporated by reference into this Declaration and the 
Project Condominium Documents that run to the benefit of the Town, and may be specifically 
enforced by the Town and may not be modified without the prior written consent of the Town. The 
Town shall have the right, but no obligation, to enforce any Town Enforceable Restriction. 

QQ. “Unit Owners” shall mean the respective owners, whether one or more persons, of 
fee simple title to each of the CCIOA Condominium Units.  

RR. “Unrestricted Condominium Units” shall mean each of those Residential 
Condominium Units included in the Project that are zoned and designated as “Condominium” (as 
defined in CDC Section 17.8.1, which refers to a “zoning designation that means multifamily 
dwellings located in condominium community”) in the Town Approvals. 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

RECITALS 

The following recitals (“Recitals”): (a) form a portion of the basis of this Declaration; and 
(b) are incorporated in this Declaration. 

A. Declarant is the current, fee simple owner of the Property. 

B. Prior to the Replat, portions of the Property were platted as Lot 109R (“Lot 109R”), 
Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado according to the “2011 Replat” 
recorded on March 18, 2011, in Plat Book 1, Page 4455 at Reception No. 416994 in the Official 
Records. 

C. The 2011 Replat was entered into in connection with the approval by Town Council 
for the Town of a PUD development on Lot 109R consisting of a mixed-use hotel, residential 
condominium and commercial project (the “2010 Project”) by Resolution of the Town of 
Mountain Village, Mountain Village, Colorado, Approval of Final Planned Unit Development 
Application, Mountain Village Hotel Planned Unit Development, Resolution No. 2010-1208-31, 
recorded in the Official Records on December 10, 2010 at Reception No. 415339 (the “2010 PUD 
Approval”).  In connection with the 2010 PUD Approval, then then-current owner of Lot 109R, 
MV Colorado Development Partners, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“2010 Lot 109R 
Owner”) and the Town entered into that certain Development Agreement, Lot 109R, Town of 
Mountain Village, Planned Unit Development recorded March 18, 2011 at Reception No. 416997 
in the Official Records (the “2011 Development Agreement”).   

D. As required by the 2010 PUD Approval and 2011 Development Agreement, the 
2010 Lot 109R Owner also made and entered into that certain Declaration of Covenants and 
Restrictions (Hotel Operator and Hotel Amenities, Facilities and Services Covenant) recorded 
March 18, 2011 at Reception No. 416998 in the Official Records (the “2011 Hotel Covenant 
Declaration”) placing certain covenants on Lot 109R that would restrict the use and development 
of Lot 109R and the 2010 Project (the “2011 Covenants”). 

E. The Town approved the Replat and the Town Council Approval Ordinance, to 
accommodate certain changes to the 2010 Project.  In connection with the foregoing, Tiara and the 
Town have entered into the Project Development Agreement, which amends and restates the 2011 
Development Agreement. 

F. Pursuant to the Town Approvals and the Project Development Agreement, the 
Town required the Declarant to amend and restate the 2011 Hotel Covenant Declaration and 
supersede and replace the 2011 Covenants with certain covenants on the Property that would 
restrict the use and development of the Property and the Project (“Covenants”). This request is 
satisfied with the execution, recordation and compliance with this Declaration by Declarant 
consistent with the Covenants stated herein. This is the Hotel Covenant referred to and 
contemplated by the Project Development Agreement. 

G. The Town has executed this Declaration to acknowledge its consent to amendment 
and restatement of the 2011 Hotel Covenant Declaration and 2011 Covenants set forth therein and 
to acknowledge that the Covenants established in this Declaration satisfy the requirements for the 
Hotel Covenant as provided for in the Project Development Agreement and Town Approvals. The 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

Town is hereby deemed to be vested with an interest in the Property and Project sufficient to enable 
the Town to exercise its rights and remedies contained in this Declaration. 

H. Nothing herein is intended to, nor shall it be construed as, forming a condominium 
regime for the Project under the Act. 

COVENANTS/RESTRICTIONS 

NOW, THEREFORE, with the consent of the Town, Declarant hereby declares that this 
Declaration amends and restates and supersedes and replaces in its entirety the 2011 Hotel 
Covenant.  The Property and Project shall be owned, held, sold, used and conveyed subject to the 
Covenants which shall run with title to Property and Project. 

1. Requirements and Restrictions Relative to Facilities and Related Services. 

1.1. Required Facilities and Services. The Project must contain the required 
facilities and related services listed in this Section 1.1 below (“Required Facilities and Services”) 
which shall be operated and designed consistent with the Town Approvals and the Project 
Operational Standards.  The provisions of this Section 1.1 shall, upon creation of the Project 
Condominium by recordation in the Official Records of the Condominium Declaration and 
Condominium Map, burden the Hotel Facilities Unit; the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit shall 
have the burdens imposed by this Section 1.1; and neither the Project Association nor any other 
Unit Owner will be responsible for compliance with this Section 1.1; provided, however, that some 
of the Required Facilities and Services may be accommodated within one or more Commercial 
Condominium Units.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, certain Required Facilities and Services may 
be located within portions of the Project other than the Hotel Facilities Unit.   

1.1.1. Lobby/Reception Area. 

(a) A centrally located “Lobby/Reception Area”, proximate to 
the main lobby and entryway into the Project generally consistent with the location and area 
designated in the Final PUD Plans. 

(b) The Lobby/Reception Area shall be appropriately designed, 
sized, constructed and operated to accommodate the intended use as a Lobby/Reception Area. 

(c) The Lobby/Reception Area will be allocated to and for the 
use of the Hotel Operator to enable it to undertake the Rental Management Program operated in 
the Condominium Project. 

(d) The Lobby/Reception Area will include a “Front Desk” that 
must be appropriately staffed on a full-time basis to accommodate Unit Owners of Residential 
Condominium Units and Hotel Guests. 

(e) The staff at the Front Desk will be trained to offer concierge 
services, which shall include, at a minimum, the provision of general assistance and advisory 
services to Unit Owners of Residential Condominium Units and Hotel Guests concerning the 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

identification of and, where applicable, the provision of reservation services for local recreational, 
dining, transportation and other similar services. 

(f) Access to all of the Hotel Rooms and each of those 
Residential Condominium Units that are then included in the Rental Management Program by any 
Unit Owner of Residential Condominium Units or Hotel Guest will require keys, access cards or 
similar devices available only at the Front Desk or through electronic device applications and valid 
only during the scheduled stay of the Unit Owner of Residential Condominium Units or Hotel 
Guest. 

1.1.2. Operational Space for Rental Management Program. 

(a) Suitable “back of house” space will be established and 
located in the Project to serve the operational needs of the Rental Management Program in line 
with industry standards and norms. The “back of house” space will be generally consistent with 
the location and area designated in the Final PUD Plans. 

(b) Customary bellman services or, alternatively, a guest 
experience manager who can be contacted through an electronic device application to provide a 
number of services including those traditionally provided by a bellman, in line with industry 
standards and norms will be provided to all Hotel Guests staying in the Hotel Rooms and for Unit 
Owners of Residential Condominium Units or Hotel Guests for those Residential Condominium 
Units included in the Rental Management Program. 

(c) Housekeeping/maid service, including daily housekeeping 
services, will be provided to all Hotel Guests staying in the Hotel Rooms and will be available for 
Unit Owners of Residential Condominium Units or Hotel Guests for those Residential 
Condominium Units included in the Rental Management Program. 

1.1.3. Restaurant. 

(a) One or more restaurants with appropriate areas for seating, 
kitchen, preparation and storage will be established and located in the Project and the restaurant 
will be accessible to all Unit Owners of Residential Condominium Units, Hotel Guests and the 
general public. The size and location of the restaurants will be generally consistent with the 
location and area designated in the Final PUD Plans. 

(b) One or more restaurants or a separate kitchen dedicated to 
providing room service will operate in a coordinated manner with the Hotel Operator or an affiliate 
thereof to provide room service to each of the Hotel Rooms and Residential Condominium Units 
during the regular business hours of the restaurant or dedicated room service kitchen. 

1.1.4. Bar/Lounge. A “Bar/Lounge” will be established and located in the 
Project and will be accessible to all Unit Owners of Residential Condominium Units, Hotel Guests 
and the general public. The Bar/Lounge may be located separately from the area or areas assigned 
to restaurant uses depending upon the requirements of the Hotel Operator or an affiliate thereof. 

1.1.5. Spa and Fitness Center. 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

(a) A spa/fitness center will be established and located in the 
Project and will be accessible to all Unit Owners of Residential Condominium Units and Hotel 
Guests.  A spa/fitness center will consist of various facilities and services appropriate for the Hotel 
based upon industry standards and needs, which shall include a fitness/exercise area with suitable 
equipment, massage and similar personal treatment services, Jacuzzi/hot tub, locker rooms. The 
size and location of the spa/fitness center will be generally consistent with the location and area 
designated in the Final PUD Plans. 

(b) Some or all of the components of the spa/fitness center shall 
be made available to the general public. 

(c) The spa/fitness center will offer preferential use and service 
packages for Unit Owners of Residential Condominium Units and Hotel Guests. 

(d) Usage fees and charges for the use of the spa/fitness center 
and related services are contemplated and allowed. 

1.1.6. Pool. 

(a) A small social pool and potentially associated amenities will 
be located in the Project and will be accessible to all Unit Owners of Residential Condominium 
Units and Hotel Guests. 

(b) Some or all of the components of the pool shall be made 
available to the general public, usage fees and charges for the use of the pool and related services 
are contemplated and allowed. 

(c) Beverage service to the pool area will be made available to 
all Unit Owners of Residential Condominium Units, Hotel Guests and the general public. 

1.1.7. Business Services.  A business center will be established and located 
in the Project and will be accessible for Unit Owners of Residential Condominium Units and Hotel 
Guests or, alternatively, a guest experience manager who can be contacted through an electronic 
device application will coordinate accommodation of the business-related needs of Unit Owners 
of Residential Condominium Units and Hotel Guests. 

1.1.8. Retail Store. A retail store will be established and located in the 
Project and will be accessible for Unit Owners of Residential Condominium Units and Hotel 
Guests and the general public. 

1.1.9. Miscellaneous Facilities and Services. The following services and 
any facilities necessary to undertake the services will be provided: 

(a) When the tandem parking spaces and level G3 parking 
spaces, accessible via two proposed vehicle elevators, shown on the Final PUD Plan are utilized, 
valet parking for such spaces will be provided by the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit (or Hotel 
Operator) or the Project Association. 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

(b) Ski valet services, including storage, handling and services 
of ski equipment, will be provided for Unit Owners of Residential Condominium Units and Hotel 
Guests. 

(c) Shuttle services will be available for Unit Owners of 
Residential Condominium Units, Hotel Guests, and employees associated with the Project for 
transport locally and to the Montrose and Telluride airports.  

1.2. Changes to Required Facilities and Services. The Town may agree to 
amending the Required Facilities and Services from time to time as a major PUD amendment 
pursuant to the CDC and subject to the CDC variation regarding PUD Amendments set forth in 
Section 2.4.c of the Town Council Approval Ordinance.  

1.3. Town Enforceable Restriction.  The requirements of this Section 1 will be 
incorporated by reference into the Project Condominium Documents and identified therein as a 
“Town Enforceable Restriction” encumbering the Hotel Facilities Unit. 

2. Requirements and Restrictions Relative to the Hotel Operator and Rental 
Management Program. The Project shall incorporate the requirements and restrictions concerning 
the Hotel Operator and Rental Management Program set forth in this Section 2 (“Rental 
Management Restrictions”), which shall be operated and designed by Hotel Operator consistent 
with the Town Approvals and the Project Operational Standards.  Except as otherwise specifically 
provided in this Section 2, the provisions of this Section 2 shall, upon creation of the Project 
Condominium by recordation in the Official Records of the Condominium Declaration and 
Condominium Map, burden the Hotel Facilities Unit; the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit shall 
have the burdens imposed by this Section 1.2; and neither the Project Association nor any other 
Unit Owner will be responsible for compliance with this Section 1.2.   

2.1. Requirement to Retain Hotel Operator. 

2.1.1. A qualified, professional Hotel Operator meeting the requirements 
for the Hotel Operator set forth in the Project Development Agreement and the Town Approvals, 
initially appointed by Declarant (and upon creation of the Condominium Project, by the Owner of 
the Hotel Facilities Unit), subject to Town approval as set forth in the Project Development 
Agreement Section 5.1 (B), will be retained to operate and manage the Rental Management 
Program for all of the Hotel Rooms and for each of the participating Residential Condominium 
Units.   

2.1.2. The terms and conditions of the appointment of the Hotel Operator 
will be reflected in a “Hotel Management Agreement”. The Hotel Management Agreement will 
provide that the initial term of the services to be provided by the Hotel Operator will be for a period 
of no less than ten (10) years, subject to termination rights for breach of the Hotel Management 
Agreement. Hotel Operator shall provide a written certification to the Town confirming that Hotel 
Operator has reviewed the Town Approvals, including the Project Development Agreement and 
this Declaration and is familiar with the terms and conditions of such documents as it relates to the 
services being undertaken by Hotel Operator. 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

2.1.3. The Hotel Operator shall be responsible for the implementation, 
management and operation of the Rental Management Program, including the marketing of each 
of the Hotel Rooms and those Residential Condominium Units included in the Rental Management 
Program consistent with the Project Operational Standards. The Rental Management Program is 
intended to manage, market and promote the Project and the use and occupancy of the Hotel 
Rooms and the Residential Condominium Units as short-term (less than 30 days) accommodation 
styled rooms by those Unit Owners of Residential Condominium Units who have elected to include 
their respective Residential Condominium Units in the Rental Management Program. 

2.1.4. The Hotel Operator will have use and control of the Front Desk to 
undertake the Rental Management Program. 

2.1.5. Priority shall be given to retain a Hotel Operator experienced in 
managing and marketing similar, service-intensive lodging properties. 

2.1.6. The Hotel Operator or an affiliate thereof may also be retained to 
manage and run the Project Condominium, including the Common Elements and the Project 
Association consistent with the Project Condominium Documents. 

2.1.7. In the event that the services of the Hotel Operator are suspended or 
terminated or the term of the Hotel Management Agreement expires, a qualified, professional 
replacement Hotel Operator meeting the requirements set forth in the Project Development 
Agreement will be retained subject to Town approval as required in Section 5.1.B of the Project 
Development Agreement. 

The requirements of this Section 2.1 will be incorporated by reference into the Project 
Condominium Documents and identified therein as a “Town Enforceable Restriction” 
encumbering the Hotel Facilities Unit. 

2.2. Rental Management Program. 

2.2.1. The Project Condominium Documents shall allow for the operation 
of a Rental Management Program in the Project Condominium.  This Section 2.2 shall be binding 
on the Project Association and all CCIOA Condominium Units within the Project Condominium. 

2.2.2. All of the Hotel Rooms must be included in the Rental Management 
Program. 

2.2.3. The Project Condominium Documents and the Hotel Management 
Agreement as well as the Hotel Operator, Declarant and Project Association must allow each of 
the Unit Owners of Residential Condominium Units to include their respective Residential 
Condominium Units in the Rental Management Program operated by the Hotel Operator in the 
Condominium, subject to continuing compliance with the Unit Rental Agreement. This Section 
2.2.3, to the extent it applies to the Project Condominium Documents, shall be binding on the 
Project Association and all CCIOA Condominium Units within the Project Condominium. 

2.2.4. Nothing herein is intended to require or obligate Unit Owners to 
place their Residential Condominium Units in the Rental Management Program or to use the Hotel 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

Operator to rent their Residential Condominium Unit if they elect to rent the unit or to prohibit a 
Unit Owner of a Residential Condominium Unit from making such Unit Owner’s Residential 
Condominium Unit available for rent other than through the Rental Management Program.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Unit Owners who do not elect to place their Residential 
Condominium Units in the Rental Management Program will not be permitted to operate, own, 
manage or promote the rental of such Unit Owner’s Residential Condominium Unit using the Hotel 
Operator’s name, trademark, service mark or commercial symbol designated from time to time for 
the Project. 

2.2.5. Each Unit Owner who elects to include such Unit Owner’s 
Residential Condominium Unit in the Rental Management Program with the Hotel Operator must 
execute a separate “Unit Rental Agreement” with the Hotel Operator. The Unit Rental Agreement 
for each Residential Condominium Unit included in the Rental Management Program shall 
authorize the Hotel Operator to include, operate and manage the Unit Owners’ Residential 
Condominium Unit in the Rental Management Program consistent with the terms and conditions 
of this Declaration.   

The requirements of this Section 2.2 will be incorporated by reference into the Project 
Condominium Documents and identified therein as a “Town Enforceable Restriction” binding 
on all the CCIOA Condominium Units and the Project Association. 

2.3. Staffing. The Hotel Operator, in consultation with the Declarant (and upon 
creation of the Condominium Project, by the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit) and the Project 
Association, shall retain or cause to be retained sufficient staffing and equipment to operate and 
manage the Required Facilities and Services and the Rental Management Program consistent with 
this Declaration, but subject to the Project Operational Standards (defined below). 

The requirements of this Section 2.3 will be incorporated by reference into the Project 
Condominium Documents and identified therein as a “Town Enforceable Restriction” 
encumbering the Hotel Facilities Unit. 

3. Requirements and Restrictions Relative to Residential Condominium Units. Each 
of the Residential Condominium Units, except for the Unrestricted Residential Condominium 
Units, will be owned, used and operated consistent with the requirements and restrictions set forth 
below (“Residential Condominium Units Use Restrictions”).  Except as otherwise specifically 
provided in this Section 3, the provisions of this Section 3 shall, upon creation of the Project 
Condominium by recordation in the Official Records of the Condominium Declaration and 
Condominium Map, burden each Residential Condominium Unit; the Owner of each Residential 
Condominium Unit shall have the burdens imposed by this Section 3 with respect to such 
Residential Condominium Unit; and neither the Project Association nor any other Unit Owner will 
be responsible for compliance with this Section 3 relative to another Residential Condominium 
Unit.   

3.1. Standard Furnishing Package for All Lodge and Efficiency Lodge Units. 
Declarant (and upon creation of the Condominium Project, by the Owner of the Hotel Facilities 
Unit), in consultation with the Hotel Operator, will establish uniform Furniture Packages that will 
be provided for each of the Hotel Rooms and Residential Condominium Units (exclusive of the 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

Unrestricted Condominium Units). The Furniture Packages will be developed to insure a quality 
of decor, furniture, furnishings and appliances suitable to meet the Project Operational Standards, 
which may include, without limitation, appropriate and suitable fixtures (including bathroom 
fixtures), cabinetry, carpeting, floor covering, paint, wall covering, furniture (including built-in 
furniture, if any), lighting, mirrors, decor items, color television, clock, radio, drapes, shades and 
other window treatments and any and all other fixtures, equipment,  utilities and decorative 
accessories  within the Residential Condominium  Unit. The design and content of the Furniture 
Packages will be offered in different variations and themes intended to achieve the Project 
Operational Standards. As part of the purchase contracts for a Residential Condominium Unit from 
Declarant (exclusive of the Unrestricted Condominium Units), a Unit Owner will be required to 
select one of the variations of the Furniture Package to be included in their Residential 
Condominium Unit. The purchase price for each Residential Condominium Unit (exclusive of the 
Unrestricted Condominium Units) sold by Declarant will reflect the cost for the provision of the 
items included in the Furniture Package for the Residential Condominium Unit, which each Unit 
Owner will be required to pay at closing on the Residential Condominium Unit. The Unit Owner 
purchasing a Residential Condominium Unit (exclusive of the Unrestricted Condominium Unit) 
will not be allowed to opt out of paying for Furniture Package assigned to their Residential 
Condominium Unit. It is expected that the Unit Rental Agreement for each Residential 
Condominium Unit included in the Rental Management Program shall also provide for, among 
other things, that the Unit Owner must, for so long as such Unit Owner’s Residential Unit is 
participating in the Rental Management Program: (a) obtain and maintain a certain Furniture 
Package designated  for their Residential  Condominium  Unit by the Hotel Operator, (b) not add 
or remove elements of the Furniture Package without the prior written approval of the Hotel 
Operator (which may be granted or withheld in the sole and exclusive discretion of the Hotel 
Operator), and (c) authorize the escrowing of funds by the Hotel Operator for the repair and 
replacement of elements of the Furniture Package when deemed necessary as determined by the 
Hotel Operator. In the event a Unit Owner fails to adhere to the terms and conditions of the Unit 
Rental Agreement, including those provisions relating to the provision of the required Furniture 
Package, the Hotel Operator may exclude the noncompliant Residential Condominium Unit from 
participation in the Rental Management Program. There are no requirements for the provision of 
a Furniture Package in Unrestricted Condominium Units, provided, however, that the purchaser of 
an Unrestricted Condominium Unit shall be offered the opportunity to purchase a Furniture 
Package.  The cost of the Furniture Package will not be included in the purchase price of the 
Unrestricted Condominium Unit unless the purchaser of the Unrestricted Condominium Unit elects 
to purchase a Furniture Package. 

3.2. Kitchens.   

3.2.1. Efficiency Lodge Units may contain limited kitchen facilities, which 
may include a sink, microwave, two-element burner, six (6) cubic foot (maximum) refrigerator, 
trash compactor and garbage disposal.  The use of stoves, ovens and/or dishwashers or other large 
kitchen appliances or equipment in an Efficiency Lodge Unit is precluded.  The provisions of this 
Section 3.2.1 shall, upon creation of the Project Condominium by recordation in the Official 
Records of the Condominium Declaration and Condominium Map, burden the Hotel Facilities 
Unit in which the Efficiency Lodge Units are located; the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit shall 
have the burdens imposed by this Section 3.2.1; and neither the Project Association nor any other 
Unit Owner will be responsible for compliance with this Section 3.2.1.  The requirements of this 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

Section 3.2 will be incorporated by reference into the Project Condominium Documents and 
identified therein as a “Town Enforceable Restriction” encumbering the Hotel Facilities Unit. 

3.2.2. There are no restrictions concerning the size or types of kitchen 
appliances and equipment used in Unrestricted Condominium Units or the Lodge Units. 

3.3. Room Size, Layout and Orientation.  The provisions of this Section 3.3 
shall, upon creation of the Project Condominium by recordation in the Official Records of the 
Condominium Declaration and Condominium Map, burden each of the Residential Condominium 
Units, except for the Unrestricted Condominium Units; the Owner of each of the Residential 
Condominium Units (except for the Unrestricted Condominium Units) shall have the burdens 
imposed by this Section 3.3 with respect to such Owner’s Residential Condominium Unit; and 
neither the Project Association nor any other Unit Owner will be responsible for compliance with 
this Section 3.3 with respect to a CCIOA Condominium Unit of which it is not an Owner.   

3.3.1. The size, layout and orientation of each of the Residential 
Condominium Units, except for the Unrestricted Condominium Units, are generally indicated in 
the Town Approvals (“Residential Condominium Unit Layout”).  

3.3.2. The Residential Condominium Units will be designed, constructed, 
owned, used and operated substantially in accordance with the Residential Condominium Unit 
Layout.   

3.3.3. Declarant covenants and agrees with the Town, for itself and all 
future Owners of each of the Residential Condominium Units, that unless approved in writing in 
advance by the Town as a  major PUD amendment pursuant to the CDC (but subject to subject to 
the CDC variation regarding PUD Amendments set forth in Section 2.4.c of the Town Council 
Approval Ordinance): (a) no material changes shall be made to the boundaries of a Residential 
Condominium Unit; (b) no combining or subdividing of Residential Condominium Units, shall be 
allowed; (c) no material change, alteration  or  improvement shall be made to a Residential 
Condominium  Unit, that  involves  altering (other than cosmetic alterations) or removing a weight 
bearing wall, any interior walls, doors or doorways, adding any connecting doorways or removing 
or altering (other than cosmetic alterations) any hallway entry door. 

The requirements of this Section 3.3 will be incorporated by reference into the Project 
Condominium Documents and identified therein as a “Town Enforceable Restriction” 
encumbering the Residential Condominium Units. 

3.4. Provision of Dedicated Hotel Rooms. Declarant (and upon creation of the 
Condominium Project, the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit) shall provide the fifty (50) Hotel 
Rooms, consisting of certain Efficiency Lodge Units, which will be owned, operated and dedicated 
for use only as hotel rooms as part of the operation of the hotel and not as condo-hotel units owned 
by third parties.  The Hotel Rooms are part of the Hotel Facilities Unit and may be 
condominiumized to enable common ownership with other components of the Hotel Facilities 
Unit, provided that all of the Hotel Facilities Unit will be under one common ownership, which 
may change from time to time. The Hotel Rooms shall be made available for exclusive use by 
Hotel Guests for only short-term accommodation (less than 30 days).  The location of the Hotel 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

Rooms must be in general conformance with the Final PUD Plans, with minor changes in locations 
allowed by an administrative approval during the building permit process as provided in Section 
17.4.7 of the CDC. The Town may agree to amendments to changes in the type, mix or 
configuration of the Hotel Rooms from time to time as a major PUD amendment pursuant to the 
CDC and subject to the CDC variation regarding PUD Amendments set forth in Section 2.4.c of 
the Town Council Approval Ordinance.  Notwithstanding anything set forth above to the contrary, 
all changes pursuant to this Section must be made and subject to in compliance with the Act and 
the Condominium Declaration and approved by the Project Association as may be provided for in 
the Project Condominium Documents.  The provisions of this Section 3.4 shall, upon creation of 
the Project Condominium by recordation in the Official Records of the Condominium Declaration 
and Condominium Map, burden the Hotel Facilities Unit; the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit 
shall have the burdens imposed by this Section 3.4; and neither the Project Association nor any 
other Unit Owner will be responsible for compliance with this Section 3.4.  The requirements of 
this Section 3.4 will be incorporated by reference into the Project Condominium Documents and 
identified therein as a “Town Enforceable Restriction” encumbering the Hotel Facilities Unit. 

4. Application; Enforcement; Interpretation and Amendment of Covenants. 

4.1. Building Permit. Provision of the Project Required Facilities. 

4.1.1. As part of its submission of an application seeking the issuance of a 
building permit (“Project Building Permit”) for the Project, Declarant shall submit necessary and 
appropriate construction plans and specifications for the construction of the Project (“Project 
Plans”). Declarant shall cause the Project Plans, as practical, to depict and/or describe the physical 
components of the Required Facilities and Services, the Hotel Rooms and the Residential 
Condominium Units (collectively, the “Project Required Facilities”). 

4.1.2. Declarant shall cause the Project to be constructed in a manner that 
includes the Project Required Facilities in accordance with the construction plans and drawings 
submitted to and approved by the Town as part of the Project Building Permit. 

4.2. INTENTIONALLY DELETED. 

4.3. Reference of Declarations in the Project Condominium Documents. A 
reference to this Declaration and the Covenants relating to the provision of the Required Facilities 
and Services must be noted in the Project Condominium Documents. A draft of the Project 
Condominium Documents will be submitted to the Town for its review and approval, as a staff 
subdivision review per CDC Section 17.4.13.E.3 to be processed as a Class 1 application, prior to 
their execution and recordation in the Official Records. The review of the Project Condominium 
Documents by the Town shall be restricted to a determination that the Project Condominium 
Documents conform to these Covenants, the Project Development Agreement and the Town 
Approvals, unless the Town has created a new process to review and approve all condominium 
map subdivisions, in which case, the Town may review all of the condominium documents per any 
newly adopted process and associated criteria, provided that any such review is not in conflict with 
the Town Approvals or require Declarant to substantively alter the Project or any exactions 
required for the Project. In the event of a conflict, the Town Approvals shall control. 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

4.4. Standard of Performance.  The Declarant (and upon creation of the 
Condominium Project, by the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit) and the Hotel Operator shall 
undertake its duties, obligations, functions and requirements hereunder in conformance with the 
Operational Standards, provided that Declarant (and upon creation of the Condominium Project, 
by the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit) and the Hotel Operator shall have full and complete 
authority and discretion, consistent with the goals and objectives of this Declaration and the terms 
and conditions of the Town Approvals to operate and manage the Project Required Facilities and 
Services, the Rental Management Program, the Residential Condominium Units Use Restrictions 
and to otherwise perform its duties, obligations and functions hereunder in their sole and respective 
discretion, based upon its good faith, commercially reasonable judgment, industry standards as 
well as the actual operational and/or Hotel Guest needs for the Project. 

4.5. Industry Standards and Norms. Customary industry practices, standards and 
norms shall be relied upon if and when necessary for purposes of interpreting, applying and 
enforcing the Covenants established in the Declaration. 

4.6. Amendment or Modification to Covenants. This Declaration and the 
Covenants contained herein may not be terminated, extinguished, suspended, modified or 
otherwise amended without the prior written approval and consent of the Declarant (and upon 
creation of the Condominium Project, by the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit), the Town and 
the Project Association. 

4.7. Default. Remedies. Governing Law. 

4.7.1. Declarant or an Owner (including the Project Association), as 
applicable (a “Party”), shall be “default” under this Declaration (and shall be a “Defaulting 
Party”) if it: 

(a) breaches any Covenant contained in this Declaration and 
binding on such Party and, (b), after receiving written notice of the breach (“Notice of Default”) 
from the Town, fails to cure or commence diligently curing the breach within a commercially 
reasonable time stated in the Notice of Default (not less than five (5) days or more than thirty (30) 
days from the date of the Notice of Default depending on the nature of the violation). The Notice 
of Default contemplated by this Section shall clearly state and describe: (a) each section(s) of the 
Declaration which the Defaulting Party has allegedly violated, (b) a summary of the facts and 
circumstances being relied upon to establish the alleged violation, (c) the specific steps (“Cure 
Events”) that must be undertaken to come into compliance with this Declaration, and (d) the 
reasonable timeframe consistent with this Section within which time the alleged violation should 
be cured (“Cure Completion Date”). 

4.7.2. Following a failure to cure the default following the applicable Cure 
Completion Date, the Town may: (a) initiate an action to compel compliance by the Defaulting 
Party with this Declaration, including injunctive relief and specific performance; (b) pursue any 
and all other rights and remedies available under Colorado Law; and/or (c) take the necessary 
action itself to cause the obligation(s) in default to be performed, in which case the Town may 
recover from the Defaulting Party all damages as well as all costs and expenses reasonably incurred 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

to perform such obligation(s).   All controversies, disputes or claims which arise from or relate to 
this Declaration shall be first submitted to a non-binding mediation.  

4.7.3. In the event of any litigation or mediation, the substantially 
prevailing party shall collect its reasonable costs, expenses and fees, including reasonable expert 
fees and attorney’s fees. 

4.7.4. In the event litigation is commenced in connection with this 
Declaration, personal jurisdiction and venue for any civil action will be deemed to be proper only 
if such action is commenced in District Court for San Miguel County, Colorado. Each Party 
expressly waives its right to bring such action in or to remove such action to any other court 
whether state or federal. 

4.7.5. This Declaration shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Colorado. 

4.7.6. The failure of the Town to insist upon strict performance of any term 
or provision of this Declaration or to exercise any option, right or remedy herein contained, shall 
not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment for the future of such term, provision, option, right 
or remedy, but the same shall continue and remain in full force and effect. No waiver by either 
party of any term or provision hereof shall be deemed to have been made unless expressed in 
writing and signed by such party. 

4.8. In the event one or more CCIOA Condominium Units or Common Elements 
are damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty, the provisions of this Declaration will be held 
in abeyance with respect to the CCIOA Condominium Units or Common Elements (or portions 
thereof) so damaged or destroyed; provided, however, that the provisions of this Declaration will 
apply with full force and effect upon the repair or reconstruction of the CCIOA Condominium 
Units or Common Elements (or portions thereof) so damaged or destroyed. 

5. Miscellaneous. 

5.1. Recordation. This Declaration shall be recorded in the Office of the Clerk 
and Recorder of San Miguel County, Colorado. 

5.2. Binding Effect. This Declaration shall inure to the benefit of the Town and 
its successors and assigns and shall be binding upon the Declarant, its successors and assigns as 
provided in Definition J, and the Owners as provided in Definition Z.  This Declaration shall 
constitute an agreement running with the Property until modification or release by mutual 
agreement of the Town and the Declarant (and upon creation of the Condominium Project, by the 
Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit) (except for the Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit, subsequent 
transferee Owners’ consent to modification(s) or release(s) shall not be required unless the 
modification(s) directly limit or restrict the zoning or development  rights awarded to a subsequent  
transferee  Owner’s specific CCIOA Condominium Unit). This Declaration may be amended or 
supplemented by the Town and Declarant (and upon creation of the Condominium Project, by the 
Owner of the Hotel Facilities Unit) as a major PUD amendment pursuant to the CDC (but subject 
to subject to the CDC variation regarding PUD Amendments set forth in Section 2.4.c of the Town 
Council Approval Ordinance.  



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

5.3. Several Liability Among Owners. The liability of any Owner hereunder is 
several (and not joint). Notwithstanding any other provision of this Declaration, in no event will 
any Owner be liable for any other Owner’s breach of such other Owner’s obligations under this 
Declaration.   

5.4. Liability of Successors in Interest to a CCIOA Condominium Unit.  Upon 
the transfer of ownership by an Owner of a CCIOA Condominium Unit owned by such Owner, 
liability of the transferor for the breach of any Covenant under this Agreement occurring on or 
with respect to the CCIOA Condominium Unit conveyed after the transfer will automatically 
terminate, and any transferee of such CCIOA Condominium Unit shall, by acceptance of the 
conveyance thereof, be deemed to have agreed to assume such liability from and after the date of 
the transfer. 

5.5. No Third-Party Beneficiaries Other Than Owners and the Association.  It is 
expressly understood and agreed that enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Declaration, 
and all rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the Town, other 
Owners and the Association and nothing contained in this Declaration shall give or allow any other  
claim or right of action by any other or third person.  It is the express intention of the Town and 
Declarant that any person other than the Town, Owners and Association receiving services or 
benefits under this Declaration shall be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary only. 

5.6. Notices. Any notice to be given hereunder shall be in writing, addressed to 
the Town or the appropriate Party, and shall be delivered in person; by overnight delivery or 
courier service; or by the United States Postal Service (or any official successor thereto), certified 
mail, return receipt requested, with adequate postage prepaid. Such notice shall be deemed 
delivered at the time of personal delivery, or, if mailed, on the date postmarked, but if mailed the 
time period for any required response shall run from the date of receipt by the addressee, as 
evidenced by the return receipt. Rejection or other failure by the addressee to accept the notice, or 
the inability to deliver the notice because of a change of address of which no notice was given, 
shall be deemed receipt of the notice on the third day following the date postmarked. The addresses 
of the Town, Declarant and Hotel Facilities Unit Owner to which notice is to be sent shall be those 
set forth below.  The addresses of all other Unit Owners to which notice is to be sent shall be the 
address on file with the San Miguel County Assessor with respect to such Unit Owner’s CCIOA 
Condominium Unit. 

Such addresses may be changed by the Town, Declarant or Hotel Facilities Unit 
Owner by written notice to the other delivered in accordance with this Section. 

Town: 

Town of Mountain Village 
Attn: Town Manager 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A  
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

With copy to: 
 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

Garfield & Hecht, P.C. 
Attn: David H. McConaughy 
910 Grand Ave., Suite 201 
Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 
 
Declarant: 

Tiara Telluride, LLC  
 Attn: Avani Patel 
450 S. Old Dixie Hwy 
Jupiter, FL 33458 

With copy to: 

Sherman & Howard L.L.C. 
Attn: Cynthia M. Stovall 
675 15th St. #2300 
Denver, CO 80202 
Fax: (303) 298-0940 
 
Hotel Facilities Unit Owner: 
 
Tiara Telluride, LLC  
Attn: Avani Patel 
450 S. Old Dixie Hwy 
Jupiter, FL 33458 
With copy to: 

Sherman & Howard L.L.C. 
Attn: Cynthia M. Stovall 
675 15th St. #2300 
Denver, CO 80202 
Fax: (303) 298-0940 
 
5.7. Severability. If any provision of this Declaration, or the application thereof 

to any circumstance, shall be held to be invalid, unenforceable, or void, the remainder of this 
Declaration and such provisions as applied to other circumstances shall remain in full force and 
effect, and such provision shall be enforced to fullest extent consistent with applicable law. 

5.8. Captions. Section Headings. All headings; use of different type fonts; or 
boldfaced, italicize, or underlined words herein are inserted only for convenience and ease of 
reference and are not to be considered in the construction or interpretation of any provision of this 
Declaration. 

5.9. Terms. Common nouns and pronouns shall be deemed to refer to the 
masculine, feminine, neuter as the identity of the person or persons, firm, or corporation may in 



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

the context require. The plural may include the singular and the singular may include the plural 
and this Declaration shall be interpreted in this regard as the context may require. 

5.10. Conflicts Between Declaration and Project Development Agreement. Any 
conflict between the terms of the Project Development Agreement and this Declaration shall be 
resolved in favor of the most restrictive applicable term in either document. 

5.11. Rights of Lenders. The Town is aware that financing for acquisition, 
development and/or construction, reconstruction or remodeling of the Project or portions thereof 
(“Developer Loan”) may be provided in whole or in part, from time to time, by one or more 
lenders (each, a “Lender”) and consents to the collateral assignment of this Agreement to any such 
Lender. A Successor by Foreclosure(defined below), in connection with a Foreclosure Event 
(defined below), shall be entitled to assume all of the rights and obligations of Developer under 
this Agreement and the Town shall recognize and otherwise permit such Successor by Foreclosure 
to assume all of the rights and obligations of Developer under this Agreement,  provided that 
nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any duty, obligation or other requirement on the 
part of a Successor by Foreclosure to assume any of the duties and obligations of Developer under 
this Agreement unless the Lender by Foreclosure takes fee simple title to the Project through a 
Foreclosure Event, in which case the Successor by Foreclosure shall be bound by the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. A “Foreclosure Event” means: (a) foreclosure under a Developer 
Loan, whether by judicial action or pursuant to nonjudicial proceedings; (b) any other exercise by 
a Lender of rights and remedies (whether under the deed of trust securing the Developer Loan or 
under applicable law, including bankruptcy law) as holder of the Developer Loan and/or as 
beneficiary under the deed of trust, as a result of which any Successor by Foreclosure (as 
hereinafter defined) becomes owner of the Property; or (c) delivery by Developer to such Lender 
(or its designee or nominee) of a deed or other conveyance of Developer’s interest in Property in 
lieu of any of the foregoing. A “Successor by Foreclosure” means any party that becomes owner 
of the Property as the result of a Foreclosure Event.   

 

 

[This space intentionally left blank.  Signature pages follow.] 

  



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Declarant has executed this Declaration as of the Effective 
Date. 

DECLARANT: 

Tiara Telluride, LLC, 
a Colorado limited liability company 

By:   Date:   

Printed Name:   

Title:   

STATE OF _________________ ) 
   ss. 
COUNTY OF _______________ ) 

Acknowledged and subscribed to before me this ______ day of ___________________. By 
______________________________, the ____________________ of Tiara Telluride, LLC. 

Witness my hand and official seal: 

  My commission expires:   

  



 

2828209.4 
57321787.2 

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES AND CONSENTS TO THIS 
DECLARATION, THE COVENANTS AND THE OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
STATED IN THIS DECLARATION. 

Town of Mountain Village, a Colorado 
Home Rule Municipality and Political 
Subdivision of the State of Colorado 

By:   Date:   
________________, Mayor 

 
Printed Name:   

By:   Date:   
Paul Wisor, Town Manager 

 
Printed Name:   

 
STATE OF _________________ ) 
   ss. 
COUNTY OF _______________ ) 

Acknowledged and subscribed to before me this ______ day of ___________________. By 
_______________________, the Mayor of the Town of Mountain Village. 

Witness my hand and official seal: 

  My commission expires:   

 
STATE OF _________________ ) 
   ss. 
COUNTY OF _______________ ) 

Acknowledged and subscribed to before me this ______ day of ___________________. By Paul 
Wisor, the Town Manager of the Town of Mountain Village. 

Witness my hand and official seal: 

  My commission expires:   

 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

1 
57024258.4 

EASEMENT AGREEMENT  
(Pedestrian and Maintenance Access) 

 
THIS EASEMENT AGREEMENT (Pedestrian and Maintenance Access) 

("Agreement") is made effective as of _______________, 2023 ("Effective Date") by and 
between Tiara Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company ("Grantor"), and Town of 
Mountain Village, a Colorado home rule municipality (“Town”). Grantor and Town are sometimes 
individually referred to as a "Party" and sometimes collectively as the “Parties". 

RECITALS 

A. Grantor is the current fee simple owner of Lot 109R2, Town of Mountain Village, San 
Miguel County, Colorado ("Property") according to Replat of Lot 109R and Tract OS-
3BR-2R-1R recorded [concurrently with this Agreement] [or] [on ________, 2022 in Plat 
Book ____, Page ___________, Reception No. __________] (the “Replat”) in the Official 
Records of the Clerk and Recorder for San Miguel County, Colorado (“Official Records”), 
on which Grantor intends to construct a mixed-use, luxury hotel and residential 
condominium project (the “Project”).  The Project consists of certain buildings, structures 
and other improvements (the “Project Improvements”). 
 

B. As of the Effective Date, there exists on the Property a concrete pedestrian walkway 
running from underneath Mountain Village Boulevard to the south across the Property and 
Tract OS-3BR-2R-1R (the “See Forever Walkway”). 
 

C. The Town is a public entity as defined in C.R.S. Section 24-10-103(5). 
 

D. The Town authorized Grantor to develop the Project as evidenced by the Town’s approval 
of the Replat as well as that certain Ordinance of Town Council of the Town recorded on 
_____________, 202__ at Reception No. ______ and the Amended and Restated 
Development Agreement recorded on ____________, 202__ at Reception No. ______, 
both in the Official Records (collectively, the “Town Approvals”).   
 

E. The Town Approvals contemplate that a condominium regime will be established on the 
Property following substantial completion of the Project.  The Town Approvals also 
contemplate that certain items will be addressed in or concurrently with the recording of 
the Project condominium documents and that the provisions addressing such items will run 
to the benefit of the Town, may be specifically enforced by the Town and may not be 
modified without the prior written consent of the Town (each a “Town Enforceable 
Restriction”).   
 

F. The Town Approvals also (i) require an easement to be granted effective as of the Effective 
Date for the See Forever Walkway in its location as of the Effective Date; and (ii) impose 
a Town Enforceable Restriction requiring that, upon substantial completion of and 
recording of the Project condominium documents, the easement area encumbered by such 
easement will be relocated to the final as-built location (horizontally and vertically) of the 
“Pedestrian Accessway” depicted on the Final PUD Plans (as defined in the Town 
Approvals). 



Exhibit C-2 
57024258.4 

 
G. As required by the Town Approvals, Grantor desires to grant (i) to the Town, for the benefit 

of the Town and general public, a pedestrian access easement, and (ii) to the Town, an 
easement for access by small maintenance (utility) vehicles over and across: (i) as of the 
Effective Date, the existing See Forever Walkway as described on the attached Exhibit A 
and depicted on the attached Exhibit B (the “Initial Easement Area”); and (ii) upon 
recording of the Project condominium documents, in the final as-built location 
(horizontally and vertically) of the Pedestrian Accessway depicted on the Final PUD Plans  
and the attached Exhibit C (the “Final Easement Area”).  The area encumbered by the 
above-described easements from time to time is referred to in this Agreement as the 
“Easement Area.” 
 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged and 
accepted, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The Recitals to this Agreement are incorporated into and shall 
constitute a part of this Agreement. 
 

2. Grant of Easement.  
 
2.1. Granter hereby grants and conveys to the Town a perpetual, non-exclusive 

easement for hiking and other pedestrian access, including walking dismounted 
bicycles (the "Pedestrian Access Easement''), and an easement for access by small 
maintenance vehicles (utility vehicles) (the “Maintenance Easement” and 
together with the Pedestrian Access Easement, the “Easements” and the uses 
authorized therefor by this sentence being the “Authorized Uses”) on, over and 
across the Initial Easement Area.  In the event of and upon substantial completion 
of construction of the Project and recording of the Project condominium 
documents, the Easements shall be deemed to be terminated and released from the 
Initial Easement Area and shall instead be located on, over, under, across and 
through the Final Easement Area as identified on the condominium map for the 
Project approved by the Town as required by the Town Approvals.  The Parties 
acknowledge and agree that the exact location and dimensions of the Final 
Easement Area may be altered from that depicted on Exhibit C and the Final PUD 
Plans with the Town’s approval pursuant to the Town’s Community Development 
Code. 

 
2.2. The Easements are granted for the limited purposes specified above and neither the 

Town nor the public shall have the right to use the Easement Area for any other or 
additional use or purpose, except as may be authorized from time to time by other 
written agreement.  The Maintenance Easement and rights to use the Easement Area 
for access by small maintenance vehicles (utility vehicles) shall run for the benefit 
of and be used by the Town only and shall not be available to the public for such 
purposes. 



Exhibit C-3 
57024258.4 

 
2.3. Grantor expressly reserves unto itself, the right to: (A) use and enjoy the land where 

the Easement Area is located from time to time for all lawful purposes that will not 
unreasonably interfere with the rights and interests hereby granted to Town; and 
(B) grant additional easements, licenses, or rights-of-way upon or across the 
Easement Area to other persons or entities. In exercising these reserved rights, 
Grantor acknowledged and agrees that such usage or authorizations will not 
unreasonably interfere with or disturb the rights granted to Town hereunder. 

 
2.4. Grantor may temporarily close the Easement Area for purposes of constructing the 

Project provided that alternative access is provided during such period in 
accordance with the construction mitigation plan approved by the Town as part of 
the Town Approvals or otherwise.  In addition, Grantor may temporarily close the 
Easement Area at any time and from time to time to make repairs or changes to the 
Easement Area or the Project as, in its reasonable judgment may be necessary or 
desirable; provided, however, that (a) such work shall be performed in compliance 
with all applicable laws and the Town Approvals, (b) such work shall be undertaken 
in a manner that reasonably minimizes any interference with the use of the 
Easements by the Town and public (as applicable), and (b) for the duration of any 
period during which the Easement Area is closed for the Authorized Uses, Grantor 
shall provide an alternative means of access. 

 
2.5. The rights, duties and obligations of the Grantor hereunder are contemplated to be 

incorporated into the condominium documents for the Project. 
 

3. Documenting Relocation of Easement Area.  Notwithstanding the automatic termination 
and release of the Easements from the Initial Easement Area and encumbrance of the Final 
Easement Area with the Easements as provided in Section 2.1 above, in the event and upon 
substantial completion of construction of the Project and recording of the Project 
condominium documents, at the request of either Party and at the expense of Grantor, the 
Parties will execute and record in the Official Records an amendment to this Agreement to 
evidence the relocation of the Easement Area to the Final Easement Area and the 
relinquishment and termination by the Town of any rights it may have had in the Initial 
Easement Area pursuant to this Agreement.   
 

4. Indemnities and Insurance; Governmental Immunity. Any financial obligations of the 
Town under the Agreement, shall at all times be subject to annual budgeting and 
appropriation by the Town Council in its discretion and shall not be deemed to be multiple-
fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other prohibited financial obligations within the 
meaning of Article X, Section 20(4) of the Colorado Constitution. Nothing in the 
Agreement shall be construed as a waiver or limitation on Town’s governmental immunity.   
 

5. Miscellaneous. 
 

5.1. Runs with the Land, Successors and Assigns. The easement, benefits and rights 
granted and agreed to herein and the burdens, duties and obligations imposed and 



Exhibit C-4 
57024258.4 

agreed to herein shall run with the land and shall be a benefit of and burden upon 
the Property on the one hand, and the Town as an easement in gross on the other 
hand, as applicable, during the term of this Agreement. Further, the easement, 
benefits and rights granted and agreed to herein and the burdens, duties and 
obligations imposed and agreed to herein shall be binding upon and shall inure to 
the benefit of, and be a burden upon, the designees, successors, and assigns of all 
of the Parties to this Agreement during the term of this Agreement.  The Easements 
and the rights and obligations of the Town under this Agreement may be assigned 
only to another public entity as defined in C.R.S. Section 24-10-103(5). 
 

5.2. Recording. This Agreement will be recorded in the Official Records. 
 
5.3. Performances. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and for the performance 

of each of the duties and obligations provided herein. 
 
5.4. Default. Notice and Cure. In all instances under this Agreement, at such time as a 

Party ("Claiming Party") claims that any other Party ("Responding Party") has 
violated or breached any of the terms, conditions or provisions of this Agreement 
("Default"), the Claiming Party shall promptly prepare and deliver to the 
Responding Party a written notice ("Notice of Default") claiming or asserting that 
the Claiming Party is in default under a term or provision of this Agreement, which 
notice shall clearly state and describe: (a) each section(s) of the Agreement which 
the Responding Party has allegedly violated, (b) a summary of the facts and 
circumstances being relied upon to establish the alleged violation, (c) the specific 
steps ("Cure Events") that must be undertaken to come into compliance with the 
Governing Documents, and (d) the reasonable timeframe, not less than ten days for 
a monetary default and not less than thirty days for a non-monetary default (unless 
emergency circumstances require a shorter response time), within which time the 
alleged violation should be cured ("Cure Completion Date"). 
 

5.5. Governing Law. Remedies. Costs and Expenses. This Agreement shall be 
construed under and governed by the laws of Colorado, with jurisdiction and venue 
restricted to a court of competent jurisdiction in San Miguel County, Colorado. A 
Party may pursue any and all available remedies under applicable law. All of the 
rights and remedies of the Parties under this Agreement shall be cumulative. In any 
action to enforce or construe the terms of this Agreement, the substantially 
prevailing Party shall recover all legal and related court costs, including all 
reasonable attorneys' fees and expert witness fees, costs and expenses.  A Default 
under the Agreement by the Responding Party shall not give the Claiming Party the 
right to terminate the License granted in the Agreement. 

 
5.6. Severability. Wherever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be 

interpreted in such a manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law. Tf 
any provision of this Agreement shall be found invalid or unenforceable, this shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and the 
remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 



Exhibit C-5 
57024258.4 

 
 
5.7. Modifications and Waiver. No amendment, modification or termination of this 

Agreement or any portion thereof shall be valid or binding unless it is in writing, 
dated subsequent to the date hereof and signed by each of the Parties hereto or their 
successors and assigns. No waiver of any breach, term or condition of this 
Agreement by any party shall constitute a subsequent waiver of the same or any 
other breach, term or condition. 

 
5.8. Counterparts and Facsimile Copies. This Agreement may be executed in 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together 
shall constitute one and the same document. Facsimile copies of any party's 
signature hereon shall be deemed an original for all purposes of this Agreement. 

 
5.9. Notice. Any notice or other communication to any party given under this 

Agreement will be effective only if in writing and shall be deemed received (i) upon 
receipt when personally delivered; (ii) on the next business day after deposit when 
sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier service, charges prepaid and 
properly addressed, for next business day delivery; or (iii) upon confirmation of 
successful transmission to each recipient’s electronic mail, when sent by electronic 
mail and if confirmed in writing sent by the methods specified in clauses (i) or (ii) 
of this Section), respectively, to whichever of the following addresses is applicable: 

 
Town: 
Town of Mountain Village 
Attention: Town Manager 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., 
Suite A  
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Email: _________________ 
 

With copy to: 
Garfield & Hecht 
Attn: David H. McConaughy 
910 Grand Avenue, Suite 201 
Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 

Grantor: 
Tiara Telluride, LLC  
c/o Lalchandani Simon PL 
25 SE 2nd Avenue, Suite 1020 
Miami, FL 33131 
Email: _________________ 

With copy to: 
Sherman & Howard L.L.C. 
Attn: Cynthia M. Stovall 
675 15th Street #2300 
Denver, CO 80202 

 
 

Notices must be addressed as set forth above, but each party may change its address 
by written notice in accordance with this Section. 

 
 
 

[Signature Pages Follow] 
 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

6 
57024258.4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date. 
 
 

GRANTOR: 
 
Tiara Telluride, LLC,  
a Colorado limited liability company  
 
By: ____________________________________ 
Name: ____________________________________ 
Title: ____________________________________ 
Date: ____________________________________ 

 
 
STATE OF                                     ) 
                                                         ) ss. 
COUNTY OF                               ) 
 
Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me this _____ day of _________, 20___ by 
______________ as _________ of Tiara Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company. 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
                                                                  My commission expires:                                             
Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Signature Page to Easement Agreement (Pedestrian and Maintenance Access)) 
 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

7 
57024258.4 

TOWN: 
 
Town of Mountain Village, a Colorado 
home rule municipality  
 
By: ____________________________________ 

Laila Benitez, Mayor 
 
Date: ____________________________________ 
 
Attest: ____________________________________  
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 

Paul Wisor, Town Manager 
 
Date: ____________________________________ 

 
STATE OF COLORADO                   ) 
                                                            ) ss.                
COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL            ) 
 
Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me this _____ day of _________, 20___ by 
Laila Benitez as the Mayor of Town of Mountain Village. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
                                                                  My commission expires:                                             
Notary Public 
 
STATE OF COLORADO                   ) 
                                                            ) ss.                
COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL            ) 
 
Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me this _____ day of _________, 20___ by 
Paul Wisor as the Town Manager of Town of Mountain Village. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
                                                                  My commission expires:                                             
Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Signature Page to Easement Agreement (Pedestrian and Maintenance Access)) 
 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

Exhibit A-1 
57024258.4 

EXHIBIT "A" 
(DESCRIPTION OF INITIAL EASEMENT AREA) 

 
[To be inserted.] 

 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

Exhibit B-1 
57024258.4 

EXHIBIT "B" 
(DEPICTION OF INITIAL EASEMENT AREA) 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

Exhibit B-2 
57024258.4 

 
 

I : 
SUNNY RIDGE PL. 

Tl1ACV OS-3J 
ro:,o,.· pr-•N',\.'M) 

LOT ijll- HICllll 
"'-"'" """'' "''"·'"'"''-'><;,'HJ 

"'" 
M.ll'0nt' II S 21'00'0li'E 

~.11(1' 

"" Hl l'lltl'«i"I 

VfCHHT YMA# 
~ -~ --

ai 1U4' WlfJII" 11.,ii' • n ,rw E 

ll1'1' :?'I.lit 'll'J~'l:ll'" •.0.41' 1 ~1w'll~• l 

SHEETf 

AL TA/NSPS LAND Tffi.E SURVEY 
Lot '0llll, Town d Moultoh l'llage, 

located wilNn lhe IE 1/4 d Section 34, T.42N. AJ111/., NMPM. CQully of San Mv,el, Slate of Colorado. 

A ,,,.~oftlw~.tq-, """'9'1f,.;;::-...,.---.,,b)'-~ 
6, "'"~ -"-Ol'>d""'-"411<1 .. -

-: 'i. ir-~~~ ...::f- _, 
~,,:u,J.:'";_;i!: Lat It», lat 110,. r,,,,,:t $11-,,1, 

_fSLEY 
Al .. :;An•, ,;;;• 
-Z•"T 'V , ...... , .. ,~ .. -
~ - .. 1111C•Z1V 10-i.• 

U'/(t-'/'-""~!·~t· K<.l:'..'"/(:"'::➔W>!"° f,,K 
12 5 w . F'AClrt c , :51JfTt:: 0 I 

T 'F:'.t .f.1 H, I DF':. r.-,1.nr,.Ar x·, At • ,-..-, 

... ..... t, Ul:11 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

Exhibit C-1 
57024258.4 

EXHIBIT "C" 
(DEPICTION OF FINAL EASEMENT AREA-APPROXIMATE)



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

Exhibit C-2 
57024258.4 

 
 

\ 
\ 
\ 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

\ 

/ 

~EDNEW 
OS.:IBRHCMN 
TR"5HIQ.OOU:.I. 

ltAINTEJt/JIICE 
8UIIJIINtlBHOW 

IIOOIII..EGUIII 

I 
, 
n·•····' 
LJ c•o•o 
□··· ·· ·· 

\ 

\ 
I 

I 

., .... ".';:"':;. 
., .... ~,---

·""~"-' -""'-- "' ' ~ .,., ......... .... ,., . 

"" 

=: ... 

i:~~;,_:::i:~~:;,~;::;;,~:~:;·:±::;~;C1 

_J 0 
UJ 0 

t- ui 

0 ~ :r: 5 (f) z 
UJ ~ (f) z z ::, 

UJ 0 
(f) " 
X ~ 
u5 ... g 

lOT: ~~?£~~:-T 
lOTM~r::~:~
LOT IHfl-_._,.,NDll'IENTTOWlt 

CQ.INQLCO.,!_'="""I.IITW. 

L01 lHll,UO- rwo.o,N1, __ 
Ol!ISl,!9MTT .... 1',1',l'V1 

U >"ltHIIPUl>AW;-l!NTttlWN 
CaJIO: .. SUB,.,TTAl. 1t, 11-1'n 

la! ==.ru~:~TOWM 

FLOO~P1X. - l.E·on;:;1 
Pi.,W.- C'F-~..__L 

A-1.02 



Exhibit C-3 
57024258.4 

i ; ~-~H ELEVATION FROM MOUNTAIN BLVD FLATTENED LOOKING SOUTH 

__ ·a-
~';-;F:~ .u. 

Lt"-•"';n,,,, :~J ... .. .. 
J• , • •4 :; , ~ ... 

\)-. ,--. ,...:-.,;~ .... ..,,,~,...,. 

• MA8ffi 

A[ Dl:!:i1GN
1L 

---- -·- ·-· 

_J 0 
w <.) 

I- ui 

0 " I ~ 
Cf) 

5 
z w ~ Cf) z z ::, 

w 0 

Cf) " 
X I 
u5 § 

LOI !l""/.,._ l'Utl,..11..-~~ I 
:S,,~Q/L~SUl!(OnTAL 

l 01 1ttltPUC A,\K!:N()IHHITO'o\N 

un,...,..,., ,...,_ ,,,,.,""°' 
«iuoo:r..ro. ...... - ~,.,....,..., .... 

1.0, _,,....,,.,....,"""'u,_ 
0-W ... .,TT ... 1<'.1 1."-''2 

L(IT 1...,....., .... ,u,ooTcfflTO'«OI 
,:o,..,.,_ .. ..,...,. ... ,. ,,.,...i,:,,, 



Exhibit C-4 
57024258.4 

 

( J,: ~-~ ELEVATION 

~;r~c ~ 
.,. "'·~''""'"" 

<>• "" ~ .... ,. ., 

\,~ ~ ,t.·· 

, 
1 

WEST ELEVATION· PEDESTRIAN WA.LKWAY , i" ~-~~HWEST ELEVATION 

v-- ,--.,..:-.,,,v 
~~-•>t-'-"' 

AE D['SIGN
1L 

---- ··- ·--

_J 0 
w " I- u.i 
0 "' 
I ~ 
Cf) 

5 
z w ~ Cf) z z ::, 

w 0 
Cf) " 
X I 
u5 § 

LQT101 OIINlC AMU ,<DM WJ .... ~..._otU_....,_,,,, ..... 
Ol.tt.l<&l2 

LOT - NlCAY<NDt•h~ fll'"" 

L()1-l'UU .. YINOl,l,;h1!
e(ll,H;:l,.~r<~,-••ITf Al 

lOT- ,vo•rl(Ool)IIC,ar~f<.,_ 
()lllllll.l8Hln'"-'0.11.X.U 

l◊T-F'!J0;0:~L'\IOl.ll:NT TOW, 
~-"1ITUL1' .... 21'1 

l OTt~ F'!JOA.'o"L-,,C,lll!NTT,:,M, 



S&H 7.19.2023 

 
57266623.1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AND PARTIAL TERMINATION AND RELINQUISHMENT OF 
EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

(Plaza Usage) 
 

This First Amendment to and Partial Termination and Relinquishment of Easement 
Agreement (Plaza Usage) (“Amendment”) is made and entered into this ________________, 
202___ (“Effective Date”) by and between the Town of Mountain Village, a Colorado municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (“Grantor” or “Town”) and Tiara 
Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Grantee”). Grantor and Grantee are 
sometimes each individually referred to as a “Party” and sometimes collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Grantor is the current fee simple owner of Lot 109R2, Town of Mountain Village, 
San Miguel County, Colorado of that certain “Replat of Lot 109R and Tract _____________, 
Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado” (“Grantor Property”) recorded on 
____________, 2023, in Plat Book ___, Page ______ at Reception No. _______ (the “Replat”) in 
the Official Records of the Clerk and Recorder for San Miguel County, Colorado (“Official 
Records”). 

 
B. Grantor intends to construct on the Grantor Property a mixed-use, luxury hotel and 

residential condominium project (the “Project”).  The Project consists of certain buildings, 
structures and other improvements (the “Project Improvements”). 

 
C. Grantor authorized Grantee to develop the Project as evidenced by those certain 

land use entitlement approvals concerning the Grantor Property and the Project that have been 
granted by the Town, including, without limitation, approvals for a major PUD amendment, 
variations/waivers, Replat, rezoning of the Property to PUD, the transfer of density to the Town 
density bank and creation of bonus density for workforce housing and any other plans or permits 
granted by the Town for the Property and the Project. The Town Approvals are further reflected 
in Ordinance No. __________ adopted by the Town of Mountain Village Town Council which 
was recorded on ________________, 2023 at Reception No. _____________, the Amended and 
Restated Development Agreement recorded on ____________, 2023 at Reception No. ______, 
and the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions (Hotel Operator and 
Hotel Amenities, Facilities and Services Covenant) recorded on ________________, 2023 at 
Reception No. _____________, all in the Official Records (collectively, the “Town Approvals”).   

 
D. The use and development of the Project is further subject to applicable provisions 

of the Town of Mountain Village Mountain Village Municipal Code Title 17 Community 
Development Code, adopted by the Town of Mountain Village by Ordinance No. 2013-01, as 
amended through the Effective Date (the “CDC”) (which superseded and replaced the Town of 
Mountain Village Land Use Ordinance referenced in the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement 
(defined below)), the Town of Mountain Village Charter and the Town of Mountain Village 
Municipal Code (“Town Laws”). 

 



Page 2 
57266623.1 

E. Prior to the Replat, portions of the Grantor Property and the Grantee Property were 
platted as Lot 109R and Tract OS-3BR-2, Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, 
Colorado according to the “2011 Replat” recorded on March 18, 2011, in Plat Book 1, Page 4455 
at Reception No. 416994 in the Official Records. 

 
F. Concurrently with the 2011 Replat, Grantor and Grantee’s predecessor in title, MV 

Colorado Development Partners, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, entered into that certain 
Easement Agreement (Plaza Usage) dated March 18, 2011 and recorded March 18, 2011 under 
Reception No. 417000 in the Official Records (the “2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement”) 
pursuant to which Grantor granted an easement over a portion of Tract OS-3BR-2 for certain 
Authorized Uses as set forth therein (the “Plaza Usage Easement”).   

 
G. The Plaza Usage Easement Agreement was entered into pursuant to the 2010 

approval by Town Council for the Town of a PUD development for a project on Lot 109R (the 
“2010 Lot 109R PUD”) by Resolution of the Town of Mountain Village, Mountain Village, 
Colorado, Approval of Final Planned Unit Development Application, Mountain Village Hotel 
Planned Unit Development, Resolution No. 2010-1208-31, recorded in the Official Records on 
December 10, 2010 under Reception No. 415339 (the “2010 PUD Approval”) and in connection 
with (i) that certain Development Agreement, Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village, Planned Unit 
Development recorded March 18, 2011 under Reception No. 416997 in the Official Records (the 
“2011 Development Agreement”) and (ii) the Replat.  The 2010 PUD Approval, 2011 
Development Agreement, and Replat contemplated an earlier iteration of the Project on Lot 109R 
which the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement was entered into to accommodate.  The 2010 
PUD Approval and 2011 Development Agreement have been superseded and replaced in their 
entirety by the Town Approvals and the subject property replatted pursuant to the 2011 Replat. 

 
H. In view of the above-described changes to the Project and related Town Approvals, 

Grantor and Grantee desire to amend the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement as set forth in 
this Amendment, including terminating and releasing it from title to certain parcels of land 
originally encumbered thereby.  The 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement as amended by this 
Amendment is referred to in this Amendment as the “Agreement.” 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual promises 

and agreements made and entered into by the Parties, the sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the undersigned Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 
1. Interpretation. This Amendment amends the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement. In 

the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of this Amendment and the provisions of 
the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement, the provisions of this Amendment shall control. 
Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in this Amendment have the meaning given to 
them in the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement. 

2. Easement Area.  The description of the “Easement Area” set forth in the 2011 Plaza Usage 
Easement Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety.  Accordingly, Exhibit “A” 
depicting the Easement Area and Exhibit “B” legally describing the Easement Area, each as 



  

Page 3 
57266623.1 

attached to the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement, are superseded and replaced in their 
entirety by the attached Exhibit “A” depicting the Easement Area and Exhibit “B” legally 
describing the Easement Area, in each case as amended by this Amendment.  To the extent 
property located within the Easement Area defined in the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement 
is not within the boundaries of the Easement Area as defined in this Amendment, the burdens of 
the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment pertaining to the 
Easement Area are terminated and released from same.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties 
acknowledge and agree that in no event will the foregoing impact or modify the effect of Section 
3 below.  

3. Burdened and Benefited Properties.  The legal description of the “Grantor Property” set 
forth in the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement is hereby superseded and replaced in its 
entirety with the legal description set forth in Recital A of this Amendment above.  The legal 
description of the “Grantee Property” set forth in the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement is 
hereby superseded and replaced in its entirety with the legal description set forth in Recital B of 
this Amendment above.  The easements, benefits and rights granted and agreed to in the 2011 
Plaza Usage Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment and the burdens, duties and 
obligations imposed and agreed to the in the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement as modified 
by this Amendment shall run with the land and shall be a benefit of and burden upon Grantor 
Property (as defined in Recital A above) on the one hand, and the Grantee Property (as defined in 
Recital B above) on the other hand, as applicable, during the term of the Agreement. Further, the 
easements, benefits and rights granted and agreed to in the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement 
as modified by this Amendment and the burdens, duties and obligations imposed and agreed to in 
the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment shall be binding upon 
and shall inure to the benefit of, and be a burden upon, the designees, successors, and assigns of 
all of the Parties to the Agreement during the term of the Agreement. 

4. Authorized Uses.  The list of “Authorized Uses” set forth in Section 1.2 of the 2011 Plaza 
Usage Easement Agreement is hereby amended as follows: 

4.1. Section 1.2.2 is amended and restated in its entirety to incorporate the addition of 
the underlined language below to read as follows: 

To install, operate, use, repair and maintain plaza lighting and other lighting 
attached to the exterior of the building comprising the Project (inclusive of, 
without limitation and/or exclusion, necessary poles, fixtures, switches, utilities 
and other components) and to upgrade the plaza lighting for changing needs of the 
Project. 
 

4.2. The reference to “artwork” is hereby stricken from Section 1.2.4. 

To install, operate, use, repair and maintain hardscaping (inclusive of, without 
limitation and/or exclusion, pavers, bollards, planters, artwork, benches, ramps, 
stairs, rails, walls and other facilities contemplated by the Town Approvals) and, 
subject to receiving Town approval, to upgrade such hardscaping for changing 
needs of the Project. 

 



  

Page 4 
57266623.1 

4.3. The following new Section 1.2.11 is hereby added to Section 1.2: 

To install, operate, use, repair and maintain other Project Improvements projecting 
on the or over the Easement Area, including, but not limited to, awnings, signs (to 
the extent not covered by Section 1.2.5), pavers, bollards, planters, benches, 
ramps, stairs, rails, walls and other facilities contemplated by the Town Approvals) 
and, subject to receiving Town approval, to upgrade such Project Improvements 
for changing needs of the Project. 
 
4.4. The following new Section 1.2.12 is hereby added to Section 1.2: 
 
With respect to the Village Core Transfer Station replacement trash facility located 
southwest of Lot 109R on the western portion the abutting Town Open Space 
Parcel, during the construction period, Grantee shall be responsible for the 
construction of the snowmelt system and the resurfacing of a portion of the 
sidewalk and Town Open Space Parcel as contemplated in the Development 
Agreement and Town Approvals, but thereafter shall be responsible only for the 
operation of such snowmelt system. 
 

5. Land Use Ordinance and Design Regulations.  All references to the Town Land Use 
Ordinance and Design Regulations set forth in the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement are 
hereby replaced with the “CDC.” 

6. Project Association as Successor to Grantee.  The parties acknowledge and agree that the 
2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment contemplate that the 
Project will be subjected to a Condominium formed in accordance with applicable law and existing 
pursuant to certain Condominium Documents and that a Condominium Association will be formed 
in accordance with the Condominium Documents which shall manage and operate the 
Condominium and administer the Common Elements.  With the foregoing in mind, if the Project 
is ever made subject Condominium Documents, then for the purposes of the Agreement, the 
“Grantee” shall be deemed to be the Condominium Association created pursuant to such 
Condominium Documents, and the Condominium Association shall have the burdens and benefits 
imposed and afforded under this Amendment with respect to such parcel, and no individual Unit 
Owner within such common interest community shall have any of such burdens or benefits, except 
insofar as they constitute “Authorized Users” and then only in their capacity as such. 

 
7. Indemnification. The first sentence of Section 4 of the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement 

Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
Grantee does hereby indemnify and save harmless Grantor and its elected and 
appointed officials, employees, agents, representatives, assignees, attorneys, 
successors and assigns from any and all mechanics’ lien(s), expense, claim, action, 
liability, loss, damage, or suit (including attorney’s fees and costs), and costs of any 
kind arising out of, or in any way connected with the exercise of the Authorized 
Uses by Grantee and Grantee’s specifically designated designees, contractors and 
consultants who are undertaking some or all of the Authorized Uses for Grantee. 
 



  

Page 5 
57266623.1 

Notwithstanding any provisions in the Agreement requiring Grantee to avoid any 
liens against the Grantor Property, the Parties agree and acknowledge that the 
Grantor Property is immune from mechanics’ liens, and nothing in the Agreement 
shall be deemed to be a waiver or limitation of Grantor’s governmental immunity 
in any respect. 

 
8. Insurance.  Section 5 of the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement is hereby amended 

and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

Throughout the term of the Agreement, Grantee shall keep and maintain, at its sole 
cost and expense, commercial general liability insurance ("CGL") in amounts per 
occurrence and in the aggregate not less than the Statutory Liability Limits for all 
claims of relief that accrue on or after January 1, 2022 and before January 1, 2026 
as stated below, such amounts to be adjusted every four (4) years as provided 
below. The liability limits of the CGL insurance required pursuant to this Section 
will be reviewed as necessary and any changes mutually agreed upon every four 
years commencing January 1, 2026 to an amount not less than (a) the liability limits 
established by the Colorado Secretary of State from time to time for the 
immediately succeeding four year period pursuant to the Colorado Governmental 
Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-114 and (b) the liability limits generally maintained 
by businesses of similar size engaged in similar activities in the same or similar 
locales as the Project, whichever is greater, but in no event will the amount of the 
coverage be less than the Statutory Liability Limits for all claims of relief that 
accrue on or after January 1, 2022 and before January 1, 2026. The parties 
acknowledge and agree that, as of the Effective Date, the Statutory Liability Limits 
for all claims of relief that accrue on or after January 1, 2022 and before January 1, 
2026 is $424,000 for any injury to one person in a single occurrence and $1,195,000 
for any injury to two or more persons in any single occurrence, except that in such 
instance no person may recover more than $424,000. 
 
CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form and shall cover liability 
arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, products-completed 
operations, personal injury, property damage, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.  Each Condominium Association which is a successor to Grantee 
pursuant to Section 6 of the Amendment shall cause its CGL policy to insure against 
liabilities incurred by each of its members in connection with their use of the 
easements granted pursuant to this Agreement.  Such insurance shall be maintained 
under a policy pursuant to which the Grantor shall be named as an additional 
insured, or, alternatively, as a contractual insured.  Within seven (7) days of the 
Effective Date, Grantee shall provide Grantor with a certificate of insurance 
showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth above.  To the extent 
commercially available, the certificates shall include a provision requiring a 
minimum of thirty (30) days’ notice to Grantor of any change or cancellation. 
 



  

Page 6 
57266623.1 

Grantor waives all rights against Grantee (and its Authorized Users) for recovery 
of damages to the extent such damages are covered by the CGL insurance 
maintained by Grantee pursuant to Section 8 of the Agreement. 

 
9. Remedies.  Section 6.5 of the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement is hereby 

supplemented by the addition of the following: 

A Default under the Agreement by the Responding Party shall not give the 
Claiming Party the right to terminate the Easement granted in the Agreement. 

10. Notice.  Section 6.11 of the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement is hereby amended 
and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 

Any notice or other communication to any party given under this Agreement will 
be effective only if in writing and shall be deemed received (i) upon receipt when 
personally delivered; (ii) on the next business day after deposit when sent by a 
nationally recognized overnight courier service, charges prepaid and properly 
addressed, for next business day delivery; or (iii) upon confirmation of successful 
transmission to each recipient’s electronic mail, when sent by electronic mail and 
if confirmed in writing sent by the methods specified in clauses (i) or (ii) of this 
Section), respectively, to whichever of the following addresses is applicable: 

Grantor: 
Town of Mountain Village 
Attention: Town Manager 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., 
Suite A  
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Email: _________________ 
 

With copy to: 
Garfield & Hecht 
Attn: David H. McConaughy 
625 E. Hyman Avenue, Suite 201 
Aspen, CO 81611 

Grantee: 
Tiara Telluride, LLC  
c/o Lalchandani Simon PL 
25 SE 2nd Avenue, Suite 1020 
Miami, FL 33131 
Email: _________________ 
 

With copy to: 
Sherman & Howard L.L.C. 
Attn: Cynthia M. Stovall 
675 15th Street #2300 
Denver, CO 80202 

 
 

 
Notices must be addressed as set forth above, but each party may change its address 
by written notice in accordance with this Section. 
 

11. Effect.  Except as provided in this Amendment, the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement 
remains unmodified and in full force and effect.  

12. Recordation.  This Amendment shall be recorded in the real property records of San Miguel 
County, Colorado. 



  

Page 7 
57266623.1 

13. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document. 

 

[This space intentionally left blank.] 

  



  

Page 8 
57266623.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment effective as of 
the Effective Date. 
 
GRANTOR: 
 
Town of Mountain Village,  
a Colorado Home Rule Municipality and  
Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 
 
By: _______________________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Printed Name: Paul Wisor 
Title:  Town Manager 
 
State of Colorado  ) 
    )ss 
County of San Miguel  ) 
 
Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________________, 202X, by 
_______________________________ as the _______________________________ of the Town 
of Mountain Village. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 
_______________________________  My commission expires: _______________ 
Notary Public 
  



  

Page 9 
57266623.1 

GRANTEE: 
 
Tiara Telluride, LLC, 
a Colorado limited liability company  
 
 
By: _______________________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Printed Name: _______________________________ 
Title:  _______________________________ 
 
State of _______________ ) 
    )ss 
County of _______________ ) 
 
Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________________, 202X, by 
_______________________________ as the _______________________________ of Tiara 
Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 
_______________________________  My commission expires: _______________ 
Notary Public 



 

Exhibit A-1 
57266623.1 

EXHIBIT “A” 
(Depiction of Easement Area) 

 
 

 

,,',,

//'/ // 

.,; ~ 

' ' ' 

. . 
, , 
' ' / 

' L-«i..xr' 
: ""'l liO.,.' 
j mr,.-.J0'74'ZI" 
I t tt-9'.J I' 
; a,..w oin1"J•"• 

' ' ' 
' ' 
' 

\\. 
--------1 

,, .. "' 
,,-•' / 

'•,,···.,, . ~~~ ••• ,vr- .. ........ .,.~,,. ,_ 

0 ~-:.:-~ l, 1,_ 

'" ....... ____ _ __ ____ ___ :::!;..~-~~/;,-[.-_~~~ ~-

·. ~~---~~~...\. ....... 

::..~ ":.·~~~--·';.i'~~ 
• ffi(Pl'PD,'UJ~ 

,,,, • .,...,_T60LS.J7£<$1,~ , 
""- l>-lo>E,i"'..,._"€fflll!t 
.Cf-'IQ,U." - \OTi;w'J 

~t.:.i..~1;' '$ '~""""" 

. . . . . 
) 
~\ ... 

·--... ... 
. 
-· 



 

Exhibit B-1 
57266623.1 

EXHIBIT “B” 

(Description of Easement Area) 
 
 

[To be added.] 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

55488131.6 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AND PARTIAL TERMINATION AND RELINQUISHMENT OF 
EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

(Permanent Structures) 
 

This First Amendment to and Partial Termination and Relinquishment of Easement 
Agreement (Permanent Structures) (“Amendment”) is made and entered into this 
________________, 2023 (“Effective Date”) by and between the Town of Mountain Village, a 
Colorado municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (“Grantor” or 
“Town”) and Tiara Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Grantee”). Grantor 
and Grantee are sometimes each individually referred to as a “Party” and sometimes collectively 
as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Grantor is the current fee simple owner of Lot 109R2, Town of Mountain Village, 
San Miguel County, Colorado of that certain “Replat of Lot 109R and Tract _____________, 
Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado” (“Grantor Property”) recorded on 
____________, 2023, in Plat Book ___, Page ______ at Reception No. _______ (the “Replat”) in 
the Official Records of the Clerk and Recorder for San Miguel County, Colorado (“Official 
Records”). 
 

B. Grantor intends to construct on the Grantor Property a mixed-use, luxury hotel and 
residential condominium project on the Grantee Property (the “Project”).  The Project consists of 
certain buildings, structures and other improvements (the “Project Improvements”). 
 

C. Grantor authorized Grantee to develop the Project as evidenced by those certain 
land use entitlement approvals concerning the Grantor Property and the Project that have been 
granted by the Town, including, without limitation, approvals for a major PUD amendment, 
variations/waivers, Replat, rezoning of the Property to PUD, the transfer of density to the Town 
density bank and creation of bonus density for workforce housing and any other plans or permits 
granted by the Town for the Property and the Project. The Town Approvals are further reflected 
in Ordinance No. __________ adopted by the Town of Mountain Village Town Council which 
was recorded on ________________, 2023 at Reception No. _____________, the Amended and 
Restated Development Agreement recorded on ____________, 2023 at Reception No. ______, 
and the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions (Hotel Operator and 
Hotel Amenities, Facilities and Services Covenant) recorded on ________________, 2023 at 
Reception No. _____________, all in the Official Records (collectively, the “Town Approvals”).  

 
D. The use and development of the Project is further subject to applicable provisions 

of the Town of Mountain Village Mountain Village Municipal Code Title 17 Community 
Development Code, adopted by the Town of Mountain Village by Ordinance No. 2013-01, as 
amended through the Effective Date (the “CDC”) (which superseded and replaced the Town of 
Mountain Village Land Use Ordinance referenced in the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement 
Agreement (defined below)), the Town of Mountain Village Charter and the Town of Mountain 
Village Municipal Code (“Town Laws”). 
 



 

2 
55488131.6 

E. Prior to the Replat, portions of the Grantor Property and the Grantee Property were 
platted as Lot 109R and Tract OS-3BR-2, Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, 
Colorado according to the “2011 Replat” recorded on March 18, 2011, in Plat Book 1, Page 4455 
at Reception No. 416994 in the Official Records. 
 

F. Concurrently with the 2011 Replat, Grantor and Grantee’s predecessor in title, MV 
Colorado Development Partners, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, entered into that certain 
Easement Agreement (Permanent Structures) dated March 18, 2011 and recorded March 18, 2011 
under Reception No. 417001 in the Official Records (the “2011 Permanent Structures Easement 
Agreement”) pursuant to which Grantor granted an easement over a portion of Tract OS-3BR-2 
for certain Authorized Uses as set forth therein (the “Permanent Structures Easement”).   

 
G. The Permanent Structures Easement Agreement was entered into pursuant to the 

2010 approval by Town Council for the Town of a PUD development for a project on Lot 109R 
(the “2010 Lot 109R PUD”) by Resolution of the Town of Mountain Village, Mountain Village, 
Colorado, Approval of Final Planned Unit Development Application, Mountain Village Hotel 
Planned Unit Development, Resolution No. 2010-1208-31, recorded in the Official Records on 
December 10, 2010 under Reception No. 415339 (the “2010 PUD Approval”) and in connection 
with (i) that certain Development Agreement, Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village, Planned Unit 
Development recorded March 18, 2011 under Reception No. 416997 in the Official Records (the 
“2011 Development Agreement”) and (ii) the Replat.  The 2010 PUD Approval, 2011 
Development Agreement, and Replat contemplated an earlier iteration of the Project on Lot 109R 
which the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement Agreement was entered into to accommodate.  
The 2010 PUD Approval and 2011 Development Agreement have been superseded and replaced 
in their entirety by the Town Approvals and the subject property replatted pursuant to the 2011 
Replat. 

 
H. In view of the above-described changes to the Project and related Town Approvals, 

Grantor and Grantee desire to amend the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement Agreement as set 
forth in this Amendment, including terminating and releasing it from title to certain parcels of land 
originally encumbered thereby.  The 2011 Permanent Structures Easement Agreement as amended 
by this Amendment is referred to in this Amendment as the “Agreement.” 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual 

promises and agreements made and entered into by the Parties, the sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the undersigned Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 
1. Interpretation. This Amendment amends the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement 

Agreement. In the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of this Amendment and the 
provisions of the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement Agreement, the provisions of this 
Amendment shall control. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in this Amendment 
have the meaning given to them in the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement Agreement. 

2. Easement Area.  The description of the “Easement Area” set forth in the 2011 Permanent 
Structures Easement Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety.  Accordingly, 



  

3 
55488131.6 

Exhibit “A” depicting the Easement Area and Exhibit “B” legally describing the Easement Area, 
each as attached to the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement Agreement, are superseded and 
replaced in their entirety by the attached Exhibit “A” depicting the Easement Area and Exhibit 
“B” legally describing the Easement Area, in each case as amended by this Amendment.  To the 
extent property located within the Easement Area defined in the 2011 Permanent Structures 
Easement Agreement is not within the boundaries of the Easement Area as defined in this 
Amendment, the burdens of the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement Agreement as modified by 
this Amendment pertaining to the Easement Area are terminated and released from same.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that in no event will the 
foregoing impact or modify the effect of Section 3 below.  

3. Burdened and Benefited Properties.  The legal description of the “Grantor Property” set 
forth in the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement Agreement is hereby superseded and replaced in 
its entirety with the legal description set forth in Recital A of this Amendment above.  The legal 
description of the “Grantee Property” set forth in the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement 
Agreement is hereby superseded and replaced in its entirety with the legal description set forth in 
Recital B of this Amendment above.  The easements, benefits and rights granted and agreed to in 
the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment and the 
burdens, duties and obligations imposed and agreed to the in the 2011 Permanent Structures 
Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment shall run with the land and shall be a benefit 
of and burden upon Grantor Property (as defined in Recital A above) on the one hand, and the 
Grantee Property (as defined in Recital B above) on the other hand, as applicable, during the term 
of the Agreement. Further, the easements, benefits and rights granted and agreed to in the 2011 
Permanent Structures Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment and the burdens, 
duties and obligations imposed and agreed to in the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement 
Agreement as modified by this Amendment shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of, 
and be a burden upon, the designees, successors, and assigns of all of the Parties to the Agreement 
during the term of the Agreement. 

4. Authorized Uses.  The list of “Authorized Uses” set forth in Section 1.2 of the 2011 
Permanent Structures Easement Agreement is hereby amended as follows: 

4.1. Section 1.2.1 is amended and restated in its entirety to incorporate the addition of 
the underlined language below to read as follows: 

 
For temporary layback of excavated materials and to install, extend, operate, use, 
repair and maintain tower crane foundation systems.  Following completion of the 
Project, Grantee shall not be required to remove any tower crane foundation 
systems installed on the Grantor Property pursuant to this Agreement.  After 
substantial completion of the Project, any tower crane foundation system(s) that 
extend into and under the Easement Area shall be deemed permissibly abandoned 
by Grantee and Grantor may remove, destroy, cut through, or leave them in place. 

 
4.2. Section 1.2.2 is amended and restated in its entirety to incorporate the addition of 

the underlined language below to read as follows: 
 



  

4 
55488131.6 

To install, extend, operate, use, repair and maintain those elements of the Project 
Improvements located below grade (inclusive of, without limitation, commercial 
space, residential space, storage space, parking garages, parking spaces, snowmelt 
systems, HVAC systems, mechanical systems, phone systems, boilers, intake and 
exhaust systems, electrical systems, low voltage systems, fire risers, fire pumps, 
generators, lights, elevators, stairs, ramps, drains, pipes, utilities and other like 
components as well as rooms housing same) and to upgrade these elements for 
changing needs of the Project and Project Improvements. 

 
5. Land Use Ordinance and Design Regulations.  All references to the Town Land Use 

Ordinance and Design Regulations set forth in the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement 
Agreement are hereby replaced with the “CDC.” 

6. Project Association as Successor to Grantee.  The parties acknowledge and agree that the 
2011 Permanent Structures Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment contemplate 
that the Project will be subjected to a Condominium formed in accordance with applicable law and 
existing pursuant to certain Condominium Documents and that a Condominium Association will 
be formed in accordance with the Condominium Documents which shall manage and operate the 
Condominium and administer the Common Elements.  With the foregoing in mind, if the Project 
is ever made subject Condominium Documents, then for the purposes of the Agreement, the 
“Grantee” shall be deemed to be the Condominium Association created pursuant to such 
Condominium Documents, and the Condominium Association shall have the burdens and benefits 
imposed and afforded under this Amendment with respect to such parcel, and no individual Unit 
Owner within such common interest community shall have any of such burdens or benefits, except 
insofar as they constitute “Authorized Users” and then only in their capacity as such. 

7. Indemnification. The first sentence of Section 4 of the 2011 Permanent Structures 
Easement Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

Grantee does hereby indemnify and save harmless Grantor and its elected and 
appointed officials, employees, agents, representatives, assignees, attorneys, 
successors and assigns from any and all mechanics’ lien(s), expense, claim, action, 
liability, loss, damage, or suit (including attorney’s fees and costs), and costs of any 
kind arising out of, or in any way connected with the exercise of the Authorized 
Uses by Grantee and Grantee’s specifically designated designees, contractors and 
consultants who are undertaking some or all of the Authorized Uses for Grantee. 
 
Notwithstanding any provisions in the Agreement requiring Grantee to avoid any 
liens against the Grantor Property, the Parties agree and acknowledge that the 
Grantor Property is immune from mechanics’ liens, and nothing in the Agreement 
shall be deemed to be a waiver or limitation of Grantor’s governmental immunity 
in any respect. 

 
8. Insurance.  Section 5 of the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement Agreement is hereby 

amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 
 



  

5 
55488131.6 

Throughout the term of the Agreement, Grantee shall keep and maintain, at its sole 
cost and expense, commercial general liability insurance ("CGL") in amounts per 
occurrence and in the aggregate not less than the Statutory Liability Limits for all 
claims of relief that accrue on or after January 1, 2022 and before January 1, 2026 
as stated below, such amounts to be adjusted every four (4) years as provided 
below. The liability limits of the CGL insurance required pursuant to this Section 
will be reviewed as necessary and any changes mutually agreed upon every four 
years commencing January 1, 2026 to an amount not less than (a) the liability limits 
established by the Colorado Secretary of State from time to time for the 
immediately succeeding four year period pursuant to the Colorado Governmental 
Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-114 and (b) the liability limits generally maintained 
by businesses of similar size engaged in similar activities in the same or similar 
locales as the Project, whichever is greater, but in no event will the amount of the 
coverage be less than the Statutory Liability Limits for all claims of relief that 
accrue on or after January 1, 2022 and before January 1, 2026. The parties 
acknowledge and agree that, as of the Effective Date, the Statutory Liability Limits 
for all claims of relief that accrue on or after January 1, 2022 and before January 1, 
2026 is $424,000 for any injury to one person in a single occurrence and $1,195,000 
for any injury to two or more persons in any single occurrence, except that in such 
instance no person may recover more than $424,000. 
 
CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form and shall cover liability 
arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, products-completed 
operations, personal injury, property damage, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.  Each Condominium Association which is a successor to Grantee 
pursuant to Section 6 of the Amendment shall cause its CGL policy to insure against 
liabilities incurred by each of its members in connection with their use of the 
easements granted pursuant to this Agreement.  Such insurance shall be maintained 
under a policy pursuant to which the Grantor shall be named as an additional 
insured, or, alternatively, as a contractual insured.  Within seven (7) days of the 
Effective Date, Grantee shall provide Grantor with a certificate of insurance 
showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth above.  To the extent 
commercially available, the certificates shall include a provision requiring a 
minimum of thirty (30) days’ notice to Grantor of any change or cancellation. 

 
Grantor waives all rights against Grantee (and its Authorized Users) for recovery 
of damages to the extent such damages are covered by the CGL insurance 
maintained by Grantee pursuant to Section 8 of the Agreement. 

 
9. Remedies.  Section 6.5 of the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement Agreement is hereby 

supplemented by the addition of the following: 

A Default under the Agreement by the Responding Party shall not give the 
Claiming Party the right to terminate the Easement granted in the Agreement. 

10. Notice.  Section 6.11 of the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement Agreement is hereby 
amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 



  

6 
55488131.6 

Any notice or other communication to any party given under this Agreement will 
be effective only if in writing and shall be deemed received (i) upon receipt when 
personally delivered; (ii) on the next business day after deposit when sent by a 
nationally recognized overnight courier service, charges prepaid and properly 
addressed, for next business day delivery; or (iii) upon confirmation of successful 
transmission to each recipient’s electronic mail, when sent by electronic mail and 
if confirmed in writing sent by the methods specified in clauses (i) or (ii) of this 
Section), respectively, to whichever of the following addresses is applicable: 

Grantor: 
Town of Mountain Village 
Attention: Town Manager 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., 
Suite A  
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Email: _________________ 
 

With copy to: 
Garfield & Hecht 
Attn: David H. McConaughy 
625 E. Hyman Avenue, Suite 201 
Aspen, CO 81611 

Grantee: 
Tiara Telluride, LLC  
c/o Lalchandani Simon PL 
25 SE 2nd Avenue, Suite 1020 
Miami, FL 33131 
Email: _________________ 
 

With copy to: 
Sherman & Howard L.L.C. 
Attn: Cynthia M. Stovall 
675 15th Street #2300 
Denver, CO 80202 

 
 

 
Notices must be addressed as set forth above, but each party may change its address 
by written notice in accordance with this Section. 
 

11. Effect.  Except as provided in this Amendment, the 2011 Permanent Structures Easement 
Agreement remains unmodified and in full force and effect.  

12. Recordation.  This Amendment shall be recorded in the real property records of San Miguel 
County, Colorado. 

13. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document. 

 
[This space intentionally left blank.] 

  



  

7 
55488131.6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment effective as of 
the Effective Date. 
 
GRANTOR: 
 
Town of Mountain Village,  
a Colorado Home Rule Municipality and  
Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 
 
By: _______________________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Printed Name: Paul Wisor 
Title:  Town Manager 
 
State of Colorado  ) 
    )ss 
County of San Miguel  ) 
 
Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________________, 202X, by 
_______________________________ as the _______________________________ of the Town 
of Mountain Village. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 
_______________________________  My commission expires: _______________ 
Notary Public 
  



  

8 
55488131.6 

GRANTEE: 
 
Tiara Telluride, LLC, 
a Colorado limited liability company  
 
 
By: _______________________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Printed Name: _______________________________ 
Title:  _______________________________ 
 
State of _______________ ) 
    )ss 
County of _______________ ) 
 
Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________________, 202X, by 
_______________________________ as the _______________________________ of Tiara 
Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 
_______________________________  My commission expires: _______________ 
Notary Public 



 

Exhibit A-1 
55488131.6 

EXHIBIT “A” 

(New Easement Area) 
 

 

 

''

//,,,••'// 

/;.-· -., 

' ' 

' 
' ' ' ' 

' 

' """' : A-1 111).?4' 
I ~4'28" 
• (H,,,fi.J1' 
: CB>-N oa,f'JI" W 

' 
' ' ' ' ' 
' ' 
' ' ' ' ' 
\ 

' ------ -.1. 

,,,,,,,/· 

,,,"' 

-... -.., 

,,~'~ ....... --..... --... ::-. ____ / 
-. 

' ! 

-----,.. : :::·::~-
-. 11/Y ... UOl.,""W(S1-

t'<ll<M(l.1/••-n.,; '-' J,-1 • 'I ,.,.,._El'(lr"[J)-l'l-
~:~-~~~•'l 
1a'u:N; ""'! MIIU»D >l/'t' 
.<l1M1-r:,,,,, 1.SJ1M< (nl-et:W 

■ PIM)l>ltl,V.T~ 

::;.-~~~-~':>' 
$1'.T ~ ~-~ 

o'Ql,o,C,Jl•·~ .... I.S "40H • "' 
""'g..-EPQo-m ... -
~-r.-..c 
''/Y " ·""'°""W i.$$ltQ 

'\ 
""• 

,,'\, 
C 

'\, '\, ·~ • •c 
'• ~c 

'1 

' ' 
' ' 
' ' ' ~-...\ 

•,-\! 
_ .......... ·\ _ ,\ 



 

Exhibit B-1 
55488131.6 

EXHIBIT “B” 

(Description of Easement Area) 
 
 

[To be added.] 



S&H 7.19.2023 

1 
55708127.5 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AND PARTIAL TERMINATION AND RELINQUISHMENT OF 
EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

(Vehicular Access) 
 

This First Amendment to and Partial Termination and Relinquishment of Easement 
Agreement (Vehicular Access) (“Amendment”) is made and entered into this 
________________, 202___ (“Effective Date”) by and between the Town of Mountain Village, 
a Colorado municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (“Grantor” 
or “Town”) and Tiara Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Grantee”). Grantor 
and Grantee are sometimes each individually referred to as a “Party” and sometimes collectively 
as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Grantor is the current fee simple owner of Lot 109R2, Town of Mountain Village, 
San Miguel County, Colorado of that certain “Replat of Lot 109R and Tract _____________, 
Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado” (“Grantor Property”) recorded on 
____________, 2023, in Plat Book ___, Page ______ at Reception No. _______ (the “Replat”) in 
the Official Records of the Clerk and Recorder for San Miguel County, Colorado (“Official 
Records”). 
 

B. Grantor intends to construct on the Grantor Property a mixed-use, luxury hotel and 
residential condominium project (the “Project”).  The Project consists of certain buildings, 
structures and other improvements (the “Project Improvements”). 
 

C. Grantor authorized Grantee to develop the Project as evidenced by those certain 
land use entitlement approvals concerning the Grantor Property and the Project that have been 
granted by the Town, including, without limitation, approvals for a major PUD amendment, 
variations/waivers, Replat, rezoning of the Property to PUD, the transfer of density to the Town 
density bank and creation of bonus density for workforce housing and any other plans or permits 
granted by the Town for the Property and the Project. The Town Approvals are further reflected 
in Ordinance No. __________ adopted by the Town of Mountain Village Town Council which 
was recorded on ________________, 2023 at Reception No. _____________, the Amended and 
Restated Development Agreement recorded on ____________, 2023 at Reception No. ______, 
and the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions (Hotel Operator and 
Hotel Amenities, Facilities and Services Covenant) recorded on ________________, 2023 at 
Reception No. _____________, all in the Official Records (collectively, the “Town Approvals”).   

 
D. The use and development of the Project is further subject to applicable provisions 

of the Town of Mountain Village Mountain Village Municipal Code Title 17 Community 
Development Code, adopted by the Town of Mountain Village by Ordinance No. 2013-01, as 
amended through the Effective Date (the “CDC”) (which superseded and replaced the Town of 
Mountain Village Land Use Ordinance referenced in the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement 
(defined below)), the Town of Mountain Village Charter and the Town of Mountain Village 
Municipal Code (“Town Laws”). 
 



2 
55708127.5 

E. Prior to the Replat, portions of the Grantor Property and the Grantee Property were 
platted as Lot 109R and Tract OS-3BR-2, Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, 
Colorado according to the “2011 Replat” recorded on March 18, 2011, in Plat Book 1, Page 4455 
at Reception No. 416994 in the Official Records. 
 

F. Concurrently with the 2011 Replat, Grantor and Grantee’s predecessor in title, MV 
Colorado Development Partners, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, entered into that certain 
Easement Agreement (Vehicular Access) dated March 18, 2011 and recorded March 18, 2011 
under Reception No. 417002 in the Official Records (the “2011 Vehicular Access Easement 
Agreement”) pursuant to which Grantor granted an easement over a portion of Tract OS-3BR-2 
for certain Authorized Uses as set forth therein (the “Vehicular Access Easement”).   

 
G. The Vehicular Access Easement Agreement was entered into pursuant to the 2010 

approval by Town Council for the Town of a PUD development for a project on Lot 109R (the 
“2010 Lot 109R PUD”) by Resolution of the Town of Mountain Village, Mountain Village, 
Colorado, Approval of Final Planned Unit Development Application, Mountain Village Hotel 
Planned Unit Development, Resolution No. 2010-1208-31, recorded in the Official Records on 
December 10, 2010 under Reception No. 415339 (the “2010 PUD Approval”) and in connection 
with (i) that certain Development Agreement, Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village, Planned Unit 
Development recorded March 18, 2011 under Reception No. 416997 in the Official Records (the 
“2011 Development Agreement”) and (ii) the 2011 Replat.  The 2010 PUD Approval, 2011 
Development Agreement, and 2011 Replat contemplated an earlier iteration of the Project on Lot 
109R which the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement was entered into to accommodate.  
The 2010 PUD Approval and 2011 Development Agreement have been superseded and replaced 
in their entirety by the Town Approvals and the subject property replatted pursuant to the Replat. 

 
H. In view of the above-described changes to the Project and related Town Approvals, 

Grantor and Grantee desire to amend the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement as set forth 
in this Amendment, including terminating and releasing it from title to certain parcels of land 
originally encumbered thereby.  The 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement as amended by 
this Amendment is referred to in this Amendment as the “Agreement.” 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual promises 

and agreements made and entered into by the Parties, the sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the undersigned Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 
1. Interpretation. This Amendment amends the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement. 

In the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of this Amendment and the provisions of 
the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement, the provisions of this Amendment shall control. 
Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in this Amendment have the meaning given to 
them in the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement.  

2. Approval of Drawings; Installation/Construction of the Work. The definition of “Work” 
set forth in the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement is hereby amended to refer mean and 
refer to the design, installation and/or construction of the facilities, structures, improvements and 



  

3 
55708127.5 

other elements associated with the Authorized Uses set forth in the Agreement.  The definition of 
“Work Plans” set forth in the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement is hereby amended to 
mean and refer to the plans and plats reflected in the Town Approvals (as defined in this 
Amendment) and any such other plans, drawings or specifications relating to the Authorized Uses, 
if any.  Subject to the foregoing, Grantee’s obligations for Approval of Drawings and 
Installation/Construction of the Work as set forth in Section 2 and Section 3 of the 2011 Vehicular 
Access Easement Agreement, respectively, are in addition to all conditions and requirements for 
installation, construction and maintenance as set forth in the Town Approvals (as such term is 
defined in this Amendment). To the extent of any conflict between the provisions of the Agreement 
and the Town Approvals and Town Laws, the Town Approvals and Town Laws shall control.   

3. Easement Area.  The description of the “Easement Area” set forth in the 2011 Vehicular 
Access Easement Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety.  Accordingly, Exhibit 
“A” depicting the Easement Area and Exhibit “B” legally describing the Easement Area, each as 
attached to the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement, are superseded and replaced in their 
entirety by the attached Exhibit “A” depicting the Easement Area and Exhibit “B” legally 
describing the Easement Area, in each case as amended by this Amendment.  To the extent 
property located within the Easement Area defined in the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement 
Agreement is not within the boundaries of the Easement Area as defined in this Amendment, the 
burdens of the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment 
pertaining to the Easement Area are terminated and released from same.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that in no event will the foregoing impact or modify 
the effect of Section 4 below.  

4. Burdened and Benefited Properties.  The legal description of the “Grantor Property” set 
forth in the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement is hereby superseded and replaced in its 
entirety with the legal description set forth in Recital A of this Amendment above.  The legal 
description of the “Grantee Property” set forth in the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement 
is hereby superseded and replaced in its entirety with the legal description set forth in Recital B of 
this Amendment above.  The easements, benefits and rights granted and agreed to in the 2011 
Vehicular Access Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment and the burdens, duties 
and obligations imposed and agreed to the in the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement as 
modified by this Amendment shall run with the land and shall be a benefit of and burden upon 
Grantor Property (as defined in Recital A above) on the one hand, and the Grantee Property (as 
defined in Recital B above) on the other hand, as applicable, during the term of the Agreement. 
Further, the easements, benefits and rights granted and agreed to in the 2011 Vehicular Access 
Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment and the burdens, duties and obligations 
imposed and agreed to in the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement as modified by this 
Amendment shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of, and be a burden upon, the 
designees, successors, and assigns of all of the Parties to the Agreement. 

5. Land Use Ordinance and Design Regulations.  All references to the Town Land Use 
Ordinance and Design Regulations set forth in the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement 
are hereby replaced with the “CDC.” 

6. Project Association as Successor to Grantee.  The parties acknowledge and agree that the 
2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment contemplate that 



  

4 
55708127.5 

the Project will be subjected to a Condominium formed in accordance with applicable law and 
existing pursuant to certain Condominium Documents and that a Condominium Association will 
be formed in accordance with the Condominium Documents which shall manage and operate the 
Condominium and administer the Common Elements.  With the foregoing in mind, if the Project 
is ever made subject Condominium Documents, then for the purposes of the Agreement, the 
“Grantee” shall be deemed to be the Condominium Association created pursuant to such 
Condominium Documents, and the Condominium Association shall have the burdens and benefits 
imposed and afforded under this Amendment with respect to such parcel, and no individual Unit 
Owner within such common interest community shall have any of such burdens or benefits, except 
insofar as they constitute “Authorized Users” and then only in their capacity as such. 

7. Indemnification. The first sentence of Section 4 of the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement 
Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

Grantee does hereby indemnify and save harmless Grantor and its elected and 
appointed officials, employees, agents, representatives, assignees, attorneys, 
successors and assigns from any and all mechanics’ lien(s), expense, claim, action, 
liability, loss, damage, or suit (including attorney’s fees and costs), and costs of any 
kind arising out of, or in any way connected with the exercise of the Authorized 
Uses by Grantee and Grantee’s specifically designated designees, contractors and 
consultants who are undertaking some or all of the Authorized Uses for Grantee. 
 
Notwithstanding any provisions in the Agreement requiring Grantee to avoid any 
liens against the Grantor Property, the Parties agree and acknowledge that the 
Grantor Property is immune from mechanics’ liens, and nothing in the Agreement 
shall be deemed to be a waiver or limitation of Grantor’s governmental immunity 
in any respect. 

 
8. Insurance.  Section 5 of the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement is hereby 

amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

Throughout the term of the Agreement, Grantee shall keep and maintain, at its sole 
cost and expense, commercial general liability insurance ("CGL") in amounts per 
occurrence and in the aggregate not less than the Statutory Liability Limits for all 
claims of relief that accrue on or after January 1, 2022 and before January 1, 2026 
as stated below, such amounts to be adjusted every four (4) years as provided 
below.  The liability limits of the CGL insurance required pursuant to this Section 
will be reviewed as necessary and any changes mutually agreed upon every four 
year commencing January 1, 2026 to an amount not less than (a) the liability limits 
established by the Colorado Secretary of State from time to time for the 
immediately succeeding four year period pursuant to the Colorado Governmental 
Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-114 and (b) the liability limits generally maintained 
by businesses of similar size engaged in similar activities in the same or similar 
locales as the Project, whichever is greater, but in no event will the amount of the 
coverage be less than the Statutory Liability Limits for all claims of relief that 
accrue on or after January 1, 2022 and before January 1, 2026.  The parties 
acknowledges and agree that, as of the Effective Date, the Statutory Liability Limits 



  

5 
55708127.5 

for all claims of relief that accrue on or after January 1, 2022 and before January 1, 
2026 is $424,000 for any injury to one person in a single occurrence and $1,195,000 
for any injury to two or more persons in any single occurrence, except that in such 
instance no person may recover more than $424,000.   
 
CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form and shall cover liability 
arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, products-completed 
operations, personal injury, property damage, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.  Each Condominium Association which is a successor to Grantee 
pursuant to Section 6 of the Amendment shall cause its CGL policy to insure against 
liabilities incurred by each of its members in connection with their use of the 
easements granted pursuant to this Agreement.  Such insurance shall be maintained 
under a policy pursuant to which the Grantor shall be named as an additional 
insured, or, alternatively, as a contractual insured.  Within seven (7) days of the 
Effective Date, Grantee shall provide Grantor with a certificate of insurance 
showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth above.  To the extent 
commercially available, the certificates shall include a provision requiring a 
minimum of thirty (30) days’ notice to Grantor of any change or cancellation.  
 
Grantor waives all rights against Grantee (and its Authorized Users) for recovery 
of damages to the extent such damages are covered by the CGL insurance 
maintained by Grantee pursuant to the Agreement. 

 
9. Remedies.  Section 6.5 of the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement is hereby 

supplemented by the addition of the following: 

A Default under the Agreement by the Responding Party shall not give the 
Claiming Party the right to terminate the Easement granted in the Agreement. 

10. Notice.  Section 6.11 of the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement Agreement is hereby 
amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 

Any notice or other communication to any party given under this Agreement will 
be effective only if in writing and shall be deemed received (i) upon receipt when 
personally delivered; (ii) on the next business day after deposit when sent by a 
nationally recognized overnight courier service, charges prepaid and properly 
addressed, for next business day delivery; or (iii) upon confirmation of successful 
transmission to each recipient’s electronic mail, when sent by electronic mail and 
if confirmed in writing sent by the methods specified in clauses (i) or (ii) of this 
Section), respectively, to whichever of the following addresses is applicable: 

Grantor: 
Town of Mountain Village 
Attention: Town Manager 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., 
Suite A  
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

With copy to: 
Garfield & Hecht 
Attn: David H. McConaughy 
910 Grand Avenue, Suite 201 
Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 



  

6 
55708127.5 

Email: _________________ 
 

Grantee: 
Tiara Telluride, LLC  
c/o Lalchandani Simon PL 
25 SE 2nd Avenue, Suite 1020 
Miami, FL 33131 
Email: _________________ 
 

With copy to: 
Sherman & Howard L.L.C. 
Attn: Cynthia M. Stovall 
675 15th Street #2300 
Denver, CO 80202 

 
 

 
Notices must be addressed as set forth above, but each party may change its address 
by written notice in accordance with this Section. 
 

11. Effect.  Except as provided in this Amendment, the 2011 Vehicular Access Easement 
Agreement remains unmodified and in full force and effect.  

12. Recordation.  This Amendment shall be recorded in the real property records of San Miguel 
County, Colorado. 

13. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document. 

 
[This space intentionally left blank.] 

  



  

7 
55708127.5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment effective as of 
the Effective Date. 
 
GRANTOR: 
 
Town of Mountain Village,  
a Colorado Home Rule Municipality and  
Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 
 
By: _______________________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Printed Name: Paul Wisor 
Title:  Town Manager 
 
State of Colorado  ) 
    )ss 
County of San Miguel  ) 
 
Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________________, 202X, by 
_______________________________ as the _______________________________ of the Town 
of Mountain Village. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 
_______________________________  My commission expires: _______________ 
Notary Public 
  



  

8 
55708127.5 

GRANTEE: 
 
Tiara Telluride, LLC, 
a Colorado limited liability company  
 
 
By: _______________________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Printed Name: _______________________________ 
Title:  _______________________________ 
 
State of _______________ ) 
    )ss 
County of _______________ ) 
 
Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________________, 202X, by 
_______________________________ as the _______________________________ of Tiara 
Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 
_______________________________  My commission expires: _______________ 
Notary Public 



 

Exhibit “A”-1 
55708127.5 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
(New Easement Area) 

 
 

' 

' : .. ~ '.,...,.,.,,. 
I Clt-+!.ll" 
: c:t-N00"Sl"'Jl" I' 

' ' 

' 
' 

' 

\ 
' ---- -- -.!, 

_,,,,,,--✓- ',,',,,',,, . ~~~ ',ty .. ........ ,:,,,, ,s -

0 l'l>,,,o) .... ~ -""' 11/l',WUO,IO'CN'l5rl'IO/I 

',,',,,',,, :::~-~~~-,!,, ~:?/.:.·~~~-~ 
~~:.,•a~~.r"iu 

• - 'r!ll'Ul~ 

¾:."=,m~~~':"" 
,V-lt' .... T ~ 

-Al•·--,...u-""" M!I-_D'lb'm,.,_ ,re,...:, ..._,_ ,,,, 
1 •/Y .. ........ <» 11.JII<> 

' 
' 

, 

~-...\ 

·--\ 
.... \ ...... ;~, 



 

Exhibit “B”-1 
55708127.5 

EXHIBIT “B” 
(Description of Easement Area) 

 
 

[To be added.] 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

55488144.5 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AND PARTIAL TERMINATION AND RELINQUISHMENT OF 
EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

(Utilities) 
 

This First Amendment to and Partial Termination and Relinquishment of Easement 
Agreement (Utilities) (“Amendment”) is made and entered into this ________________, 202___ 
(“Effective Date”) by and between the Town of Mountain Village, a Colorado municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (“Grantor” or “Town”) and Tiara 
Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Grantee”). Grantor and Grantee are 
sometimes each individually referred to as a “Party” and sometimes collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Grantor is the current fee simple owner of Lot 109R2, Town of Mountain Village, 
San Miguel County, Colorado of that certain “Replat of Lot 109R and Tract _____________, 
Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado” (“Grantor Property”) recorded on 
____________, 2023, in Plat Book ___, Page ______ at Reception No. _______ (the “Replat”) in 
the Official Records of the Clerk and Recorder for San Miguel County, Colorado (“Official 
Records”). 

 
B. Grantor intends to construct on the Grantor Property a mixed-use, luxury hotel and 

residential condominium project (the “Project”).  The Project consists of certain buildings, 
structures and other improvements (the “Project Improvements”). 

 
C. Grantor authorized Grantee to develop the Project as evidenced by those certain 

land use entitlement approvals concerning the Grantor Property and the Project that have been 
granted by the Town, including, without limitation, approvals for a major PUD amendment, 
variations/waivers, Replat, rezoning of the Property to PUD, the transfer of density to the Town 
density bank and creation of bonus density for workforce housing and any other plans or permits 
granted by the Town for the Property and the Project. The Town Approvals are further reflected 
in Ordinance No. __________ adopted by the Town of Mountain Village Town Council which 
was recorded on ________________, 2023 at Reception No. _____________, the Amended and 
Restated Development Agreement recorded on ____________, 2023 at Reception No. ______, 
and the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions (Hotel Operator and 
Hotel Amenities, Facilities and Services Covenant) recorded on ________________, 2023 at 
Reception No. _____________, all in the Official Records (collectively, the “Town Approvals”).   

 
D. The use and development of the Project is further subject to applicable provisions 

of the Town of Mountain Village Mountain Village Municipal Code Title 17 Community 
Development Code, adopted by the Town of Mountain Village by Ordinance No. 2013-01, as 
amended through the Effective Date (the “CDC”) (which superseded and replaced the Town of 
Mountain Village Land Use Ordinance referenced in the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement 
(defined below)), the Town of Mountain Village Charter and the Town of Mountain Village 
Municipal Code (“Town Laws”). 

 



2 
55488144.5 

E. Prior to the Replat, portions of the Grantor Property and the Grantee Property were 
platted as Lot 109R and Tract OS-3BR-2, Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, 
Colorado according to the “2011 Replat” recorded on March 18, 2011, in Plat Book 1, Page 4455 
at Reception No. 416994 in the Official Records. 
 

F. Concurrently with the 2011 Replat, Grantor and Grantee’s predecessor in title, MV 
Colorado Development Partners, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, entered into that certain 
Easement Agreement (Utilities) dated March 18, 2011 and recorded March 18, 2011 under 
Reception No. 417004 in the Official Records (the “2011 Utilities Easement Agreement”) 
pursuant to which Grantor granted an easement over a portion of Tract OS-3BR-2 for certain 
Authorized Uses as set forth therein (the “Utilities Easement”).   

 
G. The Utilities Easement Agreement was entered into pursuant to the 2010 approval 

by Town Council for the Town of a PUD development for a project on Lot 109R (the “2010 Lot 
109R PUD”) by Resolution of the Town of Mountain Village, Mountain Village, Colorado, 
Approval of Final Planned Unit Development Application, Mountain Village Hotel Planned Unit 
Development, Resolution No. 2010-1208-31, recorded in the Official Records on December 10, 
2010 under Reception No. 415339 (the “2010 PUD Approval”) and in connection with (i) that 
certain Development Agreement, Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village, Planned Unit 
Development recorded March 18, 2011 under Reception No. 416997 in the Official Records (the 
“2011 Development Agreement”) and (ii) the Replat.  The 2010 PUD Approval, 2011 
Development Agreement, and Replat contemplated an earlier iteration of the Project on Lot 109R 
which the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement was entered into to accommodate.  The 2010 PUD 
Approval and 2011 Development Agreement have been superseded and replaced in their entirety 
by the Town Approvals and the subject property replatted pursuant to the 2011 Replat. 

 
H. The Project is intended to be subjected to a condominium regime 

(“Condominium”) formed in accordance with applicable law and existing pursuant to certain 
“Condominium Documents”. The Condominium will consist of certain “Units” and “Common 
Elements”, including “Limited Common Elements”. A certain “Condominium Association” 
will be formed in accordance with the Condominium Documents, which shall manage and operate 
the Condominium and administer the Common Elements. The Units will be owned by individual 
“Unit Owners” consistent with their rights, duties and obligations arising under the Condominium 
Documents. 

 
I. In view of the above-described changes to the Project and related Town Approvals, 

Grantor and Grantee desire to amend the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement as set forth in this 
Amendment, including terminating and releasing it from title to certain parcels of land originally 
encumbered thereby.  The 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement as amended by this Amendment is 
referred to in this Amendment as the “Agreement.” 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual 

promises and agreements made and entered into by the Parties, the sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the undersigned Parties hereby agree as follows: 



  

3 
55488144.5 

 
1. Interpretation. This Amendment amends the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement. In the 

event of any inconsistency between the provisions of this Amendment and the provisions of the 
2011 Utilities Easement Agreement, the provisions of this Amendment shall control. Capitalized 
terms used and not otherwise defined in this Amendment have the meaning given to them in the 
2011 Utilities Easement Agreement. 

2. Easement Area.  The description of the “Easement Area” set forth in the 2011 Utilities 
Easement Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety.  Accordingly, Exhibit “A” 
depicting the Easement Area and Exhibit “B” legally describing the Easement Area, each as 
attached to the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement, are superseded and replaced in their entirety 
by the attached Exhibit “A” depicting the Easement Area and Exhibit “B” legally describing the 
Easement Area, in each case as amended by this Amendment.  To the extent property located 
within the Easement Area defined in the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement is not within the 
boundaries of the Easement Area as defined in this Amendment, the burdens of the 2011 Utilities 
Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment pertaining to the Easement Area are 
terminated and released from same.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and 
agree that in no event will the foregoing impact or modify the effect of Section 3 below.  

3. Burdened and Benefited Properties.  The legal description of the “Grantor Property” set 
forth in the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement is hereby superseded and replaced in its entirety 
with the legal description set forth in Recital A of this Amendment above.  The legal description 
of the “Grantee Property” set forth in the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement is hereby superseded 
and replaced in its entirety with the legal description set forth in Recital B of this Amendment 
above.  The easements, benefits and rights granted and agreed to in the 2011 Utilities Easement 
Agreement as modified by this Amendment and the burdens, duties and obligations imposed and 
agreed to the in the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment shall run 
with the land and shall be a benefit of and burden upon Grantor Property (as defined in Recital A 
above) on the one hand, and the Grantee Property (as defined in Recital B above) on the other 
hand, as applicable, during the term of the Agreement. Further, the easements, benefits and rights 
granted and agreed to in the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment 
and the burdens, duties and obligations imposed and agreed to in the 2011 Utilities Easement 
Agreement as modified by this Amendment shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of, 
and be a burden upon, the designees, successors, and assigns of all of the Parties to the Agreement 
during the term of the Agreement. 

4. Land Use Ordinance and Design Regulations.  All references to the Town Land Use 
Ordinance and Design Regulations set forth in the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement are hereby 
replaced with the “CDC.” 

5. Project Association as Successor to Grantee.  The parties acknowledge and agree that the 
2011 Utilities Easement Agreement as modified by this Amendment contemplate that the Project 
will be subjected to a Condominium formed in accordance with applicable law and existing 
pursuant to certain Condominium Documents and that a Condominium Association will be formed 
in accordance with the Condominium Documents which shall manage and operate the 
Condominium and administer the Common Elements.  With the foregoing in mind, if the Project 
is ever made subject Condominium Documents, then for the purposes of the Agreement, the 



  

4 
55488144.5 

“Grantee” shall be deemed to be the Condominium Association created pursuant to such 
Condominium Documents, and the Condominium Association shall have the burdens and benefits 
imposed and afforded under this Amendment with respect to such parcel, and no individual Unit 
Owner within such common interest community shall have any of such burdens or benefits, except 
insofar as they constitute “Authorized Users” and then only in their capacity as such. 

5.1. Association as Authorized User.  Section 1.1 is supplemented with the addition of 
the following new Section 1.1.4 adding additional Authorized Users:  

The Condominium Association and its designees, including its managers, 
contractors and consultants retained to undertake the Authorized Uses allowed by 
this Agreement. 

6. Indemnification. The first sentence of Section 5 of the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement 
is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

Grantee does hereby indemnify and save harmless Grantor and its elected and 
appointed officials, employees, agents, representatives, assignees, attorneys, 
successors and assigns from any and all mechanics’ lien(s), expense, claim, action, 
liability, loss, damage, or suit (including attorney’s fees and costs), and costs of any 
kind arising out of, or in any way connected with the exercise of the Authorized 
Uses by Grantee and Grantee’s specifically designated designees, contractors and 
consultants who are undertaking some or all of the Authorized Uses for Grantee. 
 
Notwithstanding any provisions in the Agreement requiring Grantee to avoid any 
liens against the Grantor Property, the Parties agree and acknowledge that the 
Grantor Property is immune from mechanics’ liens, and nothing in the Agreement 
shall be deemed to be a waiver or limitation of Grantor’s governmental immunity 
in any respect. 

 
7. Insurance.  Section 6 of the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement is hereby amended and 

restated in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

Throughout the term of the Agreement, Grantee shall keep and maintain, at its sole 
cost and expense, commercial general liability insurance ("CGL") in amounts per 
occurrence and in the aggregate not less than the Statutory Liability Limits for all 
claims of relief that accrue on or after January 1, 2022 and before January 1, 2026 
as stated below, such amounts to be adjusted every four (4) years as provided 
below. The liability limits of the CGL insurance required pursuant to this Section 
will be reviewed as necessary and any changes mutually agreed upon every four 
years commencing January 1, 2026 to an amount not less than (a) the liability limits 
established by the Colorado Secretary of State from time to time for the 
immediately succeeding four year period pursuant to the Colorado Governmental 
Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-114 and (b) the liability limits generally maintained 
by businesses of similar size engaged in similar activities in the same or similar 
locales as the Project, whichever is greater, but in no event will the amount of the 
coverage be less than the Statutory Liability Limits for all claims of relief that 



  

5 
55488144.5 

accrue on or after January 1, 2022 and before January 1, 2026. The parties 
acknowledge and agree that, as of the Effective Date, the Statutory Liability Limits 
for all claims of relief that accrue on or after January 1, 2022 and before January 1, 
2026 is $424,000 for any injury to one person in a single occurrence and $1,195,000 
for any injury to two or more persons in any single occurrence, except that in such 
instance no person may recover more than $424,000. 
 
CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form and shall cover liability 
arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, products-completed 
operations, personal injury, property damage, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.  Each Condominium Association which is a successor to Grantee 
pursuant to Section 6 of the Amendment shall cause its CGL policy to insure against 
liabilities incurred by each of its members in connection with their use of the 
easements granted pursuant to this Agreement.  Such insurance shall be maintained 
under a policy pursuant to which the Grantor shall be named as an additional 
insured, or, alternatively, as a contractual insured.  Within seven (7) days of the 
Effective Date, Grantee shall provide Grantor with a certificate of insurance 
showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth above.  To the extent 
commercially available, the certificates shall include a provision requiring a 
minimum of thirty (30) days’ notice to Grantor of any change or cancellation. 

 
Grantor waives all rights against Grantee (and its Authorized Users) for recovery 
of damages to the extent such damages are covered by the CGL insurance 
maintained by Grantee pursuant to Section 8 of the Agreement. 

 
8. Remedies.  Section 7.5 of the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement is hereby supplemented 

by the addition of the following: 

A Default under the Agreement by the Responding Party shall not give the 
Claiming Party the right to terminate the Easement granted in the Agreement. 

9. Notice.  Section 7.11 of the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement is hereby amended and 
restated in its entirety to read as follows: 

Any notice or other communication to any party given under this Agreement will 
be effective only if in writing and shall be deemed received (i) upon receipt when 
personally delivered; (ii) on the next business day after deposit when sent by a 
nationally recognized overnight courier service, charges prepaid and properly 
addressed, for next business day delivery; or (iii) upon confirmation of successful 
transmission to each recipient’s electronic mail, when sent by electronic mail and 
if confirmed in writing sent by the methods specified in clauses (i) or (ii) of this 
Section), respectively, to whichever of the following addresses is applicable: 

Grantor: 
Town of Mountain Village 
Attention: Town Manager 

With copy to: 
Garfield & Hecht 
Attn: David H. McConaughy 
625 E. Hyman Avenue, Suite 201 



  

6 
55488144.5 

455 Mountain Village Blvd., 
Suite A  
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Email: _________________ 
 

Aspen, CO 81611 

Grantee: 
Tiara Telluride, LLC  
c/o Lalchandani Simon PL 
25 SE 2nd Avenue, Suite 1020 
Miami, FL 33131 
Email: _________________ 
 

With copy to: 
Sherman & Howard L.L.C. 
Attn: Cynthia M. Stovall 
675 15th Street #2300 
Denver, CO 80202 

 
 

 
Notices must be addressed as set forth above, but each party may change its address 
by written notice in accordance with this Section. 
 

10. Effect.  Except as provided in this Amendment, the 2011 Utilities Easement Agreement 
remains unmodified and in full force and effect.  

11. Recordation.  This Amendment shall be recorded in the real property records of San Miguel 
County, Colorado. 

12. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document. 

 
[This space intentionally left blank.]  



  

7 
55488144.5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment effective as of 
the Effective Date. 
 
GRANTOR: 
 
Town of Mountain Village,  
a Colorado Home Rule Municipality and  
Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 
 
By: _______________________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Printed Name: Paul Wisor 
Title:  Town Manager 
 
State of Colorado  ) 
    )ss 
County of San Miguel  ) 
 
Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________________, 202X, by 
_______________________________ as the _______________________________ of the Town 
of Mountain Village. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 
_______________________________  My commission expires: _______________ 
Notary Public 
  



  

8 
55488144.5 

GRANTEE: 
 
Tiara Telluride, LLC, 
a Colorado limited liability company  
 
 
By: _______________________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Printed Name: _______________________________ 
Title:  _______________________________ 
 
State of _______________ ) 
    )ss 
County of _______________ ) 
 
Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________________, 202X, by 
_______________________________ as the _______________________________ of Tiara 
Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 
_______________________________  My commission expires: _______________ 
Notary Public 



 

Exhibit A-1 
55488144.5 

EXHIBIT “A” 
(New Easement Area) 

 

 
 

 

, , , , , , , 

, 
, , 

, """" 
: R--1e0.74" 
I IE.J1i-J(1'24"ls" 
• CH-&4.Jf 
: C.-N<Jnl")l" W 

' ' ' 
' ' 
' ' ' 

\ 

' -------.i. 

',,',, ,',,, Q ~~-11/7' '1.l"'"""r;»1s,_ 

0 1'i::IIJ,i) .... S-#Cl 
11/r'll"'lh,.,.Wl$1...al 

LOT 69RI 
,,,... . .,__ ,, _,,..., 

:~~~ 

~.J/•"- l>,;: (.$ Jlllr"1 •"" 
""~ HOit 11'1).o'W ... ... 'l(l¾l,!'f 

~,l? J(f ~'li = ·~ 
···-~1--••tr .OWW.-r;,,>UJ'fR~lll SV 

• - 1tll'L4T~ 

¾:_' ~~~~~-
ff• - 'll>~T ~ 

,'Q,IICIJl••- n.:: ts:i-<1151•-, 
""9o""'tf'llo'W .. .... ~ --S-MCI 11/Y " .l"'-Wl$$JW 



 

Exhibit B-1 
55488144.5 

EXHIBIT “B” 
(Description of Easement Area) 

 
 

[To be added.] 



1 
55468075.3 
55682683.4 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AND PARTIAL TERMINATION AND RELINQUISHMENT OF 
LICENSE AGREEMENT 

(Utilities) 
 

This First Amendment to and Partial Termination and Relinquishment of License 
Agreement (Utilities) (“Amendment”) is made and entered into this ________________, 2023 
(“Effective Date”) by and between the Town of Mountain Village, a Colorado municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (“Licensee” or “Town”) and Tiara 
Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Licensor”). Licensee and Licensor are 
sometimes each individually referred to as a “Party” and sometimes collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Grantor is the current fee simple owner of Lot 109R2, Town of Mountain Village, 
San Miguel County, Colorado of that certain “Replat of Lot 109R and Tract _____________, 
Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado” (“Grantor Property”) recorded on 
____________, 2023, in Plat Book ___, Page ______ at Reception No. _______ (the “Replat”) in 
the Official Records of the Clerk and Recorder for San Miguel County, Colorado (“Official 
Records”). 

 
B. Grantor intends to construct on the Grantor Property a mixed-use, luxury hotel and 

residential condominium project (the “Project”).  The Project consists of certain buildings, 
structures and other improvements (the “Project Improvements”). 

 
C. Grantor authorized Grantee to develop the Project as evidenced by those certain 

land use entitlement approvals concerning the Grantor Property and the Project that have been 
granted by the Town, including, without limitation, approvals for a major PUD amendment, 
variations/waivers, Replat, rezoning of the Property to PUD, the transfer of density to the Town 
density bank and creation of bonus density for workforce housing and any other plans or permits 
granted by the Town for the Property and the Project. The Town Approvals are further reflected 
in Ordinance No. __________ adopted by the Town of Mountain Village Town Council which 
was recorded on ________________, 2023 at Reception No. _____________, the Amended and 
Restated Development Agreement recorded on ____________, 2023 at Reception No. ______, 
and the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions (Hotel Operator and 
Hotel Amenities, Facilities and Services Covenant) recorded on ________________, 2023 at 
Reception No. _____________, all in the Official Records (collectively, the “Town Approvals”).   

 
D. The use and development of the Project is further subject to applicable provisions 

of the Town of Mountain Village Mountain Village Municipal Code Title 17 Community 
Development Code, adopted by the Town of Mountain Village by Ordinance No. 2013-01, as 
amended through the Effective Date (the “CDC”) (which superseded and replaced the Town of 
Mountain Village Land Use Ordinance referenced in the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement 
(defined below)), the Town of Mountain Village Charter and the Town of Mountain Village 
Municipal Code (“Town Laws”). 

 



2 
55682683.4 

E. Prior to the Replat, portions of the Licensee Property and the Licensor Property 
were platted as Lot 109R and Tract OS-3BR-2, Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, 
Colorado according to the “2011 Replat” recorded on March 18, 2011, in Plat Book 1, Page 4455 
at Reception No. 416994 in the Official Records. 
 

F. Concurrently with the 2011 Replat, Licensee and Licensor’s predecessor in title, 
MV Colorado Development Partners, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, entered into that 
certain License Agreement (Utilities) dated March 18, 2011 and recorded March 18, 2011 under 
Reception No. 416999 in the Official Records (the “2011 License Agreement”) pursuant to which 
Licensee was granted a temporary license over Licensor’s Property for certain Authorized Uses as 
set forth therein (the “License”).  The License was granted in anticipation of the replacement of 
Existing Public Utilities on Licensor’s Property with Replacement Public Utilities and the future 
granting of Replacement Utilities Easements therefor.   

 
G. The License Agreement was entered into pursuant to the 2010 approval by Town 

Council for the Town of a PUD development for a project on Lot 109R (the “2010 Lot 109R 
PUD”) by Resolution of the Town of Mountain Village, Mountain Village, Colorado, Approval 
of Final Planned Unit Development Application, Mountain Village Hotel Planned Unit 
Development, Resolution No. 2010-1208-31, recorded in the Official Records on December 10, 
2010 under Reception No. 415339 (the “2010 PUD Approval”) and in connection with (i) that 
certain Development Agreement, Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village, Planned Unit 
Development recorded March 18, 2011 under Reception No. 416997 in the Official Records (the 
“2011 Development Agreement”) and (ii) the 2011 Replat.  The 2010 PUD Approval, 2011 
Development Agreement, and 2011 Replat contemplated an earlier iteration of the Project on Lot 
109R with which the 2011 License Agreement was entered into to accommodate.  The 2010 PUD 
Approval and 2011 Development Agreement have been superseded and replaced in their entirety 
by the Town Approvals and the subject property replatted pursuant to the Replat. 

 
H. In view of the above-described changes to the Project and related Town Approvals, 

Licensee and Licensor desire to amend the 2011 License Agreement as set forth in this 
Amendment, including terminating and releasing it from title to certain parcels of land originally 
encumbered thereby.  The 2011 License Agreement as amended by this Amendment is referred to 
in this Amendment as the “Agreement.” 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual promises 

and agreements made and entered into by the Parties, the sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the undersigned Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 
1. Interpretation. This Amendment amends the 2011 License Agreement. In the event of any 

inconsistency between the provisions of this Amendment and the provisions of the 2011 License 
Agreement, the provisions of this Amendment shall control. Capitalized terms used and not 
otherwise defined in this Amendment have the meaning given to them in the 2011 License 
Agreement. 



  

3 
55682683.4 

2. License Area.  The depiction of the “License Area” set forth in the 2011 License 
Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety.  Accordingly, Exhibit “A” depicting the 
License Area, as attached to the 2011 License Agreement, is superseded and replaced in its entirety 
by the attached Exhibit “A” depicting the License Area as amended by this Amendment.  To the 
extent property located within the License Area defined in the 2011 License Agreement is not 
within the boundaries of the License Area as defined in this Amendment, the burdens of the 2011 
License Agreement as modified by this Amendment pertaining to the License Area are terminated 
and released from same.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that 
in no event will the foregoing impact or modify the effect of Section 3 below.  

3. Burdened and Benefited Properties.  The legal description of the “Licensee Property” set 
forth in the 2011 License Agreement is hereby superseded and replaced in its entirety with the 
legal description set forth in Recital A of this Amendment above.  The legal description of the 
“Licensor Property” set forth in the 2011 License Agreement is hereby superseded and replaced 
in its entirety with the legal description set forth in Recital B of this Amendment above.  The 
easements, benefits and rights granted and agreed to in the 2011 License Agreement as modified 
by this Amendment and the burdens, duties and obligations imposed and agreed to the in the 2011 
License Agreement as modified by this Amendment shall run with the land and shall be a benefit 
of and burden upon Licensee Property (as defined in Recital A above) on the one hand, and the 
Licensor Property (as defined in Recital B above) on the other hand, as applicable, during the term 
of the Agreement. Further, the license, benefits and rights granted and agreed to in the 2011 
License Agreement as modified by this Amendment and the burdens, duties and obligations 
imposed and agreed to in the 2011 License Agreement as modified by this Amendment shall be 
binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of, and be a burden upon, the designees, successors, 
and assigns of all of the Parties to the Agreement during the term of the Agreement. 

4. Third-Party Private Utilities.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that certain utilities and 
other related improvements , including, but not limited to, stormwater and drainage facilities, 
water, sewer, telephone, internet, electrical, gas, cable television utility that serve third-party 
private property owners (“Third-Party Private Utilities”) may be located within portions of the 
License Area or other portions of the Licensee Property impacted by the Project.  The definition 
of the term “Existing Public Utilities” set forth in Recital D of the 2011 License Agreement is 
hereby supplemented to include any Third-Party Private Utilities located within the License Area.  
The Parties acknowledge and agree that to the extent there are any Third-Party Private Utilities 
located on the Licensee Property either before or after the Project has been constructed, the intent 
is that Licensee will enter into easements or licenses with private the third-parties benefited by 
those Third-Party Private Utilities for the use, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of 
same. 

5. Indemnities and Insurance; Governmental Immunity. Any purported obligations of 
Licensee to provide any indemnities to Licensor or any other person or entity in the Agreement, 
and any other financial obligations of Licensee under the Agreement, shall at all times be subject 
to annual budgeting and appropriation by the Town Council in its discretion and shall not be 
deemed to be multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other prohibited financial obligations 
within the meaning of Article X, Section 20(4) of the Colorado Constitution. Section 3 of the 2011 
Agreement is deleted. Licensee agrees to maintain such policies of insurance as deemed 
appropriate by the Mountain Village Town Council from time to time, which shall be in policy 



  

4 
55682683.4 

amounts not less than the applicable liability limits in the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act. 
Licensee agrees to provide Licensor with written proof of current insurance coverage upon 
reasonable request. Nothing in the Agreement shall be construed as a waiver or limitation on 
Licensee’s governmental immunity.   

 
6. Remedies.  Section 4.5 of the 2011 License Agreement is hereby supplemented by the 

addition of the following: 
 

A Default under the Agreement by the Responding Party shall not give the 
Claiming Party the right to terminate the License granted in the Agreement. 

 
7. Notice.  Section 4.11 of the 2011 License Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its 

entirety to read as follows: 

Any notice or other communication to any party given under this Agreement will 
be effective only if in writing and shall be deemed received (i) upon receipt when 
personally delivered; (ii) on the next business day after deposit when sent by a 
nationally recognized overnight courier service, charges prepaid and properly 
addressed, for next business day delivery; or (iii) upon confirmation of successful 
transmission to each recipient’s electronic mail, when sent by electronic mail and 
if confirmed in writing sent by the methods specified in clauses (i) or (ii) of this 
Section), respectively, to whichever of the following addresses is applicable: 

Licensee: 
Town of Mountain Village 
Attention: Town Manager 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., 
Suite A  
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Email: _________________ 
 

With copy to: 
Garfield & Hecht 
Attn: David H. McConaughy 
910 Grand Avenue, Suite 201 
Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 

Licensor: 
Tiara Telluride, LLC  
c/o Lalchandani Simon PL 
25 SE 2nd Avenue, Suite 1020 
Miami, FL 33131 
Email: _________________ 
 

With copy to: 
Sherman & Howard L.L.C. 
Attn: Cynthia M. Stovall 
675 15th Street #2300 
Denver, CO 80202 

 
 

 
Notices must be addressed as set forth above, but each party may change its address 
by written notice in accordance with this Section. 
 

8. Effect.  Except as provided in this Amendment, the 2011 License Agreement remains 
unmodified and in full force and effect.  



  

5 
55682683.4 

9. Recordation.  This Amendment shall be recorded in the real property records of San Miguel 
County, Colorado. 

10. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document. 

  



  

6 
55682683.4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment, intending it to be 
effective as of the Effective Date. 
 
LICENSEE: 
 
Town of Mountain Village,  
a Colorado Home Rule Municipality and  
Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 
 
By: _______________________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Printed Name: Paul Wisor 
Title:  Town Manager 
 
State of Colorado  ) 
    )ss 
County of San Miguel  ) 
 
Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________________, 202X, by 
_______________________________ as the _______________________________ of the Town 
of Mountain Village. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 
_______________________________  My commission expires: _______________ 
Notary Public 
  



  

7 
55682683.4 

LICENSOR: 
 
Tiara Telluride, LLC, 
a Colorado limited liability company  
 
 
By: _______________________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Printed Name: _______________________________ 
Title:  _______________________________ 
 
State of _______________ ) 
    )ss 
County of _______________ ) 
 
Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________________, 202X, by 
_______________________________ as the _______________________________ of Tiara 
Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 
_______________________________  My commission expires: _______________ 
Notary Public 



Exhibit A-1 
55682683.4 

EXHIBIT “A” 

(License Area) 
 

[See attached] 
 



Exhibit A-2 
55682683.4 

 

' ' ' I . . 
I 

' 

,NTS 

,~~er os-:11.:--:-1H11. 
B2'-'."~II 
I~~ 

- [--- ~~11\'C 
_ ,.._ ..,._ U!Dt~CNIU.-NL.N: 

r... T-,Vbt 
w-..... w.o,,~ 

;-""MIH-""'•i-S-fll _.,.,, 
RBJLAT ..., AEZ1:MIE 

Lot 10!IQ2,. n.:,~:,..a..fR -9 

DM11,( .. _ll!'Wlr(lt,~ 

1,___ .... _
3

•_""' _ _,A.9ULSON 
f SURVEYING ">-------'--'---------~'' 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

1 
 

TERMINATION AND RELEASE OF EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
(Mountain Village Blvd Work) 

 
THIS TERMINATION AND RELEASE OF EASEMENT AGREEMENT (Mountain 

Village Blvd Work) (this “Termination”) is made as of this _____ day of _______, 2023 (the 
“Effective Date”) by and between the Town of Mountain Village, a Colorado municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (“Grantor” or “Town”) and TIARA 
TELLURIDE, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Grantee”). Grantor and Grantee are 
each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties.” 

RECITALS 

A. Grantee is the current fee simple owner of Lot 109R2, Town of Mountain Village, 
San Miguel County, Colorado of that certain “Replat of Lot 109R and Tract _____________, 
Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado” (“Grantee Property”) recorded on 
____________, 2023, in Plat Book ___, Page ______ at Reception No. _______ (the “Replat”) in 
the Official Records of the Clerk and Recorder for San Miguel County, Colorado (“Official 
Records”). 

B. Grantor intends to construct on the Grantor Property a mixed-use, luxury hotel and 
residential condominium project (the “Project”).  The Project consists of certain buildings, 
structures and other improvements (the “Project Improvements”). 

C. The Town authorized Grantee to develop the Project as evidenced by those certain 
land use entitlement approvals concerning the Grantee Property and the Project that have been 
granted by the Town, including, without limitation, approvals for a major PUD amendment, 
variations/waivers, Replat, rezoning of the Property to PUD, the transfer of density to the Town 
density bank and creation of bonus density for workforce housing and any other plans or permits 
granted by the Town for the Property and the Project. The Town Approvals are further reflected 
in Ordinance No. __________ adopted by the Town of Mountain Village Town Council which 
was recorded on ________________, 2023 at Reception No. _____________, the Amended and 
Restated Development Agreement recorded on ____________, 2023 at Reception No. ______, 
and the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions (Hotel Operator and 
Hotel Amenities, Facilities and Services Covenant) recorded on ________________, 2023 at 
Reception No. _____________, all in the Official Records (collectively, the “Town Approvals”).   

D. The use and development of the Project is further subject to applicable provisions 
of the Town of Mountain Village Mountain Village Municipal Code Title 17 Community 
Development Code, adopted by the Town of Mountain Village by Ordinance No. 2013-01, as 
amended through the Effective Date (the “CDC”) (which superseded and replaced the Town of 
Mountain Village Land Use Ordinance referenced in the 2011 Plaza Usage Easement Agreement 
(defined below)), the Town of Mountain Village Charter and the Town of Mountain Village 
Municipal Code (“Town Laws”).   

E. Prior to the Replat, portions of the Grantee Property were platted as Lot 109R, 
Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado according to the “2011 Replat” 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

2 
 

recorded on March 18, 2011, in Plat Book 1, Page 4455 at Reception No. 416994 in the Official 
Records. 

F. Concurrently with the 2011 Replat, Grantor and Grantee’s predecessor in title, MV 
Colorado Development Partners, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, entered into that certain 
Easement Agreement (Mountain Village Blvd Work) dated March 18, 2011 and recorded March 
18, 2011 under Reception No. 417003 in the Official Records (the “2011 Mountain Village Blvd 
Work Easement Agreement”) pursuant to which Grantor granted an easement over a portion of 
Mountain Village Boulevard for certain Authorized Uses as set forth therein (the “Mountain 
Village Blvd Work Easement”).   

G. The Mountain Village Blvd Work Easement Agreement was entered into pursuant 
to the 2010 approval by Town Council for the Town of a PUD development for a project on Lot 
109R (the “2010 Lot 109R PUD”) by Resolution of the Town of Mountain Village, Mountain 
Village, Colorado, Approval of Final Planned Unit Development Application, Mountain Village 
Hotel Planned Unit Development, Resolution No. 2010-1208-31, recorded in the Official Records 
on December 10, 2010 under Reception No. 415339 (the “2010 PUD Approval”) and in 
connection with (i) that certain Development Agreement, Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village, 
Planned Unit Development recorded March 18, 2011 under Reception No. 416997 in the Official 
Records (the “2011 Development Agreement”) and (ii) the Replat.  The 2010 PUD Approval, 
2011 Development Agreement, and Replat contemplated an earlier iteration of the Project on Lot 
109R which the 2011 Mountain Village Blvd Work Easement Agreement was entered into to 
accommodate.  The 2010 PUD Approval and 2011 Development Agreement have been superseded 
and replaced in their entirety by the Town Approvals and the subject property replatted pursuant 
to the 2011 Replat. 

H. In view of the above-described changes to the Project and related Town Approvals, 
Grantor and Grantee desire to terminate and relinquish the Mountain Village Blvd Work Easement 
in its entirety. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions contained 
herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties hereby state as follows: 

1. Termination and Release of Easement. As of the Effective Date, the Mountain 
Village Blvd Work Easement is hereby terminated and released in its entirety and the properties 
burdened and benefited thereby are forever released and discharged from all of the terms, 
covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, reservations, burdens and liens thereof. 

[This space intentionally left blank.  Signature pages follow.] 

 

 



 

3 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Termination has been executed by the Parties as of the 
date and year first set forth above. 
 

GRANTOR: 
 
Town of Mountain Village,  
a Colorado Home Rule Municipality and  
Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
Date: _______________ 
 
Printed Name: Paul Wisor 
Title:  Town Manager 

 
 
  NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF GRANTOR 
 
 
STATE OF    ): 
                                                 ss: 
COUNTY OF    ): 
 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this, the _____ day of 
______________, 2023, by Paul Wisor, as Town Manager of the Town of Mountain Village, a 
Colorado municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado, on behalf of 
the Town. 
 
WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL. 
 
 

_________________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
Printed Name: ____________________ 
My Commission Expires: ____________________ 

 



 

4 
 

GRANTEE: 
 
Tiara Telluride, LLC, 
a Colorado limited liability company  
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
Date: _______________ 
 
Printed Name: ______________________________ 
Title:  ______________________________ 

 
 
 
NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF GRANTEE 
 
 
STATE OF    ): 
                                                 ss: 
COUNTY OF    ): 
 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this, the _____ day of 
______________, 2023, by _____________________________, as _______________ of Tiara 
Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 
 
WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL. 
 
 

_________________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
Printed Name: ____________________ 
My Commission Expires: ____________________ 

 
 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

1 
56640987.7 

AMENDMENT TO PEDESTRIAN ACCESS EASEMENT RESERVED IN DEED 

THIS AMENDMENT TO PEDESTRIAN ACCESS EASEMENT RESERVED IN 
DEED (“Amendment”), made effective as of the ____ day of _______, 2023, is entered into by 
and between TSG SKI & GOLF, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“TSG”), as 
successor-in-interest to the Telluride Ski & Golf Company, LLLP, a Colorado limited liability 
limited partnership (“Telluride Ski & Golf”), as successor-in-interest to The Telluride Company, 
a Colorado corporation (“The Telluride Company”) and TIARA TELLURIDE, LLC, a Colorado 
limited liability company (“Tiara”) and is confirmed and agreed to by the TOWN OF 
MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, a Colorado Home Rule Municipality and Political Subdivision of the 
State of Colorado (“Town”). TSG, Tiara and the Town are sometimes referred to individually in 
this Amendment as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”.  

RECITALS 

A. In Exhibit WD-89-A-2 to that certain Warranty Deed (the “1987 Deed”) from The 
Telluride Company dated March 2, 1987 and recorded March 2, 1987 in Book 434, Pages 
475-478 in the Official Records of the Clerk and Recorder for San Miguel County, 
Colorado (the “Official Records”), The Telluride Company reserved a non-exclusive 
pedestrian access easement (the “Pedestrian Access Easement”) on, over and across Tract 
89-A (“Tract 89-A”), Telluride Mountain Village, Filing 1, according to the replat of 
future Lot 89 and Tract OS-3, Telluride Mountain Village, Filing 1, recorded January 29, 
1987 in Plat Book 1 at pages 693-694, County of San Miguel, State of Colorado (the “1987 
Plat”).  Tract 89-A is also referred to in the 1987 Deed as Lot 89-A.   

B. The Telluride Company reserved in the 1987 Deed the right to “limit the rights of the 
beneficiaries of this reservation or abolish it, or both.”  The Telluride Company was 
succeeded by Telluride Ski & Golf which was in turn succeeded by TSG. 

C. The 1987 Deed reserves the Pedestrian Access Easement “for the benefit of all persons 
who possess an ownership interest in the property commonly referred to as the Mountain 
Village Unit (sic.) Planned Development, San Miguel County, Colorado (“Mountain 
Village”) or the improvements thereon, and their lessees, invitees, licensees and guests.  
This reservation is deemed to be a burden on Lot 89-A, which shall run with that land and 
a benefit to the Mountain Village which shall also run with these lands.”  In 1995 Mountain 
Village was incorporated as the Town. 

D. Tract 89-A was included but not changed in Plat recorded in Plat Book 1 at Page 823 and 
Plat recorded in Plat Book 1 at Page 980, both in the Official Records. 

E. Tract 89-A was then deleted and replatted as part of Lot 109R (“Lot 109R”), Town of 
Mountain Village according to the Plat of Lot 109R and Tract OS-3BR-2, Town of 
Mountain Village, recorded in the Official Records on March 18, 2011 in Plat Book 1 at 
Page 4455, Reception No. 416994, County of San Miguel, State of Colorado (the “2011 
Replat”).  Note 11 of the 2011 Replat supplements and amends the Pedestrian Access 
Easement. 

F. Tiara is the current fee simple owner of Lot 109R. 



2 
56640987.7 

G. Tiara has secured certain land use entitlement approvals including the replatting of Lot 
109R as Lot 109R2, Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado 
("Property") according to Replat of Lot 109R and Tract OS-3BR-2R-1R recorded 
[concurrently with this Agreement] [or] [on ________, 2022 in Plat Book ____, Page 
___________, Reception No. __________] (the “Plat”) and development on the Property 
of a mixed-use hotel, residential condominium and commercial project (the “Project”), all 
pursuant to that certain Ordinance No. __________ adopted by the Town Council, 
approving the Application for the Project, which was recorded on ________________, 
2023 at Reception No. _____________ in the Official Records (the “Town Approvals”).  
The Project consists of certain buildings, structures and other improvements (the “Project 
Improvements”). 

H. The Town Approvals and Final PUD Plans (as defined therein) contemplate that the Project 
Improvements will include at the southeast corner of the Project on the Town Open Space 
Parcel identified on the Plat as Tract OS-3BR-2R-1R (the “Town Open Space Parcel”) 
those metal grate stairs connecting Mountain Village Boulevard with the Plaza Area 
identified on the attached Exhibit A as “Pedestrian Staircase” (the “Pedestrian 
Staircase”).  The Pedestrian Staircase will be owned and operated by the Town. 

I. The Parties have determined that once the Pedestrian Staircase has been constructed and 
opened to the public the Pedestrian Access Easement will no longer be necessary and desire 
to amend the Pedestrian Access Easement to provide for its termination and release from 
title to the Property at that time. 

AGREEMENT 

 In view of the above recitals and for other good and valuable consideration, the Parties 
agree as follows: 

1. Effective upon the completion of construction and opening to the public of the 
Pedestrian Staircase on the Town Open Space Parcel (the “Pedestrian Access 
Easement Termination Trigger Event”), the Pedestrian Access Easement and all 
right, title and interest TSG and the Town therein shall, without further agreement 
among the parties, terminate and be released from title to the Property.   

In the event and for such period from and after the Effective Date as, for any reason, 
the Pedestrian Staircase is not built and opened to the public, the Pedestrian Access 
Easement will continue in full force and effect until the Pedestrian Access Easement 
Termination Trigger Event occurs, at which point the Pedestrian Access Easement will 
terminate and be of no further force and effect in accordance with the immediately 
preceding sentence.  If, for any reason, the Pedestrian Staircase is constructed on 
property other than the Town Open Space Parcel, the Pedestrian Access Easement will 
remain in full force and effect until Telluride Ski & Golf otherwise agrees in a writing 
recorded in the official records. 

2. Notwithstanding the automatic termination and release of the Pedestrian Access 
Easement as provided in Section 1 above, following the completion of construction and 



3 
56640987.7 

opening to the public of the Pedestrian Staircase, at the request of any Party and at the 
expense of Tiara, the Parties will execute and record in the Official Records a 
termination and release of the Pedestrian Access Easement. 

3. TSG represents that it has not transferred or assigned its rights under the Pedestrian 
Access Easement to any other person or party and that TSG is the sole owner of the 
beneficial rights reserved to The Telluride Company in the Pedestrian Access 
Easement. 

4. This Amendment shall be binding on, inure to the benefit of and be a burden upon the 
heirs, designees, successors and assigns of the Parties. 

5. The Parties shall promptly record this Amendment in the San Miguel County Official 
Records. 

6. This Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall 
constitute an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.  

 

[Signature pages follow.] 

  



4 
56640987.7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this Amendment as of the 
Effective Date 

TSG: 

TSG SKI & GOLF, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company 

By:____________________________ 
Name:__________________________ 
Its:_____________________________ 

 
 
 
STATE OF  ) 
 ) 
COUNTY OF  ) 

Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________, 2023, by 
___________________, as _________________ of TSG SKI & GOLF, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

  
  My commission expires:    
Notary Public  

 
 
  



5 
56640987.7 

Tiara: 
 
TIARA TELLURIDE, LLC, a Colorado limited 
liability company 
 
By:____________________________ 
Name:__________________________ 
Its:_____________________________ 

 
 
STATE OF  ) 
 ) 
COUNTY OF  ) 

Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this ____ day of April, 2023, by ____________, as 
________________ of Tiara Telluride, LLC, . 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
My commission expires: ___________________ 

 
   
Notary Public 
  



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

6 
56640987.7 

 
 
CONFIRMED AND AGREED: 
 
TOWN: 

Town of Mountain Village, a Colorado 
Home Rule Municipality and Political 
Subdivision of the State of Colorado 

By:   
Paul Wisor, Town Manager 

STATE OF  ) 
 ) 
COUNTY OF  ) 

Acknowledged, subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of _________, 20___ by Paul 
Wisor as the Town Manager of The Town of Mountain Village. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

  My commission expires:   
Notary Public 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

Exhibit A-1 
56640987.7 

EXHIBIT A 

Pedestrian Staircase 
 
 

[See attached.] 



S&H 7.19.2023 
 

Exhibit A-1 
56640987.7 

 

I 
I «,,..,.ot( 

;::••~ - I 

::? l, 
f---~-

PMPoeEDNE.W 
Oli,JilftlT.cMll 
1RMllf.lDL!lf>;6 
WJIITEll~IICli 
B~W IC'lBElQff 

' I 

~~ -:~ \ 

r 110., ';f I.. ::,;" 
"::a -.,;,, "'-f 

"""""' "\ ~ 

------

I I. 
I 
' \ 

\ 

/ 
/ 

,/ 

I 

@ 
~ ----------;.~, -, LEVEL G1 PlAZA 

: t ,r r" 

JiOOMlEOEIID 

/ 

..... w ...... ,, ..... , ..... 

,._..,.~. ··•- ~••'UI·. "-' 

..... ,., .... .......... 
,., "' " 

~ " . . 
.,. ,.,. " 

Pedestrian Staircase 

• !:!~.~ 

~~~~ 

....J 0 w o 
I- w 
0 ~ :c _, 
CJ) ~ w ;, 
CJ) le as 6 
CJ): 

x ~ 
ci5 lg 

L01ff:f!III.UC:JIP'.llua-Wl:CW. ll;:~;;-ra1'ffl.U. 
I.OTU~~w.;~:lN:1,'/ 
LOl'11lll~Mlnl.-ilTTVN 

CO.-le~:-;~;:1,-n 

l11111t~ P\.OII_ .IIWM'_ 
0111 -wrr•1111-21.m:z 

l,.Ol'mfl l'\OUAli~ l lOW 
«uiCH..t ~6lO.t""'°"' 

I.O!•J)fll'l»~IIOW 
C~LN:l.~

1
1tt.11:itlt: 



 

B-1-1 
 
Error! Unknown document property name. 
2740224.14 

Exhibit “B-1” 
(Schedule of Improvements) 

Public Improvement Estimated Cost 
Plaza improvements to See Forever walkway and 
Town Plaza area between Lot 109R2 and 
Westermere/Shirana (the Westermere Breezeway 
Improvements) 

$75,000 

Village Core Transfer Station (Replacement Trash 
Facility) on Town Open Space Parcel including all 
surface improvements, snowmelt and a portion of 
sidewalk and resurfacing of Town Open Space 
Parcel  

$840,625 

Snow melting and improving the fire lane $189,871 
Stairway access from Mountain Village Blvd on 
the east connecting Lot 89-1BCD-R, Tract 89-B, 
and Lots 89-2A, 89-3B, and 89-3D Town of 
Mountain Village, to Plaza Improvements. 

$150,000 

Cash contribution to improvements to parcel to the 
south of the Westermere project and adjacent to 
the pond near the Village Core 

$250,000 

Sidewalk from Shirana to Mountain Village Blvd $81,146 
 



 

B-2-1 
 
Error! Unknown document property name. 
2740224.14 

 
 

Exhibit “B-2” 
(Westermere Breezeway Improvements) 

 
 

 

WESTEMERE BREEZEWAY VIEW 

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE HOTEL 

7 . ~ 32._fJ 

= -------, 

~-~ 

~ II WESTEMERE IMAGE 

11 . 18.2010 
C,v•W Bain~ 

r-..o No,~ PRCJEC-;- NO; 03:31 1CC 



 

 C-1  
 
2740224.14 

Exhibit “C” 
(Area of Plaza Improvements)



 

Exhibit “D”-1 
 
Error! Unknown document property name. 
2740224.14 

Exhibit “D” 

Employee Housing Restriction 

 
[TO BE FINALIZED PRIOR TO SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE] 



1 
2907652.4

Consolidated Major PUD Amendment Application, Major Subdivision and Rezoning 
Application – Narrative 

Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado 

Submitted July 19, 2023 

Tiara Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Tiara”) submits this 
consolidated development narrative (this “Development Narrative”) in connection with: (1) 
Tiara’s Major PUD Amendment Application (“PUD Application”) with respect to Lot 109R, 
Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado (“Lot 109R”), according to the plat 
recorded in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of San Miguel County (the “Clerk’s Office”) 
March 18, 2011 at Plat Book 1, Page 4455, Reception No. 416994 (the “2011 Replat”); (2) Tiara’s 
Major Subdivision Application for Lot 109R, which Tiara owns, and the adjacent, Town-owned 
OS-3-BR-2 (the “Subdivision”); and (3) Tiara’s application to rezone the added portions of the 
resulting Lot 109R and the resulting OS-3BR-2 to the zoning designation applicable to the rest of 
each parcel. 

The PUD Application seeks to amend an existing PUD originally known as the Mountain 
Village Hotel Planned Unit Development and approved by the Town of Mountain Village (the 
“Town”) pursuant to Resolution No. 2010-1208-31 (the “2010 PUD”).  A Design Review Process 
Application (the “DRB Application”) for Lot109R has been previously submitted in connection 
with the PUD Application.  

This updated Development Narrative supplements previously submitted narratives (and 
supersedes any previous narratives to the extent of any conflict), and provides an overview of the 
PUD Application and the related Subdivision, highlights changes from previous submittals, and 
addresses specific issues raised by the Town. The concepts set forth herein are explained in detail 
in the draft Development Agreement that is also being submitted.  

Project Overview 

Lot 109R is currently subject to the 2010 PUD, and Tiara originally intended to develop the site 
in accordance with the 2010 PUD.  However, after receiving feedback from the Town during 
the fall of 2021, Tiara agreed to pursue significant amendments to deliver an overhauled building 
design suitable for a five star hotel operator.  This resulted in plans for a beautiful building that 
compliments the Town’s stunning natural setting, with Tiara bringing in Six Senses as its hotel 
operator partner.   

Tiara is seeking approval of the PUD Application, the Subdivision, and an associated rezoning 
so that the land ultimately included in either Lot 109R or OS-3-BR-2 will have the appropriate 
zoning designation (collectively, the “Approvals”).  The Approvals will advance critical 
priorities of the Town reflected in the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, by allowing Tiara to develop 
a five-star hotel with at least 50 hotbeds, employee housing significantly over and above Town 
requirements, public parking spaces, public plaza improvements, and mixed-use commercial 
space (the “Project”).  The Project will provide a brand new plaza at the north end of the Village 

Attachment 2. Legal Tiara Narrative



 

2 
2907652.4 

Center, activating an area that is currently comprised mostly of a parking lot.  The Project will 
also construct a brand new trash holding building on OS-3-BR-2.   

Tiara proposes a design for the building with a more rounded shape sensitive to the topography 
of the land and surrounding properties within the Village Center.  In order to accommodate this 
new shape, Tiara proposes a subdivision of portions of OS-3BR-2 and 109R in accordance with 
the proposed plat resubmitted herewith.   
 
The previously submitted draft plat has been included with two scenarios to also identify the 
replatted Lot OS-3BR-2 and Lot 109R. Another replat of OS-3BR-2 is currently being 
processed. If that other replat is completed, the revised OS-3BR-2 will be designated as OS-
3BR-2R-1R when replatted pursuant to our proposal. If the other replat has not been completed, 
the revised OS-3BR-2 will be designated as OS-3BR-2R pursuant to our proposal. References 
herein to OS-3BR-2 include the applicable revised version of OS-3BR-2. Following our 
proposed replat, regardless of the status of the other pending replat of OS- 3BR-2, the existing 
site designated Lot 109R will be designated Lot 109R2, and references herein to Lot 109R include 
Lot 109R2. 
 
Tiara has also submitted an Application for Rezoning requesting that the land that is replatted 
to 109R2 is also rezoned consistent with all terms and conditions of the applicable PUD 
Amendment, and that the land replatted as part of OS-3BR-2 and a Town right-of-way parcel, 
be zoned in accordance with the other adjacent Town-owned land. 
 
The current Application (and related Approvals) follow a number of public workshops, which 
led up to public hearings with the Town starting in May 2022.  The DRB Application for the 
Project was approved with conditions on December 1, 2022.  The most recent Town Council 
hearing was held on June 15, 2023, at which time Council voted to continue the Application (as 
well as the requests for the other Approvals) to the Town’s August 17, 2023 meeting.  During 
the June 15, 2023 public hearing, Town Council requested additional information on a number 
of items.  Significant changes and additional information being provided are summarized below. 

 

 
Recent Changes and Additional Information 

Legal Agreement Status/Changes 
 
 • All applicable legal agreements have been drafted, and the drafts have been reviewed 

by and negotiated with staff.  Copies of current drafts of all agreements are being 
submitted.  This includes the Hotel Covenant, a copy of which was not included in 
the Council Packet for the June 15, 2023 Town Council meeting.  
   

• Development Agreement 
• Most changes to the Development Agreement since the June 15, 2023 

Town Council meeting are legal/technical in nature.  Some changes worth 
noting include the following: 



 

3 
2907652.4 

• Provisions that make more explicit the requirement of operation by a 
five-star luxury brand hotel operator, and provisions addressing 
Town approval of any change from Six Senses, which is the Town-
approved “Hotel Operator” 

• Added express requirement to provide incentives to owners of lodge 
units to include them in the rental management program.  As 
described by the Town Attorney, given securities regulations 
requirements, there cannot be a legal requirement for lodge units to 
be placed in the rental management program, or a prohibition on use 
of the lodge units as a primary residence.  However, in light of 
incentives, and information concerning experience at other similar 
projects, Tiara expects that a significant portion of the lodge units 
will be available for rental, whether through the rental management 
program or otherwise. 

• Made explicit that, with respect to the public restrooms being 
provided as part of the project, the Developer is responsible for 
operation and maintenance, as well as future capital improvements 
including repairs and remodels.   

• Elimination of new drainage through Westermere. 
• Expressly provide that, if Westermere does not provide approval for 

new breezeway improvements as proposed by Developer’s plans, the 
Developer will simply pay the approved amount directly to the 
Westermere HOA. 

• Added additional language addressing the possibility of relocating 
the existing trash holding building, and the Developer’s provision of 
payment toward the cost of a replacement trash holding building. 

• Added language regarding construction observation and inspection 
as requested by the Town 

• Added language addressing the process and deadline for completing 
public improvements, and acceptance and warranty relating to public 
improvements, as requested by the Town. 

• Added explicit requirement that no grading excavation be allowed 
until the replat for the Subdivision is required and the required 
performance guarantee has been provided to the Town. 

 
• Hotel Covenant 

• The current version of the Hotel Covenant includes changes largely 
intended to conform to changes to the Development Agreement. 

 
• Easement and License Agreement Amendments and Terminations 

• Added Pedestrian and Maintenance Easement grant to See Forever  
  Remaining changes are legal in nature and generally clean-up/not 

 substantive 
 

 •  
 



 

4 
2907652.4 

Additional Information Regarding Traffic 
 
 Based on requests for additional information on traffic and circulation solutions for the 

Project, Tiara engaged Christopher S. McGranahan, P.E., with LSC Transportation 
Consultants, Inc. to prepare a Traffic Impact Study (“TIS”) relating to the Project, 
including addressing existing conditions. The TIS includes detailed existing traffic count 
data based on actual weekday and weekend traffic measurements, and provides projections 
of future background traffic levels and projections of additional trip generation that the 
Project will create.  The projections are based on industry-accepted standards.  The TIS 
concludes that the Project will result in considerable improvements to the existing 
conditions  
 
Status of Discussions with Shirana Regarding Construction Mitigation 
 
 Since the June 15, 2023 Town Council meeting, Tiara has had additional discussions with 

representatives from the Shirana HOA.  In addition to the ongoing dialog with the HOA 
president, Rob Connor, Tiara’s legal team is also in communication with Shirana’s legal 
counsel.  The goal of the dialog is to address Shirana’s concerns relating to mitigating 
impacts associated with the construction process.   
 
The parties are currently working on scheduling a meeting with Shirana to occur prior to 
the August 17, 2023 Town Council meeting to discuss Tiara’s revised construction 
mitigation plan, and attempt to reach agreement on terms relating to construction impacts.  
Tiara recognizes that Shirana has legitimate concerns relating to construction mitigation 
and expects to be able to reach an agreement with Shirana.  Among other things, any 
agreement providing for a crane swing over the Shirana property, would include 
appropriate insurance and other requirements to provide reasonable protection to Shirana..   
 
That said, should it prove necessary, Tiara also has potential construction plans that would 
rely on alternative crane structures that would not need to swing over any portion of the 
Shirana’s airspace  

 
Construction Mitigation Narrative and Plan  
 
 A revised construction mitigation narrative and plan is being submitted.   

 
 
Design Submittal  
 
 No changes are being made to the building or Project design since the last submittal.  

However, per staff request, a complete submittal of all materials is being made.  The 
design narrative submitted with the design materials has minor updates/changes from the 
version submitted prior to the June 15, 2023 Town Council meeting. 

 
 
Public Improvements and Public Benefits 



 

5 
2907652.4 

 
 A revised version of the public improvements and public benefits charts, based on staff-

approved versions from the June 15, 2023 meeting, are included as Exhibit A.  
 

 
Approval Criteria 
 
 Tiara has addressed satisfaction of the approval criteria in previous narratives, and also, 

most recently, in the June 13, 2023 letter for the record submitted by Bill E. Kyriagis as 
legal counsel for Tiara. 

 



 

 A-1  
2907652.4 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Public Benefits and Public Improvements Tables 
 
PUBLIC BENEFITS 
Item Value Notes 
Onsite deed restricted 
housing an additional 1 
employee apartment (2 
total employee 
apartments) and 18 
employee dormitories 
units that sleep up to 3 
employees.   

$9,950,250 estimated 
value (kept in one 
ownership unit).  

2010 PUD provided for one employee 
apartment was to be provided 
pursuant to the 2010 PUD. 

Mitigation Payment $996,288 Note requirements for additional 
payment per employee after the 
second anniversary of Certificate of 
Occupancy. 

48 Public Parking 
Spaces 

 $4,800,000  

50 dedicated hotel 
rooms 

 2010 PUD provided for 40 dedicated 
hotel rooms. 

5 star luxury hotel 
operator assured via 
the Hotel Covenant 
and Development 
Agreement   

  

Furniture Package  See Hotel Covenant 
Hotel Operator and 
amenity space 
requirements  

 See Hotel Covenant 

Westermere 
Façade/Breezeway 
Improvements* 

$75,000  

Shuttle service to the 
Montrose and Telluride 
airports for hotel guests 

  

Public Restroom $154,781  
Conference Room 
Space – use for public 
at market rates 

n/a 2010 PUD provided for conference 
room space.  Change is to provide for 
market rates. 

Public Access from 
Port Cochere to See 
Forever Plaza through 
the building (easement) 

 $75,000 Access direct from Porte Cochere into 
See Forever Plaza 

Valet Parking n/a  



 

A-2 
2907652.4 

Various easements 
(e.g., See Forever and 
Town access to See 
Forever) 

n/a  

Additional 38 Lodge 
Units 

n/a Note: Can be individually owned.  Due 
to securities law requirements, the 
lodge units cannot be required to be in 
the rental management program, and 
there cannot be a legal restriction 
prohibiting use as a primary 
residence.  However, Tiara will 
encourage participation in the rental 
management program, and expects 
that a significant portion of these units 
will be available for rental through the 
rental management program or 
otherwise 

Subtotal $16,051,319  
 
Public Improvements that are considered public benefits pursuant to the 2010 
PUD agreement: 
Item  Value Notes 
Plaza Improvements (See 
Forever walkway and 
Shirana area)  

 $1,109,561  

Trash Enclosure rebuild 
on OS-3BR-2  

$840,625  
 

2010 PUD provides for use of 
$250,000 of housing mitigation 
payment for the trash enclosure. 

Snowmelting and 
improving the fire lane 

 $189,871 
 

 

 Subtotal  $2,140,057  
 
Public Improvements also considered a public benefit 2023: 
Item Value Notes 
Stairway Access for 89 
Lots on Town owned OS-
3-BR-2  

$150,000  

Village Pond Improvement 
Payment 

$250,000  

Sidewalk from Shirana to 
Mountain Village Blvd 

$81,146  

TOTAL $589,871.00  
 
TOTAL PUBLIC BENEFITS   $_18,781,247* 
* Per staff, this value is given to provide general context of public benefit and is not a 
precise value. 



 

A-3 
2907652.4 

 
Public Improvements pursuant to the major subdivision – required: 
Item Value 
Sidewalk, lighting and a snowmelted 
sidewalk Along Mountain Village Blvd   

 $612,030 

Utility relocations/installations as 
approved by Town Council 

$2,500,000 

Repaving Mountain Village Blvd Replacing a top course of asphalt over 
2,309 square yards of asphalt at $79,213 

TOTAL $ 3,191,243 
 
Other public improvements – required: 
Item Value 
Snowmelting OS-3BR-2 (access area 
near trash enclosure; south of the trash 
enclosure) 

 $382,575 

Repaving OS-3BR-2 (access area near 
trash enclosure; south of the trash 
enclosure) 

 $276,129 

Village Center improvements that extend 
beyond the original boundary identified in 
the 2010 PUD 

 $829,219 

TOTAL $ 1,487,923 
 
TOTAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS (ESTIMATE TO DATE) $   4,679,166* 
* Per staff, the applicant’s engineer will need to certify the estimated construction costs, 
including a contingency, to determine the appropriate security to be posted by the 
developer prior to building permit. The number here may change 
 
Provided Amenities of note but do not constitute public benefits: 
Item Value 
Sustainability Fund committed to be spent 
locally (A Six Senses requirement) 

$350,000 

Silver LEED Certified (a Six Senses 
requirement) 

$2,460,000 

TOTAL $2,810,000 
 
Other Considerations as part of the PUD agreement 
Adding additional approx.: 551 sf of land 
to the subdivision 

Paid for at same rate as the original PUD 
$194 a square foot 

TOTAL $106,894 
 
 



2023.07.19 Lot 109R Town Council 

First Reading Submittal 

2907833.1

. 

TIARA TELLURIDE, LLC 

July 19, 2023 Design Narrative 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

Lot 109R is a curved lot in Village Center of Mountain Village where zero lot line 

building is allowed with the neighboring properties constructed as zero lot line. The 

history and evolution of the design revisions has continued to address staff and 

public concerns. Although there is no material change to the overall proposed design 

and mass of Lot 109R Hotel from the December 1, 2022 Final DRB Approved 

documents, we previously incorporated revisions to address staff and neighbor 

requests as described in this narrative and the design documents.  Note that there 

have been no changes to the design since the May 1, 2023 submittal.  The revisions 

to this narrative address updates and clarifications.   

The adjacent OS-3BR-2 Town trash holding building serves Village Center Town 

properties. The open space Lot meanders through the Village and around the 

surrounding properties. The public plaza abuts the proposed hotel Lot 109R and 

adjacent neighbors of Palmyra, Westermere, and Shirana. 

In the last submittal we included staff requested revisions for an alternate 

configuration for Lot OS-3BR-2 trash holding building The  revision included 

increased site parking and is in this submission. As noted at the time of the last 

submittal, the snowmelt boiler system will be located in Lot 109R, and will not be 

located in the trash facility. We revised the parking in the hotel garages and 

incorporated 48 public spaces. This includes spaces to satisfy CDC provisions on 

commercial parking requirements.  Satisfying the Town’s parking requests 

eliminated the need for a requested variation. 

We followed staff direction and moved the two hotel transformers to OS-3J utility 

GE and have relocated the Shirana transformer just off the Westermere ramp adjacent 

to OS-3BR-2. We previously removed the majority of the overhead easement 

request as further described below and addressed neighbor concerns by reducing the 

subgrade permanent structure to increase separation distance. 

Attachment 3. Tiara Design 
Narrative



2023.07.19 Lot 109R Town Council  

First Reading Submittal 
 

2907833.1 

 

In the previous submittal we responded to the staff requested revision to incorporate 

additional land at the west end of Lot 109R which is currently Town-owned and 

constituting a part of OS- 3BR-2. This created a better delineation between the two 

lots. The snowmelt boiler previously proposed to be located on OS-3BR-2 has been 

relocated within Lot 109R. This is further described in the OS-3BR-2 trash holding 

section of this narrative. 

 

The previously submitted draft plat has been included with two scenarios to also 

identify the replatted Lot OS-3BR-2 and Lot 109R. Another replat of OS-3BR-2 is 

currently being processed. If that other replat is completed, the revised OS-3BR-2 

will be designated as OS-3BR-2R-1R when replatted pursuant to our proposal. If the 

other replat has not been completed, the revised OS-3BR-2 will be designated as 

OS-3BR-2R pursuant to our proposal. References herein to OS-3BR-2 include the 

applicable revised version of OS-3BR-2. Following our proposed replat, regardless 

of the status of the other pending replat of OS- 3BR-2, the existing site designated 

Lot 109R will be designated Lot 109R2, and references herein to Lot 109R include 

Lot 109R2. The landscape and photometrics do not show any updates other than a 

reprint for the revised site plan. 

 

We are also including clouded Final DRB Approved documents delineating the 

changes described in this narrative. The town trash building sheet is clouded in 

entirety as the plans, elevations, material quantities and schedules have been revised. 

 

The DRB accepted our response to comments which included a reduction of the 

building mass and incorporated a stepping of the building resulting in a reduced 

stacked floor verticality and integrated offsets. The stepped offsets also visually 

engages the sloped walls that cascade down the façade and helps to anchor the stone 

base of the building. The tiered floors and removal of mass creates openings to the 

sky. 

 

 

 

 

 



2023.07.19 Lot 109R Town Council  

First Reading Submittal 
 

2907833.1 

CLARIFICATION ON ANY REVISIONS 

After the last hearing we met with staff to further discuss any items that were raised 

and are including in this submission. 

• We addressed questions on the traffic circulation and have captured very 

detailed data of actual physical counts and activity for more than one week 

over two separate weekends. This information is captured in the Traffic Study 

and again confirms the design for OS-3BR-2 and relocation of Lot 109R 

driveway alleviates existing congestion and allows for easy circulation for 

the existing and additional vehicle counts.  

 

The attached diagram delineates the existing challenges of the current site 

conditions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

.--- f VAVI I D~SIGN GROUI' 

LOI 
ff(}- '1RC.~O- R--~------

LOT 8~2.A. 

Figure 2b 

Existing Conditions 
Mountain Village Hotel - Lot 109R (LSC #220780) 



2023.07.19 Lot 109R Town Council  

First Reading Submittal 
 

2907833.1 

 

 

• We met with staff and discussed the area plans and methodology for 

determining the area and confirmed we had followed CDC requirements. As 

such, we have no revision to submit on the design documents. 

• Separate to the design documents, the construction mitigation plan addressed 

the crane swing discussion where it is proposed over the Shirana (without any 

load). The team continues to have conversations with the neighbor. In this 

submission we have included an alternate option with a different type of crane 

that would not swing over the Shirana.  

• Conversations about an LOI and the dedication of Six Senses as the operator. 

In April of 2022, staff requested a copy of a signed LOI from the five-star 

flagship hotel, Six Senses, for the Lot 109R submittal. The letter was 

provided and remains active. The design, engineering, and Six Senses team 

has worked together over the past year so that design and programming meets 

or exceeds their stellar branding standards and expectations.  

 

BUILDING MASSING/HEIGHT 

The Final DRB Approved design addressed concerns focused on the max building 

height and matched the approved 2011 PUD max height of 88’-9”. We have also 

addressed concerns focused on the average height which results in an average below 

the Approved 2011 PUD of 65’-2.9” with a reduction to 63.61’. This is a slight 

modification to the Final DRB Approved documents and remains below the 

Approved 2011 PUD average height. 

 

Due to the unique curvature of the building mass, we addressed height concerns 

raised by the Town through a deconstruction of the building. This deconstruction 

provided an opportunity to address additional Town comments regarding the general 

feel of the base of the building’s mass at the plaza level as well as the roof lines. 

 

By pronouncing the stepped levels and jogging floor heights we were able to 

integrate sloped rooflines which creates a more dynamic and interesting façade. The 

diagrams attached have no change from previous submission or the Final DRB 

Approved design. In this submission, building mass and height above grade has 

remained as approved. 



2023.07.19 Lot 109R Town Council  

First Reading Submittal 
 

2907833.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

,----- I VI\UlT D~SIGN GHOLIP 

AXON PLAN LJ Subtracted Mass 

Roof 

Level 7 

Level6 

Level 5 



2023.07.19 Lot 109R Town Council  

First Reading Submittal 
 

2907833.1 

PUBLIC BENEFIT DESIGN ITEM REVISIONS 

In response to the comprehensive plan, the design proposed incorporates a publicly 

accessible stair via Mountain Village Boulevard to the hotel Porte Cochere to the 

Plaza Level with a continuous connection to See Forever or the Village Core. 

Additionally, the elevators provide code-required accessible access as needed 

meeting code requirements and include an access easement. (Refer to development 

documents). 

An exclusive floor of dedicated employee housing is integrated in the design, 

exceeding the requirements of the Code and providing a public benefit. The 

submission includes area plans with the town’s CDC requirements for how to 

calculate the area which is reflected in the area plans and calculations.  

Restaurants are included in the hotel design and open to the general public. A 

wedding venue/conference room(s) are also available for public use and provides an 

additional public benefit. There is no change to the locations of these benefits from 

the Final DRB Approved documents. 

 

Please refer to the public benefit diagram and table included in the application 

package. 

 

DESIGN REVISIONS FOR EASEMENTS 

The previous submittal included a request for a cantilevered concrete slab to provide 

ingress/egress at the south end of the building at employee housing level. We 

removed the over property projection and overhead encroachment request. The 

design documents have been updated to reflect this and include revisions to plans 

and elevations. 

 

We removed the request for an overhead easement at the Porte Cochere and have 

minimized it to be within property boundaries. The Porte Cochere details have been 

updated to reflect this change. 

 

In response to the Final DRB Approved design we met with staff in December to 

further review photometrics. After that meeting, we removed any request for exterior 

light fixtures projecting beyond property boundary as reflected in the 12.16.23 

submission. We have included clouds on the elevations to reflect the change from 

the Final DRB Approved design. 



2023.07.19 Lot 109R Town Council  

First Reading Submittal 
 

2907833.1 

 

PARKING DESIGN REVISION 

The Approved 2011 PUD included 48 public parking spaces. We addressed concerns 

raised by staff and the Town to meet the required 48 spaces. Level G2 has 

incorporated the 2011 Approved PUD 48 public parking spaces at the non-valet 

parking garage level, “G2”. Level G2 is publicly accessible from Mountain Village 

Boulevard via OS-3BR-2 shared driveway to the hotel garage entry. Access to the 

plaza and other floors are available via elevator or stair. 

 

We worked with our engineers and the geotechnical engineer to incorporate an 

additional level of sub-grade parking below G2, level “G3” to allow for the 

additional parking. Proposed level G3 parking is valet only and accessible via two 

proposed vehicle elevators accessed by the valet from the Porte Cochere. 

 

The vehicle elevators’ main level, located at G1A, are just off the Porte Cochere 

where hotel guests, employees and commercial parking will be valet parked at one 

of the valet parking levels G1A, G1, or G3. The vehicle elevators are proposed to 

bypass level G2 completely as no public access would be allowed in the elevators 

for safety and operational concerns. 

 

The added level G3 and vehicle elevators are a change from the previous submittal. 

The parking garage plans and legend have been clouded in Final DRB Approved 

design documents to identify updates from previous submission. 

 

PERMANENT UNDERGROUND STRUCTURE EASEMENT - DESIGN 

REVISION 

Integrating level G3 parking has also allowed us to address concerns for the 

permanent underground structure easement, where part of the parking was beyond 

the property boundary in both the Approved 2011 PUD and our proposed 

amendment. We addressed the staff and adjacent neighbor concerns (Shirana, 

Palmayra, and Westermere) for proximity of foundations by increasing the setback 

of the parking foundation under the plaza between the existing buildings and the 

proposed underground easement. 

 

 



2023.07.19 Lot 109R Town Council  

First Reading Submittal 
 

2907833.1 

The revised underground plaza permanent structure for the subgrade parking garage 

is a change from the previous submittal as a reduction of total area. We also removed 

the boiler room proposed below the fire lane. 

 

The plans delineating permanent underground structure revisions have been clouded 

on Final DRB Approved design documents. 

 

SUSTAINABILITY 

The design incorporates sustainable practices that meet or exceed the requirements 

of the Five Star Flagship Hotel operator, which are among the highest standards of 

any hotel operator, worldwide. A complete-building energy analysis will be used to 

optimize envelope, HVAC, lighting, pool/spa systems, snowmelt, and renewable 

energy strategies, which will all be evaluated under metrics such as energy costs, 

energy/demand reduction, carbon impacts, and greenhouse gas reduction. This 

iterative, holistic analysis will occur prior to building permit and help the team 

determine the ideal fenestration and glazing performance targets with respect to the 

other building systems and design elements. 

 

SITE DESIGN OS-3BR-2 VEHICULAR ACCESS REVISION 

A revised traffic study has been provided and is included in this submittal. The report 

captures physical traffic counts for Lot OS-3BR-2 site circulation and the existing 

parking lot on 109R private property. Lot 109R’s existing 22 parking spaces (leased 

to the town under the 2010 Approved PUD extension) are accessed opposite Sunny 

Ridge Place. The 22 spaces will be relocated and increased to 48 public parking 

spaces. Additionally, it includes existing traffic counts for the Sunny Ridge 

vehicular circulation that will occur opposite of the Porte Cochere location for the 

Six Senses hotel. The traffic study incorporated future projection for undeveloped 

property beyond the project as provided by the staff.  

 

In order to improve and maintain a one way clockwise circulation for commercial 

only vehicles, the existing north driveway is shifted from Lot 109R private property 

to Lot OS-3BR-2 for Town Bus, Town Trash, and delivery truck access. In contrast 

to Lot 109R driveway which has a pinch point of approximately 16 feet width, the 

new location has better grading compliant with Mountain Village CDC and is wide 

enough to allow for multiple vehicles to circulate at the same time.  



2023.07.19 Lot 109R Town Council  

First Reading Submittal 
 

2907833.1 

 

The report re-confirms the circulation is not only improved but will alleviate the 

congestion of the existing site. The Town’s Engineer provided guidelines for the 

traffic engineer’s additional studies. These guidelines were followed and 

incorporated into the traffic engineer’s traffic study. 

 

One way ingress/egress for passenger vehicles is suggested and to be accessed via 

the south entry from Mountain Village Boulevard to Palmyra Parking Garage, 

Shirana Parking Garage, OS-3BR-2 Site Parking, or Lot 109R Hotel Public Parking. 

 

The site design documents in this submittal have no changes from the previous submissions 

grading, driveway access and curb cuts for the suggested circulation patterns from 

the report. Any revisions from Final DRB have been delineated with clouds on the 

sheets from Final DRB Approved submission.   

 

Additional public parking spaces have also been incorporated on OS-3BR-2 as 

delineated on the site plan and traffic report. In order to increase site parking, the 

trash holding building has been modified from the Final DRB Approved Design and 

incorporates staff requests to remove the boilers as described in the narrative in the 

“OS-3BR-2 Trash Facility” section. 

 

The Traffic Study includes previously studied vehicle circulation diagrams for 

commercial SU30 delivery truck loading/unloading in front of the Shirana (via north 

entry commercial vehicle access) or two passenger vehicle loading/unloading spaces 

adjacent to the trash building. The loading/unloading is deep enough for another 

delivery truck or two passenger vehicles as shown on the diagram titled “Public 

AutoTurn Movement” and “SU-30 AutoTurn Movement”. 

 

Also addressed is the commercial circulation access for the hotel deliveries, Shirana 

delivery, and town trash holding pick up, as well as bus turnaround from the north 

access for a WB50 truck backing into the delivery bay as well as an SU30 truck 

backing into the delivery bay. All commercial delivery and hotel garbage/recycling 

collection will occur within the concealed delivery bay. 

 

 



2023.07.19 Lot 109R Town Council  

First Reading Submittal 
 

2907833.1 

 

 

UTILITY DESIGN REVISIONS 

We previously responded to the staff’s requested revisions to move the three 

proposed transformers from OS-3BR-2 across the street to the Town Lot OS-3J. The 

design team presented the revision to the Director of Public Works, Utility Company 

(SMPA), and town engineer (SGM) and they are accepting the requested relocation 

for the two transformers feeding Lot 109R in the GE off Mountain Village 

Boulevard. The transformer feeding Lot 108 for the Shirana has to be closer to their 

property due to engineering constraints of utility runs and remains on OS-3BR-2 but 

has been shifted away from the trash holding building off the sidewalk adjacent to 

the Shirana building. 

 

The switchgear on Lot 109R serves several adjacent properties and has been 

submitted with a proposed relocation to Lot 1BCDR. In December, the design team 

met with the Director of Public Works and SMPA to discuss the relocation of the 

switchgear. Their preferred relocation is still on Lot 1BCDR in the public utility GE, 

as this meets safety and service requirements in addition to tying into infrastructure. 

The relocated switchgear will result with a substantial upgrade to infrastructure 

serving Mountain Village. 

 

We previously responded to staff-requested revisions for the Gas Reg with two 

options included in civil plans. The Black Hills preferred location is the previously 

submitted installation of a new Gas Reg at 89-B on privately owned property in the 

Access Tract, for which the owner of Lot 89-B has consented. We are resubmitting a 

letter of approval for 89-B Gas Reg location.  

 

The design team presented the revision with hotel gas loads to the Director of Public 

Works, Utility Company (Black Hills), and town engineer (SGM) and they have 

approved these alternate solutions. Included in this submittal is another letter of 

approval from Black Hills, confirming agreement with the suggested location. 

 

 

 

 



2023.07.19 Lot 109R Town Council  

First Reading Submittal 
 

2907833.1 

 

NEW OS-3BR-2 TRASH FACILITY, SNOW MELT, & SITE PARKING 

We previously responded to staff requested revisions and removed the boiler room 

serving the snowmelt system for OS-3BR-2-1R and relocated those boilers into the 

hotel on Lot 109R. The reduction of square footage allowed for additional site 

parking for Town- owned spaces. 

 

The orientation is the same as previously proposed for accessing dumpsters and the 

traffic engineer has re-confirmed it is the best for vehicular circulation. The garbage 

truck access is via the north entry for commercial vehicles with a right turn where 

the truck will pull in front of the trash holding building. The dumpsters are rear 

loaded perpendicular to the trash truck and the truck exits to the south drive where 

sight lines are optimal. The north access via right turn, rear load, and exit to the south 

avoids overlapping passenger vehicles. 

 

The architectural style proposed in the Final DRB Approved design has not changed. 

We have maintained the stone, wood siding and metal finishes as previously proposed. 

Shrinking the footprint did result in a reduction of one garage door, but we have 

separated the two bays into recycling and trash based on direction from the trash pick- 

up provider, Bruin Waste. We have also included a letter from Bruin Waste 

confirming approval of this revision. Please refer to the traffic circulation study 

exhibit for additional updated information. 

MISCELLANEOUS CLARIFICATION 

• We previously area gross and net area plans in this submittal reflective of the CDC and 

have confirmed compliance with staff. 

• We previously removed the construction mitigation sheets from the design 

documents and moved them to the construction mitigation section. 

• No revisions are. Final electrical and landscape will be reflected prior to 

building permit in conjunction with DRB Final Conditions. 

• We previously added level G3 reflected in building section. 

 

Thank You, 

 

Katsia Lord, RA, LEED AP 

 

 



Attachment 6. Denial Resolution 

1 
 
2793650.3 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO DENYING A MAJOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT FOR 

LOT 109R 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-__ 
 

WHEREAS, Tiara Telluride, LLC (the “Developer”) is the owner of certain real property described 
as Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village, Colorado, according to the plat recorded as Reception No. 416994 
(“Lot 109R”) and 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Mountain Village (the “Town”) is the owner of certain real property 
adjacent to Lot 109R described as open space parcel OS-3BR-2, according to the plat recorded as Reception 
No. 416994 (the “Town Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town previously approved a PUD Plan for Lot 109R by Resolution 2010-1208-
31 (the “2010 PUD”) and, in connection therewith, the Town and Developer’s predecessor-owner of Lot 
109R entered into a Development Agreement dated March 18, 2011, which was recorded as Reception No. 
416997 (the “2011 Development Agreement”); and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2015-07, the Town approved a First Amendment to the 2011 
Development Agreement extending vested rights relating to the 2010 PUD until December 8, 2020; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2020-16, the Town approved a Second Amendment to the 2011 
Development Agreement extending vested rights relating to the 2010 PUD until December 8, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2022-10, the Town approved a Third Amendment to the 2011 
Development Agreement extending vested rights relating to the 2010 PUD until September 8, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has applied to the Town to replat Lot 109R and the Town Property (the 
“Major Subdivision Application”) for the purpose of a land exchange where the Town would convey 
portions of the Town Property to become part of Lot 109R (the “109R Adjustment Parcels”) and the 
Developer would convey portions of the current Lot 109R to become part of the Town Property (the “Open 
Space Adjustment Parcels,” and together with the Town Property, the “Adjusted Town Property”); and  

WHERAS, the Developer has applied to the Town to rezone the Adjusted Town Property as open 
space (the “Rezoning Application”) in connection with its application for approval of a Major Amendment 
to the 2010 PUD the “Major PUD Amendment Application”) to develop a mixed-use project including a 
five-star luxury hotel (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Design Review Board (“DRB”) held public hearings regarding the Major PUD 
Amendment Application on May 5, 2022 and May 31, 2022, and voted 3-1 to issue a recommendation of 
approval to the Town Council concerning the Application, subject to further consideration by the DRB for 
final design review and for its recommendation regarding the related Major Subdivision Application; and    

WHEREAS, the Town Council considered an ordinance approving the Major PUD Amendment 
Application (the “Major PUD Amendment Ordinance”) on first reading at its regular meetings on June 16, 
2022 and August 18, 2022, and consented to including the 109R Adjustment Parcels in the Developer’s 
Major PUD Amendment Application and Major Subdivision Application, but voted to continue the matter 
to November 17, 2022 so as to allow the Developer time to submit the Major Subdivision Application and 
final design review materials; and 



Attachment 6. Denial Resolution 

2 
 
2793650.3 

WHEREAS, the Town Council again considered the Major PUD Amendment Ordinance on first 
reading at its regular meeting on November 17, 2022, but voted to continue the matter to January 19, 2023 
so as to allow the DRB to conduct a further public meeting regarding final design review and the Major 
Subdivision Application before the Town Council would make a decision as to the Major PUD Amendment 
Application; and 

WHEREAS, following a DRB meeting held on December 1, 2022, the DRB recommended to the 
Town Council approval of the Major PUD Amendment Application and the Major Subdivision Application, 
subject to conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council considered the Major PUD Amendment Application, the DRB’s 
recommendations, and testimony and comments from the Developer, Town staff, and members of the public 
at a public meeting on January 19, 2023 and voted 6-1 to direct Town staff to prepare this Resolution 
denying the Major PUD Amendment Application; and 

WHEREAS, the public hearings and meetings to consider the Major PUD Amendment Application 
were duly noticed and held in accordance with the Town’s Community Development Code (“CDC”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council held a public meeting on March 16, 2023, to consider this 
Resolution and voted to continue the matter to June 15, 2023, at which time the Council voted to continue 
the matter again to August 17, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council again considered this matter following additional review and 
consideration of the Major PUD Amendment Application at its public meeting on August 17, 2023, and 
voted to approve this Resolution, denying the Major PUD Amendment Application for the reasons set forth 
herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, 
Colorado, that: 

Section 1. Recitals.  The above recitals are hereby incorporated as findings of the Town Council in support 
of the enactment of this Resolution.  
 
Section 2. Definition of the Application.  The “Major PUD Amendment Application” means and consists 
of the materials submitted to the Town and itemized on Exhibit A, plus all statements, representations, and 
additional documents of the Developer and its representatives made or submitted at the public hearings 
before the DRB and Town Council, but taking into account changes to the Application following the 
December 1, 2022, DRB meeting. Copies of all exhibits to this Resolution and the Major PUD Amendment 
Application materials are available for inspection at the office of the Town Clerk. In the event of any 
conflict between this definition of the Application and the official record of the subject hearings as 
maintained or prepared by the Town Clerk, the official record shall control. 
 
Section 3. Summary of Application.  The Major PUD Amendment Application proposes the construction 
of 50 Efficiency Lodge Units, 31 Lodge Units, 20 Condominiums, 2 Employee Apartments, 18 Employee 
Dormitories, as well as public plaza improvements, public bathrooms, an underground parking garage, and 
approximately 22,609 square feet of commercial space, all as presented and described in the documents 
submitted to and considered by the Town Council at its August 17, 2023, public meeting. In the event of 
any conflict between this summary of the Application and the official record of the subject hearings as 
maintained or prepared by the Town Clerk, the official record shall control. 
 



Attachment 6. Denial Resolution 

3 
 
2793650.3 

Section 4. Review Criteria.  The Major PUD Amendment Application was originally submitted in April 
2022. In December 2022, the Town adopted Resolution 2022-1208-17, amending the 2011 Comprehensive 
Plan. Because the Major PUD Amendment Application was submitted before the effective date of 
Resolution 2022-1208-17, it is being considered under the 2011 Comprehensive Plan. Additionally, the 
Major PUD Amendment Application is being considered under following criteria set forth in CDC Section 
17.4.12.E: 
 

1. The proposed PUD is in general conformity with the policies, principles and standards set forth 
in the Comprehensive Plan; 

2. The proposed PUD is consistent with the underlying zone district and zoning designations on 
the site or to be applied to the site unless the PUD is proposing a variation to such standards; 

3. The development proposed for the PUD represents a creative approach to the development, use 
of land and related facilities to produce a better development than would otherwise be possible 
and will provide amenities for residents of the PUD and the public in general; 

4. The proposed PUD is consistent with and furthers the PUD purposes and intent; 
5. The PUD meets the PUD general standards;  
6. The PUD provides adequate community benefits; 
7. Adequate public facilities and services are or will be available to serve the intended land uses; 
8. The proposed PUD shall not create vehicular or pedestrian circulation hazards or cause parking, 

trash or service delivery congestion; and 
9. The proposed PUD meets all applicable Town regulations and standards unless a PUD is 

proposing a variation to such standards. 
 

Section 5. Decision.  The Town Council finds that the Major PUD Amendment Application does not meet 
the requirements of the CDC set forth above, including, without limitation, satisfaction of Sections 17.4.12 
and 17.3.4.H.7 of the CDC and compliance with the 2011 Comprehensive Plan. The Town Council, 
therefore, denies the Major PUD Amendment Application. The following is an illustrative but not 
exhaustive list of the reasons why the Major PUD Amendment Application does not satisfy the applicable 
review criteria: 
 

a. The proposed development includes Town-owned land, use of which is in the sole discretion 
of the Town Council and which approval is not guaranteed. The Town Council cannot find the 
Major PUD Amendment Application would produce a better development per CDC Sections 
17.4.12.E.3 and 17.4.12.A.2. Based on the current proposal, the Town Council is not willing to 
convey Town-owned property to the Developer to be used for the proposed development, 
which makes the development unfeasible as currently proposed.  

 
b. The proposed development does not create a more efficient use of land, public facilities, and 

government services as required by CDC Section 17.4.12.A.5, because the Developer has 
chosen to maximize development and requests encroachments and easements on town-owned 
land to meet the needs of the development in terms of utilities, access, etc. Specifically, the 
proposed development does not efficiently use the Town Property for trash and access, and 
there will be interruption to trash use/service during construction; and adding addition vehicular 
uses in perpetuity does not create a more efficient use of the town’s land area, which would 
hinder the Comprehensive Plan’s goal of relocation of the facility. 

 
c. The proposed development does not include sufficient infrastructure as required by CDC 

Section 17.4.12.I.9, because much of the development’s utilities will be placed on neighboring 
properties. 

 



Attachment 6. Denial Resolution 

4 
 
2793650.3 

d. The proposed development does not provide adequate community benefits, which includes 
public benefits and public improvements per CDC Section 17.4.12.G.  

 
e. The proposed development does not provide adequate public facilities and services as required 

by CDC Section 17.4.12.E.7. 
 
f. The proposed development creates pedestrian circulation hazards contrary to CDC Section 

17.4.12.E.8.  
 
g. All other grounds reflected in the record regarding the Major PUD Amendment Application. 
 

Section 6. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and adoption. 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Town Council at a regular public meeting held on August 17, 
2023.     

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE TOWN 
COUNCIL 

 
 
       By: __________________________________ 
        Martinique Prohaska, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
David McConaughy, Town Attorney 
  



Attachment 6. Denial Resolution 

5 
 
2793650.3 

Exhibit A 
 

[LIST OF MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT APPLICATION MATERIALS] 
 
 

 



Attachment 7. PUD Comparison 2010 to 2023 Amendment 

Public Benefits Variations and Specific Approvals Comparison 2010 PUD and 2023 PUD 
amendment 
 
For illustrative purposes only see Ordinance for a complete list of variations, specific approvals 
and public benefits. 
Rev. 8.10.23 Original PUD Amendment Request 
Public Benefits   
 40 dedicated hotel rooms 50 dedicated hotel rooms held in common 

ownership as a condominium unit and 
cannot be further condominiumized 

 Hotel Operator requirements Hotel Operator requirements – letter of 
intent with Six Senses – also see hotel 
covenant 

 Furniture package Furniture package 
 A Mitigation payment of $996,288 A Mitigation payment of $996,288 
 Hotel Covenant Hotel Covenant  
 Up to $250,000 of the mitigation 

payment referenced above, can be 
used to relocate the trash facility 

Existing Trash Facility to be replaced at 
applicant estimated total cost of 
$840,625. This includes town consent 
that Tiara Telluride rebuild the trash 
building. 

 60% ($590,625) of the mitigation 
payment to be used for employee 
housing. 

The remaining $746,288 of the 
mitigation payment, to be placed in 
dedicated Employee Housing Fund 

 On the 2nd anniversary of a 
Certificate of Occupancy, the 
operator will provide actual full time 
equivalent employee information. 
The owner shall pay $4,018.52 per 
employee in excess of the 90 full 
time equivalent employees 
estimated by the owner. 

On the 2nd anniversary of a Certificate of 
Occupancy, the operator will provide actual 
full time equivalent employee information. 
The owner shall pay $4,018.52 per 
employee in excess of the 90 full time 
equivalent employees estimated by the 
owner. 

 One (1) employee apartment Two (2) employee apartments total 
(meaning one additional employee 
apartment)  and 18 employee dormitories, 
each comprised of individual sleeping 
rooms accommodating three people with 
common amenities such as a shared 
kitchen and recreational facilities and a 
laundry within a minimum commitment of 
11,700 square feet of employee housing. 
Applicant estimated cost $9,950,250 with a 
cumulative sale value of approximately 
$20,000,000 if sold individually and not 
subjected to employee housing 
restrictions). 

 Public Restroom Public Restroom 
 Plaza Improvements Plaza Improvements to the Village Pond 

Plaza cash in lieu of $250,000. The 
existing easement for use and access 
would be terminated. 

 Emergency access to Plaza Area  
 

Emergency access to Plaza Area  
 



Attachment 7. PUD Comparison 2010 to 2023 Amendment 

 The Project Association responsible 
for removing and/or relocating snow 
from the south side of upper 
Mountain Village Boulevard 

Installation of two new sidewalks improved 
with snow melt systems: (1) Shirana to MV 
Blvd (2) From where the four seasons 
sidewalk ends continuous along MV Blvd 
to the entrance to OS-3BR-2 (109R back 
of house and town short term parking area)  

 See Forever Walkway. A pedestrian 
access easement will be drafted 
that connects See Forever through 
Lot 109R to the Village Center 

See Forever Walkway. A pedestrian 
access easement will be drafted that 
connects See Forever through Lot 109R to 
the Village Center with the major 
subdivision plat 

 48 public parking spaces in the 
parking garage 

48 public parking spaces provided in the 
parking garage 

 Westermere Breezeway 
Improvements 

Westermere breezeway improvements and 
Westermere path improvements consistent 
with their proposed development plan and 
subject to 7.2.8 of the proposed 
development agreement. 

 Conference Room space rentable 
by the public at regulated rates 
comparable to the TCC 

Conference Room space rentable by the 
public at market rates 

 20,164 square feet commercial 
density 

22,609 square feet commercial density 

  Public Access via the port cochere through 
the building to the See Forever walkway 
plaza 

 24 hour valet service in exchange 
for tandem parking 

valet parking provided for commercial 
uses. Tandem parking is requested. 
Shuttle service between Montrose and the 
hotel for guests. 

  Lodge units voluntarily in the rental pool 
 Original PUD Amendment Request 
Variations Variation/waiver to LUO Section 2-

416 to allow Lot 109 and 110, 
Building Footprint Lots, to expand 
by more than 25%. 

n/a 

 Variation/waiver to LUO Section 4-
308-9 to allow an increase in 
maximum to 88’ – 9”and maximum 
average height of 65’ – 2.9”. 

Variation/waiver to LUO Section 4-308-9 to 
allow an increase in maximum to 88’ – 
9”and maximum average height of 65’ – 
2.9”. 

 Variation/waiver to LUO Section 2-
466 to allow for the proposed lock-
off unit configuration as shown in 
the Final PUD Plans. 

 n/a 

 Variation/waiver to LUO Section 4-
308-2 (sic.) [*Should have 
referenced 4-311-2.] to allow for 
permitted uses (parking, pedestrian 
paths, etc. as shown in plans) in 
Active Open Space as shown on 
the Final PUD Plans to be approved 
pursuant to the PUD process and 
not the special use permit process. 

N/A 



Attachment 7. PUD Comparison 2010 to 2023 Amendment 

 Variation/waiver to LUO Section 4-
308-2(f) to allow for conference and 
meeting space on the plaza level. 

 N/A 

 Variation/waiver to LUO Section 4-
609-5 to extend the PUD vesting 
period from three (3) to five (5) 
years. 

N/A.  Applicant proposes to create a 
vested property right in the PUD as 
amended for the standard 3-year vesting 
period. 

 Variation/waiver to LUO Section 9-
13 through 9-16 to allow for the 
“festoon” lights over the plaza area. 

n/a 

New Requests  A request for Town Council to create 
bonus density or MV density in the density 
bank to be transferred to the property for 
employee apartment or employee 
dormitory use, as needed. 

  A variation to CDC Section 17.4.12.(O)(2) 
to the 67% prior written consent of 67% of 
all owners of a unit to a PUD application.   

  Conference Center to be offered to the 
public at market rate rather than 
comparable to the Conference Center.  

  Easement for awnings and overhangs 
  Roof Form per CDC 17.5.6.C. 
  Wall material (no stucco proposed) per 

CDC 17.5.6.E. 
  Glazing – uninterrupted areas of glass that 

exceed 16 square feet per CDC 17.5.6.G.5 
  Decks and Balconies – long continuous 

bands per CDC 17.5.6.I. 
  Commercial, Ground Level and Plaza Area 

Design Regulations – Storefront Design, 
Color Selection per CDC 17.5.15 

  Garage Drive Aisle reduced from 22 feet to 
18 feet approved by the fire marshal per 
CDC 17.5.8.C.3 

  Exterior Lighting Variations 
  Commercial, Ground Level and Plaza Area 

Design Regulations To allow for a ski 
locker private unit on a Primary Pedestrian 
Plaza 

  Driveway Grade 
 Original PUD Amendment Request 
Specific 
Approvals 

Specific approval from the Town 
Council to allow residential 
occupancy on the plaza level for an 
Employee Housing Condominium 
(LUO Section 4-308-4). 

N/A 

 Specific approval from the DRB to 
allow tandem parking to be included 
as required parking (Design 
Regulations Section 7-306-2). 

Requesting tandem parking 

 Specific approval from the DRB to 
allow for modification of the tile 

N/A 



Attachment 7. PUD Comparison 2010 to 2023 Amendment 

roofing material, not design (Design 
Regulations Section 8-211-5). 

 Specific approval from the DRB to 
allow for 2:12 roof pitch (Design 
Regulations Section 8-202) 

N/A 

New Specific 
Approvals 

 Materials- TPO membrane roof, metal 
fascia and soffit 

  Solar roof tiles in the Village Center 
  Road and Driveway Standards – 2 curb 

cuts 
  Tandem Parking 
Finding   
  The DRB established a one parking space 

per dormitory unit on May 31sth per CDC 
17.5.8.A.5 (May 31, 2022 meeting) 

 



Attachment 8a. Referral Comment Kirn 

1. Which Silver LEED certification are you pursuing? Certification for Building Design and Construction?  
a. Intertek is listed as the LEED & Energy Modeler. Have they completed an initial LEED 

scorecard based on the drawings and specifications? If so, what were the results? Has the 
applicant decided on anticipated credits to pursue? 

b. Has the amount of energy the project will use been modeled? If so, what were the results? 
 

2. The Six Senses’ website states that they place “great importance on creative and sustainable 
architecture and building practices” and have operations “empty of waste, toxins and plastic.” How 
involved has the Six Senses’ development team been in the design and engineering of the project?  

 
3. As part of this package, it says “Provisions [are included] that make more explicit the requirement of 

operation by a five-star luxury brand hotel operator, and provisions addressing Town approval of 
any change from Six Senses, which is the Town approved ‘Hotel Operator’.” 

a. Does the contract stipulate a date by which these changes would need to be made? What 
are the repercussions? For example, is there a chance we end up with a hotel constructed 
and no operator? 
 

4. If Six Senses drops out at any time as the Hotel Operator, will the project still pursue LEED Silver 
Certification? 
 

5. Solar – how much energy will the anticipated solar arrays generate? 
 

6. Natural gas – it looks like alternate Option 2 was chosen as the gas regulator station location. Per 
black Hills Energy’s email, “The alternate Option 2 is less preferrable as it is closer to the road and 
vehicular traffic. Either location will have to have some sort of barricade, whether that is steel pipe 
enclosure or large rocks place around location to keep it protected.” Alternate Option 2 is on the 
other side of the road – is this location approved by that property’s owner?  

a. Is the Town okay with this location so close to the road? 
 

7. More of a question for Town Council: 
a. Valley Advocates for Responsible Development (VARD) in Teton Valley reached out about 

the applicant. Has Town Council reached out to VARD for more information/clarification? 
 

8. Listed as Public Benefits 
a. 50 dedicated hotel rooms over the 40 rooms in the original PUD– this seems more like a 

hotel desire/benefit than a public benefit 
b. Provide a brand new plaza at the north end of the Village Center – who is managing this? 
c. Valet parking – How is it a public benefit? 
d. “The Project will also construct a brand new trash holding building on OS-3-BR-2.” Is this a 

public benefit or required for the project? Will the building include compost? 
i. The new trash holding building is listed as a public benefit, but later the document 

states that it has “Added additional language addressing the possibility of relocating 
the existing trash holding building, and the Developer’s provision of payment 
toward the cost of a replacement trash holding building.” Will the trash building be 
built by the developer or will this get put onto the Town? 

e. Is the mitigation payment a requirement or public benefit? 



Attachment 8a. Referral Comment Kirn 

f. “Onsite deed restricted housing an additional 1 employee apartment (2 total employee 
apartments) and 18 employee dormitories units that sleep up to 3 employees.” Is this a 
public benefit or a hotel need/benefit? 
 

9. Other considerations as part of PUD agreement 
a. Adding additional 551 sf of land, paid for at the same rate as original PUD. Given the 

requested changes to the original PUD (from 2010), and the current value of land, should 
this payment amount increase? 

 



At achment 8b. Referral Comment Kjome, PW Director 
 
Hi Amy, 
I don’t see and changes that concern me. I doubt the construc�on mi�ga�on plan will work but they 
always evolve once construc�on starts. I am concerned about access to the Westermere businesses. I 
am par�cularly concerned about ADA and no close parking. 
Finn  
 



MEMORANDUM 

DATE: July 31, 2023 revised August 2, 2023 

TO: Amy Ward, Town of Mountain Village 

FROM: Dan Cokley, PE, PTOE  

RE: Lot 109R Development – Traffic Impact Study Review 

This memo provides a review of the Lot 109R Traffic Impact Study (TIS) prepared by LSC 
Transportation Consultants Inc dated July 19, 2023, and submitted to the Town. The TIS was 
prepared based on coordination with the Town and the accepted scoping and methodology form 
provided by the Town. 

The TIS meets the intent of the scoping and is generally consistent with the agreed upon 
methodology. A summary of the comments are provided below. 

• Sunny Ridge / Porte Cachere and Mountain Village Blvd intersection
o The intersection is recommended as an All-Way Stop Controlled (AWSC)

intersection in conjunction with the proposed development. This appears to be a
reasonable solution to the sight distance issues at this existing and proposed
intersection.

 What are the grades at the westbound downhill approach? Grades at stop-
controlled intersections are typically 4% or less within 100 ft of the
intersection.

 The intersection is modeled in 2026 and 2043 as two-way stop control,
revise to AWSC and present MOE results.

• 95th percentile queue results should be provided using Simtrafic using a minimum of (10)
60-minute runs at critical (limited available queue distance) approaches. While I understand
the queues are relatively short, they are typically more accurate and generally double in
length when using Simtraffic methodology.

o NB Porte Cachere
o WB Southern loop access

• Statements regarding intersections 1. and 3 on page 5 of the report are not accurate
through the 2043 timeframe.

• There are some minor inconsistencies in the application of trips in the NCHRP 684
spreadsheet that do not affect the final conclusions.

• Present clear Recommendations for mitigation to the existing road network, such as the
AWSC intersection and associated improvements.

The comments provided above should be addressed to provide clarity and completeness to the 
TIS. It is not believed that the resolution of the comments will change the conclusion that the 
proposed land use at Lot 109R can be accommodated by the existing roadway system with 
appropriate mitigation measures. 

Attachment 8c. Referral Comment 
SGM

S SGM 



MEMORANDUM   

DATE: July 31, 2023 revised August 2, 2023  

This memo provides a review of the Lot 109R Traffic Impact Study (TIS) prepared by LSC 
Transportation Consultants Inc dated July 19, 2023, and submitted to the Town. The TIS was 
prepared based on coordination with the Town and the accepted scoping and methodology form 
provided by the Town.  

The TIS meets the intent of the scoping and is generally consistent with the agreed upon 
methodology. A summary of the comments are provided below.  

 Sunny Ridge / Porte Cachere and Mountain Village Blvd intersection
o The intersection is recommended as an All-Way Stop Controlled (AWSC)

intersection in conjunction with the proposed development. This appears to be a
reasonable solution to the sight distance issues at this existing and proposed
intersection.
 What are the grades at the westbound downhill approach? Grades at

stop- controlled intersections are typically 4% or less within 100 ft of
the intersection.

LSC RESPONSE:  The westbound approach has a downhill grade of just under three percent
at the intersection and flattens further uphill.

 The intersection is modeled in 2026 and 2043 as two-way stop control,
revise to AWSC and present MOE results.

LSC RESPONSE: The highest traffic volume scenarios in 2043 (Figure 15b of the TIA) were
evaluated as AWSC and the overall intersection and all approaches are
expected to operate at LOS “A” through 2043 in both the weekday
morning and afternoon peak-hours and the Saturday peak-hour. Three
updated capacity analysis reports are attached for reference.

 95th percentile queue results should be provided using Simtrafic using a minimum of (10) 60-
minute runs at critical (limited available queue distance) approaches. While I understand the
queues are relatively short, they are typically more accurate and generally double in length
when using Simtraffic methodology.

o NB Porte Cachere
LSC RESPONSE: The sensitivity analysis projections in Figure 15b were modeled in SimTraffic 

(10 runs) as requested. The 95th percentile queue length for the NB Porte 
Cochere approach varies from 45 feet to 53 feet between the three scenarios. 
This equates to two passenger vehicles. The average queue lengths are about 
one vehicle. The queuing reports are attached. Also attached is a detail of the 
proposed Porte Cochere area. 

o WB Southern loop access
LSC RESPONSE: The sensitivity analysis projections in Figure 15b were modeled in SimTraffic 

(10 runs) as requested. The 95th percentile queue length for the WB Southern 
Loop Access approach varies from 51 feet to 66 feet between the three 
scenarios. This equates to between two and three passenger vehicles. The 
average queue lengths vary from 23 feet to 37 feet which equates to between 
one and one and one-half passenger vehicles. The queueing reports are 
attached. 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE:  

Amy Ward, Town of Mountain Village 

Dan Cokley, PE, PTOE   

Lot 109R Development – Traffic Impact Study Review 

Attachment 8d. Vault Response

S SGM 

lsc
Text Box
Responses by Chris McGranahanLSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.August 4, 2023



 
 Statements regarding intersections 1. and 3 on page 5 of the report are not accurate 

through the 2043 timeframe.  
LSC RESPONSE: These statements on Page 5 refer to the existing and background traffic 

scenarios only so our position is these statements are correct.  
 There are some minor inconsistencies in the application of trips in the NCHRP 684 

spreadsheet that do not affect the final conclusions. 
LSC RESPONSE:  We agree these inconsistencies do not affect the conclusions. The 

reason is this worksheet was used to estimate the internal trips that 
could be generated by the site. The worst case scenario was the 
2043 sensitivity analysis (Figure 15b) which did not consider any 
reduction for internal trips or alternative travel mode trips. Because of 
this the sensitivity analysis scenarios are unaffected by this 
comment. 

 Present clear Recommendations for mitigation to the existing road network, such as the 
AWSC intersection and associated improvements.  

LSC RESPONSE:  The recommended improvements included all-way stop-sign control at 
Access Intersection #3, Ingress Only movement for Access Intersection 
#2, and full movement for Access Intersection #1. This will allow a 
clockwise flow through the site for buses and large trucks. 

The comments provided above should be addressed to provide clarity and completeness to the 
TIS. It is not believed that the resolution of the comments will change the conclusion that the 
proposed land use at Lot 109R can be accommodated by the existing roadway system with 
appropriate mitigation measures.  

LSC RESPONSE: All comments are addressed above and should provide the clarity being 
requested. 

  



HCM 6th AWSC 2043 Total Traffic (no reduction) w/ AWSC
3: Porte Cochere/Sunny Ridge Pl & Mountain Village Blvd AM Peak

Synchro 10 Report
CSM

Intersection
Intersection Delay, s/veh 7.6
Intersection LOS A

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 9 62 37 0 67 0 29 0 0 0 0 15
Future Vol, veh/h 9 62 37 0 67 0 29 0 0 0 0 15
Peak Hour Factor 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 11 78 46 0 84 0 36 0 0 0 0 19
Number of Lanes 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0

Approach EB WB NB SB
Opposing Approach WB EB SB NB
Opposing Lanes 1 1 1 1
Conflicting Approach Left SB NB EB WB
Conflicting Lanes Left 1 1 1 1
Conflicting Approach Right NB SB WB EB
Conflicting Lanes Right 1 1 1 1
HCM Control Delay 7.6 7.6 7.8 6.9
HCM LOS A A A A
        

Lane NBLn1 EBLn1 WBLn1 SBLn1
Vol Left, % 100% 8% 0% 0%
Vol Thru, % 0% 57% 100% 0%
Vol Right, % 0% 34% 0% 100%
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop
Traffic Vol by Lane 29 108 67 15
LT Vol 29 9 0 0
Through Vol 0 62 67 0
RT Vol 0 37 0 15
Lane Flow Rate 36 135 84 19
Geometry Grp 1 1 1 1
Degree of Util (X) 0.046 0.146 0.096 0.02
Departure Headway (Hd) 4.525 3.904 4.132 3.84
Convergence, Y/N Yes Yes Yes Yes
Cap 780 913 861 938
Service Time 2.619 1.956 2.189 1.84
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.046 0.148 0.098 0.02
HCM Control Delay 7.8 7.6 7.6 6.9
HCM Lane LOS A A A A
HCM 95th-tile Q 0.1 0.5 0.3 0.1



HCM 6th AWSC 2043 Total Traffic (no reduction) w/ AWSC
3: Porte Cochere/Sunny Ridge Pl & Mountain Village Blvd PM Peak

Synchro 10 Report
CSM

Intersection
Intersection Delay, s/veh 7.9
Intersection LOS A

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 18 90 45 0 74 0 44 0 0 0 0 12
Future Vol, veh/h 18 90 45 0 74 0 44 0 0 0 0 12
Peak Hour Factor 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 21 107 54 0 88 0 52 0 0 0 0 14
Number of Lanes 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0

Approach EB WB NB SB
Opposing Approach WB EB SB NB
Opposing Lanes 1 1 1 1
Conflicting Approach Left SB NB EB WB
Conflicting Lanes Left 1 1 1 1
Conflicting Approach Right NB SB WB EB
Conflicting Lanes Right 1 1 1 1
HCM Control Delay 8 7.8 8.1 7
HCM LOS A A A A
        

Lane NBLn1 EBLn1 WBLn1 SBLn1
Vol Left, % 100% 12% 0% 0%
Vol Thru, % 0% 59% 100% 0%
Vol Right, % 0% 29% 0% 100%
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop
Traffic Vol by Lane 44 153 74 12
LT Vol 44 18 0 0
Through Vol 0 90 74 0
RT Vol 0 45 0 12
Lane Flow Rate 52 182 88 14
Geometry Grp 1 1 1 1
Degree of Util (X) 0.069 0.201 0.103 0.016
Departure Headway (Hd) 4.732 3.965 4.19 3.978
Convergence, Y/N Yes Yes Yes Yes
Cap 762 894 843 905
Service Time 2.733 2.036 2.275 1.98
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.068 0.204 0.104 0.015
HCM Control Delay 8.1 8 7.8 7
HCM Lane LOS A A A A
HCM 95th-tile Q 0.2 0.7 0.3 0



HCM 6th AWSC 2043 Total Traffic (no reduction) w/ AWSC
3: Porte Cochere/Sunny Ridge Pl & Mountain Village Blvd Sat Peak

Synchro 10 Report
CSM

Intersection
Intersection Delay, s/veh 8
Intersection LOS A

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 19 79 60 0 69 2 60 0 0 0 0 14
Future Vol, veh/h 19 79 60 0 69 2 60 0 0 0 0 14
Peak Hour Factor 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 23 94 71 0 82 2 71 0 0 0 0 17
Number of Lanes 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0

Approach EB WB NB SB
Opposing Approach WB EB SB NB
Opposing Lanes 1 1 1 1
Conflicting Approach Left SB NB EB WB
Conflicting Lanes Left 1 1 1 1
Conflicting Approach Right NB SB WB EB
Conflicting Lanes Right 1 1 1 1
HCM Control Delay 8.1 7.8 8.2 7.1
HCM LOS A A A A
        

Lane NBLn1 EBLn1 WBLn1 SBLn1
Vol Left, % 100% 12% 0% 0%
Vol Thru, % 0% 50% 97% 0%
Vol Right, % 0% 38% 3% 100%
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop
Traffic Vol by Lane 60 158 71 14
LT Vol 60 19 0 0
Through Vol 0 79 69 0
RT Vol 0 60 2 14
Lane Flow Rate 71 188 85 17
Geometry Grp 1 1 1 1
Degree of Util (X) 0.094 0.206 0.101 0.019
Departure Headway (Hd) 4.737 3.947 4.319 4.005
Convergence, Y/N Yes Yes Yes Yes
Cap 761 893 835 898
Service Time 2.741 2.039 2.319 2.011
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.093 0.211 0.102 0.019
HCM Control Delay 8.2 8.1 7.8 7.1
HCM Lane LOS A A A A
HCM 95th-tile Q 0.3 0.8 0.3 0.1



Queuing and Blocking Report 2043 Total Traffic - no reductions - AWSC at #1
AM Peak Hour AM Peak

SimTraffic Report
CSM

Intersection: 1: Mountain Village Blvd & Country Club Dr/South Loop

Movement EB WB NB
Directions Served LTR LTR LTR
Maximum Queue (ft) 54 65 51
Average Queue (ft) 18 23 5
95th Queue (ft) 41 51 29
Link Distance (ft) 126 132 148
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Mountain Village Blvd & North Loop

Movement SB
Directions Served LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 3
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 5
Link Distance (ft) 138
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 3: Porte Cochere/Sunny Ridge Pl & Mountain Village Blvd

Movement EB WB NB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR LTR LTR
Maximum Queue (ft) 67 58 51 33
Average Queue (ft) 35 24 18 10
95th Queue (ft) 55 46 45 34
Link Distance (ft) 138 124 117 94
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 0



Queuing and Blocking Report 2043 Total Traffic - no reductions - AWSC at #1
PM Peak Hour PM Peak

SimTraffic Report
CSM

Intersection: 1: Mountain Village Blvd & Country Club Dr/South Loop

Movement EB WB NB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR LTR LTR
Maximum Queue (ft) 50 86 50 3
Average Queue (ft) 20 37 7 0
95th Queue (ft) 39 66 31 3
Link Distance (ft) 126 132 148 159
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Mountain Village Blvd & North Loop

Movement SB
Directions Served LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 15
Average Queue (ft) 1
95th Queue (ft) 8
Link Distance (ft) 138
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 3: Porte Cochere/Sunny Ridge Pl & Mountain Village Blvd

Movement EB WB NB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR LTR LTR
Maximum Queue (ft) 76 60 54 30
Average Queue (ft) 39 24 24 9
95th Queue (ft) 62 46 49 32
Link Distance (ft) 138 124 117 94
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 0



Queuing and Blocking Report 2043 Total Traffic - no reductions - AWSC at #1
Saturday Peak Hour Sat Peak

SimTraffic Report
CSM

Intersection: 1: Mountain Village Blvd & Country Club Dr/South Loop

Movement EB WB NB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR LTR LTR
Maximum Queue (ft) 47 75 38 3
Average Queue (ft) 15 33 3 0
95th Queue (ft) 37 58 19 3
Link Distance (ft) 126 132 148 159
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Mountain Village Blvd & North Loop

Movement SB
Directions Served LT
Maximum Queue (ft) 11
Average Queue (ft) 1
95th Queue (ft) 9
Link Distance (ft) 138
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 3: Porte Cochere/Sunny Ridge Pl & Mountain Village Blvd

Movement NB SB
Directions Served LTR LTR
Maximum Queue (ft) 61 30
Average Queue (ft) 29 8
95th Queue (ft) 53 30
Link Distance (ft) 117 94
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 0



LOT 109R PORTE COCHERE DIAGRAM 

 

____ / 
-

, 
I 

Conform 



From: Robert Johnson
To: Amy Ward; Finn KJome; Jim Loebe; Brett Button; Dan Cokley
Cc: Michelle Haynes
Subject: RE: 109R latest submittal
Date: Tuesday, July 25, 2023 12:41:05 PM

Hello,

Turning the bus around at Centrum is problematical at best.  The bus would have to do a multi-point
turn to execute the maneuver.  Redirecting passengers to Blue Mesa would be my preference. 
Depending on construction, the bus could proceed to the entrance of Lot 161 and turn around.

Thanks,

Rob Johnson
Transit Operations Manager
Town of Mountain Village
O::970.369.6444
M::970.729.3433
Email Signup | Website | Facebook | Twitter | Pinterest | Videos On Demand

For information about The Town of Mountain Village's response to COVID-19 (Coronavirus), please
visit townofmountainvillage.com/coronavirus/

From: Amy Ward <award@mtnvillage.org> 
Sent: Monday, July 24, 2023 5:25 PM
To: Finn KJome <FKJome@mtnvillage.org>; Robert Johnson <RJohnson@mtnvillage.org>; Jim Loebe
<JLoebe@mtnvillage.org>; Brett Button <BButton@mtnvillage.org>; Dan Cokley <DanC@sgm-
inc.com>
Cc: Michelle Haynes <MHaynes@mtnvillage.org>
Subject: 109R latest submittal

Shared Files · Town of Mountain Village

Hello all,

We’ve received another submittal for the 109R team. The bookmarks and labels are really well done,
so you should be able to navigate to any areas of concern you have without reviewing the thousands
of pages again. Sorry for the short turn around, but hoping to have all comments back in a week,
by Monday August 1. This will be reviewed by Town Council again on August 17. The major areas of
concern at the last hearing were:

Traffic study – I understand that the design of the building and interior circulation can’t really
be reviewed at this time without full construction document detail. Really what we are
currently focusing on is the circulation around the project, increased traffic, etc. The major
change I see here is that they are proposing a 4-way stop at the Porte Cochere/Sunny Ridge

Attachment 8e. Johnson Referral Comment

• 

mailto:RJohnson@mtnvillage.org
mailto:award@mtnvillage.org
mailto:FKJome@mtnvillage.org
mailto:JLoebe@mtnvillage.org
mailto:BButton@mtnvillage.org
mailto:DanC@sgm-inc.com
mailto:MHaynes@mtnvillage.org
http://www.townofmountainvillage.com/emailsignup
http://www.townofmountainvillage.com/
https://www.facebook.com/townofmountainvillage
https://twitter.com/MountainVillage
http://pinterest.com/townofmv/
http://www.townofmountainvillage.com/video
http://townofmountainvillage.com/coronavirus/
https://mtnvillage.files.com/f/c91837e938e3a916/August%2017%2C%202023%20Application%20Materials


Place intersection. This would put stop signs on MV Blvd. similar to three way stop at the
Madeline.
Construction Mitigation – I understand that they are still in discussions with Shirana, however
are showing an alternative with smaller mobile cranes that would avoid airspace
encroachment with Shirana. I understand that the bus turn around would likely not be
feasible during at least some of the construction – would we be okay with just having it turn
around at blue mesa at that time? If we communicate this really well to the public, it seems
easier to have folks walk an extra 2 minutes than to try to create a new turn around area? Any
other concern
Legal documents – I haven’t reviewed thoroughly yet, but felt like the development
agreement was in a pretty good place the last time around.
Any other final concerns? This could be the last chance for any meaningful input.

 
Please reach out to me directly with any questions. Thank you for your thorough and ongoing review
of this project!
 
Regards,
 
Amy Ward
Community Development Director
Town of Mountain Village
O :: 970.369.8248 M :: 970.729.2985
We are experiencing high volumes of development review and have limited staffing. Please be patient
regarding our response time. 
Website | Facebook | Twitter | Instagram | Email Signup | Careers
 We make Mountain Village a great place to live, work & visit.
 

• 

• 

• 

https://townofmountainvillage.com/
https://www.facebook.com/townofmountainvillage
https://twitter.com/MountainVillage
https://www.instagram.com/townofmountainvillage/
https://townofmountainvillage.com/newsletter-subscribe/
https://townofmountainvillage.com/community/town-services/careers/


August 3, 2023 

Dear Mountain Village Town Council, 

We are all  owners in See Forever Village and  have a keen interest in the direction of the 
proposed development of Lot 109-R.   One or more members of our HOA have attended most 
of your meetings concerning the development of Lot 109R.  We truly appreciate the time you 
spend and your dedication to serving our community.  On behalf of See Forever, we do want to 
thank you for volunteering your time  to maintaining the unique ambiance that is Mountain 
Village.  

First, let us state that we are in favor of a properly sized hotel/condo development on the Lot 
109-R.  Setting aside issues regarding labor availability, community parking, and overall traffic
congestion, the idea of an upscale hotel, nice restaurants, enhanced landscaping, and a better
maintained walkway from See Forever to the Village core is attractive to us. We are in favor of
a development that is in accordance with the community development code, and we urge you
to go back to that zoning as you consider any development for that land.

As group of owners that is committed to maintaining our unique Mountain Village and See 
Forever environment, we are disappointed in your decision to grant yet another continuance. 

We see several issues with this plan: 

1. We question whether the developer is  trustworthy.  He has consistently either refused
or been incapable of providing you with information that you request.  We struggle to
understand how that can be.  Your request for a traffic study is clear and unambiguous.
Why did he still not provide that? Is it because he knows the results will indicate a
significant congestion problem? You have asked for this study, yet he has refused to
provide it. Only now with  gun to his head does it appear a traffic study was completed.
That does not indicate a spirit of partnership and cooperation that is so necessary for
this type of major project.

In addition, how is Council, or the citizens of Mountain Village, supposed to feel when
we learn that this developer apparently  lied about our project in an attempt to try and
sell a development to another community?  According to Anna Trentadue’s statement,
this developer told the Idaho land management that you had already approved this
Mountain Village development in an attempt to enhance his credibility.  She stated that
some of the challenges you are now facing in terms of getting responses are the same as
they dealt with.   It appears that he  misrepresented facts  in an attempt to get his way.
How can you believe what he tells you?  At a minimum, you will incur significant legal
expenses as every single detail will have to be documented to ensure that the developer
actually does what he agrees to.

Attachment 9. Public Comments



2. The developer seems to struggle with facts.  How high is the building?  A foot is a foot 
and there is no ambiguity   Staircases are not included in livable spaces for employees. It 
seems that there is constant debate surrounding basics such as size of living space, 
parking, height.  We struggle to understand how this can occur and it  calls into question 
competence and transparency. 
   

3. The community development code for Mountain Village calls for a 67 ft structure.   This 
PUD is 87ft…and the proposed development is a solid 87 ft…not a maximum  peak 
measurement. We realized that the PUD that extended the height was granted in 2008 
– a time when there was severe economic distress and the council at that time thought 
they had to sacrifice its principles in order to survive economically. But today’s 
economic climate is much different. It is vibrant, with an active and appreciating real 
estate market and bountiful public coffers.  It is no longer necessary to compromise 
standards, and it is time to allow this PUD to expire and go back to the original intention 
of 67 feet. The reality is this project is too big for the space.  Set-backs are 
compromised, height is compromised, and it is just too big. 
 

4. Do we have a legitimate proof of financing, letter of commitment, etc.?    We 
understand that Six Sense has provided a non-binding letter of intent.  That is nice to 
have, but it is non-binding, and most importantly, it does not provide funds.    We are 
assuming that the developer has provided a credit commitment from a reputable bank 
that funds this project, and that there is finish out escrow set aside to ensure we do not 
end up in a situation where the developer runs out of money and we have a half-built 
building. Given some of the challenges and apparent misrepresentations to date, we 
urge you to validate the source of funds and ensure they are formally and legally 
committed and sufficient to complete the entire project. 
 

5. References and examples of prior work.  It would be helpful if we can see examples of 
other projects that this developer has completed.  Mountain Village is a premier 
location, and we want premier developers making our community even better. We 
would appreciate references so we can see the quality of work, and maybe speak with 
the town and neighbors to learn if what they were promised actually happened. This is 
an increasingly important  issue given his lack of follow-up and candor.  

 
 
We See Forever owners strongly urge you to deny the extension of the PUD at your August 
meeting.  Let’s refocus our efforts on developing a new project that meets the original town 
guidelines  and provides a development that both Mountain Village owners and Town Council 
can enthusiastically support.  
 
 
Thank you for listening to us. 
 
 



Sincerely,   
 
See Forever 2 Owners 
 
Bill and Jean Nictakis 
Madonna  Beale 
Tom and Dana Barenberg 
Scott and Kim David 
Jack Roth  
Nancy Daigh 
Dennis Dautel and Spencer Carlton 
Jodi Early and Cary Savage 
Bill and Cindy Bock 
Andrew Czekaj 
Kathleen and Joe Howell  
Orlean M.  Smith 
John and Lisa McGraw 
Maria Elena and Alejandro Arizpe  
Ruth Fitzgibbons and Brian MGauley 
Gary and Sheryl Wood 
Ronee Kiplees  
Amanda Curtis Mattingly 
Fredrik and Danielle Eliasson 
Doug Hitchner 
Pete and Chris Edwards 
Zach and Kathy Lee 
Mark F Mai 
Gary and Donna Hoover 
John and Laura Olson 
 
 
 
 



 
 

araiffe@vaultdesigngroup.com  Adam Raiffe, Director 
908.227.4908 Vault Design & Vault Engineering August 4, 2023 

August 4, 2023 

 

Dear Council and Town Staff, 

 

Please accept the following in response to a letter of concerns raised in public comment by owners 

at See Forever Village. Please include in the record.  

 

 

As Always, with Appreciation, 

 

Adam Raiffe, RA, M.Arch, NCARB 
Director|Partner 

Vault Design & Vault Engineering 

Architect, RA98677, 2IAI02071200 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VAULT DESIGN GROUP r- 2770 Arapahoe Road, Ste 132 
Lafayette, CO 80026 

ARCHITECTURE & MASTER PLANNING 
Colorado I New Jersey I International 



 
 

araiffe@vaultdesigngroup.com  Adam Raiffe, Director 
908.227.4908 Vault Design & Vault Engineering August 4, 2023 

August 4, 2023 

 

To Whom it May Concern, 

 

It has come to our attention that concerns are being raised about the design of the proposed hotel, 

the developer Vault Home Collection, and our client the applicant/owner Tiara. We feel that we 

are in an excellent position to provide firsthand information on the concerns raised. 

First,  let  me  introduce  myself.  My  name  is  Adam  Raiffe,  I  am  a  licensed  architect  and  a 

Partner/Owner  of  Vault Design  Group.  I  speak  on  behalf  of my  team  and my  partners. Our 

architecture studio has been hired by the applicant/owner Tiara to be the architect and designer of 

the Hotel and Residences proposed at Lot 109R2 in Mountain Village, CO.  

For the past two years we have been working on the design of the proposed development. During 

this  time our  team worked with  local  consultants,  Six  Senses,  and Town  Staff  to provide  their 

requested submittals. 

Please allow us to respond directly to each of the concerns raised in the August 3rd, 2023, letter from 

owners at See Forever Village. 

Concern #1 

The letter first raised a question about the trustworthiness of the developer Vault Home Collection. 

The example of providing a traffic study was described as a “clear and unambiguous” request. We 

agree with your statement! Our office is responsible for the distribution of this information, not the 

developer. Our office worked with LSC, a reputable traffic consultant, and they provided us with 

the type of study for vehicular movement and vehicular volume typical for this type of development. 

The Council requested further study be performed from the report we had previously provided to 

Town Staff. We have now provided an exhaustive study to the Town Staff, including a weeks’ worth 

of physical counting of traffic, along with video recording of a weeks’ worth of vehicular volume on 

the site and additionally, up and down Mountain Village Boulevard, during one of the busiest weeks 

in  the  village,  before,  during,  and  after  July  4th.  This  type  of  report  is  usually  conducted  for 

extremely high‐volume venue with significant traffic concerns. The Town Staff has acknowledged 

that  they have never  received  such  an  extensive  report before. The  study has  confirmed LSC’s 

previous conclusions and has demonstrated that the project will result in a significant traffic flow 

improvement over the existing shared driveway conditions. As a result, the information and effect 

~ VAULT DESIGN GROUP 
~ I 2770 Arapa hoe Road, Ste 132 

Lafayette, CO 80026 

ARCHITECTURE & MASTER PLANNING 
Colorado I New Jersey I International 



 
 

araiffe@vaultdesigngroup.com  Adam Raiffe, Director 
908.227.4908 Vault Design & Vault Engineering August 4, 2023 

on the project has changed very little because of this new report as the previous report was accurate 

and conducted under the most stringent regulation available. 

The second point raised about the developer stating the Mountain Village project being approved, 

we  believe,  is  a  misunderstanding. We  were  part  of  communications  with  VARD,  the  NGO 

represented by Anna Trentadue, and we can provide  firsthand  information about the statement 

made  when  conversing  with  that  organization. We  believe  the  developer  stated  that  we  are 

developing a project in Mountain Village, CO. Which is true, as we have been working on designs 

and negotiations with the Town on this project for over two years, which is the first stage of the 

development  process. We  imagine  this  could  be  easily misunderstood  as  a  statement  of  post 

approval. 

A representative of VARD stated at the Mountain Village Council hearing on June 15th, 2023, that 

some of the challenges faced by Mountain Village seemed very similar to the experience they had 

in Idaho. However, there is no comparison between that experience to the one in Mountain Village. 

The master plan concept we prepared for the Idaho project happened over the course of several 

months  and  only  got  so  far  as  to  contemplate  a map  concept. This  is  in  stark  contrast  to  the 

exhaustive  years  of  effort  our  team  has  undertaken  to  address  Town  Staff  questions,  local 

comments, and Council concern  for  the proposed hotel  in Mountain Village. Mountain Village 

wants this type of development as documented by the comprehensive plan which was a major driver 

in our design. The  Idaho project  and process has  little  to no  similarity  to what  is proposed  in 

Mountain Village. 

Perhaps some additional history from our experience in Idaho would be helpful. 

In Teton Valley,  our  client  the  applicant High Noon Ranch, went  into  contract  to  purchase  a 

property in Driggs, Idaho. Shortly after, Vault Design Group was hired to produce the conceptual 

master plan of the development. The plan roughly lays out roads, buildings, and site activities for 

the proposed development with inspirational imagery of what the architecture might look like. The 

applicant engaged with VARD to collaborate with us to produce the best project possible for the 

locale. The applicant’s team traveled to meet with VARD in‐person to discuss the initial project. 

Subsequently, two zoom meetings with Trentadue and her team at VARD took place. She and her 

office always seemed willing to work together with the applicant and after each of our meetings we 

updated the concept per VARD’s suggestions. 

Trentadue also  suggested  to  the applicant  that  they host an open design  session with  the  local 

community. The applicant agreed however, due to time restrictions, the applicant responded that 

VAULT DESIGN GROUP r- 2770 Arapahoe Road, Ste 132 
Lafayette, CO 80026 

ARCHITECTURE & MASTER PLANNING 
Colorado I New Jersey I International 



 
 

araiffe@vaultdesigngroup.com  Adam Raiffe, Director 
908.227.4908 Vault Design & Vault Engineering August 4, 2023 

a neighborhood  charette would  be hosted  immediately  after presentation  to  the Planning  and 

Zoning Commission. 

The day before the hearing, we were all blindsided by a very negative written statement by VARD 

regarding the project. At the hearing in Driggs, VARD representation also called in and stunned all 

of us with a very negative opinion about the project. How this happened, we really cannot say! We 

are left with no alternative but to respectfully question VARD’s reasons.  

After a presentation by the developer and many hours of deliberation, the Commission voted 3‐4 

that commercial development is not desired in that area of their community. Promptly following 

this  hearing,  the  applicant  canceled  its  contract  to  purchase  the  property  and  abandoned  the 

endeavor. To be clear, the Driggs Commission voted against the project because they did not want 

a  commercial  development  in  that  area  of  their  valley. The Planning  and Zoning Commission 

hearing is public record and is accessible to watch by anyone. 

Concern #2 

Regarding the statement about the ambiguity of the building height. The building height is clear 

and unambiguous with  a maximum height  of  88’‐9”. The height  is  calculated  by  the  architect 

through a very rigorous set of parameters which have been established by, provided to, and verified 

by, Town Staff. Again, we believe there may be confusion about who is providing this information. 

It  is our office,  in  collaboration with Town Staff,  that provides  the  information  about building 

height, neither the applicant nor the developer. This information is technical and is provided under 

the strictest standard set  forth by the Town. This  is also true regarding stated square  footage of 

employee  housing  for  example.  There  are  strict  guidelines  on  how  to  measure  area  and,  in 

collaboration with Town Staff, we have provided those verified figures. Again, there is no room for 

ambiguity. 

Concern #3 

We understand your concern regarding the scale of the building. However, please note that the 

Comprehensive Plan does contemplate heights higher than 67’‐0” in the Village Center, including 

heights over 90’‐0”. For example, the recently approved Four Seasons project has a maximum 

height of 89’‐8”, that’s 0’‐11” higher than our proposal. The project was designed to conform with 

important Town goals in the Comprehensive Plan, including a density of hotbeds and a caliber of 

design sufficient to attract a world class operator like Six Senses. As was the case with Four 

Seasons, a certain amount of height and mass is necessary to make this kind of project feasible. 

The proposed development went through several Design Review Board evaluations, was altered, 

~ VAULT DESIGN GROUP 
~ I 2770 Arapa hoe Road, Ste 132 

Lafayette, CO 80026 

ARCHITECTURE & MASTER PLANNING 
Colorado I New Jersey I International 



 
 

araiffe@vaultdesigngroup.com  Adam Raiffe, Director 
908.227.4908 Vault Design & Vault Engineering August 4, 2023 

and redesigned to reduce the originally proposed mass/height and was ultimately approved by 

that board. 

Concern #4 

This concern raised questions about proof of financing, and a letter of commitment from Six 

Senses. We understand this concern as well regarding the intent of Six Senses to operate this 

development and we can speak directly to this concern. Regarding the concern raised over 

financing we can only comment regarding the terms set forth in the development agreement. 

These terms incorporate requirements which address financing, provision of security to the Town 

to ensure completion of the public improvements before any construction is commenced, and 

other related terms, as is typical in entitlement. This has been thoroughly reviewed by Town Staff, 

Town legal, the development team, and our office. We will also add that the applicant owns the 

property outright and has spent a considerable many millions of dollars with our office, legal 

teams, local consultants, and Six Senses themselves, to continue to produce this design. We are 

sure you recognize this shows the intent to produce the project and would be exceptionally 

foolish to do so without the ability to move the project forward. 

Regarding Six Senses and their commitment to the project. We work directly with several people 

at Six Senses, including the CEO, Directors, Managers, Architects, Interior Designers, and 

Marketing, to name a few. They have worked hard to produce and brand this development as Six 

Senses. Many of our consultants have additionally worked on other Six Senses projects around the 

world. Yes, the organization has signed an LOI to operate the project and is waiting for the 

entitlement to be approved to sign a binding agreement. That is typical of the industry and of the 

entitlement process. Six Senses has remained in lockstep with Tiara in moving this project 

forward and is excited to be the operator here.  But, to provide further assurances, you should 

know that the development agreement requires a five‐star luxury brand hotel operator.   

A representative from Six Senses will be visiting for the next Council hearing on August 17th, 2023, 

and we would welcome the opportunity to introduce you to them to discuss their commitment to 

the project. 

Concern #5 

Regarding the concern over the developer’s quality of work, our office has been hired by the 

developer on multiple occasions to design single‐family homes and large‐scale commercial 

projects. The developer is not one person, but instead a team of people with varying roles. Along 

with the owner and our office, it is the development team’s responsibility to vet and choose 

~ VAULT DESIGN GROUP 
~ I 2770 Arapa hoe Road, Ste 132 

Lafayette, CO 80026 

ARCHITECTURE & MASTER PLANNING 
Colorado I New Jersey I International 



 
 

araiffe@vaultdesigngroup.com  Adam Raiffe, Director 
908.227.4908 Vault Design & Vault Engineering August 4, 2023 

quality contractors, consultants, and trades people to design and construct the respective project. 

When this project is entitled, an experienced, high quality building team will be engaged to 

construct the project. To be clear, it is the builder that will perform quality construction work, not 

the developer or the applicant. 

Regarding the sentiment over, “the lack of [the applicant’s] follow‐up and candor.” To clarify, 

much of the information provided to the council was from our office, not the applicant. We strive 

to provide all the information requested from us by Town Staff and from the Council. We look 

forward to continuing to work with Town Staff and with the new Council. 

 

Thank you very much for your  input regarding our design for your community and we hope we 

have answered your concerns clearly. Many of us have fallen in love with your Mountain Village, 

and the Telluride area, and we look forward to spending more time there not only as participants 

in this project but also as neighbors. It would be our pleasure to speak with each of you and your 

neighbors directly. Please feel welcome to reach out to us with any additional concerns you may 

have. We look forward to meeting you all when this project is underway. 

 

Sincerely yours, 

 

 

 

Adam Raiffe, RA, M.Arch, NCARB 
Director|Partner 

Vault Design & Vault Engineering 

Architect, RA98677, 2IAI02071200 

VAULT DESIGN GROUP r- 2770 Arapahoe Road, Ste 132 
Lafayette, CO 80026 

ARCHITECTURE & MASTER PLANNING 
Colorado I New Jersey I International 



From: David Koitz
To: mvclerk
Cc: virginia howard; Perch Nelson; Bill Nictakis
Subject: Re: Another deferral in deciding fate of Lot 109R development proposal
Date: Monday, August 7, 2023 6:29:59 PM

My wife and I submitted our views on June 20th, 2023 regarding the pending development
application for lot 109R application … shown below.  We ask that those views be included
among the public comments provided to the Council for the upcoming hearing on August 17,
2023.
Thank you…
Dave koitz

Sent from my iPad

On Jun 20, 2023, at 4:04 PM, mvclerk <mvclerk@mtnvillage.org> wrote:

Mr. Koitz,

 Thank you for your public comment. This email serves as proof that it was
received and forwarded to Town Council and staff.

 Regards,

 

Susan Johnston

Town Clerk

Town of Mountain Village

O::970.369.6429

M::970-729-3440

Website | Facebook | Twitter | Instagram | Email Signup

 

 

From: David Koitz <dkoitz@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 3:59 PM
To: mvclerk <mvclerk@mtnvillage.org>
Subject: Another deferral in deciding fate of Lot 109R development proposal

 

To Mountain Village Council Members…

mailto:dkoitz@gmail.com
mailto:mvclerk@mtnvillage.org
mailto:vrhoward@hotmail.com
mailto:perch.nelson@phoenixamericanhospitality.com
mailto:bill.nictakis@gmail.com
https://townofmountainvillage.com/
https://www.facebook.com/townofmountainvillage
https://twitter.com/MountainVillage
https://www.instagram.com/townofmountainvillage/
https://townofmountainvillage.com/newsletter-subscribe/


We are writing once again to express our opposition to
the pending Vault development proposal for Lot 109R. 
While the developer has made a number of
adjustments to his original plan (prompted only by the
Council and town staff), the planned structure’s
overwhelming height and mass has changed little.  It
would rise like a major fortress on only eight tenths of
an acre in the middle of a quaint community of mostly
second homes and condominiums.  We are a small
village in the mountains… We are not Miami Beach
where a structure of this dimension would be well
suited to welcome a vast number of tourists seeking a
short getaway from their busy lives.

For the Mountain Village Town Council, we see this as a
major test of fair governance. From the time and attention
that the Council has given to this proposal, what is clear is
that this developer doesn’t want to fit in.  The PUD
potentially granting major zoning variances was approved
twelve or so years ago.  This developer was not around
then.  He’s attempting to take advantage of an antiquated
exception in our community’s continuing evolution.  When
a community contemplates giving someone major building
relief from its codes, the public has a right to participate
and voice their opinion, but it’s fair to say that over the
past 12 years, the turnover of homes and condominiums
in the vicinity of this potential project has been extensive. 
The owners now are largely different than when these
exceptions were first granted.  We’re sure that most
current owners here in this quiet arm of the village had no
idea that this could be done so close to their homes when
they purchased in the years subsequent to conception of
the so-called Mountain Village “hotel.” 
How fair is it to grant major zoning exceptions today in a
mostly residential area that laid open and unused for 12
years? They laid dormant and were hardly even noticeable
in the community’s 2011 master plan… Why? … because it
wasn’t to be a “new” future proposal.  It was conceived
and granted before.
But here we are now with many new owners in the
community … 12 years later… nothing like it was built, and
what is eminently clear from earlier sessions the Council
has devoted to this proposal is that a majority of current
homeowners surrounding lot 109R oppose this “new”
project.



David and Gretchen Koitz”
 

 

Sent from my iPad



Iron Chalet LLC 
Lot AR613-C2 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
August 8th, 2023 

Town Council 
Town Of Mountain Village 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
RE: Approve Lot 109R Six Senses/Tiara Telluride Hotel Project 
Dear Town Council: 
First, thank you for your commitment to the Mountain Village as an elected official. We very much 
appreciate your service and leadership.  
I am writing to encourage the Mountain Village Town Council to support the Six Senses/Tiara 
Telluride hotel project at Lot 109 R at the hearing on August 17, 2023.  
This project is the logical next step in the evolution of Mountain Village and there are numerous 
reasons why many in the community support bringing a five-star hotel to the Mountain Village.  
Six Senses is one of the finest lodging operators in the world. They bring an impeccable reputation 
and will create a world-class hotel with enhanced amenities, spa and great restaurants with ground-
breaking architecture. Many locals are thrilled they will offer local access to spa and roof-top pool 
facilities.  

In addition to a commitment to sustainability and workforce housing, there are numerous additional 
benefits that this project offers to the Mountain Village:         

❖ Providing the most on-site workforce housing of any hotel in Telluride and Mountain Village 
with housing up to 56 employees in approximately 14,000 sq ft. 

❖ Proposing the first commercial LEED-certified building in Mountain Village. 
❖ Offering 48 newly dedicated public parking spaces if the project is approved and built. (A net 

loss of 22 spaces if not built.) 
❖ Redeveloping the area around the trash facility including the facility itself to alleviate current 

and future challenges. 
❖ Building extensive new sidewalks to help pedestrians move around the core safely. 

We strongly encourage the Mountain Village Town Council to approve this exciting project.  Thank 
you! 
Sincerely, 

Iron Chalet LLC  
Shamsu Lalani

r f 



From: Dwight Witherspoon
To: council; Elizabeth Witherspoon
Subject: Say NO to Six Senses
Date: Tuesday, August 8, 2023 12:05:16 PM

Hello - My family and I are proud homeowners of Telluride Mountain Village since 2019.
While we are not new to Colorado (or Mountain Towns), we have fallen deeply in love with
the Telluride Area. We have lived around the country (and in Europe) and know of few places
that offer the peace and serenity of Telluride and the Mountain Village. It is truly a unique
place that could only be ruined by a few things - one of those is greed in the form of
unchecked development. 

There is no way to put the genie back in the bottle and once these massive projects (Six
Senses/Four Seasons) are approved and built, we will have permanently eroded what makes
our town and our region so special. My wife and I lived in Aspen back in the mid-90s. That
town was starting to undertake some of the same actions and today, Aspen is unrecognizable.
The town no longer stops in Snowmass, but extends like one giant 'line' all the way to Basalt
and beyond. 

I am starting to imagine a day in the not too distant future when our hubris and greed kill the
small town vibe we cherish. It will be replaced by long, tedious lift lines and private planes
dumping the ultra wealthy off at the doorstep of what used be a town, with a local vibe and a
casual nature. Perhaps if we continue the development of these massive hotel chains, we can
all start making reservations to see Music on the Green, instead of strolling down the hill?

I hope the Town Council does what is in its power to preserve what we have - perfection - and
not sell out to these greedy corporate entities that seek only profit and will happily and
gleefully turn our town into the thing we least want - Vail!

Best regards,

Dwight Witherspoon
129 Lost Creek Lane
Telluride Mountain Village 

mailto:dwightdwitherspoon@gmail.com
mailto:council@mtnvillage.org
mailto:elizabethwitherspoon@gmail.com


From: Tim Wolf
To: council
Subject: TELLURIDE HOTEL PROJECT
Date: Tuesday, August 8, 2023 4:07:23 PM

FROM: Tim Wolf
5311 Waterstone Drive
Boulder, CO 80301

TO: MOUNTAIN VIEW TOWN COUNCIL
Town Council
Town Of Mountain Village
455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A
Mountain Village, CO 81435
RE: Approve Lot 109R Six Senses/Tiara Telluride Hotel Project
Dear Town Council:
First, thank you for your commitment to the Mountain Village as an elected
official. 
I very much appreciate your service and leadership. 

I am writing to encourage the Mountain Village Town Council to support the Six
Senses/Tiara Telluride hotel project at Lot 109 R at the hearing on August 17,
2023. 
This project is the logical next step in the evolution of Mountain Village and there
are numerous reasons why many in the community support bringing a five-star
hotel to the Mountain Village. 

Six Senses is one of the finest lodging operators in the world. 

They bring an impeccable reputation and will create a world-class hotel with
enhanced amenities, spa and great restaurants with ground-breaking architecture by
Vault Design, the Architecture and the Master Planning Studio. 

Many locals are thrilled they will offer local access to spa and roof-top pool
facilities. 
 
In addition to a commitment to sustainability and workforce housing, there are
numerous additional benefits that this project offers to the Mountain Village:        
 
 Providing the most on-site workforce housing of any hotel in Telluride and
Mountain Village with housing up to 56 employees in approximately 14,000 sq
ft.

mailto:tvdwwolf@gmail.com
mailto:council@mtnvillage.org


 Proposing the first commercial LEED-certified building in Mountain
Village.
 Offering 48 newly dedicated public parking spaces if the project is approved
and built. (A net loss of 22 spaces if not built.)
 Redeveloping the area around the trash facility including the facility itself to
alleviate current and future challenges.
 Building extensive new sidewalks to help pedestrians move around the core
safely.

The increase in public benefits and improvements goes beyond those offered by
comparable projects in the area.  

I strongly encourage the Mountain Village Council to approve the Six Senses/Tiara
Telluride hotel on Lot 109R and hope my perspective is objective as I have no
financial stake of any kind in its outcome. This is objectively, just a great idea so
many positive impacts.

Thank you!
Sincerely,

Tim Wolf

Tim Wolf
President, Wolf Interests
Boulder, Colorado 
303 478-3551
NEVER RELENT



From: Richard Thorpe
To: council
Subject: 109 PUD
Date: Wednesday, August 9, 2023 7:27:01 AM

Dear Council Members,
This Project and Developer do not reflect the Values and best interests of Mountain
Village. This developer has engaged in a misleading advertising campaign in an effort
to persuade council to approve their application. The mass and scale are too big for
this location. Their design would be more appropriate for MIami, but not for an Alpine
location.
They have used up an inordinate amount of Town's staff time, repeatedly ignoring
public input. Most of the support in previous meetings has come from Realtors and
Telluride residents, Not MV residents.
IT IS NOT GOVERNMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY TO PROVIDE REALTORS WITH
INVENTORY!

Please do not approve this project!
Richard Thorpe
MV Homeowner

mailto:rthypno@yahoo.com
mailto:council@mtnvillage.org


Andrew J. Butler 
898 Mt. Carmel Rd. 
Dubuque, IA  52003 

August 10. 2023 

Town Council 
Town Of Mountain Village 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

RE: Approve Lot 109R Six Senses/Tiara Telluride Hotel Project 

Dear Town Council: 

First, thank you for your commitment to the Mountain Village as an elected official. We very 
much appreciate your service and leadership.  

I am writing to encourage the Mountain Village Town Council to support the Six Senses/Tiara 
Telluride hotel project at Lot 109 R at the hearing on August 17, 2023.  

This project is the logical next step in the evolution of Mountain Village and there are numerous 
reasons why many in the community support bringing a five-star hotel to the Mountain Village.  

While the five lots I own through Lookout Ridge, LLC are likely the most impacted of all the 
lots in the area, I fully support this project.  It was clear when my family originally purchased the 
lots many years ago that Lot109R was eventually going to be developed.  The design is 
stunningly spectacular and adds to the aesthetics of the Mountain Village community. 

This development: 

- Adds real value to the aesthetics of Mountain Village. 
- Enhances the public amenities and commercial opportunities for Mountain Village. 
- Likely improves traffic flow and parking with a public garage. 
- Shows intense focus on fine details. 
- Reflects a new level of attention to workforce housing. 

Six Senses is one of the finest lodging operators in the world. They bring an impeccable 
reputation and will create a world-class hotel with enhanced amenities, spa and great restaurants 
with ground-breaking architecture. Many locals are thrilled they will offer local access to spa and 
roof-top pool facilities.  
 
 
 
 



In addition to a commitment to sustainability and workforce housing, there are numerous 
additional benefits that this project offers to the Mountain Village:         
 

- Providing the most on-site workforce housing of any hotel in Telluride and Mountain 
Village with housing up to 56 employees in approximately 14,000 sq ft. 

- Proposing the first commercial LEED-certified building in Mountain Village. 
- Offering 48 newly dedicated public parking spaces if the project is approved and built. (A 

net loss of 22 spaces if not built.) 
- Redeveloping the area around the trash facility including the facility itself to alleviate 

current and future challenges. 
- Building extensive new sidewalks to help pedestrians move around the core safely. 

In short summary, the Six Senses/Tiara Telluride hotel project will be wonderful neighbors for 
all of the residents and visitors of Mountain Village for decades to come. I strongly encourage 
the Mountain Village Town Council to approve this exciting project.  Thank you! 

Sincerely, 

 

Andrew J. Butler 

Lookout Ridge, LLC 



From: Joe
To: council
Subject: Lot 109R hotel project PUD amendment
Date: Thursday, August 10, 2023 8:58:15 AM

It’s time to end this conversation and deny the application.  Our current hotels are not at capacity. 
Our current hotels still struggle to find adequate staffing.  Mountain Village does not need another
hotel.  We do not need more visitors.  Let’s change the narrative from development, to culture,
community and preservation.
 
Sent from Mail for Windows
 

mailto:joseph.r.infantino@gmail.com
mailto:council@mtnvillage.org
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Daniel Jansen 
107 Lupine Lane, Mountain Village, CO 81435 

 jansendan@me.com 
 
 
 
 
Re: Public comment for August 17th meeting of the Mountain Village Town Council 
 
Dear Mayor and Town Council members, 
 
I am a long-term full-time resident of Mountain Village, a former elected official, and an active 
supporter of our environment and our sustainable tourism economy (serving on both the 
Telluride Tourism Board and Colorado Flights Alliance Board). I mention these experiences to 
inform my opinions being shared with you as a private citizen, in writing in advance of the 
meeting, as I will be traveling during this meeting. Two items on your agenda attracted my 
attention. 
 
The citizens’ initiative to limit building heights in the Village Center to 60 feet seems well 
intended in that we all agree on preserving our beautiful environment.  That said, there are 
several concerns it raises in my mind. First, it seems to risk an abdication of some of your land 
use authority.  We elected you to be fully informed and make sound decisions on behalf of our 
community in these complex matters.  This initiative proposes significant restrictions that 
would be met in only the rarest of situations (e.g., 100% approval from contiguous neighbors 
for any height variance, 60% approval from residents within 400 ft, which I think is ~16 acres in 
the dense village core).  Like many of our community members, I trust you to make good 
decisions on our behalf and would not want your authority to be constrained in any way. 
Secondly, this is effectively a de-facto ban on any potential high-end hotels in our region.  As an 
economy that is driven 80% by tourism, we have less hotel rooms than other similar 
destinations, have no five-star branded properties, and have not in fact built any new hotels in 
almost 15 years across the entire region.  We have become very reliant on short term rentals 
(STR’s) to support our economy, which are also being regulated and reduced in number (see 
Telluride’s STR cap). Having met with representatives of leading hotel operators when I was 
Mayor, they said that a certain design and density is needed for the hotel to be viable and to 
earn a five-star branded rating.  A 60-foot height limit would effectively preclude any high-end 
branded hotels, especially since I can only see two viable sites in the region, both in the 
Mountain Village core (109R and 161CR). Finally, the nullification of pre 2011 approved PUDs as 
outlined in this initiative seems to apply to only one project that I know of. This looks like ‘spot 



zoning’ to me.  In summary, I would encourage you to listen carefully to the entire community, 
including those neighbors near any proposed project, maintain your full land use authority, 
support both the environment and our economy, and do not adopt this citizen ordinance. 
 
Which leads to my second commentary on another agenda item involving your review of the 
proposed hotel project on lot 109R, that is intended to have Six Senses as its operator.  This lot 
and project have had a long history with many ups and downs. I have no business dealings with 
the developer or operator, but simply want to see a high-end branded hotel in our community 
to support our sustainable tourism economy (as noted above). Hotels with top operators are 
hard to realize in our community, and we are short on potential locations and options. While 
there is another potential project on 161CR, we are in a period of high interest rates and high 
inflation that will challenge any project’s economics.  Very few hotel projects get built, even 
those that have been “approved” (reference Silverline, Rosewood, Ajax, Hunt Family, etc.) My 
sense is that if this latest attempt to build a high-end hotel fails, we will see another 
development of high end private (often dark) condos.  This would significantly reduce the 
amenities, public benefits, workforce housing and vibrancy of the North end of the Village 
Center. I appreciate that some of the neighbors who bought properties near this long-identified 
hotel development lot have concerns.  I would encourage you to balance those concerns with 
the needs of the broader community and economy.  I would encourage you to support this 
hotel project. 
 
Thank you for your service and kind regards, 
 
Dan Jansen 
 



Kolby Ward
PO Box 343
Telluride, CO 81435

Date: 8/10/2023 

Town Council
Town Of Mountain Village
455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A
Mountain Village, CO 81435

RE: Approve Lot 109R Six Senses/Tiara Telluride Hotel Project

Dear Town Council:

First, thank you for your commitment to the Mountain Village as an elected official. We very
much appreciate your service and leadership.

I am writing to encourage the Mountain Village Town Council to support the Six Senses/Tiara
Telluride hotel project at Lot 109 R at the hearing on August 17, 2023.

This project is the logical next step in the evolution of Mountain Village, and there are numerous
reasons why many in the community support bringing a five-star hotel to the Mountain Village.

Six Senses is one of the finest lodging operators in the world. They bring an impeccable
reputation and will create a world-class hotel with enhanced amenities, a spa, and great
restaurants with ground-breaking architecture. Many locals are thrilled they will offer local
access to spa and roof-top pool facilities.

In addition to a commitment to sustainability and workforce housing, there are numerous
additional benefits that this project offers to the Mountain Village:       

● Providing the most on-site workforce housing of any hotel in Telluride and Mountain
Village with housing up to 56 employees in approximately 14,000 sq ft.

● Proposing the first commercial LEED-certified building in Mountain Village.
● Offering 48 newly dedicated public parking spaces if the project is approved and built. (A

net loss of 22 spaces if not built.)
● Redeveloping the area around the trash facility, including the facility itself, to alleviate

current and future challenges.
● Building extensive new sidewalks to help pedestrians move around the core safely.

We strongly encourage the Mountain Village Town Council to approve this exciting
project.  Thank you!

Sincerely, I 


	August 17, 2023 Town Council Meeting Agenda
	Agenda Item 5a Grant Commitee Appointments
	Agenda Item 5b Ethics Commission Appointment(s)
	Agenda Item 6 Telluride Mountain Club Special Event
	Agenda Item 8a July 18, 2023 Special Town Council Meeting Minutes Draft
	Agenda Item 8b July 20, 2023 Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes Draft
	Agenda Item 9 2023 SMPA Franchise Agreement-Clean
	Agenda Item 10 CDC Amendment Renewals
	Agenda Item 11 Lot 30 Vested Property Rights Extension
	Agenda Item 12 Lot 360 Detached ADU Variance
	Agenda Item 13 Proposed Citizen Ordinance
	Agenda Item 14 PUD Amendment



